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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 
Department of Homeland Security 

Washington, DC 20528 / www.oig.dhs.gov 

July 5, 2017 

This responds to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request to the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG), 
dated December 25, 2016, seeking DHS-OIG closed investigations during 
calendar years 2015 and 2016. Your request was received in this office on 
December 27, 2016. 

In response to your request, a search of the DHS-OIG Office of Investigations 
was conducted. DHS-OIG previously sent you responsive records as a part of 
FOIA request number 2013-056. The search resulted in additional enclosed 
records responsive to your request. We reviewed the responsive records under 
the FOIA to determine whether they may be disclosed to you. Based on that 
review, this office is providing the following: 

__ 4_2 __ page( s) are released in part (RIP). 

The exemptions cited for withholding records or portions of records are marked 
below. 

Freedom of Information Act, 5 U .S.C. § 552 Privacy Act, 
5 U.S.C. § 552a • 552 b 

IZ! 552 b 

• 552(b)(4) 0 552(b)(7)(B) 0552 (b )(7)(F) D Other: 

OIG redacted from the enclosed documents, names and identifying information 
of third parties to protect the identities of these individuals. Absent a Privacy 
Act waiver, the release of such information concerning the third parties named 
in these records would result in an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy in 
violation of the Privacy Act. Information is also protected from disclosure 
pursuant to Exemptions 6, 7(A), 7(C), 7(D), and 7(E) of the FOIA further 
discussed below. 
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Exemption 6, 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(6) 

     
Exemption 6 allows withholding of “personnel and medical files and similar files 

the disclosure of which would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of 
personal privacy.”  5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(6)(emphasis added).  DHS-OIG is invoking 
Exemption 6 to protect the names of third parties and any information that 

could reasonably be expected to identify such individuals. 
 

 Exemption 7(A), 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(A) 

Exemption 7(A) authorizes the withholding of “records or information compiled 
for law enforcement purposes . . . to the extent that production of such law 

enforcement records or information . . . could reasonably be expected to 
interfere with enforcement proceedings.”  5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(A).  DHS-OIG is 
invoking Exemption 7(A) to protect information pertaining to investigations 

within this list of narratives that include ongoing proceedings. 
 

Exemption 7(C), 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(C) 
 

Exemption 7(C) protects from public disclosure “records or information 

compiled for law enforcement purposes . . . [if disclosure] could reasonably be 
expected to cause an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.”  5 U.S.C. § 
552(b)(7)(C).  DHS-OIG is invoking Exemption 7(C) to protect the identities of 

third parties, and any information contained in these investigative records that 
could reasonably be expected to identify those individuals. 

 
Exemption 7(D), 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(D) 

 

Exemption 7(D) protects records or information compiled for law enforcement 
purposes, the release of which could reasonably be expected to disclose the 
identities of confidential sources.  5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(D).  DHS-OIG is invoking 

Exemption 7(D) to protect information that could reasonably be expected to 
identify confidential informants and information furnished by those 

individuals. 
 

Exemption 7(E), 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(E) 

 
Exemption 7(E) protects all law enforcement information that “would disclose 

techniques and procedures for law enforcement investigation or prosecution, or 
would disclose guidelines for law enforcement investigations or prosecution if 
such disclosure could reasonably be expected to risk circumvention of the law.”  

5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(E).  DHS-OIG is withholding from disclosure specific 
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information which could reasonably be expected to risk circumvention of the 

law.   
 

Appeal 

 

You have the right to appeal this response.  Your appeal must be in writing and 
received within 90 days after the date of this response.  Please address any 

appeal to:   
 

FOIA/PA Appeals Unit 

DHS-OIG Office of Counsel 
Stop 0305 
245 Murray Lane, SW 

Washington, DC  20528-0305 
 

Both the envelope and letter of appeal must be clearly marked “Freedom of 
Information Act/Privacy Act Appeal.”  Your appeal letter must also clearly 
identify the DHS-OIG’s response.  Additional information on submitting an 

appeal is set forth in the DHS regulations at 6 C.F.R. § 5.8. 
 

Assistance and Dispute Resolution Services 

 
Should you need assistance with your request, you may contact DHS-OIG’s 

FOIA Public Liaison.  You may also seek dispute resolution services from our 
FOIA Public Liaison.  You may contact DHS-OIG’s FOIA Public Liaison in any 
of the following ways: 

 
FOIA Public Liaison 

DHS-OIG Counsel 
STOP 0305 
245 Murray Lane, SW 

Washington, DC  20528-0305 
Phone: 202-254-4001 
Fax: 202-254-4398 

E-mail: foia.oig@oig.dhs.gov 
  

Additionally, the 2007 FOIA amendments created the Office of Government 
Information Services (OGIS) to offer mediation services to resolve disputes 
between FOIA requesters and federal agencies as a non-exclusive alternative to 

litigation.  If you are requesting access to your own records (which is 
considered a Privacy Act request), you should know that OGIS does not have 

the authority to handle requests made under the Privacy Act of 1974.  Using 

http://www.oig.dhs.gov/
mailto:foia.oig@oig.dhs.gov
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OGIS services does not affect your right to pursue litigation.  You may contact 

OGIS in any of the following ways: 

Office of Government Information Services 

National Archives and Records Administration 
8601 Adelphi Road - OGIS 

College Park, MD 20740-6001 
E-mail: ogis@nara.gov 
Web: https://ogis.archives.gov 

Telephone: 202-741-5770 
Fax: 202-741-5769 

Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448 

If you have any questions about this response, please contact us at 202- 

254-4001. 

Sincerely, 

Drew Lavine 
OIG Office of Counsel 

Enclosures 

Drew Lavine

http://www.oig.dhs.gov/
mailto:ogis@nara.gov
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Investigation Number
Name of INV Office 

assigned to the 
investigation

Agency Affected Title Subjects Occupation Date Received Date Opened Date Closed Narratives Allegation Code Allegation Category Allegation Allegation Detail Allegation Type Allegation Status Action Description Disposition Type Violcation Code Violation Description

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1018 False Official Certificate or Writings

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1018 False Official Certificate or Writings

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-SFO-01688 San Francisco, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) WECO, Inc., CBP Contractor, Lincoln, CA DHS Contractor 11/21/2007 11/21/2007 11/11/2016

Complainant reported that WECO is a certified Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) repair station that 
overhauls and repairs “rotables” in the aeronautical industry.  WECO has a repair contract with the DOD and 
are suspected of using used or non-traceable sub-components in violation of FAA requirements and the DOD 
contract.  WECO also has a contract with the CBP National Supply and Logistics Center (NSLC), El Paso, Texas, 
and may also be involved in product substitution with the NSLC contract.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 38
Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I08-CBP-TUC-09556 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Lukeville, AZ DHS Employee 6/12/2008 6/12/2008 3/30/2016

It was reported that a corrupt Border Patrol Agent, identified as First Name Unknown , Lukeville, AZ, 
is allegedly facilitating the importation of marijuana.     6/26/08: Additional info received via JIC/OPR 
200808176. (JF)    8/22/08: Per Tucson Field Office, case I05-09402 is consolidated into this case. (rl)    10/8/08: 
Per Tucson Field Office, JIC cases 200900155 and 200900152 are consolidated into this case. (rl)     5/14/09: JIC 
case 200907423 has been consolidated into this case.    10/6/09:  Per Tucson Field Office, JIC case 201000024 
has been consolidated into this case.    1/8/2010- Per TFO, I09-02764 has been consolidated with this case.    
10/13/10-JIC case 201100374 has been consolidated into this case    10/18/10-JIC case  201100542 has been 
consolidated into this case    10/28/10-JIC case  201100941 has been consolidated into this case    12/7/10-OIG 
Case #I1000339 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC     12/10/2010 OIG Case # 
1000306 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC    1/12/11- I1000420 has been consolidated 
into this case per ASAC     1/13/11 - 201103602 consolidated into this case  per FO request.    4/22/11: 
C1107189 was added to this INV.    4/2711: 201107613 was added to this INV.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I08-CBP-TUC-09556 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Lukeville, AZ DHS Employee 6/12/2008 6/12/2008 3/30/2016

It was reported that a corrupt Border Patrol Agent, identified as First Name Unknown , Lukeville, AZ, 
is allegedly facilitating the importation of marijuana.     6/26/08: Additional info received via JIC/OPR 
200808176. (JF)    8/22/08: Per Tucson Field Office, case I05-09402 is consolidated into this case. (rl)    10/8/08: 
Per Tucson Field Office, JIC cases 200900155 and 200900152 are consolidated into this case. (rl)     5/14/09: JIC 
case 200907423 has been consolidated into this case.    10/6/09:  Per Tucson Field Office, JIC case 201000024 
has been consolidated into this case.    1/8/2010- Per TFO, I09-02764 has been consolidated with this case.    
10/13/10-JIC case 201100374 has been consolidated into this case    10/18/10-JIC case  201100542 has been 
consolidated into this case    10/28/10-JIC case  201100941 has been consolidated into this case    12/7/10-OIG 
Case #I1000339 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC     12/10/2010 OIG Case # 
1000306 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC    1/12/11- I1000420 has been consolidated 
into this case per ASAC .    1/13/11 - 201103602 consolidated into this case  per FO request.    4/22/11: 
C1107189 was added to this INV.    4/2711: 201107613 was added to this INV.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I08-CBP-TUC-09556 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Lukeville, AZ DHS Employee 6/12/2008 6/12/2008 3/30/2016

It was reported that a corrupt Border Patrol Agent, identified as First Name Unknown , Lukeville, AZ, 
is allegedly facilitating the importation of marijuana.     6/26/08: Additional info received via JIC/OPR 
200808176. (JF)    8/22/08: Per Tucson Field Office, case I05-09402 is consolidated into this case. (rl)    10/8/08: 
Per Tucson Field Office, JIC cases 200900155 and 200900152 are consolidated into this case. (rl)     5/14/09: JIC 
case 200907423 has been consolidated into this case.    10/6/09:  Per Tucson Field Office, JIC case 201000024 
has been consolidated into this case.    1/8/2010- Per TFO, I09-02764 has been consolidated with this case.    
10/13/10-JIC case 201100374 has been consolidated into this case    10/18/10-JIC case  201100542 has been 
consolidated into this case    10/28/10-JIC case  201100941 has been consolidated into this case    12/7/10-OIG 
Case #I1000339 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC     12/10/2010 OIG Case # 
1000306 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC    1/12/11- I1000420 has been consolidated 
into this case per ASAC     1/13/11 - 201103602 consolidated into this case  per FO request.    4/22/11: 
C1107189 was added to this INV.    4/2711: 201107613 was added to this INV.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I08-CBP-TUC-09556 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Lukeville, AZ DHS Employee 6/12/2008 6/12/2008 3/30/2016

It was reported that a corrupt Border Patrol Agent, identified as First Name Unknown , Lukeville, AZ, 
is allegedly facilitating the importation of marijuana.     6/26/08: Additional info received via JIC/OPR 
200808176. (JF)    8/22/08: Per Tucson Field Office, case I05-09402 is consolidated into this case. (rl)    10/8/08: 
Per Tucson Field Office, JIC cases 200900155 and 200900152 are consolidated into this case. (rl)     5/14/09: JIC 
case 200907423 has been consolidated into this case.    10/6/09:  Per Tucson Field Office, JIC case 201000024 
has been consolidated into this case.    1/8/2010- Per TFO, I09-02764 has been consolidated with this case.    
10/13/10-JIC case 201100374 has been consolidated into this case    10/18/10-JIC case  201100542 has been 
consolidated into this case    10/28/10-JIC case  201100941 has been consolidated into this case    12/7/10-OIG 
Case #I1000339 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC     12/10/2010 OIG Case # 
1000306 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC    1/12/11- I1000420 has been consolidated 
into this case per ASAC     1/13/11 - 201103602 consolidated into this case  per FO request.    4/22/11: 
C1107189 was added to this INV.    4/2711: 201107613 was added to this INV.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I08-CBP-TUC-09556 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Lukeville, AZ DHS Employee 6/12/2008 6/12/2008 3/30/2016

It was reported that a corrupt Border Patrol Agent, identified as First Name Unknown , Lukeville, AZ, 
is allegedly facilitating the importation of marijuana.     6/26/08: Additional info received via JIC/OPR 
200808176. (JF)    8/22/08: Per Tucson Field Office, case I05-09402 is consolidated into this case. (rl)    10/8/08: 
Per Tucson Field Office, JIC cases 200900155 and 200900152 are consolidated into this case. (rl)     5/14/09: JIC 
case 200907423 has been consolidated into this case.    10/6/09:  Per Tucson Field Office, JIC case 201000024 
has been consolidated into this case.    1/8/2010- Per TFO, I09-02764 has been consolidated with this case.    
10/13/10-JIC case 201100374 has been consolidated into this case    10/18/10-JIC case  201100542 has been 
consolidated into this case    10/28/10-JIC case  201100941 has been consolidated into this case    12/7/10-OIG 
Case #I1000339 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC     12/10/2010 OIG Case # 
1000306 has been consolidated into this case by request of ASAC    1/12/11- I1000420 has been consolidated 
into this case per ASAC     1/13/11 - 201103602 consolidated into this case  per FO request.    4/22/11: 
C1107189 was added to this INV.    4/2711: 201107613 was added to this INV.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I08-CIS-SFO-07616 San Francisco, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) DAO, San Francisco, CA DHS Employee 3/14/2008 3/14/2008 12/7/2016
It was reported that USCIS district adjudications officer has a disreputable association with 
the owner of a brothel operating as a massage parlor.  DAO  is also alleged to have misused his position 
when he posted bail for the brothel's owner.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition

I08-CIS-SFO-07616 San Francisco, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) , DAO, San Francisco, CA DHS Employee 3/14/2008 3/14/2008 12/7/2016
It was reported that USCIS district adjudications officer has a disreputable association with 
the owner of a brothel operating as a massage parlor.  DAO  is also alleged to have misused his position 
when he posted bail for the brothel's owner

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I08-CIS-SFO-07616 San Francisco, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) , DAO, San Francisco, CA DHS Employee 3/14/2008 3/14/2008 12/7/2016
It was reported that USCIS district adjudications officer has a disreputable association with 
the owner of a brothel operating as a massage parlor.  DA  is also alleged to have misused his position 
when he posted bail for the brothel's owner.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I09-BP-TUC-10742 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 8/21/2009 8/21/2009 7/8/2016

On August 3, 2009, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El Paso,  Texas (IA/EP), 
received information from Personnel Security Division (PSD) El Paso regarding a  U.S. Border Patrol (USBP) 
Agent (BPA)  as an owner of a residence which has  ties to a Drug Trafficking Organization 
(DTO) in Arizona.    *Additional information received 9/23/10. -B.C.    *On September 7, 2010, Senior Special 
Agent (SSA)  Customs and Border  Protection Internal Affairs, El Paso, Texas (CBPIA/El Paso), 
contacted the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso (OPR/El Paso), to report information obtained 
from a Source Of Information (SOI) while conducting an investigation with the West Texas Border Corruption 
Task Force (BCTF). According to the SOI, Deputy Constable (DC) offered to sell a 
"Raptor" scope to the SOI, which DC obtained from his brother, Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

 Border Patrol Station, Douglas, Arizona (BPS/Douglas). The SOI believed the Raptor to be a piece of 
equipment only sold to military or federal agencies.

4.3.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Personal relationships Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I09-BP-TUC-10742 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 8/21/2009 8/21/2009 7/8/2016

On August 3, 2009, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El Paso,  Texas (IA/EP), 
received information from Personnel Security Division (PSD) El Paso regarding a  U.S. Border Patrol (USBP) 
Agent (BPA) ' as an owner of a residence which has  ties to a Drug Trafficking Organization 
(DTO) in Arizona.    *Additional information received 9/23/10. -B.C.    *On September 7, 2010, Senior Special 
Agent (SSA)  Customs and Border  Protection Internal Affairs, El Paso, Texas (CBPIA/El Paso), 
contacted the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso (OPR/El Paso), to report information obtained 
from a Source Of Information (SOI) while conducting an investigation with the West Texas Border Corruption 
Task Force (BCTF). According to the SOI, Deputy Constable (DC) offered to sell a 
"Raptor" scope to the SOI, which DC obtained from his brother, Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

 Border Patrol Station, Douglas, Arizona (BPS/Douglas). The SOI believed the Raptor to be a piece of 
equipment only sold to military or federal agencies.

4.3.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Personal relationships Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I09-BP-TUC-10742 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 8/21/2009 8/21/2009 7/8/2016

On August 3, 2009, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El Paso,  Texas (IA/EP), 
received information from Personnel Security Division (PSD) El Paso regarding a  U.S. Border Patrol (USBP) 
Agent (BPA)  as an owner of a residence which has  ties to a Drug Trafficking Organization 
(DTO) in Arizona.    *Additional information received 9/23/10. -B.C.    *On September 7, 2010, Senior Special 
Agent (SSA)  Customs and Border  Protection Internal Affairs, El Paso, Texas (CBPIA/El Paso), 
contacted the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso (OPR/El Paso), to report information obtained 
from a Source Of Information (SOI) while conducting an investigation with the West Texas Border Corruption 
Task Force (BCTF). According to the SOI, Deputy Constable (DC) offered to sell a 
"Raptor" scope to the SOI, which DC obtained from his brother, Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

 Border Patrol Station, Douglas, Arizona (BPS/Douglas). The SOI believed the Raptor to be a piece of 
equipment only sold to military or federal agencies.

4.3.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Personal relationships Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I09-BP-TUC-10742 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 8/21/2009 8/21/2009 7/8/2016

On August 3, 2009, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El Paso,  Texas (IA/EP), 
received information from Personnel Security Division (PSD) El Paso regarding a  U.S. Border Patrol (USBP) 
Agent (BPA) ' as an owner of a residence which has  ties to a Drug Trafficking Organization 
(DTO) in Arizona.    *Additional information received 9/23/10. -B.C.    *On September 7, 2010, Senior Special 
Agent (SSA)  Customs and Border  Protection Internal Affairs, El Paso, Texas (CBPIA/El Paso), 
contacted the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso (OPR/El Paso), to report information obtained 
from a Source Of Information (SOI) while conducting an investigation with the West Texas Border Corruption 
Task Force (BCTF). According to the SOI, Deputy Constable (DC) offered to sell a 
"Raptor" scope to the SOI, which D obtained from his brother, Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

 Border Patrol Station, Douglas, Arizona (BPS/Douglas). The SOI believed the Raptor to be a piece of 
equipment only sold to military or federal agencies.

4.3.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Personal relationships Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I09-CBP-DET-03254 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Detroit, MI, DHS Employee 1/15/2009 1/15/2009 3/20/2016

It was reported that a 20-pound shipment of marijuana was scheduled to be brought into the U.S. during the 
afternoon shift on 12/20/2008.  An unidentified CBP Officer described as a 50-year old black female was 
facilitating the entry through the Detroit-Canada Tunnel (DCT) Port of Entry.    8/17/09:  Additional 
information from JIC 200911012 to be consolidated into this case.  Complainant reported an allegation that 
during a routine exam, it was discovered that Canadian citizen  the subject of several
records, had the telephone number to the Detroit Windsor Tunnel, Detroit, MI stored in her mobile phone.  
This information suggests that may be contacting a CBP employee at this Port of Entry.    11/5/09: 
Additional information from JIC 201001016 to be consolidated into this case.  On December 4, 2008, Special 
Agent (SA)  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Investigation, Detroit, 
Michigan (OI/Detroit) and Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Customs and Border Protection (CBP), 
United States (U.S.) Border Patrol, Detroit Sector Intelligence Unit (BP/Detroit), contacted SA

 Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General, Detroit Field Office 
(OIG/DFO). SA and BPA provided information on cross - border drug smuggling facilitated by an 
unidentified Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO) employed at the Detroit and Canada Tunnel (DCT) 
Port of Entry. This is a current OIG investigation (I09-CBP-DET-03254) that is being worked jointly with the 
Office of Professional Responsibility, Detroit, Michigan (OPR/Detroit).

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and  BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA CBPO   Unidentifed DHS Employee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged tha

    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and Felix Sifuentes, BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA Alien Detainee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged tha

    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1325(a) Improper Entry by Alien

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and Felix Sifuentes, BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged that

    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and Felix Sifuentes, BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA Alien Detainee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged tha

.    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and Felix Sifuentes, BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged tha

    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and Felix Sifuentes, BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged tha

    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I09-CBP-SND-00293 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO, CBP, San Ysidro, CA and  BPA, USBP, 

San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/10/2008 10/10/2008 4/19/2016

A confidential source of information (Source) in an ICE/OI investigation alleged that

    1/11/11 JIC 
file 201103437 was added to this case

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I10-CBP-TUC-01404 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ADFO, CBP, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/29/2010 9/30/2010 1/8/2016

On September 27, 2010, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Field Analysis Specialist (FAS)   Tucson, AZ, reporting that the 
(deceased) wife of Assistant Director of Field Operations (ADFO)  Tucson, AZ, has been 
indicted along with eight other individuals  responsible for a smuggling ring that allegedly laundered over $5 
million in proceeds from  narcotics. FA alleges that ADFO may have used his position 
to disable  the Trade Intelligence Program (TIP). Parties involved in the indictment include part of Arizona's  
international trade community and were monitored by TIP.

4.1.13.10 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Use,possession, or 
trafficking of illegal 
drugs

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I10-CBP-TUC-01404 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ADFO, CBP, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/29/2010 9/30/2010 1/8/2016

On September 27, 2010, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Field Analysis Specialist (FAS)   Tucson, AZ, reporting that the 
(deceased) wife of Assistant Director of Field Operations (ADFO)  Tucson, AZ, has been 
indicted along with eight other individuals  responsible for a smuggling ring that allegedly laundered over $5 
million in proceeds from  narcotics. FA alleges that ADFO may have used his position 
to disable  the Trade Intelligence Program (TIP). Parties involved in the indictment include part of Arizona's  
international trade community and were monitored by TIP.

4.1.13.10 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Use,possession, or 
trafficking of illegal 
drugs

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I10-CBP-TUC-01404 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ADFO, CBP, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/29/2010 9/30/2010 1/8/2016

On September 27, 2010, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Field Analysis Specialist (FAS)   Tucson, AZ, reporting that the 
(deceased) wife of Assistant Director of Field Operations (ADFO)  Tucson, AZ, has been 
indicted along with eight other individuals  responsible for a smuggling ring that allegedly laundered over $5 
million in proceeds from  narcotics. FA alleges that ADF may have used his position 
to disable  the Trade Intelligence Program (TIP). Parties involved in the indictment include part of Arizona's  
international trade community and were monitored by TIP.

4.1.13.10 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Use,possession, or 
trafficking of illegal 
drugs

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I10-CBP-TUC-01404 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ADFO, CBP, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/29/2010 9/30/2010 1/8/2016

On September 27, 2010, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Field Analysis Specialist (FAS)   Tucson, AZ, reporting that the 
(deceased) wife of Assistant Director of Field Operations (ADFO)  Tucson, AZ, has been 
indicted along with eight other individuals  responsible for a smuggling ring that allegedly laundered over $5 
million in proceeds from  narcotics. FA alleges that ADFO may have used his position 
to disable  the Trade Intelligence Program (TIP). Parties involved in the indictment include part of Arizona's  
international trade community and were monitored by TIP.

4.1.13.10 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Use,possession, or 
trafficking of illegal 
drugs

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I10-CIS-CHI-00321 Chicago, IL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  CIS examiner, et al DHS Employee 12/17/2009 12/18/2009 8/1/2016
On 12/09/09 OSI INV received a complaint alleging that a CIS examiner is involved in an extensive 
marriage fraud scam. 1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I10-CIS-CHI-00321 Chicago, IL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  CIS examiner, et al DHS Employee 12/17/2009 12/18/2009 8/1/2016
On 12/09/09 OSI INV received a complaint alleging that a CIS examiner is involved in an extensive 
marriage fraud scam. 1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I10-FEMA-NEO-00367 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  and , Non-DHS Employee Grant Applicant 1/7/2010 1/7/2010 3/25/2016

Beginning in October 2009 DHS-OIG has been involved with the FBI and Louisiana State Inspector General's 
Office in an investigation of .  See below for details:    This investigation is 
predicated upon information provided by a confidential source (CS). , 
founded and operated by ubmitted FEMA reimbursement requests totaling approximately $1.5 
million for expenses related to a relief shelter created in response to Hurricane Gustav in September, 2008.  
The request for reimbursement was routed through the mayor's office, City of Baker, Louisiana at the 
direction of the local FEMA coordinator.      The CS stated tha

 

 
 

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I10-ICE-WFO-00823 Washington, DC
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) , ICE Chief Diversity Officer DHS Employee 4/29/2010 4/30/2010 11/25/2016

During the course of conducting an investigation of M ICE Diversity Officer), the OPR Special 
Investigations Unit became aware of potential criminal allegations against   Below is some background:    
In October 2009, two purchase card holders working for ordered the same items (gift cards), 
on the same day, for almost the same amount and from the same vendor.  One purchase was for nine $200.00 
and nine $100.00 gift cards, which totaled $2,865.05 including fees.  The other purchase was for twenty-seven 
$100.00 gift cards, which totaled $2,855.60 including fees.    Some of the gift cards may have paid for a gift to 
the former Deputy Assistant Secretary; alcohol for events where DHS had previously denied requests for the 
service of alcohol; parking tickets and I-pods that were given out on Bring Your Child to Work Day.    In January 
2010, there was a mentoring conference held in Washington, DC at the Capital Hilton hotel. Some of the 
items that were expensed are as follows:    ·         Beer, wine and bartender services totaling $938.98.    ·         
lodging and per diem costs for three employees who work in Washington, DC, including Ms. t a cost to 
the government of $4,187.82.  I believe all three live in Maryland.    *Additional information received 
5/04/2010. -B.C.    *On April 23, 2010, Special Agents from Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), 
Washington, D.C., received information and documentation from Program Manager  Office 
of the Chief Diversity Officer reporting alleged misconduct of Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), 
Chief Diversity Officer  Washington, DC. The e-mail documents questionable financial 
transactions by Chief

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I10-ICE-WFO-00823 Washington, DC
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) , ICE Chief Diversity Officer DHS Employee 4/29/2010 4/30/2010 11/25/2016

During the course of conducting an investigation of M ICE Diversity Officer), the OPR Special 
Investigations Unit became aware of potential criminal allegations agains   Below is some background:    
In October 2009, two purchase card holders working for ordered the same items (gift cards), 
on the same day, for almost the same amount and from the same vendor.  One purchase was for nine $200.00 
and nine $100.00 gift cards, which totaled $2,865.05 including fees.  The other purchase was for twenty-seven 
$100.00 gift cards, which totaled $2,855.60 including fees.    Some of the gift cards may have paid for a gift to 
the former Deputy Assistant Secretary; alcohol for events where DHS had previously denied requests for the 
service of alcohol; parking tickets and I-pods that were given out on Bring Your Child to Work Day.    In January 
2010, there was a mentoring conference held in Washington, DC at the Capital Hilton hotel. Some of the 
items that were expensed are as follows:    ·         Beer, wine and bartender services totaling $938.98.    ·         
lodging and per diem costs for three employees who work in Washington, DC, including Ms.  at a cost to 
the government of $4,187.82.  I believe all three live in Maryland.    *Additional information received 
5/04/2010. -B.C.    *On April 23, 2010, Special Agents from Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), 
Washington, D.C., received information and documentation from Program Manager  Office 
of the Chief Diversity Officer reporting alleged misconduct of Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), 
Chief Diversity Officer  Washington, DC. The e-mail documents questionable financial 
transactions by Chie

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I10-ICE-WFO-00986 Washington, DC
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) , ICE employee DHS Employee 6/7/2010 6/8/2010 12/21/2016

On May 11, 2010, a document search was conducted at 800 K Street NW, Suite 200, Washington,  DC by 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR)  and Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS), Office of the Inspector General (OIG). The suite  was the former location of the 
Office of the Chief Diversity Officer (OCDO) and as of April 5, 2010,  the office of the Acting Director of ICE 
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO).  Additional information was located possibly implicating

 an authorized government purchase card holder, in making several purchases of gift cards with her 
purchase card.  This case is cross-referenced with I10-ICE-WFO-00823 s the 
authorizing official for s purchase card.

4.1.9.2.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft
Theft of government 
funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I11-BP-LAR-01250 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  SBPA, Laredo, Texas DHS Employee 9/2/2011 9/2/2011 4/18/2016
eceived information from  alleging that s involved in theft of government funds by 

receiving Social Security Administration benefits not entitle to him on behalf of his deceased grandmother, 
    6/18/12 SA  assigned to assist with financial aspects of investigation

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I11-BP-LAR-01250 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  SBPA, Laredo, Texas DHS Employee 9/2/2011 9/2/2011 4/18/2016
eceived information from  alleging that s involved in theft of government funds by 

receiving Social Security Administration benefits not entitle to him on behalf of his deceased grandmother, 
    6/18/12 SA  assigned to assist with financial aspects of investigation

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I11-CBP-MIA-00408 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, Port Everglades, FL FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/2/2011 2/2/2011 6/9/2016

On January 26, 2011, the Immigration Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Miami, Florida, was notified by Group Supervisor (GS) ICE  Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), Ft. Lauderdale, Florida,  during  an undercover meeting between 
a confidential informant (CI) and target of investigation,

4.1.13.10 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Use,possession, or 
trafficking of illegal 
drugs

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I11-CIS-ORL-00019 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) ISO, USCIS DHS Employee 9/20/2010 10/4/2010 3/11/2016

From November 2006 through February 2007 (exact days unknown),  applicant, engaged in a 
romantic relationship with  agent because  told  the application “would be looked 
upon favorably.”    In 2010 (exact day unknown), eceived a notice stating USCIS denied her application 
for a green card. poke to the Identified Complainant about the situation. would like to report 
the situation to a DHS representative and requested the Complainant represent her interests.   greed 
to the relationship with because she feared she would encounter difficulties with the green card 
process. entered the country illegally but married a US citizen. ’s husband died prior to her 
completing the application process and she feared she would be deported and the applications she 
completed for her children would not receive approval.    The Complainant requested a representative 
contact him/her to schedule a meeting to discuss the situation in greater detail.

4.3.3.2 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Sexual relationships Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I11-CIS-ORL-00019 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) ISO, USCIS DHS Employee 9/20/2010 10/4/2010 3/11/2016

From November 2006 through February 2007 (exact days unknown),  applicant, engaged in a 
romantic relationship with  agent because  told  the application “would be looked 
upon favorably.”    In 2010 (exact day unknown) eceived a notice stating USCIS denied her application 
for a green card. poke to the Identified Complainant about the situation. would like to report 
the situation to a DHS representative and requested the Complainant represent her interests.   greed 
to the relationship with because she feared she would encounter difficulties with the green card 
process. entered the country illegally but married a US citizen.  husband died prior to her 
completing the application process and she feared she would be deported and the applications she 
completed for her children would not receive approval.    The Complainant requested a representative 
contact him/her to schedule a meeting to discuss the situation in greater detail.

4.3.3.2 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Sexual relationships Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I11-CIS-ORL-00019 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) ISO, USCIS DHS Employee 9/20/2010 10/4/2010 3/11/2016

From November 2006 through February 2007 (exact days unknown),  applicant, engaged in a 
romantic relationship with  agent because  told  the application “would be looked 
upon favorably.”    In 2010 (exact day unknown), eceived a notice stating USCIS denied her application 
for a green card. poke to the Identified Complainant about the situation. would like to report 
the situation to a DHS representative and requested the Complainant represent her interests.   greed 
to the relationship wit because she feared she would encounter difficulties with the green card 
process. entered the country illegally but married a US citizen. s husband died prior to her 
completing the application process and she feared she would be deported and the applications she 
completed for her children would not receive approval.    The Complainant requested a representative 
contact him/her to schedule a meeting to discuss the situation in greater detail.

4.3.3.2 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Sexual relationships Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I11-CIS-ORL-00085 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Service Assistant, USCIS, Orlando, FL DHS Employee 10/26/2010 10/26/2010 2/26/2016

On October 21,2010, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector  General (OIG), 
Office ofInvestigations, received information alleging tha , Immigration Service Assistant, U.S. 
Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), Orlando, FL is  improperly adjudicating Filipinos who are 
petitioning for naturalization in the USCIS.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I11-CIS-ORL-00085 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Service Assistant, USCIS, Orlando, FL DHS Employee 10/26/2010 10/26/2010 2/26/2016

On October 21,2010, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector  General (OIG), 
Office ofInvestigations, received information alleging tha , Immigration Service Assistant, U.S. 
Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), Orlando, FL is  improperly adjudicating Filipinos who are 
petitioning for naturalization in the USCIS

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I11-CIS-ORL-00085 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Service Assistant, USCIS, Orlando, FL DHS Employee 10/26/2010 10/26/2010 2/26/2016

On October 21,2010, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector  General (OIG), 
Office ofInvestigations, received information alleging tha , Immigration Service Assistant, U.S. 
Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), Orlando, FL is  improperly adjudicating Filipinos who are 
petitioning for naturalization in the USCIS.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I11-CIS-WFO-00010 Washington, DC U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Sharvari Dalal-Dheini, USCIS Attorney SHARVARI  DALAL DHEINI DHS Employee 10/4/2010 10/5/2010 9/12/2016

This case originated from a referral by Special Agent  United States Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Baltimore Field Office, pursuant to an ongoing immigration fraud investigation.  Sharvari 
Dalal-Dheini, Attorney, GS-15, USCIS, is suspected of using her official position to facilitate customs and 
immigration matters (entry and import/export) related to a family owned import/export business located in 
Ellicot City, MD, requiring frequent foreign travel.  Specifically, improper use of government information 
systems for purposes other than authorized use.  

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I11-FEMA-HOU-00189 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Esq., Disaster Benefit Applicant, Houston, Texas 11/29/2010 11/29/2010 9/26/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector  General (DHS OIG), 
Houston, Texas, received a Qui Tam complaint from the USAO.
Relators/Plantiffs filed a Qui Tam complaint against  defendant  alleging that he made a 
fraudulent FEMA claim.    SBA OIG requested participation in the investigation of  filed SBA 
disaster loads but did not receive any federal monies.  4/17/13    On 11/13/13, was indicted by state 
felony theft.    On 3/14/16, ADA declined prosecution pending trial based on an impeachable 
witness.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I11-FEMA-HOU-00189 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Esq., Disaster Benefit Applicant, Houston, Texas 11/29/2010 11/29/2010 9/26/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector  General (DHS OIG), 
Houston, Texas, received a Qui Tam complaint from the USAO.
Relators/Plantiffs filed a Qui Tam complaint against  defendant  alleging that he made a 
fraudulent FEMA claim.    SBA OIG requested participation in the investigation of  filed SBA 
disaster loads but did not receive any federal monies.  4/17/13    On 11/13/13, was indicted by state 
felony theft.    On 3/14/16, ADA declined prosecution pending trial based on an impeachable 
witness.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I11-FEMA-PHL-00165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, New Hope, Pennsylvania General Public 11/18/2010 11/19/2010 2/16/2016

It is alleged that , civilian, defrauded FEMA of funds distributed through the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  During the course of an ATF arson and insurance fraud investigation of s 
businesses, it was determined that ubmitted multiple claims through the NFIP.  This is a joint 
investigation with the ATF and IRS.  FEMA Disaster:  1649

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I11-ICEOPR-MIA-00626 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

 SA, ICE, Miami, FL, et. al General Public 3/30/2011 3/30/2011 10/11/2016

On March 28, 2011, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Miami, Florida, received an e-mail from  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), SAC, Miami, Group Supervisor (GS), dvising of suspicious activity by HSI 
Miami, Special Agent (SA   GS n his email, cited SA s inordinately high 
amount of alien paroles, defense  attorney contacts, personal foreign travel, and alleged international 
transportation of gold.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I11-ICEOPR-MIA-00626 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

 SA, ICE, Miami, FL, et. al DHS Employee 3/30/2011 3/30/2011 10/11/2016

On March 28, 2011, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Miami, Florida, received an e-mail from  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), SAC, Miami, Group Supervisor (GS), dvising of suspicious activity by HSI 
Miami, Special Agent (SA   GS n his email, cited SA  inordinately high 
amount of alien paroles, defense  attorney contacts, personal foreign travel, and alleged international 
transportation of gold

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I11-ICEOPR-MIA-00626 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

 SA, ICE, Miami, FL, et. al DHS Employee 3/30/2011 3/30/2011 10/11/2016

On March 28, 2011, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Miami, Florida, received an e-mail from  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), SAC, Miami, Group Supervisor (GS), dvising of suspicious activity by HSI 
Miami, Special Agent (SA   GS n his email, cited SA 's inordinately high 
amount of alien paroles, defense  attorney contacts, personal foreign travel, and alleged international 
transportation of gold.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1951 Racketeering:  Interference with Commerce by 
Threats or Violence

I11-ICEOPR-MIA-00626 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

 SA, ICE, Miami, FL, et. al DHS Employee 3/30/2011 3/30/2011 10/11/2016

On March 28, 2011, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Miami, Florida, received an e-mail from  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), SAC, Miami, Group Supervisor (GS), dvising of suspicious activity by HSI 
Miami, Special Agent (SA   GS n his email, cited SA 's inordinately high 
amount of alien paroles, defense  attorney contacts, personal foreign travel, and alleged international 
transportation of gold.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I11-ST-BOS-01183 Boston, MA Science and Technology Directorate (DHS) BioDefense Corporation, Boston, MA FNU  Bio Defense 
Corporation

Corporation 8/25/2011 8/25/2011 8/29/2016
DHS OIG was notified by the FBI, Boston, MA that BioDefense Corporation may have submitted erroneous 
and/or biased laboratory reports regarding the efficacy of their product, MailDefender, to DHS S&T for SAFETY 
Act coverage.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I11-USCG-SEA-00910 Seattle, WA U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) StellCo Inc., DBA, Portland, OR 6/9/2011 6/9/2011 6/23/2016

The Seattle Field Office (SEA) received an allegation from  Special Investigator, United States 
Attorney’s Office, District of Oregon, Portland, OR.  requested DHS OIG join a multi agency 
investigation with the General Services Agency Office of Inspector General (GSA OIG), Defense Criminal 
Investigative Service (DCIS), and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) regarding StellCo Inc, in Portland, 
OR.  StellCo sells Cisco manufactured switches used in computers to the federal government dvised 
that StellCo Inc. switches were sold to the U.S. Coast Guard Academy, Groton, CT, and that the ongoing 
investigation has determined that the switches sold to the government were not the switches that were 
specified in the government contract, but a cheaper, substandard switch.

3.6.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Product Substitution Product substitution Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2318
Trafficking in counterfeit labels, illicit labels, or 
counterfeit documentation or packaging

I12-CBP-CHI-00980 Chicago, IL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/Unknown/CHICAGO, COOK, IL
CBP OFFCR/Unknown/CHICAGO, COOK, IL

DHS Employee 8/21/2012 8/21/2012 8/10/2016

On August 18, 2012, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (OIA),  Detroit, MI, 
received information that Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO)  Chicago, IL, is under 
investigation by U.S. Diplomatic Security (USDS) for possible  involvement in a visa fraud.    On August 18, 
2012, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (OIA),  Detroit, MI, received information 
that Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO)  Chicago, IL, is under investigation by U.S. 
Diplomatic Security (USDS) for possible  involvement in a visa fraud.  According to USDS, CBPO
had identified herself as the vice president of the  American Mongolian Association (AMA). The AMA has 
been under investigation by the USDS  Document Benefit Fraud Task Force for visa fraud. CBPO
served as a Mongolian  interpreter for the USDS, participated in an AMA briefing, but never identified her 
involvement with  the AMA.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I12-CBP-CHI-01020 Chicago, IL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) PROGRAM MANAGER/1205  Falsification-
Travel/Relocation/INDIANAPOLIS, MARION, IN, et al.

DHS Employee 9/10/2012 9/10/2012 1/15/2016

On September 6, 2012, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC received an email from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Counsel (ACC) ,  Indianapolis, IN reporting possible 
employee misconduct. AC ubmitted a  memorandum and attachments reporting the possible 
submission of false travel vouchers and  possible manipulation of the travel voucher submission process by 
CBP Program Manager (PM) , Indianapolis, IN. It was reported that PM  was 
reimbursed a total  of $382,562.72 for travel over a period of at least five and a half years.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I12-CBP-ELP-00385 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 1/20/2012 1/20/2012 4/5/2016

On January 17, 2012, Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, Special Agents (SA) 
met with Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  who is currently assigned 

to the DEA as a Task Force Officer in El Paso, TX.  BPA Miller reported that he met with an ATF confidential 
informant (CI) who provided information on BPA .  The CI stated that

 
 

    

    
 

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Information Only Referred - No Reply 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I12-CBP-ELP-00385 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 1/20/2012 1/20/2012 4/5/2016

On January 17, 2012, Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, Special Agents (SA) 
met with Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  who is currently assigned 

to the DEA as a Task Force Officer in El Paso, TX.  BPA  reported that he met with an ATF confidential 
informant (CI) who provided information on BPA   The CI state

 
 

    

   
  

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I12-CBP-ELP-00385 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 1/20/2012 1/20/2012 4/5/2016

On January 17, 2012, Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, Special Agents (SA) 
met with Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  who is currently assigned 

to the DEA as a Task Force Officer in El Paso, TX.  BPA  reported that he met with an ATF confidential 
informant (CI) who provided information on BPA   The CI stated tha

 
 

    

   
  

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-CBP-NYC-00857 New York, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Officer, Customs and Border Protection, Jamaica, NY DHS Employee 6/27/2012 6/27/2012 9/22/2016

On June 5, 2012, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Assistant Special Agent in  Charge, JFK 
Airport, Homeland Security Investigations (ASAC/JFK-HSI) Group Supervisor (GS)
contacted the Office of Professional Responsibility, Resident Agent in Charge,  JFK Airport (RAC/JK-OPR) and 
reported an allegation of an unknown Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) assigned to JFK Airport 
who is assisting a Dominican drug trafficking  organization (DTO). G dvised that the allegation was 
received during a proffer  session of  who was arrested by CBP for attempting to smuggle 
approximately  eight (8) kilograms of cocaine into the United States from the Dominican Republic on 
05/21/12.  On June 25, 2012, RAC/JK-OPR in conjunction with ASAC/JFK-HSI attended a proffer session of  

 at the U.S. District Courthouse in the Eastern District of New York (EDNY) to obtain  additional 
information regarding her allegation.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I12-CBP-SVA-00791 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 5/25/2012 5/25/2012 3/29/2016

On May 21, 2012, Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an information report  completed by 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Analytical Management Systems 
Control Office (AMSCO). The information developed by AMSCO  indicates CBP Officer (CBPO)

 Douglas, AZ, has processed the subject of a  drug/alien/arms/cash load; ecord an unusually 
high number of times and has manually  transposed the subject's surnames in 16 times.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I12-CIS-ELP-00292 El Paso, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, CIS, El Paso, TX, et al. General Public 12/15/2011 12/15/2011 11/25/2016

On December 13, 2011, Special Agent  Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office  of Internal 
Affairs (IA), Dallas Field Office, received information from Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 El Paso, Texas, regarding an unidentified immigration  officer receiving $10,000 to smuggle 
an illegal alien into the United States.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I12-CIS-ELP-00292 El Paso, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, CIS, El Paso, TX, et al. General Public 12/15/2011 12/15/2011 11/25/2016

On December 13, 2011, Special Agent  Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office  of Internal 
Affairs (IA), Dallas Field Office, received information from Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 El Paso, Texas, regarding an unidentified immigration  officer receiving $10,000 to smuggle 
an illegal alien into the United States

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I12-CIS-ELP-00292 El Paso, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, CIS, El Paso, TX, et al. General Public 12/15/2011 12/15/2011 11/25/2016

On December 13, 2011, Special Agent , Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office  of Internal 
Affairs (IA), Dallas Field Office, received information from Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 El Paso, Texas, regarding an unidentified immigration  officer receiving $10,000 to smuggle 
an illegal alien into the United States.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912

False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I12-CIS-ELP-00292 El Paso, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, CIS, El Paso, TX, et al. General Public 12/15/2011 12/15/2011 11/25/2016

On December 13, 2011, Special Agent , Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office  of Internal 
Affairs (IA), Dallas Field Office, received information from Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 El Paso, Texas, regarding an unidentified immigration  officer receiving $10,000 to smuggle 
an illegal alien into the United States.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I12-CIS-ELP-00292 El Paso, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, CIS, El Paso, TX, et al. General Public 12/15/2011 12/15/2011 11/25/2016

On December 13, 2011, Special Agent  Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office  of Internal 
Affairs (IA), Dallas Field Office, received information from Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 El Paso, Texas, regarding an unidentified immigration  officer receiving $10,000 to smuggle 
an illegal alien into the United States

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I12-CIS-ELP-00292 El Paso, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, CIS, El Paso, TX, et al. General Public 12/15/2011 12/15/2011 11/25/2016

On December 13, 2011, Special Agent  Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office  of Internal 
Affairs (IA), Dallas Field Office, received information from Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 El Paso, Texas, regarding an unidentified immigration  officer receiving $10,000 to smuggle 
an illegal alien into the United States.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I12-DHSOIG-SID-00454
Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Department of Homeland Security, OIG 
(DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 2/2/2012 2/2/2012 6/9/2016 *SID CASE* 2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I12-DHSOIG-SID-00516
Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Department of Homeland Security, OIG 
(DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 2/9/2012 3/2/2012 12/2/2016 *SID CASE* 2.5 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties

Denial of Rights / Due 
Process

Denial of rights, due 
process Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I12-FEMA-BOS-00957 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, New York/CT General Public 3/28/2012 4/11/2012 6/9/2016

DR 1904  450049409  Mr.    Applicant sent in letter from Mr.  stating that he is 
providing $500.00 for applicant's income and at the same time Mr. ave unverifiable lease and rent 
receipts to applicant where it shows he is charging $400.00 for rent.  Call placed to owner of property at (401) 
596-2501 to verify lease agreement and rent receipts.  Owner stated he did not allowed app to stay in the apt 
due to apt being too small.  Please review for possible fraud    This applicant has provided false docs for 
almost 2 years and received a total of $30,221.81.  Please note: this person has filed numerous lawsuits 
claiming discrimination including the Navy, the Police Dept, and many others.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-BOS-00957 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, New York/CT General Public 3/28/2012 4/11/2012 6/9/2016

DR 1904  450049409  Mr.    Applicant sent in letter from Mr.  stating that he is 
providing $500.00 for applicant's income and at the same time Mr. ave unverifiable lease and rent 
receipts to applicant where it shows he is charging $400.00 for rent.  Call placed to owner of property at

 to verify lease agreement and rent receipts.  Owner stated he did not allowed app to stay in the apt 
due to apt being too small.  Please review for possible fraud    This applicant has provided false docs for 
almost 2 years and received a total of $30,221.81.  Please note: this person has filed numerous lawsuits 
claiming discrimination including the Navy, the Police Dept, and many others.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-BUF-00953 Buffalo, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Esperance, NY General Public 5/8/2012 5/23/2012 12/16/2016

Complainant says that the subject only received a little bit of damage to things in the sub's yard. However the 
subject hs received much assistance from FEMA, comp says the sub has received 6 or 7 loans from FEMA and 
has been living off FEMA for hte past four to five months. Subject has also gone to warehouses where FEMA 
has set up, and sub has taken all kinds of equipment to fix up his friend's house at sperance, 
NY 12066. The sub's friend's house was not affected by the storm but the comp is looking to buy this house so 
he is trying to fix it up with tools and equipment from FEMA. Comp says that the sub had just received $4000 
from FEMA and taken a friend and her kids on a vacation to Georgia.    NOTE: to open some of the attachments 
the password is "open"

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-BUF-00953 Buffalo, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Esperance, NY General Public 5/8/2012 5/23/2012 12/16/2016

Complainant says that the subject only received a little bit of damage to things in the sub's yard. However the 
subject hs received much assistance from FEMA, comp says the sub has received 6 or 7 loans from FEMA and 
has been living off FEMA for hte past four to five months. Subject has also gone to warehouses where FEMA 
has set up, and sub has taken all kinds of equipment to fix up his friend's house at sperance, 
NY 12066. The sub's friend's house was not affected by the storm but the comp is looking to buy this house so 
he is trying to fix it up with tools and equipment from FEMA. Comp says that the sub had just received $4000 
from FEMA and taken a friend and her kids on a vacation to Georgia.    NOTE: to open some of the attachments 
the password is "open"

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-CHI-00040 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DBA, Chicago, IL
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 10/7/2011 10/7/2011 4/8/2016

is suspected of submitting false documentation to FEMA in order to obtain disaster assistance funds 
for Disaster 1935 that occurred in the state of Illinois. has attempted to deceive FEMA into believing 
that her primary residence suffered damage that forced her to relocate. has submitted false lease 
agreements and rental receipts to further her scheme and has received approximately $7,013 in rental 
assistance funds due to her fraudulent activities.    In addition, as been receiving housing assistance 
from HUD during the same time period as her scheme to defraud FEMA.  Receiving concurrent housing 
assistance violates both HUD and FEMA policy, and the total loss due to s activities is approximately 
$12,509.    Joint case agent is S/A  HUD-OIG Chicago

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-CHI-00063 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) General Public 10/13/2011 10/13/2011 4/8/2016
It is alleged that  received over $23,000 in disaster money as a result of submitting fraudulent 
documentation to Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

conspired with others to defraud FEMA for disaster assistance.
3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I12-FEMA-CHI-00063 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) General Public 10/13/2011 10/13/2011 4/8/2016
It is alleged that  received over $23,000 in disaster money as a result of submitting fraudulent 
documentation to Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

conspired with others to defraud FEMA for disaster assistance
3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-CHI-00063 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/13/2011 10/13/2011 4/8/2016
It is alleged that  received over $23,000 in disaster money as a result of submitting fraudulent 
documentation to Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

conspired with others to defraud FEMA for disaster assistance
3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-CHI-00065 Chicago  IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) General Public 10/12/2011 10/13/2011 4/26/2016  allegedly fraudulently received $6210 00 in disaster relief funds from FEMA 3 9 1 1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money  Property or Records

I12-FEMA-CHI-00583 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) HRL Contracting, FEMA Disaster Contract, Minot ND Corporation 2/10/2012 2/13/2012 2/25/2016

To Whom it may concern,     My name is  and I work for a company called Performance Homes 
in Burlington, ND. My company was working for HRL Contracting to maintain and service the FEMA disaster 
trailers. Enclosed are two statements by me about something that took place on 12/31/11 where I was called 
into the office of an HRL employee and was instructed to falsify paperwork which was then purportedly 
handed into FEMA. In my statements I reference something called a PMI (preventative maintenance 
inspection), when I do I am usually speaking about the form rather than the inspection itself. Attached as a 
PDF are examples of the form in question, from the month in question.  The false forms I was asked to make 
should be among the ONLY handwritten forms handed in, the only others being inspections done when the 
person called in asking or if they came up to us on the street.     My contact information is:    Phone:

    Physical: Minot, ND 58701       Thank you for your time, I will be waiting a response.  --   

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I12-FEMA-PHL-00573 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Disaster Benefit Applicant,  Wharton. NJ 07885 -

2937 General Public 11/14/2011 2/6/2012 1/12/2016

4021 393699938   The above applicant called for information on the not primary residence 
decision she received on 10/20/11 in response to her request for recertification. The applicant was paid EHR 
and ERCT for the same DD in DR 1897 381827594. According to the applicant, she just moved back into the DD 
on 8/27/11 just before Irene hit. There are no notes from the inspector in either application that would hint 
that the home is not this applicant's primary residence.    The app was awarded her 18th month in July 2011 
and it covered the month of September. She has received initial ER for the current disaster and was trying to 
recertify and was denied. The issue is, at the time of DR 4021 she was no longer eligible for assistance under 
1897 (18 months of ER received), would she be eligible for recertification?    The applicant stated she moved 
back into the DD on 8/27/11 and then DR-4021 occurred and she began a new lease on 9/1/11; however, the 
start date of the submitted lease is 4/1/2010, which is the same start date as the lease submitted for DR-1897. 
This is the reason that the applicant received the INPR determination. The applicant didn't seem to reside in 
the DD at the time of the disaster, which is confirmed through the submission of the lease agreements.     In 
DR-1897 (reg # 381827594), the applicant received 18 months of Rental with $1,020.30 in insured RP damage.    
Complainant called the applicant to obtain the LL telephone # for verification purposes. He also notified the 
applicant that the lease from both disasters had the same dates on them. She stated that the leases shouldn't 
have the same dates. He went over both leases with her over the phone. She then stated the LL recognized 
the incorrect dates and sent her a new lease. Complainant contacted the LL ( ; 
however, a woman's voice answered and sounded a lot like the applicant's voice whom he had just spoke to 
on the phone. The lease information was verified except the date of the lease was supposed to be 9/1/11.    
DECON: RADD

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-PHL-00825 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Seaside Heights, NJ General Public 12/28/2011 1/24/2012 3/22/2016

*****Disaster:  Hurricane Irene  *****  Complainant stated that her home was damaged during Hurricane 
Irene and tried to file a report with FEMA, but was denied because the subject had already filed a report 
using the complainant's personal information and complainant's address. Subject did not own the property 
that was reported, but was able to receive around 7,000 dollars. Complainant was also able to receive 11,863 
dollars after her report was accepted. Subject also included in the report that their vehicle was damaged by 
the storms, but did not own the vehicle reported. An additional subject  was also associated 
with the report.    The address used in both reports was:   , Toms River, New Jersey, 08753

4.1.9.2.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft
Theft of government 
funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-PHL-00825 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Seaside Heights, NJ General Public 12/28/2011 1/24/2012 3/22/2016

*****Disaster:  Hurricane Irene  *****  Complainant stated that her home was damaged during Hurricane 
Irene and tried to file a report with FEMA, but was denied because the subject had already filed a report 
using the complainant's personal information and complainant's address. Subject did not own the property 
that was reported, but was able to receive around 7,000 dollars. Complainant was also able to receive 11,863 
dollars after her report was accepted. Subject also included in the report that their vehicle was damaged by 
the storms, but did not own the vehicle reported. An additional subject  was also associated 
with the report.    The address used in both reports was:   , Toms River, New Jersey, 08753

4.1.9.2.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft
Theft of government 
funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-PHL-00825 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Seaside Heights, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/28/2011 1/24/2012 3/22/2016

*****Disaster:  Hurricane Irene  *****  Complainant stated that her home was damaged during Hurricane 
Irene and tried to file a report with FEMA, but was denied because the subject had already filed a report 
using the complainant's personal information and complainant's address. Subject did not own the property 
that was reported, but was able to receive around 7,000 dollars. Complainant was also able to receive 11,863 
dollars after her report was accepted. Subject also included in the report that their vehicle was damaged by 
the storms, but did not own the vehicle reported. An additional subject  was also associated 
with the report.    The address used in both reports was:   , Toms River, New Jersey, 08753

4.1.9.2.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft
Theft of government 
funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-PHL-00825 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Seaside Heights, NJ General Public 12/28/2011 1/24/2012 3/22/2016

*****Disaster:  Hurricane Irene  *****  Complainant stated that her home was damaged during Hurricane 
Irene and tried to file a report with FEMA, but was denied because the subject had already filed a report 
using the complainant's personal information and complainant's address. Subject did not own the property 
that was reported, but was able to receive around 7,000 dollars. Complainant was also able to receive 11,863 
dollars after her report was accepted. Subject also included in the report that their vehicle was damaged by 
the storms, but did not own the vehicle reported. An additional subject  was also associated 
with the report.    The address used in both reports was:   , Toms River, New Jersey, 08753

4.1.9.2.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft
Theft of government 
funds Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-PHL-00862 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Camden, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 6/25/2012 6/28/2012 4/6/2016

The complainant claims that she was the owner of a home o n Camden, NJ. The home was 
heavily damaged after the New Jersy storms and flooding. The complainants daughter the subjec

 was renting space in the home and after the storms  received FEMA disaster assistance 
in order to pay rent.  did not notify the complainant about filing with FEMA and the 
complainant claims that  never paid rent to the complainant.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-PHL-00862 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Camden, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 6/25/2012 6/28/2012 4/6/2016

The complainant claims that she was the owner of a home o n Camden, NJ. The home was 
heavily damaged after the New Jersy storms and flooding. The complainants daughter the subject (

 was renting space in the home and after the storms  received FEMA disaster assistance 
in order to pay rent.  did not notify the complainant about filing with FEMA and the 
complainant claims that  never paid rent to the complainant.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I12-FEMA-PHL-01028 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Complaint; Bloomsburg, PA General Public 3/20/2012 3/22/2012 4/4/2016

*****Disaster:  Pennsylvania Storms/Flooding  *****    The complainant (a corporation) claims the subject 
filed for FEMA assistance after the Pennsylvania flooding due to home damage. The complainant believes 
this is fraudulent because the subject submitted false documents, saying she paid more rent than she 
actually did. The subject moved into the complainant's apartments after her home was damaged by the flood 
and stole official letterhead from the office. The subject then wrote that she paid $7,500 over her months 
rent, when she actually paid $4,500. The complainant did not clarify how much money the subject received.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told Maldonado that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson"  went 
throught he process with  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructed o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up by Rivera he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson".  went 
throught he process with  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructed o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson".  went 
throught he process with  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructe o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson".  went 
throught he process wit  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program  instructed o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson"  went 
throught he process with nd eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructed o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up by Rivera he annotated that ad paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson".  went 
throught he process wit  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program  instructe o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated tha  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson".  went 
throught he process wit  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructe o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  tol  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson".  went 
throught he process with  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructed o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I12-FEMA-TUC-00268 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  NON DHS employee, DBA, Tucson, AZ General Public 12/7/2011 12/7/2011 5/9/2016

On November 22,2011, Detective  Tucson Police Department (TPD), Tucson, AZ,  reported that she 
had been contacted by , a local State Farm Insurance agent,  regarding possible fraud 
involving a program offered by FEMA. tated that she was  approached sometime last May by an 
individual named  told  that he could get free advertising for her business by 
registering with a program offered by FEMA called Flood Smart. He explained that the program offered re-
imbursement for advertising flood insurance policies and would pay for up to 75% ofher advertising cost. 

aid he would publish her advertisements in a periodical called "Seasons of Tucson"  went 
throught he process wit  and eventually received the check from FEMA via a company called JWP that 
is contracted by FEMA to handle the advertising program for Flood Smart throught the National Flood 
Insurance Program.  instructed o write him apersonal check to cover the cost of advertising 
for his company, Exponential Publishing for $7,500, which would have been 75% of the cost of a full page 
advertisement. In the publishing contract drawn up b  he annotated that  had paid him 
$2,500, which she in fact had not.

3.9.1.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud False claims Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-ICE-MIA-00612 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown/Unknown/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL  Contract 
Fraud General Public 3/9/2012 3/22/2012 5/3/2016

On March 8, 2012, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC) Southeast, Miami, Florida, received  information from Homeland 
Security Investigations (HSI) Special Agent (SA)  Miami,  advising of a possible fraud scheme 
being perpetrated by a contract company responsible for the  destruction of merchandise seized by Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP).

3.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Contract Fraud Contract Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 545 Smuggling Goods into the United States

I12-ICE-MIA-00612 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown/Unknown/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL  Contract 
Fraud General Public 3/9/2012 3/22/2012 5/3/2016

On March 8, 2012, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC) Southeast, Miami, Florida, received  information from Homeland 
Security Investigations (HSI) Special Agent (SA)  Miami,  advising of a possible fraud scheme 
being perpetrated by a contract company responsible for the  destruction of merchandise seized by Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP).

3.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Contract Fraud Contract Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 545 Smuggling Goods into the United States

I12-ICEHSI-CHI-00847 Chicago, IL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

General Misconduct-Other  Non-criminal/INDIANAPOLIS, MARION, 
  Supervisory Detention & Deportation Officer et al  

Immigration and Customs Enforcement  Enforcement and Removal 
Office

6/19/2012 6/19/2012 1/7/2016

On June 11, 2012, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE) Resident Agent in Charge (RAC  Homeland Security  Investigations, Indianapolis, IN 
(HSI/Indianapolis), who reported an inappropriate association  between a private investigator and 
Enforcement and Removal Operations officers.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I12-ST-WFO-00961 Washington, DC Science and Technology Directorate (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/8/2012 8/9/2012 11/10/2016

On August 1, 2012, DHS OIG Special Agent (SA)  Washington Field Office, was contacted by SA 
 Department of Transportation (DOT) OIG regarding a grant fraud case he had been jointly 

conducting at West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV, which involved evidence of criminal 
misappropriation of federal funds (including DHS and DOT) by forme  and his 
girlfriend.  The alleged fraud scheme from 2007 to 2011 utilized university purchase cards for an extensive 
amount of unofficial reasons (e.g. airline flights, hotels, merchandise) with preliminarily estimated losses to 
be at least approximately $150,000.        The case was accepted for potential federal prosecution by the 
Northern District of West Virginia United States Attorney's Office, Wheeling, West Virginia.  The investigation 
was being conducted by DOT-OIG, Department of Energy OIG, and the State of West Virginia Commission on 
Special Investigations.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I12-ST-WFO-00961 Washington, DC Science and Technology Directorate (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/8/2012 8/9/2012 11/10/2016

On August 1, 2012, DHS OIG Special Agent (SA) , Washington Field Office, was contacted by SA 
 Department of Transportation (DOT) OIG regarding a grant fraud case he had been jointly 

conducting at West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV, which involved evidence of criminal 
misappropriation of federal funds (including DHS and DOT) by forme  and his 
girlfriend.  The alleged fraud scheme from 2007 to 2011 utilized university purchase cards for an extensive 
amount of unofficial reasons (e.g. airline flights, hotels, merchandise) with preliminarily estimated losses to 
be at least approximately $150,000.        The case was accepted for potential federal prosecution by the 
Northern District of West Virginia United States Attorney's Office, Wheeling, West Virginia.  The investigation 
was being conducted by DOT-OIG, Department of Energy OIG, and the State of West Virginia Commission on 
Special Investigations.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I12-ST-WFO-00961 Washington, DC Science and Technology Directorate (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/8/2012 8/9/2012 11/10/2016

On August 1, 2012, DHS OIG Special Agent (SA) , Washington Field Office, was contacted by SA 
 Department of Transportation (DOT) OIG regarding a grant fraud case he had been jointly 

conducting at West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV, which involved evidence of criminal 
misappropriation of federal funds (including DHS and DOT) by forme  and his 
girlfriend.  The alleged fraud scheme from 2007 to 2011 utilized university purchase cards for an extensive 
amount of unofficial reasons (e.g. airline flights, hotels, merchandise) with preliminarily estimated losses to 
be at least approximately $150,000.        The case was accepted for potential federal prosecution by the 
Northern District of West Virginia United States Attorney's Office, Wheeling, West Virginia.  The investigation 
was being conducted by DOT-OIG, Department of Energy OIG, and the State of West Virginia Commission on 
Special Investigations.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I12-ST-WFO-00961 Washington, DC Science and Technology Directorate (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/8/2012 8/9/2012 11/10/2016

On August 1, 2012, DHS OIG Special Agent (SA)  Washington Field Office, was contacted by SA 
 Department of Transportation (DOT) OIG regarding a grant fraud case he had been jointly 

conducting at West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV, which involved evidence of criminal 
misappropriation of federal funds (including DHS and DOT) by forme  and his 
girlfriend.  The alleged fraud scheme from 2007 to 2011 utilized university purchase cards for an extensive 
amount of unofficial reasons (e.g. airline flights, hotels, merchandise) with preliminarily estimated losses to 
be at least approximately $150,000.        The case was accepted for potential federal prosecution by the 
Northern District of West Virginia United States Attorney's Office, Wheeling, West Virginia.  The investigation 
was being conducted by DOT-OIG, Department of Energy OIG, and the State of West Virginia Commission on 
Special Investigations.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I12-ST-WFO-00961 Washington, DC Science and Technology Directorate (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/8/2012 8/9/2012 11/10/2016

On August 1, 2012, DHS OIG Special Agent (SA) , Washington Field Office, was contacted by SA 
 Department of Transportation (DOT) OIG regarding a grant fraud case he had been jointly 

conducting at West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV, which involved evidence of criminal 
misappropriation of federal funds (including DHS and DOT) by forme  and his 
girlfriend.  The alleged fraud scheme from 2007 to 2011 utilized university purchase cards for an extensive 
amount of unofficial reasons (e.g. airline flights, hotels, merchandise) with preliminarily estimated losses to 
be at least approximately $150,000.        The case was accepted for potential federal prosecution by the 
Northern District of West Virginia United States Attorney's Office, Wheeling, West Virginia.  The investigation 
was being conducted by DOT-OIG, Department of Energy OIG, and the State of West Virginia Commission on 
Special Investigations.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I12-TSA-SFO-00538 San Francisco, CA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, Los Angeles, CA DHS Employee 3/6/2012 3/6/2012 8/8/2016

 SA, HSI, San Francisco, CA, reported that an HSI marriage fraud investigation may have uncovered 
marriage fraud b  TSO, Los Angeles, CA.  indicated that  marriage to a Polish 
national appeared suspicious and part of a marriage fraud ring.  stated that the USAO in San Francisco is 
involved and any prosecution would take place in San Francisco.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 8 USC 1325(c) Marriage Fraud

I12-TSA-SFO-00538 San Francisco, CA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, Los Angeles, CA DHS Employee 3/6/2012 3/6/2012 8/8/2016

, SA, HSI, San Francisco, CA, reported that an HSI marriage fraud investigation may have uncovered 
marriage fraud b  TSO, Los Angeles, CA.  indicated that s marriage to a Polish 
national appeared suspicious and part of a marriage fraud ring.  stated that the USAO in San Francisco is 
involved and any prosecution would take place in San Francisco

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371
Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I12-TSA-SFO-00538 San Francisco, CA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, Los Angeles, CA DHS Employee 3/6/2012 3/6/2012 8/8/2016

 SA, HSI, San Francisco, CA, reported that an HSI marriage fraud investigation may have uncovered 
marriage fraud b  TSO, Los Angeles, CA.  indicated that  marriage to a Polish 
national appeared suspicious and part of a marriage fraud ring.  stated that the USAO in San Francisco is 
involved and any prosecution would take place in San Francisco.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1325(c) Marriage Fraud

I13-BP-SVA-00281 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee General Public 2/27/2013 2/27/2013 2/29/2016

On February 20, 2013, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), Sierra Vista 
Sub-Office (SVA), Sierra Vista, AZ, contacted  Detective, Sierra Vista Police Department (SVPD), 
SierraVista, AZ, reference a recent telephonic contact received from  Supervisory Border 
Patrol Agent (SBPA), Douglas, AZ, regarding an attempt by Sierra Vista resident,  to blackmail 
SBPA  through his official position as a CBP employee. s asking o 
have his daughter intervene in a criminal case that is being pursued against  son.

 warned hat if he doesnt follow through with this he will make false accusations 
against n order to have a negative impact on his employement.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I13-BP-SVA-00281 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee General Public 2/27/2013 2/27/2013 2/29/2016

On February 20, 2013, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), Sierra Vista 
Sub-Office (SVA), Sierra Vista, AZ, contacted  Detective, Sierra Vista Police Department (SVPD), 
SierraVista, AZ, reference a recent telephonic contact received from  Supervisory Border 
Patrol Agent (SBPA), Douglas, AZ, regarding an attempt by Sierra Vista resident,  to blackmail 
SBPA  through his official position as a CBP employee. s asking o 
have his daughter intervene in a criminal case that is being pursued against  son.

 warned hat if he doesnt follow through with this he will make false accusations 
against n order to have a negative impact on his employement.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 873 Blackmail

I13-BP-TUC-00144 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Tucson, AZ. DHS Employee 12/7/2012 12/7/2012 6/27/2016

On December 2, 2012, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received notification via  email from 
the Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Commissioner's Situation Room regarding a  reported shooting 
incident near Sasabee, AZ. Initial reporting indicated on the above stated date,  CBP Border Patrol Agents 
(BPA) assigned to the Tucson, AZ, Station reported a BPA fired an  undetermined number of rounds from a 
CBP issued M-4 rifle while attempting to apprehend a  group of illegal aliens. Additional information received 
indicates one of the unidentified aliens  encountered by BPA  Tucson, AZ, picked up a rock 
with one hand and grabbed  the barrel of BP ifle with the other hand. When the alien cocked his 
arm back, BPA ired one round from his M-4 rifle hitting the alien in the chest. First aid was 
administered  on the alien. The alien was later declared deceased.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I13-BP-TUC-00144 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Tucson, AZ. DHS Employee 12/7/2012 12/7/2012 6/27/2016

On December 2, 2012, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received notification via  email from 
the Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Commissioner's Situation Room regarding a  reported shooting 
incident near Sasabee, AZ. Initial reporting indicated on the above stated date,  CBP Border Patrol Agents 
(BPA) assigned to the Tucson, AZ, Station reported a BPA fired an  undetermined number of rounds from a 
CBP issued M-4 rifle while attempting to apprehend a  group of illegal aliens. Additional information received 
indicates one of the unidentified aliens  encountered by BPA  Tucson, AZ, picked up a rock 
with one hand and grabbed  the barrel of BPA s rifle with the other hand. When the alien cocked his 
arm back, BPA ired one round from his M-4 rifle hitting the alien in the chest. First aid was 
administered  on the alien. The alien was later declared deceased.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I13-BP-TUC-00144 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Tucson, AZ. Alien Detainee 12/7/2012 12/7/2012 6/27/2016

On December 2, 2012, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received notification via  email from 
the Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Commissioner's Situation Room regarding a  reported shooting 
incident near Sasabee, AZ. Initial reporting indicated on the above stated date,  CBP Border Patrol Agents 
(BPA) assigned to the Tucson, AZ, Station reported a BPA fired an  undetermined number of rounds from a 
CBP issued M-4 rifle while attempting to apprehend a  group of illegal aliens. Additional information received 
indicates one of the unidentified aliens  encountered by BPA  Tucson, AZ, picked up a rock 
with one hand and grabbed  the barrel of BPA s rifle with the other hand. When the alien cocked his 
arm back, BPA ired one round from his M-4 rifle hitting the alien in the chest. First aid was 
administered  on the alien. The alien was later declared deceased.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 3142 Release or Detention of a Defendant Pending Trial

I13-CBP-BUF-00271 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Alexandria Bay, NY DHS Employee 2/26/2013 2/26/2013 1/27/2016
During a trial in the NDNY, CBPO  perjured himself while testifying on behalf of the defendant, 

  USAO is reviewing transcripts and considering prosecution 4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1621 Perjury

I13-CBP-ELC-00627 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 9/25/2013 9/25/2013 1/22/2016

On September 16, 2013, The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), 
Imperial, CA, received information from  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), Intel Unit, U.S. Border 
Patrol, Welton, AZ, regarding an allegation that a unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection Officer 
(CBPO) Calexico, CA, is allegedly involved in a romantic relationship with an unidentified alien smuggler.    

 informed DHS OIG that the driver of a vehicle was apprehended attempting to smuggle two 
undocumented aliens near the Dome Valley Checkpoint located on Interstate 8, east of Yuma, AZ. 
stated that the driver was identified as U.S. Citizen, and the front passenger was 
identified as  U.S. Citizen.  were attempting to smuggle two undocumented 
aliens, later identified as  citizen of Mexico, and  citizen 
of Mexico, by circumventing the Dome Valley Checkpoint.      During ??s interview,
provided information of a possible unknown CBPO, Calexico, CA, who is allegedly involved in a romantic 
relationship with an unidentified alien smuggler.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I13-CBP-ELC-00627 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 9/25/2013 9/25/2013 1/22/2016

On September 16, 2013, The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), 
Imperial, CA, received information from  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), Intel Unit, U.S. Border 
Patrol, Welton, AZ, regarding an allegation that a unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection Officer 
(CBPO) Calexico, CA, is allegedly involved in a romantic relationship with an unidentified alien smuggler.    

 informed DHS OIG that the driver of a vehicle was apprehended attempting to smuggle two 
undocumented aliens near the Dome Valley Checkpoint located on Interstate 8, east of Yuma, AZ.
stated that the driver was identified as U.S. Citizen, and the front passenger was 
identified as  U.S. Citizen.  were attempting to smuggle two undocumented 
aliens, later identified as , citizen of Mexico, and  citizen 
of Mexico, by circumventing the Dome Valley Checkpoint.      During ??s interview,
provided information of a possible unknown CBPO, Calexico, CA, who is allegedly involved in a romantic 
relationship with an unidentified alien smuggler.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I13-CBP-ELP-00531 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, CBP, Santa Teresa, NM DHS Employee 8/2/2013 8/2/2013 1/15/2016

Border Patrol Agent (BPA) , Santa Teresa, NM, is allegedly assisting his mother,
 who is involved with a Drug Trafficking Organization (DTO), by facilitating the safe passage 

of undocumented aliens (UDAs), illicit drugs, and currency into the United States from Mexico.     BPA
s former son-in-law through his ( s) marriage to earned that in 

February 2011, BP and his biological father were caught by BPA  supervisor bringing a large 
sum of money into the U.S. from Mexico.  It is alleged that BPA Holguin paid his supervisor $80,000 to ensure 
that the incident was not reported. could not recall the supervisor’s name.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I13-CBP-ELP-00580 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 8/28/2013 8/28/2013 1/15/2016

As a result of research conducted on Bank Secrecy Act data, IPD identified CBPO  as having 
deposited $71,800 in cash and money orders in large, even-dollar amounts  over a period of approximately six 
months. Research by IPD found that had previously  been investigated for facilitating narcotics 
smuggling, and may have be associating with persons  involved in similar activities.

4.2.3 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Unexplained Affluence Unexplained Affluence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I13-CBP-MIA-00093 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/Unknown/MARGATE, BROWARD, FL DHS Employee 11/9/2012 11/9/2012 6/9/2016

On November 6, 2012, Group Supervisor (GS)  Department of Homeland Security  (DHS), 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Miami, Florida, contacted Special Agent (SA)  DHS, 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), Miami, Florida. GS 

elayed that during a meeting related to a  commercial fraud investigation, Investigator
 Motion Picture Association of  America, Inc., advised GS f possible involvement of a 

Customs and Border Protection  (CBP), employee or employees involved in the importing and or selling of 
counterfeit products i.e.,  DVD's. Continuing on November 6, 2012, SA poke with Investigator
who provided his investigative report that is scanned into the electronic case file (JICMS).

1.7.5 Employee Corruption Smuggling Other Other Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 542 Entry of goods by means of false statements

I13-CBP-NYC-00120 New York, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/1801 Incidents-Critical/Significant/NEW 
YORK -QUEENS,  QUEENS, NY

DHS Employee 11/27/2012 11/27/2012 7/14/2016

On November 15, 2012, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a referral from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Integrity Programs  Division (IPD), Washington, 
DC, concerning CBP Officer (CBPO)  New York, NY.  According to the information contained in 
the referral, CBP is associated with an  account which received more than $60K in deposits from 
three states since July 2011. The  information also indicates CBPO s brother, who is associated with 
structured deposits  and Yemen, used that same account to make transactions totaling more than $271K 
between  2004 and 2011.

1.7.2 Employee Corruption Smuggling Money Money Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324 Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I13-CBP-PHL-00446 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Ameri-Source Holdings, Inc., Bethel Park, PA 5/20/2013 5/28/2013 12/1/2016

United States of America, ex rei. Graphite Electrode Sales, Inc. v.  Ameri-Source Holdings, Inc., et al.  Civil 
Action No. 13-575, Western District of Pennsylvania (UNDER SEAL)    Enclosed please find copies of the 
Complaint and Disclosure Statement, filed under seal in  the above reference qui tam action. The Complaint 
and Disclosure Statement were filed under seal  on April 1, 2013, in the United States District Court for the 
Western District of Pennsylvania.  Allegations in the Complaint include violations arising under the provisions 
ofthe False Claims Act   Please review and assign an agent to this matter     Please See attachments

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I13-CBP-PHL-00446 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Ameri-Source Holdings, Inc., Bethel Park, PA 5/20/2013 5/28/2013 12/1/2016

United States of America, ex rei. Graphite Electrode Sales, Inc. v.  Ameri-Source Holdings, Inc., et al.  Civil 
Action No. 13-575, Western District of Pennsylvania (UNDER SEAL)    Enclosed please find copies of the 
Complaint and Disclosure Statement, filed under seal in  the above reference qui tam action. The Complaint 
and Disclosure Statement were filed under seal  on April 1, 2013, in the United States District Court for the 
Western District of Pennsylvania.  Allegations in the Complaint include violations arising under the provisions 
ofthe False Claims Act.  Please review and assign an agent to this matter.    Please See attachments

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I13-CBP-SID-00128
Special Investigations 
Division U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 11/21/2012 11/30/2012 4/13/2016 *SID CASE* 1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption

Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546

Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I13-CBP-SID-00324
Special Investigations 
Division U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 11/1/2012 11/1/2012 10/14/2016 *SID CASE* 1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption

Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 18 USC 208 Acts Affecting a Personal Financial Interest

I13-CBP-SID-00324
Special Investigations 
Division U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* General Public 11/1/2012 11/1/2012 10/14/2016 *SID CASE* 1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption

Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 18 USC 208 Acts Affecting a Personal Financial Interest

I13-CBP-SID-00477
Special Investigations 
Division U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 5/16/2013 6/17/2013 10/28/2016 *SID CASE* 1.2.1 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Classified Material Classified Material Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I13-CBP-SNJ-00079 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) UNKNOWN BPA, USBP, Aguadilla, PR FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/1/2012 11/1/2012 2/2/2016

On October 29, 2012, US Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR) Resident Agent in Charge San Juan (RAC/SJ), Puerto Rico (PR), received  information from Special Agent 
(SA  Homeland Security Investigations  (HSI) Resident Agent in Charg
(RAC/MAY), PR.  S  reported information stemming from an HSI Confidential Informant (CI) of an 
alleged  corrupt Border Patrol Agent (BPA) that is providing intelligence information to a Drug Trafficking  
Organization (DTO) out of Rincon  PR

1.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law 
Enforcement / National 
Security Related 
information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 798 Disclosure of Classified Information

I13-CBP-SNJ-00236 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Non-DHS employee, St Croix, VI General Public 2/6/2013 2/8/2013 12/7/2016
An allegation has been received indicating that a CBP Officer with the last name of  in Saint Croix, 
USVI,  has been receiving large amount of money from illegal aliens with the promise to help them receive 
immigration benefits, such permanent residency.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I13-CIS-MIA-00378 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Bank/Insurance Fraud by USCIS ISC DHS Employee 4/19/2013 4/19/2013 4/1/2016

On April 18, 2013, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), 
Plantation, Florida, received information from Special Agent (SA  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), Homestead, FL pertaining to allegations of  bank and/or insurance fraud by Immigration 
Services Clerk (ISC  United States  Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS)  Miami  Florida

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-CIS-MIA-00378 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Bank/Insurance Fraud by USCIS ISC DHS Employee 4/19/2013 4/19/2013 4/1/2016

On April 18, 2013, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), 
Plantation, Florida, received information from Special Agent (SA  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), Homestead, FL pertaining to allegations of  bank and/or insurance fraud by Immigration 
Services Clerk (ISC  United States  Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), Miami, Florida.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-CIS-MIA-00378 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Bank/Insurance Fraud by USCIS ISC DHS Employee 4/19/2013 4/19/2013 4/1/2016

On April 18, 2013, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), 
Plantation, Florida, received information from Special Agent (SA  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), Homestead, FL pertaining to allegations of  bank and/or insurance fraud by Immigration 
Services Clerk (ISC  United States  Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), Miami, Florida.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1344 Bank Fraud

I13-CIS-MIA-00378 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Bank/Insurance Fraud by USCIS ISC DHS Employee 4/19/2013 4/19/2013 4/1/2016

On April 18, 2013, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), 
Plantation, Florida, received information from Special Agent (SA  ICE, Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), Homestead, FL pertaining to allegations of  bank and/or insurance fraud by Immigration 
Services Clerk (ISC  United States  Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS)  Miami  Florida

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1344 Bank Fraud

I13-CIS-NYC-00584 New York, NY U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Services Officer, CIS, Newark, NJ DHS Employee 8/27/2013 8/28/2013 2/12/2016

On August 26, 2013, HSI Buffalo Group Superviso ontacted OPR  Buffalo Resident 
Agent in Charge  informing him they have a Confidential  Informant  who 
indicated   This is an HSI 
Buffalo led investigation with OPR Buffalo assistance.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1543 Forgery or False Use of a Passport

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) mmigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  DHS Employee 2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms  staled that Mr has 
been very elusive about his new wife, and Ms. elt that something just didn't seem right.

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  DHS Employee 2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms.  staled that Mr has 
been very elusive about his new wife  and Ms elt that something just didn't seem right

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  General Public 2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms.  staled that Mr. has 
been very elusive about his new wife, and Ms. elt that something just didn't seem right.

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  General Public 2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms.  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms.  staled that Mr has 
been very elusive about his new wife, and elt that something just didn't seem right.

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546 Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms.  staled that Mr. has 
been very elusive about his new wife  and Ms  felt that something just didn't seem right

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1546 Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms.  staled that Mr has 
been very elusive about his new wife, and Ms. elt that something just didn't seem right.

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-CIS-ORL-00239 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Officer, USCIS; Jacksonville, FL  2/8/2013 2/11/2013 5/19/2016

At approximately 5: 15p.m. on Friday, February 1st, 2013, FDNS Immigration Office  came to 
me for advice. She asked me what I'd do if I suspected someone did something possibly wrong. She then 
asked if that would be reported to OSI or the OIG.  I stated it depended on the circumstances. She then went 
on to tell me that something was bothering her and she didn't know what to do because it may be nothing.      
Ms  works closely with another FDNS IO named   Ms.  staled that Mr has 
been very elusive about his new wife, and Ms elt that something just didn't seem right.

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546 Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I13-FAMS-DET-00134 Detroit, MI Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS)  Federal Air Marshals' Service DHS Employee DHS Employee 11/30/2012 12/3/2012 5/26/2016

On November 29, 2012, Detective  Novi Police Department, Novi, MI, provided information 
to Special Agent (SA)  Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General 
(OIG), Detroit Field Office (DET), regarding a Breaking and Entering (B & E) that occurred in Novi, MI between 
November 23, 2012 and November 25, 2012.  During this time, the individuals who lived at the residence, 

, were out of town.  was previously married to Federal Air Marshal 
(FAM)  Romulus, MI, and they had three children together.  As a result of the break in, 

s personal belongings such as jewelry and Gucci/Louis Vuitton gear were stolen, as well as $112,000.00 
in cash that was taken from a safe in  bedroom. There was no forced entry into the residence.  During 
a prior interview of  by Detectiv  alleged tha had not dealt well with their 
separation and has connections to "criminals and bad people" that are involved in many different types of 
illegal activity to include the delivery of narcotics.  FAM is a suspect in the break in.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FAMS-DET-00134 Detroit, MI Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS)  Federal Air Marshals' Service DHS Employee DHS Employee 11/30/2012 12/3/2012 5/26/2016

On November 29, 2012, Detective  Novi Police Department, Novi, MI, provided information 
to Special Agent (SA)  Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General 
(OIG), Detroit Field Office (DET), regarding a Breaking and Entering (B & E) that occurred in Novi, MI between 
November 23, 2012 and November 25, 2012.  During this time, the individuals who lived at the residence, 

, were out of town. as previously married to Federal Air Marshal 
(FAM)  Romulus, MI, and they had three children together.  As a result of the break in, 

personal belongings such as jewelry and Gucci/Louis Vuitton gear were stolen, as well as $112,000.00 
in cash that was taken from a safe in s bedroom. There was no forced entry into the residence.  During 
a prior interview of  by Detective Gruenwald  alleged tha had not dealt well with their 
separation and has connections to "criminals and bad people" that are involved in many different types of 
illegal activity to include the delivery of narcotics.  FAM is a suspect in the break in.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I13-FEMA-BLX-00341 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DBA, Autaugaville, AL
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/27/2013 3/27/2013 6/29/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open  1971 AL 410985102    Possible Fraud 
based on addresses on Lease agreements do not appear to be valid and possibly the DDA is NPR  Issue: Rental 
assistance paid to date - $18,890 based on what appears to be a Non-existent address.  Post disaster address 
on lease is  Prattville AL  •        Courtesy call to tax office:  •        Per County Tax Assessor the post 
disaster rental is a non-existent address.  •        is only 2 blocks long and the addresses do not go 
up to The addresses o  are 100's and 200's; no 4 digit addresses.    •        Also looked for

; no such person owns a home on  in Prattville, Al.  Per 
review of Special tab app also received $15K in rental assistance in a previous disaster; DR 1842 (410785956) 
using similar docs and invalid addresses.  Unable to locate post disaster address of

 La

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-BOS-00622 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee General Public 8/29/2013 9/19/2013 3/3/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPIB and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPIB report for details.  FPIB Report, p/w: open    I know this woman she was a friend of mine. She 
has been receiving benefits from FEMA since the storm about a year ago. I witnessed her foredging 
signatures. She lives in a supportive housing program which she pays a certain percentage of her rent but it is 
her own apartment. She lied and said she lost more then she did during the storm. She took pictures of 
damaged items which she took and purposely damaged to get funds. She is an active drug abuser and is just 
wrong for doing this. I witnessed during our friendship her receive at least 3 checks of at least a couple 
thousand dollars. She admitted to me how she 'didn't lose a damn thing'   After myself n my family 
experienced a house fire and we were not given much help because there wasn't funding available made me 
realize how unfortunate it is and how it affects innocent morally right people. She has moved several times 
and has still managed to continue to get the money from fema!

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply State Violation

I13-FEMA-BOS-00622 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee General Public 8/29/2013 9/19/2013 3/3/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPIB and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPIB report for details.  FPIB Report, p/w: open    I know this woman she was a friend of mine. She 
has been receiving benefits from FEMA since the storm about a year ago. I witnessed her foredging 
signatures. She lives in a supportive housing program which she pays a certain percentage of her rent but it is 
her own apartment. She lied and said she lost more then she did during the storm. She took pictures of 
damaged items which she took and purposely damaged to get funds. She is an active drug abuser and is just 
wrong for doing this. I witnessed during our friendship her receive at least 3 checks of at least a couple 
thousand dollars. She admitted to me how she 'didn't lose a damn thing'   After myself n my family 
experienced a house fire and we were not given much help because there wasn't funding available made me 
realize how unfortunate it is and how it affects innocent morally right people. She has moved several times 
and has still managed to continue to get the money from fema!

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-BOS-13063 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee, FEMA Contract General Public 7/19/2013 10/30/2013 12/8/2016

** FEMA FPU indicates Fraud **    CONNECTICUT STORMS/FLOODING    Compl owns Tolland Tree Service in CT, 
and subj used to be employed under him as bookkeeper. During winter storms, compl's business received 
many jobs for damage around the town. In 2012, compl noticed an invoice for $9000 from the town for work 
that his company did not do. Compl says subj admitted to taking the money from the town (which the town 
received from FEMA for damage assistance) and depositing it into her personal acct. Compl subsequently 
fired subj.  Compl also mentioned that subj's husband is a town official who is in charge of DOTD for the town.  
(FEMA Disaster EM-3361)

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-BOS-13063 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee, FEMA Contract Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/19/2013 10/30/2013 12/8/2016

** FEMA FPU indicates Fraud **    CONNECTICUT STORMS/FLOODING    Compl owns Tolland Tree Service in CT, 
and subj used to be employed under him as bookkeeper. During winter storms, compl's business received 
many jobs for damage around the town. In 2012, compl noticed an invoice for $9000 from the town for work 
that his company did not do. Compl says subj admitted to taking the money from the town (which the town 
received from FEMA for damage assistance) and depositing it into her personal acct. Compl subsequently 
fired subj.  Compl also mentioned that subj's husband is a town official who is in charge of DOTD for the town.  
(FEMA Disaster EM-3361)

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-BUF-00231 Buffalo, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Village of Johnson City Fire Department, Johnson City, NY 12/4/2012 2/1/2013 1/27/2016

JOHNSON CITY NEW YORK:  DECLARATION NO. 4031 DR NY  PW REF NO. 3574148   JOHNSON CITY NEW YORK: 
FIPS NO. 007-3874-OO   DATE 2/22/12  I am nd I  from the Johnson City Fire 
Department.  On the night of September 7, 2011 I was ordered into work due to the flooding our area was 
experiencing from Tropical Storm Lee.  After evacuating residents, we were ordered back to the North Side 
Fire Station located at 320 Harry L. Dr., to remove equipment from the basement or ground level of the 
station.  This Fire Station had flooded in June of 2006, so the Joint Fire Administrator was aware that flooding 
was inevitable.  During the removal of equipment I asked Fire Marshal f he wanted me to remove 
the old Hurst Tool, and he told me to leave it there because JFA h would turn it into FEMA as damaged 
equipment due to flooding.  I was taken aback by this, but followed the orders of the officer.  I filed a 
freedom of information request with the Village seeking the equipment that the Fire Department claimed 
was damaged during the flooding from Tropical Storm Lee.  I wanted to see if JFA truly did file for the 
Hurst tool and he did.  The Hurst tool that was filed as damaged due to Lee was also turned in as damaged 
equipment from the Flood in June of 2006.  After looking at the forced account materials summary record it 
appears that other items might be falsely reported also.  The hose was cleaned and placed back in service, 
the utility trailer was cleaned and placed back in service, the chain saw is back in service, and the boat 
helmets with radio communications are still in service, and were recently deployed to the areas affected by 
Super Storm Sandy. The exercise bike was broken before the flooding ever occurred and I believe that there 
may be other items on the list that may have been already broken. The forced account labor record shows 
that I worked eight hours repairing the basement of the fire station.  That is not true, I did not.  There may be 
other members listed as working in the basement but never did.  Furthermore we were working in the 
basement as part of our regular shifts.  There were no special details called into to perform this work.  Also 
during the flood members of the department were allowed to take vacation or personal leave time and come 
into work for overtime pay.  I did alert members of the Village Board about the Hurst tool, but I believe they 
did not take any action.    JOHNSON CITY NEW YORK: DECLARATION NO. FEMA 4031 DR NY PW REF NO. 3874830  
JOHNSON CITY NEW YORK: FIPS NO. 007-38748-00   DATE 2/22/12  The South Side Fire Station located at 270 
Floral Ave sustained water damage to the basement from primarily ground water that reached an estimated 1 
and a half to 2 inches of water.  According to Firefighter who is responsible for the fire education 
program and CPR training none of his equipment was damaged.  However on the forced account materials 
summary record shows claims for hand puppets for children and 2 CPR Annes???   Other items on the list that 

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I13-FEMA-CHI-00254 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DBA FEMA Chicago IL Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/20/2013 2/20/2013 1/13/2016

As part of an ongoing effort between the DHS-OIG and HUD-OIG Chicago Field Offices to pursue 
investigations of Section 8 beneficiaries fraudulently receiving FEMA housing assistance, was 
identified as a potential offender.  Further investigation revealed that whil received FEMA housing 
assistance for Disaster 1935, she was simultaneously receiving Section 8 benefits at different residence than 
her claimed damaged dwelling.   Specifically, while claimed to have been displaced from

 Chicago, IL, HUD records revealed that has been receiving monthly Section 8 assistance at 
 Chicago, IL since approximately December 2005.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)

(b) (7)(A)



I13-FEMA-CHI-00254 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DBA FEMA Chicago IL Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/20/2013 2/20/2013 1/13/2016

As part of an ongoing effort between the DHS-OIG and HUD-OIG Chicago Field Offices to pursue 
investigations of Section 8 beneficiaries fraudulently receiving FEMA housing assistance, was 
identified as a potential offender.  Further investigation revealed that while received FEMA housing 
assistance for Disaster 1935, she was simultaneously receiving Section 8 benefits at different residence than 
her claimed damaged dwelling.   Specifically, while claimed to have been displaced from

 Chicago, IL, HUD records revealed that  has been receiving monthly Section 8 assistance at 
 Chicago, IL since approximately December 2005.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-CHI-00254 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DBA FEMA Chicago IL Grant Applicant 2/20/2013 2/20/2013 1/13/2016

As part of an ongoing effort between the DHS-OIG and HUD-OIG Chicago Field Offices to pursue 
investigations of Section 8 beneficiaries fraudulently receiving FEMA housing assistance, was 
identified as a potential offender.  Further investigation revealed that whil received FEMA housing 
assistance for Disaster 1935, she was simultaneously receiving Section 8 benefits at different residence than 
her claimed damaged dwelling.   Specifically, while claimed to have been displaced from

 Chicago, IL, HUD records revealed that has been receiving monthly Section 8 assistance at 
 Chicago, IL since approximately December 2005.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-CHI-00254 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DBA FEMA Chicago IL Grant Applicant 2/20/2013 2/20/2013 1/13/2016

As part of an ongoing effort between the DHS-OIG and HUD-OIG Chicago Field Offices to pursue 
investigations of Section 8 beneficiaries fraudulently receiving FEMA housing assistance, was 
identified as a potential offender.  Further investigation revealed that while received FEMA housing 
assistance for Disaster 1935, she was simultaneously receiving Section 8 benefits at different residence than 
her claimed damaged dwelling.   Specifically, while claimed to have been displaced from

 Chicago, IL, HUD records revealed that as been receiving monthly Section 8 assistance at 
 Chicago, IL since approximately December 2005.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-CHI-00418 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Grant Applicant 11/6/2012 3/15/2013 8/8/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    The Chicago Housing Authority (CHA) Office of the 
Inspector General (OIG) received information and supporting docuemntation alleging fraud perpertrated by 

 a CHA Housing Choice Voucher Program participant (Section 8). is alleged to 
have applied for FEMA disaster assistance (application number 450075599, disaster no 1935) for property 
located at , Chicago, IL 60620.  The property is a CHA subsideized unit owned b

 South holland, IL 60473-3775.  The documentation suggest that
 Chicago, IL 60620,  wrote supoorting rental informaiton for

current address i , Chicago, IL 60619.      The information was submitted to our office by 
 NFI, who made several attempts to contact your agency. If additioanl assistance or 

request for documents is required contac  Chicago Housing Authority Office of the 
Inspector General, 60 E. Van Buren St, 12th Floor, Chicago, IL 60605, 

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-CHI-00418 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Grant Applicant 11/6/2012 3/15/2013 8/8/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    The Chicago Housing Authority (CHA) Office of the 
Inspector General (OIG) received information and supporting docuemntation alleging fraud perpertrated by 

 a CHA Housing Choice Voucher Program participant (Section 8). is alleged to 
have applied for FEMA disaster assistance (application number 450075599, disaster no 1935) for property 
located at , Chicago, IL 60620.  The property is a CHA subsideized unit owned b

 South holland, IL 60473-3775.  The documentation suggest that
 Chicago, IL 60620,  wrote supoorting rental informaiton for

current address i  Chicago, IL 60619.      The information was submitted to our office by 
 NFI, who made several attempts to contact your agency. If additioanl assistance or 

request for documents is required contac  Chicago Housing Authority Office of the 
Inspector General, 60 E. Van Buren St, 12th Floor, Chicago, IL 60605,

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-CHI-00561 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA Applicant, Chicago, IL
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/15/2013 8/15/2013 2/29/2016

We have an ongoing situation of possible fraud, and in fact have a case in the field right now ready to be 
inspected in the next couple of days.  The word document attached is an analysis of cases that share the same 
criteria for what we believe is an ongoing attempt to fraudulently obtain disaster assistance.    The inspection 
currently in the field is for an applicant/registrant name  but it is the co-registrant who 
we believe is the common theme.  The attached photograph is the claimed primary residence for

 and is located a  Chicago IL 60621.  The FEMA registration number 
is 450465046.   We are available to assist you any way we can – let us know if you need the contact info for the 
inspector or any other info.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-MIA-00655 Miami, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/26/2013 9/4/2013 7/22/2016

This complaint was initiated as result of Operation Storm Surge, a DHS OIG Miami Field Office initiative 
designed to proactively combat FEMA fraud relating to Hurricane Sandy.  The MFO looks to identify State of 
Florida residents who received disaster assistance by providing false/fictitious information on their FEMA 
disaster applications.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666
Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I13-FEMA-NYC-00178 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Brooklyn, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/6/2012 1/9/2013 2/12/2016

FEMA Fraud Review report, which indicates fraud, uploaded to this complaint.      Hurricane SANDY    Mr. 
owns a house on   it has been abandoned for almost 2 years has numerous 

buildings fines outstanding garbage and debris on the property  He showed up after the hurricane Sandy and 
applied for Fema stating that the house was almost complete. When in fact the house was gutted 2 years ago 
has no sheetrock walls or floors of any kind.no appliance's etc. roof and soffits where open to damage for 
almost 2 years  The house has been left in a gutted state for 2 years  .the debris the fema agents etc. saw 
where from almost 2 years ago

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I13-FEMA-NYC-00178 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Brooklyn, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/6/2012 1/9/2013 2/12/2016

FEMA Fraud Review report, which indicates fraud, uploaded to this complaint.      Hurricane SANDY    Mr. 
owns a house on   it has been abandoned for almost 2 years has numerous 

buildings fines outstanding garbage and debris on the property  He showed up after the hurricane Sandy and 
applied for Fema stating that the house was almost complete. When in fact the house was gutted 2 years ago 
has no sheetrock walls or floors of any kind.no appliance's etc. roof and soffits where open to damage for 
almost 2 years  The house has been left in a gutted state for 2 years  .the debris the fema agents etc. saw 
where from almost 2 years ago

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I13-FEMA-NYC-00535 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, FEMA; Newark, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/18/2013 7/19/2013 5/9/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    Please review the attachment regarding possible 
disaster fraud.  Password to follow in separate email.    Thanks,    Program Analyst, 
Performance Standards & Analysis  Enterprise Performance Information Management Section    Recovery 
Directorate, DHS/FEMA

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-NYC-00535 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Disaster Benefit Applicant, FEMA; Newark, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/18/2013 7/19/2013 5/9/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    Please review the attachment regarding possible 
disaster fraud.  Password to follow in separate email.    Thanks,    Program Analyst, 
Performance Standards & Analysis  Enterprise Performance Information Management Section    Recovery 
Directorate  DHS/FEMA

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00151 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA General Public 12/12/2012 12/12/2012 3/10/2016

A cooperating defendant (CD), who recently pleaded guilty to charges involving over $90,000 in FEMA fraud 
(Hurricane Katrina), alleged she was contacted by individuals to provide assistance in submitting fraudulent 
documentation to FEMA for Hurricane Sandy disaster assistance.  The CD previously conspired with these 
individuals to create fraudulent identity documents to defraud FEMA and the Internal Revenue Service.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00151 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA General Public 12/12/2012 12/12/2012 3/10/2016

A cooperating defendant (CD), who recently pleaded guilty to charges involving over $90,000 in FEMA fraud 
(Hurricane Katrina), alleged she was contacted by individuals to provide assistance in submitting fraudulent 
documentation to FEMA for Hurricane Sandy disaster assistance.  The CD previously conspired with these 
individuals to create fraudulent identity documents to defraud FEMA and the Internal Revenue Service

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00151 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA General Public 12/12/2012 12/12/2012 3/10/2016

A cooperating defendant (CD), who recently pleaded guilty to charges involving over $90,000 in FEMA fraud 
(Hurricane Katrina), alleged she was contacted by individuals to provide assistance in submitting fraudulent 
documentation to FEMA for Hurricane Sandy disaster assistance.  The CD previously conspired with these 
individuals to create fraudulent identity documents to defraud FEMA and the Internal Revenue Service.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00151 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA
State/Local Govt 
Employee 12/12/2012 12/12/2012 3/10/2016

A cooperating defendant (CD), who recently pleaded guilty to charges involving over $90,000 in FEMA fraud 
(Hurricane Katrina), alleged she was contacted by individuals to provide assistance in submitting fraudulent 
documentation to FEMA for Hurricane Sandy disaster assistance.  The CD previously conspired with these 
individuals to create fraudulent identity documents to defraud FEMA and the Internal Revenue Service.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00151 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA General Public 12/12/2012 12/12/2012 3/10/2016

A cooperating defendant (CD), who recently pleaded guilty to charges involving over $90,000 in FEMA fraud 
(Hurricane Katrina), alleged she was contacted by individuals to provide assistance in submitting fraudulent 
documentation to FEMA for Hurricane Sandy disaster assistance.  The CD previously conspired with these 
individuals to create fraudulent identity documents to defraud FEMA and the Internal Revenue Service

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00207 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Seaside Heights, NJ General Public 1/6/2013 1/23/2013 2/11/2016

The complaint was reviewed by FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
attached FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    Subject filed a claim for seaside 
heights new jersey, 08751 but she never lived there.  She receive about $2,800 so far and is receiving rental 
assistance.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00238 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Ocean City, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/8/2012 2/8/2013 8/19/2016

The complaint was reviewed by FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
attached FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    I would like to report FEMA fraud
is claiming FEMA benefits, saying they are living in a home year-round, when it is actually their vacation 
home. They do not stay here more than 3 months out of the year and their child does not attend school here.  
They have a woman and her grandson renting over the winter and are denying them benefits so that they can 
claim them for themselves.     Her name is:   Vacation home address:  1

Ocean City, NJ 08226    Year round address:      Home     
Voorhees, NJ 08043-4806  Age:  50-54  Associated:     Please contact 
me for more information! I have many friends and neighbors that actually need benefits and I would like 
them to receive benefits without someone taking them illegally.     Thank you,   Ocean City, 
NJ resident

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00257 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Camden, NJ General Public 10/31/2012 2/21/2013 9/13/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    DR 4021 and SANDY  41139505  Ms.    
Applicant sent in lease agreement and rent receipts signed as the landlord by Ms   Due to 
sending these documents the app was provided $11,835.00 in rental assistance.  A call was placed to the 
property owner listed in the tax records.  Mr tated that he is not renting to 
applicant and he does not know her.  Please review for probable fraud.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00262 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Monmouth County, NJ General Public 1/19/2013 2/19/2013 10/6/2016

The complaint was reviewed by FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
attached FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    This complaint is related to C1304819 and C1305221.    
Hurricane SANDY      Subject filed a claim for an address at but she was not living there during 
the storm   She has not yet received the money for the claim

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00262 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Monmouth County, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/19/2013 2/19/2013 10/6/2016

The complaint was reviewed by FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
attached FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    This complaint is related to C1304819 and C1305221.    
Hurricane SANDY      Subject filed a claim for an address at but she was not living there during 
the storm.  She has not yet received the money for the claim

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00401 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/11/2013 4/23/2013 4/8/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    Hurricane Irene    Lease in file is for property at

 PHILADELPHIA, PA 19121    -- LL per lease is  and her tel #    -- per 
Philadelphia County, the legal owners of this property =       Per review, found a 

with an address at  PHILADELPHIA, PA 19122  232;  this property is owned by 
PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY  This same person lived a  PHILADELPHIA, PA 19121 
back in 2008      Please review for possible collusion to defraud FEMA for $26,756.45    -- APP has been paid IHP 
MAX = $30,200    -- APP is not eligible for further assistance    -- APP has received 18 months of rental 
assistance    -- FVL = $4,004 for Furnace and water heater = only damage noted by inspector     -- if furnace and 
water heater were replaced in SEPT 2011 why was there a need for RA for 18 months

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I13-FEMA-PHL-00401 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Philadelphia, PA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/11/2013 4/23/2013 4/8/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    Hurricane Irene    Lease in file is for property at

 PHILADELPHIA, PA 19121    -- LL per lease is  and her tel #    -- per 
Philadelphia County, the legal owners of this property =       Per review, found a 

with an address at  PHILADELPHIA, PA 19122  232;  this property is owned by 
PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY  This same person lived a  PHILADELPHIA, PA 19121 
back in 2008      Please review for possible collusion to defraud FEMA for $26,756.45    -- APP has been paid IHP 
MAX = $30,200    -- APP is not eligible for further assistance    -- APP has received 18 months of rental 
assistance    -- FVL = $4,004 for Furnace and water heater = only damage noted by inspector     -- if furnace and 
water heater were replaced in SEPT 2011 why was there a need for RA for 18 months

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I13-FEMA-PHL-00421 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  et al, Disaster Benefit Applicants, Philadelphia, PA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/26/2013 5/15/2013 8/19/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    A COOPERATING SOURCE ALLEGED THE ABOVE 
IDENTIFIED THREE INDIVIDUALS CONSPIRED TO DEFRAUD FEMA FOLLOWING HURRICANE IRENE.  TWO 
SUBJECTS RECEIVED APPROXIMATELY $20,000 EACH BASED ON THEIR FRAUDULENT SUBMISSIONS.  ALL CO-
CONSPIRATORS HAVE CRIMINAL HISTORIES   INITIATE/BOX 3 FOR PHL

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00421 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  et al, Disaster Benefit Applicants, Philadelphia, PA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/26/2013 5/15/2013 8/19/2016

This complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    A COOPERATING SOURCE ALLEGED THE ABOVE 
IDENTIFIED THREE INDIVIDUALS CONSPIRED TO DEFRAUD FEMA FOLLOWING HURRICANE IRENE.  TWO 
SUBJECTS RECEIVED APPROXIMATELY $20,000 EACH BASED ON THEIR FRAUDULENT SUBMISSIONS.  ALL CO-
CONSPIRATORS HAVE CRIMINAL HISTORIES.  INITIATE/BOX 3 FOR PHL.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00512 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Atlantic City, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 6/25/2013 7/18/2013 8/17/2016

Subject has significant criminal history.  Arrest in January for murder.    Additional HUD/Section 8 fraud    This 
complaint was reviewed by the FEMA FPU and found to present valid fraud concerns.  Please see the 
uploaded FPU report for details.  FPU Report, p/w: open    HURRICANE SANDY    n APP states he is now 
incarcerated and wants CO-RE  to take over application  n both parties apparently lived with a 
family member (unauthorized by HUD) in HUD Housing  claims she rented the basement to 
APP — which would mean she was obligated to report $650 monthly income to HUD and IRS  - - please review 
for possible collusion to defraud FEMA  -- contacted Housing Authority &amp; Urban Redevelopment to verify 
information  - - Mr erified that DDA property is owned by Housing Authority  - - per Mr  this 
is a 4 family house  - - per M  any property owned by Housing Authority is not allowed to be leased 
or sublet to third parties and no other parties (family members) other than those authorized are allowed to 
live in the unit  ===  - - appeal from APP = he is currently incarcerated and wants Co-Reg to become primary 
APP  - - no letter in file from Prison/Jail Department -- appeal is not notarized  - - per 11/07/2012 comment, 
APP was renting from # 45040928 -- no indication by inspector tha APP has a commerical 
LL/Tenant relationship  - - linked file may possibly be APP's mother (same name = renter)  - - per inspector, 
APP had no windows or doors  - - initially APP only appealed for TRANS assistance  - - per review, there is/was 
some property that was owned by someone other than APP  - - per review, RA was paid 01/29/2013 based on 
a letter that provided no reason why APP had to move; per inspector, no damage to any rooms LL/relative 
claims APP rented basement (but she is renter herself)  - - Lease submitted refers t as 
&quot;owner&quot;; lease is not signed by APP or &quot;LL&quot; is not acceptable  - APP claims on CTHA 
form that pre-disaster income was $818 / month yet LEASE indicates pre-disaster rent was $650  - - per review, 
DDA is property owned by Housing Authority &amp; Redevelopment  - - purported LL is not owner of the HUD 
apartment and is not eligible to sublease  - - pre-disaster LEASE is not an official lease and is not authorized 
by Housing Authority  - - Housing Authority verified they own the 4-famaily house and tenants are not 
authorized 1     to sublet or have 3rd parties living with them unless specificallyu HUD authorized  -- pre-
disaster LEASE claims is the &quot;owner&quot; of the DDA property and that she rents to 
APP/CO-REG

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I13-FEMA-PHL-00611 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

9/16/2013 9/16/2013 12/1/2016

The Philadelphia FO was contacted by the Ocean County New Jersey Prosecutor’s Office and informed that 
someone attempted to obtain a bank loan from Ocean’s First Bank claiming they were from the Ocean County 
Search and Rescue.  They presented a fictitious letter from a FEMA Regional Administrator which stated that 
the Ocean County Search and Rescue was awarded a grant in the amount of $150,000.  The suspects in this 
case are     This will be a joint investigation with the Ocean County Prosecutor’s 
Office

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-00611 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

9/16/2013 9/16/2013 12/1/2016

The Philadelphia FO was contacted by the Ocean County New Jersey Prosecutor’s Office and informed that 
someone attempted to obtain a bank loan from Ocean’s First Bank claiming they were from the Ocean County 
Search and Rescue.  They presented a fictitious letter from a FEMA Regional Administrator which stated that 
the Ocean County Search and Rescue was awarded a grant in the amount of $150,000.  The suspects in this 
case are     This will be a joint investigation with the Ocean County Prosecutor’s 
Office

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-09575 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) and J&N Construction-Non DHS Employee General Public 5/7/2013 7/22/2016 9/22/2016
Hurricane SANDY    Contact found out that the Subject was charged in Oklahoma and Texas for post disaster 
contractor fraud. Now the subject is in area where Sandy hit, advertising his contractor business    HUD OIG 
and Sandy Fraud Task Force have requested assistance.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-PHL-15179 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee Grant Applicant 9/9/2013 11/20/2014 3/10/2016

The owner of the property, Mr.  has written to FEMA alledging that he was scammed by this 
FEMA applicant .  Mr  and Mrs  have apparently been lived rent free in this gentleman's home  while 
being paid considerable rental assistance monies form FEMA..    The owner o Whiting, New 
Jersey states that the Knights of Columbus and from Seaside new Jersey) brought to his 
attention the s need for temporary housing assistance due to  medical needs.  They moved in at 
the end of Dec 2012 and in January 2013 Mr sked if he could buy the coop property.  There has not 
been a rental agreement or rent paid nor has  there has been a sales agreement or sale of the property.    The 

have applied for and received $15607.75 in rental assistance from FEMA/New Jersey DR 4086. but have 
not paid rent to the owner/landlord.    The owner of the property has asked them to vacate the premises but 
to no avail. Mr  is afraid that the Coop will revoke his shares in the property.    The FEMA Registration 
Number is 39-3950906          Disaster Number 4086  The property is a Coop -----  VP 
board, after 6 pm  friend   Knights of Columbus: 

 Niece    Thank you for investigating.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-FEMA-SEA-00172 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation General Public 1/7/2013 1/7/2013 5/4/2016

On 1/6/2013 DHS OIG received the below from the complainant:    I have an active joint investigation (FBI & 
IRS-CID assisting) involving a P L 93-638 Indian Self Determination construction contract awarded by the US 
Bureau of Reclamation (the Rocky Boys / North Central Montana Water Project) to the Chippewa Cree Tribe to 
build a water delivery system from Lake Elwell to the Rocky Boys Indian reservation. The CCT in turn created 
their own tribally owned construction company in August 2005 -the Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation 
[C-4]  specifically for the water project construction.  C-4 has dramatically expanded its construction activities 
to include other federally funded projects such as the CCT Justice Center (DOJ grant- new law enforcement 
center / jail / courthouse complex) the Senior Citizen Complex and Health Clinic (HHS funded).  The CEO of 
the C-4 is   He also serves as the Contracting Officer for C-4 is also an elected member of 
the Montana House of Representatives. He is very involved in the tribal government and numerous other 
tribal programs.     I interviewed in my office on December 19, 2012 - he lawyered up when he 
realized I had subpoenaed his bank accounts - He said he served as the authorized tribal representative to 
FEMA in regards to disaster declarations from flash floods that occurred on the Rocky Boys Indian reservation 
in 2010 and 201  said that FEMA provided $3 million in advance disaster relief money to the CCT in 
regards to the flash floods of 2010.  He noted that the Tribe expected to receive a total of $27 million in FEMA 
disaster aid. This funding is to be combined with insurance proceeds to repair the damages to the 
reservation's infrastructure from the disaster.       is majority owner of a separate business located in 
Billings, Montana called  M T Waterworks.  One of his [silent] business partners in this company is

owns a business called CMG Construction.  CMG was awarded a contract for the 
demolition and removal of an IHS medical clinic destroyed in the 2010 flash flood [clinic was built in 2007].  
Subpoenaed bank records reflect that  is kicking back money from this contract directly t  
(Documented kickback of $50K in July 2011 in regards to $100K progress payment)  Invoices submitted by CMG 
and C-4 Purchase Request Approval Forms authorizing payment to CMG reflect this demolition contract was 
funded with FEMA disaster aid monies.     I have a wealth of information and documentation obtained over 
the past 18 months of investigation about C-4, and other key officials at the CCT and C-4.  
I would be happy to provide a complete presentation to your Agency in order that an informed decision can 
be made on whether they should index a criminal investigation into possible false claims / kickbacks and/or 
embezzlement of FEMA funds by CCT tribal officials and contractors.       I have included AUSA on 
this e-mail  at his request  so that he could coordinate the issuance of FGJ Rule 6(e) notifications to any DHS-

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I13-FEMA-SEA-00172 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation General Public 1/7/2013 1/7/2013 5/4/2016

On 1/6/2013 DHS OIG received the below from the complainant:    I have an active joint investigation (FBI & 
IRS-CID assisting) involving a P L 93-638 Indian Self Determination construction contract awarded by the US 
Bureau of Reclamation (the Rocky Boys / North Central Montana Water Project) to the Chippewa Cree Tribe to 
build a water delivery system from Lake Elwell to the Rocky Boys Indian reservation. The CCT in turn created 
their own tribally owned construction company in August 2005 -the Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation 
[C-4]  specifically for the water project construction.  C-4 has dramatically expanded its construction activities 
to include other federally funded projects such as the CCT Justice Center (DOJ grant- new law enforcement 
center / jail / courthouse complex) the Senior Citizen Complex and Health Clinic (HHS funded).  The CEO of 
the C-4 is   He also serves as the Contracting Officer for C-4 is also an elected member of 
the Montana House of Representatives. He is very involved in the tribal government and numerous other 
tribal programs.     I interviewed in my office on December 19, 2012 - he lawyered up when he 
realized I had subpoenaed his bank accounts - He said he served as the authorized tribal representative to 
FEMA in regards to disaster declarations from flash floods that occurred on the Rocky Boys Indian reservation 
in 2010 and 201  said that FEMA provided $3 million in advance disaster relief money to the CCT in 
regards to the flash floods of 2010.  He noted that the Tribe expected to receive a total of $27 million in FEMA 
disaster aid. This funding is to be combined with insurance proceeds to repair the damages to the 
reservation's infrastructure from the disaster.       is majority owner of a separate business located in 
Billings, Montana called  M T Waterworks.  One of his [silent] business partners in this company is

owns a business called CMG Construction.  CMG was awarded a contract for the 
demolition and removal of an IHS medical clinic destroyed in the 2010 flash flood [clinic was built in 2007].  
Subpoenaed bank records reflect that s kicking back money from this contract directly to Belcourt. 
(Documented kickback of $50K in July 2011 in regards to $100K progress payment)  Invoices submitted by CMG 
and C-4 Purchase Request Approval Forms authorizing payment to CMG reflect this demolition contract was 
funded with FEMA disaster aid monies.     I have a wealth of information and documentation obtained over 
the past 18 months of investigation about C-4, and other key officials at the CCT and C-4.  
I would be happy to provide a complete presentation to your Agency in order that an informed decision can 
be made on whether they should index a criminal investigation into possible false claims / kickbacks and/or 
embezzlement of FEMA funds by CCT tribal officials and contractors.       I have included AUSA on 
this e-mail  at his request  so that he could coordinate the issuance of FGJ Rule 6(e) notifications to any DHS-

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1163

Embezzlement and Theft from Indian Tribal 
Organizations

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I13-FEMA-SEA-00172 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation General Public 1/7/2013 1/7/2013 5/4/2016

On 1/6/2013 DHS OIG received the below from the complainant:    I have an active joint investigation (FBI & 
IRS-CID assisting) involving a P L 93-638 Indian Self Determination construction contract awarded by the US 
Bureau of Reclamation (the Rocky Boys / North Central Montana Water Project) to the Chippewa Cree Tribe to 
build a water delivery system from Lake Elwell to the Rocky Boys Indian reservation. The CCT in turn created 
their own tribally owned construction company in August 2005 -the Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation 
[C-4]  specifically for the water project construction.  C-4 has dramatically expanded its construction activities 
to include other federally funded projects such as the CCT Justice Center (DOJ grant- new law enforcement 
center / jail / courthouse complex) the Senior Citizen Complex and Health Clinic (HHS funded).  The CEO of 
the C-4 is   He also serves as the Contracting Officer for C-4 is also an elected member of 
the Montana House of Representatives. He is very involved in the tribal government and numerous other 
tribal programs.     I interviewed in my office on December 19, 2012 - he lawyered up when he 
realized I had subpoenaed his bank accounts - He said he served as the authorized tribal representative to 
FEMA in regards to disaster declarations from flash floods that occurred on the Rocky Boys Indian reservation 
in 2010 and 2011.  said that FEMA provided $3 million in advance disaster relief money to the CCT in 
regards to the flash floods of 2010.  He noted that the Tribe expected to receive a total of $27 million in FEMA 
disaster aid. This funding is to be combined with insurance proceeds to repair the damages to the 
reservation's infrastructure from the disaster.       is majority owner of a separate business located in 
Billings, Montana called  M T Waterworks.  One of his [silent] business partners in this company is

owns a business called CMG Construction.  CMG was awarded a contract for the 
demolition and removal of an IHS medical clinic destroyed in the 2010 flash flood [clinic was built in 2007].  
Subpoenaed bank records reflect tha s kicking back money from this contract directly to
(Documented kickback of $50K in July 2011 in regards to $100K progress payment)  Invoices submitted by CMG 
and C-4 Purchase Request Approval Forms authorizing payment to CMG reflect this demolition contract was 
funded with FEMA disaster aid monies.     I have a wealth of information and documentation obtained over 
the past 18 months of investigation about C-4, and other key officials at the CCT and C-4.  
I would be happy to provide a complete presentation to your Agency in order that an informed decision can 
be made on whether they should index a criminal investigation into possible false claims / kickbacks and/or 
embezzlement of FEMA funds by CCT tribal officials and contractors.       I have included AUSA on 
this e-mail  at his request  so that he could coordinate the issuance of FGJ Rule 6(e) notifications to any DHS-

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 286

Conspiracy to Defraud the Government with 
Respect to a Claim

I13-FEMA-SEA-00172 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation General Public 1/7/2013 1/7/2013 5/4/2016

On 1/6/2013 DHS OIG received the below from the complainant:    I have an active joint investigation (FBI & 
IRS-CID assisting) involving a P L 93-638 Indian Self Determination construction contract awarded by the US 
Bureau of Reclamation (the Rocky Boys / North Central Montana Water Project) to the Chippewa Cree Tribe to 
build a water delivery system from Lake Elwell to the Rocky Boys Indian reservation. The CCT in turn created 
their own tribally owned construction company in August 2005 -the Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation 
[C-4]  specifically for the water project construction.  C-4 has dramatically expanded its construction activities 
to include other federally funded projects such as the CCT Justice Center (DOJ grant- new law enforcement 
center / jail / courthouse complex) the Senior Citizen Complex and Health Clinic (HHS funded).  The CEO of 
the C-4 is   He also serves as the Contracting Officer for C- is also an elected member of 
the Montana House of Representatives. He is very involved in the tribal government and numerous other 
tribal programs.     I interviewed in my office on December 19, 2012 - he lawyered up when he 
realized I had subpoenaed his bank accounts - He said he served as the authorized tribal representative to 
FEMA in regards to disaster declarations from flash floods that occurred on the Rocky Boys Indian reservation 
in 2010 and 2011.  said that FEMA provided $3 million in advance disaster relief money to the CCT in 
regards to the flash floods of 2010.  He noted that the Tribe expected to receive a total of $27 million in FEMA 
disaster aid. This funding is to be combined with insurance proceeds to repair the damages to the 
reservation's infrastructure from the disaster.       is majority owner of a separate business located in 
Billings, Montana called  M T Waterworks.  One of his [silent] business partners in this company i

owns a business called CMG Construction.  CMG was awarded a contract for the 
demolition and removal of an IHS medical clinic destroyed in the 2010 flash flood [clinic was built in 2007].  
Subpoenaed bank records reflect tha s kicking back money from this contract directly t  
(Documented kickback of $50K in July 2011 in regards to $100K progress payment)  Invoices submitted by CMG 
and C-4 Purchase Request Approval Forms authorizing payment to CMG reflect this demolition contract was 
funded with FEMA disaster aid monies.     I have a wealth of information and documentation obtained over 
the past 18 months of investigation about C-4, and other key officials at the CCT and C-4.  
I would be happy to provide a complete presentation to your Agency in order that an informed decision can 
be made on whether they should index a criminal investigation into possible false claims / kickbacks and/or 
embezzlement of FEMA funds by CCT tribal officials and contractors.       I have included AUSA on 
this e-mail  at his request  so that he could coordinate the issuance of FGJ Rule 6(e) notifications to any DHS-

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666

Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I13-FEMA-SEA-00172 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation General Public 1/7/2013 1/7/2013 5/4/2016

On 1/6/2013 DHS OIG received the below from the complainant:    I have an active joint investigation (FBI & 
IRS-CID assisting) involving a P L 93-638 Indian Self Determination construction contract awarded by the US 
Bureau of Reclamation (the Rocky Boys / North Central Montana Water Project) to the Chippewa Cree Tribe to 
build a water delivery system from Lake Elwell to the Rocky Boys Indian reservation. The CCT in turn created 
their own tribally owned construction company in August 2005 -the Chippewa Cree Construction Corporation 
[C-4]  specifically for the water project construction.  C-4 has dramatically expanded its construction activities 
to include other federally funded projects such as the CCT Justice Center (DOJ grant- new law enforcement 
center / jail / courthouse complex) the Senior Citizen Complex and Health Clinic (HHS funded).  The CEO of 
the C-4 is   He also serves as the Contracting Officer for C-4 is also an elected member of 
the Montana House of Representatives. He is very involved in the tribal government and numerous other 
tribal programs.     I interviewed in my office on December 19, 2012 - he lawyered up when he 
realized I had subpoenaed his bank accounts - He said he served as the authorized tribal representative to 
FEMA in regards to disaster declarations from flash floods that occurred on the Rocky Boys Indian reservation 
in 2010 and 2011.  said that FEMA provided $3 million in advance disaster relief money to the CCT in 
regards to the flash floods of 2010.  He noted that the Tribe expected to receive a total of $27 million in FEMA 
disaster aid. This funding is to be combined with insurance proceeds to repair the damages to the 
reservation's infrastructure from the disaster.       is majority owner of a separate business located in 
Billings, Montana called  M T Waterworks.  One of his [silent] business partners in this company is

owns a business called CMG Construction.  CMG was awarded a contract for the 
demolition and removal of an IHS medical clinic destroyed in the 2010 flash flood [clinic was built in 2007].  
Subpoenaed bank records reflect tha s kicking back money from this contract directly to  
(Documented kickback of $50K in July 2011 in regards to $100K progress payment)  Invoices submitted by CMG 
and C-4 Purchase Request Approval Forms authorizing payment to CMG reflect this demolition contract was 
funded with FEMA disaster aid monies.     I have a wealth of information and documentation obtained over 
the past 18 months of investigation about C-4, and other key officials at the CCT and C-4.  
I would be happy to provide a complete presentation to your Agency in order that an informed decision can 
be made on whether they should index a criminal investigation into possible false claims / kickbacks and/or 
embezzlement of FEMA funds by CCT tribal officials and contractors.       I have included AUSA on 
this e-mail  at his request  so that he could coordinate the issuance of FGJ Rule 6(e) notifications to any DHS-

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666

Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I13-FEMA-SFO-00371 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Corporation 4/9/2013 4/11/2013 3/10/2016

On April 9, 2013, the Department of Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS OIG), San Francisco, 
CA, received a complaint from  Special Agent, Inspector General (IG), Department of Defense 
(DOD), Defense Criminal Investigative Service (DCIS), San Francisco, CA. It was alleged that

 Owner of Tripartite Escrow Corportation (TEC), Fresno, CA, was involved in a surety bond scheme 
designated to defraud the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and U.S. Coast Guard (USCG). TEC 
allegedly submitted a series of false Affidavits of Individual Surety to FEMA and USCG pledging common stock 
as security collateral for the surety bonds. FEMA and USCG contracts were identified by DCIS as receiving bids 
guaranteed by TEC surety bonds for a total of 26 contracts valued at approximately $6,950,756.00.

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1028 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Identification Documents and Information

I13-FEMA-SFO-00371 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Corporation 4/9/2013 4/11/2013 3/10/2016

On April 9, 2013, the Department of Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS OIG), San Francisco, 
CA, received a complaint from  Special Agent, Inspector General (IG), Department of Defense 
(DOD), Defense Criminal Investigative Service (DCIS), San Francisco, CA. It was alleged that

 Owner of Tripartite Escrow Corportation (TEC), Fresno, CA, was involved in a surety bond scheme 
designated to defraud the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and U.S. Coast Guard (USCG). TEC 
allegedly submitted a series of false Affidavits of Individual Surety to FEMA and USCG pledging common stock 
as security collateral for the surety bonds. FEMA and USCG contracts were identified by DCIS as receiving bids 
guaranteed by TEC surety bonds for a total of 26 contracts valued at approximately $6,950,756.00.

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I13-FEMA-SFO-00371 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Corporation 4/9/2013 4/11/2013 3/10/2016

On April 9, 2013, the Department of Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS OIG), San Francisco, 
CA, received a complaint from  Special Agent, Inspector General (IG), Department of Defense 
(DOD), Defense Criminal Investigative Service (DCIS), San Francisco, CA. It was alleged that

 Owner of Tripartite Escrow Corportation (TEC), Fresno, CA, was involved in a surety bond scheme 
designated to defraud the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and U.S. Coast Guard (USCG). TEC 
allegedly submitted a series of false Affidavits of Individual Surety to FEMA and USCG pledging common stock 
as security collateral for the surety bonds. FEMA and USCG contracts were identified by DCIS as receiving bids 
guaranteed by TEC surety bonds for a total of 26 contracts valued at approximately $6,950,756.00.

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I13-FPS-ORL-00020 Orlando, FL Federal Protective Service (DHS) Federal Protective Service; DHS Employee DHS Employee 10/3/2012 10/4/2012 8/11/2016

On October 3, 2012,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), Orlando, Florida, received a complaint alleging that  Special Agent, 
Federal Protective Service (FPS), Tampa, Florida, has allegedly sent threatening text messages to his 
( ???s) former spouse.      The complainant,  stated tha has repeatedly indicated 
that due to his employment as a federal law enforcement officer, he will not be held accountable for his 
actions  stated tha  uses telephone to text   

rovided documents which are part of a custody court case in Henderson County, Tennessee, where 
a mental health professional made two reports indicating possible misconduct b   The first report 
details a camping/hunting trip wher was alone with two of his minor children.  According to the 
report drank heavily and was sick, asleep or otherwise unconscious, and the children were 
unattended for two days.  The report also states that during that time, the children fired a weapon and rode 
an all terrain vehicle (ATV) without adult supervision.    A subsequent report stated that during that same 
camping/hunting trip, the children were allegedly fondled and otherwise sexually abused by  and 
there was an open investigation into those alleged acts.  The reports were dated January and March 2007 
respectively

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-FPS-ORL-00020 Orlando, FL Federal Protective Service (DHS) ; Federal Protective Service; DHS Employee DHS Employee 10/3/2012 10/4/2012 8/11/2016

On October 3, 2012,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), Orlando, Florida, received a complaint alleging that  Special Agent, 
Federal Protective Service (FPS), Tampa, Florida, has allegedly sent threatening text messages to his 
( ???s) former spouse.      The complainant,  stated that has repeatedly indicated 
that due to his employment as a federal law enforcement officer, he will not be held accountable for his 
actions  stated tha  uses telephon to text

rovided documents which are part of a custody court case in Henderson County, Tennessee, where 
a mental health professional made two reports indicating possible misconduct b   The first report 
details a camping/hunting trip where was alone with two of his minor children.  According to the 
report drank heavily and was sick, asleep or otherwise unconscious, and the children were 
unattended for two days.  The report also states that during that time, the children fired a weapon and rode 
an all terrain vehicle (ATV) without adult supervision.    A subsequent report stated that during that same 
camping/hunting trip, the children were allegedly fondled and otherwise sexually abused by  and 
there was an open investigation into those alleged acts.  The reports were dated January and March 2007 
respectively

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I13-FPS-ORL-00020 Orlando, FL Federal Protective Service (DHS) ; Federal Protective Service; DHS Employee DHS Employee 10/3/2012 10/4/2012 8/11/2016

On October 3, 2012,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), Orlando, Florida, received a complaint alleging that  Special Agent, 
Federal Protective Service (FPS), Tampa, Florida, has allegedly sent threatening text messages to his 

???s) former spouse.      The complainant,  stated that has repeatedly indicated 
that due to his employment as a federal law enforcement officer, he will not be held accountable for his 
actions  stated that  uses telephon to text   

rovided documents which are part of a custody court case in Henderson County, Tennessee, where 
a mental health professional made two reports indicating possible misconduct b The first report 
details a camping/hunting trip wher was alone with two of his minor children.  According to the 
report drank heavily and was sick, asleep or otherwise unconscious, and the children were 
unattended for two days.  The report also states that during that time, the children fired a weapon and rode 
an all terrain vehicle (ATV) without adult supervision.    A subsequent report stated that during that same 
camping/hunting trip, the children were allegedly fondled and otherwise sexually abused by  and 
there was an open investigation into those alleged acts.  The reports were dated January and March 2007 
respectively

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-FPS-ORL-00020 Orlando, FL Federal Protective Service (DHS) ; Federal Protective Service; DHS Employee DHS Employee 10/3/2012 10/4/2012 8/11/2016

On October 3, 2012, Edgardo Rosado, Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), Orlando, Florida, received a complaint alleging that  Special Agent, 
Federal Protective Service (FPS), Tampa, Florida, has allegedly sent threatening text messages to his 

???s) former spouse.      The complainant,  stated that has repeatedly indicated 
that due to his employment as a federal law enforcement officer, he will not be held accountable for his 
actions.  stated tha  uses telephon to text

rovided documents which are part of a custody court case in Henderson County, Tennessee, where 
a mental health professional made two reports indicating possible misconduct b   The first report 
details a camping/hunting trip where was alone with two of his minor children.  According to the 
report drank heavily and was sick, asleep or otherwise unconscious, and the children were 
unattended for two days.  The report also states that during that time, the children fired a weapon and rode 
an all terrain vehicle (ATV) without adult supervision.    A subsequent report stated that during that same 
camping/hunting trip, the children were allegedly fondled and otherwise sexually abused by  and 
there was an open investigation into those alleged acts.  The reports were dated January and March 2007 
respectively

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I13-ICE-CHI-00423 Chicago, IL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  ICE; Broadview, IL. DHS Employee 5/15/2013 5/15/2013 3/14/2016

On April 12, 2013,  SAC, DHS- OIG, Chicago IL, was contacted by FBI Chicago regarding a Health 
care fraud scheme by Dr.   The FBI reported that during their investigation they discovered that 

 Immigration Enforcement Agent (IEA), Broadview, IL, was implicated as a participant in a health 
care fraud scheme. The FBI and DHS-OIG Chicago agreed to work jointly.

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1347 Health Care Fraud

I13-ICE-SNJ-00217 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) TFO, HSI, St Croix, VI

State/Local Govt 
Employee 2/1/2013 2/1/2013 2/2/2016

On January 29, 2013, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, Resident Agent in Charge, San Juan  (OPR RAC/SJ), Puerto Rico, 
received information from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  RAC Saint Croix  about a 
possible extortion and an alleged improper financial  transactions between HSI task Force Officer

 (TFO) and a documented HSI  Confidential Informant

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 872

Extortion by Officers or Employees of the United 
States

I13-ICEHSI-SNJ-00554 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

 SA, ICEHSI,  San Juan, PR DHS Employee 8/12/2013 8/12/2013 2/26/2016

On August 10, 2013, at approximately 1:30 am, Operation Caribbean Resilience reported to  Department of 
Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS OIG), a shooting incident that  occurred at Lagos de 
Blasinia Public Housing Project (PHP) Carolina, Puerto Rico, between  Homeland Security Investigations 
Agents and subjects. A total of sixteen agents were part of the  team, (10 Puerto Rico Police Officers, three 
HSI Task Force Agents, 2 HSI Special Agents and 1  HSI Team Leader (GS). SA  and a PRPD Officer 
discharged their weapons during  the incident.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I13-ICEHSI-SNJ-00554 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

 SA, ICEHSI,  San Juan, PR DHS Employee 8/12/2013 8/12/2013 2/26/2016

On August 10, 2013, at approximately 1:30 am, Operation Caribbean Resilience reported to  Department of 
Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS OIG), a shooting incident that  occurred at Lagos de 
Blasinia Public Housing Project (PHP) Carolina, Puerto Rico, between  Homeland Security Investigations 
Agents and subjects. A total of sixteen agents were part of the  team, (10 Puerto Rico Police Officers, three 
HSI Task Force Agents, 2 HSI Special Agents and 1  HSI Team Leader (GS). SA and a PRPD Officer 
discharged their weapons during  the incident.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I13-OGC-SID-00195
Special Investigations 
Division Office of the General Counsel (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 9/5/2012 9/5/2012 3/17/2016 *SID CASE* 4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I13-USCG-ORL-00478 Orlando, FL U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) Air Ideal, et al.; U.S. Coast Guard; Orlando, FL. Air  Ideal Corporation 6/14/2013 6/14/2013 2/2/2016

Defendants have engaged in a systematic pattern and practice of submitting false records and  statements 
regarding the location of their general contractor business, Air Ideal, Inc., in order to  fraudulently qualify as a 
HUBZone business. This scheme enabled Defendants to reap the  benefits of the HUBZone program by 
providing it with the ability to bid on and obtain HUBZone  set-aside contracts. As a result of the submission 
of these false records and statements,  Defendants were awarded at least six contracts, totaling at least 
$5,617,914.00. Unquestionably,  by these false and fraudulent claims, Defendants have violated the FCA and 
obtained federal  monies to which they are not entitled.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I13-USCG-ORL-00478 Orlando, FL U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) Air Ideal, et al.; U.S. Coast Guard; Orlando, FL. General Public 6/14/2013 6/14/2013 2/2/2016

Defendants have engaged in a systematic pattern and practice of submitting false records and  statements 
regarding the location of their general contractor business, Air Ideal, Inc., in order to  fraudulently qualify as a 
HUBZone business. This scheme enabled Defendants to reap the  benefits of the HUBZone program by 
providing it with the ability to bid on and obtain HUBZone  set-aside contracts. As a result of the submission 
of these false records and statements,  Defendants were awarded at least six contracts, totaling at least 
$5,617,914.00. Unquestionably,  by these false and fraudulent claims, Defendants have violated the FCA and 
obtained federal  monies to which they are not entitled.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-USCG-ORL-00478 Orlando, FL U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) Air Ideal, et al.; U.S. Coast Guard; Orlando, FL. DHS Contractor 6/14/2013 6/14/2013 2/2/2016

Defendants have engaged in a systematic pattern and practice of submitting false records and  statements 
regarding the location of their general contractor business, Air Ideal, Inc., in order to  fraudulently qualify as a 
HUBZone business. This scheme enabled Defendants to reap the  benefits of the HUBZone program by 
providing it with the ability to bid on and obtain HUBZone  set-aside contracts. As a result of the submission 
of these false records and statements,  Defendants were awarded at least six contracts, totaling at least 
$5,617,914.00. Unquestionably,  by these false and fraudulent claims, Defendants have violated the FCA and 
obtained federal  monies to which they are not entitled.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I13-USSS-ATL-00538 Atlanta, GA U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS DHS Employee 8/5/2013 8/6/2013 2/5/2016
The FBI Atlanta Division contacted ASAC equesting assistance with the investigation of  

 Dunwoody (Georgia) Police Department, Task Force Officer who is allegedly providing 
information from law enforcement databases to a drug trafficking organization.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I13-USSS-ATL-00538 Atlanta, GA U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/5/2013 8/6/2013 2/5/2016
The FBI Atlanta Division contacted ASAC equesting assistance with the investigation of  

Dunwoody (Georgia) Police Department, Task Force Officer who is allegedly providing 
information from law enforcement databases to a drug trafficking organization

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I13-USSS-ATL-00538 Atlanta, GA U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS State/Local Govt 
Employee

8/5/2013 8/6/2013 2/5/2016
The FBI Atlanta Division contacted ASAC equesting assistance with the investigation of  

 Dunwoody (Georgia) Police Department, Task Force Officer who is allegedly providing 
information from law enforcement databases to a drug trafficking organization.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-BP-DET-09556 Detroit, MI U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BORDER PATROL AGENT/1203 Falsification-

Employment Related/GIBRALTAR, WAYNE, MI DHS Employee 5/20/2014 5/20/2014 4/18/2016

On May 15, 2014, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Deputy Chief Patrol Agent in Charge  (DC/PAIC)
 Selfridge, MI, notified CBP Office of Internal Affairs, (OIA), Detroit, MI,  via outlook email, regarding an 

allegation that Border Patrol Agent (BPA) ,  Gibraltar, MI, may not have reported details of a 
disability retirement from the City of Detroit Fire  Department (DFD)

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-BP-ELP-05568 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/Unknown/EL PASO, EL 
PASO, TX

DHS Employee 2/24/2014 2/24/2014 1/15/2016

As a result of research conducted on Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) data, IPD identified two (2)  separate suspicious 
cash transactions in an account owned by BPA  Both  transactions indicated that suspicious 
activity was present as BPA  made a point of  inquiring on the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) reporting 
limits. On one transaction, dated  4/5/2013, BPA  hanged his cash withdrawal from $10,500.00 to 
$9,950.00. On the  second transaction, dated 5/28/2013, BPA  made two separate deposits on the same 
day  ranging from $6,100.00 to $9,000.00 for a total of $15,100.00 deposited.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324 Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I14-BP-ELP-08676 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, CBP, El Paso, TX et al. DHS Employee 4/30/2014 4/30/2014 6/28/2016

On April 29, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   El Paso, TX, regarding an 
allegation of assault submitted b , a civilian.  alleged that he was punched in the 
face by Border Patrol Agent (BPA)   Fabens, TX.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I14-BP-ELP-08676 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, CBP, El Paso, TX et al. DHS Employee 4/30/2014 4/30/2014 6/28/2016

On April 29, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   El Paso, TX, regarding an 
allegation of assault submitted b , a civilian.  alleged that he was punched in the 
face by Border Patrol Agent (BPA)   Fabens  TX

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I14-BP-ELP-15094 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/1206 Falsification-
Other/SIERRA BLANCA, HUDSPETH, TX

DHS Employee 9/5/2014 9/5/2014 1/15/2016

On September 2, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an information  report 
completed by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, on August 19, 2014, 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Sierra Blanca, TX,  manually changed a license plate which was 
correctly read by a CBP computer system thus  clearing a marijuana smuggling-relate alert which was 
placed on the vehicle in October  2013.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I14-BP-ELP-15094 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/1206 Falsification-
Other/SIERRA BLANCA, HUDSPETH, TX

DHS Employee 9/5/2014 9/5/2014 1/15/2016

On September 2, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an information  report 
completed by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, on August 19, 2014, 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Sierra Blanca, TX,  manually changed a license plate which was 
correctly read by a CBP computer system thus  clearing a marijuana smuggling-relate alert which was 
placed on the vehicle in October  2013.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I14-BP-ELP-15094 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/1206 Falsification-
Other/SIERRA BLANCA, HUDSPETH, TX

DHS Employee 9/5/2014 9/5/2014 1/15/2016

On September 2, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an information  report 
completed by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, on August 19, 2014, 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Sierra Blanca, TX,  manually changed a license plate which was 
correctly read by a CBP computer system thus  clearing a marijuana smuggling-relate alert which was 
placed on the vehicle in October  2013

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I14-BP-LAR-04721 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BORDER PATROL AGENT/0201 

Smuggling-Drugs/HEBBRONVILLE, JIM HOGG, TX DHS Employee 2/3/2014 3/21/2014 8/17/2016

201403731  On January 30, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from  
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA)   Laredo, TX, 
regarding Border Patrol Agent (BPA) nd Supervisory BPA (SBPA)  both 
assigned to Hebbronville, TX. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA)  Assistant Special Agent in Charge 
(ASAC eported that a cooperating source  alleged that two Hebbronville agents are 
facilitating loads of narcotics through the Hebbronville  checkpoints in order to pay for gambling debts. The 
agents were identified as BPA and  SBPA     201403732  On January 30, 2014, the Joint Intake 
Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant 
Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA   Laredo, TX, regarding Border Patrol Agent (BPA and 
Supervisory BPA (SBPA)  both assigned to Hebbronville, TX. Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA)  Assistant Special Agent in Charge (ASAC) reported that a 
cooperating source  alleged that two Hebbronville agents are facilitating loads of narcotics through the 
Hebbronville  checkpoints in order to pay for gambling debts. The agents were identified as BPA  and  
SBPA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-BP-LAR-04721 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BORDER PATROL AGENT/0201 

Smuggling-Drugs/HEBBRONVILLE, JIM HOGG, TX DHS Employee 2/3/2014 3/21/2014 8/17/2016

201403731  On January 30, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from  
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA)   Laredo, TX, 
regarding Border Patrol Agent (BPA) nd Supervisory BPA (SBPA)  both 
assigned to Hebbronville, TX. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA)  Assistant Special Agent in Charge 
(ASAC eported that a cooperating source  alleged th

 The 
agents were identified as BP and  SBPA     201403732  On January 30, 2014, the Joint Intake 
Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant 
Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA   Laredo, TX, regarding Border Patrol Agent (BPA and 
Supervisory BPA (SBPA)  both assigned to Hebbronville, TX. Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA)  Assistant Special Agent in Charge (ASAC) reported that a 
cooperating source  alleged tha

 The agents were identified as BPA  and  
SBPA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I14-BP-TUC-04276 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  SBPA, Douglas, AZ. DHS Employee 1/16/2014 1/22/2014 2/17/2016

On January 16, 2014, at approximately 8:32 p.m., Douglas Border Patrol Agents were tracking three suspected 
UDAs when SBPA bserved a suspect lying on the ground and reached down in an attempt to 
grab his leg. The UDA rose to his feet and attempted to flee. SBPA ook the UDA to the ground and a 
struggle ensued. The UDA managed to get on top of SBPA during the struggle and SBP  drew 
his service weapon. The UDA grabbed SBPA  weapon and as they fought for the weapon, SBPA 

ired two rounds, striking the UDA. Two expended shell casings were recovered at the scene and all 
the rounds assigned to SBPA  have been accounted for. The Douglas Fire Department arrived on 
scene and called the time of death 9:13 p.m. Two UDAs were apprehended during the incident and 
transported to the Douglas Station for questioning and processing.

4.3.7 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Death Investigation Death investigation Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I14-BP-TUC-04276 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SBPA, Douglas, AZ. DHS Employee 1/16/2014 1/22/2014 2/17/2016

On January 16, 2014, at approximately 8:32 p.m., Douglas Border Patrol Agents were tracking three suspected 
UDAs when SBPA bserved a suspect lying on the ground and reached down in an attempt to 
grab his leg. The UDA rose to his feet and attempted to flee. SBPA ook the UDA to the ground and a 
struggle ensued. The UDA managed to get on top of SBPA during the struggle and SBP drew 
his service weapon. The UDA grabbed SBPA  weapon and as they fought for the weapon, SBPA 

ired two rounds, striking the UDA. Two expended shell casings were recovered at the scene and all 
the rounds assigned to SBPA  have been accounted for. The Douglas Fire Department arrived on 
scene and called the time of death 9:13 p.m. Two UDAs were apprehended during the incident and 
transported to the Douglas Station for questioning and processing.

4.3.7 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Death Investigation Death investigation Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I14-BP-TUC-07334 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 3/31/2014 4/1/2014 2/25/2016

On March 31, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from the  U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA) Investigative Operations  Division (IOD) 
Field Office in Tucson, AZ, regarding the intentional discharge of a service weapon  by Border Patrol Agent 
(BPA)  Three Points, AZ. BP ntentionally  discharged his weapon at a civilian vehicle 
that swerved towards him. BP discharged  five or six shots at the civilian vehicle. Additional 
documentation indicates BPA  sustained  injuries to both legs when the vehicle rammed the door of 
his government owned vehicle, causing  the door to strike his legs. Two subjects in the civilian vehicle were 
later determined to have  sustained gunshot wounds. A third individual had been in the civilian vehicle but 
sustained no  injuries.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I14-BP-TUC-16379 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2014 9/30/2014 1/19/2016

On September 26, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional  Responsibility, 
Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson) received information from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security 
Investigations, Tucson, AZ (HSI/Tucson) via electronic mail (e-mail)  detailing an allegation of misconduct, in 
which Tucson Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  is alleged to be involved with the illegal 
manufacture and distribution of child  pornography   This report documents receipt of the initial allegation

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 2252A
Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I14-BP-TUC-16379 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2014 9/30/2014 1/19/2016

On September 26, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional  Responsibility, 
Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson) received information from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security 
Investigations, Tucson, AZ (HSI/Tucson) via electronic mail (e-mail)  detailing an allegation of misconduct, in 
which Tucson Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  is alleged to be involved with the illegal 
manufacture and distribution of child  pornography   This report documents receipt of the initial allegation

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A
Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I14-CBP-BUF-05200 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown employee, Customs and Border Protection, Buffalo, NY DHS Employee 2/11/2014 2/19/2014 2/19/2016

On February 11, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  Investigative Analyst (IA)

, Williston, VT, in which an allegation of corruption is  lodged against an unidentified "CBP 
Supervisor" located in or around Buffalo, NY. IA   indicates an anonymous complainant alleges the 
"CBP Supervisor" has a daughter who is an  intern at an immigration law firm involved in "shady" dealing 
regarding aiding and abetting  unqualified aliens to enter the US on benefits to which they were not 
entitled", as well as  suspected document fraud.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205
Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I14-CBP-BUF-05848 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Customs and Border Protection, Buffalo, NY DHS Employee 2/27/2014 2/27/2014 1/25/2016

On February 24, 2014, Customs and Border Protection, Office of Internal Affairs, Buffalo, New  York (CBP/IA 
Buffalo) received information regarding Port of Buffalo CBPO alleged interest in and 
possible involvement with child pornography. The alleged activities of  CBPO  are a result of her 
purported relationship with former Supervisory CBPO  who recently began serving a 60 month 
sentence in federal prison as a result of being  convicted in the Western District of New York for possession of 
child pornography

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I14-CBP-DET-01874 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP DHS Employee 11/19/2013 11/19/2013 6/30/2016

SA eceived and allegation from a Department of Homeland Security employee alledgin
 Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Detroit, MI changed the value on a seized aircraft from $200,000. 

to a zero dollar bid.  The aircraft was sold at auction for $50,000.  Allegations were also made that may be 
directing seized property to known friends and/or associates.

1.5 Employee Corruption Kickbacks Kickbacks Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1031 Major Fraud Against the United States

I14-CBP-DET-12030 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBP, Saulte Ste. Marie, MI et al DHS Employee 7/9/2014 7/14/2014 7/7/2016

The complainant claims to have interviewed  U.S. citizen who was born in Iraq. The complainant 
claims tha old him information that DHS OIG might want to hear laims that he owns a comfort inn 
in Saulte Ste Marie, and  was the supervisor nded up firing  of the fact that he 
raped a customer. tated that  was hired as a U.S. Customs and Border Protection agent. 

 claims that  lied and disguised that he was fired from the inn in order to be hired by U.S. CBP. 
The complainant claims tha  was friends with a man named  who is incarcerated in Saulte 
Ste Marie for Explosive charges. The complainant claims that during his interview  claimed to have met 

hroug  The complainant claims that  is a major U.S. CBP agent in Chicago.  --  LSU 
Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: Saulte Ste Marie Customs and Borders 
Protection Office  LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: Unknown.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-CBP-DET-12030 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBP, Saulte Ste. Marie, MI et al DHS Employee 7/9/2014 7/14/2014 7/7/2016

The complainant claims to have interviewed  U.S. citizen who was born in Iraq. The complainant 
claims tha old him information that DHS OIG might want to hear laims that he owns a comfort inn 
in Saulte Ste Marie, and  was the supervisor nded up firing  of the fact that he 
raped a customer. tated that  was hired as a U.S. Customs and Border Protection agent. 

 claims that  lied and disguised that he was fired from the inn in order to be hired by U.S. CBP. 
The complainant claims tha as friends with a man named  who is incarcerated in Saulte 
Ste Marie for Explosive charges. The complainant claims that during his interview  claimed to have met 

hroug  The complainant claims that is a major U.S. CBP agent in Chicago.  --  LSU 
Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: Saulte Ste Marie Customs and Borders 
Protection Office  LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: Unknown.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I14-CBP-DRT-07878 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) SUPVY INVESTIGATIVE PROGRAM 
SPECLST/Unknown/MCALLEN, HIDALGO, TX

DHS Employee 4/11/2014 4/11/2014 5/23/2016
SPBA  alleged misconduct by CBP IA employe during  
investigation of wife. SBPA ubmitted the 6-page hand-written letter  outlining the 
allegations against  when  was interviewed by CBP IA RGV on  4/3/14.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-CBP-DRT-11273 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBP IA DSAC, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 6/19/2014 6/19/2014 5/19/2016

Based on an email from a CBP IA employee who requested Whistleblower Protection and any/all rights of 
protection from DHS,  ASAC, OIG, received an email alleging tha  Deputy 
Special Agent in Charge, CBP IA, El Paso, Texas, with other CBP IA managment employees, engaged in 
questionable promotion/hiring practices, nepotism, intimidation, and was involved in a sexual relationship 
while on duty which allegedly resulted in fathering the child of another CBP IA employee.  The original email 
with names of other CBP IA employees involved will be forwarded as an attachment to this complaint 
information.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: McAllen, Texas  Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Asst Special Agent in Charge  Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject ad miscellaneous identifiers of: Deputy Special Agent in Charge

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I14-CBP-ELC-06784 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBP Officer, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/20/2014 3/20/2014 1/22/2016

On March 17, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  El Centro, CA, regarding 
an unidentified CBPO at the Calexico West Port of Entry (POE)  who may be associated with and/or assisting 
an alien smuggler.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CBP-ELC-06784 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBP Officer, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/20/2014 3/20/2014 1/22/2016

On March 17, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received information from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  El Centro, CA, regarding 
an unidentified CBPO at the Calexico West Port of Entry (POE)  who may be associated with and/or assisting 
an alien smuggler.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I14-CBP-ELC-08204 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, Calexico, CA. DHS Employee 4/17/2014 4/18/2014 11/21/2016

ABUSE    On April 17, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attached 
photographs and synopsis from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) . Border  Patrol Agent (BPA)

, El Cajon, CA, in which he reported an allegation of physical  abuse. According to the information 
provided, on the aforementioned date , an undocumented alien (UDA), 
"claimed that while in custody, an unknown  CAX BPA struck him numerous times with a flashlight on his 
back. Mr.  also claims that the  unknown BPA tried to strike his face but blocked the hit with his 
hands."

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1510 Obstruction of Criminal Investigations

I14-CBP-ELC-08204 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, Calexico, CA. DHS Employee 4/17/2014 4/18/2014 11/21/2016

ABUSE    On April 17, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attached 
photographs and synopsis from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) . Border  Patrol Agent (BPA)

 El Cajon, CA, in which he reported an allegation of physical  abuse. According to the information 
provided, on the aforementioned date , an undocumented alien (UDA), 
"claimed that while in custody, an unknown  CAX BPA struck him numerous times with a flashlight on his 
back. Mr.  also claims that the  unknown BPA tried to strike his face but blocked the hit with his 
hands."

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1510 Obstruction of Criminal Investigations

I14-CBP-ELC-08204 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, Calexico, CA. DHS Employee 4/17/2014 4/18/2014 11/21/2016

ABUSE    On April 17, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attached 
photographs and synopsis from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) . Border  Patrol Agent (BPA)

 El Cajon, CA, in which he reported an allegation of physical  abuse. According to the information 
provided, on the aforementioned date , an undocumented alien (UDA), 
"claimed that while in custody, an unknown  CAX BPA struck him numerous times with a flashlight on his 
back. Mr  also claims that the  unknown BPA tried to strike his face but blocked the hit with his 
hands."

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1510 Obstruction of Criminal Investigations

I14-CBP-ELC-08204 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, Calexico, CA. DHS Employee 4/17/2014 4/18/2014 11/21/2016

ABUSE    On April 17, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attached 
photographs and synopsis from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) . Border  Patrol Agent (BPA)

, El Cajon, CA, in which he reported an allegation of physical  abuse. According to the information 
provided, on the aforementioned date , an undocumented alien (UDA), 
"claimed that while in custody, an unknown  CAX BPA struck him numerous times with a flashlight on his 
back. Mr.  also claims that the  unknown BPA tried to strike his face but blocked the hit with his 
hands."

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I14-CBP-ELC-10314 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 6/4/2014 6/4/2014 1/14/2016

On May 28, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, San  Francisco (IA/San 
Francisco) received information, via email, from U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement, Homeland 
Security Investigations, San Jose, CA (ICE HSI/San Jose), Special Agent  (SA)  The email and 
attachment (DEA 6a – Report of Investigation) provided  information alleging a corrupt Hispanic female CBP 
Officer (CBPO) working for a Mexican Drug  Trafficking Organization (DTO) at the Port of Entry (POE) in 
Calexico, CA (Mexicali, MX).

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CBP-ELC-10314 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 6/4/2014 6/4/2014 1/14/2016

On May 28, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, San  Francisco (IA/San 
Francisco) received information, via email, from U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement, Homeland 
Security Investigations, San Jose, CA (ICE HSI/San Jose), Special Agent  (SA)  The email and 
attachment (DEA 6a – Report of Investigation) provided  information alleging a corrupt Hispanic female CBP 
Officer (CBPO) working for a Mexican Drug  Trafficking Organization (DTO) at the Port of Entry (POE) in 
Calexico  CA (Mexicali  MX)

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I14-CBP-ELC-10314 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 6/4/2014 6/4/2014 1/14/2016

On May 28, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, San  Francisco (IA/San 
Francisco) received information, via email, from U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement, Homeland 
Security Investigations, San Jose, CA (ICE HSI/San Jose), Special Agent  (SA)  The email and 
attachment (DEA 6a – Report of Investigation) provided  information alleging a corrupt Hispanic female CBP 
Officer (CBPO) working for a Mexican Drug  Trafficking Organization (DTO) at the Port of Entry (POE) in 
Calexico, CA (Mexicali, MX).

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I14-CBP-ELC-13636 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Tech, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 8/7/2014 8/7/2014 1/11/2016

The DHS OIG received a complaint from  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), Imperial, CA, alleging that a 
Confidential Informant (CI)

      
stated that the CI

tated the CI  

 tated the CI
 --  Public website submitter 

indicated that the incident location was: Calexico Port of Entry, Calexico, CA  Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Border Patrol Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CBP-ELC-13636 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Tech, Calexico, CA
Alien (Not 
Detainee) 8/7/2014 8/7/2014 1/11/2016

The DHS OIG received a complaint from  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), Imperial, CA, alleging that a 
Confidential Informant (CI) told him

     
stated that the C

tated the CI told him

 tated the CI told him
  --  Public website submitter 

indicated that the incident location was: Calexico Port of Entry, Calexico, CA  Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Border Patrol Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CBP-ELC-13636 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Tech, Calexico, CA
Alien (Not 
Detainee) 8/7/2014 8/7/2014 1/11/2016

The DHS OIG received a complaint from  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), Imperial, CA, alleging that a 
Confidential Informant (CI) told him that

     
stated that the CI

tated the CI  

tated the CI
 --  Public website submitter 

indicated that the incident location was: Calexico Port of Entry, Calexico, CA  Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Border Patrol Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CBP-ELC-15031 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Border Patrol Agent, Indio, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/4/2014 9/4/2014 6/29/2016

On August 28, 2014, the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs , El  Centro, CA 
(IA/El Centro), received notification of a subject in custody making allegations against  an unknown Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA). According to , he had information 
regarding a BPA willing to assist and facilitate the smuggling of  undocumented aliens and narcotics near the 
Highway 111 BP checkpoint in the vicinity of Niland,  CA.  This report documents the relevant material 
received.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CBP-ELC-15031 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Border Patrol Agent, Indio, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/4/2014 9/4/2014 6/29/2016

On August 28, 2014, the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs , El  Centro, CA 
(IA/El Centro), received notification of a subject in custody making allegations against  an unknown Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA). According to , he had information 
regarding a BPA willing to assist and facilitate the smuggling of  undocumented aliens and narcotics near the 
Highway 111 BP checkpoint in the vicinity of Niland,  CA.  This report documents the relevant material 
received

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I14-CBP-HOU-13646 Houston, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 
Employee

DHS Employee 8/8/2014 8/8/2014 2/26/2016

***Please Place in the Houston Ribbon per ASAC  HOU****    The Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG) received information from a source of information (SOI) alleging that 

 Mission Support Specialist (MSS), Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Houston Seaport, 
Houston, Texas, may have received an unknown gratuity/kickback in exchange for steering all CBP Houston 
Seaport government owned vehicles (GOV???s) to Precision Auto Repair  La Porte, 
Texas, for all scheduled maintenance and major repairs.    According to the SOI, for the last three to four 
years, directed the vehicle maintenance officer to take all the CBP Houston Seaport GOVs to Precision 
Auto Repair, even though many had Ford factory warranties in affect.  Furthermore, the SOI stated that 

did not get second or third bids/quotes on any of the GOVs in need of repair.  When questioned by the 
SOI,  replied that Precision Auto Repair was the only repair facility that performed a ???21 point 
check??? during the oil changes.    The SOI told the DHS OIG that Precision Auto Repair keeps the GOVs for 
three to four days for oil changes.  As another example, the SOI also stated that one vehicle, under warranty, 
was taken to Precision Auto Repair with an airbag light indicator.  Precision Auto Repair changed the battery, 
solving the issue, at a cost of $200; however, the battery would have been covered under warranty at no cost 
to the government.   The SOI recommended that DHS OIG interview other vehicle maintenance officers in 
other units within CBP Houston Seaport to learn of more examples.      The SOI suspects an unknown 
relationship betwee  and the owner of Precision Auto Repair and a possible gratuity/kickback as a 
reason that teers all GOV work to that facility.

1.5 Employee Corruption Kickbacks Kickbacks Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201(c)(1)(b) Illegal Gratuities

I14-CBP-MIA-07644 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 
Employee, Nassau, Bahamas

DHS Employee 4/8/2014 4/8/2014 10/14/2016

The Miami Field Office received information from US Embassy- Nassau that Ms.  CBP Officer 
assigned to the Nassau Preclearance Facility, is in serious arrears in paying her rent in the amount of $8,000.  
This amount has been outstanding since 2011.  Ms  abandoned the property after her personal check for 
$4,000 was returned for insufficient funds, leaving behind considerable damage and utility bills amounting to 
$6,725.  She has also failed to make payments on two cars she purchased and is in arrears in paying the 
amount of $8,300.  As you are aware, Ms. is compensated for her rent and utilities through a Living 
Quarters Allowance (LQA), so this raises serious red flags about her fiscal responsibility and possible abuse of 
the LQA, by which she may have pocketed the funds and conerted them for her personal gain.      Additionally, 
contrary to Embassy policy, Ms.  subsequently signed a new lease, but failed to clear her lodging with 
the Regional Security Officer and, without Embassy knowledge, occupied a residence that does not meet 
Embassy security standards.  The property is owned b  a known drug trafficker in the Bahamas, 
with whom  my have a disreputable association.    US Embassy- Nassau has provided the MFO with 
copies of the lease, financial information, and photographs representative of the allegation.  Chief of Mission 
(CoM) requests assistance in the matter by DHS OIG.  A letter of No Confidence is in draft by the CoM.    
[NOTE  was previously investigated by MFO for a different allegation of disreputable association under 
I1300398]

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-CBP-MIA-08519 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, CBP, Miami, Florida DHS Employee 4/28/2014 4/28/2014 7/25/2016

On Monday, April 22, 2014, Duty Special Agent (SA)  Internal Affairs (IA),  Miami Field 
Office (MFO) was contacted by Customs and Border Protection Office of Field  Operations, Chie

who is assigned to Miami International Airport (MIA), Outbound  Enforcement, Miami, FL. Chief 
 called to advise he received information that on  Wednesday, April 9, 2014, an unknown CBPO was 

observed by two COPA employees board  COPA flight 431 at 1511 hours at MIA while the plane was at the 
gate

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I14-CBP-MIA-12800 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , FNU , FNU; CBP; MIAMI, FL FNU DHS Employee 7/21/2014 7/23/2014 5/19/2016

PHYSICAL ABUSE BY CBP OF CHILEAN NATIONAL AT AIRPORT    On November 15, 2012, CRCL received Spanish 
language email correspondence from egarding her treatment by CBP 
Officers at Miami International Airport (MIA) in Miami, Florida on August 27, 2012 and November 10, 2012.    
On August 27, 2012, Ms.  a citizen of Chile, flew from Santiago, Chile to meet her daughter at MIA.  
Ms. lleges that in secondary inspection, CBP Officers (CBPOs) falsely accused her of having worked 
in Miami before and of intending to work on her current visit to the United States.  Ms. denied those 
accusations.  She alleges that she was then searched in a separate room by two female CBPOs.  (Although she 
does not specify that she was strip-searched, she states that the officers examined her whole body, including 
her genitals.)  When Ms. complained to a supervisory CBPO (SCBPO), a Mr.  about her 
treatment, SCBPO allegedly was dismissive of her concerns and refused to provide her the names of 
the CBPOs whose names she had requested.  SCBPO allegedly told Ms. hat he could take 
her to a hospital for an x-ray in order to see if she was carrying anything internally and then deport her. Ms. 

was admitted into the U.S. with permission to stay until September 26, 2012.     On November 10, 2012 
at 6:20 a.m., Ms arrived at MIA from Chile.  An CBPO eportedly questioned her and took 
her cell phone.  He asked her if she was coming to work and she said no. He then allegedly said that she 
would not be released until she said where and when she would be working.  Ms.  questioned why 
she should say something that was not true.  At around 11:00 a.m., after waiting for several hours, Ms.
retrieved her cell phone that had been sitting on CBPO  desk, in order to try to notify her 
daughter of her whereabouts. She claims that six men including CBP  approached her and tried to 
seize her phone by force.  Ms  states that she refused and told them that she had the right to call an 
attorney.  A CBPO allegedly said that attorneys were not allowed and that she had no rights.  Ms
claims that three men took her phone by force and led her to another room where they handcuffed her and 
physically assaulted her.  Ms  claims that the CBPOs hit her face, held her arms tightly, and pushed 
her by both shoulders to make her sit down.  A Mr ame and ordered the officers to release Ms. 

  He called Ms.  daughter to confirm her story and cleared Ms o stay in the U.S. for 
the next three months. When her daughter saw Ms 's bruises, she called an ambulance.  Mr
was taken to a hospital for examination.    Thank you.     Compliance Branch  Office for Civil 
Rights and Civil Liberties  U.S. Department of Homeland Security  (202)357- (o)  

r@associates hq dhs gov

2.6.3 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Suspect Suspect Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I14-CBP-MIA-12800 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU , FNU; CBP; MIAMI, FL FNU DHS Employee 7/21/2014 7/23/2014 5/19/2016

PHYSICAL ABUSE BY CBP OF CHILEAN NATIONAL AT AIRPORT    On November 15, 2012, CRCL received Spanish 
language email correspondence from egarding her treatment by CBP 
Officers at Miami International Airport (MIA) in Miami, Florida on August 27, 2012 and November 10, 2012.    
On August 27, 2012, Ms  a citizen of Chile, flew from Santiago, Chile to meet her daughter at MIA.  
Ms. lleges that in secondary inspection, CBP Officers (CBPOs) falsely accused her of having worked 
in Miami before and of intending to work on her current visit to the United States.  Ms denied those 
accusations.  She alleges that she was then searched in a separate room by two female CBPOs.  (Although she 
does not specify that she was strip-searched, she states that the officers examined her whole body, including 
her genitals.)  When Ms. complained to a supervisory CBPO (SCBPO), a Mr.  about her 
treatment, SCBPO allegedly was dismissive of her concerns and refused to provide her the names of 
the CBPOs whose names she had requested.  SCBPO allegedly told Ms. hat he could take 
her to a hospital for an x-ray in order to see if she was carrying anything internally and then deport her. Ms. 

was admitted into the U.S. with permission to stay until September 26, 2012.     On November 10, 2012 
at 6:20 a.m., Ms. arrived at MIA from Chile.  An CBPO eportedly questioned her and took 
her cell phone.  He asked her if she was coming to work and she said no. He then allegedly said that she 
would not be released until she said where and when she would be working.  Ms.  questioned why 
she should say something that was not true.  At around 11:00 a.m., after waiting for several hours, Ms.
retrieved her cell phone that had been sitting on CBPO  desk, in order to try to notify her 
daughter of her whereabouts. She claims that six men including CB  approached her and tried to 
seize her phone by force.  Ms  states that she refused and told them that she had the right to call an 
attorney.  A CBPO allegedly said that attorneys were not allowed and that she had no rights.  Ms
claims that three men took her phone by force and led her to another room where they handcuffed her and 
physically assaulted her.  Ms.  claims that the CBPOs hit her face, held her arms tightly, and pushed 
her by both shoulders to make her sit down.  A Mr. Cespedes came and ordered the officers to release Ms. 

  He called Ms.  daughter to confirm her story and cleared Ms. o stay in the U.S. for 
the next three months. When her daughter saw Ms 's bruises, she called an ambulance.  Mr.
was taken to a hospital for examination.    Thank you.     Compliance Branch  Office for Civil 
Rights and Civil Liberties  U.S. Department of Homeland Security  (202)35 o)  

@associates hq dhs gov

2.6.3 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Suspect Suspect Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition Other Violation

I14-CBP-NYC-01735 New York, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP AG SPECLST/Unknown/NEWARK, ESSEX, NJ DHS Employee 11/15/2013 11/15/2013 9/16/2016

As a result of research conducted on Bank Secrecy Act data, IPD identified CBP Agriculture  Specialist 
 as being involved in an internet scam. Research by IPD found  that his wife and two 

children are the subjects of separate bank reporting for suspicious activities.  Furthermore, one child is an 
active importer who is believed to have imported counterfeit goods  into the United States

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1344 Bank Fraud

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I14-CBP-ORL-12915 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Florida Sensor Service, Jacksonville, FL DHS Contractor 7/25/2014 7/25/2014 3/15/2016

 Lead Criminal Investigator, DHS OIG, Orlando, FL, is submitting this allegation on information 
received from DHS OIG Audit.     owns Florida Sensor Services (FSS), which is located near the 
CBP Repair Center in a warehouse facility in Jacksonville, FL s also employed by DS2 as the Techncal 
Operations Manager, and DS2 is contracted by the CBP and specifically works at the aforementioned CBP 
Repair Center.  The CBP Repair Center and FSS both conduct the same business in that they repair Forward 
Looking Infrared cameras/equipment.     It is alleged that FSS is wrongfully using CBP equipment to fix  
Forward Looking Infrared cameras/equipment that are sent to the FSS by the general public.  It is further 
alleged that FSS might possibly using CBP parts/equipment to repair damaged cameras/equipment, which are 
sent to the FSS from the general public.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-CBP-ORL-12915 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Florida Sensor Service, Jacksonville, FL DHS Contractor 7/25/2014 7/25/2014 3/15/2016

 Lead Criminal Investigator, DHS OIG, Orlando, FL, is submitting this allegation on information 
received from DHS OIG Audit.     owns Florida Sensor Services (FSS), which is located near the 
CBP Repair Center in a warehouse facility in Jacksonville, FL. s also employed by DS2 as the Techncal 
Operations Manager, and DS2 is contracted by the CBP and specifically works at the aforementioned CBP 
Repair Center.  The CBP Repair Center and FSS both conduct the same business in that they repair Forward 
Looking Infrared cameras/equipment.     It is alleged that FSS is wrongfully using CBP equipment to fix  
Forward Looking Infrared cameras/equipment that are sent to the FSS by the general public.  It is further 
alleged that FSS might possibly using CBP parts/equipment to repair damaged cameras/equipment, which are 
sent to the FSS from the general public.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-CBP-ORL-14929 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Customs and Border Protection Officer; U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection; Laredo, TX; DHS Employee

General Public 9/2/2014 9/2/2014 1/13/2016

On August 28, 2014,  Border Patrol Agent, U.S. Border Patrol, Orlando, FL, assigned to the 
Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) Task Force, contacted the DHS OIG, Orlando, FL to report an incident 
involving , a civilian, who allegedly impersonated a DEA Agent.  According to
stated that he  has a friend in "Homeland Security" who provided with information regarding 
his  ex-wife's boyfriend, identified as  a civilian. id not provide any further 
information regarding the possible DHS employee

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I14-CBP-SND-07947 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP; El Cajon, CA DHS Employee 4/14/2014 4/15/2014 4/20/2016

On April 14, 2014, the DHS OIG received information from the United States Border Patrol (USBP), San Diego 
Sector Intelligence Unit (SIU), regarding an allegation that  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), USBP, El 
Cajon Border Patrol Station (ECJ), was assisting an unidentified alien smuggling organization smuggle 
undocumented aliens from the Republic of China and South Korea.  The allegation involved immediate family 
members and associates throughout the U.S.  The investigation was linked to a series of massage parlors 
operating throughout California that utilize UDAs from the Republic of China and South Korea for 
prostitution.   The investigation has been associated to other smuggling events that occurred in the El Cajon, 
California and Imperial Beach, California Border Patrol Station areas of responsibility.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I14-CBP-TUC-08845 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Automotive Mechanic, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 5/5/2014 5/8/2014 6/24/2016

On April 30, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attached 
information from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Program Analyst (PA)  
Tucson, AZ, in which he reported misconduct on the part of Automotive  Mechanic (AM)  
Tucson, AZ. It is reported that AM s taking parts off of  U.S. Border Patrol vehicles and selling them on 
eBay under user name hademes

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-CBP-TUC-08845 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Automotive Mechanic, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 5/5/2014 5/8/2014 6/24/2016

On April 30, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attached 
information from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Program Analyst (PA)  
Tucson, AZ, in which he reported misconduct on the part of Automotive  Mechanic (AM)  
Tucson, AZ. It is reported that AM s taking parts off of  U.S. Border Patrol vehicles and selling them on 
eBay under user name hademes.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-CBP-TUC-10262 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) BPA, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 6/4/2014 6/4/2014 2/19/2016

On May 30, 2014, at approximately 1437 hours, CBP Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  currently 
detailed to the Nogales, AZ, Border Patrol Station, was involved in a fatal  shooting incident in Green Valley, 
AZ. Preliminary information reflects BPA nd  another BPA were in pursuit of a suspicious brown 
Jeep Cherokee in the Green Valley area near  Camino Encanto. The pursuit was initiated after the suspect 
vehicle activated a sensor near the  I-19 checkpoint. The suspect vehicle went onto the Torres Blancas Golf 
Course and eventually  came to a halt in a wash near a pecan grove. The suspect, tentatively identified as Luis 
Arambula  32 yoa, of Tucson, AZ, fled on foot into the pecan grove. During the foot chase, BPA
fired multiple rounds at the suspect for reasons not yet known. The suspect was reported dead at  the scene. 
Reports reflect suspected marijuana bundles are visible inside the Jeep. The Pima  County Sheriff's Office has 
taken command of the scene.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I14-CBP-YUM-13981 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) ., CBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 8/13/2014 8/13/2014 3/24/2016

On July 9, 2014,  Special Agent (SA), U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP),  Office of Internal 
Affairs, Yuma, AZ (IA/Yuma), detailed to Department of Homeland Security  (DHS), Office of Inspector 
General, Yuma, AZ (OIG/Yuma), received an allegation of misconduct  regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)

 San Luis, AZ Port of Entry (SLU/POE).  Assistant Port Director (APD) eported 
that CBPO  conducted a  cursory 16 second inspection of a vehicle that was later discovered to 
have transported  methamphetamines

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I14-CBPOPR-AIG-12421 AIG Office
U.S. Customs and Border Protection Office of 
Professional Responsibility (DHS) *AIG CASE* FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/16/2014 8/26/2014 8/8/2016 *AIG CASE* 1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption

Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-CIS-DAL-09185 Dallas, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Dallas, TX State/Local Govt 
Employee

5/12/2014 5/12/2014 10/10/2016
****This allegation is field generated by the DHS OIG Dallas Field Office.****    A confidential source provided 
DHS OIG information tha 4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-CIS-ELC-10215 El Centro, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  USCIS, Imperial, CA DHS Employee 6/3/2014 7/31/2014 8/5/2016

It was nice talking to you. You don't need to be sorry of not remermering me because you see a lot of people 
per day  and you don't need to remember all, But as I explained to you on phone, I didn't come as a USCIS 
representative. I  helped the applicants by giving them a ride to your office, because they asked me to help 
them to get to your office to  find out of why they were not getting their EAD cards. And they were told that 
the clock was stopped by Houston  Asylum office. And your office couldn't do anything other than scheduling 
them for interview. These applicants don't  have anybody in this country who can help them. I also reminded 
you every scenario while we were in your office to  remember that we talked. You were given the papers 
including their phone numbers and they were promised that you  will call them within a week or two.  I also 
explained to you during our phone conversation, if I can talk as an employee of this agency with another 
USCIS  agency's employee in this case you of what the pubic/applicants are complaining about will help our 
agency to have a  good reputation in the eyes of the public we serve. I gave you an example of VA scandal and 
the USClS ABT asylum clock  lawsuit. I am not requesting about their status, but I am just reminding you about 
the promises that were made as a  colleague and as someone who wants our agency to have a good 
reputation by fulfilling our obligation by responding to  our customers or applicants on timely manner, If any 
lawsuit or congressional inquiry happens, and I don't bring it to  your attention or to the attention to USCIS 
Leadership, I will fill guilty about it.  Please I gave you their phone numbers and information that you asked 
far and  I don"t need to tell them to call your  office as you advise me to step away from It. But if this goes to 
far as it looks like, I will be standing on what I heard and  saw as I told you during in our phone conversation.  
Thank you and have a nice day

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - Reply 
Requested

Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-CIS-ELC-10215 El Centro, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  USCIS, Imperial, CA DHS Employee 6/3/2014 7/31/2014 8/5/2016

It was nice talking to you. You don't need to be sorry of not remermering me because you see a lot of people 
per day  and you don't need to remember all, But as I explained to you on phone, I didn't come as a USCIS 
representative. I  helped the applicants by giving them a ride to your office, because they asked me to help 
them to get to your office to  find out of why they were not getting their EAD cards. And they were told that 
the clock was stopped by Houston  Asylum office. And your office couldn't do anything other than scheduling 
them for interview. These applicants don't  have anybody in this country who can help them. I also reminded 
you every scenario while we were in your office to  remember that we talked. You were given the papers 
including their phone numbers and they were promised that you  will call them within a week or two.  I also 
explained to you during our phone conversation, if I can talk as an employee of this agency with another 
USCIS  agency's employee in this case you of what the pubic/applicants are complaining about will help our 
agency to have a  good reputation in the eyes of the public we serve. I gave you an example of VA scandal and 
the USClS ABT asylum clock  lawsuit. I am not requesting about their status, but I am just reminding you about 
the promises that were made as a  colleague and as someone who wants our agency to have a good 
reputation by fulfilling our obligation by responding to  our customers or applicants on timely manner, If any 
lawsuit or congressional inquiry happens, and I don't bring it to  your attention or to the attention to USCIS 
Leadership, I will fill guilty about it.  Please I gave you their phone numbers and information that you asked 
far and  I don"t need to tell them to call your  office as you advise me to step away from It. But if this goes to 
far as it looks like, I will be standing on what I heard and  saw as I told you during in our phone conversation.  
Thank you and have a nice day

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - Reply 
Requested

Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205
Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I14-CIS-LAX-07648 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) LNU, FNU; USCIS; Los Angeles, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/8/2014 4/8/2014 12/29/2016

Complaint Narrative: Possible internal corruption case of an employee. One of my employees, an FDNS  
Immigration Officer reports that she was approached to help with naturalization as the fee went up with 
insider  person at downtown Los Angeles. The request was rebuked by my employee. Immigration Officer 
may be a  witness.    Additional Information: This email is available upon request...cut and paste: From: 

Sent:  Monday, April 07,2014 10:15 AM To:  Subject: approach  Per your 
suggestion, I  would like to document an incident that took place last Friday 4/4114 @ around 10:30 am. A 
friend's sister who  opened her tourist/travel business last year invited me to dim sum last Friday. She 
mentions that she has a lot of  clients who may be interested in buying houses in Southern California. When I 
got there, I met three other  people: 1) Mr. who is a marketing personnel for Venetian Hotel & Casino 2) 
Mr. ?? (seriously no idea)  and his lady friend. Mr. ?? obviously is aware that I work for the "immigration". He 
said that he regularly went  to downtown Los Angeles to meet his contact who works "inside" the 
immigration. He said he used to meet him  downstairs at the lobby but now across the street in the parking 
lot because they installed the camera  everywhere. He said he had a lot of clients who did not speak a word 
of English but were able to naturalize.  Every time he had problem cases, he went to his "contact" and all his 
cases (except 3 pending) got approved.  His "contact" was very capable of getting things done. However, his 
contact increased the fee and now wanted  $40K. He was inquiring whether I would do the same thing for 
him. I told him I would not do this kind of stuff  "steal chicken pet dog" in Chinese. He pushed to say that he 
didn't ask me to do anything "illegal" myself but if  I know someone who is willing to "work together" 
blablablaa. Needless to say, the lunch was in-digestible.  Needless to say, I will not jeopardize my career for 
this nonsense. But I also want the management to be aware  ofthe internal integrity

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CIS-LAX-07648 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) LNU, FNU; USCIS; Los Angeles, CA General Public 4/8/2014 4/8/2014 12/29/2016

Complaint Narrative: Possible internal corruption case of an employee. One of my employees, an FDNS  
Immigration Officer reports that she was approached to help with naturalization as the fee went up with 
insider  person at downtown Los Angeles. The request was rebuked by my employee. Immigration Officer 
may be a  witness.    Additional Information: This email is available upon request...cut and paste: From: 

Sent:  Monday, April 07,2014 10:15 AM To:  Subject: approach  Per your 
suggestion, I  would like to document an incident that took place last Friday 4/4114 @ around 10:30 am. A 
friend's sister who  opened her tourist/travel business last year invited me to dim sum last Friday. She 
mentions that she has a lot of  clients who may be interested in buying houses in Southern California. When I 
got there, I met three other  people: 1) Mr. who is a marketing personnel for Venetian Hotel & Casino 2) 
Mr. ?? (seriously no idea)  and his lady friend. Mr. ?? obviously is aware that I work for the "immigration". He 
said that he regularly went  to downtown Los Angeles to meet his contact who works "inside" the 
immigration. He said he used to meet him  downstairs at the lobby but now across the street in the parking 
lot because they installed the camera  everywhere. He said he had a lot of clients who did not speak a word 
of English but were able to naturalize.  Every time he had problem cases, he went to his "contact" and all his 
cases (except 3 pending) got approved.  His "contact" was very capable of getting things done. However, his 
contact increased the fee and now wanted  $40K. He was inquiring whether I would do the same thing for 
him. I told him I would not do this kind of stuff  "steal chicken pet dog" in Chinese. He pushed to say that he 
didn't ask me to do anything "illegal" myself but if  I know someone who is willing to "work together" 
blablablaa. Needless to say, the lunch was in-digestible.  Needless to say, I will not jeopardize my career for 
this nonsense. But I also want the management to be aware  ofthe internal integrity. Lidai

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I14-CIS-MIA-14168 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Unknown, Non-DHS Employee, Key Biscayne, FL FNU  LNU 8/18/2014 8/19/2014 2/2/2016

On 08/12/2014 , former FDNS Supervisory Immigration Officer (SIO) forwarded me an email 
that he received from  Counsel.  Counsel ndicates in her email that this kind of scam 
was reported in Texas not too long ago.    Counsel s contact information is as follows:  WEISS, ALDEN & 
POLO, P.A., 1401 Brickell Avenue, Suite 300, Miami, FL 33131, Tel: 305-358-1500, @weisslawfirm.com, 
www.weissaldenandpolo.com.  The Subject line of Counse email reads, "AILA UPL committee 
reporting immigration tax scam." Counsel also explains in her email that she received an email from 
one of her AILA Members,  Counsel, indicating that her cleint was targeted by the scam.      
Counsel s contact information is as follows:   HARPER MEYER,201 South Biscayne Blvd., Suite 800, 
Miami, FL 33131, Tel: 305-577-3443, www.harpermeyer.com.    Counse  email reads as follows:  
"My client received his immigrant visa abroad about three months ago and then last week received his Green 
Card in the mail. About 39 minutes ago he received a phone call from a man stating that he was Office  

nd that my cleint still owed an immigration tax of $1,040. Officer  then told my client that if 
he did not pay the $1,040 between and tomorrow both his Green Card and his Social Security Number would 
be taken away, cancelled. My client explained he had paid the consular fees and tha his attorney had handled 
it for him, and that he was really surprised anything was owing. This 'Officer  told him that he 
needed to take care of this right away otherwise he would lose his Green Card and his SSN. My client then 
asked to who he should write the check and 'Officer  told him that he would only accept cash. He gave 
him a telephone number: 202-241 o that he could call back and make arrangements to pay, once he had 
the cash.  My client, tahnk God, called me and I called the number back right away. When I called a man with a 
heavy accent (Latin American maybe?) answered: Tax and Crime Investigations. I repeated the Tax and Crime 
Investigations back to the man and asked of what agency? and at that point he asked who I wanted to speak 
with. I told him that I wanted to speak to Officer   He put me on hold. In less than a minute another 
man with an accent said: Officer I asked whether it wa  and he said it wa  Then I 
explained that I was calling on behalf of my client at which point he hung up on me. I called back and no one 
answered my call.  I am really curious about how these people knew that my client had just received his 
Green Card and I am hopeful that it doesn't involve anyone employed or contracted by the USCIS. I am also 
furious thinking about the other people who they may call who may believe the Immigration Tax is real and 
pay these people the cash.  Please, please pass this along to anyone and everyone so that we can get the 
word out and stop the scam "    Victim's information is as follows: 

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1422 Fees in naturalization proceedings

I14-CIS-SND-07911 San Diego, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)
Unknown Employee, U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Service, San 
Diego  CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/5/2014 4/14/2014 3/9/2016

Information was received which suggested an unknown CIS employee is selling immigration and 
naturalization documents for $15 000 1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption

Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1028

Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Identification Documents and Information

I14-DHSHQ-NYC-12296 New York, NY U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)

L-3 Communications Holdings, Inc., DHS Contractor, New York, NY et al 7/14/2014 7/14/2014 6/20/2016

Mr. "Relator"), individually, and as Relator for the United States of America, the City of New 
York, the City of Los Angeles, the States of New York and California (including agencies and other political 
subdivisions), for this qui tam Complaint against  Defendant L-3 Communications Holdings, Inc. ("L3CH"), L-3 
Communications Corporation ("L3CC"), and L-3 Communications EOTech, Inc. ("EOTech"), and alleges:    This is 
an action to recover damages and civil penalties for the United States of America, New York City, the City of 
Los Angeles, and the States of New York and California (including agencies and political sitbdivisions) arising 
from false and/or fraudulent claims made,  used, presented, and/or caused to be made, used or presented by 
defendants L3CH, L3CC, and EOTech (collectively, "Defendants"), and/or their agents, employees and co-
conspirators, in violation of the Federal Civil False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq. ("the FCA"), the New 
York False Claims Act, New York State Finance Law, Ch. 56, Article VIII,§ 187, et seq. (the "NYFCA"), and the 
California False Claims Act, Cal. Gov't. Code § 12651 et seq. (the "CFCA"). Relator anticipates that, as 
additional victims of the fraud are identified, this Complaint is intended (and as permitted, will be amended) 
to include such claims under the FCA, and all analogous state and municipal false claims acts. The 
Govermnent victims of Defendants' fraud are referred to collectively as the "Real Parties."

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I14-FEMA-ATL-05631 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS), Gulf Coast of Alabama 2/24/2014 2/24/2014 5/27/2016

An FBI source

 
3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes

Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I14-FEMA-BLX-15858 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA, Mobile, AL
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 9/19/2014 10/10/2014 4/26/2016

Allegation  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information. 
Possible transportation fraud ring.    A review of FEMA records revealed that on 05/10/2014, FEMA inspection 
contractor  Inspector P65791 reported damage caused by flood and power 
surge/lightning. The inspector reported no damage to a 2003 Toyota Camry that he inspected. As a result, on 
05/12/2014, FEMA mailed  a letter to  Mobile, AL informing her that 
she was ineligible for housing assistance and on 07/24/2014 a second letter was sent to her at the same 
location informing her that she was not ineligible for personal property assistance and transportation 
assistance due to insufficient damage.    FEMA records reflect that on 07/23/2014, submitted 
an appeal letter claiming that her 2003 Toyota Camry LE suffered storm damage and a copy of an Alabama 
Department of Revenue Vehicle Registration for a 2003 Toyota Camry LE, VIN hat listed 
the owner as  Mobile, AL 36605. In addition, submitted an 
estimate in the amount of $6,832.00 from Wilbert Auto Shop, located at 1112 Springhill Avenue, Mobile, 
Alabama and an Insurance Declaration letter from the Affirmative Insurance Company, listing

 as the insured. As a result, on 07/30/2014 was awarded $6,600.00 for 
transportation assistance.    In the complaint that prompted this fraud review, a FEMA employee noted that 
there were 3 applicants that submitted vehicle repair estimates with the same information. A review of 

 appeal letter revealed the exact wording that 2 other applicants  Reg. ID # 41-
1605342/DR-4176 and  Reg. ID #39-4362135/DR-4176), used in their appeal letters requesting 
transportation assistance. In addition, the repair estimates that submitted were 
identical, to include the same handwritten paragraph that was allegedly written by 3 different mechanics at 3 
different auto shops.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-BLX-15859 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA, Mobile, AL
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 9/19/2014 10/10/2014 1/27/2016

Allegation  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information to 
receive transportation assistance.     FEMA records reflect that on 05/21/2014, ubmitted an 
appeal letter claiming that her vehicle suffered storm damage and the inspector did not properly inspect it. In 
addition she submitted a handwritten statement which was titled D&D Automotive, from someone who 
identified himself as  wrote that the 1994 Buick Road Master was totaled and could not be 
repaired. On 05/29/2014, submitted an Alabama Vehicle Registration for a 1994 Buick Road Master, VIN 

 along with a copy of an insurance identification card from the Safeway Insurance 
Company listing as the insured and the coverage term as 05/01/2014 to 07/01/2014. As a result, 
on 06/05/2014, FEMA sent a letter to , Mobile, AL notifying her that she was being 
denied transportation assistance because she did not have liability insurance at the time of the disaster.  
FEMA records reflect that on 06/04/2014,  submitted a letter claiming that prior to obtaining 
insurance coverage from the Safeway Insurance Company on 05/01/2014 she was insured by the Affirmative 
Insurance Company. ncluded a Declaration Form from the Affirmative Insurance Company that listed 

 as the insured for 1994 Buick Road Master, VIN with a coverage term of 
10/28/2013 to 03/30/2014. The Fraud Branch reviewed the Declaration form and it appeared that the dates for 
the coverage period had been altered.  On 06/06/2014 submitted a second appeal letter claiming that 
she had coverage until 04/29/2014. In addition,  submitted a new Declaration form showing a coverage 
term of 10/28/2013 to 04/30/2014 and a typed letter from someone who identified herself as  an 
insurance agent for the Affirmative Insurance Company claiming tha ad insurance coverage 
from10/28/2013 to 04/30/2014. As a result, on 06/13/2014,  was awarded $6,350.00 for transportation 
assistance.  UNCLASSIFIED/FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY  Fraud Case

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-BOS-09886 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

5/27/2014 7/22/2014 6/1/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud.    HURRICANE SANDY (4087)    SUBJECT: 
[DISASTER] DR 4087 REG# 411312503 APPLICANT USED THE SAME RENT RECEIPT AND 
ALTERED THE DATES IN ORDER TO RECEIVE RENTAL ASSISTANCE FOR THE MONTHS OF FEB, MARCH OF 2013    
DOC# 2874020   BRANFORD, CT    Landlord stated that 
applicant only rented from him no more than 3 months and only collected no more than $2600 in rent 
payments from the applicant

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-FEMA-BOS-09886 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

5/27/2014 7/22/2014 6/1/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud.    HURRICANE SANDY (4087)    SUBJECT: 
[DISASTER] DR 4087 REG# 411312503 APPLICANT USED THE SAME RENT RECEIPT AND 
ALTERED THE DATES IN ORDER TO RECEIVE RENTAL ASSISTANCE FOR THE MONTHS OF FEB, MARCH OF 2013    
DOC# 2874020   BRANFORD, C    Landlord stated that 
applicant only rented from him no more than 3 months and only collected no more than $2600 in rent 
payments from the applicant.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-BOS-09886 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

5/27/2014 7/22/2014 6/1/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud.    HURRICANE SANDY (4087)    SUBJECT: 
[DISASTER] DR 4087 REG# 411312503 APPLICANT USED THE SAME RENT RECEIPT AND 
ALTERED THE DATES IN ORDER TO RECEIVE RENTAL ASSISTANCE FOR THE MONTHS OF FEB, MARCH OF 2013    
DOC# 2874020   BRANFORD, C    Landlord stated that 
applicant only rented from him no more than 3 months and only collected no more than $2600 in rent 
payments from the applicant.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I14-FEMA-CHI-01542 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/5/2013 10/2/2014 10/20/2016

FEMA FPIB validated complaint and found indications of fraud      ILLINOIS STORMS/FLOOD DR 4116 and DR 
1935    applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance after Illinois Severe Storms, Straight-
Line Winds and Flooding DR-4116, and Illinois Severe Storms and Flooding DR-1935 by submitting false rental 
documentation.    According to FEMA records,  applied for FEMA disaster assistance on 
06/25/2013 and claimed to rent the damaged address  Chicago, IL 60653. The home was 
damaged during Illinois Severe Storms and Flooding DR-4116, which struck on 04/23/2013  was issued 
Registration ID #45-0457269 DR-4116 and requested personal property and rental assistance based on her 
claim of damages caused by the storm.    On 11/13/2013, in an effort to determine i esided at the 
damaged address and received government subsidized housing assistance that was owned by the Chicago 
Housing Authority, the Fraud Branch contacted the Office of the Inspector General for the Chicago Housing 
Authority via telephone number  Investigator tated that was a 
traditional public housing resident (not a Section 8 Voucher Holder) wherein she would pay rent directly to 
the Chicago Housing Authority (CHA). The rent was based on income and family composition. M  stated 
that if  residence was damaged and an emergency move was required, the Chicago Housing Authority 
(CHA) would conduct an inspection of the residence to verify the damage and relocate the resident at no 
expense. CHA records confirmed that esided at the following government subsidized housing locations 
owned by the Chicago Housing Authority:

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-CHI-01542 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/5/2013 10/2/2014 10/20/2016

FEMA FPIB validated complaint and found indications of fraud      ILLINOIS STORMS/FLOOD DR 4116 and DR 
1935     applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance after Illinois Severe Storms, Straight-
Line Winds and Flooding DR-4116, and Illinois Severe Storms and Flooding DR-1935 by submitting false rental 
documentation.    According to FEMA records,  applied for FEMA disaster assistance on 
06/25/2013 and claimed to rent the damaged address  Chicago, IL 60653. The home was 
damaged during Illinois Severe Storms and Flooding DR-4116, which struck on 04/23/2013  was issued 
Registration ID #45-0457269 DR-4116 and requested personal property and rental assistance based on her 
claim of damages caused by the storm.    On 11/13/2013, in an effort to determine if esided at the 
damaged address and received government subsidized housing assistance that was owned by the Chicago 
Housing Authority, the Fraud Branch contacted the Office of the Inspector General for the Chicago Housing 
Authority via telephone number  Investigator tated that was a 
traditional public housing resident (not a Section 8 Voucher Holder) wherein she would pay rent directly to 
the Chicago Housing Authority (CHA). The rent was based on income and family composition. Mr.  stated 
that i  residence was damaged and an emergency move was required, the Chicago Housing Authority 
(CHA) would conduct an inspection of the residence to verify the damage and relocate the resident at no 
expense. CHA records confirmed that Ellis resided at the following government subsidized housing locations 
owned by the Chicago Housing Authority:

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-CHI-02767 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/9/2013 11/13/2014 1/22/2016

Please review, FEMA FPIB complaint validation resulted in indicators of fraud.    Allegation:
applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for Illinois Severe Storms /DR-  4116, while receiving 
federally funded housing assistance from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Section 8 assistance program.    This allegation was reviewed and there was no indication of fraud for DR 4116; 
however, in the course of the validation, there were fraud indicators regarding the assistance that Eaton 
received for DR 1935 and DR 1800 totaling over $48,000.     See Supporting Docs for further information

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I14-FEMA-CHI-03492 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/6/2014 1/7/2014 4/14/2016

FEMA FPIB validated complaint and found indications of fraud.    Applicant has received assistance from DR 
4116, 1935 and 1800 to total: $45,480.00   pplied for and received FEMA disaster assistance 
by providing false information.  received duplicate benefits from FEMA and State Housing Assistance.    
On 12/16/2013, in an effort to determine whether Potts received Federal housing benefits in addition to 
FEMA disaster assistance, the Fraud Branch contacted Management Analyst, of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Cook (IL). According to government housing records maintained by the Housing 
Authority of the County of Cook (IL) and provided by Richmond,  received federally subsidized housing 
assistance while she,  resided at  Des Plaines, IL 60016 from 12/01/2001 to 
01/31/2013 and 8809 W Golf Rd, Niles, IL 60714 from 02/01/2013 to present. According to government records 
maintained by the Housing Authority of the County of Cook (IL), Potts received $1,274.00 rental assistance for 
rent at  Des Plaines, IL 60016 from 2007 to 01/31/2013 and $958.00 rental assistance for rent 
at L 60714 beginning 02/01/2013 to present. lso provided information that 
the landlord for  Des Plaines, IL 60016 was kokie, IL 
60076, Ph. and the landlord for  Niles, IL 60714 was Sh

 Hoffman Estates, IL 60169, Ph.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-CHI-03492 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/6/2014 1/7/2014 4/14/2016

FEMA FPIB validated complaint and found indications of fraud.    Applicant has received assistance from DR 
4116, 1935 and 1800 to total: $45,480.00   pplied for and received FEMA disaster assistance 
by providing false information.  received duplicate benefits from FEMA and State Housing Assistance.    
On 12/16/2013, in an effort to determine whethe eceived Federal housing benefits in addition to 
FEMA disaster assistance, the Fraud Branch contacted Management Analyst, of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Cook (IL). According to government housing records maintained by the Housing 
Authority of the County of Cook (IL) and provided by  received federally subsidized housing 
assistance while she,  resided at  Des Plaines, IL 60016 from 12/01/2001 to 
01/31/2013 and  Niles, IL 60714 from 02/01/2013 to present. According to government records 
maintained by the Housing Authority of the County of Cook (IL),  received $1,274.00 rental assistance for 
rent at Des Plaines, IL 60016 from 2007 to 01/31/2013 and $958.00 rental assistance for rent 
at  Niles, IL 60714 beginning 02/01/2013 to present. lso provided information that 
the landlord for  Des Plaines, IL 60016 was , Skokie, IL 
60076, Ph. and the landlord for , Niles, IL 60714 was Shankerbhai Patel, 364 
Oaktree Ct, Hoffman Estates, IL 60169, Ph. #847-414-0060.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-CHI-13311 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/1/2014 11/13/2014 9/7/2016

FEMA FPIB validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 1935 and DR 4116.    
Applicant applied for and received both FEMA and HUD benefits.    During a telephone interview with the 
Fraud Branch on 01/10/2014, the owner of the damaged dwelling, , reported 
that Spain had been residing at the damaged address for approximately 10 years and receiving HUD Section 8 
assistance. never relocated after DR-1935.    On 01/10/2014, in an effort to verify s occupancy of 

., Chicago, IL 60609 at the time of the disaster, the Fraud Branch contacted  
wife of  at telephone numbe . The following is a synopsis of the 

interview:  • as been renting and residing at , Chicago, IL 60609 for approximately 
10 years and still currently resides at that location.  • Her rent has always been subsidized through the HUD 
Section 8 program. id not have her records to provide the exact dates or amount paid by HUD.  • 

has never relocated for any reason since renting the property and definitely not for any disaster related 
damages.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-CHI-14667 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS Employee, Cook County, IL General Public 8/26/2014 10/6/2014 7/6/2016

As part of an ongoing effort between DHS-OIG, HUD-OIG, and the Chicago Housing Authority OIG
was identified as simultaneously receiving monthly Section 8 benefits from the CHA while also 

receiving FEMA rental assistance benefits for FEMA Disasters 1935 and 4116.  Investigation has shown that 
provided false information to FEMA while also concealing her status as a Section 8 beneficiary from 

FEMA in order to receive rental assistance funds which she was not otherwise eligible to receive.  fraud 
spans the approximate timeframe of October 2010 to November 2013, during which time she received an 
approximate total of $18,558 in FEMA rental assistance funds.    As of August 26, 2014,  current status is 
as follows:    - In a letter dated May 7, 2014, the CHA informed  that her Section 8 voucher would be 
terminated pursuant to the results of an informal hearing convened on April 10, 2014.  This hearing was held 
before an impartial hearing officer, and the CHA bore the burden of proving their allegations against Lucas by 
preponderance of the evidence.    -  was indicted in the State of Illinois, Circuit Court of Cook County on 
August 13, 2014.  A notice to appear was mailed to Lucas at her last known address, however she failed to 
appear for her August 25, 2014 arraignment and a warrant was issued for her arrest.     Co-case agents are HUD-
OIG Special Agen and CHA-OIG Investigator   --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Cook County, IL.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-CHI-14667 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS Employee, Cook County, IL General Public 8/26/2014 10/6/2014 7/6/2016

As part of an ongoing effort between DHS-OIG, HUD-OIG, and the Chicago Housing Authority OIG
was identified as simultaneously receiving monthly Section 8 benefits from the CHA while also 

receiving FEMA rental assistance benefits for FEMA Disasters 1935 and 4116.  Investigation has shown that 
provided false information to FEMA while also concealing her status as a Section 8 beneficiary from 

FEMA in order to receive rental assistance funds which she was not otherwise eligible to receive.  fraud 
spans the approximate timeframe of October 2010 to November 2013, during which time she received an 
approximate total of $18,558 in FEMA rental assistance funds.    As of August 26, 2014  current status is 
as follows:    - In a letter dated May 7, 2014, the CHA informe  that her Section 8 voucher would be 
terminated pursuant to the results of an informal hearing convened on April 10, 2014.  This hearing was held 
before an impartial hearing officer, and the CHA bore the burden of proving their allegations against  by 
preponderance of the evidence.    - as indicted in the State of Illinois, Circuit Court of Cook County on 
August 13, 2014.  A notice to appear was mailed to  at her last known address, however she failed to 
appear for her August 25, 2014 arraignment and a warrant was issued for her arrest.     Co-case agents are HUD-
OIG Special Agen and CHA-OIG Investigator   --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Cook County, IL.

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-DAL-00582 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Grant Applicant 10/16/2013 10/16/2013 5/12/2016

A review has been completed an your Hazard Mitigation grant file in order to confirm you received the 
correct amount of grant funds. The grant requires that the homeowner meet specific requirements listed in 
the Alternative Payment Option Affidavit and agreement. Failure to satisfy the conditions listed in the 
Alterative Payment Option Affidavit and Agreement and the OGD-DIZU HMGP Covenant will place you in 
default of this agreement. In hopes that your input may prevent the need to seek a return of grant funds, 
please review the information below for accuracy and provide additional documentation as necessary.  Our 
review has determined that the following apply to your grant(s)  - Homeowner did not comply with all the 
FMGP regulations set forth by OCD-DRU, GOHSEP and FEMA.    ALLEGATION:  A rreview of documents provided 
by Louisiana Department of the Office of Community Development revealed that
received FEMA funding in excess of $54,000.00 for home elevation related expenses.  Information provided 
by OCD further revealed tha  accepted HMGP funding and did not have work on her residence 
completed.  GMI

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-DAL-00582 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Grant Applicant 10/16/2013 10/16/2013 5/12/2016

A review has been completed an your Hazard Mitigation grant file in order to confirm you received the 
correct amount of grant funds. The grant requires that the homeowner meet specific requirements listed in 
the Alternative Payment Option Affidavit and agreement. Failure to satisfy the conditions listed in the 
Alterative Payment Option Affidavit and Agreement and the OGD-DIZU HMGP Covenant will place you in 
default of this agreement. In hopes that your input may prevent the need to seek a return of grant funds, 
please review the information below for accuracy and provide additional documentation as necessary.  Our 
review has determined that the following apply to your grant(s)  - Homeowner did not comply with all the 
FMGP regulations set forth by OCD-DRU, GOHSEP and FEMA.    ALLEGATION:  A rreview of documents provided 
by Louisiana Department of the Office of Community Development revealed that
received FEMA funding in excess of $54,000.00 for home elevation related expenses.  Information provided 
by OCD further revealed tha  accepted HMGP funding and did not have work on her residence 
completed.  GMI

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-DAL-00582 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Grant Applicant 10/16/2013 10/16/2013 5/12/2016

A review has been completed an your Hazard Mitigation grant file in order to confirm you received the 
correct amount of grant funds. The grant requires that the homeowner meet specific requirements listed in 
the Alternative Payment Option Affidavit and agreement. Failure to satisfy the conditions listed in the 
Alterative Payment Option Affidavit and Agreement and the OGD-DIZU HMGP Covenant will place you in 
default of this agreement. In hopes that your input may prevent the need to seek a return of grant funds, 
please review the information below for accuracy and provide additional documentation as necessary.  Our 
review has determined that the following apply to your grant(s)  - Homeowner did not comply with all the 
FMGP regulations set forth by OCD-DRU, GOHSEP and FEMA.    ALLEGATION:  A rreview of documents provided 
by Louisiana Department of the Office of Community Development revealed that
received FEMA funding in excess of $54,000.00 for home elevation related expenses.  Information provided 
by OCD further revealed that  accepted HMGP funding and did not have work on her residence 
completed.  GMI

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-DAL-09468 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 5/16/2014 8/1/2014 12/22/2016

ARKANSAS STORM/FLOODING     THE COMPLAINT STATES THAT THE SUBJECT JESSICA WHITEON APPLIED FOR 
FEMA ASSISTANCE DURING THE TORNADO THAT HIT, MAYFLOWER, ARKANSAS ON MARCH 29. COMPLAINT 
STATES THAT WHITEON DID NOT LIVE IN ANY HOME THAT WAS DAMAGE DURING THIS TORNADO. THE 
COMPLAINT STATES THAT WHITEON HAS NOT RECIEVED THE MONEY YET FROM FEMA

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-DET-10559 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Emergency Disaster Services 6/10/2014 6/10/2014 2/17/2016

 owner of Emergency Disaster Services (EDS), provided false information in connection to a 
project worksheet submitted to FEMA for reimbursement purposes.  EDS was not under contract to provide 
emergency services during the tornado that struck West Liberty, KY on March 2, 2012.  Even so, EDS submitted 
invoices to FEMA in an attempt to secure reimbursement.  The invoices submitted contained grossly inflated 
prices for the services which were not contracted in the first place.      EDS has provided services in multiple 
venues, possibly as far back as 2005, and may have submitted fraudulent invoices to FEMA during those 
disasters as well.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-DET-13840 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Shelbyville Fire Department and Theresa Augustine 8/12/2014 8/15/2014 11/15/2016

On August 6, 2014, the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program Office (DHS/FEMA) received a whistleblower 
complaint from  concerning ongoing acts of fraud committed in 3 different AFG grants. The 
grants in question were awarded in both FY 2011 and FY 2012.     The AFG program office has concerns that the 
leadership of the Fire Department has willfully misused AFG grant funds and knowingly used Federal grant 
funds to acquire products or services that are clearly unallowable and then acted in such a manner to silence 
the complainant. Ms.  has since been separated from the department. In a phone conversation she 
claims to have access to some supporting documents that show the department knowingly misused AFG grant 
funds.     The AFG Program Office seeks either OIG or FEMA OCSO assistance in investigating if fraud was in 
fact committed and to seek recoupment if so. AFG Program Office staff will provide whatever material 
support is required to assist in the investigation.     -----------------  From:
[mailto @gmail.com]   Sent: Wednesday, August 06, 2014 2:29 PM  To: Subject: Re: 
Abuse of funds     I am responding to the grants:    EMW-2012-FO-00483  EMW-2012-FF-00504  EMW-
2011-FF-00451    Somewhat sizable grants, with my name all over them.  I brought my concerns to the Mayor 
of Shelbyville, KY and have since been locked out the grant portal.  With that being said,  I resigned my 
position today as the Retention and Recruitment Coordinator and grants manager. In the wake of a hostile 
work environment for addressing my concerns as to where and how the funds were being used.     EMW-2012-
FO-00483 - Our airpack grant, it has a 1200.00 credit via an invoice overpaid.  I was told to let that ride, close 
out the grant and it could be spent later.      EMW-2012-FF-00504 - The physical paid for were not only that of 
the Volunteer but of paid staff also.    EMW = 2011-FF-00451 - The turnout gear that was supposed to be 
purchased for volunteer staff, was ordered but given to the paid staff instead of the newly recruited 
volunteers.  This was accomplished using the physicals of a combination of the volunteers and paid staff.      I 
have very little input on how the funds are spent, but as an (former employee) the end result of the 
expenditures will come back to me and then my former boss who just recently retired " .      
My concerns have not been met by the mayor " @shelbyvillekentucky.com " though he 
verbally expressed an audit, I can see this being simply swept aside to protect others.       Unfortunately I have 
been restricted from entering the department, though I have some documentation supporting my 
allegations.    Not certain what to do from here.    Sincerely,       ---------------  --  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Shelbyville Fire Department  Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that 

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666

Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I14-FEMA-DET-13840 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Shelbyville Fire Department and Theresa Augustine Grant Applicant 8/12/2014 8/15/2014 11/15/2016

On August 6, 2014, the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program Office (DHS/FEMA) received a whistleblower 
complaint from  concerning ongoing acts of fraud committed in 3 different AFG grants. The 
grants in question were awarded in both FY 2011 and FY 2012.     The AFG program office has concerns that the 
leadership of the Fire Department has willfully misused AFG grant funds and knowingly used Federal grant 
funds to acquire products or services that are clearly unallowable and then acted in such a manner to silence 
the complainant. Ms.  has since been separated from the department. In a phone conversation she 
claims to have access to some supporting documents that show the department knowingly misused AFG grant 
funds.     The AFG Program Office seeks either OIG or FEMA OCSO assistance in investigating if fraud was in 
fact committed and to seek recoupment if so. AFG Program Office staff will provide whatever material 
support is required to assist in the investigation.     -----------------  From:
[mailto @gmail.com]   Sent: Wednesday, August 06, 2014 2:29 PM  To: Subject: Re: 
Abuse of funds     I am responding to the grants:    EMW-2012-FO-00483  EMW-2012-FF-00504  EMW-
2011-FF-00451    Somewhat sizable grants, with my name all over them.  I brought my concerns to the Mayor 
of Shelbyville, KY and have since been locked out the grant portal.  With that being said,  I resigned my 
position today as the Retention and Recruitment Coordinator and grants manager. In the wake of a hostile 
work environment for addressing my concerns as to where and how the funds were being used.     EMW-2012-
FO-00483 - Our airpack grant, it has a 1200.00 credit via an invoice overpaid.  I was told to let that ride, close 
out the grant and it could be spent later.      EMW-2012-FF-00504 - The physical paid for were not only that of 
the Volunteer but of paid staff also.    EMW = 2011-FF-00451 - The turnout gear that was supposed to be 
purchased for volunteer staff, was ordered but given to the paid staff instead of the newly recruited 
volunteers.  This was accomplished using the physicals of a combination of the volunteers and paid staff.      I 
have very little input on how the funds are spent, but as an (former employee) the end result of the 
expenditures will come back to me and then my former boss who just recently retired .      
My concerns have not been met by the mayor " @shelbyvillekentucky.com " though he 
verbally expressed an audit, I can see this being simply swept aside to protect others.       Unfortunately I have 
been restricted from entering the department, though I have some documentation supporting my 
allegations.    Not certain what to do from here.    Sincerely,       ---------------  --  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Shelbyville Fire Department  Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that 

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-DET-13840 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Shelbyville Fire Department and Theresa Augustine Grant Applicant 8/12/2014 8/15/2014 11/15/2016

On August 6, 2014, the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program Office (DHS/FEMA) received a whistleblower 
complaint from  concerning ongoing acts of fraud committed in 3 different AFG grants. The 
grants in question were awarded in both FY 2011 and FY 2012.     The AFG program office has concerns that the 
leadership of the Fire Department has willfully misused AFG grant funds and knowingly used Federal grant 
funds to acquire products or services that are clearly unallowable and then acted in such a manner to silence 
the complainant. Ms.  has since been separated from the department. In a phone conversation she 
claims to have access to some supporting documents that show the department knowingly misused AFG grant 
funds.     The AFG Program Office seeks either OIG or FEMA OCSO assistance in investigating if fraud was in 
fact committed and to seek recoupment if so. AFG Program Office staff will provide whatever material 
support is required to assist in the investigation.     -----------------  From:
[ @gmail.com]   Sent: Wednesday, August 06, 2014 2:29 PM  To: Subject: Re: 
Abuse of funds   ,    I am responding to the grants:    EMW-2012-FO-00483  EMW-2012-FF-00504  EMW-
2011-FF-00451    Somewhat sizable grants, with my name all over them.  I brought my concerns to the Mayor 
of Shelbyville, KY and have since been locked out the grant portal.  With that being said,  I resigned my 
position today as the Retention and Recruitment Coordinator and grants manager. In the wake of a hostile 
work environment for addressing my concerns as to where and how the funds were being used.     EMW-2012-
FO-00483 - Our airpack grant, it has a 1200.00 credit via an invoice overpaid.  I was told to let that ride, close 
out the grant and it could be spent later.      EMW-2012-FF-00504 - The physical paid for were not only that of 
the Volunteer but of paid staff also.    EMW = 2011-FF-00451 - The turnout gear that was supposed to be 
purchased for volunteer staff, was ordered but given to the paid staff instead of the newly recruited 
volunteers.  This was accomplished using the physicals of a combination of the volunteers and paid staff.      I 
have very little input on how the funds are spent, but as an (former employee) the end result of the 
expenditures will come back to me and then my former boss who just recently retired " .      
My concerns have not been met by the mayor " @shelbyvillekentucky.com " though he 
verbally expressed an audit, I can see this being simply swept aside to protect others.       Unfortunately I have 
been restricted from entering the department, though I have some documentation supporting my 
allegations.    Not certain what to do from here.    Sincerely,       ---------------  --  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Shelbyville Fire Department  Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that 

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-NEO-00887 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/22/2013 12/18/2013 4/27/2016

Complainant, a FEMA employee, is reporting the subject for fraudulently submitting rent and lease receipts. 
Subject  has been receiving rental assistance for approximately a year. Subject currently lives at th

,  where she is the owner. The subject has so far collected almost $20,000 in rental assistance. 
The subject is claiming  the property at  Harvey, LA fraudulently as her residence. The 
individual signing off on the  lease is  who is not the owner of the property according to the 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor. The real  owner of the property, again according to 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor, is   Subject's FEMA registration ID is 393823681.  Subject 
applied in Hurricane's Katrina and Gustav for different addresses. In Gustav the subject lived in Westwego,  
LA. The subject didn't receive any assistance for Gustay. The subject received a couple thousand dollars in 
Katrina.  Listed as the subject's home phone during disaster:

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NEO-00887 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/22/2013 12/18/2013 4/27/2016

Complainant, a FEMA employee, is reporting the subject for fraudulently submitting rent and lease receipts. 
Subject  has been receiving rental assistance for approximately a year. Subject currently lives at the

,  where she is the owner. The subject has so far collected almost $20,000 in rental assistance. 
The subject is claiming  the property at  Harvey, LA fraudulently as her residence. The 
individual signing off on the  lease is  who is not the owner of the property according to the 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor. The real  owner of the property, again according to 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor, is   Subject's FEMA registration ID is 393823681.  Subject 
applied in Hurricane's Katrina and Gustav for different addresses. In Gustav the subject lived in Westwego,  
LA. The subject didn't receive any assistance for Gustay. The subject received a couple thousand dollars in 
Katrina.  Listed as the subject's home phone during disaster: .

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NEO-00887 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/22/2013 12/18/2013 4/27/2016

Complainant, a FEMA employee, is reporting the subject for fraudulently submitting rent and lease receipts. 
Subject  has been receiving rental assistance for approximately a year. Subject currently lives at the

  where she is the owner. The subject has so far collected almost $20,000 in rental assistance. 
The subject is claiming  the property at  Harvey, LA fraudulently as her residence. The 
individual signing off on the  lease is  who is not the owner of the property according to the 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor. The real  owner of the property, again according to 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor, is   Subject's FEMA registration ID is 393823681.  Subject 
applied in Hurricane's Katrina and Gustav for different addresses. In Gustav the subject lived in Westwego,  
LA. The subject didn't receive any assistance for Gustay. The subject received a couple thousand dollars in 
Katrina.  Listed as the subject's home phone during disaster:

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-NEO-00887 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS employee General Public 10/22/2013 12/18/2013 4/27/2016

Complainant, a FEMA employee, is reporting the subject for fraudulently submitting rent and lease receipts. 
Subject  has been receiving rental assistance for approximately a year. Subject currently lives at the

where she is the owner. The subject has so far collected almost $20,000 in rental assistance. 
The subject is claiming  the property at  Harvey, LA fraudulently as her residence. The 
individual signing off on the  lease is Terri Sanders, who is not the owner of the property according to the 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor. The real  owner of the property, again according to 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor, is   Subject's FEMA registration ID is 393823681.  Subject 
applied in Hurricane's Katrina and Gustav for different addresses. In Gustav the subject lived in Westwego,  
LA. The subject didn't receive any assistance for Gustay. The subject received a couple thousand dollars in 
Katrina.  Listed as the subject's home phone during disaster:

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NEO-00887 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS employee General Public 10/22/2013 12/18/2013 4/27/2016

Complainant, a FEMA employee, is reporting the subject for fraudulently submitting rent and lease receipts. 
Subject  has been receiving rental assistance for approximately a year. Subject currently lives at th

,  where she is the owner. The subject has so far collected almost $20,000 in rental assistance. 
The subject is claiming  the property at  Harvey, LA fraudulently as her residence. The 
individual signing off on the  lease is  who is not the owner of the property according to the 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor. The real  owner of the property, again according to 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor, is   Subject's FEMA registration ID is 393823681.  Subject 
applied in Hurricane's Katrina and Gustav for different addresses. In Gustav the subject lived in Westwego,  
LA. The subject didn't receive any assistance for Gustay. The subject received a couple thousand dollars in 
Katrina.  Listed as the subject's home phone during disaster: .

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NEO-00887 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non-DHS employee General Public 10/22/2013 12/18/2013 4/27/2016

Complainant, a FEMA employee, is reporting the subject for fraudulently submitting rent and lease receipts. 
Subject  has been receiving rental assistance for approximately a year. Subject currently lives at the

,  where she is the owner. The subject has so far collected almost $20,000 in rental assistance. 
The subject is claiming  the property at  Harvey, LA fraudulently as her residence. The 
individual signing off on the  lease is  who is not the owner of the property according to the 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor. The real  owner of the property, again according to 
Jefferson Parish Tax Assessor, is   Subject's FEMA registration ID is 393823681.  Subject 
applied in Hurricane's Katrina and Gustav for different addresses. In Gustav the subject lived in Westwego,  
LA. The subject didn't receive any assistance for Gustay. The subject received a couple thousand dollars in 
Katrina.  Listed as the subject's home phone during disaster:

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-NEO-11244 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee 6/19/2014 6/19/2014 9/26/2016

Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC Office on June 18, 2014    The HMGP is a Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) funded program, which is administered by the State of Louisiana (LA) Office of 
Community Development (OCD).  The OCD HMGP Project is a $750 million grant program, which provides 
funding to homeowners for residential mitigated activities against future storm and/or flood damage.  DHS 
OIG has previously been informed by LA OCD of their HMGP Applicant Recovery process.  The final stage of 
this recovery process is Recapture, which puts the non-compliant applicant in a permanent recovery stage.  
DHS OIG has previously acquired access to LA OCD???s Applicant tracking System (ATS) database used to 
identify HMGP non-compliant applicants in the Recapture stage.  In a proactive approach to identify non-
compliant applicants in the FEMA HMGP, DHS OIG retrieved documentation from ATS, which includes the 
allegation that did not used grant funds for the purposes intended and in accordance with the 
policies of the HMGP.  The LA OCD allege  received $39,000 on 2/14/2011, and has not used the funds 
to elevate her home and has not returned the funds back to the program.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Local Violation

I14-FEMA-NEO-11244 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee 6/19/2014 6/19/2014 9/26/2016

Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC Office on June 18, 2014    The HMGP is a Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) funded program, which is administered by the State of Louisiana (LA) Office of 
Community Development (OCD).  The OCD HMGP Project is a $750 million grant program, which provides 
funding to homeowners for residential mitigated activities against future storm and/or flood damage.  DHS 
OIG has previously been informed by LA OCD of their HMGP Applicant Recovery process.  The final stage of 
this recovery process is Recapture, which puts the non-compliant applicant in a permanent recovery stage.  
DHS OIG has previously acquired access to LA OCD???s Applicant tracking System (ATS) database used to 
identify HMGP non-compliant applicants in the Recapture stage.  In a proactive approach to identify non-
compliant applicants in the FEMA HMGP, DHS OIG retrieved documentation from ATS, which includes the 
allegation that did not used grant funds for the purposes intended and in accordance with the 
policies of the HMGP.  The LA OCD alleges eceived $39,000 on 2/14/2011, and has not used the funds 
to elevate her home and has not returned the funds back to the program.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Local Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I14-FEMA-NEO-11336 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Operation Running on Empty 6/23/2014 6/24/2014 3/25/2016

Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC Office on 5/15/2014    FEMA requested an investigation into 
allegations that the aforementioned contractors invoiced FEMA for fuel purchases post Hurricane Gustav.  
These contractors invoiced FEMA and eventually received payment for fuel utilized by employees monitoring 
debris cleanup.  FEMA claims to have gleaned information that the monitors/employees, themselves, never 
received payment for mileage. These contractors were involved in debris cleanup in as many as 8 different 
Public Assistance (PA) applicants throughout the Middle District of Louisiana (MDLA).    Inasmuch as this 
investigation targets numerous different FEMA contractors, it is requested that the file title be all-inclusive 
such as Operation Running on Empty.

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-FEMA-NEO-11337 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  ; Non-DHS Employee 6/23/2014 6/24/2014 1/27/2016

Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC Office on 5/16/2014    DHS OIG attended a meeting scheduled by 
East Baton Rouge (EBR) District Attorney (DA) egarding potential payroll fraud and theft of 
intellectual property purported to be purchased with federal government funding.  Also present was

United States Attorney (USA) for the Middle District of Louisiana and S rom the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation (FBI).    During the meeting, attendees received a 6-page report, prepared by the 
Mayor???s Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness (MOHSEP).  The report contains details 
of their case to include 34 bulleted highlights of each indication of potential wrongdoing by MOHSEP Chief of 
Operations   It contains various incidents of payroll fraud and alleged theft of government 
property.  There is an indication that s being influenced by several outsiders to include his father, 
former FEMA and DHS OIG Auditor  also worked at the State of Louisiana 
Governor???s Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness (GOHSEP) in the past.        The 
document included a list of attendees when CB&I (formerly known as Shaw) requested a meeting with the 
Mayor???s Office on March 21, 2014 to review the current EBR Debris Removal contract and discuss an 
extension. It was at this meeting that CB&I informed the attendees that they were in the process of buying a 
new software package from a company and this software would be the first of its??? kind for hazard 
mitigation work.  They anticipated a closing date of March 24, 2014 for the purchase of the software.  They 
stated that if EBR renewed the debris removal contract with CB&I, this new software would be a part of the 
contract.   They were questioned about the name of the company but were told by CB&I that, due to pending 
proprietary negotiations, that information could not be disclosed.     After the meeting, MOHSEP employees 
were having lunch at the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and one of the employees who attended the 
meeting stated that CB&I was purchasing a new software package.  was one of the MOHSEP 
employees having lunch and, when he learned about this, he stated it was his company that CB&I was 
working with and they would probably be closing the deal within the next week.  ater stated to co-
workers that he would be making $500,000 with this sale.      Over the past 10 years, the City Parish managed 
an in-house computer program to track input, accountability, time management, meeting records, reporting 
and financial reporting to deal with disaster response.  The City Parish copyrighted the program in 2011 under 
the name TRACE 360 and maintains it is intellectual property belonging to the City Parish.  It was alleged that 
TRACE 360 was created with funding through FEMA grants.      was placed on administrative leave with 
pay   MOHSEP management took Jones??? work phone and downloaded 10 000 pages of text messages   

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666
Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I14-FEMA-NEO-11699 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Grant Applicant 7/1/2014 7/1/2014 10/25/2016

Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC Office on 6/30/14.    Applicant received $50,000 in HMGP funds, 
for his home, located at  New Orleans, La 70114, and he did not use the funds for the 
intended purpose.  The HMGP would like to file criminal charges of theft pertaining to the above mentioned 
applicant.

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-NEO-11699 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee Grant Applicant 7/1/2014 7/1/2014 10/25/2016

Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC Office on 6/30/14.    Applicant received $50,000 in HMGP funds, 
for his home, located at  New Orleans, La 70114, and he did not use the funds for the 
intended purpose.  The HMGP would like to file criminal charges of theft pertaining to the above mentioned 
applicant

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-NYC-00844 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Arverne, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2013 2/24/2014 2/12/2016

Complaint was validated by FEMA FPU and was found to have indications of fraud.    HR Sandy 4085      The 
subject has submitted fraudulent lease documents stating that she is living a
Rockaway,NY. However, when the complainant contacted  the building manager.
verified thecomplainants suspicion that the subject wasnt, in fact, a resident of the building. The complainant 
says that the falsified lease is signed by the alleged landlord, , who ays is not the landlord 
for the address and does not work for the company which owns the complex, Bay Towers, Co. The lease 
states that the subject is  being charged rent in the amount of $1554/month, which  says is 
approximately $1000 over the most expensive rent in the complex, being that the building is classified as 
subsidized housing. The subjects pre-disaster lease on the home located on  is also 
unverifiable. That lease was signed b  who is not the registered owner of the property. The tax 
assessors office confirmed that was not the owner. The property belongs to  
who also filed for a FEMA grant. The subject has aquired $22,153 from FEMA through electronic transfer to her 
savings account at Capital One. FEMA ID #: 500163855

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-NYC-00844 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Arverne, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2013 2/24/2014 2/12/2016

Complaint was validated by FEMA FPU and was found to have indications of fraud.    HR Sandy 4085      The 
subject has submitted fraudulent lease documents stating that she is living a
Rockaway,NY. However, when the complainant contacted  the building manager.
verified thecomplainants suspicion that the subject wasnt, in fact, a resident of the building. The complainant 
says that the falsified lease is signed by the alleged landlord, , who ays is not the landlord 
for the address and does not work for the company which owns the complex, Bay Towers, Co. The lease 
states that the subject is  being charged rent in the amount of $1554/month, which  says is 
approximately $1000 over the most expensive rent in the complex, being that the building is classified as 
subsidized housing. The subjects pre-disaster lease on the home located on Beach Channel Dr. is also 
unverifiable. That lease was signed b  who is not the registered owner of the property. The tax 
assessors office confirmed that was not the owner. The property belongs to  
who also filed for a FEMA grant. The subject has aquired $22,153 from FEMA through electronic transfer to her 
savings account at Capital One. FEMA ID #: 500163855

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-FEMA-NYC-05468 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, FEMA; Staten Island, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/20/2014 1/7/2015 12/21/2016

Information provided by another federal agency (HUD) indicates this applicant may have provided false 
documents to FEMA.  HUD has referred this applicant to their OIG division as well.  Information provided to 
FEMA:    Individual purporting to be the Tenant  does not/did not live at address in lease 
contract.    Individual that signed DRSC  as the landlord (Thomas Defazio) was not the landlord/owner or 
authorized to sub lease    Individual that was purported to be the landlord ) was in fact a 
tenant at the lease address until October of 2013    DHAP subsidies to purported landlord  
from August 2013 ??? January 2014 total $7800.00    The actual owner of the unit  on the lease 
contract knows the fraudulent tenant and the fraudulent landlord    The fraudulent tenant produced the 
quarterly review certification for continued assistance paperwork and a DCM signed off.     It appears likely 
that these misrepresentations predate the DHAP program with information provided to FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NYC-05468 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, FEMA; Staten Island, NY General Public 2/20/2014 1/7/2015 12/21/2016

Information provided by another federal agency (HUD) indicates this applicant may have provided false 
documents to FEMA.  HUD has referred this applicant to their OIG division as well.  Information provided to 
FEMA:    Individual purporting to be the Tenant  does not/did not live at address in lease 
contract.    Individual that signed DRSC  as the landlord (  was not the landlord/owner or 
authorized to sub lease    Individual that was purported to be the landlord ) was in fact a 
tenant at the lease address until October of 2013    DHAP subsidies to purported landlord  
from August 2013 ??? January 2014 total $7800.00    The actual owner of the unit  on the lease 
contract knows the fraudulent tenant and the fraudulent landlord    The fraudulent tenant produced the 
quarterly review certification for continued assistance paperwork and a DCM signed off.     It appears likely 
that these misrepresentations predate the DHAP program with information provided to FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-FEMA-NYC-05468 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, FEMA; Staten Island, NY General Public 2/20/2014 1/7/2015 12/21/2016

Information provided by another federal agency (HUD) indicates this applicant may have provided false 
documents to FEMA.  HUD has referred this applicant to their OIG division as well.  Information provided to 
FEMA:    Individual purporting to be the Tenant  does not/did not live at address in lease 
contract.    Individual that signed DRSC  as the landlord (  was not the landlord/owner or 
authorized to sub lease    Individual that was purported to be the landlord ) was in fact a 
tenant at the lease address until October of 2013    DHAP subsidies to purported landlord  
from August 2013 ??? January 2014 total $7800.00    The actual owner of the unit  on the lease 
contract knows the fraudulent tenant and the fraudulent landlord    The fraudulent tenant produced the 
quarterly review certification for continued assistance paperwork and a DCM signed off.     It appears likely 
that these misrepresentations predate the DHAP program with information provided to FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I14-FEMA-NYC-05468 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, FEMA; Staten Island, NY General Public 2/20/2014 1/7/2015 12/21/2016

Information provided by another federal agency (HUD) indicates this applicant may have provided false 
documents to FEMA.  HUD has referred this applicant to their OIG division as well.  Information provided to 
FEMA:    Individual purporting to be the Tenant  does not/did not live at address in lease 
contract.    Individual that signed DRSC  as the landlord (  was not the landlord/owner or 
authorized to sub lease    Individual that was purported to be the landlord ) was in fact a 
tenant at the lease address until October of 2013    DHAP subsidies to purported landlord  
from August 2013 ??? January 2014 total $7800.00    The actual owner of the unit  on the lease 
contract knows the fraudulent tenant and the fraudulent landlord    The fraudulent tenant produced the 
quarterly review certification for continued assistance paperwork and a DCM signed off.     It appears likely 
that these misrepresentations predate the DHAP program with information provided to FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I14-FEMA-NYC-05577 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  et al., Disaster Benefit Applicant, Freeport, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/24/2014 4/17/2014 2/19/2016

FEMA FIID NCR validated this complaint and found indications of fraud.     Subject claimed disaster damages to 
FEMA, husband claimed disaster damages to one private insurance company, subject claimed disaster 
damages to a second private insurance company. Both the subject and the husband are co owners of the 
dwelling.      HURRICANE SANDY DR 4085    DHS OIG Audits Forensic Division completed an analysis on HR 
Sandy individuals who received both FEMA funds and Private Insurance funding . The individual in this 
complaint possibly received duplicative payments for disaster damages from both FEMA and private 
insurance companies

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NYC-11284 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Breezy Point, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

6/12/2014 6/20/2014 5/9/2016

FEMA FPIB validated this complaint and found indications of fraud. Both subjects applied for multiple 
applications for disaster assistance.     DR 4085, NY - $14,686.63 FEMA assistance DR 
1971, AL co applicant with  DR 1604, MS - $2000 FEMA assistance R 
1604, MS - $2000 FEMA assistance  DR 4117, OK - $8,726.94 FEMA assistance
DR 1971, AL co applicant with  $11,901.83 FEMA assistance (recoupment)      Both

have applied for benefits from nine other disasters which FEMA denied disbursements of assistance.     
Please see supporting docs for more information.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-FEMA-NYC-12462 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant; FEMA; Brooklyn, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

3/27/2014 7/17/2014 7/14/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4085 HR Sandy.    
Allegation:  Subject submitted fraudulent documents in order to obtain Rental Assistance. Subject told FEMA 
she returned to her previously damaged dwelling but then requested and received more Rental assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-NYC-12462 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant; FEMA; Brooklyn, NY Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

3/27/2014 7/17/2014 7/14/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4085 HR Sandy.    
Allegation:  Subject submitted fraudulent documents in order to obtain Rental Assistance. Subject told FEMA 
she returned to her previously damaged dwelling but then requested and received more Rental assistance

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-PHL-04713 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) -Non DHS Employee, Philadelphia, PA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/23/2014 3/21/2014 12/1/2016

HURRICANE SANDY    During Hurricane Sandy, lived at , Philadelphia, PA 19139. She 
claimed to live at hiladelphia, PA, saying she rented the home from says 
this is not possible, as he has another tenant who has lived at that address for over four years.  has 
never rented a property from  however as known or years now. They have a mutual 
friend,  who recommended that ent a property from ollowing a fire that ad at 
her Farson St. home did not have any available properties said that was okay, she just wanted 
to pay him the first month's rent and get a lease saying she lived at one of his properties; she wasn't planning 
on actually living there did not agree to this, but his enant informed him that
had been snooping around that home, looking for papers  ended up using th ddress to 
file for rental assistance from FEMA, claiming she lived at that address during Sandy  was granted the 
money from FEMA, and began receiving $900 per month from FEMA shortly after Sandy. She has recently 
stopped receiving the money. The first month, she received a check. After that, the money was directly 
deposited into her account. says tha has also committed fraud against State Farm, tax fraud, 
and food stamp fraud. She doesn't work, but creates pay checks and tax documents saying she works at 
Perfect Party Rental, which no longer exists

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-PHL-05022 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, FEMA DBA Grant Applicant 2/7/2014 3/17/2014 10/6/2016

** FEMA FIPB attached report does indicate fraud (password = open) **    Mr registered for assistance 
due to Hurricane Sandy REG# 41-1415973    He claimed to live at th  in Seaside, Heights NJ. 
He has recvd almost $20k in rental assistance. According to Owners of the hotel nd her son

 did NOT reside there. The hotel room he claims to have 
occupied has been occupied by the same retired couple for 6+ years. also has others calling FEMA 
claiming they work their and that applicant DID live there. THis person does not or has never worked at this 
hotel.    In an effort to verify this information, the Fraud Branch conducted an online Google search that 
revealed same date of birth, social security number and same State 
Bureau of Investigation (SBI) number) was a registered sex offender. The New Jersey State Police 
Department is responsible for maintaining the Sex Offender Registry in New Jersey. In an attempt to verify 
where was living, the Fraud Branch contacted Sergeant  of the New 
Jersey State Police Department and learned that  a/k/a/  was required to check 
in and register his current home address every 90 days with the Highlands (NJ) Police Department (

eported a home address of , Highlands NJ 07732 with his last registration date of 
September 2013.      Please investigate for disaster fraud

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-06624 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Disaster Benefit Applicants, 

Camden, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/18/2014 3/18/2014 4/8/2016

** FEMA FIPB attached report does indicate fraud (password = open) **    SANDY Complaint-  
  Attached is the Fraud Review of

 (password:open).  There was an indication of fraud against FEMA pertaining to
3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-06624 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Disaster Benefit Applicants, 

Camden, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/18/2014 3/18/2014 4/8/2016

** FEMA FIPB attached report does indicate fraud (password = open) **    SANDY Complaint-
  Attached is the Fraud Review of

 (password:open).  There was an indication of fraud against FEMA pertaining to
3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-06624 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Disaster Benefit Applicants, 

Camden, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/18/2014 3/18/2014 4/8/2016

** FEMA FIPB attached report does indicate fraud (password = open) **    SANDY Complaint-  
  Attached is the Fraud Review of

 (password:open).  There was an indication of fraud against FEMA pertaining to
3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-06624 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Disaster Benefit Applicants, 

Camden, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/18/2014 3/18/2014 4/8/2016

** FEMA FIPB attached report does indicate fraud (password = open) **    SANDY Complaint-
  Attached is the Fraud Review of

 (password:open).  There was an indication of fraud against FEMA pertaining to
3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-07158 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Bayville, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/27/2014 5/29/2014 1/14/2016

***PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE'S COMPLAINT RIBBON IN EDS***   
 filed a fraudulent FEMA application relating to the property located a

 Bayville, NJ.  This case is being worked jointly with the the NJ AG Sandy Taskforce.  (SA 
CASE AGENT)

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-08659 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)   FEMA-DBA; NJ.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/30/2014 11/12/2014 9/22/2016

** FEMA FIPB attached report indicates fraud (password = open) **  
_________________________________________________________________________________________    
Applican egistered as owner for oint Pleasant Beach NJ, claiming DD was her 
primary residence. Applicant received RA funds in the amount of $2,270. A tenan ) also applied for 
the same DD, and also received RA.    SBA initially declined loan for not primary residence, and subsequently 
approved loan upon reconsideration. SBA had not disbursed funds when a SBA audit team questioned 
primary residency.  SBA will be cancelling loan, and making a referral to SBA IG.    Notes & Comments:    1) 
Applicant is employed over an hour away, as a self-employed attorney. The federal income tax returns and all 
correspondence had the CMA address in NEMIS.     2) While applicant now has a voting registration with the 
address of the DD, it was effective 1/31/13 post-disaster; (see below).    3) The App Info Tab in NEMIS reflects 
that Occupancy failed.    4) Inspection Services recorded the below comments on 11/23/12 “No DL, No Voting 
Registration / Exhausted all means.    5) Appears Occupancy was substantiated by caseworker with a gas utility 
bill.    6) It appeared to me from comments in NEMIS that the applicant used a local real estate office as the 
leasing agent; please see attached ease for DD. Lease was effective just prior to Sandy on 10/2/12, and 
expiration of lease was to be 7 months ending in May 1, 2013. Please see page 6 of lease that stipulated 
tenant was to allow prospective renters for the next summer rental period.    7) I searched the state of New 
Jersey property databases to see if applicant owned any other real estate, but could not find any other 
properties.                 Search did not disclose applicant owning any other real estate in NJ in her name.         
Please let me know if anyone has any questions or concerns.    Thanks,        U.S. Small 
Business Administration   TXNPSC @associates.FEMA. DHS.gov  

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-08905 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 5/6/2014 5/6/2014 2/19/2016

******JOINT CASE WITH NJ ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE-PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE 
FOR CONVERSION**************  NJ Attorney General's Office) reported that the applicant 
received $13,148.00 in FEMA individual assistance after Hurricane Sandy for a non-primary residence.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-10537 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

6/5/2014 6/10/2014 7/5/2016

FEMA FPIB validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to disaster assistance from DR 
4086 HR Sandy.    Allegation: pplied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for New 
Jersey Hurricane Sandy DR-4086, by submitting false information.    According to government property records 
maintained by Ocean County (NJ) Register of Deeds, . Little Egg Harbor Twp., NJ 08087 was 
owned by co-applicant ince 03/21/2013. The records reflect that co-applicant  listed her 
mailing address as ittle Egg Harbor Twp., NJ 08087.    FEMA records reflect that on 
12/08/2012 and 05/10/2013, ubmitted recertification requests, in order to continuing receiving 
temporary housing assistance. The document lis s new address as  Little Egg 
Harbor Twp., NJ 08087. According to FEMA guidelines if an applicant finds an alternative, adequate home that 
is within reasonable commuting distance of work and/or school and is within their financial means, the 
applicant is no longer eligible for continued temporary housing assistance. Based on the guidelines, the 

were not eligible for the rental assistance they requested and received after they purchase
 Dr. Little Egg Harbor Twp., NJ 08087 on 03/21/2013.    Based on the information gathered during this 

review, there was an indication of FEMA fraud pertaining to

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-11831 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Sicklerville, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/3/2014 7/3/2014 8/25/2016

During the course of I14-FEMA-PHL- 06827  information was developed that  
RegID 41-1503836, DOB , #101, Sicklerville, NJ 08081, received 
rental and transportation assistance related to Hurricane Sandy, which she was not eligible for.  Rental:  
$13,000, Transp. $6,000

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-PHL-12501 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/17/2014 7/17/2014 6/7/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to disaster assistance 
application for DR 4086, HR Sandy.    Subject claimed a dwelling was a primary residence when it was a 
secondary residence      Note: Subject was placed into recoupment proceedings on 5/24/13

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12501 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/17/2014 7/17/2014 6/7/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to disaster assistance 
application for DR 4086, HR Sandy.    Subject claimed a dwelling was a primary residence when it was a 
secondary residence.     Note: Subject was placed into recoupment proceedings on 5/24/13

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12682 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/18/2014 7/22/2014 5/3/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of FEMA fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    
Applicant applied and received disaster assistance on a dwelling that was not her primary residence. Multiple 
databases checks show her primary address is  Pennington NJ 08534

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12682 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/18/2014 7/22/2014 5/3/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of FEMA fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    
Applicant applied and received disaster assistance on a dwelling that was not her primary residence. Multiple 
databases checks show her primary address is  Pennington NJ 08534

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12683 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/10/2014 7/22/2014 7/22/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    Applicant 
applied for and received disaster assistance to a dwelling that was not his primary residence. Allstate 
Insurance records indicate the damaged dwelling was not his primary residence. 

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12684 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/2/2014 7/22/2014 2/26/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    Applicant 
falsely claimed damaged dwelling as his primary residence in order to received disaster assistance funds. 
Multiple database checks show the applicants primary address is  Bonita Springs, 
FL 34135

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12684 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/2/2014 7/22/2014 2/26/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    Applicant 
falsely claimed damaged dwelling as his primary residence in order to received disaster assistance funds. 
Multiple database checks show the applicants primary address is  Bonita Springs, 
FL 34135.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12711 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/22/2014 7/22/2014 5/2/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    The 
applicant applied for and received disaster funds for a dwelling that was not his primary residence. Multiple 
database checks show his primary address is  Delran  NJ 08075

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12711 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/22/2014 7/22/2014 5/2/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    The 
applicant applied for and received disaster funds for a dwelling that was not his primary residence. Multiple 
database checks show his primary address is  Delran, NJ 08075

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12711 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/22/2014 7/22/2014 5/2/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    The 
applicant applied for and received disaster funds for a dwelling that was not his primary residence. Multiple 
database checks show his primary address is  Delran, NJ 08075

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12711 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/22/2014 7/22/2014 5/2/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    The 
applicant applied for and received disaster funds for a dwelling that was not his primary residence. Multiple 
database checks show his primary address is  Delran  NJ 08075

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12722 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 6/18/2014 7/22/2014 2/26/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of FEMA fraud pertaining to DR 4086 HR Sandy.    
Applicant fraudulently applied for and received disaster assistance from FEMA.  Applicant claimed to live on a 
22 ft sailboat that was damaged during the disaster.  Possible primary address is , Stuart 
FL 34997

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-12971 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Disaster Benefit Applicant, Ship Bottom, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/2/2014 7/28/2014 8/25/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud involving DR 4086 HR Sandy disaster 
benefits for      The applicant falsely submitted to FEMA that the damaged property was her 
primary residence. Multiple database checks indicate that  Cheltenham PA is the primary 
address for the applicant.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I14-FEMA-PHL-13570 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

8/6/2014 11/10/2015 6/1/2016
FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud regarding disaster benefits resulting from 
DR 4086 HR Sandy.    Subject applied for and received disaster benefits on a dwelling that is not his primary 
residence.  Evidence points to the primary residence  a nglewood NJ 07631.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-14237 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/19/2014 8/22/2014 5/3/2016

 RegID 45-0391821, was identified as illegal sublet/roommate of 
I14-FEMA-PHL-1969)  Seaside Heights, NJ 08751-2166.

received $5,090 in rental assistance of which she may not have been eligible for.        ***PLEASE PLACE IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON****   S THE CASE AGENT.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Seaside Heights  NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666
Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I14-FEMA-PHL-14531 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/19/2014 8/25/2014 3/22/2016

FEMA FIID  validated this complaint and found indications of fraud pertaining to the FEMA benefits received 
from DR 4086 HR Sandy.    Allegation:  The applicant claimed the damaged dwelling as his primary residence at 
the time of Hurricane Sandy. FIID has uncovered information to indicate the applicant was residing in Florida 
at the time of the hurricane.     

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-FEMA-PHL-14672 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Little Egg Harbor Township, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/26/2014 8/29/2014 1/12/2016

 (FEMA Registration 50-0205036), DOB:  applied for FEMA disaster assistance following 
Hurricane Sandy, claiming that , Little Egg Harbor Township, NJ was his primary 
residence at the time of the hurricane.  A review of documents revealed tha  a U.S. Postal Service 
carrier, received $2,820 in disaster assistance from FEMA.  has also received approximately $10,000 in 
aid from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) based on his representations that

was his primary residence.  A preliminary investigation indicates tha ??s primary 
residence was actually  Monroe Township, NJ.      This is a joint investigation with the NJ 
Department of Criminal Justice and HUD OIG.  Additionally, the U.S. Postal Service, OIG has been apprised of 
the investigation.      ***PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***    

is the case agent.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Little Egg 
Harbor Township, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I14-FEMA-PHL-15510 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Westmoreland County, PA
State/Local Govt 
Entity 9/12/2014 9/12/2014 2/26/2016

To Whom It May Concern,    I WISH TO REMAIN ANONYMOUS TO THE PERSON I FILED A COMPLAINT ON BUT I 
AM WILLING TO FURTHER ASSIST THE AGENCY IN THEIR INVESTIGATIONS.     I would like to make a formal 
complaint in regards to an issue I am having with Rostraver Township and more specifically,
My company, Westcomm Wireless, has made several attempts at submitting a bid for fire and emergency 
pagers but have been boxed out by Mr.     Here is a summary of what is happening...    Rostraver 
Township and other communities in Westmoreland County, PA have applied to FEMA. I believe they have 
been recently granted approximately $250,000.00 in funds to purchase a total of 750 pagers to be used by first 
responders. is the person in charge of applying for the grant money and making the purchases.    
Westcom Wireless is a supplier of these pagers and can provide them to Rostraver at a lower cost than our 
competitors. Numerous staff members have made multiple attempts to contact Mr.  to request the 
opportunity to submit a quote for his review but we have not received a single acknowledgement from him 
in return.    After weeks of no response, I began to inquire into this a bit deeper and found that Mr.
has been working with a relative of some type who happens to be a sales person for Motorola and is 
awarding the contract to that individual without giving my company (or others for that matter) a chance at the 
bid process. Not only is this immoral and unethical, it goes against Rostraver Township's best interests as we 
can provide the product for less.    We did find out that Mr id invite two other companies to 
provide bids on the 750 pagers, however, those bids were from companies with a reputation of always 
quoting the highest prices on the market. Mr.  and his relative were most surely aware that those 
two bids would come in at a much higher cost than the Motorola's his relative sells. This seems to be done so 
Mr.  could justify awarding the bid to a relative instead of following the rules of bidding, especially in 
the case where there is grant money.    After speaking with other department's fire chiefs, we were informed 
that Mr  is aware that Westcom is not only their provider for their Unification pagers for first 
responders but that they provide them at a lower cost than any normal Unification dealer. Since he knew our 
price would be lower than Motorola's, we are sure that this was not only the reason he did not request a 
quote from Westcom but also the reason he refused all phone calls and did not respond to voicemails.    To 
make matters worse and actually force this letter from us, Mr  then took things a step further in an 
effort to cover himself. The result has put Westcom Wireless on the brink of losing additional sales.. Mr. 

 told other fire departments within that region not to purchase Unification pagers from us but 
instead buy from Motorola because if they didn't  Motorola wouldn't provide them a group discount  This is 

3.3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Contract Fraud Conflict of Interest Conflict of Interest Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-ICE-BOS-11986 Boston, MA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IMMGRTN ENF AGT/0712 Other Criminal/BURLINGTON, 
MIDDLESEX, MA DHS Employee 7/9/2014 7/9/2014 5/2/2016

On June 23, 2014, Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Special Agent (SA)   Boston, MA, 
received information from Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA)   Boston, MA, regarding 
an allegation made against an Enforcement and Removal Operations  (ERO) employee identified a

 A search of ERO/Burlington, MA,  employees identified a possible subject as Immigration 
Enforcement Agent (IEA) , Burlington, MA. According to 
AUSA  Director of Lutheran Services, Boston, MA, reported to her that an unidentified  
Dominican female claimed that IEA  was involved in domestic abuse, visa  fraud, sexual 
assault and human trafficking, dating back to 2010.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I14-ICE-DAL-09293 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Non-Employee - Contraband/JENA, LA SALLE, LA

Other Federal 
Govt Entity 5/14/2014 5/14/2014 10/10/2016

On May 7, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Immigration Enforcement Agent (SIEA)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Jena, LA (ERO/Jena), who received notification from  Immigration Enforcement Agent 
(IEA) , ERO/Jena, who reported GEO staff  is allegedly bringing in contraband inside the 
La Salle Detention Center in Jena  LA

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-ICE-DAL-09293 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Non-Employee - Contraband/JENA, LA SALLE, LA DHS Contractor 5/14/2014 5/14/2014 10/10/2016

On May 7, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Immigration Enforcement Agent (SIEA)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Jena, LA (ERO/Jena), who received notification from  Immigration Enforcement Agent 
(IEA) , ERO/Jena, who reported GEO staff  is allegedly bringing in contraband inside the 
La Salle Detention Center in Jena, LA.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-ICE-DAL-09293 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Non-Employee - Contraband/JENA, LA SALLE, LA Corporation 5/14/2014 5/14/2014 10/10/2016

On May 7, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Immigration Enforcement Agent (SIEA)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Jena, LA (ERO/Jena), who received notification from  Immigration Enforcement Agent 
(IEA) , ERO/Jena, who reported GEO staff  is allegedly bringing in contraband inside the 
La Salle Detention Center in Jena  LA

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I14-ICE-DAL-09293 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Non-Employee - Contraband/JENA, LA SALLE, LA Corporation 5/14/2014 5/14/2014 10/10/2016

On May 7, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Immigration Enforcement Agent (SIEA)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Jena, LA (ERO/Jena), who received notification from  Immigration Enforcement Agent 
(IEA) , ERO/Jena, who reported GEO staff  is allegedly bringing in contraband inside the 
La Salle Detention Center in Jena  LA

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-ICE-DAL-09293 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Non-Employee - Contraband/JENA, LA SALLE, LA

Other Fed 
Agency 
Employee

5/14/2014 5/14/2014 10/10/2016

On May 7, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Immigration Enforcement Agent (SIEA)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Jena, LA (ERO/Jena), who received notification from  Immigration Enforcement Agent 
(IEA) , ERO/Jena, who reported GEO staff  is allegedly bringing in contraband inside the 
La Salle Detention Center in Jena, LA.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-ICE-DAL-09293 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Non-Employee - Contraband/JENA, LA SALLE, LA DHS Contractor 5/14/2014 5/14/2014 10/10/2016

On May 7, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Immigration Enforcement Agent (SIEA)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Jena, LA (ERO/Jena), who received notification from  Immigration Enforcement Agent 
(IEA) , ERO/Jena, who reported GEO staff  is allegedly bringing in contraband inside the 
La Salle Detention Center in Jena, LA.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-ICE-MIA-10002 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown, Unknown/Non-Employee/0801 Conflict of Interest-
Association with Known Criminals/Illegal Aliens/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, 
FL

FNU  LNU
State/Local Govt 
Employee 5/29/2014 6/9/2014 2/26/2016

On May 22, 2014, Special Agent (SA)  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office 
of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Miami, Florida, received a phone call and subsequent email from SA 
David Jeffrey, Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Miami, Florida, 
indicating that during the post arrest defrief of defendant  an allegation of improper association 
with individuals connected to criminal activity and disclosure of law enforcement sensitive information was 
provided. The information provided alleges that one of the two female officers present during rrest is 
romantically involved with  friend, a known drug dealer, identified as     This 
report documents the information received by the Duty Agent.

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 798 Disclosure of Classified Information

I14-ICE-MIA-14957 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

SOC SCI PROG SPEC (VICTIM WIT ASST)/0802 Conflict 
of  Interest-Misuse of Position/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL

DHS Employee 9/3/2014 9/3/2014 3/11/2016

On August 29, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Senior Policy Advisor  Office of Civil Rights and Civil  Liberties, 
Washington, DC, (CRCL/Washington, DC) who reported that Homeland Security  Investigations, Victims 
Assistant Coordinator (VAC)  (name spelled in source  document  HSI/Miami 
has been sending extremely inappropriate text messages  to Ms.  victim of human 
trafficking

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I14-ICE-MIA-14957 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

SOC SCI PROG SPEC (VICTIM WIT ASST)/0802 Conflict 
of  Interest-Misuse of Position/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL

DHS Employee 9/3/2014 9/3/2014 3/11/2016

On August 29, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Senior Policy Advisor  Office of Civil Rights and Civil  Liberties, 
Washington, DC, (CRCL/Washington, DC) who reported that Homeland Security  Investigations, Victims 
Assistant Coordinator (VAC)  (name spelled in source  document  HSI/Miami 
has been sending extremely inappropriate text messages  to Ms.  victim of human 
trafficking.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I14-ICE-NEO-14279 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Evidence Custodian, New Orleans, LA DHS Employee 8/20/2014 8/25/2014 1/27/2016

******Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC office*****    DHS OIG NEO received an undated letter, 
postmarked August 7, 2014, from an anonymous source alleging that  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), New Orleans, LA, was constantly stealing 
government time without taking leave.  She has been issued a government vehicle, and has been seen at 
local businesses throughout the work day.  holds a position dealing with evidence and the 
complainant questioned her integrity in relation to her theft of time and misuse of a GOV.      [Agent???s 
note:  A records check o  revealed that she is employed as an Evidence Custodian, GS-11) for ICE HSI, 
New Orleans, LA.]  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: New Orleans, LA  
Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad miscellaneous identifiers of: GS-11

4.3.17 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Property Property Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I14-ICE-NEO-14279 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Evidence Custodian, New Orleans, LA DHS Employee 8/20/2014 8/25/2014 1/27/2016

******Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC office*****    DHS OIG NEO received an undated letter, 
postmarked August 7, 2014, from an anonymous source alleging that  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), New Orleans, LA, was constantly stealing 
government time without taking leave.  She has been issued a government vehicle, and has been seen at 
local businesses throughout the work day.  holds a position dealing with evidence and the 
complainant questioned her integrity in relation to her theft of time and misuse of a GOV.      [Agent???s 
note:  A records check o  revealed that she is employed as an Evidence Custodian, GS-11) for ICE HSI, 
New Orleans, LA.]  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: New Orleans, LA  
Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad miscellaneous identifiers of: GS-11

4.3.17 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Property Property Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1920 False Statements to obtain Federal Employees' 
Compensation

I14-ICE-NEO-14279 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Evidence Custodian, New Orleans, LA DHS Employee 8/20/2014 8/25/2014 1/27/2016

******Complaint received by the New Orleans RAC office*****    DHS OIG NEO received an undated letter, 
postmarked August 7, 2014, from an anonymous source alleging that  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), New Orleans, LA, was constantly stealing 
government time without taking leave.  She has been issued a government vehicle, and has been seen at 
local businesses throughout the work day.  holds a position dealing with evidence and the 
complainant questioned her integrity in relation to her theft of time and misuse of a GOV.      [Agent???s 
note:  A records check o  revealed that she is employed as an Evidence Custodian, GS-11) for ICE HSI, 
New Orleans, LA.]  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: New Orleans, LA  
Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad miscellaneous identifiers of: GS-11

4.3.17 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Property Property Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 654 Conversion of Personal Property by Federal 
Officers or Employees

I14-ICE-SNJ-13107 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Unknown HSI employee, San Juan, PR FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/30/2014 7/30/2014 2/2/2016

On July 18, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Acting Group Supervisor (GS of Homeland  Security Investigations 
located in San Juan, PR (HSI/San Juan) who reported the loss of several  pieces of seized and forfeited 
property at the HSI/San Juan office.

4.3.17 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Property Property Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed Raul 

nd who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

 Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) agains

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are  

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635
Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed  

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

 Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three,  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally,  is 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the thre  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed Raul 

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed Raul 

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635
Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the thre  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally, s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

 All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the three  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635
Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I14-ICEHSI-SNJ-00441 San Juan, Puerto Rico
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) , SA, ICE, HSI, San Juan, PR, et al. DHS Employee 10/10/2013 10/10/2013 11/3/2016

 Special Agent (SA), Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS), who related NCIS has an 
ongoing investigation (attached) against

. All of these subjects are Master at Arms, military law enforcement, for the U.S. Navy 
Reserve, Diego Garcia Unit located in Puerto Rico. The five reservist are currently under investigation by the 
NCIS Resident Agency, Mayport, FL, for alleged false claims (18 USC 287), wire fraud (18 USC 1343), conspiracy 
(18 USC 371), false statements (18 USC 1001), and public money (18 USC 641).    This investigation was initiated 
by NCIS after information was provided by the Naval Operations Support Center (NOSC) Puerto Rico. NOSC 
believed several reservists from the Diego Garcia Reserve Unit in Puerto Rico submitted false lodging 
receipts with their FY 2011 and 2012 travel claims for annual training at Roosevelt Roads. The investigation 
revealed five reservists submitted lodging receipts, but lodging was not charged to their government credit 
cards. During two visits to Puerto Rico in March and July 2012, NCIS agents interviewed the alleged lodging 
providers listed in the supporting documentation submitted by the subjects. Interviews with the alleged 
lodging providers confirmed the bills submitted were fraudulent. The lodging employees provided official 
hotel receipts for the timeframe of the alleged stays. These receipts were compared to the supporting 
documents sent by the subjects in their travel claims. It was determined the reservists inflated actual bills by 
increasing the nightly rate and/or adding nights they did not stay. In another instance,  submitted a 
completely fabricated bill for a hotel where he did not stay. On August 3, 2012, NCIS Agents interviewed  

who admitted to fabricating the hotel bills they submitted with their claims.    
Four of these subjects work in law enforcement jobs as their civilian career. Their names are

. Three of the four are employed by the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Two of the thre  work at the office 
of Homeland Security Investigations, San Juan, Puerto Rico as Special Agents and the other,  is 
employed at the DHS Transportation Security Administration in Puerto Rico. Finally s 
employed by the Puerto Rico Police Department (PRPD).

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I14-NPPD-SNJ-07949 San Juan, Puerto Rico
National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)  (former) Inspector, FPS, NPPD, San Juan, Puerto Rico DHS Employee 4/15/2014 4/15/2014 5/9/2016

I am referring this allegation of unethical behavior to you for investigation.  In Puerto Rico an inspector, while 
serving as the Contracting Officer’s Representative (C OR), has permitted at least one family member to work 
on the contract he was overseeing.  I have attached basic information concerning the allegation, but with a 
full investigation  there may be more unethical behavior which has occurred

1.5 Employee Corruption Kickbacks Kickbacks Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635
Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I14-NPPD-SNJ-07949 San Juan, Puerto Rico
National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)  (former) Inspector, FPS, NPPD, San Juan, Puerto Rico DHS Employee 4/15/2014 4/15/2014 5/9/2016

I am referring this allegation of unethical behavior to you for investigation.  In Puerto Rico an inspector, while 
serving as the Contracting Officer’s Representative (C OR), has permitted at least one family member to work 
on the contract he was overseeing.  I have attached basic information concerning the allegation, but with a 
full investigation, there may be more unethical behavior which has occurred.

1.5 Employee Corruption Kickbacks Kickbacks Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1018 False Official Certificate or Writings

I14-NPPD-WFO-09649 Washington, DC National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)

, NPPD, Bowie, MD DHS Employee 5/21/2014 5/21/2014 4/4/2016

HSI Baltimore recovered an FPS business card during a search warrant in November 2013. The warrant was 
served on the parent’s house of a target of the investigation. The business card listed  as 
an analyst for FPS. There was no information that implicated n any criminal activity. I submitted 
my first report of this incident  to OPR Joint Intake by telephone. I was provided an email for both DHS/OIG 
and HSI/OPR. The DHS email bounced back due to incorrect email address. I sent a follow up to Joint Intake to 
forward the email to the proper email address.    On May 20, 2014 HSI received new information regarding 

 His name was brought up by two targets of investigation in a public corruption case involving two 
police officers providing assistance to a drug trafficking organization. This case is being run by the FBI out of 
Washington, DC with support from HSI Baltimore.    It is unknown if is an innocent person that is 
being targeted by this DTO or has taken an active role in participating in the criminal activity.     We believe 

 may be in training at FLETC for the position of FPS Officer.    Please review the reports below and 
contact me if I can provide further assistance.    Thank you…    G  NFI

4.2.1 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Lifestyle Anomalies Lifestyle Anomalies Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I14-TSA-ATL-16244 Atlanta, GA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); Atlanta, 

GA DHS Employee 9/29/2014 9/30/2014 1/15/2016

This information was received by the DHS OIG Atlanta Field Office, SA on September 29, 2014 
from ICE OPR SSA  via e-mail.  OPR attempted to enter the information into the JIC, but 
becasue the employee is a TSA employee, the JIC entry is incomplete. The JIC case is identifed as 201412360.    
SA  spoke with the complainant,  SA, ICE HSI, on September 29, 2014, after receiving 
the e-mail from OPR. In summary, SA tated that on this same date, his supervisor,  GS, 
ICE HSI, requested that  attempt to determine if the subject,  was a DHS employee. 

beleives tha  is a FAM.       The following is verbatim from the e-mail DHS OIG received from 
OPR:     [Good morning  I guess I need to forward this as an allegation against an employee.     Approximately 
two weeks ago I received a strange call from an unknown number (male caller) They said someone had 
provided them with a tip on a passenger coming in from Dubai. I told them to give me the name of the person 
that called them and number and I would reach out to them for the information. The caller stated the person 
that called them was a male caller from an unknown number and would not leave their information and 
stated it was for fear of retaliation from their job. Specifically (according to the person that called me) doesn't 
trust TSA-OIG doesn't want blow back or repercussion from job???     I assumed the initial tip most have been 
a TSA employee that had discovered something during screening of the passenger and was told to disregard 
and not report it.     The person that called me would not leave their name or number as a call back. They 
clearly knew me because they called my cell. They stated they believed I would handle it the way it need to 
be. They stated the passenger in question is      The tip was very specific that 
this person sells fake Iphones and Beats earphones? On ebay as real items not fake. Allegedly the passenger 
brings two checked bags each time he is bringing in goods and it is only when he flies from Dubai to Atlanta 
Delta Airlines Flight 7.     Based on the information I did a silent hit only to my user ID (per supervisor) to 
monitor any future flight from Dubai. I didn't want the passenger getting multiple referrals in the future if he 
wasn't bringing something. The plan was to watch him if he was coming in and claimed to bags then he would 
be sent into baggage for a exam.     When I started to run travel on the passenger it appeared he could be a 
Delta employee or a FAM. As of today ndicated I had to search the name in outlook to rule out a 
possible employee. When I ran the name I did get a hit in outlook for Atlanta and it says TSA 
OLE which I believe is a FAM.     I immediately called nd told him what I located and that I would be 
reporting it to you or the JIC now. So here it is.     I haven't ran any additional information on the person and 
don???t know what to do next  I still have a completely silent hit in that only notifies me if he is 

1.7.5 Employee Corruption Smuggling Other Other Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 545 Smuggling Goods into the United States

I14-TSA-HOU-12788 Houston, TX Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee DHS Employee 7/23/2014 7/23/2014 8/18/2016

On July 23, 2014 , Special Agent (SA), DHS OIG, Houston, TX received the following verbatim 
allegation from  SA, HSI, Houston, TX:       In regards to our voice conversation, I am 
currently working a HSI cyber investigation involving the downloading of child pornography on a file sharing 
network.  I have identified a residence as being the location where these downloads took place.  Upon 
further research into the occupants of the residence, it was determined that  a TSA Officer 
working at Hobby Airport, lives at the residence.  I am planning on executing a search warrant on the 
residence on Tuesday, January, 29, 2014.     Houston, TX 
77017    Let me know if you need anything else!   

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-TSA-MIA-04025 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSA, Miami, FL DHS Employee 1/15/2014 1/15/2014 6/8/2016

A special agent from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Detroit, MI, contacted the TSA Office of 
Inspection to report the following allegations against Federal Air Marshal (FAM)  of the FAMS 
Miami field office:    The HSI agent was contacted by Ms.  ex-wife of FAM  Ms. 

claimed that FAM has engaged, in the past, and is currently engaged, in a sexual relationship 
with minor boys.  She stated that their daughter (they have three children together) said FAM s 
currently dating a high school boy in the Plantation, FL area.  Ms. urther report that FAM  has 
“always had young boys in their home” since 1998, as FAM  is reportedly active in youth programs.  Ms. 

also claimed that her daughter had seen pictures of nude children on top of one another on FAM 
Waters’ computer.  She added that FAM s uses the nam  for his Facebook® account.    
The HSI agent did not provide any assessment of the credibility of the ex-wife’s allegations, nor her 
motivation for reporting at this time.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-TSA-MIA-04025 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSA, Miami, FL DHS Employee 1/15/2014 1/15/2014 6/8/2016

A special agent from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Detroit, MI, contacted the TSA Office of 
Inspection to report the following allegations against Federal Air Marshal (FAM)  of the FAMS 
Miami field office:    The HSI agent was contacted by Ms.  ex-wife of FAM  Ms. 

claimed that FAM has engaged, in the past, and is currently engaged, in a sexual relationship 
with minor boys.  She stated that their daughter (they have three children together) said FAM s 
currently dating a high school boy in the Plantation, FL area.  Ms. urther report that FAM  has 
“always had young boys in their home” since 1998, as FAM  is reportedly active in youth programs.  Ms. 

also claimed that her daughter had seen pictures of nude children on top of one another on FAM 
 computer.  She added that FAM uses the nam  for his Facebook® account.    

The HSI agent did not provide any assessment of the credibility of the ex-wife’s allegations, nor her 
motivation for reporting at this time.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1920
False Statements to obtain Federal Employees' 
Compensation

I14-TSA-MIA-04025 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSA, Miami, FL DHS Employee 1/15/2014 1/15/2014 6/8/2016

A special agent from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Detroit, MI, contacted the TSA Office of 
Inspection to report the following allegations against Federal Air Marshal (FAM)  of the FAMS 
Miami field office:    The HSI agent was contacted by Ms.  ex-wife of FAM  Ms. 

claimed that FAM has engaged, in the past, and is currently engaged, in a sexual relationship 
with minor boys.  She stated that their daughter (they have three children together) said FAM s 
currently dating a high school boy in the Plantation, FL area.  Ms. urther report that FAM  has 
“always had young boys in their home” since 1998, as FAM  is reportedly active in youth programs.  Ms. 

also claimed that her daughter had seen pictures of nude children on top of one another on FAM 
omputer.  She added that FAM uses the nam  for his Facebook® account.    

The HSI agent did not provide any assessment of the credibility of the ex-wife’s allegations, nor her 
motivation for reporting at this time.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252
Activities Relating to Material Involving the Sexual 
Exploitation of Minors

I14-TSA-PHL-07436 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee, Philadelphia, PA

DHS Component 4/3/2014 4/3/2014 5/4/2016

On April 2, 2014, the Philadelphia International Airport (PHL) customer service manager (CSM) advised OOI 
that on March 15, 2014, PHL Lead Transportation Security Officer (LTSO was tasked to 
deliver a laptop to the coordinating center (CC) as lost and found, however, the coordination center officer 
(CCO) who was responsible for logging in all lost and found property at the time of the incident, does not 
recall receiving the laptop from LTSO   Additionally, LTSO  claimed that she signed the chain 
of custody form before departing the CC but, TSA/PHL discovered that the laptop had never been logged in.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I14-TSA-SFO-03893 San Francisco, CA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSA, San Francisco, CA DHS Employee 1/10/2014 1/13/2014 12/19/2016

On January 9, 2014, San Francisco International Airport (SFO) Transportation Security Specialist -  Explosives 
(TSS-E  reported the following to the SFO Federal Security Director and  the TSA Office of 
Inspection:  TSS-E uspects that several SFO TSS-E's are stealing large amounts of alcohol and other  
prohibited items, which is collected by TSA as Voluntary Abandoned Property (VAP), and which is  
inventoried and then properly disposed of. However, TSS-E  has noticed inventory missing  from the 
Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) and VAP Accumulation Area prior to disposition being  completed. TSS-E 

 first became suspicious of thefts in early 2012. TSS-E  advised OOI  that he advised his first line 
supervisor STSS-E of potential thefts, and STSS- counseled him to not worry about it 
and to not bring it up again. TSS-E is a retired nd he wrote a seven page 
memorandum regarding the thefts, dating  from February 17, 2012, up to most recently December 3 , 2013. 
The suspected thefts include  several dozen unopened bottles of alcohol, tools, and Leatherman-style multi-
pliers. TSS-E   stated that STSS-E has told him that he was a part owner of a bar.

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-TSA-SFO-03893 San Francisco, CA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSA, San Francisco, CA DHS Employee 1/10/2014 1/13/2014 12/19/2016

On January 9, 2014, San Francisco International Airport (SFO) Transportation Security Specialist -  Explosives 
(TSS-E  reported the following to the SFO Federal Security Director and  the TSA Office of 
Inspection:  TSS-E uspects that several SFO TSS-E's are stealing large amounts of alcohol and other  
prohibited items, which is collected by TSA as Voluntary Abandoned Property (VAP), and which is  
inventoried and then properly disposed of. However, TSS-E  has noticed inventory missing  from the 
Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) and VAP Accumulation Area prior to disposition being  completed. TSS-E 

 first became suspicious of thefts in early 2012. TSS-E dvised OOI  that he advised his first line 
supervisor STSS-E of potential thefts, and STSS-E counseled him to not worry about it 
and to not bring it up again. TSS-E is a retired nd he wrote a seven page 
memorandum regarding the thefts, dating  from February 17, 2012, up to most recently December 3 , 2013. 
The suspected thefts include  several dozen unopened bottles of alcohol, tools, and Leatherman-style multi-
pliers. TSS-E   stated that STSS-E has told him that he was a part owner of a bar.

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I14-USCG-SFO-09562 San Francisco, CA U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc, Honolulu, HI 5/20/2014 5/21/2014 8/8/2016

The DHS OIG was contacted by  Assistant U.S. Attorney (AUSA), U.S. Attorney's Office 
(USAO), District of Hawaii, Honolulu, HI, after Pacific Shipyards International, LLC, (PSI), Honolulu, HI, filed a 
qui tam complaint under the False Claims Act in the U.S. District Court for the District of Hawaii alleging that 
L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc. was awarded two (2) contracts for repairs to two U.S. Coast Guard 
Cutters, USCG and USCGS hat required the small business awardee to perform fifty 
(50) percent of the contract value work with its own employees, and L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc. 
did not have the staffing level to perform to the contract standard of fifty (50) percent of the contract value 
work.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I14-USCG-SFO-09562 San Francisco, CA U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc, Honolulu, HI 5/20/2014 5/21/2014 8/8/2016

The DHS OIG was contacted by  Assistant U.S. Attorney (AUSA), U.S. Attorney's Office 
(USAO), District of Hawaii, Honolulu, HI, after Pacific Shipyards International, LLC, (PSI), Honolulu, HI, filed a 
qui tam complaint under the False Claims Act in the U.S. District Court for the District of Hawaii alleging that 
L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc. was awarded two (2) contracts for repairs to two U.S. Coast Guard 
Cutters, USCG and USCGS hat required the small business awardee to perform fifty 
(50) percent of the contract value work with its own employees, and L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc. 
did not have the staffing level to perform to the contract standard of fifty (50) percent of the contract value 
work.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I14-USCG-SFO-09562 San Francisco, CA U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc, Honolulu, HI DHS Contractor 5/20/2014 5/21/2014 8/8/2016

The DHS OIG was contacted by  Assistant U.S. Attorney (AUSA), U.S. Attorney's Office 
(USAO), District of Hawaii, Honolulu, HI, after Pacific Shipyards International, LLC, (PSI), Honolulu, HI, filed a 
qui tam complaint under the False Claims Act in the U.S. District Court for the District of Hawaii alleging that 
L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc. was awarded two (2) contracts for repairs to two U.S. Coast Guard 
Cutters, USCG and USCGS hat required the small business awardee to perform fifty 
(50) percent of the contract value work with its own employees, and L&S Enterprises Marine Consultants, Inc. 
did not have the staffing level to perform to the contract standard of fifty (50) percent of the contract value 
work.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I14-USSS-MIA-15913 Miami, FL U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS; West Palm Beach, FL DHS Employee 9/23/2014 9/23/2014 8/18/2016

On September 19, 2014, the Office of Investigations notified the Inspection Division (ISP) that Administrative 
Officer (AO)  West Palm Beach Resident Office (RO), was suspected of stealing counterfeit 
federal reserve notes (FRN) and passing them at a local Macy’s Department Store.  It was advised that during 
meetings with Macy’s Loss Prevention Department, the Resident Agent in Charge was shown surveillance 
video of two passes on September 12, 2014, and four passes on Sunday, September 14, 2014, which depicted 
AO passing $100 FRNs.  However, Macy’s Loss Prevention Department advised that the cash drawers 
for those time periods were already sent in to the bank and Macy’s could not be sure at that time if the $100 
FRNs were counterfeit.  It was further stated that AO  does not process counterfeit in the West Palm 
Beach RO as a normal course of her duty.  ISP suggested that, due to the lack of corroborative evidence, the 
Resident Agent in Charge search A  burn bag for any potential evidence.    On September 22, 2014, 
ISP was advised that Resident Agent in Charge found 48 SSF 1604’s (counterfeit note reports) that normally 
accompany counterfeit FRNs in AO s burn bag that did not contain rapid print numbers.  Furthermore, 
Macy’s reported that out of the six $100 FRN passes that AO  was identified making on September 12 
and 14, 2014, three of the registers received only one $100 FRN that day.  Each of those FRNs were identified 
as counterfeit.    On September 23, 2014, the facts of this preliminary investigation will be presented to the 
Intake group.

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I14-USSS-MIA-15913 Miami, FL U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS; West Palm Beach, FL DHS Employee 9/23/2014 9/23/2014 8/18/2016

On September 19, 2014, the Office of Investigations notified the Inspection Division (ISP) that Administrative 
Officer (AO)  West Palm Beach Resident Office (RO), was suspected of stealing counterfeit 
federal reserve notes (FRN) and passing them at a local Macy’s Department Store.  It was advised that during 
meetings with Macy’s Loss Prevention Department, the Resident Agent in Charge was shown surveillance 
video of two passes on September 12, 2014, and four passes on Sunday, September 14, 2014, which depicted 
AO passing $100 FRNs.  However, Macy’s Loss Prevention Department advised that the cash drawers 
for those time periods were already sent in to the bank and Macy’s could not be sure at that time if the $100 
FRNs were counterfeit.  It was further stated that AO  does not process counterfeit in the West Palm 
Beach RO as a normal course of her duty.  ISP suggested that, due to the lack of corroborative evidence, the 
Resident Agent in Charge search AO s burn bag for any potential evidence.    On September 22, 2014, 
ISP was advised that Resident Agent in Charge found 48 SSF 1604’s (counterfeit note reports) that normally 
accompany counterfeit FRNs in A  burn bag that did not contain rapid print numbers.  Furthermore, 
Macy’s reported that out of the six $100 FRN passes that AO  was identified making on September 12 
and 14, 2014, three of the registers received only one $100 FRN that day.  Each of those FRNs were identified 
as counterfeit.    On September 23, 2014, the facts of this preliminary investigation will be presented to the 
Intake group.

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 472 Uttering Counterfeit Obligations or Securities of 
the United States

I15-BP-ALP-04220 Alpine, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BORDER PATROL AGENT/0712 Other Criminal/FORT 

STOCKTON, PECOS, TX 1/7/2015 1/7/2015 4/5/2016

On January 6, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Acting Patrol Agent in Charge ((A)PAIC)  Fort Stockton, TX, in which it 
is reported that Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  also of Fort Stockton, allegedly admitted that before 
he joined the Border Patrol he married a foreign national so she could stay in the United States. JIC research 
indicates BPA entered on duty with CBP on January 12, 2009.

3.7 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Immigration fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1425
Procurement of Citizenship or Naturalization 
Unlawfully

I15-BP-BEL-12568 Bellingham, WA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Havre Hill, MT DHS Employee 6/26/2015 6/26/2015 2/16/2016

On June 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail chain from U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Havre, MT, in which he reported 
alleged misconduct on the part of Havre BPA  According to the information provided, on June 
21  2015  BPA was observed on the back porch of his residence smoking "a bowl" of marijuana

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 844 Penalties for Simple Possession

I15-BP-BUF-13409 Buffalo, NY U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Escapee, Clinton Correctional Facility, Dannemora, NY General Public 6/26/2015 7/14/2015 7/28/2016

Assault on a federal officer- SBPA  BORTAC agent from El Paso, TX, who was present in 
Swanton Sector assisting the search for the two escaped prisoners from the Clinton Correctional Facility in 
Dannemora, NY.  SBP  discharged his service weapon, resulting in the death of escaped fugitive

.  DHS OIG agent sent to shooting location and partnered with CBP IA.

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Assault on a Federal Officer
Threatening/Harassmen
t of, or assault on an 
officer

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 111
Assaulting, Resisting or Impeding Certain Officers 
or Employees

I15-BP-DET-17820 Detroit, MI U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) ; U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Drummond Island, MI

DHS Employee 9/28/2015 9/28/2015 2/9/2016

On September 24, 2015,  Border Patrol Agents (BPA), Border Patrol 
(BP), were involved in a shooting with Aaron Furness.  The agents were attempting to help the Michigan State 
Police (MSP), locate a missing individual, however there does no appear to be any evidence that MSP 
requested any assistance from BP.  When located Furness he fired at them and they 
fired back.  It appreas tha hen retreated and called for help.    Furness was later found 
dead, in a cabin, by Michigan State Police (MSP), from what appreared to be a self-inflicted gun shot wound 
to the head.  It was not known if any of  rounds hit Furness.  --  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Drummond Island, MI   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: On Duty

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-DET-17820 Detroit, MI U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) ; U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Drummond Island, MI

DHS Employee 9/28/2015 9/28/2015 2/9/2016

On September 24, 2015,  Border Patrol Agents (BPA), Border Patrol 
(BP), were involved in a shooting with Aaron Furness.  The agents were attempting to help the Michigan State 
Police (MSP), locate a missing individual, however there does no appear to be any evidence that MSP 
requested any assistance from BP.  When located Furness he fired at them and they 
fired back.  It appreas tha hen retreated and called for help.    Furness was later found 
dead, in a cabin, by Michigan State Police (MSP), from what appreared to be a self-inflicted gun shot wound 
to the head.  It was not known if any of  rounds hit Furness.  --  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Drummond Island, MI   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: On Duty

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-ELC-09243 El Centro, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee; Calexico, CA DHS Employee 4/21/2015 4/22/2015 8/1/2016

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), Imperial, CA, received a 
complaint from  Resident Agent in Charge (RAC), Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (BATF), 
Imperial, CA, alleging that , Border Patrol Agent (BPA), U.S. Border Patrol (USBP), Calexico, CA, 
illegally purchased firearms from Sprague???s Sports Incorporated (Inc.), Yuma, AZ, and transported the 
firearms into the state of California.    state listed his current residence as being in Yuma, AZ, 
on the Federal Form 4473 when he purchased firearms from Sprague???s Sports. tated the BATF 
determined that z utilized an address that belongs to  BPA, Calexico, CA, and that 

ad never resided in Yuma, AZ.  -------------------------  Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Yuma, AZ    Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off 
Duty    Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Resident Agent in Charge

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 922 Unlawful acts [Firearms]

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-BP-ELC-16076 El Centro, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Supervisory Border Patrol Agent, Indio, CA DHS Employee 8/30/2015 9/1/2015 1/22/2016

On the night the incident occurred my husband and I went through this check point we go through every 
week on our way back from El Centro (where I attend school every Thursday evening), when we pulled up to 
the check point a very assertive agent began to ask the usual questions such as "Are you both US 
citizens?" In which we replied "Yes Sir."  Although we had already stated that we were US citizens, agent 

proceeded to ask more questions such as "where we were going and where we were coming from & 
so on" which my husband and I both politely answered. Meanwhile agent asked us questions, there 
was a K9 sniffing around.   Agent hen asked if we didn't mind rolling our back (tinted) window down, 
which I did, he then asked me to pop my trunk open which is where I drew the line and refused. The entire 
time agent asked us questions the k9 was sniffing our car not barking or anything. Agent didn't 
ask us to pull over to "secondary" until I refused to open my trunk and questioned why? He obviously did not 
appreciate our questioning him even though we had just answered quite a few of his. Agent then 
stated that the K9 SUPPOSEDLY "indicated" and that was his probable cause for the search. The supervisor on 
duty stated that there are cameras so I'm sure someone can verify weather or not the K9 did or didn't 
"indicate."  After pulling into secondary my husband and I both exited our vehicle and began to voice our 
concerns to the agents, in which time an Agen began to antagonize me for asking questions. The 
agents standing around then told us that we needed to sit down while they conducted their "investigation". 
Agent hen began threatening to throw me in a cell if I didn't sit down. I told her my legs were 
already hurting from the drive and she still kept with the antagonizing comments. My husband and I then 
demanded to speak to a supervisor, shortly after an agent  came out and for no reason was hostile and 
asked my husband who was sitting down already to set down his energy drink and when my husband who 
was not resisting didn't move fast enough for him agen rabbed my husband's wrist with one hand 
while pulling out his taser with the other. To my dismay, I could not believe this was the so called 
"supervisor" on duty was reacting with such unnecessary and  excessive force. I then stood up and picked up 
my husband's phone and began recording this supervisor behavior. Mr hen turned his sights 
to me and began yelling at me to stop recording and came at me aggressively, I was fearful so I stepped back a 
couple feet which is whe  reached me grabbed the phone while another agent whom I don't know his 
name also rushed me from behind while was already coming at me from the front. Agent and 
this other unknown male agent then shoved me against a barricade (even though I was not resisting) and 
proceeded to cuff me  and in doing so they shoved themselves against me and scraped my arms  They then 

4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-ELP-03851 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BORDER PATROL AGENT/Unknown/SANTA TERESA, 

DONA ANA, NM DHS Employee 12/24/2014 12/24/2014 2/3/2016

On December 19, 2014, The U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of  Professional 
Responsibility (OPR), El Paso, Texas, received information from ICE Homeland  Security Investigations (HSI), 
El Paso, Texas, regarding unusual financial transactions conducted  by Mexican nationa

. The information was subsequently  provided to U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Internal Affairs, El Paso, Texas (IA/EP). HSI  reported that on November 17, 2014,  wired funds to U.S. 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  (Santa Teresa, NM) in the amount of $42,000.00. HSI indicated 
that even  thoug inancial activities might be unusual, the wire transfer to BPA  could  
have also been for legitimate reasons

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-BP-ELP-05137 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) Unknown BPA, BP, Alamogordo, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2015 1/28/2015 3/8/2016

On December 11, 2014, CRCL received an email referral from the CBP SITROOM (SIR#15-EPTALA-
121114000010), regarding injuries sustained by  during his arrest on December 10, 2014 by 
CBP Border Patrol agents assigned to the Alamogordo, New Mexico station.  Mr.  who resisted arrest, 
complained of back pain following the arrest, and was evaluated by a Border Patrol EMT, but declined 
medical attention and signed an EMS Refusal Form before his transfer to the Otero County Sherriff's 
Department.  The following day, medical staff determined Mr. had two broken lower lumbar vertebrae 
and he was transported to University Medical Center in El Paso, Texas, for treatment, at which time the 
Alamorgordo, Texas Station took custody of him and assumed guard duties until his transfer/release.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-ELP-05655 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, CBP, LAS CRUCES, DONA ANA, NM DHS Employee 2/9/2015 2/9/2015 3/25/2016

On February 6, 2015, U.S. Customs & Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El Paso,  Texas (IA/EP) 
was contacted by U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Office of  Professional Responsibility 
(ICE/OPR) of an ongoing Homeland Security Investigations, San  Francisco (HSI/SF) child pornography 
investigation involving Child endangerment. DHS Office of  the Inspector General was contacted and as of this 
report has not responded.    BPA is under investigation by the Doan Ana Sheriff's Office for Contributing 
to the Delinquency of a Minor

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-BP-ELP-05887 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
 U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee, Sierra 

Blanca, TX DHS Component 2/12/2015 2/12/2015 2/3/2016

On February 4, 2015, DHS OIG received information from the FBI, DEA and HSI indicating that during the 
course of an active investigation, it was alleged that a BPA may be assisting high level cocaine traffickers 
smuggle narcotics through a Border Patrol checkpoint.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: El Paso, TX  Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On 
Duty

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I15-BP-ELP-06849 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /BORDER PATROL AGENT/0801 Conflict of Interest-
Association with Known Criminals/Illegal Aliens/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX

DHS Employee 3/6/2015 3/6/2015 3/8/2016

On March 3, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and attachment from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Ysleta, TX, in 
which a possible disreputable association on the part of an unidentified Border Patrol Agent (BPA) is 
reported. According to the information provided, Mr. , the registered owner of a vehicle 
associated with alien smuggling and the subject of an ongoing U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(ICE) investigation, claimed his son is a BPA assigned to the Las Cruces (NM) Border Patrol Station. JIC 
research indicates the BPA in question is BPA

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-BP-ELP-06849 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /BORDER PATROL AGENT/0801 Conflict of Interest-
Association with Known Criminals/Illegal Aliens/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX

DHS Employee 3/6/2015 3/6/2015 3/8/2016

On March 3, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and attachment from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Ysleta, TX, in 
which a possible disreputable association on the part of an unidentified Border Patrol Agent (BPA) is 
reported. According to the information provided, Mr. , the registered owner of a vehicle 
associated with alien smuggling and the subject of an ongoing U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(ICE) investigation, claimed his son is a BPA assigned to the Las Cruces (NM) Border Patrol Station. JIC 
research indicates the BPA in question is BPA

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-BP-ELP-06935 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/0712 Other Criminal/EL PASO, EL 
PASO, TX

DHS Employee 3/10/2015 3/10/2015 2/3/2016

On March 6, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email notification  from Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Special Operations Supervisor (SOS) , El Paso, TX, regarding 
information received identifying CBP Border Patrol Agent  (BPA)  Ysleta, TX, as the subject of 
an El Paso, TX, Police Department (EPPD)  sexual assault investigation.    On March 7, 2015, the JIC received 
CBP Significant Incident Report (SIR) #15-EPTYST- 030615000037 regarding the March 6, 2015, on-duty arrest of 
BPA  after a felony  warrant was issued for Sexual Assault of a Minor. The arrest occurred without 
incident.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-BP-ELP-06935 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/0712 Other Criminal/EL PASO, EL 
PASO, TX

DHS Employee 3/10/2015 3/10/2015 2/3/2016

On March 6, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email notification  from Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Special Operations Supervisor (SOS) , El Paso, TX, regarding 
information received identifying CBP Border Patrol Agent  (BPA)  Ysleta, TX, as the subject of 
an El Paso, TX, Police Department (EPPD)  sexual assault investigation.    On March 7, 2015, the JIC received 
CBP Significant Incident Report (SIR) #15-EPTYST- 030615000037 regarding the March 6, 2015, on-duty arrest of 
BPA  after a felony  warrant was issued for Sexual Assault of a Minor. The arrest occurred without 
incident.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-BP-ELP-11632 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU, LNU, BPA, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU General Public 6/5/2015 6/8/2015 11/25/2016

On June 5, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso, TX (OPR/El Paso), received a telephone call 
from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations, Las Cruces, NM (HSI/Las Cruces). SA 

 reported that on June 4, 2015, a cooperating defendant (CD) said that a drug trafficking organization 
(DTO) has recruited six unknown individuals who are allegedly current U.S. Border Patrol (BP) applicants.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-BP-ELP-13380 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA /0201 Smuggling-Drugs/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 7/13/2015 7/13/2015 11/29/2016

On July 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  El Paso, TX. According to the 
information provided, a suspected narcotics smuggler  alleged his contact had ties to an unknown CBP agent 
who is allegedly facilitating drug smuggling  across the US/Mexico border.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I15-BP-ELP-13651 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
FNU LNU/BPA/CBP/0202 Smuggling-Aliens/LAS CRUCES, DONA ANA, 
NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/17/2015 7/17/2015 4/18/2016

On July 16, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Fabens, TX,  regarding an alleged corrupt 
female Border Patrol Agent (BPA) at the Las Cruces, NM,  checkpoint. A pair of alien smugglers in Rancho 
Anapra, Juarez, Mexico, reportedly have a driver  who claims to have a female cousin that is a BPA at the 
checkpoint

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-BP-ELP-13831 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/1204 Falsification-Worker's 
Comp Related/EL  PASO, EL PASO, TX

7/21/2015 7/21/2015 5/11/2016

On July 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the U.S.  Department 
of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) Washington, DC,  reporting their receipt of an 
anonymous allegation that Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  El 
Paso, TX, is committing fraud against the U.S.  Department of Labor (DOL) Office of Workers' Compensation 
Programs (OWCP). According to  the anonymous source, BPA  fabricated or exaggerated the extent of 
his injuries to his  right hand that he allegedly injured in May 2014.  This report documents the relevant 
material received.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-ELP-16506 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
order Patrol Agent, GS 12, U.S. Border Patrol, U.S. 

Customs and Border Protection, Las Cruces, NM, Improper Associations DHS Employee 9/8/2015 9/8/2015 11/25/2016

On September 2, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Lead Border Patrol Agent (LBPA) , Las  Cruces, NM. LBPA
forwarded information that was found as a result of him conducting a  search for alien/narcotics smuggling 
associations of It was reported  that while conducting the search, BPA

 Las Cruces, NM, was associated. BPA was reportedly linked to a vehicle used by subjects 
associated with alien and narcotics  smuggling. BPA has now been associated with additional 
persons who are subjects of ecords related to narcotics and currency smuggling.  This report documents 
the relevant material received.

4.3.11 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Ethics Violations - Non-
Criminal Ethics Violations Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-BP-LAR-08064 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
et. al./BORDER PATROL 

AGENTS/Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law/HEBBRONVILLE, JIM 
HOGG, TX

DHS Employee 3/30/2015 3/30/2015 12/12/2016

On March 25, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (CBP-IA),  Laredo, TX 
received information from CBP, Office of Border Patrol (OBP), Laredo Sector  Processing Center (LRT-PC) 
regarding an undocumented alien (UDA) making an allegation of  excessive use of force during the 
apprehension.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-LAR-08064 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
et. al./BORDER PATROL 

AGENTS/Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law/HEBBRONVILLE, JIM 
HOGG, TX

DHS Employee 3/30/2015 3/30/2015 12/12/2016

On March 25, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (CBP-IA),  Laredo, TX 
received information from CBP, Office of Border Patrol (OBP), Laredo Sector  Processing Center (LRT-PC) 
regarding an undocumented alien (UDA) making an allegation of  excessive use of force during the 
apprehension.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-LAR-13826 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /BPA/0301 Bribery-Bribery/LAREDO, WEBB, TX DHS Employee 7/21/2015 7/21/2015 9/26/2016

On July 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA ,  Laredo, TX, in which alleged 
corruption on the part of an unidentified Laredo Border Patrol Agent  (BPA) is reported. According to the 
information provided, an alien smuggler reportedly told a  driver who expressed concern about the Border 
Patrol's presence, "just go ahead and pick them  up, the guy on the payroll is saying its [sic] clear." The driver 
thinks the smuggler was referring to  a dirty agent

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-BP-MIA-09590 Miami, FL U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BORDER PATROL AGENT/Unknown/MIAMI, 
DADE, FL

DHS Employee 4/27/2015 4/28/2015 1/14/2016

On April 15, 2015, the CBP, Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Miami Field Office (MFO) received information from 
Border Patrol (BP), Miami Sector, regarding BP Agent , Marathon, FL who is believed to 
have travelled to Cuba from Miami International Airport on July 24, 2014, exiting the U.S. under Cuban 
passport # H519329. As per the CBP Automated Targeting System (ATS), BPA eturned to the U.S., 
arriving at Miami International Airport (MIA) on July 31, 2014. Queries of the ATS revealed a possible travel 
companion named, .

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205
Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I15-BP-RGV-10322 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , et al. DHS Employee 5/12/2015 5/12/2015 2/7/2016

On May 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)  Hidalgo,  TX, regarding Border Patrol 
Agent (BPA)  Laredo, TX. On May 8, 2015, BPA was detained at the Hidalgo port of 
entry (POE) as a result of a hit indicating he  may be a Mexican National. ecords reportedly 
indicate that BPA Mexican birth  certificate pre-dates his U.S. birth certificate and his U.S. passport 
has been revoked. No arrests  were made, but BP was issued a Notice to Appear (NTA) and 
paroled into the U.S.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-RGV-10322 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , et al. DHS Employee 5/12/2015 5/12/2015 2/7/2016

On May 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)  Hidalgo,  TX, regarding Border Patrol 
Agent (BPA)  Laredo, TX. On May 8, 2015, BPA was detained at the Hidalgo port of 
entry (POE) as a result of a hit indicating he  may be a Mexican National. ecords reportedly 
indicate that BPA  Mexican birth  certificate pre-dates his U.S. birth certificate and his U.S. passport 
has been revoked. No arrests  were made, but BPA was issued a Notice to Appear (NTA) and 
paroled into the U.S.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-SND-02563 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  CBP, USBPA/San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 11/25/2014 11/25/2014 2/11/2016

On November 20, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington DC, received an information  report 
completed by the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO) Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). The information developed by  AMSCO indicates that Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA)  San Ysidro, CA, is the  subject of a ecord indicating he enters the 
U.S. in a vehicle that bears a license plate not  belonging to the vehicle.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated

Referred - Reply 
Requested Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-SND-02563 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  CBP, USBPA/San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 11/25/2014 11/25/2014 2/11/2016

On November 20, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington DC, received an information  report 
completed by the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO) Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). The information developed by  AMSCO indicates that Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA)  San Ysidro, CA, is the  subject of a ecord indicating he enters the 
U S  in a vehicle that bears a license plate not  belonging to the vehicle

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated

Referred - Reply 
Requested Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I15-BP-SND-02563 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  CBP, USBPA/San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 11/25/2014 11/25/2014 2/11/2016

On November 20, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington DC, received an information  report 
completed by the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO) Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). The information developed by  AMSCO indicates that Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA)  San Ysidro, CA, is the  subject of a ecord indicating he enters the 
U.S. in a vehicle that bears a license plate not  belonging to the vehicle.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated

Referred - Reply 
Requested Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I15-BP-SND-02563 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  CBP, USBPA/San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 11/25/2014 11/25/2014 2/11/2016

On November 20, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington DC, received an information  report 
completed by the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO) Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). The information developed by  AMSCO indicates that Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA)  San Ysidro, CA, is the  subject of a ecord indicating he enters the 
U.S. in a vehicle that bears a license plate not  belonging to the vehicle.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated

Referred - Reply 
Requested Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-BP-SND-04467 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SBPA/San Diego, CA DHS Employee 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 5/13/2016

On January 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center, Washington, DC, received Customs and Border Protection (CBP) 
significant incident report (SIR) #15-SDCSDC-010915000009 from the CBP Commissioner's Situation Room 
regarding the on-duty arrest of CBP Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  San Diego, 
CA, by the San Diego Police Department (SDPD) and charged with a sex offense.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Information Only Referred - No Reply Local Violation

I15-BP-SND-04467 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SBPA/San Diego, CA DHS Employee 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 5/13/2016

On January 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center, Washington, DC, received Customs and Border Protection (CBP) 
significant incident report (SIR) #15-SDCSDC-010915000009 from the CBP Commissioner's Situation Room 
regarding the on-duty arrest of CBP Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  San Diego, 
CA  by the San Diego Police Department (SDPD) and charged with a sex offense

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-SND-04467 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SBPA/San Diego, CA DHS Employee 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 5/13/2016

On January 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center, Washington, DC, received Customs and Border Protection (CBP) 
significant incident report (SIR) #15-SDCSDC-010915000009 from the CBP Commissioner's Situation Room 
regarding the on-duty arrest of CBP Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  San Diego, 
CA, by the San Diego Police Department (SDPD) and charged with a sex offense.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-BP-SND-05171 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) Unknown BPA, San Diego, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 11/15/2016

On January 21, 2015, U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Office of Internal Affairs Los Angeles  (IA/Los 
Angeles) Special Agent (SA) nd U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement (ICE) 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) SA nterviewed an  ICE document confidential 
informant (CI). During the interview the C 1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-BP-SND-06216 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  (Non-DHS Employee) DHS Employee 2/21/2015 2/23/2015 4/21/2016

On February 18, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security Office of 
Inspector General, San Diego, California (CA), received notification from  SA, Customs and 
Border Protection,  Internal Affairs, San Diego, CA regarding two on-duty Border Patrol Agents (BPA's), U.S. 
Border Patrol (USBP) assigned to the Brown Field U.S. Border Patrol Station, San Diego, CA that were involved 
in a vehicle pursuit, which resulted in agents firing at the vehicle after the occupant and vehicle attempted to 
run over the BPA's. The subject vehicle was determined to be smuggling an undetermined amount of 
undocumented aliens (UDAs) into the United States from Mexico. The UDAs fled the scene and were 
subsequently apprehended by the USBP.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: This complaint is submitted as a field orginated complaint.   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: SA

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Assault on a Federal Officer
Threatening/Harassmen
t of, or assault on an 
officer

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-SND-06216 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  (Non-DHS Employee) DHS Employee 2/21/2015 2/23/2015 4/21/2016

On February 18, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security Office of 
Inspector General, San Diego, California (CA), received notification from , SA, Customs and 
Border Protection,  Internal Affairs, San Diego, CA regarding two on-duty Border Patrol Agents (BPA's), U.S. 
Border Patrol (USBP) assigned to the Brown Field U.S. Border Patrol Station, San Diego, CA that were involved 
in a vehicle pursuit, which resulted in agents firing at the vehicle after the occupant and vehicle attempted to 
run over the BPA's. The subject vehicle was determined to be smuggling an undetermined amount of 
undocumented aliens (UDAs) into the United States from Mexico. The UDAs fled the scene and were 
subsequently apprehended by the USBP.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: This complaint is submitted as a field orginated complaint.   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: SA

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Assault on a Federal Officer
Threatening/Harassmen
t of, or assault on an 
officer

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-SND-06216 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  (Non-DHS Employee) General Public 2/21/2015 2/23/2015 4/21/2016

On February 18, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security Office of 
Inspector General, San Diego, California (CA), received notification from  SA, Customs and 
Border Protection,  Internal Affairs, San Diego, CA regarding two on-duty Border Patrol Agents (BPA's), U.S. 
Border Patrol (USBP) assigned to the Brown Field U.S. Border Patrol Station, San Diego, CA that were involved 
in a vehicle pursuit, which resulted in agents firing at the vehicle after the occupant and vehicle attempted to 
run over the BPA's. The subject vehicle was determined to be smuggling an undetermined amount of 
undocumented aliens (UDAs) into the United States from Mexico. The UDAs fled the scene and were 
subsequently apprehended by the USBP.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: This complaint is submitted as a field orginated complaint.   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: SA

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Assault on a Federal Officer
Threatening/Harassmen
t of, or assault on an 
officer

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-BP-SND-06216 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  (Non-DHS Employee) General Public 2/21/2015 2/23/2015 4/21/2016

On February 18, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security Office of 
Inspector General, San Diego, California (CA), received notification from , SA, Customs and 
Border Protection,  Internal Affairs, San Diego, CA regarding two on-duty Border Patrol Agents (BPA's), U.S. 
Border Patrol (USBP) assigned to the Brown Field U.S. Border Patrol Station, San Diego, CA that were involved 
in a vehicle pursuit, which resulted in agents firing at the vehicle after the occupant and vehicle attempted to 
run over the BPA's. The subject vehicle was determined to be smuggling an undetermined amount of 
undocumented aliens (UDAs) into the United States from Mexico. The UDAs fled the scene and were 
subsequently apprehended by the USBP.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: This complaint is submitted as a field orginated complaint.   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: SA

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Assault on a Federal Officer
Threatening/Harassmen
t of, or assault on an 
officer

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 111
Assaulting, Resisting or Impeding Certain Officers 
or Employees

I15-BP-SND-10997 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, El Cajon, CA DHS Employee 5/22/2015 5/26/2015 2/10/2016

On May 21, 2015, US Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA), San Diego, California 
(CA), received an email with attachments from Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  
Professional Standards Division, San Diego, CA, regarding a search warrant (SW) executed at the former home 
of Border Patrol Agent (BPA , El Cajon, CA, by the Army Criminal Investigation Division (CID) 
from Fort Irwin, CA, on May 16, 2015.    BPA  was present and spoke briefly to investigators. The SW 
targeted BPA  wife (formerly with the military) and involved alleged stolen military weapons. BPA 

 later admitted knowledge of the weapons and in addition, had given one weapon to former BPA 
rom Florida.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2315
Sale or receipt of stolen goods, securities, 
moneys, or fraud. State tax stamps

I15-BP-SND-15199 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Campo, CA DHS Employee 8/14/2015 8/17/2015 4/25/2016

On August 11, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office of 
Inspector General, San Diego, California (CA), received email correspondence from  Supervisor 
Border Patrol Agent (SBPA), U.S. Border Patrol (USBP), Chula Vista Station, Chula Vista, California, stating that 

 Deputy Patrol Agent-in-Charge (DPAC), USBP, Campo Border Patrol Station, Campo, 
California,     reported that on August 10, 2015, at approximately 2:00 pm, Pacific Standard Time (PST),

 Border Patrol Agent (BPA), USBP, Campo Border Patrol Station, Campo, California had fired one 
round into the ground from his service issued weapon during the apprehension of approximately four 
unspecified undocumented aliens (UDAs).  It was further alleged that on August 10, 2015, at approximately 
11:00 pm (PST) made his initial report to egarding the intentional discharge of his weapon 
and tha had delayed reporting the incident in a timely matter.  indicated that were no injuries 
sustained by the BPAs involved in the incident or the four UDAs that were apprehended.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: This complaint is submitted as field orginated complaint.    
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent (DOB

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-BP-SND-15199 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Campo, CA DHS Employee 8/14/2015 8/17/2015 4/25/2016

On August 11, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office of 
Inspector General, San Diego, California (CA), received email correspondence from  Supervisor 
Border Patrol Agent (SBPA), U.S. Border Patrol (USBP), Chula Vista Station, Chula Vista, California, stating that 

 Deputy Patrol Agent-in-Charge (DPAC), USBP, Campo Border Patrol Station, Campo, 
California,     reported that on August 10, 2015, at approximately 2:00 pm, Pacific Standard Time (PST),

 Border Patrol Agent (BPA), USBP, Campo Border Patrol Station, Campo, California had fired one 
round into the ground from his service issued weapon during the apprehension of approximately four 
unspecified undocumented aliens (UDAs).  It was further alleged that on August 10, 2015, at approximately 
11:00 pm (PST) made his initial report to egarding the intentional discharge of his weapon 
and tha had delayed reporting the incident in a timely matter.  indicated that were no injuries 
sustained by the BPAs involved in the incident or the four UDAs that were apprehended.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: This complaint is submitted as field orginated complaint.    
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent (DOB:

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-SND-17088 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Border Patrol Agent, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 4/19/2016

On September 11, 2015, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs  (IA), San Diego, 
Senior Special Agent (SSA) eceived a phone call from Resident  Agent in Charge, Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement, Office of Professional Responsibility,  According to the 
information, on September 8 or 9, 2015, Border Patrol Agent  (BPA allegedly drove his 
assigned CBP government own vehicle (GOV) to and  from a bar, where he consumed alcohol. It was also 
alleged BPA ttempted to rape a  female he took home from the bar

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - Reply 
Requested

Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-BP-SND-17088 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Border Patrol Agent, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 4/19/2016

On September 11, 2015, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs  (IA), San Diego, 
Senior Special Agent (SSA) eceived a phone call from Resident  Agent in Charge, Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement, Office of Professional Responsibility,  According to the 
information, on September 8 or 9, 2015, Border Patrol Agent  (BPA allegedly drove his 
assigned CBP government own vehicle (GOV) to and  from a bar, where he consumed alcohol. It was also 
alleged BPA ttempted to rape a  female he took home from the bar.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - Reply 
Requested

Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-BP-SND-17088 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Border Patrol Agent, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 4/19/2016

On September 11, 2015, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs  (IA), San Diego, 
Senior Special Agent (SSA) eceived a phone call from Resident  Agent in Charge, Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement, Office of Professional Responsibility,  According to the 
information, on September 8 or 9, 2015, Border Patrol Agent  (BPA allegedly drove his 
assigned CBP government own vehicle (GOV) to and  from a bar, where he consumed alcohol. It was also 
alleged BPA ttempted to rape a  female he took home from the bar.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - Reply 
Requested

Judicial Disposition Local Violation

I15-BP-SVA-06172 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Douglas, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/20/2015 2/20/2015 5/3/2016

On February 3, 2015,  Border Patrol Agent, (BPA)  Border Patrol Station, Naco, AZ, 
conducted a custodial interview with  a Mexican National arrested for 
illegal entry.  During the interview,  alleged to have information on an unknown corrupt BPA, 
who is assigned to the Douglas, AZ area of operations and assumes the BPA is assigned to the Douglas, AZ 
Border Patrol Station. uggested that the unknown BPA assists a drug trafficking organization, 
based in Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico with the smuggling and movement of narcotics throughout 
southeastern Arizona.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-BP-SVA-12253 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, UNK FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/22/2015 6/22/2015 2/29/2016

On May 26, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson), met with a  Source of 
Information (SOI) who stated he/she wanted to report an unknown United States Border  Patrol Agent (BPA) 
for possible alien smuggling and selling sensitive government data.  This report of investigation serves to 
document the report of allegation made by the SOI

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-BP-TUC-01407 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, TUC, AZ DHS Employee 10/28/2014 10/28/2014 1/25/2016

On October 24, 2014, at approximately 10:42 am, the CBP-IA/SAIC Tucson Duty Agent was  notified of a Border 
Patrol involved shooting incident which occurred in a desert area southeast of  the intersection of West 
Valencia Road and SR 86. According to the initial information received,  on the same date, at approximately 
10:20 am (MST), Tucson Sector Border Patrol Search,  Trauma, and Rescue (BORSTAR) Agents
and  were tracking a  group of 3 to 5 possible undocumented aliens (UDA) southwest of Tucson, 
Arizona. The Agents  encountered one subject wearing body armor and carrying a firearm. A shooting incident  
occurred, and the armed suspect was shot in the face.  10.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-BP-TUC-10096 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Nogales, AZ General Public 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 2/24/2016

On April 27, 2015,  Senior Special Agent, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), Tucson, AZ, telephonically spoke to a Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) 
confidential informant (CI)).  The CI state

 Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Interstate 19 BP Checkpoint   Public website complainant indicated that the subject had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: School Teacher at Nogales Unified School District

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-BP-TUC-10096 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 2/24/2016

On April 27, 2015,  Senior Special Agent, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), Tucson, AZ, telephonically spoke to a Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) 
confidential informant (CI)).  The CI state

--  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Interstate 19 BP Checkpoint   Public website complainant indicated that the subject had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: School Teacher at Nogales Unified School District

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-BP-TUC-10572 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 5/18/2015 5/18/2015 2/25/2016

FBI analysis reveal substantial cash deposits and large amounts of money being spent at casinos by Border 
Patrol Agent ederal salary is approximately $5,000 per month.  However, in a five month 
time span, tilized approximately $400,000 in cash at two casinos in Tucson, Arizona. Generally, the cash 
amounts  brought into the casinos do not correspond with amounts withdrawn from bank account, 
indicating  brought thousands of additional dollars into the casinos which were never in his account. The 
origin of these funds is unknown at this time. The only additional income has reported is $1,500 per year 
that makes as a disc jockey. While the large dollar amounts being spent at casinos is suspicious, the fact 
that the funds were mostly cash, further suggests a dubious origin. Bank records also show large cash 
deposits being made into  bank accounts, approximately $128,100 during this same five month time 
frame.  ----------------  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Tucson, AZ   Public 
website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Criminal Investigator   Public website 
complainant indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent

4.2.1 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Lifestyle Anomalies Lifestyle Anomalies Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-BP-TUC-11016 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Casa Grande, AZ DHS Employee 5/26/2015 5/27/2015 4/27/2016

On May 19, 2015,  Special Agents (SAs), Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Office of the Inspector General (OIG), Tucson, AZ, interviewed a source of information (SOI) with 
alleged information on a corrupt Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

  

 
  ----------

-------------  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Casa Grande, Az    Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-BP-TUC-11016 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Casa Grande, AZ Grant Applicant 5/26/2015 5/27/2015 4/27/2016

On May 19, 2015,  Special Agents (SAs), Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Office of the Inspector General (OIG), Tucson, AZ, interviewed a source of information (SOI) with 
alleged information on a corrupt Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

  

 ----------
-------------  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Casa Grande, Az    Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-BP-TUC-16799 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Three Points, AZ FNU  LNU 9/11/2015 9/15/2015 1/7/2016

On August 5, 2015,  Senior Special Agent (SSA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Office of Inspector General (OIG), Tucson, AZ, and  Lead Border Patrol Agent, Assigned to DHS 
OIG, Tucson, AZ, interviewed  after he was arrested for possession of 
narcotics. had already been administered his rights per Miranda and had waived his right to have an 
attorney present. was interviewed while in custody at the Border Patrol Tucson Coordinating 
Center (TCC), Tucson, AZ.  He stated as follows:    is a member of a Mexican drug 
trafficking organization (DTO).  works with an unknown corrupt Border Patrol Agent (BPA) to 
smuggle narcotics into the United States.  The BPA travels to Puerto Pe??asco, Sonora, Mexico, and meets 
with egularly.  When the BPA returns to Arizona he communicates with  via a cell 
phone.  Backpackers then transport Marijuana into the United States and drop it off in the desert.  They give 
the coordinates to the BPA who picks it up.  The head of the DTO in that plaza is an individual known as El 20.  -
-  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 3 Points AZ   Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Senior Special Agent

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ALP-02288 Alpine, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) ,CBP, PRESIDIO, TX DHS Employee 11/17/2014 11/20/2014 4/5/2016

On November 16, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email and attachments 
from U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) duty 
agent, Tampa, FL, in which an allegation of misconduct is lodged against U.S. Customs and Border Protection 
(CBP) CBP Officer (CBPO)  Presidio, TX. According to the information provided by the ICE-OPR 
duty agent, Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO)  also of Presidio, alleges CBPO made 
statements to the effect that he used to be a member of a gang in Los Angeles, that he sold marijuana along 
with his brother, and his car was detained by Border Patrol and that during a subsequent search of the vehicle 
Border Patrol Agents (BPAs) found residue of marijuana.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-CBP-ALP-04283 Alpine, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Presidio, TX General Public 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 9/16/2016

On December 17, 2014, DHS OIG Alpine Sub Office was notified by  Supervisory Customs and 
Border Protection Officer (SCBPO), Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Presidio, Texas of an incident 
inwhich  Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO), CBP, Presidio was bribed by civilian 

    On December 16, 2014, while working primary inspection at the Port of Enrty (POE), 
Presidio, Texas, CBPO was approached by  and asked if he  would assist in crossing 
her husband / boyfriend into the United States via the POE. tated to he did not have the 
money to pay for proper immigration documents and mentioned it would be much easier and faster if
would assist her. rovided CBPO with her cellular phone number and name of 
husband/boyfriend as       CBPO  believed based on  statements 
and body language that she was attempting to bribe him.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Port of Entry (POE), Presidio, TX  Public website complainant indicated that the subject 

had miscellaneous identifiers of: Unknown

1.9 Employee Corruption Bribery - Good Guy Bribery - Good Guy Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ALP-15793 Alpine, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) UNKNOWN CBPO, PRESIDIO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/26/2015 9/1/2015 3/8/2016

On August 21, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a call via the JIC  Hotline from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (CBPO)   Presidio, TX. It was reported on this 
same date during the deportation interview of  stated she was told to obtain 
a Visa and Passport and to report on a  certain date and time to a certain pedestrian lane and an unknown 
Presidio CBPO would "wave  her through." Additional information will be forthcoming.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I15-CBP-ALP-15948 Alpine, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU,CBPO,CBP, Presidio, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/27/2015 8/28/2015 8/26/2016

On August 26, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA ,  Buffalo, NY, who reported 
that an unidentified CBP Officer (CBPO) in Presidio, TX, may be  facilitating the smuggling of narcotics into the 
U.S.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ALP-17351 Alpine, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , Non-DHS Employee General Public 9/21/2015 9/21/2015 3/8/2016

On September 20, 2015, at approximately 1545 hrs, a blue Ford pickup truck bearing Mexican plates
attempted to make entry via vehiclar primary lane at the Presidio, Texas Port of Entry (POE).  The single 
occupant was identified as  and presented his DSP-150 Laser Visa.   was 
referred to vehicular secondary for further inspection.    In secondary  admitted to the Customs and 
Border Protection Officer (CBPO) that he was coming to the United States to seek employment.    Due to the 
fact tha  did not present the proper documents for employment was found to be inadmissible.    At 
approximately 2050 hours, while the CBPO was processing or an Expendited Removal, offered the 
CBPO approximately $1,230.00 USD to release him from CBP custody. urther requested the CBPO to 
delete his information from the law enforcement systems and to provide him with an I-94 Trave Permit 
allowing him to continue into the United States. tated to the CBPO that he would give the CBPO an 
additional amount of money afte  returned from Odessa, Texas.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Port of Entry (POE), Presidio, Texas   Public website complainant indicated that 
the subject had miscellaneous identifiers of: Unknown

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ALP-17351 Alpine, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , Non-DHS Employee General Public 9/21/2015 9/21/2015 3/8/2016

On September 20, 2015, at approximately 1545 hrs, a blue Ford pickup truck bearing Mexican plates
attempted to make entry via vehiclar primary lane at the Presidio, Texas Port of Entry (POE).  The single 
occupant was identified as  and presented his DSP-150 Laser Visa.   was 
referred to vehicular secondary for further inspection.    In secondary  admitted to the Customs and 
Border Protection Officer (CBPO) that he was coming to the United States to seek employment.    Due to the 
fact tha  did not present the proper documents for employment was found to be inadmissible.    At 
approximately 2050 hours, while the CBPO was processing or an Expendited Removal, offered the 
CBPO approximately $1,230.00 USD to release him from CBP custody urther requested the CBPO to 
delete his information from the law enforcement systems and to provide him with an I-94 Trave Permit 
allowing him to continue into the United States tated to the CBPO that he would give the CBPO an 
additional amount of money afte  returned from Odessa, Texas.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Port of Entry (POE), Presidio, Texas   Public website complainant indicated that 
the subject had miscellaneous identifiers of: Unknown

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1325(a) Improper Entry by Alien

I15-CBP-ATL-15454 Atlanta, GA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0902 Disclosure-Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Information/DURHAM,  DURHAM, NC

DHS Employee 8/20/2015 8/20/2015 7/14/2016

On August 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Port Director (APD)  Charlotte,  NC, regarding CBP Officer 
(CBPO)  Durham, NC. It was alleged that CBPO  alerted a broker to an enforcement 
exam CBP planned to conduct and invited the broker to  send a representative to observe the exam. It was 
also alleged that CBPO  was either  being manipulated by the broker or was "manipulate-able."

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I15-CBP-BEL-13850 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP Officer, Blaine, WA DHS Employee 7/21/2015 7/21/2015 3/18/2016

On July 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and attached  .zip file from 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Information and Technology  (OIT), Computer Security 
Incident Response Center (CSIRC), Springfield, VA, in which it is  reported that CBP Officer (CBPO)

Blaine, WA, accessed pornographic material  from a CBP workstation.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030

Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-CBP-BLX-17437 Biloxi, MS U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP Officer, CBP, Gulfport, MS DHS Employee 9/22/2015 9/22/2015 6/29/2016

On September 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Supervisory 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO) , Gulfport, MS.  SCBPO advised that he 
received information that the wife of CBPO   Gulfport, MS, is the subject of a warrant for 
felony theft and Forgery. It was reported CBPO  was aware of the warrant in December 2014 and failed 
to notify CBP. It was also  reported that in December 2014, CBP ontacted Detective f the 
Morristown  (TN) Police Department (MPD) and advised he and his wife would be coming to Tennessee after  
Christmas 2014. Detective  extended professional courtesy to CBPO E but he and his  wife never 
went to the MPD to address the warrant.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-BOS-15919 Boston, MA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-

Association with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/WILLISTON, 
CHITTENDEN, VT

DHS Employee 8/27/2015 8/27/2015 3/22/2016

On August 26, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Trusted Traveler Vetting Center, Williston, VT. According  to the information 
received, on August 23, 2015, CBP Officer (CBPO)  Boston, MA, applied for 
and has since been denied the opportunity to participate  in the Global Entry Trusted Traveler Program. The 
denial was based upon an address check that  produced Record P8D60479100CIB fo

 who has an  extensive criminal record (including drug charges).  This report documents 
the relevant material received.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-CBP-BUF-10117 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BUFFALO, ERIE, NY DHS Employee 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 12/29/2016

On May 6, 2015, Watch Commander (WC  Port of Buffalo, called Special Agent (SA)  
CBP Office of Internal Affairs, Buffalo, NY (IA/Buffalo), and reported that Customs and Border Protecton 
Offiicer CBPO has been interviewed on two occasions by an Investigator from the Lewiston, NY, 
Police Department (LPD) in regards to an unlicensed/unregistered firearms investigation. Later the same 
date, WC ent SA an email providing details of the investigation.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 922 Unlawful acts [Firearms]

I15-CBP-BUF-13539 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BUFFALO, ERIE, NY DHS Employee 7/15/2015 7/15/2015 1/29/2016

On July 12, 2015 Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Watch Commander (WC) rom the 
Buffalo Field Office contacted CBP Office of Internal Affairs (CBP/IA) Special  Agent (SA) nd 
reported that the North Tonawanda, New York Police Department  had contacted the port to advise that they 
had received an allegation of rape against Customs and  Border Protection Officer (CBPO) port of 
Buffalo. The North Tonawanda, New York  Police Department has initiated an investigation, and no charges 
have been filed to date

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-CBP-BUF-17597 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, CBP, Toronto, Ontario, Canada DHS Employee 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 12/28/2016

On September 22, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)   Toronto, Ontario, Canada, 
regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)  Toronto, Ontario,  Canada. A detective from the Toronto Police 
Service (TPS) advised that CBP may have  information about a nightclub shooting in which two people 
were killed. A badge was found at the  scene of the shooting and CBPO ame back to the club to claim 
it. CBPO provided his name and telephone number to TPS officers when he retrieved the badge.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-CBP-CHI-04939 Chicago, IL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) DRAWBACK SPECIALIST/0301 Bribery-
Bribery/CHICAGO, COOK, IL

DHS Employee 1/22/2015 1/26/2015 2/9/2016

On January 21, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email and attachment from 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of International Trade (OT) Director
Washington, DC, in which an allegation of corruption is lodged against Drawback Specialist
Chicago, IL. According to the information from Director Harmon, an anonymous complainant sent a letter in 
which they allege Mr. ccepted bribes beginning on or around September 1, 2013, in order to accept 
all rejected drawback claims

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-DAL-04850 Dallas, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association 
with Known Criminals/Illegal Aliens/DALLAS, DALLAS, TX

DHS Employee 1/21/2015 1/21/2015 2/26/2016

On January 20, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a phone call via the 1-877-
2INTAKE Hotline and a subsequent email from U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland 
Security Investigations (HSI) Special Agent (SA)  Dallas, TX, in which an allegation of corruption is 
lodged against U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (CBPO)  also of Dallas. 
According to SA  a source of information alleges a friend of CBPO whom he helped obtain 
employment for at the Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport, Ms indicated CBPO 

is involved with the "CARTEL" and that her husband is a narcotics dealer.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-DET-16114 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/0601 Detainee/Alien - Abuse (Physical 
Abuse)/DETROIT,  WAYNE, MI

DHS Employee 8/31/2015 8/31/2015 3/7/2016

On August 27, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Port Director (APD)  Detroit, MI,  regarding a complaint made 
by  a civilian, on behalf of her husband, .  Mrs  alleged that her husband was 
screamed at, handcuffed and thrown on a table during  inspection. Mrs.  also alleged that her husband 
received a large hemorrhage on his right wrist  and deep marks from the handcuffs. APD dvised that 
the inspecting officer was CBP  Officer (CBPO)  Detroit  MI

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-CBP-DRT-06994 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Eagle Pass, TX, et al

DHS Employee 3/10/2015 3/11/2015 10/10/2016

, CBPO, Eagle Pas POE and has two brother  who are Border Patrol 
Agents (BPAs), and play soccer in Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico lleged that might be 
transporting cocaine into the United States secreted within soccer balls and then transporting the cocaine to 
unknown individuals in Uvalde, Texas  was unsure if the brothers were involved in ??s illegal 
activities.      A separate Source of Information (SOI), claimed that an unknown CBPO, who has a brother that is 
a BPA, is allowing UDAs to enter the United States, via the Eagle Pass POE for an unknown monetary fee.   The 
SOI added that the CBPO and his brother play soccer in Piedras Negras, Mexico.    ??? CBPO - 
DOB  BPA/UVA ??? DOB,

 ??? BPA/CAR ??? DOB     Please Box 3 and assign to
 SA, DHS OIG, Del Rio Sub Office, Del Rio, Texas.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 

incident location was: Eagle Pass, Texas   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject 
was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers 
of: Customs and Border Protection Officer, Eagle Pass Port of Entry   Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-DRT-06994 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Eagle Pass, TX, et al

DHS Employee 3/10/2015 3/11/2015 10/10/2016

, CBPO, Eagle Pas POE and has two brother  who are Border Patrol 
Agents (BPAs), and play soccer in Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico. lleged that might be 
transporting cocaine into the United States secreted within soccer balls and then transporting the cocaine to 
unknown individuals in Uvalde, Texas.  was unsure if the brothers were involved in ?s illegal 
activities.      A separate Source of Information (SOI), claimed that an unknown CBPO, who has a brother that is 
a BPA, is allowing UDAs to enter the United States, via the Eagle Pass POE for an unknown monetary fee.   The 
SOI added that the CBPO and his brother play soccer in Piedras Negras, Mexico.    ??? CBPO - 
DOB - SSN  David Contreras - BPA/UVA ??? DOB, SN,

 ??? BPA/CAR ??? DOB     Please Box 3 and assign to
 SA, DHS OIG, Del Rio Sub Office, Del Rio, Texas.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 

incident location was: Eagle Pass, Texas   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject 
was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers 
of: Customs and Border Protection Officer, Eagle Pass Port of Entry   Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-DRT-06994 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Eagle Pass, TX, et al

DHS Employee 3/10/2015 3/11/2015 10/10/2016

 CBPO, Eagle Pas POE and has two brother who are Border Patrol 
Agents (BPAs), and play soccer in Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico.  Huerta alleged that might be 
transporting cocaine into the United States secreted within soccer balls and then transporting the cocaine to 
unknown individuals in Uvalde, Texas.  was unsure if the brothers were involved in ??s illegal 
activities.      A separate Source of Information (SOI), claimed that an unknown CBPO, who has a brother that is 
a BPA, is allowing UDAs to enter the United States, via the Eagle Pass POE for an unknown monetary fee.   The 
SOI added that the CBPO and his brother play soccer in Piedras Negras, Mexico.    ??? CBPO - 
DOB  BPA/UVA ??? DOB,

 ??? BPA/CAR ???     Please Box 3 and assign to
 SA, DHS OIG, Del Rio Sub Office, Del Rio, Texas.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 

incident location was: Eagle Pass, Texas   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject 
was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers 
of: Customs and Border Protection Officer, Eagle Pass Port of Entry   Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject Contreras had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ELC-03401 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP AG Specialist, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 12/15/2014 12/15/2014 1/22/2016

On December 10, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, El  Centro, CA 
(IA/El Centro), received information from Assistant Port Director (APD)   Calexico, CA. APD 

eported CBP Agriculture Specialist (AS)  Calexico,  has misused her position and 
engaged in integrity related misconduct. According to APD   a recent audit of commercial truck driver 

 shipments revealed AS has  been heavily involved in the inspection and release of 
 commercial entries. and  AS have been in a dating relationship for a number of 

years; AS, AS s  currently pregnant with s child.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I15-CBP-ELC-04345 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown, CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU 1/9/2015 1/9/2015 4/21/2016

On January 8, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), El Centro 
Resident Office (ECRO), Imperial, CA, received information from  Border Patrol Agent 
(BPA), United States (U.S.) Border Patrol (USBP), detailed to the Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms 
(BATF), Imperial, CA.    stated a Confidential Informant (CI) informed him that

 

  
--  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: East Calexico Port of Entry, Calexico, CA 

 Calexico, CA

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ELC-04345 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown, CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU 1/9/2015 1/9/2015 4/21/2016

On January 8, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), El Centro 
Resident Office (ECRO), Imperial, CA, received information from  Border Patrol Agent 
(BPA), United States (U.S.) Border Patrol (USBP), detailed to the Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms 
(BATF), Imperial, CA.     stated a Confidential Informant (CI) informed him tha

  
--  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: East Calexico Port of Entry, Calexico, CA 

 Calexico, CA

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-CBP-ELC-06211 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA
Alien (Not 
Detainee) 2/20/2015 2/25/2015 1/11/2016

On February 20, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), El Centro, California and  SA, DHS, OIG, Yuma, Arizona, 
interviewed a Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), Yuma, Arizona Confidential Source (CS),  

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

  [Agent???s 
Note: A ??? entries into the United States revealed that he did not have any pedestrian 
entries through the CAL POE in October or November 2014, and one pedestrian entry through the CAL POE on 
December 7, 2014 at approximately 3:22 p.m.]  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Mexicali  Baja California  Mexico   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of 

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-CBP-ELC-06211 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA Jorge  Burgos DHS Employee 2/20/2015 2/25/2015 1/11/2016

On February 20, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), El Centro, California and  SA, DHS, OIG, Yuma, Arizona, 
interviewed a Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), Yuma, Arizona Confidential Source (CS),  

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

gent???s 
Note: A ??? entries into the United States revealed that he did not have any pedestrian 
entries through the CAL POE in October or November 2014, and one pedestrian entry through the CAL POE on 
December 7, 2014 at approximately 3:22 p.m.]  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Mexicali  Baja California  Mexico   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of 

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I15-CBP-ELC-06815 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, ANDRADE, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/6/2015 3/6/2015 1/11/2016

On February 25, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Assistant 
Special Agent in Charge (ASAC)/Yuma reported to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico 
that he received information from a source of information indicating an unknown Customs and Border 
Protection Officer, at the Andrade, CA Port of Entry (POE) was facilitating the smuggling of narcotics into the 
United States through the Andrade POE

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-CBP-ELC-07409 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Andrade, CA DHS Employee 3/17/2015 3/17/2015 1/22/2016

On March 13, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from U.S.  Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigation (HSI) Group  Supervisor (GS)

 New York, NY, in which corruption on the part of a U.S.  Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer 
(CBPO) assigned in the Andrade, CA, area is  reported. According to the information provided, on February 13, 
2015, a suspected narcotics  smuggler stated that he met with an alleged corrupt CBPO whom he identified as 

 LNU in  November 2014 and she told him that she would accept $3,000 to allow a vehicle to pass through  
the port in the Andrade, CA, area. CBPO  Tecate, CA, was identified as the  alleged subject of 
the above-referenced allegation.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ELC-09123 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown,  CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/20/2015 4/20/2015 8/1/2016

In April 2015, United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  
Responsibility (OPR) Calexico, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  received an allegation  pertaining to 
a possible corrupt Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO) assigned to the  Calexico, California Port of 
Entry (POE).  This Report of Investigation documents the information received from a Source of Information  
(SOI)

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-ELC-09983 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 2/23/2016

On April 28, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from U.S. 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security  Investigations (HSI) Supervisory Special 
Agent (SSA)  Calexico, CA, in which  allegations of corruption are lodged against U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Officer  (CBPO) , also of Calexico. According to the information 
provided, a drug trafficking  organization (DTO) allegedly pays CBPO $30,000 for each narcotic shipment 
he allows to  pass through his primary inspection lane at the Calexico West port of entry (POE).

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ELC-11259 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Border Patrol Agent, El Centro, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/1/2015 6/1/2015 1/26/2016

On May 27, 2015, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), U.S. Customs and Border Protection,  Office of 
Internal Affairs, El Centro, CA (IA/El Centro) and DHS, Office of Inspector General, El  Centro, CA (OIG/El 
Centro) received information from Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  El Centro, 
regarding the arrest of BPA  father, , for harboring 
undocumented aliens (UDAs)   This report details the information received

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-ELC-11259 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Border Patrol Agent, El Centro, CA DHS Employee 6/1/2015 6/1/2015 1/26/2016

On May 27, 2015, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), U.S. Customs and Border Protection,  Office of 
Internal Affairs, El Centro, CA (IA/El Centro) and DHS, Office of Inspector General, El  Centro, CA (OIG/El 
Centro) received information from Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  El Centro, 
regarding the arrest of BPA  father,  for harboring 
undocumented aliens (UDAs)   This report details the information received

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-ELC-11259 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Border Patrol Agent, El Centro, CA DHS Employee 6/1/2015 6/1/2015 1/26/2016

On May 27, 2015, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), U.S. Customs and Border Protection,  Office of 
Internal Affairs, El Centro, CA (IA/El Centro) and DHS, Office of Inspector General, El  Centro, CA (OIG/El 
Centro) received information from Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA) , El Centro, 
regarding the arrest of BPA  father,  for harboring 
undocumented aliens (UDAs).  This report details the information received.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-CBP-ELC-12335 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 6/23/2015 6/23/2015 1/11/2016

On June 15, 2015, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR) Calexico, Senior Special Agent (SSA) eceived a call from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Branch Chief  who reported his concern  regarding the behavior displayed by 
a CBP Officer upon the discovery of a marijuana load  intercepted at the Calexico West Port of Entry (POE).  
This Report of Investigation serves to document the notification made by CBP Branch Chief

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I15-CBP-ELC-13487 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) BPA, El Centro, CA DHS Employee 7/15/2015 7/15/2015 6/14/2016

On July 10, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, El Centro, CA  (IA/El Centro), 
received information from Border Patrol Agent (BPA) , El Centro, CA,  regarding BP

 El Centro. BP tated he received information from  former BPA  El Centro, that 
BPA attended a party at Rancho La Palma  Boarding and Feed in San Diego, CA. According to the 
information provided, the alleged owner of  Rancho La Palma is , an alleged member of "Los 
Palillos" gang. "Los Palillos"  members were recently convicted of multiple murders and kidnappings in San 
Diego, CA.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I15-CBP-ELP-00055 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
UNKNOWN CBPO, UNKNOWN/Employee/Unknown/EL PASO, EL PASO, 
TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/1/2014 10/1/2014 2/3/2016

On September 25, 2014, Group Supervisor (GS  Homeland Security Investigations,  El Paso, TX 
(HSI/El Paso), contacted the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso (OPR/El  Paso), to report an 
allegation relating to public corruption. G tated there had been  recent indications of possible public 
corruption involving an unknown Department of Homeland  Security (DHS) employee that was discovered 
while investigating an alien smuggling case.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-ELP-05148 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/COLUMBUS, 
LUNA, NM

Unknown  Employee DHS Employee 1/28/2015 1/28/2015 3/8/2016

On January 26, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Port Director (PD) , Columbus, NM, regarding  information received from 

 a civilian. Ms alleged to CBP Officer (CBPO) also assigned to Columbus, 
NM) that there were four "dirty" officers at the port of  entry (POE). Ms. lso alleged that her brother-
in-law, who is reportedly involved in  narcotics smuggling in Mexico, "had officers at the POE in his pocket."

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-CBP-ELP-05148 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/COLUMBUS, 
LUNA, NM

Unknown  Employee DHS Employee 1/28/2015 1/28/2015 3/8/2016

On January 26, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Port Director (PD) , Columbus, NM, regarding  information received from 

 a civilian. Ms alleged to CBP Officer (CBPO) also assigned to Columbus, 
NM) that there were four "dirty" officers at the port of  entry (POE). Ms lso alleged that her brother-
in-law, who is reportedly involved in  narcotics smuggling in Mexico, "had officers at the POE in his pocket."

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-CBP-ELP-09732 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/EL PASO, EL 
PASO, TX

DHS Employee 4/30/2015 5/29/2015 1/15/2016

On April 30, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received e-mails from U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO) nd SCBPO  both 
of El Paso, TX, in which possible corruption on the part of a CBP Officer (CBPO), Paso Del Norte Bridge (PDN) 
port of entry (POE), El Paso, is reported. According to the information provided, a woman reportedly stated 
she is going to start crossing illegal drugs through the PDN POE with the help of a CBPO she has been seeing. 
The information provided indicates that the CBPO in question is CBPO  and that the woman 
has crossed through CBPO 's primary lane two times since March 31, 2015.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-CBP-ELP-13918 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/1206 Falsification-Other/EL PASO, EL PASO, 
TX

DHS Employee 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 9/16/2016

On July 21, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC received an e-mail from  Supervisory Customs 
and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  El Paso, TX,  reporting on this same date, CBPO

, El Paso, TX, encountered a vehicle in his  lane that had a alert. It was reported CBPO
changed the existing license plate by  manually replacing the V in the plate number to a Y. The record for 
the plate was entered  on July 8, 2015, advising the primary officer to Inspect for narcotics and currency, with 
an  emphasis on possible deep concealment. It was reported CBPO  did not go to either the  front or 
rear license plate to verify the number.  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-ELP-16291 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/COLUMBUS, 
LUNA, NM

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/2/2015 9/2/2015 3/8/2016

On September 1, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  El Paso,  TX. According to the 
information provided, on August 30, 2015, a source of information stated a  possible entry of drugs would 
"soon" be entering the United States through the Columbus (NM)  port of entry (POE) at an unknown date 
and time with the name of the driver identified a . Allegedly, an unknown CBP Officer 
(CBPO) is possibly facilitating the entry of  drugs through the POE. This information was later corroborated 
with the seizure of 631 pounds in s possession at the POE.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-CBP-ELP-17726 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/Unknown/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 9/25/2015 9/25/2015 4/18/2016
Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO  and step-
father,  is allegedly harboring illegal aliens at their  residence and employing them at 
their business with the son's knowledge

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-ELP-17887 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU/CBPO/CBP/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU
Anonymous 
Individual 9/29/2015 9/29/2015 3/8/2016

On September 28, 2015, the Southern New Mexico Public Corruption Task Force (SNMPCTF)  received 
information from a source of information (SOI) alleging an individual told the SOI they  could smuggle people 
through an El Paso, TX area Port of Entry (POE). The SOI alleged the  individual told he/she they "had 
someone at the port" and the smuggling fee was $5000.00.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-LAR-14316 Laredo, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU/CBPO/0301 Bribery-Bribery/LAREDO, WEBB, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/30/2015 7/30/2015 2/7/2016
On July 22, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (CBP-IA),  Laredo, TX 
received information from CBP, Office of Field Operations (OFO) regarding an  undocumented alien (UDA) 
alleging that an unknown CBPO will assist UDA in crossing into the  US

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-MIA-00841 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/1610 General Misconduct-Other Non-
criminal/MIAMI, DADE, FL

DHS Employee 10/20/2014 10/20/2014 4/29/2016

On October 15, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an e-mail and  attached referral 
package from the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal  Affairs (IA), Personnel Security 
Division (PSD) regarding derogatory information discovered during  a review of the periodic reinvestigation 
(PRI) for CBP Officer (CBPO)  Miami, FL.  During the review, it was reported that CBPO may 
be engaging in outside employment  without approval resulting in several currency transactions totaling 
$1,996,471.00 and misused when he queried his girlfriend  and created a record 
in her name.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-MIA-00841 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/1610 General Misconduct-Other Non-
criminal/MIAMI, DADE, FL

DHS Employee 10/20/2014 10/20/2014 4/29/2016

On October 15, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an e-mail and  attached referral 
package from the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal  Affairs (IA), Personnel Security 
Division (PSD) regarding derogatory information discovered during  a review of the periodic reinvestigation 
(PRI) for CBP Officer (CBPO)  Miami, FL.  During the review, it was reported that CBPO may 
be engaging in outside employment  without approval resulting in several currency transactions totaling 
$1,996,471.00 and misused when he queried his girlfriend  and created a record 
in her name.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324 Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I15-CBP-MIA-01624 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/0803 Conflict of Interest-Failure to 
perform Official  Duties/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL

DHS Employee 11/3/2014 11/3/2014 8/12/2016

On November 2, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email chain  from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations (OFO) Supervisory  CBP Officer (SCBPO) 

 Miami, FL, in which an allegation of misconduct is lodged  against CBP Officer (CBPO)
 also of Miami. SCBPO  alleges CBPO violated standard operating procedure (SOP) 

when he picked up, inspected, and  released a traveler with a ookout for narcotics, then escorted the 
traveler out the back of  the federal inspection area (FIS) "via an exit that is not used by passengers and rarely 
used by  CBPO's" at the Miami International Airport on November 1, 2014.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-MIA-01624 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) BP OFFCR/0803 Conflict of Interest-Failure to 
perform Official  Duties/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL

DHS Employee 11/3/2014 11/3/2014 8/12/2016

On November 2, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email chain  from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations (OFO) Supervisory  CBP Officer (SCBPO) 

, Miami, FL, in which an allegation of misconduct is lodged  against CBP Officer (CBPO)
 also of Miami. SCBPO  alleges CBPO violated standard operating procedure (SOP) 

when he picked up, inspected, and  released a traveler with a ookout for narcotics, then escorted the 
traveler out the back of  the federal inspection area (FIS) "via an exit that is not used by passengers and rarely 
used by  CBPO's" at the Miami International Airport on November 1, 2014.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-MIA-03035 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP; Miami, FL DHS Employee 12/5/2014 12/8/2014 11/3/2016

ON 11/6/2014 we were advised by Chief o release a shipment of goods that were to be 
seized for failure to file AES and falsifying information in AES at the time of export.  The goods were part of a 
bigger shipment all connected to a trade based money laundering group.    On 12/4/2014 we were advised by 
Chief to release a shipment of goods that were to be seized for trade based money 
laundering.  This order came from Chief after he had consulted with  the attorney 
representing the violator.    Chief has stated that he is very good friends wit

    --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Miami International Airport 

4.3.11 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Ethics Violations - Non-
Criminal

Ethics Violations Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-MIA-05788 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Non-Employee/Unknown/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL General Public 2/10/2015 2/11/2015 1/4/2016

On November 6, 2012, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), Miami, Florida, received information from Investigator ,  Motion Picture 
Association of America (MPAA), Inc., about possible involvement of a Customs  and Border Protection Officer 
(CBPO), subsequently identified as  in the  importation and distribution of counterfeit DVDs. 
Co-conspirator,  was identified  during the course of this investigation. This is a joint 
investigation between OPR, the Office of  Inspector General (OIG), Miami, Florida, CBP IA, Miami, Florida, 
HSI, Miami, Florida, and the  MPAA.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 542 Entry of goods by means of false statements

I15-CBP-MIA-06339 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown, CBPO, Port Everglades, FL General Public 2/24/2015 2/25/2015 3/11/2016

On February 17, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), interviewed  SA, U.S. Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area, 
Miami, FL.  It was alleged that an unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO) at Port 
Everglades (PEV), was utilizing his position to facilitate the importation of illegal drugs through PEV.    
According t  his task force was introduced to a confidential informant (CI) by the Miami Dade Police 
Department (MDPD) who

 

 

 

 

   
 

  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Port Everglades Florida  
Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: SA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-CBP-MIA-09787 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/PEMBROKE PINES, BROWARD, 
FL

DHS Employee 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 3/11/2016

On April 30, 2015, Special Agent  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of 
Professional Responsibility (OPR), Miami, Florida (FL), received information regarding the anticipated arrest 
of Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO),  CBPO is currently assigned to the Miami 
International Airport (MIA), Miami, FL.    SA was contacted by agents of the Internet Crimes 
Against Children (ICAC) Task Force, and advised that one of their officers which was acting in an undercover 
capacity on the internet and posing as a 15 year old boy, was in contact with an individual who was identified 
as CBPO     The two were scheduled to meet at 1500 hours, this date, at which time it is anticipated 
that CBPO  will be arrested on charges stemming from the internet communication between himself 
and the undercover officer.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 2252 Activities Relating to Material Involving the Sexual 
Exploitation of Minors

I15-CBP-MIA-09787 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/PEMBROKE PINES, BROWARD, 
FL

DHS Employee 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 3/11/2016

On April 30, 2015, Special Agent  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of 
Professional Responsibility (OPR), Miami, Florida (FL), received information regarding the anticipated arrest 
of Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO),  CBPO is currently assigned to the Miami 
International Airport (MIA), Miami, FL.    SA was contacted by agents of the Internet Crimes 
Against Children (ICAC) Task Force, and advised that one of their officers which was acting in an undercover 
capacity on the internet and posing as a 15 year old boy, was in contact with an individual who was identified 
as CBPO     The two were scheduled to meet at 1500 hours, this date, at which time it is anticipated 
that CBPO  will be arrested on charges stemming from the internet communication between himself 
and the undercover officer.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252 Activities Relating to Material Involving the Sexual 
Exploitation of Minors

I15-CBP-MIA-09917 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; CBP; Hialeah, FL Alien (Not 
Detainee)

5/5/2015 5/11/2015 5/18/2016

On April 20, 2015,  Immigration Officer, Fraud Detection and National Security (FDNS), U.S. 
Citizenship and Immigration Services, Hialeah, FL, notifie  Special Agent, Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS), Office of the Inspector General (OIG), Miramar, FL, about a potential immigration 
fraud involvin  a Brazilian national.  stated that s currently applying for 
immigration benefits at USCIS through a marriage, which is suspected of being fraudulent. tated that 
during a routine investigation of , that FDNS discovered through the Florida Driver and Vehicle 
Information database (DAVID), tha  had submitted copies of his U.S. passport and an I-94 to DAVID in 
order to obtain a FL driver's license. According to  the stamps did not match with entries that
made into the U.S.      The DHS OIG was able to determine that the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) 
stamps displayed on the documents were numbers 52-2409 and 52-1801. Stamp 52-2409 was displaying the 
date October 30, 2007 on  I-94 and passport.  CBP reported stamp 52-2409 as stolen on July 1, 2007.     
Stamp number 52-1801 was displaying the date March 5, 2005 on s passport.  CBP reported stamp 52-
1801 as being issued on December 2, 2005.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: USCIS Hialeah, FL   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent   

3.7.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Immigration Program Fraud Fraudulent Documents Fraudulent Documents Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1425 Procurement of Citizenship or Naturalization 
Unlawfully

I15-CBP-MIA-12679 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/0803 Conflict of Interest-Failure 
to perform Official  Duties/FORT LAUDERDALE, BROWARD, FL

DHS Employee 6/29/2015 7/11/2015 4/1/2016

On June 25, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachments from 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO)  Fort Lauderdale, 
FL, in which misconduct on the part of Fort Lauderdale CBP  Officer (CBPO) s reported. 
It was reported that on June 23, 2015,  CBPO  failed to refer a subject with multiple records 
linking him to a Drug  Trafficking Organization (DTO) to secondary and that he also failed to refer a suspected 
DTO  member to secondary in May 2015.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-MIA-15503 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
UNKNOWN, UNKNOWN/Non-Employee/0713 
Impersonation/GUADALAJARA, MEXICO, MX FNU  LNU

Anonymous 
Individual 8/20/2015 8/24/2015 5/19/2016

On August 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Aviation Enforcement Agent (AEA)  Homestead, FL. 
In his submission to the JIC, AEA ndicated he was  informed a subject being detained in Guadalajara, 
MX, allegedly represented himself as AEA  and produced an identification under the same name.

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
False Personating of a DHS 
Employee Impersonation Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912

False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I15-CBP-MIA-17074 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/1605 General Misconduct-Misuse of 

Government  Computer/Email/Mail/Telephone/MIAMI, DADE, FL DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 8/25/2016

On September 14, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attached .zip 
file from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Information and  Technology (OIT), Computer 
Security Incident Response Center (CSIRC), Springfield, VA, in  which it is reported CBP Officer (CBPO)  

 Miami, FL, attempted to use a CBP  computer and network to access the internet and view sexually 
explicit images.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-MIA-17075 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/1605 General Misconduct-Misuse of 

Government  Computer/Email/Mail/Telephone/MIAMI, DADE, FL DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 8/8/2016

On September 14, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attached .zip 
file from U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Information and  Technology (OIT), Computer 
Security Incident Response Center (CSIRC), Springfield, VA, in  which it is reported CBP Officer (CBPO

 Miami, FL, attempted to use a CBP  computer and network to access the internet and view sexually 
explicit images

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-12813 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0902 Disclosure-Law Enforcement 
Sensitive  Information/UNKNOWN, UNKNOWN-UNK FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 3/21/2016

On June 29, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail string from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Senior Attorney , Cape Canaveral, FL, reporting  law enforcement personnel 
possibly misused CBP resources and provided information to  physicians involved in Medicare fraud.  This 
report documents the relevant material received.

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I15-CBP-ORL-12813 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0902 Disclosure-Law Enforcement 
Sensitive  Information/UNKNOWN, UNKNOWN-UNK FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 3/21/2016

On June 29, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail string from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Senior Attorney , Cape Canaveral, FL, reporting  law enforcement personnel 
possibly misused CBP resources and provided information to  physicians involved in Medicare fraud.  This 
report documents the relevant material received.

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I15-CBP-ORL-14051 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO  and CBPO  Tampa International 
Airport, Tampa, Florida DHS Employee 7/24/2015 7/24/2015 9/22/2016

On July 23, 2015, Customs and Border Protection, Office of Internal Affairs, Miami Field Office (CBP/MIA MFO) 
was advised by Detective  Tampa International Airport (TIA) Police, Tampa, FL, that on July 22, 
2015, she was conducting an interview of CBPO  regarding an allegation that he touched a 
female airport patron in an inappropriate manner and CBPO barged into the interview yelling 
and being disruptive to the interview process. According to Acting Area Port Director (Area PD)  
(A) Assistant Port Director (APD)  told CBPO  he was not allowed to enter the room 
during the interview. Detective  advised that her department will attempt to file charges against CBPO 

for simple battery and CBPO for impeding an investigation.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-CBP-ORL-14051 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPO and CBPO Jorge Martin, Tampa International 
Airport, Tampa, Florida DHS Employee 7/24/2015 7/24/2015 9/22/2016

On July 23, 2015, Customs and Border Protection, Office of Internal Affairs, Miami Field Office (CBP/MIA MFO) 
was advised by Detective  Tampa International Airport (TIA) Police, Tampa, FL, that on July 22, 
2015, she was conducting an interview of CBPO  regarding an allegation that he touched a 
female airport patron in an inappropriate manner and CBPO barged into the interview yelling 
and being disruptive to the interview process. According to Acting Area Port Director (Area PD)  
(A) Assistant Port Director (APD)  told CBPO  he was not allowed to enter the room 
during the interview. Detective dvised that her department will attempt to file charges against CBPO 

for simple battery and CBPO for impeding an investigation.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 924 Firearm Violations - Penalties

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 924 Firearm Violations - Penalties

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply State Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Officer  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-ORL-15232 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  Orlando, FL General Public 8/17/2015 8/17/2015 12/16/2016
On August 12, 2015, Hidalgo Port of Entry CBP Officer was the victim of a  kidnapping at 
gunpoint by four unknown subjects, while vacationing in Orlando, FL with his family.  Office  was able 
to escape and is currently at the hospital tending to the injuries sustained  during the incident

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-CBP-PHL-12812 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
/SUPVY CBP OFFCR/1206 Falsification-

Other/HARTFORD, HARTFORD, CT DHS Employee 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 8/30/2016

On June 30, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Citizenship and 
Immigration Services (CIS) Office of Security and Integrity (OSI) Special Agent  (SA)  
Washington D.C., regarding Supervisory U.S. Customs and Border  Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)

 Hartford, CT. SCBPO   reportedly changed the class of admission of an I-485 (Application 
to Register Permanent  Residence or Adjust Status) applicant seeing an adjustment of status. SCBPO 

eportedly changed the class of admission for  March 5, 2014, entry into the U.S. at  
Newark, NJ, from B-2 (Visitor for Pleasure) to DA (Advance Parole). SA indicated this  reclassification 
would allow the I-485 application to be reconsidered after initially being denied.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1030
Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-CBP-PHL-12812 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
/SUPVY CBP OFFCR/1206 Falsification-

Other/HARTFORD, HARTFORD, CT DHS Employee 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 8/30/2016

On June 30, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Citizenship and 
Immigration Services (CIS) Office of Security and Integrity (OSI) Special Agent  (SA)  
Washington D.C., regarding Supervisory U.S. Customs and Border  Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)

 Hartford, CT. SCBPO   reportedly changed the class of admission of an I-485 (Application 
to Register Permanent  Residence or Adjust Status) applicant seeing an adjustment of status. SCBPO 

eportedly changed the class of admission for  March 5, 2014, entry into the U.S. at  
Newark, NJ, from B-2 (Visitor for Pleasure) to DA (Advance Parole). SA indicated this  reclassification 
would allow the I-485 application to be reconsidered after initially being denied.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030
Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-CBP-PHL-15401 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /Non-Employee/0302 Bribery-Good Guy 
Bribe/PHILADELPHIA,  PHILADELPHIA, PA

 General Public 8/19/2015 8/19/2015 7/21/2016
On August 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Officer (CBPO) Philadelphia, PA, reporting  on this same date an alleged 
good guy bribe b

1.9 Employee Corruption Bribery - Good Guy Bribery - Good Guy Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-PHL-15487 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Port Director, CBP, PHILADELPHIA, PA DHS Employee 8/20/2015 8/20/2015 9/15/2016

On August 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a JIC Telephone  Worksheet from 
the JIC duty agent dated August 18, 2015. According to the worksheet, an  anonymous caller assigned to the 
Philadelphia Airport reported the Port Director, Philadelphia,  PA, allegedly broke the law by permitting the 
entry of two inadmissible subjects as a political favor   This report documents the relevant material received

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-PHL-15487 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Port Director, CBP, PHILADELPHIA, PA DHS Employee 8/20/2015 8/20/2015 9/15/2016

On August 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a JIC Telephone  Worksheet from 
the JIC duty agent dated August 18, 2015. According to the worksheet, an  anonymous caller assigned to the 
Philadelphia Airport reported the Port Director, Philadelphia,  PA, allegedly broke the law by permitting the 
entry of two inadmissible subjects as a political favor.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-RGV-02459 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BROWNSVILLE, CAMERON, TX General Public 11/20/2014 11/20/2014 1/26/2016

On November 19, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, Rio  Grande 
Valley, TX (IA/RGV) received information regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)  Brownsville, TX. 
CBPO  is suspected of assisting a drug trafficking  organization (DTO). A vehicle that attempted to 
make entry through CBPO  lane was  randomly selected for a secondary examination. Before the 
vehicle was referred to secondary,  the driver of the vehicle absconded back into Mexico (MX). The van was 
found to contain  approximately 2996 pounds of marijuana within the cargo area of the vehicle

s  U.S. passport was also found during the incident and queried. Queries showed  had  
multiple crossings in similar type of vehicle through CBPO s primary lane.  This report documents the 
information received by IA/RGV and the results of the preliminary  record checks.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 4 Misprision of a Felony

I15-CBP-RGV-02459 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BROWNSVILLE, CAMERON, TX General Public 11/20/2014 11/20/2014 1/26/2016

On November 19, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, Rio  Grande 
Valley, TX (IA/RGV) received information regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)  Brownsville, TX. 
CBPO  is suspected of assisting a drug trafficking  organization (DTO). A vehicle that attempted to 
make entry through CBPO s lane was  randomly selected for a secondary examination. Before the 
vehicle was referred to secondary,  the driver of the vehicle absconded back into Mexico (MX). The van was 
found to contain  approximately 2996 pounds of marijuana within the cargo area of the vehicle

  U.S. passport was also found during the incident and queried. Queries showed  had  
multiple crossings in similar type of vehicle through CBPO s primary lane.  This report documents the 
information received by IA/RGV and the results of the preliminary  record checks.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I15-CBP-RGV-02459 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BROWNSVILLE, CAMERON, TX DHS Employee 11/20/2014 11/20/2014 1/26/2016

On November 19, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, Rio  Grande 
Valley, TX (IA/RGV) received information regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)  Brownsville, TX. 
CBPO  is suspected of assisting a drug trafficking  organization (DTO). A vehicle that attempted to 
make entry through CBPO s lane was  randomly selected for a secondary examination. Before the 
vehicle was referred to secondary,  the driver of the vehicle absconded back into Mexico (MX). The van was 
found to contain  approximately 2996 pounds of marijuana within the cargo area of the vehicle

's  U.S. passport was also found during the incident and queried. Queries showed  had  
multiple crossings in similar type of vehicle through CBPO s primary lane.  This report documents the 
information received by IA/RGV and the results of the preliminary  record checks.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Substantiated Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-CBP-RGV-02459 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BROWNSVILLE, CAMERON, TX DHS Employee 11/20/2014 11/20/2014 1/26/2016

On November 19, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, Rio  Grande 
Valley, TX (IA/RGV) received information regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)  Brownsville, TX. 
CBPO  is suspected of assisting a drug trafficking  organization (DTO). A vehicle that attempted to 
make entry through CBPO 's lane was  randomly selected for a secondary examination. Before the 
vehicle was referred to secondary,  the driver of the vehicle absconded back into Mexico (MX). The van was 
found to contain  approximately 2996 pounds of marijuana within the cargo area of the vehicle

  U.S. passport was also found during the incident and queried. Queries showed Coronado had  
multiple crossings in similar type of vehicle through CBPO s primary lane.  This report documents the 
information received by IA/RGV and the results of the preliminary  record checks.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-CBP-RGV-02459 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/BROWNSVILLE, CAMERON, TX DHS Employee 11/20/2014 11/20/2014 1/26/2016

On November 19, 2014, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, Rio  Grande 
Valley, TX (IA/RGV) received information regarding CBP Officer (CBPO)  Brownsville, TX. 
CBPO  is suspected of assisting a drug trafficking  organization (DTO). A vehicle that attempted to 
make entry through CBPO 's lane was  randomly selected for a secondary examination. Before the 
vehicle was referred to secondary,  the driver of the vehicle absconded back into Mexico (MX). The van was 
found to contain  approximately 2996 pounds of marijuana within the cargo area of the vehicle

's  U.S. passport was also found during the incident and queried. Queries showed  had  
multiple crossings in similar type of vehicle through CBPO s primary lane.  This report documents the 
information received by IA/RGV and the results of the preliminary  record checks.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-RGV-13094 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) LNU, FNU, Customs and Border Protection Officer, U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection, Brownsville, Texas

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/7/2015 7/7/2015 1/22/2016

On July 6, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), was notified 
of a drug seizure at the Gateway International Bridge in Brownsville, Texas.  A vehicle laden with 710 pounds 
of marihuana was intercepted as it attempted to make entry into the United States from Mexico.  The driver 
of the vehicle was arrested.  The DHS OIG subsequently received information that an unknown Customs and 
Border Protection Officer (CBPO) may have been involved in facilitating the smuggling event.  ----------------  
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Gateway International Bridge Brownsville, 
Texas    Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website 
complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Resident Agent in Charge   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: Customs and Border Protection Officer

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-CBP-SEA-08565 Seattle, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Mission Support Specialist, Spokane, WA DHS Employee 4/8/2015 4/8/2015 2/17/2016

On April 6, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from Customs  and Border 
Protection (CBP) Supervisory Air interdiction Agent (SAIA) ,  Spokane, WA, reporting 
Mission Support Specialist (MSS  Spokane, WA, allegedly  filed a false Office of Workers 
Compensation Programs (OWCP) injury claim and submitted a  false statement in regard to how the injury 
occurred   This report documents the relevant material received

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-CBP-SND-03543 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 12/17/2014 12/17/2014 3/8/2016

On December 12, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional  Responsibility, San 
Diego, California (OPR/San Diego) received a call from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security 
Investigations, San Diego, California (HSI/San Diego). SA tated a former Confidential Informant (CI) 
stated

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-SND-03794 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Ysidro, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 12/23/2014 12/23/2014 6/20/2016

On December 21, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a facsimile from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Officer (SCBPO)   San Ysidro, CA, in which it is 
reported that early that morning CBP Officer (CBPO)  also of San Ysidro, entered the U.S. 
via that port of entry without presenting himself  to an officer for inspection

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated
Referred - Reply 
Requested Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-SND-03794 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Ysidro, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 12/23/2014 12/23/2014 6/20/2016

On December 21, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a facsimile from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Officer (SCBPO)   San Ysidro, CA, in which it is 
reported that early that morning CBP Officer (CBPO)  also of San Ysidro, entered the U.S. 
via that port of entry without presenting himself  to an officer for inspection.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated
Referred - Reply 
Requested 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I15-CBP-SND-08585 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
; U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 

Employee; San Diego, CA DHS Employee 4/8/2015 4/9/2015 5/9/2016

On March 31, 2015,  Special Agent, U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), San Diego, CA, received information from  Branch Chief, U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP), Otay Mesa Port of Entry-Cargo (OTM POE-Cargo), San Diego, CA, regarding an 
allegation that  CBPO, CBP, OTM POE-Cargo, San Diego, CA had filed multiple claims 
with the U.S. Department of Labor, seeking compensation for alleged injuries while in the performance of 
her official duties.  CBP personnel advised that ppeared to have exaggerated her injuries that 
allegedly incurred while on the job in an attempt to receive Federal Worker???s Compensation Benefits 
pursuant to the Federal Employees??? Compensation Act (FECA).  -----------------  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Otay Mesa Port of Entry- Cargo, San Diego, CA.   Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty    Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: Branch Chief   

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1035 False Statements Relating to Health Care Matters

I15-CBP-SND-09541 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 4/27/2015 4/27/2015 7/15/2016

On April 26, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the JIC duty agent, 
Plantation, FL, regarding a complaint made by  a civilian. Mr. lleged that he was touched 
inappropriately in his groin area (testicles were squeezed) and kicked in the leg by U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Officers (CBPOs) during secondary inspection at the San Ysidro, CA, port of entry (POE) on 
April 26  2015

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-CBP-SND-09660 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU , CBPO, CBP, San Diego, CA FNU DHS Employee 4/28/2015 5/4/2015 6/13/2016

On April 27, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from U.S.  Department of 
Justice (DOJ) Special Agent (SA)  San Ysidro, CA, in  which an allegation of corruption 
is lodged against a U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Officer (CBPO) assigned to southern Mexico. 
According to the information provided, a CBPO with  the last name o  will allegedly clear a vessel 
containing heroin to enter U.S. waters  from either Cancun or Puerto Vallarta.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-SND-09660 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU , CBPO, CBP, San Diego, CA FNU DHS Employee 4/28/2015 5/4/2015 6/13/2016

On April 27, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from U.S.  Department of 
Justice (DOJ) Special Agent (SA)  San Ysidro, CA, in  which an allegation of corruption 
is lodged against a U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Officer (CBPO) assigned to southern Mexico. 
According to the information provided, a CBPO with  the last name of  will allegedly clear a vessel 
containing heroin to enter U.S. waters  from either Cancun or Puerto Vallarta.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-CBP-SND-12033 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Tecate, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 6/16/2015 6/16/2015 4/26/2016

On May 29, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an e-mail and  attachment from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs (IA)  Personnel Security Division (PSD), 
Washington, DC. According to the information provided,  during the 2013 periodic reinvestigation of CBP 
Officer (CBPO) , Tecate, CA, a  National Agency Check (NAC) reflected a positive response for the 
spouse's FBI Fingerprint  Name Check. The NAC reflected arrests for alien smuggling and the sale and 
possession of  marijuana for  CBPO 's spouse. It was reported that when CBPO  

 completed her 2008 Background Investigation Personal Interview (BIPI) she indicated she  was unaware 
of any relatives either known or suspected of being involved in smuggling, or other  illegal activities 
(including use/sale of illegal drugs). CBPO  and her spouse were married  on September 12, 1985.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-CBP-SND-12176 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Investigation Involving the Intentional Discharge of a Firearm, Jose Pina 
Espinosa et al,  Non DHS-Employees, San Diego, CA

Jose  Pina Espinosa Alien Detainee 6/18/2015 6/19/2015 5/31/2016

On June 18, 2015, at approximately 7:00 a.m. Pacific Standard Time (pst) the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), San Diego, CA, received information from  SA, 
Customs and Border Protection Internal Affairs, San Diego, CA related to a possible collision between a U.S. 
Air and Marine vessel and a Panga (fiberglass hand- made fishing vessel) that was being used to transport 
undocumented aliens (UDAs) into the U.S. via international waters from Mexico onto U.S. soil.    The Panga 
was travelling north into the U.S. with twenty subjects on board believed to be UDAs attempting to illegally 
enter the U.S. without inspection.  The information received stated that at some point the Marine 
Interdiction Agent???s (MIA), assigned to the Office of Air and Marine attempted to interdict the Panga, but 
the driver of the Panga failed to yield to commands by MIAs.  The information received stated that there 
were warning shots fired by MIAs and that eventually both vessels collided and the Panga capsized and the 
occupants fell into the water.    There were nineteen responsive subjects and one unresponsive female 
subject, found underneath the Panga.  MIAs initiated cardio pulmonary resuscitation (CPR) on the 
unresponsive female subject and identified injuries to other subjects that were on the Panga.  The U.S. Coast 
Guard (USCG) was called and dispatched their vessel and helicopter to the incident scene for assistance.  The 
USCG transported the unresponsive female to land and continued CPR, but later the USCG medical doctor 
declared the female subject deceased.    MIAs declared that there were six to eight subjects injured from the 
collision and four of those subjects were later taken to Tri-City Medical Center, the remaining fifteen 
uninjured UDAs were being held at San Clemente Border Patrol Station for processing.    The three identified 
MIAs were listed as Christopher D. Hunter,

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-SND-12176 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Investigation Involving the Intentional Discharge of a Firearm, Jose Pina 
Espinosa et al,  Non DHS-Employees, San Diego, CA

Salvador  Sanchez Garcia Alien Detainee 6/18/2015 6/19/2015 5/31/2016

On June 18, 2015, at approximately 7:00 a.m. Pacific Standard Time (pst) the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), San Diego, CA, received information from  SA, 
Customs and Border Protection Internal Affairs, San Diego, CA related to a possible collision between a U.S. 
Air and Marine vessel and a Panga (fiberglass hand- made fishing vessel) that was being used to transport 
undocumented aliens (UDAs) into the U.S. via international waters from Mexico onto U.S. soil.    The Panga 
was travelling north into the U.S. with twenty subjects on board believed to be UDAs attempting to illegally 
enter the U.S. without inspection.  The information received stated that at some point the Marine 
Interdiction Agent???s (MIA), assigned to the Office of Air and Marine attempted to interdict the Panga, but 
the driver of the Panga failed to yield to commands by MIAs.  The information received stated that there 
were warning shots fired by MIAs and that eventually both vessels collided and the Panga capsized and the 
occupants fell into the water.    There were nineteen responsive subjects and one unresponsive female 
subject, found underneath the Panga.  MIAs initiated cardio pulmonary resuscitation (CPR) on the 
unresponsive female subject and identified injuries to other subjects that were on the Panga.  The U.S. Coast 
Guard (USCG) was called and dispatched their vessel and helicopter to the incident scene for assistance.  The 
USCG transported the unresponsive female to land and continued CPR, but later the USCG medical doctor 
declared the female subject deceased.    MIAs declared that there were six to eight subjects injured from the 
collision and four of those subjects were later taken to Tri-City Medical Center, the remaining fifteen 
uninjured UDAs were being held at San Clemente Border Patrol Station for processing.    The three identified 
MIAs were listed as Christopher D. Hunter,

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-SND-13010 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , Non-DHS Employee, Bribery-Good Guy Bribe, 
San Diego, CA.

General Public 7/2/2015 7/16/2015 4/25/2016

On July 2, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Lake Charles, LA, regarding 
an alleged good guy bribe offered to Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Lake Charles, LA

 niece of BPA  ex-wife,  reportedly contacted him via Facebook message and asked 
him (translated from Spanish by BPA : "hey uncle, I need a favor, I want to cross something illegal, 
but I need your help with a  trusted contact that you believe is 100% reliable. Obviously, also you will earn 
money." esides in Tijuana, Mexico, and is a Border Crossing Card (BCC) holder

1.9 Employee Corruption Bribery - Good Guy Bribery - Good Guy Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-SND-13915 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPO, Unknown BPA, San Diego, CA. FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 1/8/2016

On July 21, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) Immigration Enforcement Agent (IEA)  Oklahoma City, OK, 
reporting a detainee being interviewed at the Lexington Assessment  and Reception Center (LARC) in 
Lexington, OK, alleged he was smuggled by a Customs and  Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent 
(BPA). According to detainee  in March 2013 he illegally crossed back into 
the United States near San Ysidro, CA.  Detainee  claims he rode with a BPA from the border and into 
the United States in the  back of a government-owned vehicle (GOV). Detainee  reported he paid the 
BPA  $10,000. Detainee s willing to provide the name of the BPA.  This report documents the 
relevant material received.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-SND-14694 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 8/6/2015 8/10/2015 8/22/2016

On August 5, 2015, the DHS OIG San Diego Field Office received a complaint from  
Supervisory Customs and Border Protection Officer-Enforcement (SCBPO-E), U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP), Criminal Enforcement Unit, San Ysidro Port of Entry (SYS POE), San Ysidro, CA, who alleged 
that  CBPO, CBP, SYS POE, San Ysidro, CA, may have intentionally allowed undocumented 
aliens to enter the United States from Mexico.  ----------------------

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-SND-16876 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Customs and Border Protection Officer  U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection (DHS), San Diego, CA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/14/2015 9/15/2015 8/4/2016

On September 1, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), 
received an email from  Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA), United States Border Patrol 
(USBP), San Diego, CA regarding an allegation that was originally received by the Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA), tip-line in San Diego, CA.  The allegation originated from a Source of Information (SOI) 
that alleged to have made plans to smuggle a family relative through the primary pedestrian inspection lanes 
of an unknown Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO), assigned to the San Ysidro (SYS), Port of Entry 
(POE).  The DHS OIG established contact with the SOI on September 11, 2015, and coordinated a meeting 
where the SOI was able to provide a better description of the smuggling arrangements that were made 
through a family relative of the unknown CBPO assigned to the SYS POE.    The SOI had Facebook images of 
the alleged family relative of the CBPO as well as a telephone number and What???s App (A texting , 
messaging, calls, video sharing application that does not include any additional charges for international 
users)  communication that the SOI had with the CBPOs relative prior to the smuggling event was going to 
take place.  The SOI stated that he would continue to assist the DHS OIG with whatever is needed to further 
the investigation.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: The San Ysidro Port of 
Entry   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website 
complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-CBP-SND-17175 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPO, San Ysidro, San Diego, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/17/2015 9/17/2015 4/25/2016

On September 16, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Special  Agent (SA

, Fresno, CA, regarding an unidentified U.S. Customs and Border  Protection (CBP) Officer (CBPO) at the 
San Ysidro, CA, port of entry (POE) who is reportedly  charging $12,000.00 to allow illegal aliens to enter the 
U.S. through the POE.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-SNJ-17034 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, CBP, San Juan, PR  PR DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 5/9/2016

On September 10, 2015, Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO)  U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection, Office of Field Operations (CBP OFO), Luis Munoz Marin  International Airport, San Juan, 
Puerto Rico, assigned to the Passenger Analytical Unit (PAU),  conducted at least four separate queries in law 
enforcement databases of his cousin, is the subject of a 
Homeland Security Investigations,  Fajardo, Puerto Rico (HSI Fajardo), criminal investigation.

4.1.12 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct
Unauthorized Use of L.E.O. 
Component Data System(s)

Unauthorized personal 
use of a DHS computer Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030

Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-CBP-SNJ-17034 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, CBP, San Juan, PR  PR DHS Employee 9/16/2015 9/16/2015 5/9/2016

On September 10, 2015, Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO)  U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection, Office of Field Operations (CBP OFO), Luis Munoz Marin  International Airport, San Juan, 
Puerto Rico, assigned to the Passenger Analytical Unit (PAU),  conducted at least four separate queries in law 
enforcement databases of his cousin, s the subject of a 
Homeland Security Investigations   Fajardo  Puerto Rico (HSI Fajardo)  criminal investigation

4.1.12 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct
Unauthorized Use of L.E.O. 
Component Data System(s)

Unauthorized personal 
use of a DHS computer Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-CBP-SVA-06596 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, Douglas, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/2/2015 3/3/2015 3/7/2016

On February 25, 2015, Agents of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) Sierra Vista Resident Agency (SVRA) 
attended a meeting at the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland Security Investigations 
(HSI) Office in Douglas, AZ.  In addition to ICE HSI and FBI representation, there were also Deputies of the 
Cochise County Sheriff's Office (CCSO) as well as Investigators of the Arizona Attorney General's Office 
(AAGO) present at this meeting.  At the meeting, the following information was discussed:    An ICE HSI 
Confidential Informant (CI)

 
  

   On March 2, 2015,
, Special Agent, Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG), Sierra Vista 

Sub Office (SVA), was briefed on this matter by members of the FBI SVRA Border Corruption Task Force.  --  
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Douglas Port of Entry, 1st Street and Pan 
American Avenue, Douglas, AZ  Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On 
Duty

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-CBP-TUC-05073 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 1/27/2015 1/27/2015 2/19/2016

On January 23, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional  Responsibility, Tucson, 
AZ (OPR/Tucson), received an email from acting Group Supervisor (GS)  Homeland Security 
Investigations, Nogales, AZ (HSI/Nogales), regarding U.S.  Customs and Border Officer (CBPO)

 Port of Entry, Nogales  (POE/Nogales). CBP s allegedly allowin
 to smuggle small  amounts of heroin into the U S  and currency into Mexico through POE/Nogales

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-TUC-05073 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 1/27/2015 1/27/2015 2/19/2016

On January 23, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional  Responsibility, Tucson, 
AZ (OPR/Tucson), received an email from acting Group Supervisor (GS)  Homeland Security 
Investigations, Nogales, AZ (HSI/Nogales), regarding U.S.  Customs and Border Officer (CBPO)

 Port of Entry, Nogales  (POE/Nogales). CBPO s allegedly allowin
o smuggle small  amounts of heroin into the U.S. and currency into Mexico through POE/Nogales.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-TUC-05073 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 1/27/2015 1/27/2015 2/19/2016

On January 23, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional  Responsibility, Tucson, 
AZ (OPR/Tucson), received an email from acting Group Supervisor (GS)  Homeland Security 
Investigations, Nogales, AZ (HSI/Nogales), regarding U.S.  Customs and Border Officer (CBPO)

 Port of Entry, Nogales  (POE/Nogales). CBPO s allegedly allowin
 to smuggle small  amounts of heroin into the U.S. and currency into Mexico through POE/Nogales.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-CBP-TUC-10416 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 6/14/2016

On May 11, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail referral from  the U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Privacy and Diversity Office (PDO) in which a  complaint of harassment 
is lodged by Import Specialist (IS)  Nogales, AZ, against  CBP Officer (CBPO)  San 
Luis, AZ, who is also a local union representative.  According to the information provided, IS alleges 
that in October 2014 she contacted  CBPO or assistance on a non-selection matter and he agreed to 
assist her. I   stated that CBPO  declined to meet with her at the port of entry and set the 
meeting at a  hotel. I  further alleged that during the meeting CBP made sexual innuendos  
and inferred that she would be racking up expenses that he expected her to pay for with sex.

4.1.5 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Ethics Violations - Criminal
Ethics Violations - 
Criminal Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CBP-TUC-10416 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 6/14/2016

On May 11, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail referral from  the U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Privacy and Diversity Office (PDO) in which a  complaint of harassment 
is lodged by Import Specialist (IS)  Nogales, AZ, against  CBP Officer (CBPO)  San 
Luis, AZ, who is also a local union representative.  According to the information provided, IS alleges 
that in October 2014 she contacted  CBPO or assistance on a non-selection matter and he agreed to 
assist her. I   stated that CBPO  declined to meet with her at the port of entry and set the 
meeting at a  hotel. I  further alleged that during the meeting CBPO made sexual innuendos  
and inferred that she would be racking up expenses that he expected her to pay for with sex.

4.1.5 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Ethics Violations - Criminal
Ethics Violations - 
Criminal Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-CBP-TUC-10416 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 6/14/2016

On May 11, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail referral from  the U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Privacy and Diversity Office (PDO) in which a  complaint of harassment 
is lodged by Import Specialist (IS)  Nogales, AZ, against  CBP Officer (CBPO)  San 
Luis, AZ, who is also a local union representative.  According to the information provided, IS alleges 
that in October 2014 she contacted  CBPO or assistance on a non-selection matter and he agreed to 
assist her. I   stated that CBPO  declined to meet with her at the port of entry and set the 
meeting at a  hotel. I  further alleged that during the meeting CBPO made sexual innuendos  
and inferred that she would be racking up expenses that he expected her to pay for with sex.

4.1.5 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Ethics Violations - Criminal
Ethics Violations - 
Criminal Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-CBP-YUM-07423 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  SCBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 3/17/2015 3/17/2015 10/12/2016

On March 16, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Yuma reported 
to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that he received  information from a source of 
information indicating  Assistant Port Director, U.S.  Customs and Border Protection Officer, at the 
San Luis, Arizona Port of Entry (POE) will be  facilitating the smuggling of narcotics into the United States 
through the San Luis  Arizona POE

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-YUM-11422 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 6/3/2015 6/3/2015 4/14/2016
On June 1, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Internal Affairs, Yuma, AZ  (IA/Yuma) 
received information indicating CBP Officer (CBPO)  San Luis, AZ  Port of Entry (SLU/POE) has 
previously facilitated drugs into the U S  and has been involved with  drug smugglers

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-YUM-12998 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ General Public 7/6/2015 7/6/2015 6/8/2016

On June 30, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Yuma 
reported to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that she received  information from a 
source of information that an unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection  Officer (CBPO) is providing 
information to a target of an ongoing HSI Investigation

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-YUM-12998 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ FNU-CBPO SYS  LNU DHS Employee 7/6/2015 7/6/2015 6/8/2016

On June 30, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Yuma 
reported to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that she received  information from a 
source of information that an unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection  Officer (CBPO) is providing 
information to a target of an ongoing HSI Investigation.

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-YUM-12998 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ General Public 7/6/2015 7/6/2015 6/8/2016

On June 30, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Yuma 
reported to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that she received  information from a 
source of information that an unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection  Officer (CBPO) is providing 
information to a target of an ongoing HSI Investigation

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CBP-YUM-14468 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Yuma, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/3/2015 8/6/2015 4/14/2016

On July 28, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)   Yuma, AZ, reporting that while visiting 
with a friend in jail, the friend advised that another prisoner  (sentenced for drug smuggling) alleged that 
there is a Border Patrol Agent (BPA) working in Yuma  Station that is smuggling aliens.  This report documents 
the relevant material received.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CIS-ATL-09119 Atlanta, GA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)
/Non-Employee/0712 Other Criminal/ATLANTA, 

FULTON, GA DHS Contractor 4/20/2015 9/2/2015 6/29/2016

On April 16, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Resident Agent in Charge,  Tampa FL 
(RAC/Tampa) received information from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  Supervisory Special Agent 
(SSA)  Special Agent in Charge, Atlanta GA  (SAC/Atlanta), who reported Citizenship & 
Immigration Services (CIS) contract employee was allegedly conducting suspicious banking 
transactions

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324

Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I15-CIS-HOU-11558 Houston, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; Barker, TX 6/5/2015 6/5/2015 6/12/2016

In 2011, employed attorney o represent him with his 
immigration status.  paid her an initial fee of $1,000.  After she allegedly researched his 
immigration case, she prepared a contract claiming to represent him as her client in an immigration case-
asylum.  The contact stated tha  shall compensate her services by paying an Attorney fee in the 
amount of $100,000 with a retainer fee in the amount of $50,000.  On May 4, 2011,  check in the 
amount of $50,000 was cashed by   In their third or fourth meeting,

explained to ow he was going to claim asylum and that he feared being returned to 
Honduras.  According t explained to him how he was going to be 
kidnapped and burned with cigarettes so when he was interviewed by the asylum office, he would not be 
lying about being kidnapped and had burn scars on his body to show as evidence.  Although she did not 
exactly explain to him who was actually going to kidnap and burn him,  stated that

explained the process to him in a very low tone voice with no witnesses in the room.
 disagreed.  kept the $50,000 retainer fee.  ----------------------  Public website 

submitter indicated that the incident location was: Houston, Texas   Public website complainant indicated 
that their Employment Title is: Senior Special Agent   Public website complainant indicated that the subject 

had miscellaneous identifiers of: Immigration Attorney

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-CIS-LAX-13846 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  ISO, Laguna Niguel, CA DHS Employee 7/21/2015 7/22/2015 4/14/2016

The information was received by SA  DHS OIG, Atlanta, Field Office on July 20, 2015. SA
 ICE, contacted SA  directly concerning a uery of one of his subjects by a CIS 

employee in California. The information below is a summary of the allegation:    I was on vacation last week 
and had received numerous email notification on subject records related to departure but had one record 
that appeared to be run numerous times by a CIS employee in California. At the same time I received a 
notification that the subject was scheduled to be departing the US in the next couple of days.      I first 
received a email notification (1121pm on 7/14/15) that passenge was 
scheduled to go outbound to Nigeria.  On 7/15/15 beginning around 724pm I received several notifications 
that my record was ran by  at CIS Laguna Niguel.     On 7/17/15 I received another notification 
that the passenger was departing (normal).    This subject is a US citizen and it didn???t make sense to me 
why a CIS employee would be running checks. I didn???t see where any petitions where pending in Claims 
and the timing of his departure being almost exactly when the checks where ran seemed strange. It could be 
a coincidence but I thought it should be forwarded for review in case the employee is running things in
for personal reasons.     The subject lives in GA and was flying from GA which made even more strange that CA 
was running the checks.      Special Agent   Homeland Security Investigations  Hartsfield 
International Airport  Atlanta, GA   Office:    ***Copies of the queries are 
available and are in the possession of SA Kleppinger at this time***  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Laguna Nigel California  Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-CIS-LAX-13846 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  ISO, Laguna Niguel, CA DHS Employee 7/21/2015 7/22/2015 4/14/2016

The information was received by SA  DHS OIG, Atlanta, Field Office on July 20, 2015. S
 ICE, contacted SA  directly concerning a uery of one of his subjects by a CIS 

employee in California. The information below is a summary of the allegation:    I was on vacation last week 
and had received numerous email notification on subject records related to departure but had one record 
that appeared to be run numerous times by a CIS employee in California. At the same time I received a 
notification that the subject was scheduled to be departing the US in the next couple of days.      I first 
received a email notification (1121pm on 7/14/15) that passenge was 
scheduled to go outbound to Nigeria.  On 7/15/15 beginning around 724pm I received several notifications 
that my record was ran by  at CIS Laguna Niguel.     On 7/17/15 I received another notification 
that the passenger was departing (normal).    This subject is a US citizen and it didn???t make sense to me 
why a CIS employee would be running checks. I didn???t see where any petitions where pending in Claims 
and the timing of his departure being almost exactly when the checks where ran seemed strange. It could be 
a coincidence but I thought it should be forwarded for review in case the employee is running things in
for personal reasons.     The subject lives in GA and was flying from GA which made even more strange that CA 
was running the checks.      Special Agent   Homeland Security Investigations  Hartsfield 
International Airport  Atlanta, GA   Office: (    ***Copies of the queries are 
available and are in the possession of SA  at this time***  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Laguna Nigel California  Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CIS-LAX-13846 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  ISO, Laguna Niguel, CA DHS Employee 7/21/2015 7/22/2015 4/14/2016

The information was received by SA  DHS OIG, Atlanta, Field Office on July 20, 2015. SA
, ICE, contacted SA  directly concerning a uery of one of his subjects by a CIS 

employee in California. The information below is a summary of the allegation:    I was on vacation last week 
and had received numerous email notification on subject records related to departure but had one record 
that appeared to be run numerous times by a CIS employee in California. At the same time I received a 
notification that the subject was scheduled to be departing the US in the next couple of days.      I first 
received a email notification (1121pm on 7/14/15) that passenge was 
scheduled to go outbound to Nigeria.  On 7/15/15 beginning around 724pm I received several notifications 
that my record was ran by  at CIS Laguna Niguel.     On 7/17/15 I received another notification 
that the passenger was departing (normal).    This subject is a US citizen and it didn???t make sense to me 
why a CIS employee would be running checks. I didn???t see where any petitions where pending in Claims 
and the timing of his departure being almost exactly when the checks where ran seemed strange. It could be 
a coincidence but I thought it should be forwarded for review in case the employee is running things in
for personal reasons.     The subject lives in GA and was flying from GA which made even more strange that CA 
was running the checks.      Special Agent   Homeland Security Investigations  Hartsfield 
International Airport  Atlanta, GA   Office: (    ***Copies of the queries are 
available and are in the possession of SA  at this time***  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Laguna Nigel California  Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-CIS-LAX-13846 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  ISO, Laguna Niguel, CA DHS Employee 7/21/2015 7/22/2015 4/14/2016

The information was received by SA , DHS OIG, Atlanta, Field Office on July 20, 2015. SA
 ICE, contacted SA  directly concerning a uery of one of his subjects by a CIS 

employee in California. The information below is a summary of the allegation:    I was on vacation last week 
and had received numerous email notification on subject records related to departure but had one record 
that appeared to be run numerous times by a CIS employee in California. At the same time I received a 
notification that the subject was scheduled to be departing the US in the next couple of days.      I first 
received a email notification (1121pm on 7/14/15) that passenge was 
scheduled to go outbound to Nigeria.  On 7/15/15 beginning around 724pm I received several notifications 
that my record was ran by  at CIS Laguna Niguel.     On 7/17/15 I received another notification 
that the passenger was departing (normal).    This subject is a US citizen and it didn???t make sense to me 
why a CIS employee would be running checks. I didn???t see where any petitions where pending in Claims 
and the timing of his departure being almost exactly when the checks where ran seemed strange. It could be 
a coincidence but I thought it should be forwarded for review in case the employee is running things in
for personal reasons.     The subject lives in GA and was flying from GA which made even more strange that CA 
was running the checks.      Special Agent   Homeland Security Investigations  Hartsfield 
International Airport  Atlanta, GA   Office:    ***Copies of the queries are 
available and are in the possession of SA  at this time***  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Laguna Nigel California  Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CIS-MIA-06879 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  USCIS; Hialeah, FL DHS Employee 3/9/2015 3/9/2015 5/9/2016
Attached is data pertaining to a USCIS employee. During a polygraph examination, as part of a pre-
employment process  with the US Customs and Border Protection, an employee made several admissions, 
e g  personal drug use  and sex with  at least two women that over stayed their visas

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-CIS-NYC-13243 New York, NY U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Unknown CIS EMPLOYEE, NEW YORK, NY FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/9/2015 7/9/2015 6/20/2016

On July 6, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE), Special Agent (SA) f Homeland Security Investigations  located in New 
York, NY (HSI/New York) reporting an allegation of an unnamed United States  Citizenship and Immigration 
Services (USCIS) employee soliciting a bribe from an unnamed  individual applying for immigration status.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-CIS-SFO-12850 San Francisco, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) , ISO, U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services; Santa 
Clara, CA

DHS Employee 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 5/3/2016

I am reporting an allegation sent to the San Jose Field Office by Attorney I am NOT 
reporting any personal allegation against SNJ FO employee  As Section Chief in the San Jose FO, 
I do not find Attorney  allegations to be credible but am reporting this as the allegations by 
Attorney were sent to the San Jose FO for appropriate action. Attorney
may have already reported this incident but I am reporting his allegations as a precautionary measure of 
transparency for the San Jose FO management staff.   Attorney alleges that his clients, 
applicants for adjustement of status within the jurisdiction of the San Jose Field Office, were interviewed on 
March 3, 2015 regarding their I-485 applications. Attorne alleges that San Jose FO 
Immigration Services Officer 2  interviewed his clients, applicants and 

on their first interview regarding their adjustment of status 
applications on said date. Attorney alleges that ISO2  advised his clients that 
they would not be eligible for adjustment of status unless they submitted the I-485 Supplement A form in 
order to quality for AOS under Section 245(i) of the INA. Attorne  alleges that his clients, 
upon being given this information and after Attorney  had left ISO  office, 
provided two thousand dollars to ISO2  for the I-485 Supplement A forms that they needed to 
file. Attorney provided a copy of a handwritten cash receipt note attached to his letter of 
allegation of misconduct against ISO2  It is noted that the San Jose FO does not accept cash 
payments at all. The San Jose FO only processes check payments. Attorney alleges that ISO2 

 kept the two thousand dollar cash payment for the I-485 Supplement A form and did not 
forward the money to the ISO1 designated cashiers of the San Jose FO. Attorney  mailed the 
I-485 Supplement A forms, which had been signed and dated on May 17, 2015 for applicants

in response to a Request for Evidence sent to them on 
March 10, 2015. The Request For Evidence forms, the I-485 Supplement A forms, the copy of the cash receipt 
and Attorney allegation letter were sent to the San Jose Field Office and received on May 
26, 2015.  ------------------------  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 1450 
Coleman Ave. Santa Clara, CA 95050    Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: 
On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Section Chief

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-CIS-SND-09027 San Diego, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) , SISO, USCIS, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 4/16/2015 4/16/2015 8/30/2016

On April 16, 2015, the DHS OIG Hotline received a referral from U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services, 
Office of Security and Integrity, which reported a complaint from  FDNS Officer, Laguna Niguel, 
CA, who alleged that  Supervisory Immigration Services Officer, San Diego, CA

), might have provided professional, immigration-related services to a civilian applicant in a 
matter before the U.S. government, in violation of Conflict of Interest statutes.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205

Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I15-CISDBFTF-PHL-16341 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services - 
Document and Benefit Fraud Task Force (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; USCIS; Pennsylvania, PA Corporation 9/2/2015 9/4/2015 7/14/2016

Image result for us visa immigration LOGO     Attention:  ,    Management of Global Visa Consultant 
wishes to officially inform you that US Working Visa and Work Permit has been Issued by the US Consular . 
You are thereby informed that your traveling Document "US Visa and Work Permit " have been sent via 
TRANS COURIER SERVICES which will arrive to your contact address on 28th AUGUST,2015 unfailingly .    Below 
are your Courier Shipping Details for your confirmation.    Courier Tracking Number  :          8FG637GU  Secret 
Tag No :                        THSC/XXX94/111/2  Transport Air Sticker No :              UK725  Sender Name :                       
Global Visa Consultant  Receivers Name :                     Ms.   Parcel Arrival Date  :                 28th 
August, 2015      Name of the Courier Company :   TRANS COURIER SERVICES  Courier Website :                              
www.transcargocourier.com  E-Mail    :                                             info@transcargocourier.com    For Confirmation 
of the Shipping details of your parcel and it's arrival date to your contact address, visit the courier website  
www.transcargocourier.com  , click on Tracking and type in your Courier Tracking Number    8FG637GU  to 
confirm the shipping details of your parcel.  Please Note: You are advised to track and confirm the shipping 
information's to avoid wrong delivery by the Courier agent.    We wish to inform you that the Courier sending 
fees of your Traveling Documents {VISA and WORK PERMIT}  is $1860.00 { One Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Sixty US Dollars Only } including Insurance Cover. I hereby attached the scanned copy of your Courier Airways 
Bill Receipt for your documentation.    IMPORTANT NOTICE:     You are therefore urgently required to send the 
Courier Sending fee $1860.00 immediately via Western Union Money Transfer with the following 
information's as below.      Below is the Western Union informations    * Name:            * 
Address :       * City  :            Philadelphia  * State :            Pennsylvania  * Zip Code :           19142  * 
Country :             USA     According to the Courier Delivery Manager, FAILURE NOT TO PAY THE COURIER FEES 
WITHIN 24 Hours unfailingly, the delivery of your parcel will be stopped and WITHHOLD.      Thanks for your 
patronage .                         Mr.   Procurement Manager  Global Visa Consultant.   Website : 
www.globalvisaconsultant.org  E-mail  : @globalvisaconsultant.org  Alt E-mail :  
info_global.visa@consultant.com  Tel:      -----------------------------  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Via Email to my address and I am presently based in Trinidad and 
Tobago    Public website complainant indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: 
Parcel Delivery Manager   Public website complainant indicated that the subject  had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: Collector of Funds   Public website complainant indicated that the subject
had miscellaneous identifiers of: Global Visas Consultant

3.4 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Extortion Extortion Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I15-CISDBFTF-PHL-16341 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services - 
Document and Benefit Fraud Task Force (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; USCIS; Pennsylvania, PA Corporation 9/2/2015 9/4/2015 7/14/2016

Image result for us visa immigration LOGO     Attention: Ms.  ,    Management of Global Visa Consultant 
wishes to officially inform you that US Working Visa and Work Permit has been Issued by the US Consular . 
You are thereby informed that your traveling Document "US Visa and Work Permit " have been sent via 
TRANS COURIER SERVICES which will arrive to your contact address on 28th AUGUST,2015 unfailingly .    Below 
are your Courier Shipping Details for your confirmation.    Courier Tracking Number  :          8FG637GU  Secret 
Tag No :                        THSC/XXX94/111/2  Transport Air Sticker No :              UK725  Sender Name :                       
Global Visa Consultant  Receivers Name :                     Ms.   Parcel Arrival Date  :                 28th 
August, 2015      Name of the Courier Company :   TRANS COURIER SERVICES  Courier Website :                              
www.transcargocourier.com  E-Mail    :                                             info@transcargocourier.com    For Confirmation 
of the Shipping details of your parcel and it's arrival date to your contact address, visit the courier website  
www.transcargocourier.com  , click on Tracking and type in your Courier Tracking Number    8FG637GU  to 
confirm the shipping details of your parcel.  Please Note: You are advised to track and confirm the shipping 
information's to avoid wrong delivery by the Courier agent.    We wish to inform you that the Courier sending 
fees of your Traveling Documents {VISA and WORK PERMIT}  is $1860.00 { One Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Sixty US Dollars Only } including Insurance Cover. I hereby attached the scanned copy of your Courier Airways 
Bill Receipt for your documentation.    IMPORTANT NOTICE:     You are therefore urgently required to send the 
Courier Sending fee $1860.00 immediately via Western Union Money Transfer with the following 
information's as below.      Below is the Western Union informations    * Name:            * 
Address :       * City  :            Philadelphia  * State :            Pennsylvania  * Zip Code :           19142  * 
Country :             USA     According to the Courier Delivery Manager, FAILURE NOT TO PAY THE COURIER FEES 
WITHIN 24 Hours unfailingly, the delivery of your parcel will be stopped and WITHHOLD.      Thanks for your 
patronage .                         Mr.   Procurement Manager  Global Visa Consultant.   Website : 
www.globalvisaconsultant.org  E-mail  : @globalvisaconsultant.org  Alt E-mail :  
info_global.visa@consultant.com  Tel:    +1 (201) 897-2446  -----------------------------  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Via Email to my address and I am presently based in Trinidad and 
Tobago    Public website complainant indicated that the subject Roderick had miscellaneous identifiers of: 
Parcel Delivery Manager   Public website complainant indicated that the subject  had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: Collector of Funds   Public website complainant indicated that the subjec
had miscellaneous identifiers of: Global Visas Consultant

3.4 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Extortion Extortion Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I15-DHSHQ-BOS-01456 Boston, MA U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)

Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation and United Technologies Corporation FNU  LNU DHS Contractor 10/29/2014 10/29/2014 3/24/2016

A copy of the complaint and the other materials are enclosed. Generally, the allegations  involve the 
provision of defective and non-conforming helicopter parts. Specifically, the relator  alleges that one of 
Sikorsky's subcontractors, GKN Aerospace, Inc., was providing defective and  non-conforming root end 
fairings for helicopter blades to the 53K helicopter program in order to  save money. Additionally, the relator 
alleges that many of the composite helicopter blades were  crushed during the Sikorsky manufacturing 
process but were neither replaced nor repaired.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 18 USC 38 Fraud Involving Aircraft or Space Vehicle Parts in 
Interstate or Foreign Commerce

I15-DHSHQ-MIA-04309 Miami, FL
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Miami, FL General Public 12/1/2014 1/8/2015 12/21/2016

We received this complaint and are forwarding it to you. A phone number check of  revealed it 
belongs to a . A check through oes not show this person to work for CBP now or in the 
past.     I am forwarding this email to you for review. Attached is the video of the person making the 
complaint as well as the recorded voicemail she received.

3.5.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
False Personating of a DHS 
Employee by Non-DHS Employee

Impersonation of a DHS 
employee Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912

False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I15-DHSHQ-WFO-06354 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)

 DHS HQ; WASHINGTON, DC DHS Employee 2/24/2015 2/24/2015 3/28/2016

The employees name is  she is a GS 14 working out of DHS HQ.  Here is a synopsis presented to 
the US Attorney’s office for prosecution for theft.  They have declined, so this is an administrative matter and 
I would like to interview her to close out this matter.    DO-14-0806-I - : A former Treasury 
employee has not provided details of the work she performs, when asked directly refused to provide 
sufficient details or evidence of her work to her supervisor. The suspicion of fraud was escalated to 
supervisor for action and nothing has been done to investigate.  She recently became aggressive towards 
supervisor and FPS Police were called.  She has been reprimanded for this behavior however; the employee 
has since left Treasury and works for DHS.  On December 18, 2014, the Department of the Treasury, Office of 
Inspector General, Office of Investigations (TOIG) reviewed the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit 
Authority (WMATA) SmartTrip Card of , Analyst, Departmental Offices (DO), and compared that 
data against ’ s reporting times.    TOIG reviewed the data from WMATA and compared the times
swiped her SmartTrip card onto the 11Y bus to the times she was due to report for work at 717 14th St. NW 
Washington, DC.  The analysis revealed that  was swiping her card on the bus in Alexandria when she 
should have already been at work in DC.  TOIG noted approximately 76 incidents where rrived late to 
work or left early from work.    TOIG calculated 85 hours tha  claimed to be working for the 
government but WMATA bus records reflect she was not present during the time period of May 2013 through 
September 2014.  TOIG calculated  s hourly rate of $59.09 and multiplied it by 85 hours owed and came 
up with a total of $5,023.05 tha wes the government.      Any questions feel free to call me.  I am 
teleworking today and can be reached via email or at   Thanks,

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 31 USC 3729 False Claims [Civil]

I15-DHSHQ-WFO-16221 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)

 DHS; Washington, DC DHS Employee 9/1/2015 9/10/2015 9/22/2016

 professor at Georgetown Law School has images of children on his computers  issued by the 
Department of Homeland Security & Georgetown Law School. Cohn got a 17  year old Georgetown Student 
pregnant and took her to Voorhies New Jersey for an abortion so  her parents & his jobs ad DHS and GTown 
Law would not find out. His computers should be  searched and I am certain you will find images of children 
and records of him traveling to  Delaware and New York and other places to engage in relationships with 
underage girls.  He was a former Assistant Secretary at Department of Homeland Security. I was his personal  
assistant for nearly six years and I eye-witnessed.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I15-DHSOIG-DAL-08726 Dallas, TX
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, OIG 
(DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; DHS OIG; Dallas, TX General Public 4/10/2015 4/13/2015 6/12/2016

*This is a DHS OIG, Dallas Field Office, generated complaint.   s impersonating as a Department of 
Homeland Security Law Enforcement Official that includes displaying a badge and gun in the North Texas area 
(Dallas, TX). possesses an extensive criminal history that poses a threat to the community.  --  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: North Texas (Dallas Area) 

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-FAMS-ORL-00524 Orlando, FL Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS)
 Federal Air Marshal; U.S. Federal Air Marshal 

Service (DHS); DHS Employee, Orlando, FL General Public 10/10/2014 10/10/2014 7/29/2016

On October 9, 2014,  Special Agent (SA), U.S. Postal Service (USPS), Office of Inspector General 
(OIG), Orlando, FL, contacted  SA, Department of Homeland Security, OIG, Orlando, FL, to discuss 
an interview of  a civilian, that was conducted by asquez, SA, USPS, OIG, Dallas, TX, and 

 SA, USPS, OIG, Dallas, TX on October 2, 2014 in support of an execution of a search and seizure 
warrant at AmeriMed Diagnostic Services, Inc. (ADS), Tampa, FL, on October 2, 2014 (I14-FAMS-ORL-07450).        

 employed at ADS as an office assistant and MRI tech, was interviewed by the USPS OIG at the Tampa-
North office, located separately from the ADS location in Tampa where the search and seizure warrant was 
executed on October 2, 2014. stated that on October 1, 2014, she received a phone call from

 Federal Air Marshal, Federal Air Marshal Service, Transportation Security Administration, 
Orlando, FL, who requested copies of his medical records because he recently switched doctors. aid 
that tated that some of his "Air Marshal buddies" told him that AmeriMed is under 
investigation and they had been interviewed. also said that elated to her that 
AmeriMed will be raided.    On October 9, 2014,  Assistant U.S. Attorney, U.S. Department of 
Justice, Middle District of Florida, Tampa, FL, contacted SA  and stated that his office is interested in 
seeking prosecution of any subject, including  that may have had prior knowledge of the 
impending search and seizure warrants and disclosed knowledge of the impending execution of the search 
and seizure warrants to those under investigation.  ----  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: AmeriMed Diagnostic Services, Inc., Tampa-North office, 3010 138th Street, Suite 100, Tampa, FL   
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty    Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1518
Obstruction of Criminal Investigations of Health 
Care Offenses

I15-FAMS-ORL-02425 Orlando, FL Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS)
 Federal Air Marshal Service (DHS); Non-DHS 

Employee; Orlando, FL DHS Employee 11/20/2014 11/20/2014 5/3/2016

On November 17, 2014  Assistant Special Agent in Charge, U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service 
(FAMS), Transportation Security Administration (TSA), Orlando, FL, contacted  Special Agent 
(SA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General, Orlando, FL, to discuss 
information  received regarding  former Federal Air Marshal (Medically Retired), 
FAMS, TSA, Orlando, FL, who may have committed fraud in regard to work-related injurie
sustained while on duty and ultimately caused o medically retire from her position.     
stated he received information from  SA, DHS, Homeland Security Investigations, Tampa, FL, 
who alleged that he (  had information that participated in strenuous physical activities 
such as SCUBA diving, kayaking, and other similar activities since her retirement.  ----  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Central Florida region    Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty    Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Assistant Special Agent in Charge    Public website complainant indicated that the 
subject ad miscellaneous identifiers of: Former Federal Air Marshal (Medically-Retired)    Public 
website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Assistant Special Agent in Charge

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1347 Health Care Fraud

I15-FEMA-ATL-13951 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  DHS Employee, FEMA, Atlanta, GA DHS Employee 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 3/15/2016

s not the actual Complainant, but the Referring Official.  ------------    From:    Sent: 
Monday, July 13, 2015 10:52 AM  To   Cc:  Subject: RE: Travel Card Issue    Here is 
the data attached to his replacement card.  As I stated, he claims he was kidnapped over the holiday weekend 
and wanted to file disputes for all of his charges.  When they asked if a police report was filed, he stated 
there was no need since he was safe and his items were returned.  They have issued a replacement card with 
a $2.00 limit which is the card number attached.  P/W to follow.    MSAC  Staff 
Accountant/Bank Card Program Lead  DHS/HQ/CFO/FM/Bank Card and Review  Desk/  
Blackberry @hq.dhs.gov    From    Sent: Monday, July 13, 2015 10:47 
AM  To:  Subject: RE: Travel Card 
Issue    For the sake of everyone on the email, I have spoken to Donna and passed info on to  We are 
researching and will try to see what kind of validation we can get on the cardholder???s claim.      Thanks,    

        From:  Sent: Monday, July 13, 2015 8:01 AM  To:
 Subject: RE: Travel Card Issue    I have not heard anything 

additional.  I will get an update today and let you know what happened.    Thank you,   
MSAC  Staff Accountant/Bank Card Program Lead  DHS/HQ/CFO/FM/Bank Card and Review

- Blackberry @hq.dhs.gov    From:   Sent: Monday, July 13, 
2015 7:03 AM  To:  Cc: Subject: RE: 
Travel Card Issue        Any updates or news on this?      Thanks,         From:  Sent: 
Friday, July 10, 2015 7:30 PM  To:  

Subject: RE: Travel Card Issue    Resending with the proper  email.         Sent with Good 
(www.good.com)     ________________________________________  From:   Sent: Friday, July 10, 
2015 7:20:59 PM  To: Cc:
Subject: Travel Card Issue  All,     I just received a call from DHS HQ, egarding an allegation that a 
FEMA traveler was kidnaped and forced to use their Travel Card fraudulently. The bank is looking into it and 
will coordinate with   , please keep everyone on this email in the loop on what the bank find 
out.          Sent with Good (www.good.com)    **PLEASE NOTE:  This is a PARTIAL COMPLAINT.  FULL 
Complaint being sent via Hotline email address.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-FEMA-BEL-16849 Bellingham, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 9/2/2015 9/14/2015 3/3/2016

WASHINGTON FLOODING/MUDSLIDE DR 4186    THE COMPLAINANT IS CALLING TO REPORT FOR FEMA 
FRAUD.THE COMPLAINANT STATES  THA  RAN STORAGE FACILITY FOR THE OSO LANDSLIDE. THE 
COMPLAINANT STATES THAT  FEMA DONATED FOOD AND OTHER SUPPLIES TO THE STORAGE FACILITY, AND 

WAS  SELLING ALL OF THESE DONATED ITEMS FOR PROFIT. THE COMPLAINANT STATES THAT S  
FRAUDULENT AND NEEDS TO BE INVESTIGATED FOR THESE ACTIONS

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BLX-03798 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, DBA, Columbus, MS
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/23/2014 1/16/2015 3/18/2016

Subject was alleged to have filed a FEMA claim for a residence at which she did not live.  Subject lived in 
Starkville, MS, at the time of disaster 4175.  After learning that her previous residence a  
in Louisville, MS, was destroyed by a tornado she filed a false claim utilizing an old federal tax return to prove 
residency. Subject received over $9,000 in FEMA assistance for claim number 50-0283274.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BLX-03798 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, DBA, Columbus, MS
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/23/2014 1/16/2015 3/18/2016

Subject was alleged to have filed a FEMA claim for a residence at which she did not live.  Subject lived in 
Starkville, MS, at the time of disaster 4175.  After learning that her previous residence a  
in Louisville, MS, was destroyed by a tornado she filed a false claim utilizing an old federal tax return to prove 
residency  Subject received over $9 000 in FEMA assistance for claim number 50-0283274

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BLX-07156 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Selfmade Taxes, et al, Mobile, AL 3/12/2015 3/13/2015 4/29/2016
Per SA  open a field-initated investigation on Selfmade Taxes, et al for filing false transportation 
claims with FEMA 3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BLX-07347 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; Louisville, MS
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/16/2015 3/18/2015 10/4/2016

Subject was alleged to have filed a FEMA claim for a residence at which she did not live.  Subject lived with 
her mother in Louisville, MS, at the time of disaster 4175.  Subject claimed she lived at
during the disaster which was totally destroyed.  Subject received over $10,000 in FEMA assistance for claim 
number 41-1589405.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BLX-12693 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Mobile, AL General Public 6/29/2015 7/17/2015 6/8/2016

4176-AL REG 500288698   Applicant submitted a Vehicle repair estimate that is not 
verifiable.  Case was processed for Transportation assistance in the amount of $6050.00. DOC#12447492 pg4 
dated 8/12/2014 MICKEY BRADFORD AUTO SHOP    9/17/2014 Mickey Bradford Auto Shop (251) 639-9375 was 
contacted by NCT caseworker. Auto Shop representative  stated that this shop does not do those types 
of repairs (engine replacement, alternator and transmission replacement) and that the repairs were not done 
at this shop.    Forwarding for review for credibility.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Disaster Assistance Applicant  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment 
Title is: QC Program Specialist

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BLX-17273 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; MS Grant Applicant 9/19/2015 9/21/2015 3/22/2016

was living in a apt with two male roommates while his mother lived in wiggins. wned 
the property a  where s house was vacant. After Katrina hit  claimed he was 
residing in this home and lost everything due to hurricane Katrina, confirmed this and even went so 
far as to go to the courthouse after the fact and put the piece if property with the house on
i  name to help him get the $100,000.00 grant which he did receive. s the postmaster at the 
Beaumont, Mississippi post office an s a former Homeland Security employee in DC but recently 
returned to Biloxi and is working for American Medical Response (AMR). I am 100% positive of this fraud and 
find it horribly wrong & hope there will be justice! Thank you & God Bless  --  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Biloxi / Wiggins Mississippi    Public website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of subject was: Off Duty

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-BOS-11789 Boston, MA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; Middlebury, CT State/Local Govt 
Employee

6/10/2015 6/10/2015 10/5/2016

***PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***    On June 10, 2015, the USAO, 
District of Conn. contacted the DHS OIG, and requested assistance in this FEMA fraud case.  From on or about 
January of 2011 through  on or about December of 2013,    used  the  Operating  Accounts from 
the Middlebury Voluteer Fire Department (MVFD)  to  pay  for unauthorized personal expenses and for 
expenses associated with his personal electrical business.   These payments  included  checks  paid directly  
to   checks  paid directly to his business, checks made directly  payable  to employees  of his 
business,  checks  made  to various  vendors  of his business  for  business-related supplies, and checks made 
to reimburse third parties for personal loans owed b     The money used by was obtained 
by the MVFD from FEMA.  This is a joint case with the FBI.    The case agent i .  ----------------  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Middlebury, CT   Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty    Public website complainant indicated that the subject 

had miscellaneous identifiers of: Fire Chief, Middlebury Volunteer Fire Department

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I15-FEMA-CHI-09153 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
***UNDER SEAL*** United States of America ex rel. Rodney Heath v. 
Indianapolis Fire Dept., Cause No. 1:15-cv-0425-SEB-MJD

Indianapolis Fire Dept  
Indianapolis Fire Dept Grant Applicant 4/20/2015 4/20/2015 3/9/2016

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3730(b)(2), enclosed please find your service copy of the qui tam action under the 
False Claims Act on behalf of Plaintiff/Relator  that we filed today.  As you may recall, we 
previously disclosed all relevant information available to Mr. ia voluntary written disclosure on March 
6, 2015.

3.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Qui Tams Qui Tams Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-FEMA-CHI-17665 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) J & S Communications, ; FEMA; Evansville, IN 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 1/5/2016

Two formal investigations have been completed. One by the Evansville Police Department (Indiana) and One 
by the Office of Inspector General. Capt. EPD) and OIG) were the two 
investigators. Both Investigators found criminal grounds for prosecution. The Vanderburgh Prosecutor and 
the Indiana AG found that there was no formal end date to the contract with J&S Communications and 
deferred prosecution. Either investigator could be contacted for a full report of the investigation.    Tens of 
thousands of dollars has been misappropriated to J&S communications. The project has never been 
completed or equipment from invoices delivered.    At bare minimum an audit needs to be completed by 
FEMA region V comparing invoices to equipment in order to relieve any County EMA within IDHS District 10 of 
responsibility of owning equipment that couldn't be produced from an impromptu County audit by FEMA or 
IDHS from falsified invoices.    IDHS District 10 has painstakingly been dealing with this issue for many years. It 
has been a lengthy and slow process waiting on the investigations, unfortunately with no satisfying 
resolutions for the Counties involved.    Supporting evidence can be obtained thru IDHS District 10 meeting 
minutes and sub-committee reports. is the current IDHS District 10 President and Crwawford 
County EMA Director   Below is a Channel 25 news report that aired on Sept 23, 2015            
http://www.tristatehomepage.com/news/local-news/discrepancies-found-in-state-grant-run-by-former-
ema-director#.VgONq7uf5E0.email   Mr James admits on the interview of wrong doing and that he has the 
equipment and we can pick it up. The contract calls for it to be delivered and installed.     These aren't just 
allegations or an attempt to get even. These Counties are on the hook for tens thousands of dollars of 
equipment and certainly couldn't afford to reimburse FEMA.    This would also involve the Fiscal Agent at the 
time for District 10  (Former Vanderburgh/Evansville EMA Director).     The Grant in question is 
EDS-44P-500A in the amount of $349,878.54  Project Title, RACES - Amateur Radio  Solution Area - Equipment  -   
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: All Counties within IDHS District 10   Public 
website complainant indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Former IDHS District 
10 Fiscal Agent

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-FEMA-CHI-17665 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) J & S Communications, ; FEMA; Evansville, IN 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 1/5/2016

Two formal investigations have been completed. One by the Evansville Police Department (Indiana) and One 
by the Office of Inspector General. Capt. EPD) and OIG) were the two 
investigators. Both Investigators found criminal grounds for prosecution. The Vanderburgh Prosecutor and 
the Indiana AG found that there was no formal end date to the contract with J&S Communications and 
deferred prosecution. Either investigator could be contacted for a full report of the investigation.    Tens of 
thousands of dollars has been misappropriated to J&S communications. The project has never been 
completed or equipment from invoices delivered.    At bare minimum an audit needs to be completed by 
FEMA region V comparing invoices to equipment in order to relieve any County EMA within IDHS District 10 of 
responsibility of owning equipment that couldn't be produced from an impromptu County audit by FEMA or 
IDHS from falsified invoices.    IDHS District 10 has painstakingly been dealing with this issue for many years. It 
has been a lengthy and slow process waiting on the investigations, unfortunately with no satisfying 
resolutions for the Counties involved.    Supporting evidence can be obtained thru IDHS District 10 meeting 
minutes and sub-committee reports. is the current IDHS District 10 President and Crwawford 
County EMA Director   Below is a Channel 25 news report that aired on Sept 23, 2015            
http://www.tristatehomepage.com/news/local-news/discrepancies-found-in-state-grant-run-by-former-
ema-director#.VgONq7uf5E0.email   Mr James admits on the interview of wrong doing and that he has the 
equipment and we can pick it up. The contract calls for it to be delivered and installed.     These aren't just 
allegations or an attempt to get even. These Counties are on the hook for tens thousands of dollars of 
equipment and certainly couldn't afford to reimburse FEMA.    This would also involve the Fiscal Agent at the 
time for District 10  (Former Vanderburgh/Evansville EMA Director).     The Grant in question is 
EDS-44P-500A in the amount of $349,878.54  Project Title, RACES - Amateur Radio  Solution Area - Equipment  -   
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: All Counties within IDHS District 10   Public 
website complainant indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Former IDHS District 
10 Fiscal Agent

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-FEMA-CHI-17665 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) J & S Communications, ; FEMA; Evansville, IN General Public 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 1/5/2016

Two formal investigations have been completed. One by the Evansville Police Department (Indiana) and One 
by the Office of Inspector General. Capt. EPD) and OIG) were the two 
investigators. Both Investigators found criminal grounds for prosecution. The Vanderburgh Prosecutor and 
the Indiana AG found that there was no formal end date to the contract with J&S Communications and 
deferred prosecution. Either investigator could be contacted for a full report of the investigation.    Tens of 
thousands of dollars has been misappropriated to J&S communications. The project has never been 
completed or equipment from invoices delivered.    At bare minimum an audit needs to be completed by 
FEMA region V comparing invoices to equipment in order to relieve any County EMA within IDHS District 10 of 
responsibility of owning equipment that couldn't be produced from an impromptu County audit by FEMA or 
IDHS from falsified invoices.    IDHS District 10 has painstakingly been dealing with this issue for many years. It 
has been a lengthy and slow process waiting on the investigations, unfortunately with no satisfying 
resolutions for the Counties involved.    Supporting evidence can be obtained thru IDHS District 10 meeting 
minutes and sub-committee reports. is the current IDHS District 10 President and Crwawford 
County EMA Director   Below is a Channel 25 news report that aired on Sept 23, 2015            
http://www.tristatehomepage.com/news/local-news/discrepancies-found-in-state-grant-run-by-former-
ema-director#.VgONq7uf5E0.email   Mr James admits on the interview of wrong doing and that he has the 
equipment and we can pick it up. The contract calls for it to be delivered and installed.     These aren't just 
allegations or an attempt to get even. These Counties are on the hook for tens thousands of dollars of 
equipment and certainly couldn't afford to reimburse FEMA.    This would also involve the Fiscal Agent at the 
time for District 10  (Former Vanderburgh/Evansville EMA Director).     The Grant in question is 
EDS-44P-500A in the amount of $349,878.54  Project Title, RACES - Amateur Radio  Solution Area - Equipment  -   
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: All Counties within IDHS District 10   Public 
website complainant indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Former IDHS District 
10 Fiscal Agent

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Under Investigation Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-FEMA-CHI-17665 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) J & S Communications, ; FEMA; Evansville, IN
State/Local Govt 
Employee 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 1/5/2016

Two formal investigations have been completed. One by the Evansville Police Department (Indiana) and One 
by the Office of Inspector General. Capt. EPD) and OIG) were the two 
investigators. Both Investigators found criminal grounds for prosecution. The Vanderburgh Prosecutor and 
the Indiana AG found that there was no formal end date to the contract with J&S Communications and 
deferred prosecution. Either investigator could be contacted for a full report of the investigation.    Tens of 
thousands of dollars has been misappropriated to J&S communications. The project has never been 
completed or equipment from invoices delivered.    At bare minimum an audit needs to be completed by 
FEMA region V comparing invoices to equipment in order to relieve any County EMA within IDHS District 10 of 
responsibility of owning equipment that couldn't be produced from an impromptu County audit by FEMA or 
IDHS from falsified invoices.    IDHS District 10 has painstakingly been dealing with this issue for many years. It 
has been a lengthy and slow process waiting on the investigations, unfortunately with no satisfying 
resolutions for the Counties involved.    Supporting evidence can be obtained thru IDHS District 10 meeting 
minutes and sub-committee reports. is the current IDHS District 10 President and Crwawford 
County EMA Director   Below is a Channel 25 news report that aired on Sept 23, 2015            
http://www.tristatehomepage.com/news/local-news/discrepancies-found-in-state-grant-run-by-former-
ema-director#.VgONq7uf5E0.email   Mr James admits on the interview of wrong doing and that he has the 
equipment and we can pick it up. The contract calls for it to be delivered and installed.     These aren't just 
allegations or an attempt to get even. These Counties are on the hook for tens thousands of dollars of 
equipment and certainly couldn't afford to reimburse FEMA.    This would also involve the Fiscal Agent at the 
time for District 10  (Former Vanderburgh/Evansville EMA Director).     The Grant in question is 
EDS-44P-500A in the amount of $349,878.54  Project Title, RACES - Amateur Radio  Solution Area - Equipment  -   
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: All Counties within IDHS District 10   Public 
website complainant indicated that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Former IDHS District 
10 Fiscal Agent

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Under Investigation Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-FEMA-DAL-13524 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) FEMA DBA; TX. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/15/2015 7/30/2015 6/12/2016

THE COMPLAINANT STATED THAT HE WOULD LIKE TO REMAIN ANONYMOUS. THE  COMPLAINANT STATED THAT 
 FILED A FLOOD DAMAGE CLAIM ON HER HOUSE, BUT   DOES NOT OWN THE HOUSE. THE 

COMPLAINANT STATED THAT THE HOUSE BELONGS TO 'S  FAMILY MEMBERS. THE COMPLAINANT STATED 
THAT IT WAS NOT S RESPONSIBLE TO  REPAIR THE HOUSE. THE COMPLAINANT STATED THA
RECEIVED $22,000 FOR FLOODING  DAMAGE ON THE HOUSE EVEN THOUGH THE HOUSE IS NOT HER HOUSE.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-DET-02023 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/29/2014 11/12/2014 8/1/2016
Allegation:  The applicant applied for and received FEMA funds for a property she owns but did not live in. 
The property that was applied for looks like an abandoned commercial building. Applicant pay property taxes 
on another address.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1018 False Official Certificate or Writings

I15-FEMA-DET-02023 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/29/2014 11/12/2014 8/1/2016
Allegation:  The applicant applied for and received FEMA funds for a property she owns but did not live in. 
The property that was applied for looks like an abandoned commercial building. Applicant pay property taxes 
on another address

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1018 False Official Certificate or Writings

I15-FEMA-DET-02023 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/29/2014 11/12/2014 8/1/2016
Allegation:  The applicant applied for and received FEMA funds for a property she owns but did not live in. 
The property that was applied for looks like an abandoned commercial building. Applicant pay property taxes 
on another address.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-DET-02078 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA, MI
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/12/2014 11/13/2014 11/23/2016 Allegation: The applicant received FEMA home repair for a foreclosed dwelling. 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-DET-02078 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA, MI
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/12/2014 11/13/2014 11/23/2016 Allegation: The applicant received FEMA home repair for a foreclosed dwelling. 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-DET-05036 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/5/2015 1/26/2015 7/29/2016

Allegation submitted false documents to FEMA in order to fraudulently obtain  rental 
assistance.    An inspection of the property determined that s three bedroom home sustained little  
damage. Based on the inspection, FEMA denie  assistance. On 10/29/2014  sent FEMA a 
signed letter appealing the decision. [Attachment #2] She signed the letter ”  Investigator 

 examined the signatures on the receipts and lease submitted by  and found that the 
landlord’s name was printed  but was signed .”  After comparing those signatures 
with the one on appeal letter, it is highly  unlikely that the same person signed the lease and 

appeal letter.    As discussed above, FEMA conducted a second inspection o
damaged dwelling  on 12/20/2014. At the time of the inspection, two and one half months after she reported 
to  FEMA that she was renting  the inspector documented that two bedrooms  a

were occupied. This information further indicates did not  move from the 
damaged dwelling and was not entitled to rental assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-DET-05036 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/5/2015 1/26/2015 7/29/2016

Allegation submitted false documents to FEMA in order to fraudulently obtain  rental 
assistance.    An inspection of the property determined that s three bedroom home sustained little  
damage. Based on the inspection, FEMA denie  assistance. On 10/29/2014  sent FEMA a 
signed letter appealing the decision. [Attachment #2] She signed the letter ”  Investigator 

 examined the signatures on the receipts and lease submitted by  and found that the 
landlord’s name was printed  but was signed ”  After comparing those signatures 
with the one on appeal letter, it is highly  unlikely that the same person signed the lease and 

appeal letter.    As discussed above, FEMA conducted a second inspection o
damaged dwelling  on 12/20/2014. At the time of the inspection, two and one half months after she reported 
to  FEMA that she was renting  the inspector documented that two bedrooms  a

were occupied. This information further indicates did not  move from the 
damaged dwelling and was not entitled to rental assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-DET-05256 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/8/2015 1/30/2015 8/3/2016

Allegation:  Applicant received disaster assistance funds by falsely reporting that the damaged dwelling was 
his primary residence 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-DET-12237 Detroit, MI Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) State/Local Govt 
Employee

6/22/2015 6/22/2015 6/29/2016

I spoke with  this morning who is Branch Chief in NPD’s Tech Hazards Division in FEMA.  She called 
to inform FAPO about an on-going investigation being conducted in the Madison County, KY Emergency 
Management Agency (EMA) involving the CSEPP program.  The County EMA Finance Officer was arrested on 
charges of forgery and fraud.   The charges are alleged to have involved an amount of some $343,000 over a 
ten  year period.  The issue is thought to have stemmed from program income being accounted for separately 
from grant funding by the Finance Officer.   The event has produced significant media coverage in the KY area.    

s office was made aware of the situation approximately six weeks ago and has been working with all 
appropriate individuals within FEMA.  They have been in touch with FEMA Region 4, FEMA OCC and with the 
KY Emergency Management Director at the state level.  They’ve also notified the Army where the CSEPP 
funding comes from.    KY EMA has requested a state audit of the County EMA and  has advised the state 
that FEMA will not issue any instructions until a full report from the state is issued.      Just wanted you to be 
aware and to pass this information on as you deem appropriate.    Thank you.

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I15-FEMA-DVR-04089 Denver, CO Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Colorado Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, 
Centennial, CO

1/2/2015 1/6/2015 3/3/2016

The following information was submitted Thu Nov 13 16:53:18 201 :    Agency: Federal Emergency 
Management Agency  code: 08    Allegation: Recipient Fraud (Claims)  code: 25    Source: Confidential source  
code: 02    State: Colorado  code: CO    Subject: Recipient  code: 04    The Colorado Division of Homeland 
Security and Emergency inflates its request for Emergency Management Performance Grants (EMPG)by 100%. 
There is a 50% match required so false paper work is filed to justify those requests. FEMA reimburses the 
Colorado DHSEM at the 50% rate which fully covers the Colorado needs. There isn't any match  This complaint 
was submitted by:

3.6.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Cost Mischarging / Defective 
Pricing

Cost 
mischarging/defective 
pricing

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-FEMA-DVR-06667 Denver, CO Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Boulder, CO et al General Public 3/3/2015 3/16/2015 11/1/2016

On January 28, 2015, DHS-OIG Investigation, Denver, CO received information from Special Agent
with the Denver SBA Office concerning a possible FEMA fraud case involvin  of 
Boulder, Colorado.   According to SBA, the  allegedly provided fraudulent information and 
documentation in furtherance of obtain federal government disaster assistance from FEMA and SBA.  Based 
on the ??? information provided to SBA, SBA determined the damaged property was not the 

 primary residence and further provided a lease agreement for a California residence to 
demonstrate that the damaged property (Boulder residence) was in fact their primary residence.  However, 
the lease agreement is highly suspect since it involved acquaintances and business partners.  Additionally, 
government, public and merchant information indicated the primary residence was the California residence 
and not the Boulder residence, the damaged property, which is suspected of being either a rental, seasonal 
or vacation home.      Based on the fraudulent informaiton furnished by the Eversoles to the government 
entities, they were able to obtained $15,755 from FEMA and a $90,000 loan from SBA.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Boulder, CO  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: Special Agent

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-FEMA-DVR-06667 Denver, CO Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Boulder, CO et al General Public 3/3/2015 3/16/2015 11/1/2016

On January 28, 2015, DHS-OIG Investigation, Denver, CO received information from Special Agent
with the Denver SBA Office concerning a possible FEMA fraud case involvin  of 
Boulder, Colorado.   According to SBA, the  allegedly provided fraudulent information and 
documentation in furtherance of obtain federal government disaster assistance from FEMA and SBA.  Based 
on the ??? information provided to SBA, SBA determined the damaged property was not the 

 primary residence and further provided a lease agreement for a California residence to 
demonstrate that the damaged property (Boulder residence) was in fact their primary residence.  However, 
the lease agreement is highly suspect since it involved acquaintances and business partners.  Additionally, 
government, public and merchant information indicated the primary residence was the California residence 
and not the Boulder residence, the damaged property, which is suspected of being either a rental, seasonal 
or vacation home.      Based on the fraudulent informaiton furnished by th o the government 
entities, they were able to obtained $15,755 from FEMA and a $90,000 loan from SBA.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Boulder, CO  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: Special Agent

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-DVR-17194 Denver, CO Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Arvada, CO

DHS Employee 9/17/2015 9/21/2015 3/3/2016

9:48AM CST  The complainant  claims that a volunteer FEMA dog handler by the name of
s working with the Arvada Colorado Police Department. The complainant claims that

alled the police and told them that she was suicidal and had guns in her home. In result the police 
came and forcefully removed the complainant from her home, and once she was removed went 
into her home and stole her property. The complainant claims that this event took place in 2011, but is still 
fearful that the Arvada Police Dept. and  are still doing this to other people. The complainant 
claims that  is also impersonating DHS employees by making a website where she sells dogs, 
stating that she is a FEMA/government employee.  --  LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date 
range of: 2011.   LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende  was: 
On Duty

4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I15-FEMA-ELP-01043 El Paso, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/21/2014 10/22/2014 5/11/2016

Allegation: applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for a dwelling where she did not 
live at the time of the disaster.    On 09/09/14, in an effort to determine whether eceived homeowner’s 
insurance payments in addition to FEMA disaster assistance, the Fraud Branch contacted Northern Colorado 
Insurance Services, telephone number  According to Agent/Owne  on 10/12/13 
Clift filed a claim for homeowner policy #49-253977-00 and listed  Drake, CO 80515 as a 
Secondary residence. dded that no settlement was made to Clift because the claim for policy #49-
253977-00 was dated 10/12/13, after DR-4145.  stated Clift’s homeowner’s policy #49-253977-00 listed 
her address as  El Dorado, KS 67042.  On 10/20/14, in another effort to verify Clift’s 
occupancy at  Drake, CO 80515, the Fraud Branch contacted the Drake Branch of the United 
States Post Office, telephone number  According to information provided by Postal Supervisor 
Cheryl,  Drake, CO 80515 does not have mail delivered to the residence but by Post Office 
Box.  informed the Fraud Branch that a subpoena would need to be filed in order to receive Post Office 
Box information.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-ELP-01043 El Paso, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non DHS employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/21/2014 10/22/2014 5/11/2016

Allegation: applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for a dwelling where she did not 
live at the time of the disaster.    On 09/09/14, in an effort to determine whether eceived homeowner’s 
insurance payments in addition to FEMA disaster assistance, the Fraud Branch contacted Northern Colorado 
Insurance Services, telephone number  According to Agent/Owne  on 10/12/13 
Clift filed a claim for homeowner policy #49-253977-00 and listed  Drake, CO 80515 as a 
Secondary residence.  added that no settlement was made to  because the claim for policy #49-
253977-00 was dated 10/12/13, after DR-4145  stated omeowner’s policy #49-253977-00 listed 
her address as  El Dorado, KS 67042.  On 10/20/14, in another effort to verify Clift’s 
occupancy a  Drake, CO 80515, the Fraud Branch contacted the Drake Branch of the United 
States Post Office, telephone number (  According to information provided by Postal Supervisor 

 Drake, CO 80515 does not have mail delivered to the residence but by Post Office 
Box  informed the Fraud Branch that a subpoena would need to be filed in order to receive Post Office 
Box information.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-ELP-01124 El Paso, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 10/21/2014 1/6/2015 5/31/2016

, a non-DHS employee, allegedly fraudulently received funds from FEMA for the Colorado 
flood disaster.  FEMA records indicate that three disbursements totaling $14,587.00 were sent to  for 
rental assistance.      COLORADO STORMS/FLOODING (DR-4145)    HOFF STATES "APPLICANT SENT IN A REQUEST 
FOR RENTAL ASSIST. APP PROVIDED PRE AND  POST LEASE, PRE AND POST INCOME, COMPLETED HOUSING AND 
LNCOME FORMS, SIGNATURE  PAGE. PER DD:LANDLORD, APPLICANT NEVER LEFT THE DAMAGED DWELLING. 
THEY ARE STILL  LIVING AT  GREENLEY, CO, THEY NEVER LEFT. THE LL STATED THAT THE AREA  
THAT APP LIVES IN WAS NOT AFFECTED BY THE DISASTER. THE DD LANDLORD IS TRI REAL  ESTATE. THE PHONE 
NUMBER I "

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-ELP-01124 El Paso, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 10/21/2014 1/6/2015 5/31/2016

 a non-DHS employee, allegedly fraudulently received funds from FEMA for the Colorado 
flood disaster.  FEMA records indicate that three disbursements totaling $14,587.00 were sent to  for 
rental assistance.      COLORADO STORMS/FLOODING (DR-4145)   STATES "APPLICANT SENT IN A REQUEST 
FOR RENTAL ASSIST. APP PROVIDED PRE AND  POST LEASE, PRE AND POST INCOME, COMPLETED HOUSING AND 
LNCOME FORMS, SIGNATURE  PAGE. PER DD:LANDLORD, APPLICANT NEVER LEFT THE DAMAGED DWELLING. 
THEY ARE STILL  LIVING AT  GREENLEY, CO, THEY NEVER LEFT. THE LL STATED THAT THE AREA  
THAT APP LIVES IN WAS NOT AFFECTED BY THE DISASTER. THE DD LANDLORD IS TRI REAL  ESTATE. THE PHONE 
NUMBER I "

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-ELP-07547 El Paso, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) FEMA Grant Applicant FNU Grant Applicant 3/18/2015 3/19/2015 6/28/2016

Please refer to attached pdf document 00354320150306140030 addressed to me by the Jemez Pueblo Director 
of Planning and Development.  Please note the other attachment pdf 00354220150306140006 is an identical 
letter addressed to Grantee representative     These letters contain potentially serious 
allegations to include possible willful misrepresentation of Pueblo residential structures damages as being 
event related in at least one case, possible attempts to circumvent procurement policy and discomfort with 
budgeting of FEMA funding.    The applicant has one “traditional PA” DR-4152 project remaining (PW00438) a 
Cat D just out of EHP rework on 3/03.    We have just obligated the remainder of the residential structures 
projects with the exception of one PW 00695 which we have determined ineligible “Applicant proposes to 
remove and replace entire roof to correct the November 2013 repair.  The work proposed does not meet the 
criterion of being disaster-related and is therefore not recommended (FEMA 322 p.29-33).”    I have discussed 
this wit   As Grantee Recovery representative he intends to provide his letter to the R&R Bureau Chief 
and DHSEM Secretary Mitchell.  We agreed to convene on this after leadership both at Region 6 and DHSEM 
has an opportunity to digest the contents of the letters and consider implications.  

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I15-FEMA-HOU-11840 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; Houston, TX 6/11/2015 6/11/2015 6/28/2016

on June 4, 2015 this suspect filed an online application for disaster assistance claiming he lived @
 Dr, Houston TX 77096    This home is owned by  On June 11, 2015 Mr

was contacted @  and he indicated that this suspect was EVICTED from this home in FEB 2014. He 
stated the home is leased to   By claiming to live at this address received 
$3004

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-HOU-13140 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)   FEMA DBA: TX. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

7/7/2015 7/7/2015 4/18/2016

THE ANONYMOUS COMPLAINANT WOULD LIKE TO REPORT FOR FEMA FRAUD.  ACCORDING 
TO THE COMPLAINANT FILED A CLAIM WITH FEMA CLAIMING HIS  HOME HAD BEEN DAMAGED 
FROM THE RECENT FLOODS IN TEXAS. ACCORDING TO THE  COMPLAINANT, S HOUSE RECEIVED NO 
DAMAGE AT ALL FROM THE FLOOD. THE  COMPLAINANT DID NOT KNOW NICHOLSON'S EXACT ADDRESS, BUT 

S HOME IS ON  KASSARINE PASS, HOUSTON, TX. ACCORDING TO THE COMPLAINANT
KEPT THE  HOUSE IN VERY POOR CONDITION, WHICH IS WHY IT MAY HAVE LOOKED LIKE IT WAS DAMAGED  
FROM THE STORM. THE COMPLAINANT STATED THAT THERE WAS NO WATER LINE TO SHOW  THAT THE WATER 
HAVED EVEN ENTERED OR EXITED THE HOUSE. THE COMPLAINANT STATED  THAT ECEIVED OVER 
$2,000 FROM FEMA, BUT SHE WAS NOT SURE OF THE EXACT  AMOUNT. ALSO CLAIMED THAT HE 
OWNED ONE CAR AND IT WAS DAMAGED FROM  THE FLOOD. ACCORDING TO THE COMPLAINANT
OWNED TWO CARS, BUT NEITHER  OF THEM WERE DAMAGED FROM THE FLOODS. ALSO LIED AND 
TOLD FEMA THAT HE  DID NOT OWN A BUSINESS WHEN HE DOES WNS AWN  
SERVICE, AND HE HAS A BUSINESS ACCOUNT THROUGH WELLS FARGO BANK. THE  COMPLAINANT BELIEVES 
THAT MAY HAVE FILED A PREVIOUS FRAUDULENT CLAIM  WITH FEMA.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-HOU-13624 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)   FEMA DBA; TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/16/2015 7/30/2015 2/26/2016

HAYES COUNTY FLOODING    COMPLAINANT SAYS THAT THE SUBJECT APPLIED FOR FEMA ASSISTANCE ON A 
TRAILER THAT  THE SUBJECT WAS RENTING AND MOVED OUT BEFORE THE FEMA FLOODING AND DID NOT  
RECEIVE ANY DAMAGE TO HER PROPERTY. COMPLAINANT SAYS THE SUBJECT DID NOT HAVE  ANY ITEMS LEFT IN 
THE TRAILER AND IS NOT ENTITLED TO DISASTER ASSISTANCE AID.     DRIVERS LICENSE NUMBER - 04051068   

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-HOU-13624 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)   FEMA DBA; TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 7/16/2015 7/30/2015 2/26/2016

HAYES COUNTY FLOODING    COMPLAINANT SAYS THAT THE SUBJECT APPLIED FOR FEMA ASSISTANCE ON A 
TRAILER THAT  THE SUBJECT WAS RENTING AND MOVED OUT BEFORE THE FEMA FLOODING AND DID NOT  
RECEIVE ANY DAMAGE TO HER PROPERTY. COMPLAINANT SAYS THE SUBJECT DID NOT HAVE  ANY ITEMS LEFT IN 
THE TRAILER AND IS NOT ENTITLED TO DISASTER ASSISTANCE AID.     DRIVERS LICENSE NUMBER -

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-HOU-14683 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Anna  Hughes
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/6/2015 8/6/2015 6/27/2016

TEXAS SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING DR-4223   WOULD LIKE TO REPORT OR 
FEMA FRAUD. ACCORDING TO  RECENTLY FILED A CLAIM WITH FEMA CLAIMING HER ROOF WAS 
DAMAGED IN  THE RECENT TEXAS FLOODING. ACCORDING TO  ROOF WAS ACTUALLY  
DAMAGED BACK DURING HURRICANE RITA, AN  RECEIVED MONEY FROM HER  INSURANCE COMPANY, 
RELIABLE INSURANCE TO FIX IT. TATED THAT  DID NOT  USE THAT MONEY TO FIX THE ROOF, 
AND THE ROOF HAS BEEN IN TERRIBLE SHAPE SINCE THEN. ELIEVES THAT  FILED THE CLAIM 
BETWEEN LATE APRIL AND EARLY MAY. OES NOT KNOW HOW MUCH MONEY  RECEIVED FROM 
FEMA TO FIX THE ROOF

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-HOU-14954 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; TX.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/12/2015 8/12/2015 9/9/2016

FEMA FII indicated fraud –password = open    FEMA applicant,  received FEMA assistance for a  
damaged dwelling that was not his primary residence during the time of  the disaster 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-HOU-15058 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; TX.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 8/13/2015 8/13/2015 5/17/2016

FEMA FII indicated fraud –password = open    Please note the following:    • Audio file available upon request 
that is mentioned in the report.  • Total assistance awarded $1,442.00; however, the applicant is currently on 
parole as of 7/6/2015.    Fraud Indicated  Was not living at the disaster address and made a false 
claim to FEMA.    

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-HOU-16633 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; Houston, TX 9/10/2015 9/15/2015 9/9/2016

Mr  registered for disaster 4223 (Tx) claiming a home at in Houston TX 77026 as his 
PRIMARY residence. Registration # 41-1675502. Applicant has a Texas Drivers License issued at
in Missouri City, TX. Applicant also shows to be a registered voter in Harris County TX a
2832 Houston, TX 77057. Harris County Tax records also show property tax records being mailed to the 
Westheimer address. Appeal estimates sent in by applicant also show a mailing address on Westheimer. 
Several Insurance docs also indicate that address     All public and applicant provided records indicate that this 
was not M  primary residence. Mr has received over $15,000 claiming this residence  --  
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Houston TX   Public website complainant 
indicated that the subject Crockrom had miscellaneous identifiers of: dob 9/27/1963

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-HOU-16788 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; El Campo TX. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

9/11/2015 9/15/2015 9/9/2016

(See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open)    Allegation:  applied for and 
received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information.  FEMA records reflect that

 applied for FEMA disaster assistance on 06/17/2015 via telephone following Texas Severe Storms, 
Tornadoes, Straight Line Winds and Flooding DR-4223 that was declared on 05/29/2015 and was issued Reg. ID 
# 41-1682891/DR-4223. The applicant claimed that the date of loss for the home she owned and occupied at 
335 FM 2546 Road  El Campo  TX 77437 was 06/17/2015

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-MIA-16694 Miami, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; Pensacola FL. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

9/10/2015 9/10/2015 8/12/2016

(See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open)    Allegation: applied 
for and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information.  On 05/07/2014, an applicant using 
the name of submitted an application for disaster assistance, Reg. ID: 50-0287656/DR-
4177, claiming to rent a house at  Pensacola, FL 32507 that was damaged because of Florida 
Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding, DR-4177. The applicant listed a damaged phone 
number of  a current phone number of an email address of 

@gmail.com, and a current mailing address o  Pensacola, FL 32507.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-NEO-09809 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA, LA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 2/23/2015 5/1/2015 4/26/2016

Allegation:  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information.    
On 12/11/14, in an effort to determine the ownership of  La Place, LA 70068, the Fraud 
Branch contacted the St. John the Baptist Parish (LA) Assessor’s Office, telephone number . 
According to government property records maintained by the St. John the Baptist County (LA) Assessor and 
information obtained from Deputy Assessor  La Place, LA 70068 was owned by 

ince 2007. Government property records showed a Homestead property tax exemption 
was applied in 2012, 2013 and 2014. According to information provided by Deputy Assessor  to 
receive the Homestead property tax exemption you must own and use the property as your principal 
residence during the year in question.  On 12/15/14, in an effort to determine whether  resided 
at , La Place, LA 70068 at the time of DR-4080, the Fraud Branch contacted

 telephone number  According to ecollection, her son
resided at  La Place, LA 70068 from 2000 to 2007 when he relocated to
New Orleans, LA 70131.  On 12/12/14, in an effort to determine the ownership of  New 
Orleans, LA 70131, the Fraud Branch queried the Orleans County (LA) Assessor’s Office website. According to 
government property records maintained by the Orleans Parish (LA) Assessor’s Office
New Orleans, LA 70131 was owned by ince 12/20/12 and described as a single family 
residence. Government property records revealed a Homestead property tax exemption was applied in 2013. 
According to information obtained from the Orleans Parish (LA) Assessor’s website, to receive the 
Homestead property tax exemption you must provide proof of ownership, a valid driver’s license with the 
property address, a current Entergy utility bill for the property with service and mailing address being the 
same and a landline telephone bill or cable bill.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-ORL-07668 Orlando, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) -Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/23/2015 4/7/2015 7/11/2016

FLORIDA SEVERE STORMS/TORNADOES-DR-4177    applied for and received FEMA disaster 
assistance after the Florida Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-Line Winds and Flooding / DR-4177, by 
providing false information.  According to the government property records of the Santa Rosa County (FL) 
County Tax Collector’s and Appraiser’s Office, the damaged dwelling was listed to
since 2010. Additionally, the property records documented that the damaged dwelling was issued a 
homestead tax exemption in 2014. This exemption provides that if a person resides in their home as of 
January 1 of each year, they are entitled to receive the tax exemption. A person may have only one 
permanent residence at a time.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-FEMA-ORL-08058 Orlando, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) -Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

3/30/2015 3/30/2015 7/22/2016

FLORIDA SEVERE STORMS/TORNADOES DR-4177  applied for and received FEMA disaster 
assistance by providing false information.  FEMA records reflect that applicant  applied for 
FEMA assistance on 05/08/14 following Florida Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding 
(DR-4177), declared on 05/06/14. The applicant claimed that the date of loss for the home she owned and 
occupied was on 04/28/14.  reported the damaged dwelling she owned and occupied was her 
primary residence located a , Pensacola, FL 32506. The applicant was awarded disaster 
assistance funds which totaled $23,487.90 which included $12,540.00 in Rental Assistance and $8,236.10 in 
Home Repair, $1,867.37 in Transportation and $844.43 in Personal Property. FEMA records revealed, on 
01/24/15 was placed in recoupment of $8,236.10 because she did not provide FEMA proof that she 
owned the damaged dwelling. FEMA records showed, as not returned any FEMA funds to date

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-FEMA-PHL-00133 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Tuckerton, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 10/2/2014 10/6/2014 4/6/2016

 llegedly filed a fraudulent FEMA application after Hurricane Sandy, and received $13,688.60 in FEMA 
funds.  also received $150,000.00 from the RREM Grant Program.    Disaster Address:

 Tuckerton, NJ      --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Tuckerton, 
NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-00152 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Little Egg Harbor, NJ General Public 10/3/2014 11/20/2014 12/1/2016

Offender was heard to brag that he had filed and received a FEMA claim for hurricane Sandy damage, alleging 
that the property at the above address was his primary residance. At the time of hurricane Sandy this was a 
business and rental property. Offender's primary residance was in Little Egg Harbor NJ.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was:  Ship Bottom NJ  AKA

 Ship Bottom NJ unit 4&8

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, N  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated tha  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated tha irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ. Young stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th  address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a  where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th  address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated tha ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated tha  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a  where they did 
not reside in order would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated tha irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim. Young stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address. Brouwer 
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated tha ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address
actually lived at  Avenue, Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but Young refused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated tha  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim  stated tha irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, N  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for but efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th  address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ. Young stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that ad told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th  address to  file a claim  stated that irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a  where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, N  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated tha  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim.  stated that  girlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated tha ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim  stated tha irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, N  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim. tated tha irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th address to  file a claim. tated tha irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ. tated tha ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01165 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Seaside Heights, NJ, et al Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/23/2014 10/29/2014 8/19/2016

This information was received from a witness related to I12-FEMA-PHL-00825.    tated that 
lso submitted fraudulent documentation to FEMA in order to claim  disaster assistance for 

multiple apartments located at , Seaside Heights, NJ.  stated that  had told 
him that he was having various people file claims with FEMA for  apartments a where they did 
not reside in order. would give each applicant a  portion of what they were awarded by FEMA.
stated that he knew of one woman,  who lived in Camden, NJ, who icked up and 
drove to th  address to  file a claim.  stated that irlfriend,
(similar name t but no  family relation) also filed a claim with FEMA for the above address.
actually lived at  Toms River, NJ.  stated that ad asked him to put in a 
claim for efused."    ***PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE 
PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Seaside Heights, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-01629 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Disaster Benefits Applicant, Toms River, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/3/2014 11/5/2014 8/30/2016

On 9/2/14, , Toms River, NJ was interviewed concerning  I14-
FEMA-PHL-14237, information was developed tha , Toms River, NJ, may 
have fraudulently obtained disaster assistance. ???s Federal Emergency Management Agency???s 
records were obtained via NEMIS.  It was identified tha RegID#41-1403376, received rental assistance 
of approximately $3,910, transportation assistance of approximately $940 and personal property assistance of 
approximately $3,220. ??s application date was November 7, 2012.      Special Agent is 
the case agent.    ***PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-PHL-08959 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Sea Bright, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/15/2015 4/16/2015 9/22/2016

****PLEASE SEND CASE TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON******   
fraudulently applied for and received FEMA individual assistance in the amount of $9,067.59, following 
Hurricane Sandy.    THE CASE AGENT IS   --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Sea Bright  NJ

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-PHL-08959 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Sea Bright, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/15/2015 4/16/2015 9/22/2016

****PLEASE SEND CASE TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON******   
fraudulently applied for and received FEMA individual assistance in the amount of $9,067.59, following 
Hurricane Sandy.    THE CASE AGENT IS   --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Sea Bright, NJ

3.11 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
Other Financial Program 
Fraud

Other Financial Program 
Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I15-FEMA-PHL-09547 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee, Bayville, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/27/2015 4/28/2015 5/4/2016

****PLEASE PLACE COMPLAINT IN THE PHILADLEPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON****   
 Bayville, NJ submitted a fraudulent application to FEMA for individual assistance 

following hurricane Sandy.    Case agent: -  Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Bayville, NJ (Berkeley Township)

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-10476 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , FEMA DBA, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/22/2015 5/14/2015 9/13/2016

Allegation: applied for and received federal disaster assistance for a damaged dwelling that 
was not her primary residence at the time of the disaster. 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-10476 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , FEMA DBA, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 4/22/2015 5/14/2015 9/13/2016

Allegation: applied for and received federal disaster assistance for a damaged dwelling that 
was not her primary residence at the time of the disaster. 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-12057 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Beach Haven, NJ Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

6/16/2015 6/17/2015 1/28/2016
****PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON****    commited FEMA 
Fraud related to Hurricane Sandy.    FEMA Reg #:  41-1474214.    The case agent is   --  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Beach Haven, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-12058 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Lyndhurst, NJ Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

6/16/2015 6/17/2015 4/6/2016
****PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSTION RIBBON****   ommitted 
FEMA fraud related to Hurricane Sandy.    FEMA Registration ID: 41-1320608.    The case agent is

  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Lyndhurst  NJ
3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-PHL-12058 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee, Lyndhurst, NJ Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

6/16/2015 6/17/2015 4/6/2016
****PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSTION RIBBON****   ommitted 
FEMA fraud related to Hurricane Sandy.    FEMA Registration ID: 41-1320608.    The case agent is
Graveline.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Lyndhurst, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-SEA-16480 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Fire Chief, Idaho Volunteer Fire & Emergency Services 
Association, Star, ID

Grant Applicant 9/7/2015 9/15/2015 1/13/2016

The Idaho Volunteer Fire & Emergency Services Association was awarded 2 SAFER grants, #2009-FF-00105 and 
#2010-FF-00230.    President , Board Member and NVFC Director , and Accountant 

have all benefited financially from these 2 federal grants.  The 2009 grant paid s the 
Project Coordinator and the 2010 grant paid President  as the Project Coordinator.  Both knew 
that as a Board Member and employee they could not gain personally from either grant.    President
paid himself through an intentionally set up fraud by paying a neighbors college student daughter the Project 
Coordinators salary.  Board Member and NVFC Director elped set up this fraud.    Fire Chief 

 and IVFESA Accountant were also fired in 2013 in their same roles for Star Fire 
Department for misappropriation of funds. et up a new separate marketing company to 
cover their invoices to FEMA so that it appeared the funds were not going directly to them personally.      This 
information all came to light in the divorce proceedings of .    IVFESA also misused federal grant 
funds under the 2010 SAFER grant (College Tuition budget line) to purchase a Fire Training Trailer from the 
WA State Firefighters Association.    IVFESA is also now in federal Bankruptcy proceedings with Web2web 
Marketing.    IVFESA has committed grant fraud from April 2012 through the end of both POPs.  They deserve a 
full OIG grant financial audit.    Thank You!  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: State of Idaho as the IVFESA Board Members.   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of 
subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad miscellaneous 
identifiers of: IVFESA President   Public website complainant indicated that the subjec  had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: IVFESA Accountant / Project Manager

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I15-FEMA-SEA-16480 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Fire Chief, Idaho Volunteer Fire & Emergency Services 
Association, Star, ID

Grant Applicant 9/7/2015 9/15/2015 1/13/2016

The Idaho Volunteer Fire & Emergency Services Association was awarded 2 SAFER grants, #2009-FF-00105 and 
#2010-FF-00230.    President , Board Member and NVFC Director  and Accountant 

have all benefited financially from these 2 federal grants.  The 2009 grant paid s the 
Project Coordinator and the 2010 grant paid President  as the Project Coordinator.  Both knew 
that as a Board Member and employee they could not gain personally from either grant.    President
paid himself through an intentionally set up fraud by paying a neighbors college student daughter the Project 
Coordinators salary.  Board Member and NVFC Director elped set up this fraud.    Fire Chief 

 and IVFESA Accountant were also fired in 2013 in their same roles for Star Fire 
Department for misappropriation of funds. et up a new separate marketing company to 
cover their invoices to FEMA so that it appeared the funds were not going directly to them personally.      This 
information all came to light in the divorce proceedings of .    IVFESA also misused federal grant 
funds under the 2010 SAFER grant (College Tuition budget line) to purchase a Fire Training Trailer from the 
WA State Firefighters Association.    IVFESA is also now in federal Bankruptcy proceedings with Web2web 
Marketing.    IVFESA has committed grant fraud from April 2012 through the end of both POPs.  They deserve a 
full OIG grant financial audit.    Thank You!  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: State of Idaho as the IVFESA Board Members.   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of 
subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad miscellaneous 
identifiers of: IVFESA President   Public website complainant indicated that the subjec  had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: IVFESA Accountant / Project Manager

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666 Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I15-FEMA-SFO-06695 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/3/2015 3/4/2015 3/24/2016

CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE-DR 4193    applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for 
California Earthquake/DR-4193, by providing false information.  According to FEMA records,
applied for FEMA disaster assistance on 11/17/2014 claiming damage to a residence that she rented located at 

 Vallejo, CA 94590. As a result of  application, she was awarded $3,558.00 in disaster 
rental assistance. Other persons listed on the application as living in the home at the time of the disaster: 

 FEMA records reflected that  was placed in 
recoupment on 01/20/2015 for the amount of $3,558.00 because it was not her primary address. To date, there 
are no records of repayment to FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-SFO-06711 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; CA.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/4/2015 3/4/2015 2/25/2016

Allegation: (SEE ATTACHED FEMA FIIB REPORTS/Email - password: open) applied for and 
received FEMA disaster assistance for California Earthquake/DR-4193, by providing false information.  
According to FEMA records applied for FEMA disaster assistance on 10/31/2014 claiming 
damage to a residence that she owned located at  Napa, CA 94559. As a result of

s application, she was awarded $14,595.03 in disaster assistance to include $11,096.63 for home 
repair, $3,026.00 for rental assistance, and $472.40 for personal property.  In an effort to verify ownership of 
the damaged dwelling, the Fraud Branch searched government property records maintained by Napa County 
(CA) Recorder and learned tha  Napa, CA 94559 was owned by C

ince 2012. The mailing address was listed to  San Rafael, CA 94901, and there were 
no homestead tax exemptions on file.  In an effort to verify ownership of  mailing 
address listed on her property tax records, the Fraud Branch searched government property records 
maintained by Marion County (CA) Assessor’s office and learned that San Rafael, CA 94901 
was owned by , husband and wife, since 1990. There has been a 
homestead tax exemption applied to this property since it was purchased. Homestead tax exemptions are for 
homeowners who use their home as their primary residence.  In an effort to verify
residency, the Fraud Branch obtained state identification records from the California Division of Motor 
Vehicle’s database that were provided by the California Fusion Center. The documents indicated a driver’s 
license number o o that was issued on 03/16/2013, with a listed address of 

 Napa, CA 94559. There were no vehicles registered to her in the state of California.
 was issued driver’s license numbe  on 10/05/2013, with a 

listed address of  San Rafael, CA 94901.  FEMA records reflected that Vangard inspector 
#V100205460 inspected the disaster address on 11/03/2014 and verified ownership via structural insurance; 
however, there was no insurance information listed. In an effort to learn if

ad a homeowner’s policy for the damaged property, or if any claims were filed, the Fraud Branch 
searched the National Insurance Crime Bureau (NCIB) database, and found no records for
or Napa, CA 94559. The Fraud Branch did learn that had a personal automobile 
policy with State Farm Insurance Company in 2014, policy number  with a listed home address of 

 San Rafael, CA 94901.  A search of online records maintained by the California Department 
of Consumer Affairs revealed tha has been a registered nurse since 1987  license  

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-SFO-06713 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS employee; FEMA DBA; CA.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/4/2015 3/4/2015 3/24/2016

Allegation applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information.  
FEMA records reflect that applicant, , applied for FEMA disaster assistance on 10/29/2014 
following California Earthquake DR-4193 that was declared on 09/11/2014 and was issued Reg. ID # 45-
0506366/DR-4193. The applicant claimed that the date of loss for the home she owned and occupied a

 Napa, CA was 08/24/2014.  In an effort to identify the owner of the damaged dwelling and verify 
occupancy at the time of the disaster, the Fraud Branch queried the Napa County, CA Property Assessor’s 
Office government records. According to their database,  was listed as the owner of

Napa, CA since 2013.  On 02/25/2015, in an attempt to verify if  had a homestead tax 
exemption for  Napa, CA, the Fraud Branch contacted the Napa County, CA Property Assessor’s 
Office via phone at 707-253-4467. According to the clerk who identified herself as  the dwelling did 
not have a homestead tax exemption and the tax bill was mailed to
Tacoma, WA.  In an attempt to identify any government records that listed  Napa, CA, as the 
applicant’s address at the time of the disaster, the Fraud Branch contacted the California Fusion Center; 
however, they were unable to provide any government documents that listed  Napa, CA, as 

 residence.  In a further attempt to identify any records that liste  Napa, CA, as 
the applicant’s address at the time of the disaster, the Fraud Branch obtained a Thomson Reuters CLEAR 
report UNCLASSIFIED/FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY  Fraud Case # 2015000070 Page 2 of 4  utilizing the applicant’s 
personal information. The CLEAR report associated  t  Napa, CA in 2012 via utility 
records; however, the mailing address for the utility bills was listed as , Tacoma, WA.  
In an attempt to identify the owner of  Tacoma, WA, the Fraud Branch queried the 
Pierce County, WA Property Assessor’s Office government records. According to their database,
was listed as the owners since 2008.  On 02/25/2015, in an attempt to verify if  had a homestead 
tax exemption for  Tacoma, WA, the Fraud Branch contacted the Pierce County, WA 
Property Assessor’s Office via phone at 253-379-6111. According to the clerk who identified herself as 

the State of Washington does not offer a homestead tax exemption; however,  confirmed 
that the tax bill was mailed to  Tacoma, WA.  On 01/28/2015, in an attempt to 
identify any government records that would suggest which dwelling was  primary residence, 
the Fraud Branch contacted the Washington Fusion Center. According to the Fusion Center report  was 
issued a State of Washington Driver’s License on 08/16/2010 that expires on 08/24/2015 and listed 1715 S 

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I15-FEMA-WFO-08164 Washington, DC Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
James McIntyre, Director, Disaster Operations Division, FEMA, 
Washington, DC JAMES  MCINTYRE DHS Employee 3/31/2015 3/31/2015 6/13/2016

Subject of the Complaint:  James McIntyre, Director, Disaster Operations Division, FEMA    Complaint 
Received From:  Fairfax City Police Department, Fairfax, VA    Complaint Synopsis:    On March 30, 2015, the 
DHS OIG Washington Field Office received an allegation of sexual abuse against James McIntyre, Director, 
Disaster Operations Division, Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Washington, DC.  The 
complaint alleged that McIntyre has been sexually abusing the 14 year old daughter of his partner

 Public Affairs Specialist, FEMA, Washington, DC.  The complaint was forwarded to the DHS 
OIG Washington Field Office from the Fairfax City Police Department, Fairfax, VA, which has conducted the 
initial investigation in this matter.

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-WFO-08164 Washington, DC Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
James McIntyre, Director, Disaster Operations Division, FEMA, 
Washington, DC JAMES  MCINTYRE DHS Employee 3/31/2015 3/31/2015 6/13/2016

Subject of the Complaint:  James McIntyre, Director, Disaster Operations Division, FEMA    Complaint 
Received From:  Fairfax City Police Department, Fairfax, VA    Complaint Synopsis:    On March 30, 2015, the 
DHS OIG Washington Field Office received an allegation of sexual abuse against James McIntyre, Director, 
Disaster Operations Division, Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Washington, DC.  The 
complaint alleged that McIntyre has been sexually abusing the 14 year old daughter of his partner

 Public Affairs Specialist, FEMA, Washington, DC.  The complaint was forwarded to the DHS 
OIG Washington Field Office from the Fairfax City Police Department, Fairfax, VA, which has conducted the 
initial investigation in this matter.

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-FEMA-WFO-14136 Washington, DC Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS), 
Washington, DC

7/27/2015 7/27/2015 9/12/2016

To Whom It May Concern:    In October of 2014 I was sent the Personal Identification Information (PII) of 
dozens of FEMA Employees and Applicants by the FEMA Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Office.  I was sent 
this information by the FEMA FOIA Office in response to multiple FOIA Requests I filed in January and 
February of 2014, none of which requested any of this PII.  However, I believe that the FEMA-FOIA Office 
release of this kind of protected information is a systemic problem, as these releases are routine and 
rampant, resulting from a desperate attempt to conceal FOIA eligible information from public scrutiny.  
Please investigate how often and how severe these Privacy Act violations are committed by the FEMA FOIA 
Office so that the privacy rights of both current and prospective FEMA Employees may be safeguarded in 
accordance with the protections offered by the Privacy Act, 5 USC?????????552a.    Please let me know if you 
require any additional information  Thank you for your attention.    Respectfully,   --  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: New York, NY an Washington, DC  Public website 
complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: REC

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-FEMA-WFO-14136 Washington, DC Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS), 
Washington, DC

7/27/2015 7/27/2015 9/12/2016

To Whom It May Concern:    In October of 2014 I was sent the Personal Identification Information (PII) of 
dozens of FEMA Employees and Applicants by the FEMA Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Office.  I was sent 
this information by the FEMA FOIA Office in response to multiple FOIA Requests I filed in January and 
February of 2014, none of which requested any of this PII.  However, I believe that the FEMA-FOIA Office 
release of this kind of protected information is a systemic problem, as these releases are routine and 
rampant, resulting from a desperate attempt to conceal FOIA eligible information from public scrutiny.  
Please investigate how often and how severe these Privacy Act violations are committed by the FEMA FOIA 
Office so that the privacy rights of both current and prospective FEMA Employees may be safeguarded in 
accordance with the protections offered by the Privacy Act, 5 USC?????????552a.    Please let me know if you 
require any additional information  Thank you for your attention.    Respectfully, -  Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: New York, NY an Washington, DC  Public website 
complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: REC

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-FPS-BLX-10770 Biloxi, MS Federal Protective Service (DHS)  Area Commander, FPS DHS Employee 5/20/2015 5/20/2015 8/29/2016

The NPPD Office of Compliance and Security, Internal Affairs Division, has received information from the 
Federal Protective Service, Region 7, alleging Protective Security Officer (PSO) contractor Intercon provided 
false information in the form of firearms certifications that were not factual in nature.  The attached email 
messages/narrative was received from the assigned Fact-Finder for a related investigation, NPPD/OCS/IAD 
Case No. 15-07-2060 (see below).    --    From:    Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2015 9:58 AM  
To:  Subject: FW: Possible Contract Fraud    On March 27. 
2015 I was directed by Threat Management Branch Chief (TMBC) o work the attached non-
criminal complaint which had been referred by DHS OIG to FPS for action.  I was originally instructed to work 
directly with Area Commander (AC) to conduct an inquiry into this matter, in a n effort to minimize 
agency expense and lost man hours due to travel.   During my initial review of the complaint, it was 
discovered that FPS Inspector was assigned as the Inspector covering the USCIS location at 1250 
Poydras St, New Orleans, LA.  During a conversation with Inspecto  I learned that he had received 
several additional similar complaints regarding  one of the PSOs in question.  Inspector
had previously confronted PSO bout her unprofessional conduct.   After a discussion with TMBC 

 it was decided that Inspector would be better suited to assist with conducting interviews of 
the PSOs allegedly involved in the initial complaint.       On May 18, 2015 Inspector  attended a 
firearms training qualification for PSO  one of the principal PSOs involved in the original complaint.  
Inspector learned that PSO as historically had a very difficult time achieving passing scores 
during firearms qualification (see below).  The PSO Training Manager admitted to Inspector  that 
scores for PSO (as well as other PSOs) had previously been fraudulently altered, or “pencil whipped”, 
so that the PSOs would receive a passing score.  After learning of this allegation, I reported the finding to 
Internal Affairs Division SSA n May 18, 2015.  I was instructed by SSA  to document the 
incident as an additional finding in the report I would complete.  On May 19, 2015 Inspecto  further 
learned that the PSO Training Coordinator had been directed to change qualification scores by FPS AC 

   On June 1, 2015 the current PSO company covering New Orleans will change from  Intercon to 
Paragon.  According to Inspector most of the PSOs, as well as their management, will transfer from 
the current to the new contract.  It should be noted that one of the final transition qualification trainings will 
take place tonight May 20, 2015.  It is believed that AC will be attending this qualification.     I have 
also learned that there may have been similar allegations of unethical and potentially criminal conduct 

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-FPS-ORL-17345 Orlando, FL Federal Protective Service (DHS)
 Federal Protective Service (DHS); DHS Employee; 

Jacksonville, FL DHS Employee 9/21/2015 9/21/2015 1/13/2016

Senior Special Agent is submitting this complaint on behalf of the complainant (
 Field Office Director, HUD, Jacksonville, FL).    The complainant alleged that she was elected by a 

quorum of Federal employees at the Federal Building, 400 West Bay Street, Jacksonville, FL, to be a chair for 
the Facilities Committee.  This committee address safety concerns in the Federal Bldg with the FPS.  After the 
complainant was announced as the chair, the subject sent an email to the six members on the committee 
indicating that he is not going to recognize the complainant as the chair.  The complainant then went to the 
FPS office on September 11, 2015 to address this email with the subject.  The subject, in the presence of 
witness FPS Inspecto  stated that that he did not have anything to say to the complainant and  
threatened to arrest the complainant if she did not leave the FPS Office.    The complainant then stated that 
she has attempted to communicate with the subject reference the numerous federal citations that he has 
repeatedly written to HUD employees.  According to the complainant, the subject would not address this 
with any sort of training and dismissed the request of the complainant.    The complainant also stated that the 
subject pushed a HUD employee, sic) for a minor incident.    SSA has requested 
additional documents and the names of witnesses reference this incident.  --  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: 400 West Bay Street, Jacksonville, FL Inside of the FPS office   Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Field Office Director

4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-FPS-SND-01076 San Diego, CA Federal Protective Service (DHS) Inspector, FPS,  San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 2/23/2016

Pursuant to the conduct of an administrative inquiry under the direction of IAD, the assigned OCS/IAD case 
agent has discovered information indicating the subject of the case may have engaged in criminal activity 
(false statements, misuse of computer systems, civil rights violations) necessitating notification to the 
Department of Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS-OIG) as prescribed in DHS MD 0810.1.     
OCS/IAD has investigated allegations Federal Protective Service (FPS) Inspector has participated 
in motor vehicle enforcement (stopping vehicles on public roadways using the warning equipment on his 
marked FPS vehicle) without a nexus to federal property.  These actions occurred despite specific instructions 
from his managers to cease said enforcement activity.  Inspector has initiated the seizure of persons 
and vehicles without the requisite authority and legal justification at least seven times in the past 24 months.  
Additionally, multiple witnesses have stated the elements of the offenses subsequently cited by Inspector 

were not present and potentially fabricated by as a pretext for his traffic stops.       Inspector 
has also used the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) pursuant to making traffic stops while on 

duty.  The query of information contained within this system may constitute computer fraud and violations of 
the Privacy Act if not conducted within the scope of his employment.

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-FPS-SND-01076 San Diego, CA Federal Protective Service (DHS) Inspector, FPS,  San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 2/23/2016

Pursuant to the conduct of an administrative inquiry under the direction of IAD, the assigned OCS/IAD case 
agent has discovered information indicating the subject of the case may have engaged in criminal activity 
(false statements, misuse of computer systems, civil rights violations) necessitating notification to the 
Department of Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (DHS-OIG) as prescribed in DHS MD 0810.1.     
OCS/IAD has investigated allegations Federal Protective Service (FPS) Inspector has participated 
in motor vehicle enforcement (stopping vehicles on public roadways using the warning equipment on his 
marked FPS vehicle) without a nexus to federal property.  These actions occurred despite specific instructions 
from his managers to cease said enforcement activity.  Inspector has initiated the seizure of persons 
and vehicles without the requisite authority and legal justification at least seven times in the past 24 months.  
Additionally, multiple witnesses have stated the elements of the offenses subsequently cited by Inspector 

were not present and potentially fabricated by as a pretext for his traffic stops.       Inspector 
has also used the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) pursuant to making traffic stops while on 

duty.  The query of information contained within this system may constitute computer fraud and violations of 
the Privacy Act if not conducted within the scope of his employment.

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-ICE-AIG-09062 AIG Office U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

*AIG CASE* DHS Employee 4/17/2015 4/20/2015 1/15/2016 *AIG CASE* 4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I15-ICE-AIG-09062 AIG Office
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) *AIG CASE* DHS Employee 4/17/2015 4/20/2015 1/15/2016 *AIG CASE* 4.2.4 Miscellaneous

Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-ICE-AIG-09062 AIG Office
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) *AIG CASE* DHS Employee 4/17/2015 4/20/2015 1/15/2016 *AIG CASE* 4.2.4 Miscellaneous

Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-ATL-12251 Atlanta, GA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-Employee/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association 
with Known Criminals/Illegal  Aliens/LUMPKIN, STEWART, GA DHS Contractor 6/22/2015 6/22/2015 7/22/2016

On June 12, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Deportation and Detention Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations Lumpkin, GA (ERO/Lumpkin). SDDO eported that  contract office is 
allegedly having an inappropriate relationship with detainee  and detaine

 of the Stewart  Detention Center  Lumpkin  GA

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-ICE-BLX-16942 Biloxi, MS
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  RAC, ICE-HSI, Gulfport, MS DHS Employee 9/15/2015 9/15/2015 6/29/2016

On September 10, 2015,
Largo, FL, provided information to Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional 
Responsibility (OPR), Tampa, Fl, alleging misuse of position by Resident Agent in   Charge (RAC)

 Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Office of the Resident Agent in Charge (RAC), 
Gulfport, MS.    Mr. provided documents, a compact disc with data, and identified two 
cooperating sources of information who are willing to provide additional details.  Preliminary information 
provided by Mr. alleges RAC misused his position to intentionally  impede 
potential human trafficking investigations.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1510 Obstruction of Criminal Investigations

I15-ICE-BOS-12816 Boston, MA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

www.copshop.com/Organization/0712 Other Criminal/CHESHIRE, NEW 
HAVEN, CT FNU  LNU General Public 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 3/22/2016

On May 27, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Program Manager (PM)  Office of Professional  Responsibility located in 
Bethlehem, PA (OPR/Bethlehem) reporting an allegation that  www.copshop.com is selling counterfeit 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) badges. -    Possible violations of 18 USC 506 (Seals of Departments of 
Agencies)

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 506
Counterfeiting or Forgery of Seals of Departments 
or Agencies

I15-ICE-BUF-17328 Buffalo, NY U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

DHS Contractor 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 4/7/2016

A detainee at the ICE Buffalo Federal Detention Facility (BFDF) has alleged tha  Detention 
Officer, Akima Global Services, BFDF, Batavia, NY may have sent text messages to family members of 
detainees at the BFDF, on behalf of the detainees.  It was also alledged tha  may have provided BFDF 
detainees with digital pornography, which is considered contraband.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: ICE Buffalo Federal Detention Facility   Public website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of subject was: On Duty

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-BUF-17328 Buffalo, NY U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

DHS Contractor 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 4/7/2016

A detainee at the ICE Buffalo Federal Detention Facility (BFDF) has alleged tha  Detention 
Officer, Akima Global Services, BFDF, Batavia, NY may have sent text messages to family members of 
detainees at the BFDF, on behalf of the detainees.  It was also alledged that  may have provided BFDF 
detainees with digital pornography, which is considered contraband.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: ICE Buffalo Federal Detention Facility   Public website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of subject was: On Duty

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-CHI-05558 Chicago, IL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LNU, FNU; Non-DHS Employee, Cicero, IL FNU  LNU

State/Local Govt 
Employee 2/6/2015 2/6/2015 1/22/2016

*****FIELD GENERATED ALLEGATION    In January 2015, Special Agent  Federal Bureau of 
Investigations, Chicago Field Office contacted Special Agent in Charge  regarding an allegation 
that officers of the Cicero Police Department, Cicero, IL, were detaining/arresting illegal aliens and coercing 
them to provide weapon, money, and drugs for their release or fear deportation.  It was further alleged that 
one of the officers was presenting himself as an ICE agent.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Cicero IL.  Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On 
Duty  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent  Public website 
complainant indicated that the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: Police Officer

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912
False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I15-ICE-CHI-13195 Chicago, IL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Springfield, IL General Public 7/8/2015 7/8/2015 7/26/2016

*****FIELD GENERATED ALLEGATION*****    On July 2, 2015, SA  ICE, Springfield, IL, 
contacted DHS OIG Chicago and reported that on July 1, 2015, he was contacted by FPS Inspector
regarding an individual who identified himself as a DHS Agent and reported a theft of a phone and radio from 
his government vehicle.  The theft report had been made with the Springfield Police Department on June 30, 
2015 from the residence of DHS Agent  Springfield, IL 62704.  The report had 
been taken by Springfield Police Officer Ronald Gillette.  Subsequently further investigation revealed that 

s not a DHS ICE agent nor a government employee.  ------------------  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Springfield, IL.   Public website submitter indicated that the duty 
status of subject was: Off Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special 
Agent in Charge ICE-Springfield IL   

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-ICE-CHI-13195 Chicago, IL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Springfield, IL General Public 7/8/2015 7/8/2015 7/26/2016

*****FIELD GENERATED ALLEGATION*****    On July 2, 2015, SA  ICE, Springfield, IL, 
contacted DHS OIG Chicago and reported that on July 1, 2015, he was contacted by FPS Inspector
regarding an individual who identified himself as a DHS Agent and reported a theft of a phone and radio from 
his government vehicle.  The theft report had been made with the Springfield Police Department on June 30, 
2015 from the residence of DHS Agent  Springfield, IL 62704.  The report had 
been taken by Springfield Police Officer   Subsequently further investigation revealed that 

s not a DHS ICE agent nor a government employee.  ------------------  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Springfield, IL.   Public website submitter indicated that the duty 
status of subject was: Off Duty   Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special 
Agent in Charge ICE-Springfield IL   

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I15-ICE-CHI-16154 Chicago, IL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Woodstock, IL

DHS Contractor 8/25/2015 9/1/2015 7/26/2016

Mail - 08-27-2015_07-18-58.pdf  is reporting Officer or excessive brutality.  claims 
he sustained serious injuries, he has been examined by x-rays and placed on medication due to the violent 
acts of Officer  claim s actions were uncalled for and left him in a great deal of pain 
and suffering. He claims this isn't the first time Officer has put his hands on him and fears it wont be 
the last if something isn't done about it. He claims that  does this to other detainees as well but never 
gets punished for his actions. would like investigators to visit him at the detention center to see 
what is going on.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-ICE-CHI-16154 Chicago, IL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Woodstock, IL

DHS Contractor 8/25/2015 9/1/2015 7/26/2016

Mail - 08-27-2015_07-18-58.pdf s reporting Officer or excessive brutality.  claims 
he sustained serious injuries, he has been examined by x-rays and placed on medication due to the violent 
acts of Officer  claim  actions were uncalled for and left him in a great deal of pain 
and suffering. He claims this isn't the first time Officer has put his hands on him and fears it wont be 
the last if something isn't done about it. He claims tha does this to other detainees as well but never 
gets punished for his actions would like investigators to visit him at the detention center to see 
what is going on.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-ICE-DAL-01578 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) /DEPRTN OFFCR/0712 Other Criminal/Dallas, TX DHS Employee 10/31/2014 11/3/2014 1/26/2016

On October 28, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Interoperability Section Chief (ISC)  of Enforcement  and Removal 
Operations located in Williston, VT (ERO/Williston) reporting an allegation of  criminal misconduct by 
Deportation Officer (DO)  of Dallas, TX.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-ICE-DAL-01578 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) /DEPRTN OFFCR/0712 Other Criminal/Dallas, TX Alien Detainee 10/31/2014 11/3/2014 1/26/2016

On October 28, 2014, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Interoperability Section Chief (ISC)  of Enforcement  and Removal 
Operations located in Williston, VT (ERO/Williston) reporting an allegation of  criminal misconduct by 
Deportation Officer (DO)  of Dallas, TX.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 922 Unlawful acts [Firearms]

I15-ICE-DAL-08688 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) FNU FNU DHS Employee 4/10/2015 4/10/2015 9/26/2016

On April 8, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, New Orleans (OPR New Orleans),  received an email from 
Detective  Memphis Police Department (MPD),  Memphis, Tennessee. The email was 
originally forwarded to ICE, Homeland Security  Investigations (HSI), Memphis, Tennessee. The email 
documented an allegation that an ICE  Agent identified as First Name Unknown (FNU)  possibly 
located in the Dallas, Fort  Worth, Texas area is receiving large sums of money from illegal aliens in 
furtherance of providing  documentation of legal status.  This report of investigation documents the initial 
information received.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546

Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I15-ICE-DAL-14190 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

, Correctional Officer, Rolling Planes Detention 
Facility DHS Contractor 7/28/2015 7/28/2015 9/26/2016

On July 20, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Dallas, TX (ERO/Dallas). SDDO reported  detainee ) is 
allegedly blackmailing a male correctional  staff at the Rolling Plains Regional Jail and Detention Center 
(RPRJDC).

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-ICE-DAL-14190 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Correctional Officer, Rolling Planes Detention 
Facility DHS Contractor 7/28/2015 7/28/2015 9/26/2016

On July 20, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Dallas, TX (ERO/Dallas). SDDO reported  detainee ) is 
allegedly blackmailing a male correctional  staff at the Rolling Plains Regional Jail and Detention Center 
(RPRJDC).

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-DAL-14190 Dallas, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Correctional Officer, Rolling Planes Detention 
Facility Alien Detainee 7/28/2015 7/28/2015 9/26/2016

On July 20, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Dallas, TX (ERO/Dallas). SDDO reported  detainee  is 
allegedly blackmailing a male correctional  staff at the Rolling Plains Regional Jail and Detention Center 
(RPRJDC)

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Under Investigation Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 873 Blackmail

I15-ICE-DET-04284 Detroit, MI
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) al. DHS Employee 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 12/30/2016

Confidential Source notified the OIG tha  

 
 

 

-  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was:  Detroit, MI  Public website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

1.5 Employee Corruption Kickbacks Kickbacks Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 208 Acts Affecting a Personal Financial Interest

I15-ICE-DET-04284 Detroit, MI
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  et al. DHS Employee 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 12/30/2016

Confidential Source notified the OIG tha  

 
 

 

-  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was:  Detroit, MI  Public website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

1.5 Employee Corruption Kickbacks Kickbacks Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 208 Acts Affecting a Personal Financial Interest

I15-ICE-DRT-15041 Del Rio, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee, Piedras Negras, MEXICO General Public 8/13/2015 8/13/2015 9/26/2016

On August 11, 2015, the DHS OIG recieved information from  Special Agent, Homeland 
Security Investigations, Immigration and Customs Enforcement, San Antonio, Texas.  In regards to a 
telephone call received by rom  Mexican national,  
Mexico, offering a monetary bribe to  disclosing US Border Patrol operations. NU also 
told  that his organization employeed a CBP employee who assisted them in the smuggling of 
undocumented aliens (UDAs).  Mexican nationals, have 
previously been identified by the DHS OIG as high level UDA and narcotic smugglers in the Eagle Pass, Texas 
and San Antonio areas and are suspected of having corrupt DHS employee(s) in the payroll.     Please assign to 
S/A .

1.9 Employee Corruption Bribery - Good Guy Bribery - Good Guy Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-ICE-ELC-09125 El Centro, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown DHS Employee, Calexico, CA  General Public 4/20/2015 4/20/2015 3/10/2016

On April 16, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  El  Centro, CA, regarding an 
allegation made b alleged that on  March 5, 2015, he met a subject by the 
name o  in Mexicali, Mexico, who was  accompanied by two women. One of the women reportedly 
told was an  "Immigration Officer" who smuggles narcotics into the United States.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I15-ICE-ELC-09125 El Centro, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown DHS Employee, Calexico, CA  General Public 4/20/2015 4/20/2015 3/10/2016

On April 16, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  El  Centro, CA, regarding an 
allegation made b alleged that on  March 5, 2015, he met a subject by the 
name o  in Mexicali, Mexico, who was  accompanied by two women. One of the women reportedly 
told " was an  "Immigration Officer" who smuggles narcotics into the United States.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-ICE-ELP-13920 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-Employee/Unknown/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX General Public 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 5/11/2016
On July 20, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso TX (OPR/EL Paso), received  information 
that identified himself to a private citizen as an U.S. Immigration  and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) employee.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I15-ICE-ELP-16359 El Paso, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Immigration Enforcement Agent, ICE, Las Vegas, NV - 
Physical Assault (Staff on Detainee)/EL  PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 9/3/2015 9/3/2015 3/8/2016

On September 2, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Detention Reporting and Information Line (DRIL), who reported that  detainee

 at Otero County Processing Center in Chaparral,  NM was assaulted by an unknown ICE 
Agent.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-ICE-ELP-17717 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IRS/HSI/0712 Other Criminal/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 9/25/2015 9/25/2015 5/19/2016
On September 22, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso, TX (OPR/El Paso),  was contacted by 
Homeland Security Investigations, El Paso (HSI/El Paso), regarding an  allegation made against Intelligence 
Research Specialist (IRS)  HSI/El Paso.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-ICE-ELP-17717 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IRS/HSI/0712 Other Criminal/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 9/25/2015 9/25/2015 5/19/2016
On September 22, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso, TX (OPR/El Paso),  was contacted by 
Homeland Security Investigations, El Paso (HSI/El Paso), regarding an  allegation made against Intelligence 
Research Specialist (IRS)  HSI/El Paso

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-ICE-ELP-17717 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IRS/HSI/0712 Other Criminal/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 9/25/2015 9/25/2015 5/19/2016
On September 22, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso, TX (OPR/El Paso),  was contacted by 
Homeland Security Investigations, El Paso (HSI/El Paso), regarding an  allegation made against Intelligence 
Research Specialist (IRS)  HSI/El Paso.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-HOU-01008 Houston, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU, FNU; ICE, San Antonio, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/21/2014 10/21/2014 9/26/2016

On October 20, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA  U.S. Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, San Antonio, TX (OPR/San  Antonio), received an 
email from Special Agent (SA  Homeland Security  Investigations, Austin, TX (HSI/Austin). 
SA  stated in his email, a source incarcerated  at Wilson County Detention Center, Wilson County, 
TX (WCDC) who is serving a sentence for  re-entry after deportation, allegedly has information relating to an 
Immigration Officer providing  documents illegally

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1028 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Identification Documents and Information

I15-ICE-HOU-01008 Houston, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU, FNU; ICE, San Antonio, TX Alien (Not 
Detainee)

10/21/2014 10/21/2014 9/26/2016

On October 20, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA  U.S. Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, San Antonio, TX (OPR/San  Antonio), received an 
email from Special Agent (SA  Homeland Security  Investigations, Austin, TX (HSI/Austin). 
SA  stated in his email, a source incarcerated  at Wilson County Detention Center, Wilson County, 
TX (WCDC) who is serving a sentence for  re-entry after deportation, allegedly has information relating to an 
Immigration Officer providing  documents illegally.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546 Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I15-ICE-HOU-01008 Houston, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU, FNU; ICE, San Antonio, TX Alien (Not 
Detainee)

10/21/2014 10/21/2014 9/26/2016

On October 20, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA  U.S. Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, San Antonio, TX (OPR/San  Antonio), received an 
email from Special Agent (SA  Homeland Security  Investigations, Austin, TX (HSI/Austin). 
SA  stated in his email, a source incarcerated  at Wilson County Detention Center, Wilson County, 
TX (WCDC) who is serving a sentence for  re-entry after deportation, allegedly has information relating to an 
Immigration Officer providing  documents illegally.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1326 Reentry of Removed Aliens

I15-ICE-HOU-01008 Houston, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU, FNU; ICE, San Antonio, TX Alien (Not 
Detainee)

10/21/2014 10/21/2014 9/26/2016

On October 20, 2014, Senior Special Agent (SSA  U.S. Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, San Antonio, TX (OPR/San  Antonio), received an 
email from Special Agent (SA  Homeland Security  Investigations, Austin, TX (HSI/Austin). 
SA  stated in his email, a source incarcerated  at Wilson County Detention Center, Wilson County, 
TX (WCDC) who is serving a sentence for  re-entry after deportation, allegedly has information relating to an 
Immigration Officer providing  documents illegally

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546 Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I15-ICE-MIA-04300 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  Assistant Chief Counsel, Miami, FL DHS Employee 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 9/20/2016

I am going through a very acrimonious divorce with my husband.  His best friend is  an 
attorney for DHS immigration department in Miami, FL. I have text messages between m

wher dmits to looking up immigration status/information on a person I 
am dating.  I am assuming he looked this up at work and it was for personal use and to harass me and my 
boyfriend.  I am an attorney as well and this violates moral and professional conduct.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Immigration office in Miami  Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that the subject 

 had miscellaneous identifiers of: attorney for DHS

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-ICE-MIA-04300 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  Assistant Chief Counsel, Miami, FL DHS Employee 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 9/20/2016

I am going through a very acrimonious divorce with my husband.  His best friend is  an 
attorney for DHS immigration department in Miami, FL. I have text messages between my husband

wher dmits to looking up immigration status/information on a person I 
am dating.  I am assuming he looked this up at work and it was for personal use and to harass me and my 
boyfriend.  I am an attorney as well and this violates moral and professional conduct.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Immigration office in Miami  Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that the subject 

 had miscellaneous identifiers of: attorney for DHS

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030

Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-ICE-MIA-04300 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  Assistant Chief Counsel, Miami, FL DHS Employee 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 9/20/2016

I am going through a very acrimonious divorce with my husband.  His best friend is  an 
attorney for DHS immigration department in Miami, FL. I have text messages between my husband,

wher dmits to looking up immigration status/information on a person I 
am dating.  I am assuming he looked this up at work and it was for personal use and to harass me and my 
boyfriend.  I am an attorney as well and this violates moral and professional conduct.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Immigration office in Miami  Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that the subject 

 had miscellaneous identifiers of: attorney for DHS

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-ICE-MIA-12904 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

CRIM INVSTGR/0712 Other 
Criminal/MIAMI, DADE, FL

DHS Employee 7/2/2015 7/2/2015 12/7/2016
On June 30, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Miami, Florida, 
notified the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Miami, that he identified  an individual name

 who was using Facebook to sell ammunition he claimed came  directly from "Homeland Security "
4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 

General
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-ICE-MIA-12904 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

CRIM INVSTGR/0712 Other 
Criminal/MIAMI, DADE, FL

DHS Employee 7/2/2015 7/2/2015 12/7/2016
On June 30, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Miami, Florida, 
notified the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Miami, that he identified  an individual name

 who was using Facebook to sell ammunition he claimed came  directly from "Homeland Security."
4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 

General
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-ICE-MIA-16802 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Miami, FL DHS Employee 9/11/2015 9/14/2015 6/14/2016

4:02 PM  The complainant,  claims that Officer n Krome Service 
Processing Center choked him on Tuesday, September 8, 2015 laims that since this incident, he is 
now experiencing back pains. laims that this scenario was caught on camera and wants DHS OIG to 
look into this issue.  --  LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: Krome Service 
Processing Center

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-MIA-16872 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Miami, FL DHS Employee 9/14/2015 9/23/2015 5/25/2016

2:54 PM CST    The complainant, , is currently being detained at the Krome 
Service Processing Center in Miami, FL laims that he is being abused by two of the Correctional 
Officers at the facility. Allegedly,  have verbally abused the detainees by cursing at 
them, calling them immigrants and telling them to go back to their home country claims that the 
officers also accused the complainant of stealing something from the law library when he never stole 
anything. laims that when something is lost from the library, it is supposed to be reported to ICE and 
the officers never reported the missing item.  feels that the detainees at the Krome Service Processing 
Center do not deserve to be treated in such a disrespectful manner.  --  LSU Call Center submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Krome Service Processing Center   LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the 
duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty   LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status 
of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-MIA-16872 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Miami, FL DHS Employee 9/14/2015 9/23/2015 5/25/2016

2:54 PM CST    The complainant, , is currently being detained at the Krome 
Service Processing Center in Miami, FL. Pierre claims that he is being abused by two of the Correctional 
Officers at the facility. Allegedly  have verbally abused the detainees by cursing at 
them, calling them immigrants and telling them to go back to their home country claims that the 
officers also accused the complainant of stealing something from the law library when he never stole 
anything laims that when something is lost from the library, it is supposed to be reported to ICE and 
the officers never reported the missing item.  feels that the detainees at the Krome Service Processing 
Center do not deserve to be treated in such a disrespectful manner.  --  LSU Call Center submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Krome Service Processing Center   LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the 
duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty   LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status 
of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-MIA-16912 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 FNU/Non-Employee/0609 Detainee/Alien - Physical Assault 
(Staff on  Detainee)/MACCLENNY, BAKER, FL

State/Local Govt 
Employee 9/15/2015 9/15/2015 3/29/2016

On September 3, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Management and Program Analyst (MPA) of  Enforcement and Removal 
Operations located in Miami, FL (ERO/Miami) reporting an allegation  that Contract Officer (CO) FNU 

ssaulted ERO detainee Rommell Rodriguez  Barajas (A208031866) at the Baker County Jail 
located in MacClenny  FL

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-MIA-17557 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); MacClenny, FL 9/23/2015 9/23/2015 7/22/2016

7:22 PM CST s reporting ICE claims he was previously located in Krome Processing Service 
Center.  says he was told by an OIG Officer that his case is pending and under investigation, so for his 
safety he would be transferred to Baker County Correctional Facility.  states the OIG Officer assured 
him that he would be returned to Krome Processing Service Center quickly after the transfer.  claims it 
has now been several days and he has not been transferred back to Krome.  says he is concerned about 
this, but Baker County Correctional Facility is too far of a drive for his family to visit him. tates he 
misses his wife and children, and would like to be returned to Krome as soon as possible so he can continue 
visitation with his family. also claims on September 21, 2015 two Hispanic officers in Baker County 
approached nd took a picture of him. ays he did not ask the officers why they took his picture, 
so he does not know why they did it states he asked several detainees if this was a normal practice in 
the facility, but they all said they had not heard of officers photographing detainees.  claims he would 
like to be informed of why the officers took his photograph.

2.5 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Denial of Rights / Due 
Process

Denial of rights, due 
process

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-NEO-06636 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

; IEA; ICE; Miami, FL General Public 3/3/2015 3/3/2015 5/19/2016

*****Complaint received by New orlean RAC Office*****    On February 26, 2015, ASAC  ICE HSI, 
New Orleans, LA, contacted DHS OIG NEO SA with information regarding possible DHS 
employee corruption. laimed that on February 25, 2015, a Source of Information (SOI) providing 
intel to ICE HSI o

 

 

  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: New Orleans, LA  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: 
Homeland Security Invesigations, Assistant Special Agent in Charge  Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: ICE Officer  Public website complainant indicated that 
the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office Deputy

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-ICE-NEO-06636 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

; IEA; ICE; Miami, FL FNU  LNU State/Local Govt 
Employee

3/3/2015 3/3/2015 5/19/2016

*****Complaint received by New orlean RAC Office*****    On February 26, 2015, ASAC  ICE HSI, 
New Orleans, LA, contacted DHS OIG NEO SA with information regarding possible DHS 
employee corruption. laimed that on February 25, 2015, a Source of Information (SOI) providing 
intel to ICE HSI o

 

 

  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: New Orleans, LA  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: 
Homeland Security Invesigations, Assistant Special Agent in Charge  Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: ICE Officer  Public website complainant indicated that 
the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office Deputy

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 798 Disclosure of Classified Information

I15-ICE-NEO-06636 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

; IEA; ICE; Miami, FL DHS Employee 3/3/2015 3/3/2015 5/19/2016

*****Complaint received by New orlean RAC Office*****    On February 26, 2015, ASAC Tom Annello, ICE HSI, 
New Orleans, LA, contacted DHS OIG NEO SA with information regarding possible DHS 
employee corruption.  Annello claimed that on February 25, 2015, a Source of Information (SOI) providing 
intel to ICE HSI o

 

 

--  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: New Orleans, LA  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: 
Homeland Security Invesigations, Assistant Special Agent in Charge  Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: ICE Officer  Public website complainant indicated that 
the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office Deputy

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 798 Disclosure of Classified Information

I15-ICE-NYC-05242 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

HAYES JR, JAMES, Special Agent in Charge, Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement, New York, NY JAMES  HAYES JR DHS Employee 1/30/2015 1/30/2015 1/8/2016

On January 28, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Executive Associate Director (EAD) of Homeland  Security Investigations of 
Washington, DC (HSI/Washington) reporting an allegation of  unauthorized ICE travel card use by Special 
Agent in Charge (SAC) James HAYES of Homeland  Security Investigations of New York  NY (HSI/New York)

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-NYC-15864 New York, NY U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

, CIS, Contractor, Holtsville, NY General Public 8/26/2015 8/26/2015 7/28/2016

On August 26, 2015, Homeland Security Investigations, Assistant Special Agent in Charge, Long  Island Field 
Office (ASAC/LI-HSI) Group Supervisor (GS)  contacted the Office of  Professional 
Responsibility, Resident Special Agent in Charge, JFK International Airport  (RAC/JK-OPR), to report that 
during an execution of a search warrant for a child pornography  investigation, a part time United States 
Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) fingerprint  technician  was 
encountered. During the search,  was  interviewed and made several statements admitting to 
possessing child pornography files. To  date, no victims have been identified.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-ORL-09621 Orlando, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU nknown/0902 Disclosure-Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Information/ORLANDO, ORANGE, FL

 LNU DHS Employee 4/28/2015 4/28/2015 1/13/2016

On April 13, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Special Agent (SA)
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Jacksonville, FL (HSI\ Jacksonville). SA  received information 
from an unknown Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) Taskforce Officer (TFO) that an HSI employee identified 
only a  assigned to the Orlando, Florida area, is allegedly providing information to suspected 
smuggler has had planes seized by HSI and the Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA)

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I15-ICE-PHL-01814 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

DEPRTN OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association with 
Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/PHILADELPHIA, PHILADELPHIA, PA DHS Employee 11/6/2014 11/6/2014 8/18/2016

On October 30, 2014, Homeland Security Investigations, Special Agent in Charge, Philadelphia,  Pennsylvania 
(SAC/PH-HSI), Group Supervisor (GS) dvised the Resident Agent  in Charge, Newark 2, Office 
of Professional Responsibility (RAC/NK2-OPR) that during an  ongoing SAC/PH-HSI investigation into the 
criminal activities of  a phone  number identified a  was uncovered 
during a review of Mr. s Short Message  Service (SMS) messages. G  suspected that the phone 
number belonged to Deportation  Officer (DO)  RAC/NK2-OPR confirmed that the telephone 
number identified by G belonged to DO  DO s currently assigned to the Enforcement 
and  Removal Office (ERO), Marlton, New Jersey Office.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-PHL-05288 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IMMGRTN ENF AGT/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/YORK, 
YORK, PA DHS Employee 2/2/2015 2/2/2015 12/1/2016

This report of investigation is being generated to trigger an electronic transfer of the file to the  DHS/OIG.    
On February 20, 2014, Resident Agent in Charge, Newark 2, Office of Professional Responsibility  (RAC/NK2-
OPR) Senior Special Agent (SSA)  and SSA  received information that 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Immigration Enforcement  Agent (IEA)  York 
County Prison  York  PA was allegedly using and  distributing steroids     

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I15-ICE-PHL-12192 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

et al ,ERO, ICE DHS Employee, York, PA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/19/2015 6/19/2015 4/8/2016
On June 12, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Department of Justice  (DOJ), United 
States Marshals Service (USMS)  who received an allegation from an  unknown source reporting 
excessive force used in the arrest of  while in Dauphin,  PA.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-ICE-PHL-12537 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU /Non-Employee/0606 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 
(Other)/LEESPORT, BERKS, PA et al LNU DHS Contractor 6/25/2015 6/26/2015 1/19/2016

On June 24, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD  of Enforcement and Removal 
Operations located in York, PA (ERO/York) reporting an allegation that Contract Officer (CO NU and CO 

LNU harassed and taunted ERO detaine  and her son
 at the Berks Family Residential Center located in Leesport, PA.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-PHL-12537 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU /Non-Employee/0606 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 
(Other)/LEESPORT, BERKS, PA et al   LNU DHS Contractor 6/25/2015 6/26/2015 1/19/2016

On June 24, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD  of Enforcement and Removal 
Operations located in York, PA (ERO/York) reporting an allegation that Contract Officer (CO) NU and CO 

LNU harassed and taunted ERO detaine  and her son
 at the Berks Family Residential Center located in Leesport  PA

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-PHL-12896 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); 
Pittsburgh, PA

DHS Employee 7/2/2015 7/2/2015 5/5/2016

On Thursday 07/02/2015 at approximatley 805am i was in the Immigration Enforcement Agents office in 
Pittsburgh, Pa working in my designated area. I was leaving my area when Immigration Enforcement Agent 

ame wpast me with his firearmed drawn between his hip and chest. I almost walked into 
him at which time it could of been pointed directly at my chest area.     I have already submitted numerous 
complaints about intimadation and abuse i have been receiving in this office. Now with a firearm involved its 
starting to get worse. I also reported this to my Supervisor SDDO  Thank You  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: The immigration enforcement agents office in Pittsburgh, 
Pa   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website 
complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT AGENT

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-PHL-13939 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IEA, Pittsburgh, PA DHS Employee 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 10/6/2016

From: Truck stop [mailto @gmail.com]  Sent: Friday, July 17, 2015 3:04 AM  To: 
TSAExternalCompliance  Subject: Fwd:   ---------- Forwarded message ----------  From: Truck 
stop @gmail.com]  Date: Friday, July 17, 2015  Subject:   To: 
Jointintake@dhs.gov  Good Morning  Agent  in the Pittsburgh office has made the comment that I 
would like to come into the office with  my m-4 gun and straighten things out. Also he staed that his wife who 
works for tsa Pittsburgh said if that  works for you let me know I will take it to the airport.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Pittsburgh, PA  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: AFOD  Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad 
miscellaneous identifiers of: IEA

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-PHL-13939 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IEA, Pittsburgh, PA DHS Employee 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 10/6/2016

From: Truck stop [mailto:hcclhopwood@gmail.com]  Sent: Friday, July 17, 2015 3:04 AM  To: 
TSAExternalCompliance  Subject: Fwd:   ---------- Forwarded message ----------  From: Truck 
stop @gmail.com]  Date: Friday, July 17, 2015  Subject:   To: 
Jointintake@dhs.gov  Good Morning  Agent  in the Pittsburgh office has made the comment that I 
would like to come into the office with  my m-4 gun and straighten things out. Also he staed that his wife who 
works for tsa Pittsburgh said if that  works for you let me know I will take it to the airport.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Pittsburgh, PA  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: AFOD  Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad 
miscellaneous identifiers of: IEA

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-PHL-13939 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

IEA, Pittsburgh, PA DHS Employee 7/22/2015 7/22/2015 10/6/2016

From: Truck stop [mailto @gmail.com]  Sent: Friday, July 17, 2015 3:04 AM  To: 
TSAExternalCompliance  Subject: Fwd:   ---------- Forwarded message ----------  From: Truck 
stop @gmail.com]  Date: Friday, July 17, 2015  Subject:   To: 
Jointintake@dhs.gov  Good Morning  Agent  in the Pittsburgh office has made the comment that I 
would like to come into the office with  my m-4 gun and straighten things out. Also he staed that his wife who 
works for tsa Pittsburgh said if that  works for you let me know I will take it to the airport.  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Pittsburgh, PA  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: AFOD  Public website complainant indicated that the subject ad 
miscellaneous identifiers of: IEA

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-ICE-PHL-17505 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

LNU, FNU; ICE; York, PA FNU  LNU DHS Contractor 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 2/29/2016

On July 31, 2015, CRCL received an email from Staff Attorney, American Bar Association 
Commission on Immigration on behalf of Mr  a detainee located at York County 
Prison. In an attached letter Mr.  states that he sustained bodily injuries in detention on account of 
physical assault  by a prison captain and three correctional officers and  that his injuries are severe enough 
that he cannot climb to the top bunk, and he shares a cell with a criminal inmate who is using the lower bunk, 
and therefore Mr  reports he has been sleeping on the floor since May 9th..

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 842(a)(2) Unlawful Acts

I15-ICE-RGV-10375 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Investigator/Starr County High Intensity Drug Trafficking 
Area (HIDTA) Task Force/Rio Grande City, Texas

HIDTA  Starr County State/Local Govt 
Employee

5/13/2015 5/13/2015 5/12/2016

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), received information from 
 Special Agent (SA), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Falcon Heights, Texas, allegeing 

that an investigator from the Starr County High Intensity Drug Trafficking (HIDTA) Task Force in Rio Grande 
City, Texas, fraudulently requested a Significant Public Benefit Parole (I-94)for a person reported to be a 
Confidential Informant (CI), but who was not assiting/providing information to Starr County HIDTA regarding 
drug trafficking activities.  Additional information further indicated that the alleged CI was actually 
performing custodial duties for Starr County HIDTA.    The information SA rovided was related to an 
ongoing DHS OIG investigation into the fraudulent issuance of Significant Public Benefit Parole (I-94) 
documents.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Starr County, Texas area   
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-ICE-RGV-10375 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Investigator/Starr County High Intensity Drug Trafficking 
Area (HIDTA) Task Force/Rio Grande City, Texas

State/Local Govt 
Employee

5/13/2015 5/13/2015 5/12/2016

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), received information from 
 Special Agent (SA), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Falcon Heights, Texas, allegeing 

that an investigator from the Starr County High Intensity Drug Trafficking (HIDTA) Task Force in Rio Grande 
City, Texas, fraudulently requested a Significant Public Benefit Parole (I-94)for a person reported to be a 
Confidential Informant (CI), but who was not assiting/providing information to Starr County HIDTA regarding 
drug trafficking activities.  Additional information further indicated that the alleged CI was actually 
performing custodial duties for Starr County HIDTA.    The information SA provided was related to an 
ongoing DHS OIG investigation into the fraudulent issuance of Significant Public Benefit Parole (I-94) 
documents.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Starr County, Texas area   
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-ICE-RGV-10375 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Investigator/Starr County High Intensity Drug Trafficking 
Area (HIDTA) Task Force/Rio Grande City, Texas

State/Local Govt 
Employee

5/13/2015 5/13/2015 5/12/2016

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), received information from 
 Special Agent (SA), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Falcon Heights, Texas, allegeing 

that an investigator from the Starr County High Intensity Drug Trafficking (HIDTA) Task Force in Rio Grande 
City, Texas, fraudulently requested a Significant Public Benefit Parole (I-94)for a person reported to be a 
Confidential Informant (CI), but who was not assiting/providing information to Starr County HIDTA regarding 
drug trafficking activities.  Additional information further indicated that the alleged CI was actually 
performing custodial duties for Starr County HIDTA.    The information SA provided was related to an 
ongoing DHS OIG investigation into the fraudulent issuance of Significant Public Benefit Parole (I-94) 
documents.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Starr County, Texas area   
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I15-ICE-RGV-17249 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); 
DHS Employee; Donna, TX

DHS Employee 9/18/2015 9/22/2015 2/26/2016

********BOX 3************  ********Assign to DHS-OIG/RGV******  , Special Agent, 
Homeland Security Investigations, Falcon Heights, Texas,is alleged to have used his official position to collect 
and disseminate law enforcement-sensitive Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) information to citizens, and 
possibly FBI targets, in the city of Donna, Texas.     The DHS OIG will be conducting a joint investigation with 
the FBI.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Donna, Texas   Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that 
the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Special Agent

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material

Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-ICE-SAT-05723 San Antonio, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

DEPORTATION OFFICER/0712 Other 
Criminal/SAN ANTONIO, BEXAR, TX 2/10/2015 2/10/2015 6/12/2016

On February 5, 2015, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Immigration and Customs  Enforcement (ICE), 
Office of Professional Responsibility, San Antonio, TX (OPR/San Antonio),  was contacted by Special Agent 
(SA  Bureau of Alcohol, Firearms, Tobacco and  Explosives, San Antonio, TX (BATF/San Antonio), 
regarding an allegation of disreputable  association involving Deportation Officer (DO) , 
ICE,  Enforcement and Removal Operations, San Antonio, TX (ERO/San Antonio).

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-ICE-SEA-10851 Seattle, WA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 GEO Contractor, Tacoma, WA et al DHS 
Subcontractor

5/21/2015 5/26/2015 6/15/2016

According to a Seattle Times article dated May 19, 2015, was allegedly beaten by several 
officers at the Northwest Detention Center (NWDC), Tacoma, WA, after  complained about the 
treatment of another cellmate and general conditions at the NWDC.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Northwest Detention Center Tacoma, WA   Public website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Northwest Deten  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-SEA-10851 Seattle, WA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 GEO Contractor, Tacoma, WA et al DHS 
Subcontractor

5/21/2015 5/26/2015 6/15/2016

According to a Seattle Times article dated May 19, 2015, was allegedly beaten by several 
officers at the Northwest Detention Center (NWDC), Tacoma, WA, after  complained about the 
treatment of another cellmate and general conditions at the NWDC.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Northwest Detention Center Tacoma, WA   Public website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Northwest Deten  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-SEA-10851 Seattle, WA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 GEO Contractor, Tacoma, WA et al DHS 
Subcontractor

5/21/2015 5/26/2015 6/15/2016

According to a Seattle Times article dated May 19, 2015, was allegedly beaten by several 
officers at the Northwest Detention Center (NWDC), Tacoma, WA, after  complained about the 
treatment of another cellmate and general conditions at the NWDC.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: Northwest Detention Center Tacoma, WA   Public website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Northwest Deten  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I15-ICE-SND-08475 San Diego, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

, Sr Systems Analyst (Contractor), ICE, San Diego, 
CA

DHS Employee 4/6/2015 4/7/2015 5/10/2016

The complainant,  alleges that he was contacted by Officer  of the San 
Diego Police Department regarding ICE employee  is a senior assistant analysis for 
ICE and also leases a suite space located in n San Diego where his wife 
was recently arrested for prostitution. Officer  was working as an undercover agent looking to find 
answers to the allegations that Mr. was running a prostitution business out of this building. When 
Office  went to the suite ran by Mr.  he was approached by Mr.  wife
who then agreed to perform sexual actions with him. The officer arrested the wife and is now doing an 
investigation on Mr.  The officer is certain that Mr. s involved with all the prostitution activities 
being done in this building as Mr.  runs the building and is the husband of one of the prostitutes. The 
complainant is not sure if Mr  wife is the only prostitute in the building or if she is accompanied by 
others. The complainant stated the officer wanted a complaint files against Mr  for prostitution and 
human smuggling while being an ICE employee working off duty.      Office  San Diego PD

  email @pd.sandiego.gov    The complainant as well as Office  ask that they be 
contacted if there are any further questions.  --  LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status of 
Alleged Offender was: Off Duty

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I15-ICE-SND-08475 San Diego, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Sr Systems Analyst (Contractor), ICE, San Diego, 
CA

DHS Employee 4/6/2015 4/7/2015 5/10/2016

The complainant,  alleges that he was contacted by Officer  of the San 
Diego Police Department regarding ICE employee  is a senior assistant analysis for 
ICE and also leases a suite space located in n San Diego where his wife 
was recently arrested for prostitution. Office  was working as an undercover agent looking to find 
answers to the allegations that Mr was running a prostitution business out of this building. When 
Office  went to the suite ran by Mr , he was approached by Mr.  wife
who then agreed to perform sexual actions with him. The officer arrested the wife and is now doing an 
investigation on Mr.  The officer is certain that Mr. s involved with all the prostitution activities 
being done in this building as Mr.  runs the building and is the husband of one of the prostitutes. The 
complainant is not sure if Mr  wife is the only prostitute in the building or if she is accompanied by 
others. The complainant stated the officer wanted a complaint files against Mr.  for prostitution and 
human smuggling while being an ICE employee working off duty.      Officer  San Diego PD

  email: @pd.sandiego.gov    The complainant as well as Officer  ask that they be 
contacted if there are any further questions.  --  LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status of 
Alleged Offender Hanes was: Off Duty

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICE-SND-13519 San Diego, CA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) DO, ICE, San Diego, CA. DHS Employee 7/15/2015 7/15/2015 3/21/2016

On July 14, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received a phone call from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)  Enforcement and 
Removal Operations San Diego, CA (ERO/San Diego). SDDO  reported the arrest of Immigration 
Enforcement Agent (IEA) ERO/San  Diego).

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-ICEHSI-MIA-16013 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

SUPVY CRIM INVSTGR/1610 General 
Misconduct-Other  Non-criminal/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL DHS Employee 8/28/2015 8/28/2015 7/6/2016

On August 21, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Supervisory Special Agent (SSA) f Homeland Security  Investigations located in 
Panama, PM (HSI/Panama) reporting an allegation of misconduct by  SSA  of Homeland 
Security Investigations located in Miami  FL  (HSI/Miami)

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-ICEOPR-ORL-15250 Orlando, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

SUPVY CRIM INVSTGR/0202 Smuggling-Aliens/NEW 
YORK -QUEENS,  QUEENS, NY DHS Employee 8/17/2015 8/21/2015 1/13/2016

On August 14, 2015, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Office of Professional  Responsibility, 
Newark, NJ (OPR/Newark), received an anonymous letter alleging OPR Assistant  Special Agent in Charge 
(ASAC  OPR/Newark, is harboring family members  and friends who are illegally present in 
the U S

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I15-NPPD-DET-08428 Detroit, MI National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)

 NPPD; Hamilton County, Ohio DHS Employee 4/3/2015 4/6/2015 1/11/2016

During a traffic stop in Hamilton County, OH  NPPD-employee  displayed his badge and 
credentials identifying himself as a Protective Security Advisor (PSA).  Allegedly the registration name and 
address of the vehicle driven by M  was the same name as a Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office (HCSO) 
Supervisor who had been involved in a previous incident (arrest) regarding Mr  and the return address 
was a HCSO substation.  The Hamilton County Sherriff Office is concerned and is questioning why NPPD 
would have a vehicle with a undercover registration particluly if the name and address is the same of a HCSO 
member who had a previous interaction with the PSA.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-NPPD-DET-08428 Detroit, MI National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)

 NPPD; Hamilton County, Ohio DHS Employee 4/3/2015 4/6/2015 1/11/2016

During a traffic stop in Hamilton County, OH  NPPD-employee  displayed his badge and 
credentials identifying himself as a Protective Security Advisor (PSA).  Allegedly the registration name and 
address of the vehicle driven by Mr.  was the same name as a Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office (HCSO) 
Supervisor who had been involved in a previous incident (arrest) regarding Mr nd the return address 
was a HCSO substation.  The Hamilton County Sherriff Office is concerned and is questioning why NPPD 
would have a vehicle with a undercover registration particluly if the name and address is the same of a HCSO 
member who had a previous interaction with the PSA.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1341 Mail Fraud - Frauds and Swindles

I15-NPPD-DET-08428 Detroit, MI National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)

 NPPD; Hamilton County, Ohio DHS Employee 4/3/2015 4/6/2015 1/11/2016

During a traffic stop in Hamilton County, OH  NPPD-employee  displayed his badge and 
credentials identifying himself as a Protective Security Advisor (PSA).  Allegedly the registration name and 
address of the vehicle driven by M  was the same name as a Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office (HCSO) 
Supervisor who had been involved in a previous incident (arrest) regarding Mr  and the return address 
was a HCSO substation.  The Hamilton County Sherriff Office is concerned and is questioning why NPPD 
would have a vehicle with a undercover registration particluly if the name and address is the same of a HCSO 
member who had a previous interaction with the PSA.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-NPPD-DVR-04547 Denver, CO National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS)

 NPPD; Denver, CO DHS Employee 1/14/2015 1/14/2015 11/5/2016

On January 8, 2014, the reporting agent and FPS Special Agent (Fact Finder) iscovered 
information in the conduct of NPPD/OCS/IAD investigation 14-08-1972 indicating FPS Area Commander

engaged in multiple actions constituting reportable misconduct.  Specifically, AC is alleged to 
have provided false and misleading information to a complainant in case number 14-08-1972, presumably in 
order to prevent further investigation of allegations in that inquiry.  The complainant stated her perception 
of s conduct was a deliberate attempt to intimidate her into withdrawing her complaint of misconduct 
related to FPS Program Manager   A s also alleged to have conducted an 
unauthorized investigation into the complainant’s allegations.  Preliminary review of witness testimony in 
the aforementioned case supports the allegation deliberately violated DHS Management Directive 
0801.1 (DHS-OIG Reporting Misconduct) and FPS Directive 15.1.4.1 (Admin Investigations). Additionally, AC 

is alleged to have shared pertinent and sensitive information/evidence related to 14-08-1972 with 
several FPS personnel; however, he did not report the alleged violations to his chain of command.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I15-ST-PHL-10136 Philadelphia, PA Science and Technology Directorate (DHS)  et al; Acting Director; S&T; Atlantic City, NJ DHS Employee 5/8/2015 7/2/2015 6/9/2016

*****REQUEST MADE BY HEADQUARTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION OF INVESTIGATION OF THESE 
COMPLAINTS*****    After the complainant was interviewed, the following 3 allegations were identified:    1. 

 received a pay increase because of his business relationship with   2.  was conducting 
brewery business matters during gov't work hours; and  3 used and S&T employee for personal 
services.      This is ongoing corruption and the date above was chosen for convenience.      The Acting Director 

s in a business with his direct repor  A description of the business can be found 
at http://www.gardenstatebeerco.com /about-us. They own a brewery and have just announced the planned 
opening of a restaurant in the local area.    1 ontrols the budget for the lab and the PMP for

 with the ratings to insure year end bonuses.   2. allowed nd o 
be on the hiring interview board for a chemistry position at the lab. has worked for the brewery. 
They planned to hire  another owner of the brewery. I have an email, where
suggests the hiring of  his business partner. Dr. he Chief Scientist, learned of the 
hiring interview and confronted  the then director of the laboratory. He explained that he 
would contact the IG if this hire went forward. Dr s willing to discuss this incident. The hire o
was stopped, but this should have never happened in the first place.  3. has created a new 
supervisory position for his business partner,  This is proceeding through the interview stage. I 
have an email where identifies only (two business associates) and 

 as possible candidates. The need for a new Chemistry Branch is debated by many here at the lab.  4. 
Just this past week onferred management responsibilities to Dr  in an 
attempt to hide guilt.    I have asked the Undersecretary of S&T to address this problem with a first email in 
October of 2014. Since I have heard nothing substantial and no one here has been contacted, I have decided 
to make this complaint. The US of S&T has responded to my emails with notes that something was being 
investigated, but I have no indication.    There are a number of personnel here that are very concerned about 
the financial and ethical corruption of this situation.      The copy of the emails does fit in this section, but I can 
forward when contacted.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Transportation Security Laboratory WJ Hughes Technical Center Atlantic City, NJ 08405   Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website complainant indicated that 
the subjec ad miscellaneous identifiers of: Director, TSL (Acting)

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 208 Acts Affecting a Personal Financial Interest

I15-TSA-BEL-14808 Bellingham, WA Transportation Security Administration (DHS) ; Transportation Security Officer, Seattle, WA DHS Component 8/10/2015 8/11/2015 1/29/2016

On August 10, 2015, the Seattle-Tacoma International Airport Deputy Assistant Federal Security Director for 
Screening (AFSD-S) notified the Office of Inspection of an alleged theft of prescription medication from 
checked baggage.  According to the information provided, SEA passenger notified TSA on 
August 4, 2015, that when flew from SEA on July 8, 2015, and subsequently, noticed her prescription 
medication Ambien and either Valium or Lipitor (conflicting claim reports) were missing from her checked 
baggage.  A review of the CCTV video revealed that on that date, SEA Transportation Security Officer (TSO) 

creened passenger ??s bag and during the screening process, a pink makeup bag 
fell to the floor.  TS  failed to repack the makeup bag into ??s checked bag.  Another TSO 
discovered the bag and notified Lead TSO (LTSO)   LTSO  and TSO are observed 
reviewing the contents of the bag, removing bottles of pills, and looking at the labels.  LTSO  does not 
make a computer entry regarding the items, but fills out a Lost and Found tag.  TSO s observed taking 
the makeup bag, and its contents, with a Lost and Found tag with him outside of the camera???s view.  A 
review of the July 8th and 9th Lost and Found records yielded negative results.  A further review of the CCTV 
video does not show TSO elivering the bag to either the supervisor or LTSO for processing.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-TSA-BLX-13840 Biloxi, MS Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  AFSD-S, Jackson, MS et al DHS Component 7/21/2015 7/22/2015 1/27/2016

On July 16, 2015, the Jackson-Evers International Airport (JAN) FSD notified OOI that there is an allegation 
that JAN AFSD-S s involved with UTA STSO scheduled to transfer to JAN 
on August 1, 2015).  Two employees advised JAN FSD that there is information that Washington an
were involved in an intimate relationship.  --  DHS Connect website submitter provided an incident date 
range of: Unknown.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-BOS-09077 Boston, MA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Providence, RI

DHS Component 4/17/2015 4/20/2015 12/8/2016

On April 17, 2015, Green State Airport (PVD) Assistant Federal Security Director for Mission Support (AFSD-
MS) notified the OOI that three PVD Transportation Security Officers have been removed as 
officers of the local AFGE union.  According to the information provided, TSO  LTSO

 and TSO  who served as  respectively, have been 
relieved of their duties and removed from their AFGE offices by AFGE
effective April 8, 2015.  The attached letter from the AFGE national office indicated that there have been 
unauthorized bank withdrawals, incomplete and inaccurate vouchers, numerous bank charges for insufficient 
funds, no yearly budget, no 2014 annual audit, and utilization of a debit card for purchases.  --  DHS Connect 
website submitter provided an incident date range of: Unknown.   DHS Connect website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of Alleged Offender as: On Duty

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-ELP-08104 El Paso, TX Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, Albuquerque, NM DHS Employee 3/30/2015 3/30/2015 8/26/2016

On 3/30/15, the Assistant Federal Security Director ??? Mission Support (AFSD-MS), Albuquerque 
International Airport (ABQ), notified TSA/OOI of the following:    On 3/30/15, the Rio Rancho (NM) Police 
Department (RRPD) notified the ABQ AFSD-Law Enforcement (AFSD-LE) that ABQ Transportation Security 
Officer (TSO) was under investigation for Criminal Sexual Penetration of a Minor.  According 
to the information provided, TSO ???s six-year old daughter complained to her friend at school 
about her father???s alleged behavior.  When interviewed by RRPD, the complaint was deemed credible.  A 
Temporary Restraining Order (TSO) has been issued against TSO   RRPD anticipates the case will be 
presented to a Grand Jury in the next 2 weeks.      NOTE:  TSO  has been indefinitely suspended, 
effective 3/31/15.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-ELP-08104 El Paso, TX Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, Albuquerque, NM DHS Employee 3/30/2015 3/30/2015 8/26/2016

On 3/30/15, the Assistant Federal Security Director ??? Mission Support (AFSD-MS), Albuquerque 
International Airport (ABQ), notified TSA/OOI of the following:    On 3/30/15, the Rio Rancho (NM) Police 
Department (RRPD) notified the ABQ AFSD-Law Enforcement (AFSD-LE) that ABQ Transportation Security 
Officer (TSO) was under investigation for Criminal Sexual Penetration of a Minor.  According 
to the information provided, TSO ???s six-year old daughter complained to her friend at school 
about her father???s alleged behavior.  When interviewed by RRPD, the complaint was deemed credible.  A 
Temporary Restraining Order (TSO) has been issued against TSO   RRPD anticipates the case will be 
presented to a Grand Jury in the next 2 weeks.      NOTE:  TSO  has been indefinitely suspended, 
effective 3/31/15.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-HOU-16554 Houston, TX Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  ; Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Houston, TX

DHS Component 9/8/2015 9/9/2015 11/17/2016

On September 8, 2015, the Federal Security Director (FSD), Houston Intercontinental Airport (IAH), notified 
TSA/OOI of the following allegation against Transportation Security Officer (TSO)   According 
to the information provided, it was alleged that TSO  knows and has communicated with several 
selectees as they have transited via IAH.  Further, it was reported, by other TSA employees, that TSO
has posted pro-Islamic and anti-Semitic statements on his Facebook page.  --  DHS Connect website submitter 
provided an incident date range of: Unknown

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Other Violation

I15-TSA-HOU-16554 Houston, TX Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  ; Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Houston, TX

DHS Component 9/8/2015 9/9/2015 11/17/2016

On September 8, 2015, the Federal Security Director (FSD), Houston Intercontinental Airport (IAH), notified 
TSA/OOI of the following allegation against Transportation Security Officer (TSO)   According 
to the information provided, it was alleged that TSO  knows and has communicated with several 
selectees as they have transited via IAH.  Further, it was reported, by other TSA employees, that TSO
has posted pro-Islamic and anti-Semitic statements on his Facebook page.  --  DHS Connect website submitter 
provided an incident date range of: Unknown.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-01862 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  ; Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Miami, FL

DHS Component 11/7/2014 11/7/2014 8/9/2016

On November 4, 2014, the Assistant Federal Security Director - Law Enforcement (AFSD-LE) at Miami 
International Airport (MIA) notified the Office of inspection of alleged criminal activity by MIA TSO  

  According to the information provided, the FBI received electronic transmissions from a 
computer whose IP address was identified as located in the residence of MIA TSO   A search 
warrant was subsequently obtained and executed on November 3, 2014,  at 0500.  FBI agents and police 
officers had hoped TSO  would be at home at the time of the warrant; however, his shift began at 
0400.  A number of electronic items (computer, external hard drives, thumb drives) were removed from his 
residence pursuant to the warrant.  FBI proceeded directly to the checkpoint and walked him out to the FBI 
offices.  TSO nvoked his right to an attorney.  The forensic analysis of TSO computer, external hard 
drives, thumb drives is still incomplete so he has not yet been formally arrested.  He was subsequently 
released by the FBI here at the airport.  The FBI will notify TSA AFSD-LE when/if an arrest is imminent.  -----  
DHS Connect website submitter provided an incident date range of: unknown.   DHS Connect website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: Off Duty

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-01862 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  ; Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Miami, FL

DHS Component 11/7/2014 11/7/2014 8/9/2016

On November 4, 2014, the Assistant Federal Security Director - Law Enforcement (AFSD-LE) at Miami 
International Airport (MIA) notified the Office of inspection of alleged criminal activity by MIA TSO  

  According to the information provided, the FBI received electronic transmissions from a 
computer whose IP address was identified as located in the residence of MIA TSO   A search 
warrant was subsequently obtained and executed on November 3, 2014,  at 0500.  FBI agents and police 
officers had hoped TSO  would be at home at the time of the warrant; however, his shift began at 
0400.  A number of electronic items (computer, external hard drives, thumb drives) were removed from his 
residence pursuant to the warrant.  FBI proceeded directly to the checkpoint and walked him out to the FBI 
offices.  TSO nvoked his right to an attorney.  The forensic analysis of TSO computer, external hard 
drives, thumb drives is still incomplete so he has not yet been formally arrested.  He was subsequently 
released by the FBI here at the airport.  The FBI will notify TSA AFSD-LE when/if an arrest is imminent.  -----  
DHS Connect website submitter provided an incident date range of: unknown.   DHS Connect website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: Off Duty

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I15-TSA-MIA-07612 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 6/9/2016

On March 19, 2015, Miami Field Office SFAM  notified the OOI that on a return flight from 
Barcelona, Spain, on March 8, 2015, FAM  advised him that she had been verbally and 
physically assaulted by FAM on several occasions.  According to the information provided, FAM 

 alleged that, at one point, FAM orcibly took her FAMS issued firearm away from her and 
pointed it at her head at close range while threatening her.  FAM  further stated that he has hit and 
punched her on her arms and other parts of her body.  FAM  advised that she has pictures of her 
injuries which she sustained from FAM ??s assaults.  Additionally, FAM lleges to have 
received threatening text messages and pornographic pictures of women he has slept with, on her 
government phone, which FAM ent form his government phone.  FAM  and FAM have 
been involved in an amorous relationship for some time  --  DHS Connect website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-07612 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 6/9/2016

On March 19, 2015, Miami Field Office SFAM  notified the OOI that on a return flight from 
Barcelona, Spain, on March 8, 2015, FAM  advised him that she had been verbally and 
physically assaulted by FAM on several occasions.  According to the information provided, FAM 

 alleged that, at one point, FAM orcibly took her FAMS issued firearm away from her and 
pointed it at her head at close range while threatening her.  FAM  further stated that he has hit and 
punched her on her arms and other parts of her body.  FAM  advised that she has pictures of her 
injuries which she sustained from FAM ??s assaults.  Additionally, FAM lleges to have 
received threatening text messages and pornographic pictures of women he has slept with, on her 
government phone, which FAM sent form his government phone.  FAM  and FAM have 
been involved in an amorous relationship for some time  --  DHS Connect website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-07612 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 6/9/2016

On March 19, 2015, Miami Field Office SFAM  notified the OOI that on a return flight from 
Barcelona, Spain, on March 8, 2015, FAM  advised him that she had been verbally and 
physically assaulted by FAM on several occasions.  According to the information provided, FAM 

lleged that, at one point, FAM orcibly took her FAMS issued firearm away from her and 
pointed it at her head at close range while threatening her.  FAM  further stated that he has hit and 
punched her on her arms and other parts of her body.  FAM  advised that she has pictures of her 
injuries which she sustained from FAM Larson???s assaults.  Additionally, FAM lleges to have 
received threatening text messages and pornographic pictures of women he has slept with, on her 
government phone, which FAM sent form his government phone.  FAM  and FAM have 
been involved in an amorous relationship for some time  --  DHS Connect website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-07612 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL DHS Employee 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 6/9/2016

On March 19, 2015, Miami Field Office SFAM  notified the OOI that on a return flight from 
Barcelona, Spain, on March 8, 2015, FAM  advised him that she had been verbally and 
physically assaulted by FAM on several occasions.  According to the information provided, FAM 

 alleged that, at one point, FAM orcibly took her FAMS issued firearm away from her and 
pointed it at her head at close range while threatening her.  FAM  further stated that he has hit and 
punched her on her arms and other parts of her body.  FAM  advised that she has pictures of her 
injuries which she sustained from FAM s assaults.  Additionally, FAM lleges to have 
received threatening text messages and pornographic pictures of women he has slept with, on her 
government phone, which FAM sent form his government phone.  FAM  and FAM have 
been involved in an amorous relationship for some time  --  DHS Connect website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-07612 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL DHS Employee 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 6/9/2016

On March 19, 2015, Miami Field Office SFAM  notified the OOI that on a return flight from 
Barcelona, Spain, on March 8, 2015, FAM  advised him that she had been verbally and 
physically assaulted by FAM on several occasions.  According to the information provided, FAM 

 alleged that, at one point, FAM orcibly took her FAMS issued firearm away from her and 
pointed it at her head at close range while threatening her.  FAM  further stated that he has hit and 
punched her on her arms and other parts of her body.  FAM  advised that she has pictures of her 
injuries which she sustained from FAM ??s assaults.  Additionally, FAM lleges to have 
received threatening text messages and pornographic pictures of women he has slept with, on her 
government phone, which FAM sent form his government phone.  FAM  and FAM have 
been involved in an amorous relationship for some time  --  DHS Connect website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-07612 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL DHS Employee 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 6/9/2016

On March 19, 2015, Miami Field Office SFAM  notified the OOI that on a return flight from 
Barcelona, Spain, on March 8, 2015, FAM  advised him that she had been verbally and 
physically assaulted by FAM on several occasions.  According to the information provided, FAM 

 alleged that, at one point, FAM orcibly took her FAMS issued firearm away from her and 
pointed it at her head at close range while threatening her.  FAM  further stated that he has hit and 
punched her on her arms and other parts of her body.  FAM  advised that she has pictures of her 
injuries which she sustained from FAM ??s assaults.  Additionally, FAM lleges to have 
received threatening text messages and pornographic pictures of women he has slept with, on her 
government phone, which FAM sent form his government phone.  FAM  and FAM have 
been involved in an amorous relationship for some time  --  DHS Connect website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-08573 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Ft. Lauderdale, FL DHS Employee 4/8/2015 4/8/2015 8/26/2016

On March 31, 2015, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), 
interviewe , Immigration Services Officer (ISO), U.S. Citizenship & Immigration Services 
(USCIS), Miami,  Florida, regarding an allegation that  Transportation Security Officer (TSO), 
U.S. Transportation & Security Administration (TSA), Hollywood, Florida, had submitted a USCIS Form I-130, 
Petition for Alien Relative, on behalf of  a citizen of Peru, who had been ordered deported 
from the U.S. on November 27, 1997, and had remained in the U.S. since that date.      tated that 

had submitted an I-130, Petition for Alien Relative, on behalf of his spouse,
advised that on March 15, 2015, she had conducted a personal interview with the couple on as part of the 
application process.  related that on November 27, 2013,  had entered into 
marriage. dvised that in January 2014  had filed the I-130 petition with CIS on behalf of 

stated that a review of ???s immigration file revealed that on November 27, 1997, a 
Final Order of Deportation had been entered agains  by the U.S. Immigration court.     dvised 
that a review of the supporting documents for the I-130 petition indicated that  was employed by 
DHS.  stated that had told her that he was currently employed as a supervisor with TSA.  

advised tha had told her that his last federal background investigation related to his 
employment with TSA, had been just prior to his marriage to elated tha  had 
acknowledged that there may be some negative implications involved with applying for an individual that 
was in removal proceedings, but had added that he had nothing to hide from the government.     
advised that she had approved the aforementioned I-130 petition, as she believed
were entered into a bona fide marriage.  stated that she had reported the matter to the duty officer 
for the Fraud Detection & National Security (FDNS), CIS, Miami, due ???s employment with TSA.  -
-----------------------    Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Miami, Florida    Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: FDNS Officer

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Other Violation

I15-TSA-MIA-08573 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Ft. Lauderdale, FL DHS Employee 4/8/2015 4/8/2015 8/26/2016

On March 31, 2015, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), 
interviewe , Immigration Services Officer (ISO), U.S. Citizenship & Immigration Services 
(USCIS), Miami,  Florida, regarding an allegation that , Transportation Security Officer (TSO), 
U.S. Transportation & Security Administration (TSA), Hollywood, Florida, had submitted a USCIS Form I-130, 
Petition for Alien Relative, on behalf of  a citizen of Peru, who had been ordered deported 
from the U.S. on November 27, 1997, and had remained in the U.S. since that date.      tated that 

had submitted an I-130, Petition for Alien Relative, on behalf of his spouse,  
advised that on March 15, 2015, she had conducted a personal interview with the couple on as part of the 
application process  related that on November 27, 2013,  had entered into 
marriage. dvised that in January 2014  had filed the I-130 petition with CIS on behalf of 

stated that a review of ???s immigration file revealed that on November 27, 1997, a 
Final Order of Deportation had been entered against  by the U.S. Immigration court.     dvised 
that a review of the supporting documents for the I-130 petition indicated that as employed by 
DHS.  stated that had told her that he was currently employed as a supervisor with TSA.  

advised tha had told her that his last federal background investigation related to his 
employment with TSA, had been just prior to his marriage to elated tha  had 
acknowledged that there may be some negative implications involved with applying for an individual that 
was in removal proceedings, but had added that he had nothing to hide from the government.     
advised that she had approved the aforementioned I-130 petition, as she believed
were entered into a bona fide marriage.  stated that she had reported the matter to the duty officer 
for the Fraud Detection & National Security (FDNS), CIS, Miami, due ???s employment with TSA.  -
-----------------------    Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Miami, Florida    Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty   Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: FDNS Officer

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1546

Fraud and Misuse of Visas, Permits, and other 
Documents

I15-TSA-MIA-12684 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; West palm Beach, FL DHS Component 6/29/2015 6/29/2015 8/11/2016

On June 26, 2015, Homeland Security ICE, Office of Professional Responsibility notified the TSA/OOI the FBI 
contacted their office regarding alleged Visa Card Kiting by West Palm Beach International Airport (PBI) TSO 

   According to the information provided, between January 23, 2014  - April 19, 2014 
TSO llegedly made 18 Visa cash advances totaling $35,977. TS  also made 35 Visa check 
payments for the same period totaling $142,695.24. Of the 35 Visa check payments made, twenty-nine checks 
totaling $118,660.77 were returned for nonsufficient funds. TSO made new Visa cash advances 
based on the check payments that were returned for nonsufficient funds. On May 13, 2014, TSO
had a bank loan of $12,098.43 and paid off the outstanding visa account balance. Due to the timing of the 
advances and payments, FINCEN has identified this activity as suspicious and possibly Visa Card Kiting.  --------
---------  DHS Connect website submitter provided an incident date range of: 1/2014 - 4/2014.    DHS Connect 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: Off Duty

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1344 Bank Fraud

I15-TSA-NYC-04415 New York, NY Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Administration (DHS); 
DHS Employee; Lewisburg, WV

DHS Employee 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 9/16/2016

On January 8, 2015,  Special Agent, SSA-OIG contact the DHS-OIG, NYFO regarding a   $20,000 
deceased payee investigation involving  Supervisory Transportation Security Officer.  ---
--  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Lake Hopatcong, NJ & Lewisburg, WV   
Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent   Public website 
complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent   Public website complainant indicated 
that the subject  had miscellaneous identifiers of: STSO

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I15-TSA-PHL-07992 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  STSO, Philadelphia, PA DHS Employee 3/27/2015 3/30/2015 6/30/2016

***PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***   STSO, TSA, 
Philadelphia, PA made false statements to the Philadelphia Police Department, and while giving testimony in 
a criminal proceeding in the Philadelphia Court of Common Pleas.  These actions occurred during the 
performance of  official duties.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Philadelphia, PA  Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public 
website complainant indicated that the subject had miscellaneous identifiers of: Supervisory TSO

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1621 Perjury

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-TSA-PHL-07992 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  STSO, Philadelphia, PA DHS Employee 3/27/2015 3/30/2015 6/30/2016

***PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSION RIBBON***   STSO, TSA, 
Philadelphia, PA made false statements to the Philadelphia Police Department, and while giving testimony in 
a criminal proceeding in the Philadelphia Court of Common Pleas.  These actions occurred during the 
performance of  official duties.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Philadelphia, PA  Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public 
website complainant indicated that the subject had miscellaneous identifiers of: Supervisory TSO

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-PHL-15363 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, TSA, Boston, MA 8/18/2015 8/25/2015 3/7/2016

I went through security for gate B18 at Logan airport on 7/17/2015 and passed through without problems at 
around ~11:30am. I accidentally exited, and had to go through a 2nd time ~noon.  The TSA officers were 
different during my 2nd visit. There was a woman in front of me with a camouflage backpack. I put my laptop 
in a bin right after hers, walked into the scanner.  The X-ray operator removed my laptop while I was getting X-
rayed in the Advanced Imaging Technology (AIT) imager.  No one stopped me after the AIT scan.    When I 
realized that my laptop was missing I started asking for help.  The X-ray operator ignored me and was 
avoiding eye contact.  A male TSA officer took my laptop and swabbed it with a wand containing a soiled filter 
paper. The filter tested positive for E14 5%.  After the 'Positive' test I got pulled aside. I told the TSA male that 
I am a fed. employee with a security clearance and that I felt that the bin was contaminated and that this was 
a false read.  He ignored me, and asked this female TSA Officer to inspect me.      My first and second AIT scan 
did not show any illegal items on my body. There was no reasonable need to inspect my genitals. This 
violation of my rights led to sexual molestation.     I wanted to leave at this point.  I was trapped.  I also had a 
flight to DC.  I did not know what to do, and the TSA officer pressured me and gave me no other options. I told 
her that I felt the bin was contaminated, she never even checked.  I was wearing a jean skirt and my legs and 
skin were fully exposed.  The TSA Officer told me that she was going to search me and that when she got to 
my genital areas that she would use the back of her hand.  She didn't even explain why she needed to check 
my genitals. This seemed odd. The TSA officer never even looked at the AIT scan, there was no justification 
whatsoever, and I couldn't do anything. She said that she could take me behind a screen to do this to me. I 
refused. She made me stand in a lunge pose and she ran her hands up my right leg, palm-side down, up to my 
underwear and touched my genitals.  This was done -beneath- my clothing. If she had actually used the back 
of her hand she would have had to have flipped her entire hand over underneath my skirt at the top of my 
thigh. This did not happen, and should be apparent in video.  Instead she put her fingers directly on my 
vaginal area when she reached my underwear.  This was sexual molestation.      I was in the back area near the 
cubicles when this happened. Normally, pat-downs occur over clothing, not under, and a wand is waved over 
the genital area. I think you should be able to see the video of her going up my skirt with her palms-down on 
my skin to substantiate my claims.  You should look to see if her hand flips over under my skirt (it did not). 
Why was her hand even under my skirt?    I was very upset after leaving the check point and after searching 
the internet I realized that what had happened was indeed wrong.  An hour later I tried to tell the TSA agent 
that something illegal had happened and that I wanted to submit a formal complaint but he became 

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I15-TSA-PHL-15363 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, TSA, Boston, MA 8/18/2015 8/25/2015 3/7/2016

I went through security for gate B18 at Logan airport on 7/17/2015 and passed through without problems at 
around ~11:30am. I accidentally exited, and had to go through a 2nd time ~noon.  The TSA officers were 
different during my 2nd visit. There was a woman in front of me with a camouflage backpack. I put my laptop 
in a bin right after hers, walked into the scanner.  The X-ray operator removed my laptop while I was getting X-
rayed in the Advanced Imaging Technology (AIT) imager.  No one stopped me after the AIT scan.    When I 
realized that my laptop was missing I started asking for help.  The X-ray operator ignored me and was 
avoiding eye contact.  A male TSA officer took my laptop and swabbed it with a wand containing a soiled filter 
paper. The filter tested positive for E14 5%.  After the 'Positive' test I got pulled aside. I told the TSA male that 
I am a fed. employee with a security clearance and that I felt that the bin was contaminated and that this was 
a false read.  He ignored me, and asked this female TSA Officer to inspect me.      My first and second AIT scan 
did not show any illegal items on my body. There was no reasonable need to inspect my genitals. This 
violation of my rights led to sexual molestation.     I wanted to leave at this point.  I was trapped.  I also had a 
flight to DC.  I did not know what to do, and the TSA officer pressured me and gave me no other options. I told 
her that I felt the bin was contaminated, she never even checked.  I was wearing a jean skirt and my legs and 
skin were fully exposed.  The TSA Officer told me that she was going to search me and that when she got to 
my genital areas that she would use the back of her hand.  She didn't even explain why she needed to check 
my genitals. This seemed odd. The TSA officer never even looked at the AIT scan, there was no justification 
whatsoever, and I couldn't do anything. She said that she could take me behind a screen to do this to me. I 
refused. She made me stand in a lunge pose and she ran her hands up my right leg, palm-side down, up to my 
underwear and touched my genitals.  This was done -beneath- my clothing. If she had actually used the back 
of her hand she would have had to have flipped her entire hand over underneath my skirt at the top of my 
thigh. This did not happen, and should be apparent in video.  Instead she put her fingers directly on my 
vaginal area when she reached my underwear.  This was sexual molestation.      I was in the back area near the 
cubicles when this happened. Normally, pat-downs occur over clothing, not under, and a wand is waved over 
the genital area. I think you should be able to see the video of her going up my skirt with her palms-down on 
my skin to substantiate my claims.  You should look to see if her hand flips over under my skirt (it did not). 
Why was her hand even under my skirt?    I was very upset after leaving the check point and after searching 
the internet I realized that what had happened was indeed wrong.  An hour later I tried to tell the TSA agent 
that something illegal had happened and that I wanted to submit a formal complaint but he became 

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-PHL-15363 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, TSA, Boston, MA 8/18/2015 8/25/2015 3/7/2016

I went through security for gate B18 at Logan airport on 7/17/2015 and passed through without problems at 
around ~11:30am. I accidentally exited, and had to go through a 2nd time ~noon.  The TSA officers were 
different during my 2nd visit. There was a woman in front of me with a camouflage backpack. I put my laptop 
in a bin right after hers, walked into the scanner.  The X-ray operator removed my laptop while I was getting X-
rayed in the Advanced Imaging Technology (AIT) imager.  No one stopped me after the AIT scan.    When I 
realized that my laptop was missing I started asking for help.  The X-ray operator ignored me and was 
avoiding eye contact.  A male TSA officer took my laptop and swabbed it with a wand containing a soiled filter 
paper. The filter tested positive for E14 5%.  After the 'Positive' test I got pulled aside. I told the TSA male that 
I am a fed. employee with a security clearance and that I felt that the bin was contaminated and that this was 
a false read.  He ignored me, and asked this female TSA Officer to inspect me.      My first and second AIT scan 
did not show any illegal items on my body. There was no reasonable need to inspect my genitals. This 
violation of my rights led to sexual molestation.     I wanted to leave at this point.  I was trapped.  I also had a 
flight to DC.  I did not know what to do, and the TSA officer pressured me and gave me no other options. I told 
her that I felt the bin was contaminated, she never even checked.  I was wearing a jean skirt and my legs and 
skin were fully exposed.  The TSA Officer told me that she was going to search me and that when she got to 
my genital areas that she would use the back of her hand.  She didn't even explain why she needed to check 
my genitals. This seemed odd. The TSA officer never even looked at the AIT scan, there was no justification 
whatsoever, and I couldn't do anything. She said that she could take me behind a screen to do this to me. I 
refused. She made me stand in a lunge pose and she ran her hands up my right leg, palm-side down, up to my 
underwear and touched my genitals.  This was done -beneath- my clothing. If she had actually used the back 
of her hand she would have had to have flipped her entire hand over underneath my skirt at the top of my 
thigh. This did not happen, and should be apparent in video.  Instead she put her fingers directly on my 
vaginal area when she reached my underwear.  This was sexual molestation.      I was in the back area near the 
cubicles when this happened. Normally, pat-downs occur over clothing, not under, and a wand is waved over 
the genital area. I think you should be able to see the video of her going up my skirt with her palms-down on 
my skin to substantiate my claims.  You should look to see if her hand flips over under my skirt (it did not). 
Why was her hand even under my skirt?    I was very upset after leaving the check point and after searching 
the internet I realized that what had happened was indeed wrong.  An hour later I tried to tell the TSA agent 
that something illegal had happened and that I wanted to submit a formal complaint but he became 

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-SFO-07583 San Francisco, CA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; San Francisco, CA

DHS Contractor 3/20/2015 3/20/2015 8/8/2016 On March 19, 2015 the TSOC notified the OOI that off-duty San Francisco (SFO) TSO was arrested 
by Colma Police on state charges of Commercial Burglary and Embezzlement

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I15-TSA-SNJ-17723 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS) BDO, TSA, San Juan, PR DHS Component 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 5/9/2016

On September 21, 2015, OOI was notified regarding a sexual harassment/assault complaint against SJU BDO 
nitiated by SJU TSO   TSO lleged that, because of time constraints, 

they would sometimes take work home to complete.  During one meeting a  residence, as she was 
trying to leave, BDO tood in front of the door blocking her exit. On another occasion, BDO
assaulted her while in her vehicle.  On numerous occasions, BDO has allegedly used profane 
language about what he wants to sexually do to TS .  --  DHS Connect website submitter provided an 
incident date range of: On-going.   DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged 
Offender was: Off Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635
Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I15-TSA-SNJ-17723 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS) BDO, TSA, San Juan, PR DHS Component 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 5/9/2016

On September 21, 2015, OOI was notified regarding a sexual harassment/assault complaint against SJU BDO 
nitiated by SJU TSO   TSO lleged that, because of time constraints, 

they would sometimes take work home to complete.  During one meeting a esidence, as she was 
trying to leave, BDO z stood in front of the door blocking her exit. On another occasion, BDO
assaulted her while in her vehicle.  On numerous occasions, BDO has allegedly used profane 
language about what he wants to sexually do to TSO .  --  DHS Connect website submitter provided an 
incident date range of: On-going.   DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged 
Offender z was: Off Duty

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2244 Abusive Sexual Contact

I15-TSA-WFO-13760 Washington, DC Transportation Security Administration (DHS) Mark Hatfield, Deputy Administrator, TSA, Arlington, VA MARK  HATFIELD JR DHS Employee 7/20/2015 7/20/2015 11/28/2016

My name is  I am a Hispanic, a Female Law Enforcement Officer, and an SES SAC at the 
Federal Air Marshal Service (F AMS) in the Miami Field Office. I am the highest ranking Hispanic female in 
TSA. I am a 25 year federal law enforcement officer with over 12 years in F AMS and 13 years as a US Postal 
Inspector. Additionally, I served three years on active duty as a United States Army Officer (JAG Corps). I am 
proud of my distinguished civilian and military service to this great country of ours.    However, just last 
month, in a clear and blatant case of abuse of authority, harassment, and misuse of DHS personnel resources 
(just to name few of the prohibited activities), I was subjected to unwarranted retaliation, character 
assassination and may even be denied a reassignment to F AMS HQ, all on by direct orders/intervention of 
the TSA Deputy Administrator.    Consequently, I am respectfully requesting your direct intervention to stop 
these unwarranted actions and a personal meeting with you and Admiral Neffenger, at your convenience, to 
further discuss this most unsavory matter.    Please note that I have not included Admiral Neffenger in this 
communication (no disrespect is meant or intended towards the Admiral.) However, in view of the fact that 
this matter involves TSA's Deputy Administrator, I do not want to direct any message directly to TSA, at this 
time.    In the attached password protected document, I have synopsized my complaint for your review and 
further discussions when we meet.    Respectfullly,    Maria del Carmen Perez  Supervisory Air Marshal in 
Charge  Miami Field Office  Off Cell @ole.tsa.dhs.gov    --    July 14, 
2015      The Honorable Jeh Johnson  Secretary of Homeland Security  Washington, DC 20528      Dear Secretary 
Johnson:    I am currently the Supervisory Air Marshal in Charge for the Miami Field Office, with oversight over 
South Florida and the Caribbean and throughout my career distinguished myself in terms of always being the 
consummate professional, with a strict adherence to the highest ethical and moral standards. All of my 
professional and personal attributes have allowed me to successfully progress in my career, with outstanding 
performance evaluations and accolades due to my professionalism. I take great pride in not only my 
professionalism, but also in my Hispanic heritage and always doing the right thing on and off the job and 
would never do anything to compromise any of these cherished ideals.    Just recently, I have been the 
subject of unwarranted retribution/retaliation orchestrated by TSA's Deputy Administrator, Mr. Mark 
Hatfield.    Specifically, after several discussions with MIA FSD Karen Hanlon, we both agreed on reassigning 

 from the Miami Airport back to the Miami Field Office, as a Supervisory Federal Air Marshal, with 
no loss in pay or grade. This routine inter-office reassignment was discussed and approved by, among others, 
managers at F AMS HQ  as well as my Regional Director  and the Division Director  This reassignment was 

4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Substantiated Referred - No Reply Other Violation

I15-TSA-WFO-13760 Washington, DC Transportation Security Administration (DHS) Mark Hatfield, Deputy Administrator, TSA, Arlington, VA MARK  HATFIELD JR DHS Employee 7/20/2015 7/20/2015 11/28/2016

My name is  am a Hispanic, a Female Law Enforcement Officer, and an SES SAC at the 
Federal Air Marshal Service (F AMS) in the Miami Field Office. I am the highest ranking Hispanic female in 
TSA. I am a 25 year federal law enforcement officer with over 12 years in F AMS and 13 years as a US Postal 
Inspector. Additionally, I served three years on active duty as a United States Army Officer (JAG Corps). I am 
proud of my distinguished civilian and military service to this great country of ours.    However, just last 
month, in a clear and blatant case of abuse of authority, harassment, and misuse of DHS personnel resources 
(just to name few of the prohibited activities), I was subjected to unwarranted retaliation, character 
assassination and may even be denied a reassignment to F AMS HQ, all on by direct orders/intervention of 
the TSA Deputy Administrator.    Consequently, I am respectfully requesting your direct intervention to stop 
these unwarranted actions and a personal meeting with you and Admiral Neffenger, at your convenience, to 
further discuss this most unsavory matter.    Please note that I have not included Admiral Neffenger in this 
communication (no disrespect is meant or intended towards the Admiral.) However, in view of the fact that 
this matter involves TSA's Deputy Administrator, I do not want to direct any message directly to TSA, at this 
time.    In the attached password protected document, I have synopsized my complaint for your review and 
further discussions when we meet.    Respectfullly,    Maria del Carmen Perez  Supervisory Air Marshal in 
Charge  Miami Field Office  Off Cel @ole.tsa.dhs.gov    --    July 14, 
2015      The Honorable Jeh Johnson  Secretary of Homeland Security  Washington, DC 20528      Dear Secretary 
Johnson:    I am currently the Supervisory Air Marshal in Charge for the Miami Field Office, with oversight over 
South Florida and the Caribbean and throughout my career distinguished myself in terms of always being the 
consummate professional, with a strict adherence to the highest ethical and moral standards. All of my 
professional and personal attributes have allowed me to successfully progress in my career, with outstanding 
performance evaluations and accolades due to my professionalism. I take great pride in not only my 
professionalism, but also in my Hispanic heritage and always doing the right thing on and off the job and 
would never do anything to compromise any of these cherished ideals.    Just recently, I have been the 
subject of unwarranted retribution/retaliation orchestrated by TSA's Deputy Administrator, Mr. Mark 
Hatfield.    Specifically, after several discussions with MIA FSD Karen Hanlon, we both agreed on reassigning 

rom the Miami Airport back to the Miami Field Office, as a Supervisory Federal Air Marshal, with 
no loss in pay or grade. This routine inter-office reassignment was discussed and approved by, among others, 
managers at F AMS HQ  as well as my Regional Director  and the Division Director  This reassignment was 

4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-TSA-WFO-13760 Washington, DC Transportation Security Administration (DHS) Mark Hatfield, Deputy Administrator, TSA, Arlington, VA MARK  HATFIELD JR DHS Employee 7/20/2015 7/20/2015 11/28/2016

My name is  I am a Hispanic, a Female Law Enforcement Officer, and an SES SAC at the 
Federal Air Marshal Service (F AMS) in the Miami Field Office. I am the highest ranking Hispanic female in 
TSA. I am a 25 year federal law enforcement officer with over 12 years in F AMS and 13 years as a US Postal 
Inspector. Additionally, I served three years on active duty as a United States Army Officer (JAG Corps). I am 
proud of my distinguished civilian and military service to this great country of ours.    However, just last 
month, in a clear and blatant case of abuse of authority, harassment, and misuse of DHS personnel resources 
(just to name few of the prohibited activities), I was subjected to unwarranted retaliation, character 
assassination and may even be denied a reassignment to F AMS HQ, all on by direct orders/intervention of 
the TSA Deputy Administrator.    Consequently, I am respectfully requesting your direct intervention to stop 
these unwarranted actions and a personal meeting with you and Admiral Neffenger, at your convenience, to 
further discuss this most unsavory matter.    Please note that I have not included Admiral Neffenger in this 
communication (no disrespect is meant or intended towards the Admiral.) However, in view of the fact that 
this matter involves TSA's Deputy Administrator, I do not want to direct any message directly to TSA, at this 
time.    In the attached password protected document, I have synopsized my complaint for your review and 
further discussions when we meet.    Respectfullly,    Maria del Carmen Perez  Supervisory Air Marshal in 
Charge  Miami Field Office  Off Cell @ole.tsa.dhs.gov    --    July 14, 
2015      The Honorable Jeh Johnson  Secretary of Homeland Security  Washington, DC 20528      Dear Secretary 
Johnson:    I am currently the Supervisory Air Marshal in Charge for the Miami Field Office, with oversight over 
South Florida and the Caribbean and throughout my career distinguished myself in terms of always being the 
consummate professional, with a strict adherence to the highest ethical and moral standards. All of my 
professional and personal attributes have allowed me to successfully progress in my career, with outstanding 
performance evaluations and accolades due to my professionalism. I take great pride in not only my 
professionalism, but also in my Hispanic heritage and always doing the right thing on and off the job and 
would never do anything to compromise any of these cherished ideals.    Just recently, I have been the 
subject of unwarranted retribution/retaliation orchestrated by TSA's Deputy Administrator, Mr. Mark 
Hatfield.    Specifically, after several discussions with MIA FSD Karen Hanlon, we both agreed on reassigning 

, from the Miami Airport back to the Miami Field Office, as a Supervisory Federal Air Marshal, with 
no loss in pay or grade. This routine inter-office reassignment was discussed and approved by, among others, 
managers at F AMS HQ  as well as my Regional Director  and the Division Director  This reassignment was 

4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Other Violation

I15-USCG-CHI-05725 Chicago, IL U.S. Coast Guard (DHS)  USCG, DHS Employee, Chicago, IL DHS Component 2/10/2015 2/10/2015 2/18/2016

******FIELD GENERATED ALLEGATION    On February 5, 2015  Resident Agent in Charge, US 
Coast Guard (USCG), Coast Guard Investigative Services (CGIS) contacte  Special Agent in 
Charge, DHS OIG, regarding a military justice investigation concerning  USCG Information 
Technician System Third class.  While on active duty allegedly sexually assaulted two females and 
hacked one of his victim???s FACEBOOK account. lso provided false information concerning travel 
expenses causing payments.  This will be a joint investigation with DHS OIG and USCG CGIS  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Chicago land area  Public website submitter indicated that 
the duty status of subject was: On Duty  Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: 
RAC CGIS  Public website complainant indicated that the subject Hopp had miscellaneous identifiers of: USCG 
on active duty

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-USCG-SFO-12433 San Francisco, CA U.S. Coast Guard (DHS)  AMT3, Alameda, CA DHS Employee 6/24/2015 6/25/2015 8/23/2016

Subject assaulted  his girlfriend, while at the Venitian Hotel, Las Vegas, NV.  Coast Guard 
Investigative Service (CGIS) requests DHS OIG support on subpoenaing hotel records and security surveillance 
video as part of the prosecution under the UCMJ, Article 128, Assault.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: This complaint is submitted as a field originated complaint.  Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: Special Agent  Public website complainant indicated that the subjec ad 
miscellaneous identifiers of: Aviation Maintenance Technician 3

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-USCG-SFO-12433 San Francisco, CA U.S. Coast Guard (DHS)  AMT3, Alameda, CA DHS Employee 6/24/2015 6/25/2015 8/23/2016

Subject assaulted  his girlfriend, while at the Venitian Hotel, Las Vegas, NV.  Coast Guard 
Investigative Service (CGIS) requests DHS OIG support on subpoenaing hotel records and security surveillance 
video as part of the prosecution under the UCMJ, Article 128, Assault.  --  Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: This complaint is submitted as a field originated complaint.  Public website 
submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty  Public website complainant indicated that 
their Employment Title is: Special Agent  Public website complainant indicated that the subjec  had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: Aviation Maintenance Technician 3

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-USCG-WFO-05926 Washington, DC U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) ; CDR; USCG; Ft. Eustis, VA DHS Employee 2/13/2015 3/4/2015 11/10/2016

I am writing you because I am not sure what to do. I am currently stationed at CG Sector Corpus Christi but I 
just got here in August from CG Port Security Unit 305. While at Port Security Unit 305 I felt like it was a 
constant Hostile Work Environment. I was one of the six active duty personnel assigned to the unit starting in 
the summer of 2011-2014. From the start, getting there, and getting to know the way a predominantly reserve 
unit worked I noticed a lot of things I saw were against policy. As time went on people changed and the 
command changed and things got worse. It all came to a head for me when I was taken to mast for an admin 
mistake I made. Even though I was pretty much cleared by the accusing party the CO had her mind made up 
what she was going to do and did.          At this point I am not as worried about myself as much as I am for the 
other people affected and the remaining crew. In the many conversations and relationships with other PSU's 
it seems as though PSU 305 isn't the only one running wild. It is my belief that the whole PSU community 
needs to be investigated but all I can talk about is PSU 305. I am unsure how to start or pursue this and any 
help would be appreciated.

4.3.16 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Prohibited Personnel 
Practices

Prohibited personnel 
actions

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 10 USC 1034 Protected communications; prohibition of 
retaliatory personnel actions

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al.
Other Fed 
Agency 
Employee

1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al.
Other Fed 
Agency 
Employee

1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1951 Racketeering:  Interference with Commerce by 
Threats or Violence

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al.
Other Fed 
Agency 
Employee

1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1956 Racketeering: Laundering of Monetary 
Instruments

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1957 Engaging in Monetary Transactions in Property 
Derived from Specified Unlawful Activity

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1957 Engaging in Monetary Transactions in Property 
Derived from Specified Unlawful Activity

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender as: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1957 Engaging in Monetary Transactions in Property 
Derived from Specified Unlawful Activity

I15-USSS-BLX-04137 Biloxi, MS U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SA, USSS, Baltimore, MD et. al. DHS Employee 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 10/4/2016

***** This is a field generated investigation *****  The Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Washington Field Office (WFO) is conducting an investigation of a former Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Special Agent and illegal activity associated with their assignment to the Silk Road Task 
Force.  Silk Road is a website dedicated to the online sale and distribution of contraband, to include drugs and 
firearms.  The payment method excepted for Silk Road transactions is Bitcoin.  Bitcoin is a decentralized, 
open source, peer-to-peer virtual currency, with a value that fluctuates.  The DEA was issued under cover 
(UC) funds to convert to Bitcoins and use during undercover activities.  When the DEA Agent liquidated their 
Bitcoins, the value of the Bitcoin was substantially higher than when the UC funds were initially converted to 
Bitcoins.  The DEA Agent only returned the original dollar amount of the issued UC funds and deposited the 
difference in the Bitcoin value in a personal bank account.  Through this investigation DOJ-OIG-WFO, 
identified other Silk Road Task Force members potentially involved in the embezzlement conspiracy, to 
include Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Homeland Security Investigations Special Agent

 Baltimore, MD and U.S. Secret Service Special Agent  Baltimore, MD.  --  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: On Duty  DHS 
Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.3 Employee Corruption Embezzlement - Theft Embezzlement - Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-USSS-BUF-01037 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  U.S. Secret Service (DHS); DHS Employee; Albany, NY DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 6/17/2016

To Whom It May Concern,    I am writing this letter regarding RAI and his wife, S
 RAIC  is   the Resident Agent in Charge of the U.S. Secret Service, Albany, NY Resident Office. SA 

Constance  is also a Special Agent in the U.S. Secret Service. I have come to know that RAI has 
abused his position as the Resident Agent in Charge. SA has also taken advantage of the fact 
that her husband is a supervisor in the U.S. Secret Service.    SA has worked in the Buffalo 
District for approximately 8 years. She transferred from the New York Field Office after the Plattsburgh 
Domicile was re-opened, for her. The Plattsburgh   Domicile was placed under the Syracuse Resident Office 
because she could not work under her husband   in Albany. SA  refused to report to 
Plattsburgh and did so on only a few occasions. As   a result of her not going to Plattsburgh, the office space in 
Plattsburgh was closed but the Plattsburgh Domicile has continued to exist in name only. SA
continues to put out official reports coming from the Plattsburgh Domicile. Most importantly she reports 
daily to the Albany, NY Resident Office.    SA  has not done much of anything for 8 years. For 8 
years she has had only one case   that she reports on. She does not have to be on call for duty like other 
agents in the district. She does not appear to travel as often as other agents in the district. SA

 comes and goes as she pleases while other agents are closely monitored. She often sits in the 
computer lab at the Albany, NY Resident Office and watches television. Her husband, RAIC
also provides input on what her assignments will be within the district, even when he does not supervise 
her.    SA  has been reckless in her use of government owned vehicles. She has had at least   3 
vehicles which were either damaged or destroyed. One vehicle was destroyed when she rolled it   over on a 
highway. Another vehicle had the front end damaged when she struck another government   owned vehicle, 
which was being driven by RAIC . This accident was not reported   initially and if any paperwork 
was ever completed it is because it was needed for an office inspection.     SA and RAIC 

 appeared to attempt to conceal the accident by trying   to use a government credit card to pay 
for the damage and pay the rest from their own funds. SA ould actually carpool with her 
husband on most days but they usually do not, wasting   government funds.    RAIC  has also 
engaged in other unethical behavior. RAI  had his weapon   and other government property 
stolen from his government owned vehicle. RAIC  claimed   that he was working a case with a 
female investigator from a local business. RAIC  has   never disclosed the details of this 
???case ??? Additionally  it is believed that RAIC had not properly secured his weapon with his 

4.3.15 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Nepotism Nepotism Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-USSS-BUF-01037 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  U.S. Secret Service (DHS); DHS Employee; Albany, NY DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 6/17/2016

To Whom It May Concern,    I am writing this letter regarding RAI and his wife, S
 RAIC  is   the Resident Agent in Charge of the U.S. Secret Service, Albany, NY Resident Office. SA 

 is also a Special Agent in the U.S. Secret Service. I have come to know that RAI has 
abused his position as the Resident Agent in Charge. SA has also taken advantage of the fact 
that her husband is a supervisor in the U.S. Secret Service.    SA has worked in the Buffalo 
District for approximately 8 years. She transferred from the New York Field Office after the Plattsburgh 
Domicile was re-opened, for her. The Plattsburgh   Domicile was placed under the Syracuse Resident Office 
because she could not work under her husband   in Albany. SA  refused to report to 
Plattsburgh and did so on only a few occasions. As   a result of her not going to Plattsburgh, the office space in 
Plattsburgh was closed but the Plattsburgh Domicile has continued to exist in name only. SA
continues to put out official reports coming from the Plattsburgh Domicile. Most importantly she reports 
daily to the Albany, NY Resident Office.    SA  has not done much of anything for 8 years. For 8 
years she has had only one case   that she reports on. She does not have to be on call for duty like other 
agents in the district. She does not appear to travel as often as other agents in the district. SA

 comes and goes as she pleases while other agents are closely monitored. She often sits in the 
computer lab at the Albany, NY Resident Office and watches television. Her husband, RAIC
also provides input on what her assignments will be within the district, even when he does not supervise 
her.    SA  has been reckless in her use of government owned vehicles. She has had at least   3 
vehicles which were either damaged or destroyed. One vehicle was destroyed when she rolled it   over on a 
highway. Another vehicle had the front end damaged when she struck another government   owned vehicle, 
which was being driven by RAIC . This accident was not reported   initially and if any paperwork 
was ever completed it is because it was needed for an office inspection.     SA and RAIC 

 appeared to attempt to conceal the accident by trying   to use a government credit card to pay 
for the damage and pay the rest from their own funds. SA ould actually carpool with her 
husband on most days but they usually do not, wasting   government funds.    RAIC  has also 
engaged in other unethical behavior. RAI  had his weapon   and other government property 
stolen from his government owned vehicle. RAIC  claimed   that he was working a case with a 
female investigator from a local business. RAIC  has   never disclosed the details of this 
???case ??? Additionally  it is believed that RAIC had not properly secured his weapon with his 

4.3.15 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Nepotism Nepotism Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1505
Obstruction of Proceedings Before Departments, 
Agencies and Committees

I15-USSS-BUF-01086 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS) ; USSS; Albany,  NY DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 7/20/2016

I am writing this letter regarding RAIC nd his wife, SA . RAIC s   the 
Resident Agent in Charge of the U.S. Secret Service, Albany, NY Resident Office. SA s also a 
Special Agent in the U.S. Secret Service. I have come to know that RAI has abused his position as the 
Resident Agent in Charge. SA  has also taken advantage of the fact that her husband is a 
supervisor in the U.S. Secret Service.    SA  has worked in the Buffalo District for 
approximately 8 years. She transferred from the New York Field Office after the Plattsburgh Domicile was re-
opened, for her. The Plattsburgh   Domicile was placed under the Syracuse Resident Office because she could 
not work under her husband   in Albany. SA efused to report to Plattsburgh and did so on 
only a few occasions. As   a result of her not going to Plattsburgh, the office space in Plattsburgh was closed 
but the Plattsburgh Domicile has continued to exist in name only. SA  continues to put out 
official reports coming from the Plattsburgh Domicile. Most importantly she reports daily to the Albany, NY 
Resident Office.    SA  has not done much of anything for 8 years. For 8 years she has had only 
one case   that she reports on. She does not have to be on call for duty like other agents in the district. She 
does not appear to travel as often as other agents in the district. SA  comes and goes as she 
pleases while other agents are closely monitored. She often sits in the computer lab at the Albany, NY 
Resident Office and watches television. Her husband, RAIC  also provides input on what her 
assignments will be within the district, even when he does not supervise her.    SA  has been 
reckless in her use of government owned vehicles. She has had at least   3 vehicles which were either 
damaged or destroyed. One vehicle was destroyed when she rolled it   over on a highway. Another vehicle 
had the front end damaged when she struck another government   owned vehicle, which was being driven by 
RAIC  This accident was not reported   initially and if any paperwork was ever completed it is 
because it was needed for an office inspection.     SA  and RAIC  appeared to 
attempt to conceal the accident by trying   to use a government credit card to pay for the damage and pay the 
rest from their own funds. SA    could actually carpool with her husband on most days but 
they usually do not, wasting   government funds.    RAIC has also engaged in other unethical 
behavior. RAIC had his weapon   and other government property stolen from his government 
owned vehicle. RAIC  claimed   that he was working a case with a female investigator from a 
local business. RAIC  has   never disclosed the details of this ???case.??? Additionally, it is 
believed that RAIC had not properly secured his weapon with his issued gun lock according to 

4.3.15 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Nepotism Nepotism Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I15-USSS-BUF-01086 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS) ; USSS; Albany,  NY DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 7/20/2016

I am writing this letter regarding RAIC nd his wife, SA . RAIC s   the 
Resident Agent in Charge of the U.S. Secret Service, Albany, NY Resident Office. SA s also a 
Special Agent in the U.S. Secret Service. I have come to know that RAI has abused his position as the 
Resident Agent in Charge. SA  has also taken advantage of the fact that her husband is a 
supervisor in the U.S. Secret Service.    SA  has worked in the Buffalo District for 
approximately 8 years. She transferred from the New York Field Office after the Plattsburgh Domicile was re-
opened, for her. The Plattsburgh   Domicile was placed under the Syracuse Resident Office because she could 
not work under her husband   in Albany. SA efused to report to Plattsburgh and did so on 
only a few occasions. As   a result of her not going to Plattsburgh, the office space in Plattsburgh was closed 
but the Plattsburgh Domicile has continued to exist in name only. SA  continues to put out 
official reports coming from the Plattsburgh Domicile. Most importantly she reports daily to the Albany, NY 
Resident Office.    SA  has not done much of anything for 8 years. For 8 years she has had only 
one case   that she reports on. She does not have to be on call for duty like other agents in the district. She 
does not appear to travel as often as other agents in the district. SA  comes and goes as she 
pleases while other agents are closely monitored. She often sits in the computer lab at the Albany, NY 
Resident Office and watches television. Her husband, RAIC also provides input on what her 
assignments will be within the district, even when he does not supervise her.    SA  has been 
reckless in her use of government owned vehicles. She has had at least   3 vehicles which were either 
damaged or destroyed. One vehicle was destroyed when she rolled it   over on a highway. Another vehicle 
had the front end damaged when she struck another government   owned vehicle, which was being driven by 
RAIC  This accident was not reported   initially and if any paperwork was ever completed it is 
because it was needed for an office inspection.     SA  and RAIC  appeared to 
attempt to conceal the accident by trying   to use a government credit card to pay for the damage and pay the 
rest from their own funds. SA   could actually carpool with her husband on most days but 
they usually do not, wasting   government funds.    RAIC has also engaged in other unethical 
behavior. RAIC had his weapon   and other government property stolen from his government 
owned vehicle. RAIC  claimed   that he was working a case with a female investigator from a 
local business. RAIC  has   never disclosed the details of this ???case.??? Additionally, it is 
believed that RAIC had not properly secured his weapon with his issued gun lock according to 

4.3.15 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Nepotism Nepotism Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I15-USSS-BUF-01086 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS) ; USSS; Albany,  NY DHS Employee 10/22/2014 10/22/2014 7/20/2016

I am writing this letter regarding RAIC nd his wife, SA . RAIC s   the 
Resident Agent in Charge of the U.S. Secret Service, Albany, NY Resident Office. SA s also a 
Special Agent in the U.S. Secret Service. I have come to know that RAI has abused his position as the 
Resident Agent in Charge. SA  has also taken advantage of the fact that her husband is a 
supervisor in the U.S. Secret Service.    SA  has worked in the Buffalo District for 
approximately 8 years. She transferred from the New York Field Office after the Plattsburgh Domicile was re-
opened, for her. The Plattsburgh   Domicile was placed under the Syracuse Resident Office because she could 
not work under her husband   in Albany. SA efused to report to Plattsburgh and did so on 
only a few occasions. As   a result of her not going to Plattsburgh, the office space in Plattsburgh was closed 
but the Plattsburgh Domicile has continued to exist in name only. SA  continues to put out 
official reports coming from the Plattsburgh Domicile. Most importantly she reports daily to the Albany, NY 
Resident Office.    SA  has not done much of anything for 8 years. For 8 years she has had only 
one case   that she reports on. She does not have to be on call for duty like other agents in the district. She 
does not appear to travel as often as other agents in the district. SA  comes and goes as she 
pleases while other agents are closely monitored. She often sits in the computer lab at the Albany, NY 
Resident Office and watches television. Her husband, RAIC , also provides input on what her 
assignments will be within the district, even when he does not supervise her.    SA  has been 
reckless in her use of government owned vehicles. She has had at least   3 vehicles which were either 
damaged or destroyed. One vehicle was destroyed when she rolled it   over on a highway. Another vehicle 
had the front end damaged when she struck another government   owned vehicle, which was being driven by 
RAIC  This accident was not reported   initially and if any paperwork was ever completed it is 
because it was needed for an office inspection.     SA  and RAIC  appeared to 
attempt to conceal the accident by trying   to use a government credit card to pay for the damage and pay the 
rest from their own funds. SA   could actually carpool with her husband on most days but 
they usually do not, wasting   government funds.    RAIC has also engaged in other unethical 
behavior. RAIC had his weapon   and other government property stolen from his government 
owned vehicle. RAIC  claimed   that he was working a case with a female investigator from a 
local business. RAIC  has   never disclosed the details of this ???case.??? Additionally, it is 
believed that RAIC had not properly secured his weapon with his issued gun lock according to 

4.3.15 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Nepotism Nepotism Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371
Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I15-USSS-DAL-13566 Dallas, TX U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS; Dallas, TX DHS Employee 7/16/2015 7/16/2015 3/11/2016

On July 17, 2015, at approximately 10:50 am, Assistant Inspector provided DHS OIG a briefing, via 
telephone, of alleged misconduct by USSS SA  Dallas Field Office.    The misconduct was 
reported to agents of this service by  who resides in Wichita Falls, TX.  Ms
alleged that she performed consensual oral sex on an agent, later determined to be SA  but 
further stated that she felt she had no choice in the matter due to his status as a USSS SA.  Ms. 
came into contact with SA fter she reported alleged threats to President Obama made by an 
individual she met via CraigsList.    Following the briefing, the Inspection Division provided pertinent 
paperwork to DHS OIG SA     This case has been referred to DHS OIG, and initial 
interviews will include Assistant Inspector due to the protective intelligence facet of this 
investigation.    Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have further questions or if I can be of further 
assistance.    

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I15-USSS-SID-08495 Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Secret Service (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 4/7/2015 4/7/2015 2/16/2016 *SID CASE* 4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Information Only Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-USSS-SID-08495 Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Secret Service (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 4/7/2015 4/7/2015 2/16/2016 *SID CASE* 4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I15-USSS-SID-08495 Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Secret Service (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 4/7/2015 4/7/2015 2/16/2016 *SID CASE* 4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I15-USSS-SID-10127 Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Secret Service (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 5/8/2015 11/24/2015 10/14/2016 *SID CASE* 4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I15-USSS-WFO-07664 Washington, DC U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SFS **GS-15**, Washington, DC DHS Employee 3/20/2015 3/24/2015 12/12/2016

On March 19, 2015, Special Agent in Charge (SAIC) Michael Lashlee, FSD, advised the Office of Professional 
Responsibility of an incident involving SFS Leben (GS-15).  SAIC Lashlee provided the following information:    
• On February 17, 2015, the United States Attorney’s Office, Southern District of New York, requested FSD 
conduct forensic testing of a document.  This document is a critical piece of evidence in a significant criminal 
case being prosecuted by the USAO.     • Forensic Document Examiner (FDE) (GS-14) 
subsequently conducted the requested forensic exams on the subject document.     • FDE then 
submitted his report for review by SF   SFS and FD  then exchanged several draft 
reports.     • On March 18, 2015, SF  received the final report by FDE  with his signature.  SFS 

reviewed this report and realized that it was not what she and FDE  agreed to.  SFS Leben then 
amended the report and attached the signature page containing FDE  signature.  She then e-mailed 
this report, with an addendum,  to the USAO and copied FDE n her e-mail (a review of FD
report revealed that on Page 3, under Remarks, items #6 and #8 were changed, regarding dynamic ink dating 
procedures and improvements in laboratory capabilities.  In her addendum, SFS xplained that 
“document analysis was conducted using available and validated techniques and methods.” - See Attached).     
• On March 19, 2015, FD  reviewed SFS -mail with his report and realized it was not the 
same report that he submitted to SFS   FD hen e-mailed the USAO and advised that the 
report sent by SFS  was not his final report, that several pertinent “remarks” were removed.   He also 
advised that he would inquire internally why his report was changed without his knowledge.     • Continuing 
on March 19, 2015, SAIC Lashlee contacted the USAO office and submitted FD  report.     On March 20, 
2015, the Inspection Division presented this information to the Intake group.  SAIC Lashlee advised that the 
results/conclusion of the forensic report was not changed by SFS   The Intake group determined that an 
investigation should be conducted.      USSS - Inspection Division  202-40

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I15-USSS-WFO-07664 Washington, DC U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  SFS **GS-15**, Washington, DC DHS Employee 3/20/2015 3/24/2015 12/12/2016

On March 19, 2015, Special Agent in Charge (SAIC) Michael Lashlee, FSD, advised the Office of Professional 
Responsibility of an incident involving SF GS-15).  SAIC Lashlee provided the following information:    
• On February 17, 2015, the United States Attorney’s Office, Southern District of New York, requested FSD 
conduct forensic testing of a document.  This document is a critical piece of evidence in a significant criminal 
case being prosecuted by the USAO.     • Forensic Document Examiner (FDE) (GS-14) 
subsequently conducted the requested forensic exams on the subject document.     • FDE then 
submitted his report for review by SF   SFS and FD  then exchanged several draft 
reports.     • On March 18, 2015, SF  received the final report by FDE  with his signature.  SFS 

reviewed this report and realized that it was not what she and FDE  agreed to.  SFS then 
amended the report and attached the signature page containing FDE  signature.  She then e-mailed 
this report, with an addendum,  to the USAO and copied FDE n her e-mail (a review of FDE
report revealed that on Page 3, under Remarks, items #6 and #8 were changed, regarding dynamic ink dating 
procedures and improvements in laboratory capabilities.  In her addendum, SFS xplained that 
“document analysis was conducted using available and validated techniques and methods.” - See Attached).     
• On March 19, 2015, FD  reviewed SFS -mail with his report and realized it was not the 
same report that he submitted to SFS   FDE hen e-mailed the USAO and advised that the 
report sent by SFS  was not his final report, that several pertinent “remarks” were removed.   He also 
advised that he would inquire internally why his report was changed without his knowledge.     • Continuing 
on March 19, 2015, SAIC Lashlee contacted the USAO office and submitted FDE  report.     On March 20, 
2015, the Inspection Division presented this information to the Intake group.  SAIC Lashlee advised that the 
results/conclusion of the forensic report was not changed by SFS   The Intake group determined that an 
investigation should be conducted.       USSS - Inspection Division  202-406

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ALP-05204 Alpine, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/11/2016 1/13/2016 3/8/2016

On January 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the  JIC duty agent, 
San Diego, CA, regarding an allegation made by  an illegal  alien alleged 
that his nephew was a U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Border Patrol Agent (BPA) and that his 
nephew would pick him up at the international border and  drive him north into the U.S. was 
apprehended by BPAs near Alpine  TX

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I16-BP-ALP-06953 Alpine, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SBPA, CBP, MARFA, TX 2/17/2016 2/17/2016 4/5/2016

On February 11, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA) ,  Marfa, TX, regarding an 
allegation made b , an illegal alien.  claimed that he had a 
broken leg and that the agent who arrested him and brought  him to the jail took away his crutches and told 
him not to say anything about his injury because it  would slow down the process. According to the 
information provided is scheduled  for x-rays and has scars on his hip and down his leg from a 
surgery. broke his leg  prior to being apprehended. The agent involved was identified as 
Supervisory Border Patrol  Agent (SBPA)  Marfa, TX.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-ALP-12621 Alpine, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA, CBP, Sierra Blanca, TX DHS Employee 5/26/2016 5/31/2016 10/27/2016

Border Patrol Agent (BPA  encountered a vehicle at the CBP- Sierra Blanca,  Border Patrol 
Checkpoint I-10, located near Sierra Blanca, TX which triggered an ATS alert on the  Registered Owner. BPA 

hanged the existing license plate associated with the ATS  alert by manually replacing the 
vehicle's correct plate information with incorrect plate information

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-ALP-17820 Alpine, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, Alpine, TX LNU  FNU DHS Employee 8/25/2016 8/25/2016 11/25/2016

On August 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  Marfa, TX, who reported 
a possible good guy bribe attempt involving a suspected  narcotics trafficker. While assisting U.S. Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland  Security Investigations (HSI) Special Agents (SAs), SBPA
reportedly exchanged text  messages with a suspected trafficker who offered to make SBPA  a rich 
man.

1.9 Employee Corruption Bribery - Good Guy Bribery - Good Guy Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-BUF-03057 Buffalo, NY U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  CBP, Champlain, NY DHS Employee 12/2/2015 12/3/2015 3/10/2016

(2) TWO CHAMPLAIN NEW YORK BORDER PATROL AGENTS  WERE DIRECTED 
TO DEPLOY BORDER PATROL OWNED "BUCKEYE" CAMERAS AT A HARLEY DAVIDSON MOTORCYCLE DEALERSHIP 
IN PLATTSBURGH, NY.  THIS SHOP IS (25) TWENTY FIVE MILES SOUTH OF THE BORDER WHERE THESE "BUCKEYE" 
CAMERAS ARE USUALLY DEPLOYED FOR THE PURPOSE OF DETECTING SMUGGLERS OF CONTRABAND, 
NARCOTICS AND HUMANS ILLEGALLY ENTERING THE UNITED STATES.  A TOTAL OF (5) CAMERAS WERE 
DEPLOYED. TO DEPLOY (5) FIVE BUCKEYE CAMERAS, THE TWO AGENTS WERE REASSIGNED FROM PATROLLING 
THEIR ASSIGNED AREAS FOR OVER (4) FOUR HOURS, LEAVING GAPS IN THE ASSIGNED AND REPORTED 
COVERAGE OF THOSE CRITICAL AREAS OF BORDER. IT IS BELIEVED THAT THESE CAMERAS WERE DEPLOYED AS A 
FAVOR TO RETIRED BORDER PATROL (A)CHIEF PETER DUNBAR WHO IS CURRENTLY EMPLOYED AT SAID HARLEY 
DAVIDSON DEALERSHIP DUE TO INCREASED THEFTS AT THE DEALERSHIP.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205

Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I16-BP-BUF-03057 Buffalo, NY U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  CBP, Champlain, NY DHS Employee 12/2/2015 12/3/2015 3/10/2016

(2) TWO CHAMPLAIN NEW YORK BORDER PATROL AGENTS  WERE DIRECTED 
TO DEPLOY BORDER PATROL OWNED "BUCKEYE" CAMERAS AT A HARLEY DAVIDSON MOTORCYCLE DEALERSHIP 
IN PLATTSBURGH, NY.  THIS SHOP IS (25) TWENTY FIVE MILES SOUTH OF THE BORDER WHERE THESE "BUCKEYE" 
CAMERAS ARE USUALLY DEPLOYED FOR THE PURPOSE OF DETECTING SMUGGLERS OF CONTRABAND, 
NARCOTICS AND HUMANS ILLEGALLY ENTERING THE UNITED STATES.  A TOTAL OF (5) CAMERAS WERE 
DEPLOYED. TO DEPLOY (5) FIVE BUCKEYE CAMERAS, THE TWO AGENTS WERE REASSIGNED FROM PATROLLING 
THEIR ASSIGNED AREAS FOR OVER (4) FOUR HOURS, LEAVING GAPS IN THE ASSIGNED AND REPORTED 
COVERAGE OF THOSE CRITICAL AREAS OF BORDER. IT IS BELIEVED THAT THESE CAMERAS WERE DEPLOYED AS A 
FAVOR TO RETIRED BORDER PATROL (A)CHIEF PETER DUNBAR WHO IS CURRENTLY EMPLOYED AT SAID HARLEY 
DAVIDSON DEALERSHIP DUE TO INCREASED THEFTS AT THE DEALERSHIP.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205

Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I16-BP-DAL-10196 Dallas, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  ; U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee; Texas DHS Employee 4/7/2016 4/14/2016 6/28/2016

On April 6, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG) was advised 
by , Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA), Northern District of Texas, that  
Defense Attorney, has a client who is being currently held at Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP)FCI 
Carswell,Fort Worth, Texas.  The client allegedly has information on a potential Corrupt Border Patrol Agent 
(BPA).    On April 6, 2016, DHS-OIG contacted  who stated that his client  Register 
Number: 82050-054, with a Life Sentence) received information from  (Register Number: 72091
180, with a release date of April 12, 2021) concerning the alleged corrupt BPA.     ndicated to 

that while she smuggled Oxycontin and Marijuana for  Miami, Florida, she met a 
 San Antonio, Texas, who has a brother-in-law that works for Border Patrol or is a Customs Agent.    

advised hat the agent’s name was  cellular telephone number
t is alleged that  is working for the Zetas cartel and paid $250,000 in cash for a house.    4/6/16 

- DHS OIG was unable to locate a n the National Finance Center employee search or 
Outlook.    4/7/16 - DHS OIG queried the above number in the Consolidated Lead Evaluation and Reporting 
(CLEAR) system that indicated the number belonged to a  Natalia, Texas.     See Attached 
Summary for more details.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-DET-18683 Detroit, MI U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SUPERVISORY BORDER PATROL 
AGENT/Unknown/ROMULUS, WAYNE,  MI

Alien (Not 
Detainee)

9/8/2016 9/9/2016 12/29/2016

On September 2, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Detroit Field 
Operations management, notified CBP Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR)  SAC/Detroit, via outlook 
email that Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)   Sault Sainte Marie (SSM) Station, 
advised his German girlfriend to lie to CBP Officers about her  stay in the U.S. and identified himself as a SBPA 
while attempting to interfere with her refusal.  Detroit Field Office management provided documents 
regarding the allegations described in the  outlook email notification

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1325(a) Improper Entry by Alien

I16-BP-DET-18683 Detroit, MI U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SUPERVISORY BORDER PATROL 
AGENT/Unknown/ROMULUS, WAYNE,  MI

DHS Employee 9/8/2016 9/9/2016 12/29/2016

On September 2, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Detroit Field 
Operations management, notified CBP Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR)  SAC/Detroit, via outlook 
email that Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)   Sault Sainte Marie (SSM) Station, 
advised his German girlfriend to lie to CBP Officers about her  stay in the U.S. and identified himself as a SBPA 
while attempting to interfere with her refusal.  Detroit Field Office management provided documents 
regarding the allegations described in the  outlook email notification.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I16-BP-DRT-03010 Del Rio, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BORDER PATROL AGENT/0801 Conflict of Interest-

Association with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/BRACKETTVILLE, 
KINNEY, TX

DHS Employee 12/1/2015 12/1/2015 2/7/2016

On November 30, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Del Rio, TX, regarding 
alleged suspicious telephonic activity involving Border Patrol  Agent (BPA)  Del Rio, TX. BPA
has reportedly been in frequent telephonic  contact with  who is suspected of being 
involved in alien smuggling

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-DRT-03467 Del Rio, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
/BORDER PATROL AGENT/0801 Conflict of Interest-

Association with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/CARRIZO SPRINGS, 
DIMMIT, TX

DHS Employee 12/10/2015 12/11/2015 8/17/2016

On December 8, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  memorandum 
from Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent  (SBPA) , Del Rio, 
TX. According to SBPA  during analysis of a  cooperating defendant in an alien smuggling 
investigation's cell phone, the number was found in the phone's history. A LexisNexis search 
on the number returned results  that the phone is possibly a wireless phone associated with SBPA s 
wife, BPA  Carrizo Springs, TX.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-BP-DRT-03467 Del Rio, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
/BORDER PATROL AGENT/0801 Conflict of Interest-

Association with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/CARRIZO SPRINGS, 
DIMMIT, TX

DHS Employee 12/10/2015 12/11/2015 8/17/2016

On December 8, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  memorandum 
from Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent  (SBPA) , Del Rio, 
TX. According to SBPA  during analysis of a  cooperating defendant in an alien smuggling 
investigation's cell phone, the number was found in the phone's history. A LexisNexis search 
on the number returned results  that the phone is possibly a wireless phone associated with SBPA s 
wife, BPA  Carrizo Springs, TX.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-BP-DRT-08352 Del Rio, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee; Uvalde, TX DHS Employee 3/10/2016 3/11/2016 8/17/2016

The DHS OIG, Del Rio Sub Office recieved the following email from HSI ICE regarding suspicous banking 
actiivty on behalf of  BPA, USBP, Uvalde, Texas.      RE: Alleged Customs and Border Protection 
Employee      Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Eagle Pass, Texas, has received 
information that an alleged CBP Employee,  Date of Birth 11/22/1983, Texas Driver’s License 
Number 18881177, has opened three checking accounts and made multiple suspicious transactions at several 
banks to include International Bank of Commerce (IBC) and Security Service FCU in the Uvalde and Eagle Pass 
areas in excess of $245,000 since January 2016. As a result, multiple Bank Suspicious Activity Reports (SARS) 
have been filed against  Additional information has revealed numerous others SARs have been 
filed agains dating back to December 2007.     Thank you,  Supervisory Special 
Agent  Homeland Security Investigations  Eagle Pass, Texas Cell    Box 3 and assign to

, Special Agent, DHS OIG, Del Rio Sub Office, Del Rio, Texas.    DHS Connect 03/10/16 STD DHS Connect 
website submitter provided an incident date range of: Uvalde, Texas deposited $ 245,500.00.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-BP-DRT-16786 Del Rio, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/USBP/DEL RIO, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/8/2016 8/11/2016 9/26/2016

On August 2, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Mission Support Specialist (SMSS) , Del Rio, TX, who 
reported that he believed two of his female subordinate employees,  Mission Support Specialist (MSS)

and Staff Assistant ,  have been subjected to retaliation and a hostile 
work environment by other personnel in their  office.    Based on interviews, the Department of Homeland 
Security, Office of Inspector General, preliminary investigation determined that the allegation was 
unsubstantiated.  The findings further concluded the complaint did not meet the criteria for a hostile work 
environment or retaliation.  The basis for this complaint is based on employee dissatisfaction with 
managerial office personnel assignment decisions which needs to be addressed by the corresponding 
agency.  Therefore this investigaiton is closed.

4.1.8 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Harassment Harassment Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-DRT-16787 Del Rio, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA/USBP/ROCKSPRINGS, TEXAS DHS Employee 8/8/2016 8/11/2016 11/25/2016

On August 1, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Patrol Agent in Charge (PAIC)   Rocksprings, TX, regarding 
allegations made by Border Patrol Agent (BPA)   Rocksprings, TX. BPA eported 
that BPA  Rocksprings, TX, is  unstable and this has created a hostile work environment. 
It was also reported that BPA  has a history of workplace bullying.    The investigative findings 
concluded that there was no factual evidence to substantiate any of the aforementioned allegations 
therefore this investigation was closed.  

4.1.8 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Harassment Harassment Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-00698 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP, Santa Teresa, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/15/2015 10/15/2015 1/15/2016

On October 12, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)  
Chaparral, NM.  According to the e-mail, on September 27, 2015  an 
undocumented alien (UDA) made an allegation of physical abuse against the Customs and Border Protection 
(CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA) who apprehended him. UDA  claimed the BPA struck him with a 
metal stick/baton on the left side of his body (by his rib cage). UDA lso alleged he was grabbed by 
his neck and kicked to the  ground. UD ndicated the BPA assaulted him and suddenly disappeared.  
UD laims he was then handcuffed and taken in a vehicle by two BPAs to the closest station.  There 
were no further incidents.    This report documents the relevant material received.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-ELP-00897 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /SUPVY BORDER PATROL AGENT/1610 General  
Misconduct-Other Non-criminal/DEMING, LUNA, NM

DHS Employee 10/20/2015 10/20/2015 3/8/2016

On October 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Deming, NM.  According to the e-mail, on 
October 18, 2015, Sector Intelligence Agents picked up chatter  indicating a possible smuggling event in the 
WF area of the Deming Station's area of  responsibility. Two vehicles of interest were observed and 
identified. At this point, it is unknown  if both vehicles are/were associated. One of the vehicles is registered 
to  Douglas  AZ   This report documents the relevant material received

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-BP-ELP-00897 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /SUPVY BORDER PATROL AGENT/1610 General  
Misconduct-Other Non-criminal/DEMING, LUNA, NM

DHS Employee 10/20/2015 10/20/2015 3/8/2016

On October 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Deming, NM.  According to the e-mail, on 
October 18, 2015, Sector Intelligence Agents picked up chatter  indicating a possible smuggling event in the 
WF area of the Deming Station's area of  responsibility. Two vehicles of interest were observed and 
identified. At this point, it is unknown  if both vehicles are/were associated. One of the vehicles is registered 
to , Douglas, AZ.  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-BP-ELP-01029 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA; CBP; Wilcox, AZ DHS Employee 10/8/2015 10/29/2015 3/23/2016

10.62.226.49_Scan_to_Desktop_10-08-2015_11-08-57.pdf    The complainant, , claims that the Drug 
Enforcement Administration, Office of Professional Responsibility, had received information which bears 
upon the integrity of an employee with CBP by the name of  The complainant claims that the 
information regarding Officer  was reported to the DEA by a confidential source

The complainant claims that the DEA OPR will take no further action 
and will close the case, so he is referring this matter to the DHS OIG to hopefully keep the investigation open. 
The complainant claims that the DEA will facilitate access to the confidential source, and the case number is 
AD-2015-0553 for reference.    LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: El Paso, 
Texas Customs and Border Protection      LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged 
Offender  was: On Duty

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-BP-ELP-01243 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) LNU, FNU; U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee; Santa Teresa, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/26/2015 10/26/2015 1/15/2016

On October 23, 2015, Special Agents  Department of Homeland Security, 
Office of Inspector General, El Paso Field Office, received information from  
DOB  a Mexican citizen who was arrested for being in possession of over 70 lbs. of marijuana.  The 
arrest was effected by U.S. Border Patrol Agents (BPAs) from the Santa Teresa, NM U.S. Border Patrol (USBP) 
Station.   eported that a male subject from Anapra, Mexico, known as " hired him and eight 
(8) additional smugglers known as "backpackers," to smuggle narcotics into the U.S. from Mexico.
and the group of backpackers waited for the USBP to conduct a shift change during the early morning hours of 
October 23.  After waiting a few hours,  told the group that the BPAs were "paid for," and would 
allow them to continue with the smuggling of narcotics once in the U.S. ndicated that  
allegedly made telephonic contact with an unknown corrupt BPA who would facilitate the crossing of the 
marijuana.  indicated that the USBP units were clearly visible and in close proximity to the fence 
area between the U.S. and Mexico, a few hundred yards from where the backpackers were standing in 
Mexico. instructed the group to take the marijuana to a gas station located in Sunland Park, NM and 
wait for a black Ford F-150 pick up truck to arrive and take possession of the narcotics.  was to be 
compensated for the smuggling attempt by being taken to Ft. Bliss, Texas, where he was to work in a body 
shop owned by friends. was the first subject to enter the U.S. illegally, and was quickly 
apprehended by the USBP.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Sunland 
Park, NM   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty   Public website 
complainant indicated that the subject LNU had miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-ELP-02135 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, CBP, LORDSBURG, NM, et al. DHS Employee 11/12/2015 11/12/2015 3/23/2016

On November 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Operations Officer (OO)  El Paso, TX,  reporting on November 9, 2015, 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Lordsburg, NM,  reported her fiancé, Mr. was 
arrested by the Drug Enforcement Administration  (DEA) on that same date. On November 10, 2015, BPA 

 El Paso, TX, reported  his brother, Mr.  was arrested for suspicion of 
narcotics trafficking on November  9, 2015. It was reported Mr.  and Mr. were arrested 
in the same  drug-related case by a multi-agency task force.  This report documents the relevant material 
received.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-02135 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, CBP, LORDSBURG, NM, et al. DHS Employee 11/12/2015 11/12/2015 3/23/2016

On November 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Operations Officer (OO)  El Paso, TX,  reporting on November 9, 2015, 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Lordsburg, NM,  reported her fiancé, Mr. was 
arrested by the Drug Enforcement Administration  (DEA) on that same date. On November 10, 2015, BPA 

 El Paso, TX, reported  his brother, Mr.  was arrested for suspicion of 
narcotics trafficking on November  9, 2015. It was reported Mr.  and Mr were arrested 
in the same  drug-related case by a multi-agency task force.  This report documents the relevant material 
received.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-06805 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/CBP/LORDSBURG, HIDALGO, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/12/2016 2/12/2016 6/28/2016

On February 10, 2016, the FBI PCTF, Las Cruces, New Mexico, received information from ICE  that detainee, 
Brazilian National), wants to talk with the FBI concerning corruption  involving a Border Patrol Agent. 

claims that when he was smuggled into the US near  Lordsburg, New Mexico, the smugglers spoke 
about a specific BPA. is currently being detained for re-entering the US and is fighting his deportation 
through an  appeal to the Board of Immigration Appeals.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-ELP-07128 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA, CBP, Santa Teresa, NM. DHS Employee 2/19/2016 2/19/2016 12/6/2016

On January 5, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Santa Teresa, NM, regarding 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Santa Teresa, NM. A  vehicle owned by BPA as 
reportedly been seen at a residence that is linked to alien  smuggling activity.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-07171 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); El Paso, TX 2/19/2016 2/19/2016 5/13/2016

SUBJECT: Harassment, Discrimination, Persecution, Prejudice, Retaliation Complaint      On Wednesday, 
February 17, 2016, I contacted the Joint Intake Center in regards to over 10 years of dealing with harassment, 
discrimination, prejudice, persecution and retaliation at the Border Patrol El Paso Station, the only station I 
have been assigned since I have been in the United States Border Patrol.    I have file grievances with the 
union, have gone to arbitration, have filed informal Equal Opportunity Employment, being to mediation, 
Formal Equal Employment Opportunity and nothing gets resolved.  I feel like I am in a hamster wheel.    I have 
taken advantage of the different programs El Paso Sector and El Paso Station offer to cope with the stress and 
the toxic and hostile work environment management has put me through for more than 10 years.  Programs 
such as Peer Support, Resiliency Training, Strong Bonds, Chaplain, Employee Assistance Program and even 
though they have helped me tremendously I still deal with the same issues because management fails to 
mediate and recognize there is a problem or attempt to instill a positive work environment in the workplace.    
I have been judged by some managers and upper managers without even knowing me because of others.  My 
relationship with my coworkers was great to the point I would bring them coffee, doughnuts, gifts on their 
birthdays, will text with each other during our shift, will go to their houses on their birthday but those 
enjoyable days appear to be gone.  Now, some of them don???t even talk to me in fear of retaliation from 
management.  I have opted to alienate myself to do not get them in trouble and them being retaliated 
against because I would not want not even my worst enemy to live one day in my shoes.    After 24 years, The 
United States Army Reserves have taught me to be strong and fight for my beliefs and what is right.  Have 
empowered me with the knowledge to defend my Constitutional Civil Rights and protect our freedom.    My 
inner strength is one of the strongest ones I know.  I am single with no kids.  I do wonder where would 
another agent with financial, marital, children issues would be dealing with the same issues.  If they live in a 
war zone at home and have to go to work to face another war zone, where would they go if they have lost the 
faith in the programs in place?    I am sure I am not the only one dealing with some of the issues I have faced 
while working at the Border Patrol.  I do know many victims are afraid to speak up, which tells me the 
Whistleblower and No Fear Act are not enforced in the workplace.    Some managers have lost control of the 
agents and they are not respected because they have seen they can get away with anything and nothing will 
get done.  They have created a toxic and hostile work environment in where numerous agents call in sick 
because they do not even want   to go to work.    There are some agents that I question their willingness to 
provide me back up if needed and no one should feel that way     I am willing to provide additional supported 

4.3.9 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct E.E.O Complaint EEO complaint Incorrectly identified Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-07171 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); El Paso, TX DHS Employee 2/19/2016 2/19/2016 5/13/2016

SUBJECT: Harassment, Discrimination, Persecution, Prejudice, Retaliation Complaint      On Wednesday, 
February 17, 2016, I contacted the Joint Intake Center in regards to over 10 years of dealing with harassment, 
discrimination, prejudice, persecution and retaliation at the Border Patrol El Paso Station, the only station I 
have been assigned since I have been in the United States Border Patrol.    I have file grievances with the 
union, have gone to arbitration, have filed informal Equal Opportunity Employment, being to mediation, 
Formal Equal Employment Opportunity and nothing gets resolved.  I feel like I am in a hamster wheel.    I have 
taken advantage of the different programs El Paso Sector and El Paso Station offer to cope with the stress and 
the toxic and hostile work environment management has put me through for more than 10 years.  Programs 
such as Peer Support, Resiliency Training, Strong Bonds, Chaplain, Employee Assistance Program and even 
though they have helped me tremendously I still deal with the same issues because management fails to 
mediate and recognize there is a problem or attempt to instill a positive work environment in the workplace.    
I have been judged by some managers and upper managers without even knowing me because of others.  My 
relationship with my coworkers was great to the point I would bring them coffee, doughnuts, gifts on their 
birthdays, will text with each other during our shift, will go to their houses on their birthday but those 
enjoyable days appear to be gone.  Now, some of them don???t even talk to me in fear of retaliation from 
management.  I have opted to alienate myself to do not get them in trouble and them being retaliated 
against because I would not want not even my worst enemy to live one day in my shoes.    After 24 years, The 
United States Army Reserves have taught me to be strong and fight for my beliefs and what is right.  Have 
empowered me with the knowledge to defend my Constitutional Civil Rights and protect our freedom.    My 
inner strength is one of the strongest ones I know.  I am single with no kids.  I do wonder where would 
another agent with financial, marital, children issues would be dealing with the same issues.  If they live in a 
war zone at home and have to go to work to face another war zone, where would they go if they have lost the 
faith in the programs in place?    I am sure I am not the only one dealing with some of the issues I have faced 
while working at the Border Patrol.  I do know many victims are afraid to speak up, which tells me the 
Whistleblower and No Fear Act are not enforced in the workplace.    Some managers have lost control of the 
agents and they are not respected because they have seen they can get away with anything and nothing will 
get done.  They have created a toxic and hostile work environment in where numerous agents call in sick 
because they do not even want   to go to work.    There are some agents that I question their willingness to 
provide me back up if needed and no one should feel that way     I am willing to provide additional supported 

4.3.9 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct E.E.O Complaint EEO complaint Incorrectly identified Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-BP-ELP-07171 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); El Paso, TX DHS Employee 2/19/2016 2/19/2016 5/13/2016

SUBJECT: Harassment, Discrimination, Persecution, Prejudice, Retaliation Complaint      On Wednesday, 
February 17, 2016, I contacted the Joint Intake Center in regards to over 10 years of dealing with harassment, 
discrimination, prejudice, persecution and retaliation at the Border Patrol El Paso Station, the only station I 
have been assigned since I have been in the United States Border Patrol.    I have file grievances with the 
union, have gone to arbitration, have filed informal Equal Opportunity Employment, being to mediation, 
Formal Equal Employment Opportunity and nothing gets resolved.  I feel like I am in a hamster wheel.    I have 
taken advantage of the different programs El Paso Sector and El Paso Station offer to cope with the stress and 
the toxic and hostile work environment management has put me through for more than 10 years.  Programs 
such as Peer Support, Resiliency Training, Strong Bonds, Chaplain, Employee Assistance Program and even 
though they have helped me tremendously I still deal with the same issues because management fails to 
mediate and recognize there is a problem or attempt to instill a positive work environment in the workplace.    
I have been judged by some managers and upper managers without even knowing me because of others.  My 
relationship with my coworkers was great to the point I would bring them coffee, doughnuts, gifts on their 
birthdays, will text with each other during our shift, will go to their houses on their birthday but those 
enjoyable days appear to be gone.  Now, some of them don???t even talk to me in fear of retaliation from 
management.  I have opted to alienate myself to do not get them in trouble and them being retaliated 
against because I would not want not even my worst enemy to live one day in my shoes.    After 24 years, The 
United States Army Reserves have taught me to be strong and fight for my beliefs and what is right.  Have 
empowered me with the knowledge to defend my Constitutional Civil Rights and protect our freedom.    My 
inner strength is one of the strongest ones I know.  I am single with no kids.  I do wonder where would 
another agent with financial, marital, children issues would be dealing with the same issues.  If they live in a 
war zone at home and have to go to work to face another war zone, where would they go if they have lost the 
faith in the programs in place?    I am sure I am not the only one dealing with some of the issues I have faced 
while working at the Border Patrol.  I do know many victims are afraid to speak up, which tells me the 
Whistleblower and No Fear Act are not enforced in the workplace.    Some managers have lost control of the 
agents and they are not respected because they have seen they can get away with anything and nothing will 
get done.  They have created a toxic and hostile work environment in where numerous agents call in sick 
because they do not even want   to go to work.    There are some agents that I question their willingness to 
provide me back up if needed and no one should feel that way     I am willing to provide additional supported 

4.3.9 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct E.E.O Complaint EEO complaint Incorrectly identified Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-07817 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP, Las Cruces, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/29/2016 2/29/2016 12/28/2016

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Southern New Mexico Public Corruption Task Force  (SNMPCTF) 
received information about an unknown US Border Patrol Agent (BPA), Las Cruces,  NM. The information 
originated from an FBI confidential informant (CI) who allege

The SNMPCTF is actively investigating the 
allegation and has an open investigation.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-ELP-08733 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/Unknown/0301 Bribery-Bribery/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/14/2016 3/23/2016 5/31/2016

On March 14, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  El  Paso, TX, who reported 
that a corrupt Border Patrol Agent (BPA) is allegedly assisting a narcotics  smuggler based in the Anapra area 
of Ciudad Juarez, Mexico.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-ELP-10171 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP, Santa Teresa, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 5/11/2016

On March 31, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), El 
Paso, Texas, received information from Homeland Security  Investigations (HSI), El Paso, TX. The information 
was received from a female detainee who  alleged there was an unknown Border Patrol Agent (BPA) who 
charged $10  000 to facilitate the  smuggling of illegal aliens into the United States

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-ELP-11163 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP, Santa Teresa, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/28/2016 5/4/2016 6/28/2016

On April 15, 2016, U. S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), U.S. Border Patrol (USBP), Patrol  Agent in 
Charge (PAIC  Santa Teresa, NM (STN) contacted CBP Office of  Professional Responsibility, 
El Paso, TX (OPR/EP) and stated that he was advised that an  unknown Border Patrol Agent (BPA) was 
releasing sensitive information to the public

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-11948 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP, Lordsburg, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 5/31/2016

On May 2, 2106, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email forwarded by  the JIC duty 
agent, Harlingen, TX, regarding an allegation made by  an  illegal alien detained by U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agents (BPAs)  near Lordsburg, NM  claimed 
his niece was a BPA in Arizona and that she had  helped family members in Mexico obtain permission to go to 
the United States

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1425

Procurement of Citizenship or Naturalization 
Unlawfully

I16-BP-ELP-12442 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, Unknown/0714 Sexual Assault - Adult/El Paso, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 8/26/2016

On May 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Supervisory Customs 
and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  San Ysidro, CA.  SCBPO reported an allegation 
on behalf of his cousin who contacted him  on May 6, 2016. According to SCBPO  

 mother was returning home to San Diego  (no date was given) when she stopped at a gas station 
somewhere in South Texas and heard  what sounded like a woman being raped inside of a gas station 
bathroom  mother stated  she saw a male come out of the bathroom dressed in a Border Patrol 
Agent's uniform.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-BP-ELP-12868 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, CBP, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 5/31/2016 6/2/2016 9/2/2016

On Wednesday, May 18, 2016, the Border Corruption Task Force (BCTF) received information  from a DEA 
Group Supervisor advising a de-activated CHS contacted them to advise that BPA will be 
escorting a tractor-trailer to Denver, Colorado containing 3000 tires. It is  believed the 3000 tires is code for 
narcotics (it is doubtful 3000 tires fit inside a 53' trailer or  flatbed). BP  is assigned to the Ysleta 
Border Patrol Station, El Paso Sector, El Paso,  Texas.  The SOI first met BPA on April 24, 2016 and 
during the meeting BPA nformed the SOI of his involvement with narcotic trafficking in the El Paso, 
Texas area. During  this meeting BPA ntroduced  a known money launderer and subject 
of a  current DEA investigation, to the SOI by using moniker, which is only known by a  selected 
few. BPA tated the he assisted in drug trafficking and has already  earned more than $100,000.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-BP-ELP-12953 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP, Marfa, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/1/2016 6/6/2016 9/16/2016

On May 21, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Van Horn, TX, regarding 
information provided b  an illegal alien.  claimed that there 
was an official at the Marfa, TX, checkpoint who works  with an alien smuggling organization in Ojinaga, 
Mexico  The checkpoint is operated by Border  Patrol Agents (BPAs) from the Big Bend Sector

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-ELP-13052 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BEESON, PAUL***SES***/JOINT FIELD COMMANDER/1601 General 
Misconduct-Inappropriate  Supervisor/Subordinate 
Relationship/TUCSON, PIMA, AZ et al

PAUL  BEESON DHS Employee 6/2/2016 7/26/2016 11/25/2016

On May 23, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an anonymous e-mail  in which it 
was alleged that an inappropriate supervisory/subordinate relationship exists. It was  reported that Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Joint Field Commander (JFC) Paul BEESON,  Tucson, AZ, is involved in a 
relationship with subordinate Special Assistant  Tucson,  AZ. It was reported Ms. is receiving 
preferential treatment from JFC BEESON.

4.3.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Personal relationships Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-ELP-14458 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/Unknown/0202 Smuggling-Aliens/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/29/2016 6/30/2016 9/16/2016

On June 26, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Watch Commander (WC)  El Paso, TX.  W orwarded a 
memorandum from Border Patrol Agent (BPA) El Paso,  TX, reporting a corruption allegation. 
BPA eported that during the debriefing of Ms.  regarding a Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI) human smuggling investigation, she  reported a BPA may be assisting the main target of 
HSI's investigation. The alleged BPA was  identified by viewing Facebook accounts of the main target's 
girlfriend/spouse. The alleged BPA's  Facebook name is  and CBP records do not 
reflect an employee with  that name.  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-ELP-15164 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
 U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Las Cruces, NM DHS Employee 7/14/2016 7/18/2016 11/25/2016

On July 12, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Immigration and Customs Enforcement, 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Las Cruces, NM was notified by the Las Cruces Police Department 
(LCPD) of a possible sexual assault of a minor by Supervisory Border Patrol Agent   The LCPD 
provided information to HSI Las Cruces concerning the aforementioned allegation.  On July 13, 2016, HSI Las 
Cruces notified DHS, Office of Inspector General, Special Agent  of the ongoing investigation 
and allegation.    DHS Connect 07/14/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter provided an incident date range 
of: Approximately 2012-2016.     1763 DHS Connect 07/14/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: Off Duty

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I16-BP-ELP-15164 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
 U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Las Cruces, NM DHS Employee 7/14/2016 7/18/2016 11/25/2016

On July 12, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Immigration and Customs Enforcement, 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Las Cruces, NM was notified by the Las Cruces Police Department 
(LCPD) of a possible sexual assault of a minor by Supervisory Border Patrol Agent   The LCPD 
provided information to HSI Las Cruces concerning the aforementioned allegation.  On July 13, 2016, HSI Las 
Cruces notified DHS, Office of Inspector General, Special Agent  of the ongoing investigation 
and allegation.    DHS Connect 07/14/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter provided an incident date range 
of: Approximately 2012-2016.     1763 DHS Connect 07/14/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter indicated 
that the duty status of Alleged Offender  was: Off Duty

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-BP-ELP-15840 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) SUPVY BORDER PATROL AGENT/WATCH COMM/0712 
Other  Criminal/SIERRA BLANCA, TX

DHS Employee 7/21/2016 7/29/2016 9/16/2016

On July 20, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an information report  completed 
by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information provided,  on July 20, 2016, Watch Commander 
(WC) has been identified as being a  positive match to ecord that advises that he is the 
subject of a DEA investigation and to  contact GS r SBPA  at 
( f  positive for narcotics or southbound currency smuggling

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-BP-ELP-17626 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 8/22/2016 8/29/2016 11/25/2016

In 2009, Fabens Station agents working Southbound Operations were contacted by OFO personnel working 
primary that they had referred a subject to the secondary inspection area and required the assistance of 
Border Patrol personnel.  The UDA in secondary had been exhibiting signs of nervousness, shaking and was 
giving false statements.  Believing they had a narcotics case, OFO and Border Patrol Agents questioned the 
subject as to his nervous behavior. The subject finally admitted that he was in possession of a government 
issued 481 dated two weeks prior.  The UDA directed the agents to the document located in the glove box of 
the vehicle at the Fabens Port of Entry. Upon debriefing, agents determined that the situation required 
escalation to FBN management.  The Fabens Station was contacted and the supervisor in the watch office was 
SBPA  The agent requested someone higher as the situation at hand was PC in nature.  
SBPA advised that there was no one available to respond as the entire station was attending an All 
Hands brief and he was the only supervisor available on duty.  Once he arrived on scene it was determined 
that he in fact was the source of the PC concern, as his writing was on the 481 recovered from the UDAs 
glovebox.  He self-admitted that it was his 481 and that he must have ???dropped it??? in the UDAs vehicle 
when he searched it several weeks prior. He told the CBP agents that he would contact the Fabens PAIC (PAIC 

, who was his superior and close friend, to report the misconduct.  Agents were never made aware of 
the officer safety concern and none of the agents were ever notified their information had been 
compromised. (SB FBN: . In 2016 while employed at the Special Operations Group on Ft. Bliss, 
supervisor was working as the BP supervisor at SOG over a DEA case in which one of his main 
targets was his niece. SBPA  did not recuse himself nor did he advise anyone of the facts into his 
relationship with the target.  Due to additional performance issues, not related to this particular case, 
however the management of several others, superviso  was removed from the case(s) as the 
supervisor at SOG over all DEA cases.  Within a week of being removed from the case, his niece was arrested 
with narcotics.  Only after the facts were brought to light did supervisor ontact the JIC to self-
report.  During the next couple weeks to follow and after several ADDITIONAL internal performance issues, 
like failure to perform his job as a supervisor, failure to act and multiple candor issues, supervisor Fernandez 
was removed from an Intelligence capacity and moved to the position of administrative supervisor.  He was 
directed to have no contact with intelligence work and would solely be responsible for training and other 
administrative functions, as he was no longer allowed to have agents underneath him. He violated that 
direction by willing  negligently and egregiously conducting surveillance and working cases  specifically the 

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1510 Obstruction of Criminal Investigations

I16-BP-ELP-17984 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Mission Support Specialist, BP, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 8/29/2016 8/30/2016 10/28/2016

On August 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Chief Patrol Agent (CPA  El Paso, TX.  According to the e-mail, on 
this same date, he received a phone call from Ms. .  Ms  reported that her former 
girlfriend and current roommate Mission Support  Specialist (MSS)  El Paso, TX, threatened 
her and her son with violence. Ms. z also reported that MSS has misrepresented herself 
as a Border Patrol  Agent (BPA).

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-BP-ELP-17984 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Mission Support Specialist, BP, CBP, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 8/29/2016 8/30/2016 10/28/2016

On August 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Chief Patrol Agent (CPA  El Paso, TX.  According to the e-mail, on 
this same date, he received a phone call from Ms. .  Ms  reported that her former 
girlfriend and current roommate Mission Support  Specialist (MSS)  El Paso, TX, threatened 
her and her son with violence. Ms.  also reported that MSS has misrepresented herself 
as a Border Patrol  Agent (BPA)

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-BP-ELP-20275 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, U.S. Border Patrol, CBP, El Paso, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/26/2016 10/4/2016 11/25/2016

hq_12321.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_08-15-2016_15-35-03.pdf    is reporting a 
corrupted border patrol officer. states that the border patrol office is letting a vehicle pass with three 
to four people twice a week claims that someonewho lives in the United States goes to mexico to 
pick up the immigrants and then brings them through inspection bridge with the same corrupted officer. 

 would like this to be investigated. Secondly,  is requesting information on his case.
wants to know if he has the right to a Visa "S" or "U tates that he has not signed any deportation 
documents.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-HOU-16393 Houston, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/MCALLEN, TX. FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/4/2016 8/5/2016 12/13/2016

THIS COMPLAINT IS FIELD GENERATED BY DHS OIG INV, HOUSTON FIELD OFFICE, HOUSTON, TEXAS    The DHS 
OIG received information of a unknown (FNU LNU) U.S Border Patrol Agent or Customs and Border Protection 
Officer, involved in a smuggling operation of illegal immigrants into the United States. The DHS OIG received 
information that the DHS employee will be assisting the smuggling operation from south Texas to Houston, 
Texas.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-HOU-16393 Houston, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/MCALLEN, TX. DHS Employee 8/4/2016 8/5/2016 12/13/2016

THIS COMPLAINT IS FIELD GENERATED BY DHS OIG INV, HOUSTON FIELD OFFICE, HOUSTON, TEXAS    The DHS 
OIG received information of a unknown (FNU LNU) U.S Border Patrol Agent or Customs and Border Protection 
Officer, involved in a smuggling operation of illegal immigrants into the United States. The DHS OIG received 
information that the DHS employee will be assisting the smuggling operation from south Texas to Houston, 
Texas

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-LAR-00820 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  DPAC, et al. DHS Employee 10/19/2015 10/20/2015 5/12/2016

On September 25, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Laredo, Texas, contacted Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Office of Inspector General (OIG), Laredo, Texas, and reported that a source of information (SOI),

 
 

 

 

--  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Nuevo Laredo, Tamaulipas, 
Mexico   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty

1.7.4 Employee Corruption Smuggling Weapons Weapons Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-00820 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  DPAC, et al. DHS Employee 10/19/2015 10/20/2015 5/12/2016

On September 25, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Laredo, Texas, contacted Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Office of Inspector General (OIG), Laredo, Texas, and reported that a source of information (SOI)

 
 

 

 

  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Nuevo Laredo, Tamaulipas, 
Mexico   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty

1.7.4 Employee Corruption Smuggling Weapons Weapons Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-03212 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /BORDER PATROL AGENT/Unknown/LAREDO, WEBB, 
TX

DHS Employee 12/4/2015 12/4/2015 10/10/2016
On December 3, 2015, Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Laredo, Texas (TX) Special Agent  (SA)

notified Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Internal Affairs, Laredo, TX  that an HSI source made an 
allegation of a corrupt BPA in Laredo, TX.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-06183 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
 U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Laredo, TX DHS Employee 2/3/2016 2/3/2016 8/17/2016

On February 3, 2016,  Border Patrol Agents (BPAs), United States 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Laredo, Texas, alleged tha  BPA, CBP, Laredo, may 
have disclosed information related to an ongoing operation in order to prevent the successful completion of 
the operation.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Laredo, Texas

1.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law 
Enforcement / National 
Security Related 
information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-16584 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA/USBP/LAREDO, TEXAS DHS Employee 8/4/2016 8/8/2016 9/26/2016
On July 28, 2016, the US Customs and Border Protection, Office of Professional Responsibility  (CBP-OPR), 
Laredo office obtained information from Border Patrol management, Zapata, TX  regarding illegal activities 
involving Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Zapata  TX

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-16585 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /BPA/USBP/LAREDO, TEXAS DHS Employee 8/4/2016 8/8/2016 9/26/2016
On July 28, 2016, the US Customs and Border Protection, Office of Professional Responsibility  (CBP-OPR), 
Laredo office obtained information from Border Patrol management, Zapata, TX  regarding an inappropriate 
association involving Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Zapata,  TX.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-16586 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) /BPA/USBP/LAREDO, TEXAS DHS Employee 8/4/2016 8/8/2016 9/26/2016
On July 28, 2016, the US Customs and Border Protection, Office of Professional Responsibility  (CBP-OPR), 
Laredo office obtained information from Border Patrol management, Zapata, TX  regarding an inappropriate 
association involving Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Zapata,  TX.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-LAR-16587 Laredo, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA/USBP/LAREDO, TEXAS DHS Employee 8/4/2016 8/12/2016 9/26/2016

On July 28, 2016, the US Customs and Border Protection, Office of Professional Responsibility  (CBP-OPR), 
Laredo office obtained information from Border Patrol management, Zapata, TX  regarding an inappropriate 
association involving Border Patrol Agent (BPA)   Zapata, TX.  On July 28, 2016, the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, Border Corruption Task Force (FBI-BCTF),  Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Inspector General (DHS-OIG) and CBP-OPR  received information from Zapata Border Patrol management 
regarding an inappropriate  association involving multiple border patrol agents including BPA   
The FBI BCTF indicated they initiated an investigation regarding the aforementioned allegations.    
Investigation continues.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-RGV-00147 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
 U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee; Hidalgo County, 

TX DHS Employee 10/5/2015 10/16/2015 5/12/2016

***FO Correction - Box 3 - please send to Houston***    ******PLEASE BOX 1 PER RAC E. FLORES/RGV********    
On October 1, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, received information 
from the Texas Department of Health and Human Sevices Commission, Office of Inspector General, alleging 
that , Border Patrol Agent, U.S. Border Patrol, Rio Grande City, Texas, had been engaged 
in welfare fraud since 2013 with  the mother of his children.  --  Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Hidalgo County, Texas   Public website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of subject was: Off Duty   Public website complainant indicated that the subjec  had 
miscellaneous identifiers of: Border Patrol Agent

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-BP-RGV-07906 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/Border Patrol Agent/United States Border Patrol/Brownsville, 
Texas

3/3/2016 3/4/2016 5/12/2016

THIS MATTER INVOLVES AN UNACCOMPANIED MINOR. On February 17, 2016, CRCL received an email from 
, Supervising Attorney for National Immigrant Justice Center (NIJC), regarding four 

unaccompanied alien children (UAC), including ), ag NIJC 
alleges that Border Patrol Agents (BPA) abused the UACs and that the complaints "document the 
longstanding, systemic problems with CBP policy and practices as highlighted in the complaint submitted on 
behalf of 116 unaccompanied immigrant children by NIJC in conjunction with other organizations on June 11, 
2014."    The UAC claims that he was hiding in brush when a BPA allowed his dog to scratch and attempt to bite 
him for several minutes. He says that the doctor at the Border Patrol Station did not treat his wounds or 
provide any pain medication.

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Unaccompanied Alien Child Unaccompanied Alien 
Child

Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-RGV-09355 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
SUPVY BORDER PATROL AGENT/0712 Other 

Criminal/EDINBURG,  HIDALGO, TX DHS Employee 3/25/2016 3/25/2016 6/27/2016

FinCEN reporting identified suspicious deposits involving accounts owned by BP
 from 12/1/2013 to 1/27/2016 with a total reviewed of $152,200. Within  that aggregate, 15 cash 

deposits ranging from $9,000 to $10,000 were discovered and were  described as suspicious concerning the 
source of the funds as well as the deposit amounts which  appear to be constructed in a manner to avoid 
Currency Transaction Report (CTR) filings.

4.2.1 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Lifestyle Anomalies Lifestyle Anomalies Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324

Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I16-BP-RGV-09966 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/Kingsville, Texas FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 10/10/2016

On March 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Special  Agent (SA)  Corpus 
Christi, TX. According to the e-mail, on this same date, SA   and SA  Houston, TX, 
interviewed Mr.  who admitted to being a  facilitator and transporter of cocaine and bulk cash 
currency. Mr. eported over the last  eighteen months, he has made approximately three-hundred 
trips from Brownsville, TX to  Houston, TX, in which six to twenty kilograms of cocaine was transported in 
each trip. Mr.  reported that his boss made it clear to him that he (his boss) has Customs and Border  
Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agents (BPA) facilitating passage at both the Falfurrias, TX, and  Sarita, TX 
Border Patrol Checkpoints.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-RGV-10490 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/Unknown/FALFURRIAS, BROOKS, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/8/2016 4/15/2016 5/12/2016

On April 4, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility, Rio Grande 
Valley, TX (OPR/RGV), was contacted by the Border Patrol (BP) RGV  Operations Center (OPCEN/RGV) 
regarding an allegation of a bite made against a BP Agent's  service canine, Falfurrias, TX. The allegation was 
made by  a citizen of  Mexico, who alleged the BP service canine bit him twice.  
OPR/RGV interviewed of while he was being evaluated at the Edinburg  Regional Medical 
Center  Edinburg  TX  This report documents tatements  made to OPR/RGV

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-RGV-11765 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/Harlingen, Texas FNU  LNU DHS Employee 5/12/2016 5/12/2016 9/26/2016

On April 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Harlingen, TX.  According to the e-mail, on this 
same date, a subject in custody advised agents of a narcotics  smuggling load that was scheduled to take place 
on March 30, 2016, at approximately 7:00 a.m.,  at the , south of Santa Maria, TX. It was 
reported the smuggling load was  stopped and suspec was apprehended. Mr
claimed a BPA let him  know that it was clear for him to smuggle the narcotics from the river area. Mr. 

 reported  that the same BPA who gave him the all clear (via phone) responded to the narcotics 
seizure  scene.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-BP-RGV-13042 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/FALFURRIAS, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/2/2016 6/2/2016 7/5/2016

On May 24, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a telephone call from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Falfurrias, TX. SBP
reported on May 14, 2016, detaine  a United  States Citizen, was arrested at the 
Falfurrias, TX Border Patrol Checkpoint for smuggling aliens.  Mr. eported he was to pass through 
the checkpoint with aliens concealed inside his  vehicle and he would be allowed to pass after stating he was 
a United States Citizen. Mr. was supposed to pass through the checkpoint in lane one as it had 
been pre-arranged  to let him pass.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-RGV-13844 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/FALFURRIAS, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/16/2016 6/16/2016 8/17/2016

On June 9, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility, Rio Grande 
Valley, TX (OPR/RGV) Senior Special Agent (SSA) , who  is currently detailed to the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, McAllen, TX (FBI/McAllen), Public  Corruption Task Force (PCTF), received 
information of alleged employee misconduct. U.S.  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland 
Security Investigations, McAllen  (HSI/McAllen), informed OPR/RGV that information was received from a 
Confidential Human  Source (CHS) regarding

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)



I16-BP-RGV-13875 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/MCALLEN, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/16/2016 6/16/2016 8/17/2016

THIS MATTER INVOLVED AN UNACCOMPANIED MINOR. On May 7, 2016, CRCL received an email from 
KidsPeace on behalf of unaccompanied child (UAC)  
The UAC alleges that she did not receive proper medical attention after being apprehended by BPAs on May 
6, 2016.  The UAC, who is diabetic, states that she takes a shot of insulin every morning and every evening, 
but while in CBP custody for two days, she only received the morning shots.    EARM states that UAC was 
apprehended in the Rio Grande Valley, Texas Border Patrol Sector and was transported to McAllen Border 
Patrol Station for processing.  EARM I-213 makes no mention of her diabetes, and states that "subject appears 
in good health and claims to have no health problems."  EARM states she was apprehended on May 1, 2016, 
and comments from May 3, 2016 states that she was at RGV Central Processing Station (McAllen, Texas) 
awaiting transfer to KidsPeace.

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Unaccompanied Alien Child Unaccompanied Alien 
Child

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-RGV-17570 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/FALFURRIAS, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/22/2016 8/23/2016 10/10/2016

On August 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA , Edinburg, TX.  BPA orwarded 
information he received regarding the possibility of a corrupt BPA within the  Falfurrias, Kingsville, and 
Hebbronville, TX areas of responsibilities. It was reported that a subject  Mr  stated Mr. 

s attempting to recruit him for an alien smuggling  organization. Mr. reportedly 
showed Mr. maps indicating the locations of Border  Patrol sensors and cameras. Mr. also 
advised that Mr. mentioned to him that he  received schedules for BPAs and gets advised of when the 
areas are clear of any Border Patrol  units. Mr.  stated that he highly suspects that Mr. s getting 
this information from  within Border Patrol.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-BP-RGV-19285 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/MCALLEN, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/15/2016 9/15/2016 10/10/2016

Psychiatrist, Dr. mmediately notified Director of DIS, who then informed minor’s 
assigned Clinician, and Case Manager n order to further assess the incident 
and follow appropriate reporting procedures. CM/ Clinician met with the minor to follow up on the 
allegations. UC reported arriving to immigration detention center in McAllen, Texas on May 27 around 2am & 
being transferred to another facility on May 29 in the afternoon.    UC reported that on May 28 early morning 
she spoke to one of the guards regarding medication for her thyroid condition. UC said they were getting 
ready to eat, she asked to take her medication prior to eating. UC said this guard asked a second guard to 
escort her to medical office. UC said upon arriving to medical the doctor was attending another minor & they 
stayed in the hallway. UC gave the description of the male guard: white, in his 30s, wearing green uniform, 
bald headed, tall in stature and wearing glasses. UC said as they were waiting for the doctor, this guard 
extended a hand & “intentionally” touched one of her breasts w/out verbally addressing her. UC said the 
guard was at arm’s length & they were both standing. UC said she recalls this happening about 2-3Xs as they 
waited. UC said nobody else was present when this occurred; she recalls seeing offices that were not in close 
proximity to the doctor’s office. UC recalls seeing cameras behind her in that particular area; but she doesn’t 
recall seeing cameras in other areas of the hallway. UC said she didn’t say anything to the doctor while taking 
her medication as she felt in shock, not knowing what to do afterwards. She said she felt afraid & didn’t know 
what to do or who to talk to because he was an officer. She said she was escorted back to the area where she 
was by the same guard & he walked ahead of her. UC said he didn’t address her verbally or physically as they 
walked. UC said she didn’t see this guard again and was transferred to another facility on May 29 were she 
recalls seeing guards dressed in blue uniforms. UC was provided w/ support. UC had a family visit today w/ 
sponsor/mother. During the visit UC asked CM to tell her mother what happened. UC said she didn’t feel 
comfortable telling her mother & agreed for CM to do it in her presence. Sponsor was very supportive and 
understanding of UC. Sponsor stated that she’s willing to do whatever is necessary to ensure minor’s safety 
and well-being.      Please feel free to reach out with any additional questions.      Respectfully,    

  Special Agent   Office of Investigation  Office of Inspector General  U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services  Phone 202-260-  Cell 202-669

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-RGV-20686 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/MCALLEN, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/29/2016 10/5/2016 11/29/2016

hq_12321.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_08-23-2016_09-50-23.pdf is reporting unknown Border Patrol 
Agents in the Office of Refugee Resettlement in Portland, Oregon laims there was a 16 year old boy 
from Guatemala, who has chosen to remain anonymous, who was harassed while in Border Control custody in 
the Office of Refugee Resettlement in Portland. Oregon.  says the Border Patrol Agents took the 
child???s identification documents and did not return the documents.  states another child in the 
custody of the Border Patrol Agents was handcuffed so tightly that he was clearly caused physical pain. 

claims this other child was taken into a separate room by the Border Patrol Agents, and reported to 
the detained children that he was beaten by the Agents because they believed he was 18 years old.
says the 16 year old child was given an aluminum blanket, which broke on the first night, and was then forced 
to sleep without a blanket for two nights. states during the transfer of the children between facilities, 
the Border Patrol Agents set the temperatures in the vehicle to extremes, despite the children???s 
complaints. attached the 16 year old child???s declaration for further detail.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-SND-01887 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Automotive Mechanic, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 11/6/2015 11/6/2015 7/11/2016

On November 04, 2015, Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) San Diego, Senior Special  Agent (SSA) 
eceived a phone call from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Special   Agent (SA) 

  SA  stated he is currently up on a wiretap related to a   narcotics smuggling 
case.  SA  reported several recent intercepts from the same blackberry   messenger (BBM) pin, which 
have been initially identified as being connected to a Customs and   Border Protection (CBP) employee's 
email address.  This report provides the details as stated by HSI SA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I16-BP-SND-03375 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) Unknown Border Patrol Agent, San Diego, CA Unknown  Unknown DHS Employee 12/9/2015 12/9/2015 8/4/2016

On November 20, 2015, Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR San Diego) Senior Special  Agent (SSA
eceived a phone call on the OPR San Diego phone line from Homeland  Security Investigations (HSI) 

Special Agent (SA)  stating one of his confidential  sources reported to him that

 This report details the information provided by S

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I16-BP-SND-08130 San Diego, CA U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)
BPA, U.S. Border Patrol (DHS); DHS Employee; 

Location Unknown DHS Employee 3/8/2016 3/9/2016 8/2/2016

On March 8, 2016,  Special Agent (SA), U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), San Diego, California (CA), and  SA, U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP), Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), San Diego, CA, received a field generated 
complaint from  Supervisor Border Patrol Agent (SBPA), U.S. Border Patrol (USBP), San Diego, CA, 
who stated that  a citizen and national of Mexico, alleged that on March 8, 2016, at 
approximately 1:00 a.m., Pacific Standard Time (PST), an unknown Border Patrol Agent (BPA), USBP, San 
Diego, CA, apprehende for being present in the U.S. without valid immigration documents and 
during the apprehension, the unknown BPA struc  on the head with an unknown object.    Hotline 
Service 03/08/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: This complaint is 
submitted as a field orginated complaint.     734 Hotline Service 03/08/16 STD Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

2.11.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Other Weapon Related Weapon Related - Other Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-BP-SVA-00577 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Three Points, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/14/2015 10/19/2015 5/3/2016

On October 9, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Gulfport, MS.  According to the e-mail 
attachment, during the debriefing of Ms , a marijuana  smuggler, she alleged three BPAs are part 
of a narcotics smuggling operation and they help  provide security for Ms  a narcotics smuggler.  
This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-SVA-00793 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Sonoita, AZ DHS Employee 10/19/2015 10/19/2015 1/8/2016

On October 15, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Deputy Patrol Agent in Charge (DPAIC)   Sonoita, AZ. According to the e-
mail, during a two-day Explorer competition, BPA   Sonoita, AZ, allegedly threatened five (5) 
members of the Sonoita Station Explorers Post #872.  BPA llegedly made a comment about "putting his 
gun in their mouth." One of the  Explorers replied to BPA by saying "whoa man, you are taking it too 
far "  This report documents the relevant material received

4.3.18 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Rude / Crude Treatment Rude, crude treatment Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-SVA-03028 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Nogales, AZ FNU (BPA)  LNU DHS Employee 12/1/2015 12/7/2015 1/25/2016

I crossed the border on November 19th, 2015 to the west of Nogales and had walked for three days when I 
was detained by Border Patrol agents on November 22nd, 2015. I was travelling alone and I am not sure 
where exactly I was in the desert. Two agents approached and I did not flee or resist arrest because I had run 
out of water. The two agents started to insult me and said damn Mexican, wetback and gay.They handcuffed 
me and after handcuffing me one agent grabbed the collar of the shirt and threw me down against a rock. The 
agents then started to hit me. They punched me and kicked me repeatedly while I was on the ground. My 
pants ripped from all of the blows and my leg began to bleed. They beat me up for about five minutes. As 
they hit and kicked me, they said that I was just coming across the border to rob the country and they 
continued to insult me. They then dragged me along the ground and my wallet and cell phone fell out of my 
pocket. I asked to retrieve it but the agents would not let me. My wallet had my Mexican identification and 
2000 pesos.  One of the agents was Hispanic and the other was Anglo. The Anglo agents first name was, I 
think  and his last name began with   He was tall and skinny. The Hispanic agent had light brown 
skin and his name sounded like it was perhap nd his last name began with an  He was about 5'7" 
and had a normal size body.  After beating me up and dragging me along the ground, they made me walk to 
the car, which as about three or four minutes away. They drove very quickly. They brought me to a Border 
Patrol station but I am not sure which station it was. I said that I was injured and they told me that it was what 
I deserved and they didn't know why I came here. I asked two or three times for medical attention and was 
denied. I also asked for water and was not given water. I was only given juice and crackers during my time in 
detention.  I am fleeing Mexico because I am persecuted due to my sexual orientation and I face danger from 
organized crime. However, I was never asked about my fear of returning to Mexico nor informed of my right 
to seek asylum. The agent who processed my deportation paperwork did not speak Spanish so I could not 
understand what he said and simply signed where he indicated that I should.  I was not given the opportunity 
to make a complaint about the abuse that I suffered. I asked to speak with the Mexican consulate but I was 
not allowed to contact them.   When I was deported I went to the Red Cross for medical attention and they 
informed me that my leg wound and other wounds were infected due to lack of treatment and that I was 
severely dehydrated. Therefore the physical abuse that I suffered has caused lasting harm and my lack of 
access to asylum in the US has returned me to danger in Mexico.    Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Unsure. Northwest of Nogales, Arizona, about a three day walk past the desert.   Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-BP-SVA-05137 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Nogales, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/10/2016 1/13/2016 2/29/2016

On January 3, 2016, Internal Affairs Tucson (IA) Tucson Duty Agent (SA)  received a  report from 
Nogales Border Patrol Station (NGL) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  regarding a 
detainee, hereafter referred to as Source of Information (SOI)

 
 

  

 stated that OIG would 
initiate  an investigation.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-BP-SVA-10470 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Douglas, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/8/2016 4/15/2016 6/2/2016

On April 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) duty agent, San Diego, CA. According to the e-mail,  on this same date, Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent  (SBPA)  reported on April 7, 2016, 
Border Patrol Agents (BPA) apprehended United  States Citizen or alien smuggling in 
Douglas, AZ. During a post Miranda  interview conducted by BPAs an  both of 
Douglas, AZ, Mr.   stated he had an arrangement with a Puerto Rican BPA, name unknown, who works 
nights. Mr. old BPAs the arrangement was that the unknown BPA would "let him in", in exchange for  
M passing along information to him/her. After making the aforementioned statement, Mr.
told BPAs he refused to answer questions without the presence of an attorney.  Questioning of Mr
was immediately terminated.  See attached.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-SVA-11772 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) BPA, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 5/12/2016 5/12/2016 5/24/2016

On April 26 and April 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received two  emails from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Deputy Patrol Agent in Charge (DPAIC) , Douglas, AZ, 
regarding Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Douglas, AZ.  Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA

 Douglas, AZ, alleged that she felt  discriminated against and harassed due to her sexual orientation 
because of comments reportedly  made by BPA  When asked for a memorandum regarding SBPA  
allegations. BPA  claimed that he had knowledge that BPA  Douglas, AZ, previously failed to  
report corruption related information she developed during the course of her duties. BPA   also claimed 
that BPA  directed trainees to engage in an operation in the field aimed at  catching a "dirty" agent.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-SVA-13750 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 6/15/2016 6/16/2016 7/6/2016

On June 14, 2016, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Group Supervisor (GS)  
Homeland Security Investigations, Tucson, AZ (HSI/Tucson), contacted the ICE Office of  Professional 
Responsibility, Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson), to report HSI/Tucson unknowingly  targeted and subsequently 
identified a current US Border Patrol (USBP) employee while  conducting surveillance pursuant to Operation 
Iron Shield – Copper State (OISCS). According to  GS  Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

 assigned to USBP/Douglas,  AZ, was seen wearing USBP uniform items outside the residence under 
surveillance.  This report of investigation documents the initial receipt of information.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 922 Unlawful acts [Firearms]

I16-BP-SVA-19273 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Naco, AZ DHS Employee 9/15/2016 9/15/2016 10/4/2016

On September 14, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Deputy Patrol Agent in Charge (DPAIC)  Naco, AZ, regarding an 
allegation involving  a subject arrested by  Border Patrol Agents (BPAs) from th

tation in Naco, AZ, for narcotics and alien  smuggling on September 13, 2016. During a post-arrest 
interview, indicated his  father was a BPA. JIC research indicates BPA  
Tucson  AZ  is the father of

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-TUC-03559 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Tucson, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/11/2015 12/14/2015 1/8/2016

On December 11, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Acting watch Commander  reporting his  receipt of a telephone call 
regarding narcotics smuggling by a Border Patrol Agent (BPA).  According to the e-mail, BP was at 
the Casino Del Sol in Tucson, AZ, when a female  card dealer advised him that she thought she witnessed a 
uniformed BPA transferring black duffel  bags from a marked Border Patrol vehicle and placing them into the 
bed of a black lifted pickup  truck on S. Vahillia Rd. in Tucson, AZ. This occurred approximately one and a half 
months ago.  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-TUC-03836 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Ajo, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/17/2015 12/21/2015 1/8/2016

Upon arrest by the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office on unrelated charges, lleged during the 
detention intake process that a friend of her's was sexually assaulted by two Border Patrol Agents while 
detained at the Ajo Border Patrol Station. tated that her and her friend were arested for human 
smuggling on 12/1/15 by U.S. Border Patrol.  Upon arrival at the Border Patrol Detention facility, she alleges 
she could hear her friend assualted in a nearby cell.  could not see any of the activity but feels her 
friend was assualted based on what she could hear.  and her friend were released seperately from 
Border Patrol Custody and has had no contact with her friend since the incident.  The friend has no 
knowledge of the allegation being made b on her behalf.      Public website submitter indicated that 
the incident location was: Ajo Border Patrol Station

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-BP-TUC-04248 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Ajo, AZ, Bribery-Good Guy Bribe Alien Detainee 12/28/2015 12/28/2015 1/4/2016

On December 25, 2015, the Joint Intake Center, Washington, DC, received information from  Supervisory 
Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Ajo Station, Ajo, AZ. SBPA   stated that on December 24, 
2015, subsequent to an alien apprehension, Border Patrol Agent  (BPA  Ajo, AZ, was allegedly 
offered a bribe by an apprehended subject     Good Guy Bribe

1.9 Employee Corruption Bribery - Good Guy Bribery - Good Guy Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-TUC-06138 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, UNK, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 3/24/2016

On January 23, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail string  from Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA)  Tucson, AZ. According to 
the e-mail string, on January 22, 2016, an inmate at the  Federal Corrections Institute, Phoenix, AZ, provided 
information regarding corrupt employees in  attempt to be released from prison and work as an informant. 
The inmate reported he has  information related to two Border Patrol Agents (BPA) and he will supply the 
information once he  is assisted with his request.  The source document is attached to this file.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-TUC-07747 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Contract Employee, BP, Ajo, AZ DHS Employee 2/29/2016 2/29/2016 5/2/2016

On February 24, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Ajo, AZ. According to the e-
mail, BPA  Ajo, AZ, is currently dating Ms  a member of the cleaning staff 
at the Ajo, AZ Border Patrol Station. It was reported that  BPA has discussed work related 
information such as code words, deployment activities  and what happens with evidence with Ms. . 
Ms. s reportedly providing this  information to drug and alien smugglers.  This report documents 
the relevant material received.

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-TUC-07747 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Contract Employee, BP, Ajo, AZ DHS Employee 2/29/2016 2/29/2016 5/2/2016

On February 24, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Ajo, AZ. According to the e-
mail, BPA  Ajo, AZ, is currently dating Ms  a member of the cleaning staff 
at the Ajo, AZ Border Patrol Station. It was reported that  BPA has discussed work related 
information such as code words, deployment activities  and what happens with evidence with Ms.
Ms. s reportedly providing this  information to drug and alien smugglers.  This report documents 
the relevant material received.

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-TUC-08727 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Sonoita, AZ DHS Employee 3/14/2016 3/20/2016 3/24/2016

On March 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the  JIC duty agent, 
Detroit, MI, regarding a complaint made by  a civilian. In phone  calls to U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Casa Grande, AZ, Ms. 

 claimed that she had been sexually assaulted by  Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Sonoita, 
AZ. SBPA  reported that Ms.   was erratic during her calls and the details of her story kept 
changing

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-BP-TUC-10710 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 4/12/2016 4/25/2016 5/12/2016

On April 11, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)   Nogales, AZ. SBPA
forwarded information that was reported on March 28, 2016, to  SBPA  Tucson, AZ Sector, 
by Mr.  Mr. eported BPA  Nogales, AZ, abruptly moved from Mr. 

s daughter's rental property  and left it damaged. M  added that he received information 
from a neighbor who  stated BPA  would drink in the garage of the rental property and attempted 
to lure the  neighbor's 17-year-old daughter to his house.  This report documents the relevant material 
received.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-BP-TUC-10931 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Casa Grande, AZ DHS Employee 4/25/2016 5/2/2016 9/8/2016

On April 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)   Casa Grande, AZ. According to the e
mail, on April 12, 2016, a vehicle stop was conducted by  Arizona Department of Public Safety (DPS) Officers 
on an Infinity QX56 being driven by BPA  Casa Grande, AZ. During the vehicle stop, it was 
determined the vehicle  had a fictitious vehicle identification number (VIN) and federal label. The vehicle 
was seized.  BP and his passenger BPA  Casa Grande, AZ, were released from  the 
scene.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-TUC-11528 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Nogales, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 5/9/2016 5/9/2016 5/12/2016

On April 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Deputy Patrol Agent in Charge (DPAIC)  Portal, ND. According to the e-
mail, on April 24, 2016, Mr.  a  subject apprehended by the Border Patrol, Portal, ND, 
alleged that he illegally entered the United  States in 2015, through Nogales, AZ. Mr.
reported the coyote who was paid  $4000, approached a Border Patrol vehicle in the field, talked to two 
Border Patrol Agents (BPA)  and was allowed to proceed without being apprehended.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-TUC-13064 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Ajo, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/2/2016 6/3/2016 7/15/2016

On May 23, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)   Ajo, AZ. SBPA orwarded 
information BPA  obtained during the May 17, 2016  interview of Mr

eportedly advised BPA hat a friend of his who goes b  invited 
him to work for ". Mr. tated that the people who smuggle dope for El Cholo Vago 
deliver their dope in the Town  of Ajo. Mr tated that old him that El Cholo Vago used to 
say that he has a  Border Patrol unit to watch that his load crosses safely into the United States. Mr
stated  that  did not mention the name of the corrupt BPA. Mr stated that he does not  
know who the BPA is or if it is even true that a "migra" would watch for El Cholo Vago.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-TUC-14875 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 7/6/2016 7/12/2016 8/15/2016

On July 1, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA ,  Nogales, AZ, regarding Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA)  Nogales, AZ.  a civilian, alleged that BPA  stole 
his identity and used his social security  number to buy five phones.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Incorrectly identified Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1028
Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Identification Documents and Information

I16-BP-TUC-15058 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 7/13/2016 7/13/2016 7/15/2016

On June 7, 2016, at approximately 11:35pm, the Tucson Customs and Border Protection Office of  Professional 
Responsibility (CBP-OPR) duty agent was notified by Nogales Border Patrol  Supervisory Border Patrol Agent 
(SBPA)  that a subject subsequently identified as had made an allegation 
that excessive force was used by the Border Patrol  Agent (BPA) who arrested Mr. on the same date. 
The BPA was subsequently identified as  BPA

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-BP-TUC-15102 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  Jr., BPA, Casa Grande, AZ DHS Employee 7/12/2016 7/13/2016 7/13/2016

On July 7, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Professional Responsibility  (OPR), Tucson SAC 
duty Special Agent (SA) eceived a report from Tucson Sector  Investigations Team (SIT) 
Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  The report  stated that on July 7, 2016, detainee 

 alleged that he was punched in the face by  a Border Patrol Agent (BPA) during the course of 
his arrest. Mr  sustained a small  laceration near the temple on the right side of his face. Mr.
was transported to the Banner  Hospital, Casa Grande, AZ, and was medically treated, deemed fit for travel 
and released.  On July 3, 2016, OPR SA  and Office of the Inspector General (OIG) Tucson, AZ SA

esponded to the Casa Grande Border Patrol Station (CAG), and interviewed and  obtained a recorded 
statement from Mr.  Furthermore, photographs were taken of the  alleged injury and uploaded into 
JICMS.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-BP-TUC-16570 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Sonoita, AZ DHS Employee 8/3/2016 8/8/2016 9/27/2016

On August 2, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Tucson, AZ,  regarding information 
received from two civilians. The civilians alleged that their former neighbor  in Sierra Vista, AZ, was a BPA and 
used to store "dope" in his garage wrapped in plastic bags.  The civilians also reported that the BPA claimed to 
have a big million dollar house in Mexico. BPA entatively identified the BPA a
Sonoita  AZ

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-BP-TUC-18678 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  SBPA, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 9/8/2016 9/8/2016 9/8/2016

At approximately 10:56 p.m. on August 30, 2016, the Tucson Customs and Border Protection's  Office of 
Professional Responsibility (CBP OPR) duty agent, Task Force Officer (TFO)  was contacted by 
Tucson Sector Investigations Team (SIT) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent  (SBPA)  SBPA
reported that  a Guatemalan illegal  alien in Border Patrol custody, was making an 
allegation of excessive force. SBPA further  related that was apprehended by Tucson Sector 
Special Operations Group  (SOG)/BORSTAR SBPA

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Information Only Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-BP-TUC-20805 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Douglas, AZ  *NGO Referral--Credible Fear FNU  LNU DHS Component 9/30/2016 10/11/2016 11/9/2016

KEY CONCERNS:  1. Failure to properly refer individuals who express fear. We have submitted three 
complaints on behalf of individuals who expressed fear to agents at the Douglas Station and were either 
ignored or were discouraged from seeking asylum. One of those individuals feared such imminent 
persecution that even after being ignored at the Douglas Station she continued to attempt to enter the 
United States until her claim was finally heard. She is currently in the asylum process and has already passed 
her reasonable fear interview.   

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-TUC-20806 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Nogales, AZ  **NGO Referral--Credible Fear FNU  LNU DHS Component 9/30/2016 10/11/2016 11/9/2016

KEY CONCERNS:  1. Failure to properly refer individuals who express fear. We have submitted three 
complaints on behalf of individuals who expressed fear to agents at the Nogales Station and were either 
ignored or were discouraged from seeking asylum. Visits to the station and conversations with agents have 
also revealed gross misinformation about the asylum process, and deep-seated suspicion of the validity of 
the fears claimed by migrants.    

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Non-Criminal 
Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-TUC-20807 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Tucson, AZ  **NGO Referral--Credible Fear FNU  LNU DHS Component 9/30/2016 10/11/2016 11/8/2016

KEY CONCERNS:  1. Failure to properly refer individuals who express fear. We have submitted three 
complaints on behalf of individuals who expressed fear to agents at the Tucson Station and were either 
ignored or were discouraged from seeking asylum. This failure is particularly concerning at the Tucson 
Station, because some individuals whose fear claims are ignored are then referred for prosecution, as has 
been the case for other individuals who out of their ongoing fear were unwilling to file a complaint. The 
Tucson Station has a duty to be particularly proactive at identifying individuals who fear return to their 
country.    

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-YUM-05354 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Yuma, AZ DHS Employee 1/13/2016 1/15/2016 1/26/2016

On January 12, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Director (AD) Trusted Traveler Program Vetting  Center
Williston, VT. AD  reported the discovery of derogatory information  while processing the vetting 
request for Border Patrol Agent (BPA) ,  Wellton, AZ. BPA esidential 
address was found to be a match to a derogatory  record dated October 8, 2015, in which his wife was the 
passenger in a vehicle that was  intercepted at the San Luis, AZ, Port of Entry (POE). That vehicle contained 
20.15 kgs of  marijuana (P6Q96677200C26).  The source document is attached to this file.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-BP-YUM-07126 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Wellton, AZ DHS Employee 2/19/2016 2/19/2016 8/19/2016

On February 16, 2016, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), while working as part of the Border Corruption Task Force (BCTF),received  information from a Federal 
Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Source of Information (SOI)

  This Report of Investigation serves to document the allegation received 
pertaining to BPA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-YUM-07126 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) , BPA, Wellton, AZ General Public 2/19/2016 2/19/2016 8/19/2016

On February 16, 2016, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility 
(OPR), while working as part of the Border Corruption Task Force (BCTF),received  information from a Federal 
Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Source of Information (SOI)

This Report of Investigation serves to document the allegation received 
pertaining to BPA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-YUM-08886 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Yuma, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/15/2016 3/21/2016 4/14/2016

On March 14, 2016, the U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Office of Professional  Responsibility, Yuma, AZ 
(OPR/Yuma) received a report from Supervisory Border Patrol Agent  (SBPA)  regarding

 an undocumented Mexican citizen  apprehended by Yuma Station BPA's.  alleged 
that he was missing five hundred  dollars ($500) from a wallet that was removed from him during his 
apprehension.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 654
Conversion of Personal Property by Federal 
Officers or Employees

I16-BP-YUM-11255 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Wellton, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 5/12/2016

On Friday, April 29, 2016, the DHS OIG Yuma Sub-Office received an email from  Watch 
Commander at the Wellton, AZ Border Patrol Station.  The email contained the names and biographical 
information of two detain illegal aliens that had been apprehended the previous night and who were 
claiming had been abuse by the apprehending agents of the Special Operations Group (SOG) agents assigned 
to Camp Grip.    Below is the email sent by/received from  A copy of the email is also attached in 
PDF format.    Begin  From:   Sent: Friday, April 29, 2016 8:56 AM  To:   
Subject: FW: Allegations of abuse    The following subjects (drug mules) have made allegation of abuse. They 
were apprehended last night by SOG agents assigned to Camp Grip.      1.    DOB: 

 Sinaloa, Mexico = 1 of 10 Mules & 7 Backpacks Marijuana. Entry 04/27/2016  APP  04/28/2016  @ 
2200 hours.    2.     DOB: 3 , Cuidad Puebla, Mexico= 1 of 10 Mules & 7 
Backpacks Marijuana. Entry 04/27/2016 APP  04/28/2016 @ 2200 hours.    Event # WEL160400070    
Apprehension Grids:  N32’ 15.048  W113’ 26.908     5 Miles South of RB 60    I’ve notified IA. The duty agent took 
my information and said he would call back and advise whether they will respond or not.     SBP
will notify the Mexican Consulate once  IA is done.           Watch Commander   U.S. 
Border Patrol   Wellton Station - Yuma Sector   Office  iPhone

@cbp.dhs.gov     END

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-BP-YUM-13847 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Yuma, AZ FNU BPA  LNU DHS Employee 6/16/2016 6/16/2016 12/19/2016

On June 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA , Yuma, AZ,  regarding information 
received from  a civilian. Ms. laimed to have  knowledge of a smuggling 
organization and a Border Patrol supervisor who is working for one of  the cartels.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-BP-YUM-16146 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) Manuel Padilla Jr., CPA, Rio Grande Valley Sector, Edinburg, TX  **SES** Manuel  Padilla Jr. DHS Component 7/29/2016 7/29/2016 12/8/2016
Chairman Ron Johnson requests certain investigative action(s) from DHS OIG as related to

 a Mexican citizen with extensive criminal records, who is allegedly a brother of Chief Patrol 
Agent for the Rio Grande Valley Sector -     A Letter from Chairma is included

4.3.20 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Unspecified / Miscellaneous Other (Explain in 
Narrative Field)

Information Only Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-BP-YUM-17148 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Casa Grande, AZ DHS Employee 8/11/2016 8/17/2016 8/25/2016

On August 9, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Senior  Special Agent (SSA)

 Arlington, VA. According to SSA  on this same  date, the OPR Arlington, VA Office 
received a letter from  LNU, reporting Mr   was involved in marriage fraud and falsely 
reported to the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration  Services (USCIS) that he was not working although he is. 
According to the source document, Mr. s a co-conspirator and personal reference who 
prepared Mr.  USCIS  Application.  According to SSA s e-mail, the name
is also the name of a Border  Patrol Agent (BPA) stationed in Casa Grande, AZ.  The source document is 
attached to this file.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Incorrectly identified Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I16-CBP-ATL-01046 Atlanta, GA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) ; U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Atlanta, GA

DHS Employee 10/22/2015 10/22/2015 9/9/2016

On October 16, 2015, S  contact S  DHS OIG, to request assitance pertaining to an 
OCDETF case being conducted by ICE HSI, IRS, and DEA Atlanta, GA.  The task force had identified a target in a 
Jamaican DTO operating at Hartsfield-Jackson Atlatna International Airport.  One of the main targets

 is the son of CBPO , Atlanta, GA.  The task force was seeking assitance to identify any 
potential CBP employees that may involved in assisting the DTO.  --  Public website submitter indicated that 
the incident location was: Atlanta, GA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-CBP-ATL-02645 Atlanta, GA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) SUPVY GEN ATTY/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association 
with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/ATLANTA, DEKALB, GA

DHS Employee 11/23/2015 11/23/2015 1/29/2016

On November 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  the Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Trusted Traveler Vetting Center. According to the  information received, the 
Trusted Traveler Vetting Center queried the personal information of  Supervisory General Attorney (SGA) 

 PASS  ID# 986766864, in connection to her application for 
the Global Entry Trusted Traveler Program. A  SQAD search resulted in a positive match to SGA s 
address and last name (Not  Timeframe), see RECORD #P9E05572700CHF (01/22/04). The subject of the 
lookout is  The address on lookout was  in Hampton, GA. The lookout  
remarks reflect the subject is in contact with is the cell head of a  Panamanian 
organization smuggling cocaine and heroin. SGA  has the same last  name and lived at the same 
home address as the subject of the record.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ATL-04277 Atlanta, GA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/1801 Incidents-Critical/Significant/GLYNCO, 

GLYNN, GA DHS Employee 12/23/2015 12/29/2015 5/27/2016

On December 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)  Glynco,  GA, regarding CBP Officer 
Trainee (CBPOT  Jamaica, NY. CBPO  is  currently attending the Field Operations 
Academy (FOA), and classmates have expressed  concerns regarding her motives for being employed with 
CBP as well as possible security  concerns.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ATL-11869 Atlanta, GA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP TECHNCN/1204 Falsification-Worker's Comp 

Related/ATLANTA,  DEKALB, GA DHS Employee 5/13/2016 5/17/2016 8/5/2016

On May 4, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Agriculture Specialist (SAS   Atlanta, GA, regarding CBP 
Technician (CBPT)  Atlanta, GA. It was alleged that  CBP  may have falsified an Office of 
Workers Compensation Programs (OWCP) claim

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ATL-15017 Atlanta, GA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, CBP Supervisor /1801 Incidents-
Critical/Significant/ATLANTA, DEKALB, GA

DHS Employee 7/12/2016 7/12/2016 10/19/2016

On July 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from 
Supervisory Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO   Atlanta, GA. According to the 
source documents, on July 5, 2016, Ms.  a  Ghanaian national, applied for admission into the 
United States. Ms. eportedly gave birth to  a stillborn baby in the Federal Inspection Services (FIS) area 
and both were transported to the  hospital. It was alleged that CBP employees were witnessed being 
insensitive to the seriousness  of the incident. Employees were allegedly witnessed accusing the Ms of 
lying while she  was in labor and discussing this with medical personnel. Review of the video reflects Ms. 

 did state that she was hurting many times and held her stomach, as numerous employees told her  to 
just sit down. Many employees reiterated to Ms that she was going home to Ghana and  would have to 
have her baby there.

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at ???
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 545 Smuggling Goods into the United States

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

DHS Employee 11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

DHS Employee 11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides a
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 545 Smuggling Goods into the United States

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

DHS Employee 11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

DHS Employee 11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at s
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

DHS Employee 11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides a
n October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 545 Smuggling Goods into the United States

I16-CBP-BEL-02634 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al,  U.S. Customs and Border Protection, 
Blaine/Lynden WA

DHS Employee 11/21/2015 11/23/2015 5/31/2016

See also C1602637    I was leading a draft horse (called Midnight Mike)giving rides at
on October 24, 2015.  I encountered  she was looking for me to inform me 

that if I went through with the hiring processes at the Blaine port of entry, she would sabotage the structure 
interview, just like she did the last time I was employed with the CBP (as in she sabotaged my career).

 was also there to brag to me that she is making a few thousand extra on the side, smuggling drugs across 
the border.  She gives the B.C. gangs information on what lanes to go through, which officers will be on duty, 
and where to hide the drugs.  As she is a supervisor within the agriculture specialist ranks CBP at Blaine POE 
no one would ever think that she would even know any of this let alone act on it for monetary gain.   She says 
that she only makes two thousand a week.  She wanted to thank me for allowing her to know how easy it was 
to lie to CBP IA and get away with it.  Her words were that it was so pathetically easy it should be criminal.  
We both know that she lied/falsified information on the official IA investigation and then later on the EEOC 
form.  The first time she lied in the CBP IA investigation was on February 18, 2010.  She thought it was so 
funny/ironic that I can report it and nothing happens to her.  This is why she bragged to me about making 
money on drug smuggling because she knew that even if I reported it, it wouldn???t matter.   Please, please 
do something this time about this woman and her illegal activities.  She also claimed that nd 

 two agriculture specialists at the same port are in on some of smuggling of drugs, but not all of 
it.  I don???t know the name of the BC gang.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was:  Lynden WA

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-CBP-BEL-03185 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP Officer. San Francisco, CA DHS Employee 12/3/2015 12/8/2015 6/21/2016

On December 2, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Security Specialist (SSS)   Washington, DC. SSS
forwarded information that CBP Officer (CBPO)  San Francisco, CA, has had numerous 
large deposits into his bank account that he is  unable to account for. It was reported that on December 4, 
2013, CBP xplained a  $30,000 April 2013 deposit as a loan from a family member for the purchase of 
a home, which did  not happen. It was reported that on November 29, 2015, CBPO  stated a $16,000  
December 2014 deposit was from the sale of a personal vehicle. Of five large deposits, three of  them cannot 
be accounted for.  The source document is attached to this file.

4.2.1 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Lifestyle Anomalies Lifestyle Anomalies Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1956

Racketeering: Laundering of Monetary 
Instruments

I16-CBP-BEL-03653 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Port Director, Saipan, Mariana Islands DHS Employee 12/14/2015 12/15/2015 12/7/2016

On December 10, 2015, U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Office of Internal Affairs, Resident  Agent in 
Charge, San Francisco, California, received an email allegation from Supervisory  Customs and Border 
Protection Officer  Saipan, CNMI, wherein Port Director  Saipan, has engaged 
in improper conduct with foreign interests and had improperly  granted parole to aliens

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-BEL-03656 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Border Patrol Agent, Riverside, CA DHS Employee 12/14/2015 12/15/2015 10/18/2016

On December 11, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a report from the  Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement (ICE) duty agent, San Antonio, TX. According to the  report, the cousin of Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Indio, CA, reported he is living 
beyond his means. It was reported that BP   purchased multiple vehicles, has a large number of 
firearms and makes many trips to Mexico. Mr. tated that BPA  recently had a big financial 
gain. The cousin stated that BPA ecently gave his father  a new truck.  This report 
documents the relevant material received.

4.2.1 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Lifestyle Anomalies Lifestyle Anomalies Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205
Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I16-CBP-BEL-10088 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) t al, CBP, Blaine, WA DHS Employee 4/6/2016 4/12/2016 6/27/2016

On April 1, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO)   Blaine, WA, regarding an 
allegation made b  a civilian. Ms. alleged that a  bag containing tools and money 
($3,000 in Canadian currency and $100 in US currency) was  missing from a music tour bus after it was 
inspected.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-CBP-BEL-10088 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) t al, CBP, Blaine, WA DHS Employee 4/6/2016 4/12/2016 6/27/2016

On April 1, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO) ,  Blaine, WA, regarding an 
allegation made b  a civilian. Ms. alleged that a  bag containing tools and money 
($3,000 in Canadian currency and $100 in US currency) was  missing from a music tour bus after it was 
inspected

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-CBP-BEL-10088 Bellingham, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) t al, CBP, Blaine, WA DHS Employee 4/6/2016 4/12/2016 6/27/2016

On April 1, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  Supervisory U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer (SCBPO) ,  Blaine, WA, regarding an 
allegation made b  a civilian. Ms. alleged that a  bag containing tools and money 
($3,000 in Canadian currency and $100 in US currency) was  missing from a music tour bus after it was 
inspected.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-CBP-BLX-02567 Biloxi, MS U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP Officer/0801; Conflict of Interest: Association 
with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens; Mobile, AL

DHS Employee 11/20/2015 11/20/2015 4/29/2016

On November 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a Joint Research  and Analysis 
Report prepared November 16, 2015, from the Customs and Border Protection  (CBP) Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO) and Internal Affairs Threat  Mitigation Division (TMD). Based on information 
provided by the Counter Network Division (CND)  under the National Targeting Center (NTC), the AMSCO was 
able to link a phone number  supplied to CBP by CBP Officer (CBP)  Mobile, AL, to a list of 
contacts on a  phone belonging to s an individual currently listed in the Terrorist  
Screening Database (TSDB) and is a person of interest to the National Targeting Center  Passenger (NTC-P).  
TMD and AMSCO research did not identify any additional information related to CBPO   s possible 
association with  This report will be submitted to the Joint Intake Center  for Lead Development.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-BUF-00020 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Customs and Border Protection, Buffalo, NY DHS Employee 10/1/2015 10/1/2015 4/28/2016

On September 28, 2015 Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Field Operations (OFO)  Staff Assistant 
 received a phone call from tating that on 

September 27, 2015 he crossed the Peace Bridge in Buffalo, NY in a  rental vehicle with his wife
stated that $500.00 dollars went  missing during a truck inspection of his rental vehicle 

at the Peace Bridge Port of Entry (POE) in  Buffalo, NY

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-CBP-BUF-01134 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/Unknown/CHAMPLAIN, CLINTON, NY DHS Employee 10/23/2015 10/23/2015 9/9/2016

On October 19, 2015, the Champlain, NY Office of Internal Affairs (IA) received an email from  Assistant Port 
Director (APD) , Champlain, NY. APD lleged that Customs  and Border Protection Officer 
(CBPO  failed to perform his duties by releasing the  importation of a vehicle, registered to

 without the required Non-Intrusive  Inspection (NII). Mr. has multiple
records. The driver of the imported  vehicle was  father of  a known 
narcotics smuggler

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-BUF-11966 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ET Al DHS Employee 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 7/6/2016

The CBP officers who processed the complainant have been identified and entered in the people tab and 
additional documents uploaded.          On May 4, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received 
U.S. Customs and  Border Protection (CBP) INFO Center Referral Number 160418-002374 forwarding the 
complaint  of alleged on April 14, 2016 at Detroit Windsor Tunnel Port of  
Entry (POE) that he was harassed by the initial guard. Mr. alleged that other guards  physically and 
sexually assaulted him  Mr  alleged he was treated like an animal

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-BUF-11966 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ET Al DHS Employee 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 7/6/2016

The CBP officers who processed the complainant have been identified and entered in the people tab and 
additional documents uploaded.          On May 4, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received 
U.S. Customs and  Border Protection (CBP) INFO Center Referral Number 160418-002374 forwarding the 
complaint  of alleged on April 14, 2016 at Detroit Windsor Tunnel Port of  
Entry (POE) that he was harassed by the initial guard. Mr alleged that other guards  physically and 
sexually assaulted him. Mr  alleged he was treated like an animal.

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-BUF-11966 Buffalo, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  ET Al DHS Employee 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 7/6/2016

The CBP officers who processed the complainant have been identified and entered in the people tab and 
additional documents uploaded.          On May 4, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received 
U.S. Customs and  Border Protection (CBP) INFO Center Referral Number 160418-002374 forwarding the 
complaint  of alleged on April 14, 2016 at Detroit Windsor Tunnel Port of  
Entry (POE) that he was harassed by the initial guard. Mr alleged that other guards  physically and 
sexually assaulted him  Mr alleged he was treated like an animal

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-DAL-10856 Dallas, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/0901 Disclosure-Classified 
Information/DALLAS, ROCKWALL, TX

DHS Employee 4/22/2016 4/22/2016 11/18/2016

On April 18, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Security Operations Center (SOC) reporting the spillage of  classified information 
(#2016-04-038). It was reported that on April 6, 2016, CBP Officer (CBPO) , Dallas, TX, plugged an 
IRONKEY USB drive into the CBP network. On the  IRONKEY was a PowerPoint file that contained information 
marked SECRET//REL USA AND  MCFI//X1. The incident was listed as Incident 00446464 in Symantec DLP. The 
spill was quickly  contained and the affected devices were recovered by CBP. A few days later, the Federal 
Bureau  of Investigation (FBI) took possession of the recovered devices.

1.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law 
Enforcement / National 
Security Related 
information

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CBP-DAL-10856 Dallas, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) /CBP OFFCR/0901 Disclosure-Classified 
Information/DALLAS, ROCKWALL, TX

DHS Employee 4/22/2016 4/22/2016 11/18/2016

On April 18, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Security Operations Center (SOC) reporting the spillage of  classified information 
(#2016-04-038). It was reported that on April 6, 2016, CBP Officer (CBPO)  Dallas, TX, plugged an 
IRONKEY USB drive into the CBP network. On the  IRONKEY was a PowerPoint file that contained information 
marked SECRET//REL USA AND  MCFI//X1. The incident was listed as Incident 00446464 in Symantec DLP. The 
spill was quickly  contained and the affected devices were recovered by CBP. A few days later, the Federal 
Bureau  of Investigation (FBI) took possession of the recovered devices.

1.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law 
Enforcement / National 
Security Related 
information

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 798 Disclosure of Classified Information

I16-CBP-DET-00014 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) General Public 10/1/2015 10/1/2015 6/28/2016

Ms.  alleged she was bruised when a CBPO attempted to subdue her after she became frustrated about a 
fine she was ordered to pay because she was caught concealing prohibited food items in her luggage.  --  
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Detroit Metropolitan Airport US Customs 
and Border Protection Inspection Area   Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject 
was: On Duty

2.11.3 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Non-Weapon Related Non-Weapon Related Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287
Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-CBP-DET-04258 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, CBP, Detroit, MI DHS Employee 12/23/2015 12/28/2015 11/14/2016

On December 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information  report 
completed by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, CBP Officer (CBPO) 

 Detroit, MI, entered the United States accompanied  by a female subject with multipl
records related to narcotics and currency smuggling.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-DET-05260 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0802 Conflict of Interest-Misuse of 
Position/DETROIT, WAYNE,  MI

DHS Employee 1/7/2016 1/14/2016 7/8/2016

On January 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from 
Supervisory Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO ,  Detroit, MI. According to the 
information received, on December 29, 2015, Ms. was inspected and admitted under the 
Trade NAFTA (TN) Classification at the Detroit  Ambassador Bridge. During her interview, the CBPO asked why 
Ms  did not return to the  Detroit Tunnel to complete her TN. Ms dvised that she previously 
had a six month  relationship with CBPO  Detroit, MI. Ms. was under the impression 
that  CBPO nterfered with her December 14, 2015 inspection as she was denied entry after  he 
whispered into the ear of the CBPO who processed her. When Ms.  was asked if on  occasion she 
encountered CBPO at the border, she stated that she did. When asked if  another CBPO came out to 
clear her, Ms.  stated "No."

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-DET-05260 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0802 Conflict of Interest-Misuse of 
Position/DETROIT, WAYNE,  MI

DHS Employee 1/7/2016 1/14/2016 7/8/2016

On January 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from 
Supervisory Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO ,  Detroit, MI. According to the 
information received, on December 29, 2015, Ms. was inspected and admitted under the 
Trade NAFTA (TN) Classification at the Detroit  Ambassador Bridge. During her interview, the CBPO asked why 
Ms.  did not return to the  Detroit Tunnel to complete her TN. Ms. dvised that she previously 
had a six month  relationship with CBPO  Detroit, MI. Ms was under the impression 
that  CBPO nterfered with her December 14, 2015 inspection as she was denied entry after  he 
whispered into the ear of the CBPO who processed her. When Ms.  was asked if on  occasion she 
encountered CBPO at the border, she stated that she did. When asked if  another CBPO came out to 
clear her, Ms.  stated "No."

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-DET-05260 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0802 Conflict of Interest-Misuse of 
Position/DETROIT, WAYNE,  MI

DHS Employee 1/7/2016 1/14/2016 7/8/2016

On January 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail and  attachment from 
Supervisory Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO ,  Detroit, MI. According to the 
information received, on December 29, 2015, Ms. was inspected and admitted under the 
Trade NAFTA (TN) Classification at the Detroit  Ambassador Bridge. During her interview, the CBPO asked why 
Ms.  did not return to the  Detroit Tunnel to complete her TN. Ms dvised that she previously 
had a six month  relationship with CBPO  Detroit, MI. Ms was under the impression 
that  CBPO nterfered with her December 14, 2015 inspection as she was denied entry after  he 
whispered into the ear of the CBPO who processed her. When Ms.  was asked if on  occasion she 
encountered CBPO at the border, she stated that she did. When asked if  another CBPO came out to 
clear her, Ms.  stated "No."

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CBP-DET-10369 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/0803 Conflict of Interest-Failure to 

perform Official Duties/DETROIT, WAYNE, MI DHS Employee 4/6/2016 4/12/2016 6/30/2016

On March 28, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Supervisory 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  Detroit, MI. According  to the email, on March 24, 
2016, CBPO  Detroit, MI, exempted a hit on  primary. Mr. he subject 
of the  record, reportedly has three active  lookouts. One lookout reads the subject maybe involved 
with human smuggling   The source document is attached to the file

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-DET-13794 Detroit, MI U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , Marine Interdiction Agent, CBP, Gibraltar, MI DHS Employee 6/16/2016 6/17/2016 9/30/2016

Bank reporting identified an unusual increase in mobile check deposits followed by cash  withdrawals in an 
account owned by nd his spouse. The check deposits are  followed by cash withdrawals in 
amounts that are identical to each check deposited. This  suspicious activity occurred between 1/6/2016 and 
4/15/2016 and totaled $47,000.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324
Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I16-CBP-DRT-01284 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
SUPVY CBP OFFCR/0601 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 

(Physical  Abuse)/EAGLE PASS, MAVERICK, TX DHS Employee 10/27/2015 10/27/2015 5/19/2016

On October 26, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Del  Rio, TX received 
an allegation of Excessive Force from Port Director (PD)  Eagle  Pass, TX. P  informed CBP-
IA that Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO)  was involved in a use of force incident on the 
night of October 25, 2015, and appeared  to have used excessive force while detaining an uncooperative 
subject. The victim,  was handcuffed and received a cut to his forehead after being taken to 
the ground by  SCBPO   PD Brandt provided CBP-IA with a copy of the surveillance video. CBP-IA 
notified the Federal  Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and after viewing the video, the FBI agreed to open an 
investigation.  The FBI will be conducting a joint investigation with CBP-IA.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-DRT-01284 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
SUPVY CBP OFFCR/0601 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 

(Physical  Abuse)/EAGLE PASS, MAVERICK, TX 10/27/2015 10/27/2015 5/19/2016

On October 26, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Del  Rio, TX received 
an allegation of Excessive Force from Port Director (PD)  Eagle  Pass, TX. P  informed CBP-
IA that Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO) was involved in a use of force incident on the 
night of October 25, 2015, and appeared  to have used excessive force while detaining an uncooperative 
subject. The victim,  was handcuffed and received a cut to his forehead after being taken to 
the ground by  SCBPO   PD  provided CBP-IA with a copy of the surveillance video. CBP-IA 
notified the Federal  Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and after viewing the video, the FBI agreed to open an 
investigation.  The FBI will be conducting a joint investigation with CBP-IA.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-DRT-01284 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
SUPVY CBP OFFCR/0601 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 

(Physical  Abuse)/EAGLE PASS, MAVERICK, TX DHS Employee 10/27/2015 10/27/2015 5/19/2016

On October 26, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Del  Rio, TX received 
an allegation of Excessive Force from Port Director (PD)  Eagle  Pass, TX. P  informed CBP-
IA that Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO) was involved in a use of force incident on the 
night of October 25, 2015, and appeared  to have used excessive force while detaining an uncooperative 
subject. The victim,  was handcuffed and received a cut to his forehead after being taken to 
the ground by  SCBPO   PD  provided CBP-IA with a copy of the surveillance video. CBP-IA 
notified the Federal  Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and after viewing the video, the FBI agreed to open an 
investigation.  The FBI will be conducting a joint investigation with CBP-IA.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-DRT-01284 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
SUPVY CBP OFFCR/0601 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 

(Physical  Abuse)/EAGLE PASS, MAVERICK, TX DHS Employee 10/27/2015 10/27/2015 5/19/2016

On October 26, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Del  Rio, TX received 
an allegation of Excessive Force from Port Director (PD)  Eagle  Pass, TX. PD  informed CBP-
IA that Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO) was involved in a use of force incident on the 
night of October 25, 2015, and appeared  to have used excessive force while detaining an uncooperative 
subject. The victim,  was handcuffed and received a cut to his forehead after being taken to 
the ground by  SCBPO   PD  provided CBP-IA with a copy of the surveillance video. CBP-IA 
notified the Federal  Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and after viewing the video, the FBI agreed to open an 
investigation.  The FBI will be conducting a joint investigation with CBP-IA.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-DRT-01284 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
SUPVY CBP OFFCR/0601 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 

(Physical  Abuse)/EAGLE PASS, MAVERICK, TX DHS Employee 10/27/2015 10/27/2015 5/19/2016

On October 26, 2015, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA), Del  Rio, TX received 
an allegation of Excessive Force from Port Director (PD)  Eagle  Pass, TX. PD  informed CBP-
IA that Supervisory CBP Officer (SCBPO) was involved in a use of force incident on the 
night of October 25, 2015, and appeared  to have used excessive force while detaining an uncooperative 
subject. The victim,  was handcuffed and received a cut to his forehead after being taken to 
the ground by  SCBPO   PD  provided CBP-IA with a copy of the surveillance video. CBP-IA 
notified the Federal  Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and after viewing the video, the FBI agreed to open an 
investigation.  The FBI will be conducting a joint investigation with CBP-IA.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-DRT-02397 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0301 Bribery-Bribery/EAGLE PASS, 
MAVERICK, TX

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/17/2015 11/18/2015 1/22/2016

On November 16, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Del Rio Sector (DRT) Border Intelligence Center (BIC)  regarding information 
received from a subject identifying himself as   who claimed to be a high ranking 
Zetas official. initially claimed to have  information about various cartel figures in Mexico. 

also claimed that there are  three corrupt CBP Officers at the Eagle Pass, TX, port of entry 
(POE).

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-DRT-05593 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/DEL RIO, VAL 
VERDE, TX

DHS Employee 1/20/2016 1/21/2016 3/11/2016

On January 15, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Acting  Group Supervisor (AGS)

, Del Rio, TX. According to the information received,  in October 2015, a source of information (SOI) 
reported tha

This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-DRT-08315 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown, Unknown/Non-Employee/0202 Smuggling-Aliens/EAGLE 
PASS, MAVERICK, TX

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/9/2016 3/10/2016 8/17/2016

On March 8, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Professional Responsibility  (OPR) Senior 
Special Agent (SSA) eceived an allegation from Homeland Security  Investigations (HSI) 
Special Agen  SA stated a former Confidential Informant  (CI) and current fugitive 
contacted him and advised tha

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-DRT-13066 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBPO/CBP/EAGLE PASS, TEXAS DHS Employee 6/2/2016 6/2/2016 8/17/2016

On May 18, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC received a series of e-mails from  Supervisory 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  Eagle Pass, TX.  According to the e-mails, it 
appears that CBP Officer (CBPO)  Eagle Pass,  TX, may be completing his own U.S. 
Department of Labor (DOL) Office of Workers' Compensation  Programs (OWCP) Form CA-17 instead of having 
them completed by a physician.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-CBP-DRT-18676 Del Rio, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
SUPERVISORY BORDER PATROL AGENT/1001 

Employee Substance  Abuse-Illegal Substance Abuse/CARRIZO 
SPRINGS, DIMMIT, TX

DHS Employee 9/8/2016 9/9/2016 12/13/2016

On September 1, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Patrol Agent in Charge (PAIC)  Carrizo  Springs, TX, regarding an 
allegation made by a subject who identified herself a   Ms lleged that 
Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  Carrizo  Springs  TX  is using illegal drugs

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635
Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-ELC-00896 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPO Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/20/2015 10/20/2015 4/25/2016

On October 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA  San  Clemente, CA. According to 
the e-mail, an unidentified CBP Officer (CBPO) at the old Calexico,  CA Port of Entry (POE) is facilitating 
human smuggling. It was report a subject identified only as  Alfred claims he could smuggle anyone for $6500 
without fail, with the assistance of his  father-in-law at the old Calexico POE.  This report documents the 
relevant material received

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-ELC-01938 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown, CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/9/2015 11/9/2015 6/8/2016

On November 2, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Phoenix 
reported to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that he received  information from a co-
operating defendant that an unidentified U.S. Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) working at the 
Calexico, California Port of Entry area is facilitating the  smuggling of drugs into the United States.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-ELC-01938 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown, CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/9/2015 11/9/2015 6/8/2016

On November 2, 2015, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Phoenix 
reported to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that he received  information from a co-
operating defendant that an unidentified U.S. Customs and Border  Protection Officer (CBPO) working at the 
Calexico  California Port of Entry area is facilitating the  smuggling of drugs into the United States

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-ELC-04662 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) BPA, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 1/5/2016 1/5/2016 4/25/2016

On December 30, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Indio, CA, regarding 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Calexico, CA.  On this same date, BPA
reportedly entered the U.S. wit  who may be associated with a Drug Trafficking 
Organization (DTO) that operates  out of Mexicali, Mexico. When referred to secondary inspection, BPA 

 reportedly  provided his government-issued Personal Identity Verification (PIV) card to the 
inspecting agents  as his identification.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-ELC-05687 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, El Centro, CA DHS Employee 1/21/2016 1/25/2016 11/17/2016

On January 21, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information  report completed 
by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, Border Patrol Agent (BPA) Everardo

 El Centro, CA, entered the United States  accompanied by individuals that are the subjects of
records for narcotics smuggling and  criminal associations. Additionally, BPA s the subject of a
record related to an  investigation being conducted by U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
Homeland  Security Investigations (HSI).

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1956 Racketeering: Laundering of Monetary 
Instruments

I16-CBP-ELC-05687 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , BPA, El Centro, CA DHS Employee 1/21/2016 1/25/2016 11/17/2016

On January 21, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information  report completed 
by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

 El Centro, CA, entered the United States  accompanied by individuals that are the subjects of
records for narcotics smuggling and  criminal associations. Additionally, BPA s the subject of a
record related to an  investigation being conducted by U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
Homeland  Security Investigations (HSI).

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ELC-07951 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown BPA, El Centro, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/4/2016 3/7/2016 8/29/2016

On March 2, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility, El Centro, 
CA (OPR/El Centro), received information from Supervisory Border  Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Yuma, 
AZ. SBPA  reported that an unidentified Border  Patrol Agent (BPA), assigned to a USBP station in Imperial 
County, CA, was associating and  possibly conspiring with known alien smugglers operating out of El Centro, 
CA.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-ELC-09552 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBP, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 3/29/2016 3/29/2016 6/16/2016

A few hours ago, primary supervisor  and CBPO  were conducting pre-primary 
operations.  FM  • CBPO pproached a vehicle on lane #8 with a lone female driver.  • Female driver 
stated that on 3/18/16 she crossed through the west port at about 2a.m. in the morning.  • She alleges the 
officer that inspected her showed her his cell phone with image of the officer's private parts.  • At the time 
she did not know how to react and left the port after being released.  • Video review of the date and time the 
female traveler provided, determined the validity ofthe traveler's  allegation.  • A cell phone screen is visible 
as the officer approaches the vehicle and after a few second returns back to the  booth.  • Witness statement 
were requested from SCBPO   • Incident will be recorded and 
place with memos.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-CBP-ELC-09552 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBP, Calexico, CA DHS Employee 3/29/2016 3/29/2016 6/16/2016

A few hours ago, primary supervisor  and CBPO  were conducting pre-primary 
operations.  FM  • CBPO pproached a vehicle on lane #8 with a lone female driver.  • Female driver 
stated that on 3/18/16 she crossed through the west port at about 2a.m. in the morning.  • She alleges the 
officer that inspected her showed her his cell phone with image of the officer's private parts.  • At the time 
she did not know how to react and left the port after being released.  • Video review of the date and time the 
female traveler provided, determined the validity ofthe traveler's  allegation.  • A cell phone screen is visible 
as the officer approaches the vehicle and after a few second returns back to the  booth.  • Witness statement 
were requested from SCBPO   • Incident will be recorded and 
place with memos.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-ELC-10511 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/11/2016 4/15/2016 6/29/2016

On April 9, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from the JIC  duty agent, 
Houston, TX, regarding an allegation made by  an  illegal alien.
claimed to have met with a smuggler in Mexico named laimed to have a cousin 
working for CBP and that the cousin could provide  a fraudulent document allowing  to enter 
the US

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-ELC-11220 El Centro, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Customs and Border Protection Officers  U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection  Calexico, CA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/29/2016 5/3/2016 5/26/2016

On April 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from the U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Office of Public Affairs (OPA) INFO Center regarding an  allegation made by

 a civilian. M lleged that CBP Officers (CBPOs) at  the Calexico, CA, port of entry (POE) took 
him to the ground while attempting to grab him phone  and put him in handcuffs. JIC queries indicate Mr. 

was resistant and non-compliant with  CBPOs and attempted to record the inspection using his cellular 
phone. Records indicate Mr.  may have been intoxicated and attempted to antagonize the officers into 
a physical  confrontation.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-ELP-00017 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  FNU/LNU/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/1/2015 10/1/2015 8/26/2016

On September 29, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Deportation Officer (DO)  El  Paso, TX. According to the e-
mail attachment, on September 28, 2015, the ICE, Enforcement and  Removal Operations (ERO) Intelligence 
Unit (IU) was interviewing detainees in order to evaluate  valuable information that can assist agents, officers 
and analysts in support of the ICE mission  producing intelligence to combat transnational criminal 
organizations engaged in illicit trade, travel  and finance. On September 28, 2015, detainee

 was  interviewed. Mr. alleged that two Customs and Border Protection Officers 
(CBPO)  are working with a drug dealer from the Juarez, MX, area. One CBPO is reportedly a male  working at 
the Bridge of the Americas, (BOTA), El Paso, TX.  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-CBP-ELP-01661 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, COLUMBUS, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 3/23/2016

On November 2, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Port Director (APD)   Columbus, NM, who reported 
that a completed Be on the Lookout (BOLO) form used by CBP  Officers (CBPOs) was found in a folder 
belonging to  who was a passenger  in a narcotics smuggling vehicle.

1.2.2 Employee Corruption

Deliberate Disclosure of 
Classified / Law Enforcement 
/ National Security Related 
information

Law Enforcement Sensitive 
Material

Law Enforcement 
Sensitive Material Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030

Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CBP-ELP-02300 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU,CBPO, CBP, EL PASO, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/17/2015 11/17/2015 9/16/2016

On November 10, 2015, U. S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El  Paso, Texas 
(IA/EP) received information from Department of Homeland Security (DHS),  Homeland Security 
Investigations (HSI), El Paso, TX indicating several drug trafficking  organizations (DTOs) have been identified 
and disrupted through the Operation Big Rig Initiative.  However, HSI has identified several shipments have 
been released without inspection at the  Ysleta Cargo Facility, which according to the Non-Intrusive 
Inspection (NII) x-ray system,  contained marijuana. This case is being investigated in collaboration with HSI, 
Department of  Homeland Security Office of Inspector General (OIG), Department of Homeland Security 
Office of  Professional Responsibility (OPR) and IA/EP.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-ELP-02736 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
, JULIO/CBP OFFCR/0712 Other Criminal/TORNILLO, 

EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 11/24/2015 11/24/2015 1/15/2016

On November 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  the U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs (IA) Personnel Security  Division (PSD) 
regarding allegations made by CBP applicant  Ms  alleged  that her former husband, CBP 
Officer (CBPO) , introduced her to "teen porn."  CBPO s assigned to Tornillo, TX.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A
Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I16-CBP-ELP-03643 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) UNK CUSTOMS OFFICER, UNKNOWN/Non-Employee/0201 Smuggling-
Drugs/EL PASO, EL  PASO, TX

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/14/2015 12/15/2015 1/15/2016

On December 11, 2015, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Special Agent (SA)  
Homeland Security Investigations, El Paso, TX (HSI/El Paso), contacted the  Office of Professional 
Responsibility, El Paso, TX (OPR/El Paso), in reference to an allegation of  an Unknown female Customs and 
Border Protection Office (CBPO) assisting a unknown narcotics  organization.  SA  stated during a 
debriefing/proffer interview of  advised an unknown female 
CBPO was assisting an unknown narcotics organization  cell leader only known as "  LNU".

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-ELP-05075 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBP,EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/7/2016 1/12/2016 6/28/2016

On January 5, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General, El  Paso, TX 
(DHS/OIG) received information from DHS, Office of Homeland Security Investigations,  Las Cruces, NM 
(HSI/NM) indicating that a confidential informant (CI) has information abou 1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption

Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-ELP-06617 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
/CBP OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association 

with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 2/8/2016 2/8/2016 5/31/2016

On February 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information  report completed 
by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, CBP Officer (CBPO)

 El Paso, TX, entered the United States  accompanied by an individual that is the subject of a
record related to a narcotics  investigation

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ELP-06617 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
/CBP OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association 

with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/EL PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 2/8/2016 2/8/2016 5/31/2016

On February 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information  report completed 
by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, CBP Officer (CBPO)

 El Paso, TX, entered the United States  accompanied by an individual that is the subject of a
record related to a narcotics  investigation.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ELP-06727 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBPO/CBP/EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 2/10/2016 2/10/2016 11/25/2016

On January 27, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Internal Affairs, El Paso, TX  (IA/EP) 
received information from the El Paso Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Border  Corruption Taskforce 
(BCTF) and the Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector  General, El Paso (DHS/OIG) indicating 
CBP Officer (CBPO)  El Paso   Texas is involved in alien smuggling

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-ELP-07866 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/1203 Falsification-Employment Related/EL 

PASO, EL PASO, TX DHS Employee 3/1/2016 3/4/2016 5/31/2016

On February 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Public Affairs (OPA) INFO Center regarding  CBP Officer (CBPO

 El Paso, TX. A source alleged that CBPO ied on his  application for employment with CBP. The 
source also alleged that CBPO parents are  violating immigration laws.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)



I16-CBP-ELP-07972 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); Rodeo, NM 3/4/2016 3/7/2016 4/5/2016

On January 25, 2016, CRCL received an email referral from the CBP SITROOM (SIR#16-TCADGL-012516000036), 
regarding the January 25, 2016 shots fired near Rodeo, New Mexico, by BPAs assigned to the Douglas, Arizona 
Station.  CBP SITROOM reports that Agents had been responding to a possible incursion of two vehicles 
traveling from Mexico.  CBP SITROOM reports Agents located one abandoned vehicle with 1,062 kg of 
marijuana.  Later, a mobile surveillance operator spotted two individuals fleeing the area of the abandoned 
vehicle, and agents, assisted by a CBP AMO aircraft, attempted to apprehend the subjects.  One subject was 
shot by an agent in upper torso, and was flown to the UMC Banner Hospital in Tucson, Arizona and is in Border 
Patrol custody, with the New Mexico State Police and FBI responding to the scene.  The other subject fled but 
was later apprehended.  An update from SITROOM reports that both subjects were later identified as 
Mexican nationals who were previously removed from the U.S., and that HIS took custody of the uninjured 
subject, the two vehicles and the contraband. SITROOM later reported that on January 27, 2016, BPAs 
reported the discovery of an abandoned vehicle loaded with narcotics.  This vehicle is believed to be the 
second vehicle which absconded during the drive through event.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 241 Conspiracy Against Rights

I16-CBP-ELP-08736 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, CBP, El Paso, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/14/2016 3/18/2016 4/18/2016

On February 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Supervisory 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  El Paso, TX.  According to the email, Mr. 

 alleged CBPOs broke his nose and busted his  lip. It was reported that CBPO
El Paso, TX, asked Mr.  for his citizenship and  detected the smell of alcohol emitting from the vehicle. 
CBPO  reportedly asked Mr. o turn off his vehicle and Mr.  allegedly became very 
combative. The email  states Mr.  refused to give the officers his keys and became more combative. It 
was  reported that Mr was detained, secured in a cell, and began banging his head on the  door. Mr. 

equested Emergency Medical Services (EMS). EMS arrived and Mr.  was removed from the 
cell for an examination. The El Paso Police Department arrived and Mr. was arrested for refusal and 
DUI. Mr.  was transported by E

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-ELP-12956 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) BEESON, PAUL***SES***/JOINT FIELD COMMANDER/1103 Harassment-
Retaliation/TUCSON, PIMA, AZ

PAUL  BEESON DHS Employee 6/1/2016 7/26/2016 8/19/2016

On May 20, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Field Operations Specialist (SFOS  Tucson, AZ, regarding 
Joint Field Commander (CDR) Paul BEESON, Tucson, AZ. SFOS  alleged that CDR BEESON has attempted 
to manipulate the Labor and Employee  Relations (LER) disciplinary structure, issued an illegal order to reveal 
a protected employee's  identity and has engaged in prohibited personnel practices (retaliation) by referring 
SFOS or disciplinary action

4.3.16 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Prohibited Personnel 
Practices

Prohibited personnel 
actions

Information Only Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 10 USC 1034 Protected communications; prohibition of 
retaliatory personnel actions

I16-CBP-ELP-13490 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU CBPO, CBP/0201 Smuggling-Drugs/EL PASO, EL  PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/9/2016 6/10/2016 8/26/2016

On June 1, 2016, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Office of Professional  Responsibility, El Paso, 
TX (OPR/El Paso), received information from Group Supervisor (GS) Homeland Security 
Investigations, El Paso (HSI/El Paso), regarding a duty call  received on May 29, 2016. G stated Special 
Agent (SA)  HSI/El Paso,  responded to the Paso Del Norte (PDN) Port of Entry (POE) and was 
provided information of an  unknown Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO) allowing narcotics to 
enter the United  States.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-CBP-ELP-13628 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
FNU LNU/Unknown/1324/Bringing in or Harboring Certain 
Aliens/SANTA TERESA, DONA ANA, NM FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/13/2016 6/14/2016 8/26/2016

On June 3, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Enforcement Analysis Specialist (EAS)  El  Paso, TX, regarding 
unidentified corrupt CBP Officers (CBPOs) at the Santa Teresa, NM, port of  entry (POE).  a 
subject previously deported for narcotics trafficking, claimed to have  paid various individuals at the Santa 
Teresa POE in order to be allowed to ride in a vehicle and  pass through the POE into the US.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-ELP-15687 El Paso, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, CBP, EL PASO, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/18/2016 7/28/2016 12/29/2016

On July 11, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility, SAC El 
Paso, Texas (OPR/SAC EP), received information from a civilian indicating  a possible smuggling attempt of a 
previously removed alien with the assistance of an unknown  CBP Officer (CBPO) through the Ysleta Cargo 
Facility.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-HOU-04413 Houston, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP - U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); George 
Bush Airport; Houston, TX

DHS Employee 12/30/2015 12/31/2015 2/7/2016

This man is an immagration officer who uses his job their to help young Philippine lady to stay in Usa 
and is sexually involved with her i know this because it is my wife  has been sexually 
involved with him for two years her visa has expired and is scedualed for deportation hearing is illegal no visa 
working for a caregiver and lives at rosby tx she told me this herself he is now helping her to 
hide and work. mmagration officer at GEORGE BUSH AIRPORT. It seems he has done this 
before praying on young girls that their visa is expired for sexual favors    Public website submitter indicated 
that the incident location was: georgia bush airport

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201(c)(1)(b) Illegal Gratuities

I16-CBP-HOU-10303 Houston, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); Detroit, MI 4/10/2016 4/20/2016 8/17/2016

In April of 2009, approx. two months after my initial background investigation had cleared, CBP decided to 
initiate a never ending full investigation on me for no apparent reason, other than me being of Albanian 
national origin. If there was a legitimate reason that warranted such investigation CBP would have NOT 
cleared my initial background investigation. After three years of investigation and ten different reports, OIG 
cleared me of any wrongdoing, yet CBP continued the discriminatory investigation on me. Internal Affairs in 
Detroit decided to try and find any derogatory information on me at all which would later be used as leverage 
on me to try and force me to transfer to the land border to infiltrate Albanian smugglers. I was not aware of 
this career long investigation until January 12, 2016, when CBP proposed my removal, and it was all a huge 
shock, which is why I didn???t want to scream discrimination first thing. It took me a while to figure out that a 
discriminatory action against me had taken place by CBP. I had to read through many investigative reports, 
consider the timeline of the events, as well as the IA meetings and what was said there. I wanted to make 
sure I was 100% sure of the discrimination before I filed a complaint. On March 6, 2016, I was absolutely 
confident that discrimination against me due to my Albanian national origin had taken place by CBP. Because 
of my Albanian national origin, I was coerced, harassed, declined multiple promotion opportunities, 
threatened to be fired if I didn't transfer to the land border to infiltrate Albanian smugglers, and when I 
refused CBP delivered on their threats and proposed my removal utilizing fabricated and falsified 
information incriminating me in the official Internal Affairs (IA) report. All this took place during three 
different meetings that took place with Internal affairs. The reason I did not tell my anyone at the time about 
all this was exactly that. I was afraid they would fabricate and falsify information on my case report in order 
to make it seem more incriminating, and that is exactly what they ended up doing anyway. That's when I 
knew I had to speak up not only to defend myself and my position but to bring the IA agents to justice for 
their discriminatory actions against me and the traumatic experience they have put me through and make 
sure this never happens to another officer ever again. I am certain that when they are confronted with this, 
the parties involved will attempt to hide their tracks but there is plenty of evidence of their discriminatory 
and illegal methods. For the second meeting, when all the harassment and threats started there is plenty of 
proof that the meeting took place, such as government email correspondence, the shift change by Mr.
in the CBP computer system (COSS), as well as telephonic correspondence. There is no statement or recorded 
conversation for them to show during the second meeting, which is what they always do when an employee 
is called as a witness for another case as they claimed it would be  This goes to show that the second meeting 

4.3.16 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Prohibited Personnel 
Practices

Prohibited personnel 
actions Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-LAR-02194 Laredo, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/1106 Harassment – Hostile Work 
Environment/LAREDO,  WEBB, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/13/2015 11/13/2015 2/26/2016

On November 9, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Privacy and Diversity Office (PDO) Field Director (FD)  El Paso, TX, 
regarding allegations made by former CBP Officer (CBPO)  Former CBPO  alleged 
that he was subjected to harassment (non-sexual) from  co-workers at his former duty station in Laredo, TX, 
prior to his termination

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unfounded Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-LAR-05781 Laredo, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/Unknown/LAREDO, WEBB, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/25/2016 1/26/2016 3/3/2016

On January 22, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Internal Affairs (IA), Resident Agent  in Charge 
(RAC), Laredo, TX, conducted an interview of Webb County  at  the Webb County 
Sheriff's Office, Laredo, TX. dvised that a source of information had  advised him that an unknown 
father/son team of CBP officers (possible sir name  were  facilitating illicit activity via Laredo POE.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-LAX-06443 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBPO/0612 Detainee/Alien - Sexual Assault (Staff on 
Detainee)/LOS ANGELES, LOS ANGELES, CA

DHS Employee 2/4/2016 2/4/2016 10/17/2016

On January 22, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the  U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties (CRCL)  regarding a 
complaint made b  a civilian, on behalf of her mother,

It was alleged that CBP Officers (CBPOs) threatened Ms. , forced her to sign English 
language documents she could not read,  inappropriately touched her in the genital area (under her 
underwear) during screening, denied all  communications and denied her the opportunity to take her 
medications. Ms. was denied admission to the U.S., reportedly because she had previously 
overstayed the period  of time allowed under the Visa Waiver Program (VWP). The incident reportedly 
occurred on  December 30, 2015.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-CBP-MIA-02499 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
AVIATION ENFORCEMENT AGENT/1606 General 

Misconduct-Conduct  unbecoming an Officer/HOMESTEAD, DADE, FL DHS Employee 11/19/2015 11/19/2015 7/25/2016

On November 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from a  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Air Interdiction Agent (SAIA) who  requested to remain anonymous 
regarding Aviation Enforcement Agent (AEA)   Homestead, FL. AEA eportedly shared a 
post on Facebook that appeared to be  sympathetic towards terrorism

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205
Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I16-CBP-MIA-10467 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/1801 Incidents-
Critical/Significant/NASSAU, THE BAHAMAS, BF FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 7/22/2016

On April 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center received an e-mail from Supervisory Customs and  Border Protection 
Officer (SCBPO)  Nassau, Bahamas. SCBP orwarded a  Facebook post by CBPO

Nassau, Bahamas. According to the post, CBPO   is feeling disgusted because he is working 
under corrupt and criminal management.  The source document is attached to this file.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 371
Conspiracy to Commit any Offense or to Defraud 
United States

I16-CBP-MIA-13943 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
/CBP OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association with 

Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL DHS Employee 6/17/2016 6/24/2016 12/20/2016

On June 16, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) Watch Commander (WC)  Miami, FL.  According to the e-mail, Ms.

 wife of CBP Officer (CBPO)  Miami, FL, is a subject of an NTC lookout 
for possible money laundering.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1956
Racketeering: Laundering of Monetary 
Instruments

I16-CBP-MIA-13955 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR/0801 Conflict of Interest-

Association with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, 
FL

DHS Employee 6/17/2016 6/24/2016 12/7/2016

On June 16, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information report  completed by 
the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information provided,  AMSCO was able to link the home 
telephone numbe  of CBP Officer (CBPO)  Miami, FL, to a phone in 
the possession of who is listed in prior Targeting Framework Event #3261476. 
Targeting Framework  records reflect that Patpanathan was charged with providing material support or 
resources to  terrorists and bribery.  The source document is attached to this file.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 205
Conflict of Interest:  Activities of Officers and 
Employees in Claims Against and Other Matters 
Affecting the Government

I16-CBP-MIA-19769 Miami, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
 U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Miami, FL General Public 9/21/2016 9/21/2016 10/27/2016

On September 20, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Inspector General 
(OIG)received a complaint alleging a DHS employee in the Miami, Florida area was engaging in immigration 
fraud.    The complainant identified herself as  with a contact telephone number of
The complainant stated she wished to remain anonymous, but would cooperate with law enforcement 
authorities.  She reported the following:     -A DHS employee, unknown if a Border Patrol Agent (BPA) or a 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO), identified as  was engaging in immigration 
fraud by facilitating scam marriages between Columbian nationals and U.S. citizens for a fee of $20,000.00    
Investigator’s Note: A query of EDS and Outlook failed to locate/identify any DHS employee name

 cellular telephone number is  girlfriend, identified as
s co-conspirator in the scam marriages  s cellular telephone number is
 email address is @gmail.com    -  are U.S. citizens and 

have a son (unknown name and age) together    -  a friend o  is a 
Columbian national who entered the United States in 2014 with a visa (since expired)   
husband is currently serving 25 years in a United States prison for an unknown crime  s 
address is in Miami    s telephone numbers are

 charge  $20,000.00 to arrange a scam marriage between
 a friend o  is a Columbian national currently in 

the United States    - was a witness during the marriage ceremony between
ddress is in Miami   date of birth is    -

 driver license number is harged  $20,000.00 to arrange a scam 
marriage to a United States citizen (name unknown)    charged a third female Columbian national 
(name unknown) $20,000.00 to arrange a scam marriage

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1325(c) Marriage Fraud

I16-CBP-NEO-11037 New Orleans, LA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
AVIATION ENFORCEMENT AGENT/0105 Death-

Relative of Employee (i.e  Suicide w/ Duty Weapon)/MADISONVILLE, ST 
TAMMANY, LA

DHS Employee 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 12/6/2016

On April 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Air Interdiction Agent (SAIA)  Hammond, LA, 
regarding Aviation Enforcement Agent (AEA)   Hammond, LA. On this same date, it was 
reported that AE 17-year-old son, also  named  was found dead in the 
Madisonville, LA, area in what appears to be a  suicide. A CBP service weapon assigned to AEA was 
found and retrieved by local law  enforcement at the incident location

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-NEO-11037 New Orleans, LA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
AVIATION ENFORCEMENT AGENT/0105 Death-

Relative of Employee (i.e  Suicide w/ Duty Weapon)/MADISONVILLE, ST 
TAMMANY, LA

DHS Employee 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 12/6/2016

On April 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Air Interdiction Agent (SAIA)  Hammond, LA, 
regarding Aviation Enforcement Agent (AEA)   Hammond, LA. On this same date, it was 
reported that AEA s 17-year-old son, also  named  was found dead in the 
Madisonville, LA, area in what appears to be a  suicide. A CBP service weapon assigned to AEA was 
found and retrieved by local law  enforcement at the incident location.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-CBP-NYC-16576 New York, NY U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , Officer, CBP, Jamaica, NY 8/3/2016 8/8/2016 12/22/2016

On August 2, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Public Affairs (OPA) INFO Center regarding  an allegation made by

, a civilian. Ms.  alleged that her daughter,  was taken to the United States by 
the VanEerten family without her permission. Ms.   also alleged CBP Officers (CBPOs) at the John F. 
Kennedy (JFK) International Airport in Jamaica,  NY, failed to follow procedures and failed to scrutinize the 
family's documents prior to admitting  them into the U.S.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-ORL-05324 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/1801 Incidents-
Critical/Significant/ORMOND BEACH, VOLUSIA, FL

DHS Employee 1/14/2016 1/15/2016 10/27/2016

On January 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Supervisory 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  Savannah, GA.  According to the e-mail and 
attachments, on October 20, 2015, CBPO   Savannah, GA, was involved in an incident in 
Ormond Beach, FL, in which the Volusia County  (FL) Sheriff's Office (VCSO) responded (Report #150028106). 
According to the source document,  CBPO  invited a woman to his parents' house for 
companionship. The invitation for  the woman to come over was brokered by another gentleman. The 
gentleman who brokered the  services was waiting outside the house and was involved in the incident as 
well. This incident is  reportedly linked to an ongoing Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) investigation. 
CBPO  failed to report the incident to CBP.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Other Violation

I16-CBP-ORL-05324 Orlando, FL U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBP OFFCR/1801 Incidents-
Critical/Significant/ORMOND BEACH, VOLUSIA, FL

DHS Employee 1/14/2016 1/15/2016 10/27/2016

On January 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Supervisory 
Customs and Border Protection Officer (SCBPO)  Savannah, GA.  According to the e-mail and 
attachments, on October 20, 2015, CBPO   Savannah, GA, was involved in an incident in 
Ormond Beach, FL, in which the Volusia County  (FL) Sheriff's Office (VCSO) responded (Report #150028106). 
According to the source document,  CBPO  invited a woman to his parents' house for 
companionship. The invitation for  the woman to come over was brokered by another gentleman. The 
gentleman who brokered the  services was waiting outside the house and was involved in the incident as 
well. This incident is  reportedly linked to an ongoing Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) investigation. 
CBPO  failed to report the incident to CBP.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-CBP-PHL-04369 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP; Morgan, VT DHS Employee 12/29/2015 1/5/2016 5/5/2016

2:04 PM CST  is reporting  Lebel claims her children were supposed to go to 
???s ex-husband???s father's  home to visit when one of her daughters said they 

did not want to visit with  and seemed very upset by the possibility of going to visi
 says she asked her daughter why she did not want to visit ince she normally likes going to 

visi  and her daughter told her it is because ??touched her in places where only 
mommy, daddy, and doctors are supposed to touch her???.  states she made her ex-husband aware of 
the matter, but he does not believe the daughter and is fighting the situation because he claims he is 
concerned abou nd what this may do to ??s career. laims she reported the 
matter to the Vermont police and the police forwarded the matter to DCYS, but DCYS has only contacted 

???s ex-husband and not herself.  says her ex-husband is now keeping the children from her 
and has not allowed her to have any form of contact with them. When asked what agency worked 
for,  was unsure but stated he works at the border and checks individuals passports as they enter 
through the border.  states she would like to be contacted about the investigation.  claims she has 
had previous concerns about allowing her children to visit ince  and his wife are 
heavy drinkers and have driven drunk with the children before.

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-CBP-RGV-06532 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU/CBPO/CBP/Hidalgo, Texas FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/4/2016 2/4/2016 5/12/2016

On February 3, 2016, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, San Antonio, TX (OPR/San Antonio),  received information from 
Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations,  Brownsville, TX (HSI/Brownsville), 
regarding an unknown U.S. Customs and Border Protection  Officer (CBPO) who is allegedl

 The above-mentioned information was obtained 
during the debrief of a registered  HSI confidential informant (CI).

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-RGV-07809 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBPO/CBP/Brownsville, Cameron, TX/0201 Smuggling-Drugs DHS Employee 2/29/2016 2/29/2016 5/12/2016

On February 26, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  Supervisory Special Agent (SSA) 

, Brownsville, TX, regarding an unidentified U.S.  Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officer 
(CBPO) who may be assisting a drug trafficking  organization that operates out of Guadalajara, Mexico.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-RGV-11505 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU/CBPO/CBP/LOS EBANOS, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 5/9/2016 5/9/2016 5/19/2016

On April 22, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility, Rio 
Grande Valley, TX (OPR/RGV) received information from the Drug  Enforcement Administration, Special 
Agent (SA)  McAllen, TX. SA  advised  that a Source of Information (SOI) reported th 1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-SEA-03651 Seattle, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Supervisory CBP Officer, Los Angeles, CA DHS Employee 12/14/2015 12/15/2015 5/3/2016

On December 11, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received a fax from  Customs and 
Border Protection Officer (CBPO)  Los Angeles, CA, reporting Supervisory  CBPO (SCBPO)

 Los Angeles, CA, extracted numerous merchandise  items from U.S. Postal Service (USPS) parcels 
in late 2013. It was reported that most of the  merchandise originated in China and violated trademark 
regulations. The merchandise was once  displayed on the bookshelf in SCBPO  office. The 
merchandise has since been  removed from the bookshelf and has not been seized, released or returned to 
the owners.  The fax is attached to this file.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 654 Conversion of Personal Property by Federal 
Officers or Employees

I16-CBP-SEA-13738 Seattle, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  Border Patrol Agent, Customs and Border Protection, AZ DHS Employee 6/15/2016 6/24/2016 8/23/2016

On June 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) Deportation Officer (DO)  Richland,  WA. According to the e-mail 
and attachment, on May 11, 2016, the Federal Bureau of  Investigation (FBI) interviewed Mr.
(DOB: , in Umatilla, OR. Mr provided information that he is married to Mrs.

who has several family  members involved in criminal activity. Mr. eported his wife's brother, 
 has a son,  It was reported that s approximately 20 years old and is in 

the  Border Patrol Academy for the sole purpose of furthering his family's drug conspiracy.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846 Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-CBP-SEA-19283 Seattle, WA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
LNU, FNU; DHS Employee;CBP - U.S. Customs and Border Protection 
(DHS); Seattle, WA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/15/2016 9/15/2016 9/15/2016

Around 8:00 am this Case Aide received a phone call from Kids in Need of Defense and was reported that 
yesterday 06/14/2016, during Know your rights presentation and individual screening, this UC reported a 
significant experience that is willing to share with this Case Aide. UC reported that she was touched her 
breasts over her clothes in two occasions by a male adult who was uniformed and while in care of the 
Department of Homeland Security. UC reported that the incidents occurred a day after being transferred from 
the “hielera” ("cooler") to a new place where she identified as a cleaner space, with blankets and with the 
possibility of showering. The minor described that the first incident of sexual abuse took place in when she 
went to pick up her clothes for showering. She stated that the described man touched her breasts over her 
clothes "supposedly" in an unintentionally manner. The minor made known to this writer that when the first 
incident occurred, she felt that it had effectively been an “accident” because the officer was asking her to 
hurry up and so she felt that the incident occurred in a context of rush. However, after this incident occurred, 
an adult woman who was accompanied by a minor and what appeared  to be detained too, approached her 
and shared to this UC that the same man who touched her had committed the same act of touching her breast 
because “he likes to touch”, as reported by the UC. The UC shared to this writer that the second occasion 
occurred the same day after she took a shower and changed her clothes, at the time she was heading back to 
her cell. She added that she tried to hurry up and avoid the same male adult but unfortunately he touched 
again her breasts. UC reports that she could identify the male adult who touched her but is afraid of 
retaliation on her and her family safety and well being. She stated that does not remember the name of this 
person but she knows that was wearing long sleeves as part of his uniform, glasses, was thin and had black 
hair, and had a native Spanish speaking accent.

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties Information Only Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2243 Sexual Abuse of a Minor or Ward

I16-CBP-SID-05423
Special Investigations 
Division U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 1/19/2016 4/12/2016 12/22/2016 *SID CASE* 4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity

Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-SND-00893 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 10/20/2015 10/20/2015 2/23/2016

On October 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received Customs and  Border Protection 
(CBP) Commissioner's Significant Incident Report (SIR)  #16-2506-101715000009 and CBP Spot Report #0016-16 
regarding a shooting incident. It was  reported that on October 17, 2015, while off-duty, CBP Officer (CBPO) 

 Otay, CA, utilized her CBP issued weapon to shoot her boyfriend Ray Shaun  Venrez-
Cole. Mr. Venrez-Cole died as a result of a single gunshot wound to the chest. CBPO
reportedly claimed Mr. Venrez-Cole hit her and she shot him. The Chula Vista  (CA) Police Department (CVPD) 
arrested CBPO and she was charged with  Homicide without bail. CBPO as a 
scheduled court appearance on October  21, 2015.  This report documents the relevant material received.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-CBP-SND-01447 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  BPA, San Diego, CA. DHS Employee 10/29/2015 10/29/2015 10/25/2016

On October 27, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   San Diego, CA, Border Patrol 
Sector. According to the e-mail, on October 23, 2015, Border Patrol  Agent (BPA) , San Ysidro, 
CA, was interviewed at her home by the U.S.  Department of Defense (DOD) Office of Inspector General (OIG) 
and Army Criminal Investigations  Command (CID). BPA s allegedly under investigation for alleged 
misconduct  committed during her tenure as an Army recruiter several years ago. BPA eportedly  
stated two agents questioned her as a subject and a witness related to the alleged misuse of  recruiting 
funds.  The source documents are attached to this file.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-CBP-SND-03201 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPOs, CBP, San Diego, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/3/2015 12/4/2015 11/21/2016

On December 2, 2015, Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR/San Diego) Senior Special  Agent (SSA)
eceived a phone call from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  Special Agent (SA)

stating he received information for the Mexican Federal Police  about two Customs and Border Protections 
(CBP) Officers who are allegedly smuggling aliens  through their lanes at the San Ysidro and Otay Mesa Ports 
of Entry (POE), San Diego, California.  This report details the information provided by SA Prado.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-SND-03201 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPOs, CBP, San Diego, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/3/2015 12/4/2015 11/21/2016

On December 2, 2015, Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR/San Diego) Senior Special  Agent (SSA
eceived a phone call from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  Special Agent (SA)

stating he received information for the Mexican Federal Police  about two Customs and Border Protections 
(CBP) Officers who are allegedly smuggling aliens  through their lanes at the San Ysidro and Otay Mesa Ports 
of Entry (POE)  San Diego  California   This report details the information provided by SA

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)



I16-CBP-SND-03979 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP; DHS Employee; San Diego, CA DHS Employee 12/21/2015 12/23/2015 10/27/2016

This is an amendment to a complaint that was submitted to the DHS Hotline on December 21, 2015.  On 
December 18, 2015,  Special Agent, U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), San Diego, CA, an  SA, DHS OIG, San Diego, CA met wit

, SA, Homeland Security Investigation (HSI), San Diego, CA an  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), 
San Diego, CA pertaining to an allegation that a Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO), San Diego, CA 
facilitated the smuggling of undocumented aliens into the U.S. from Mexico through a U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection Port of Entry (POE), San Diego, CA.    Narrative:    On December 17, 2015, SA  and SA 

, met at the Law Office of , Attorney, San Diego, CA to receive information pertaining to 
an alleged corrupt CBPO in San Diego, CA. indicated that her client was interested in providing 
information to the DHS OIG and HSI as a confidential source of information (SOI) related to a CBP corruption 
matter.  The SOI, who was also present, agreed to speak with the agents and indicated that

 

 

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1028 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Identification Documents and Information

I16-CBP-SND-03979 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBP; DHS Employee; San Diego, CA DHS Employee 12/21/2015 12/23/2015 10/27/2016

This is an amendment to a complaint that was submitted to the DHS Hotline on December 21, 2015.  On 
December 18, 2015,  Special Agent, U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG), San Diego, CA, an  SA, DHS OIG, San Diego, CA met wit

, SA, Homeland Security Investigation (HSI), San Diego, CA an  Border Patrol Agent (BPA), 
San Diego, CA pertaining to an allegation that a Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO), San Diego, CA 
facilitated the smuggling of undocumented aliens into the U.S. from Mexico through a U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection Port of Entry (POE), San Diego, CA.    Narrative:    On December 17, 2015, SA  and SA 

, met at the Law Office of , Attorney, San Diego, CA to receive information pertaining to 
an alleged corrupt CBPO in San Diego, CA. indicated that her client was interested in providing 
information to the DHS OIG and HSI as a confidential source of information (SOI) related to a CBP corruption 
matter.  The SOI, who was also present, agreed to speak with the agents and indicated that

 

 

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I16-CBP-SND-05345 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBPO, San Diego, CA, et al DHS Employee 1/13/2016 1/15/2016 5/13/2016

Based on information provided by the Counter Network Division (CND) under the National  Targeting Center 
(NTC), the Analytical Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO) was able  to link phone number

 supplied to Customs and Border Protection WebTele  Employee contact (CBP) by Customs and Border 
Protection Officer (CBPO)  to a list  of contacts on a phone belonging to s an 
individual currently listed in the  Terrorist Screening Database (TSDB) and is a person of interest to the 
National Targeting Center  Passenger (NTC-P).

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-05345 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, San Diego, CA, et al DHS Employee 1/13/2016 1/15/2016 5/13/2016

Based on information provided by the Counter Network Division (CND) under the National  Targeting Center 
(NTC), the Analytical Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO) was able  to link phone number

 supplied to Customs and Border Protection WebTele  Employee contact (CBP) by Customs and Border 
Protection Officer (CBPO)  to a list  of contacts on a phone belonging to s an 
individual currently listed in the  Terrorist Screening Database (TSDB) and is a person of interest to the 
National Targeting Center  Passenger (NTC-P).

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-05347 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Ysidro, CA DHS Employee 1/13/2016 1/15/2016 1/26/2016

Based on information provided by the Counter Network Division (CND) under the National  Targeting Center 
(NTC), the Analytical Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO) was able  to link phone number

 supplied to Customs and Border Protection WebTele  Employee Contact (CBP) by Customs and Border 
Protection Officer (CBPO)  to a list of contacts on a phone belonging to

 is an  individual currently listed in the Terrorist Screening Database (TSDB) and is a person of interest 
to  the National Targeting Center Passenger (NTC-P). Based on CBPO   connection to a TSDB, 
AMSCO will refer to the Joint Intake Center (JIC) for further investigation.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Information Only Admin Closure Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-SND-05639 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  BPA, San Diego, CA DHS Employee 1/21/2016 1/22/2016 5/25/2016

On January 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information  report completed 
by U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations  (OFO), Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information  provided, Border Patrol Agent (BPA)

, Imperial Beach, CA, entered the  United States accompanied by individuals that are the subjects 
of  records for narcotics  smuggling  alien smuggling and criminal associations

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-06275 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Customs and Border Protection Officer, SAN DIEGO, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/14/2016 2/4/2016 3/22/2016

On January 8, 2016, the San Diego Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR/San Diego)  received 
information from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations  (HSI), San Diego, that a 
subject arrested for narcotics smuggling at the San Ysidro Port of Entry  (SYS POE), San Ysidro, California, 
claimed to know an unknown Customs and Border Protection  Officer (CBPO), that is involved in narcotics 
smuggling.  This Report of Investigation documents the receipt of the allegation.

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-SND-06275 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Customs and Border Protection Officer, SAN DIEGO, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/14/2016 2/4/2016 3/22/2016

On January 8, 2016, the San Diego Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR/San Diego)  received 
information from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations  (HSI), San Diego, that a 
subject arrested for narcotics smuggling at the San Ysidro Port of Entry  (SYS POE), San Ysidro, California, 
claimed to know an unknown Customs and Border Protection  Officer (CBPO), that is involved in narcotics 
smuggling   This Report of Investigation documents the receipt of the allegation

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-SND-08334 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown CBPO, Calexico, CA FNU-CAL POE  LNU DHS Employee 3/10/2016 3/10/2016 5/26/2016

On March 9, 2016, Agents from the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Resident Agent in  Charge 
(RAC), Calexico received in formation from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI)  Special Agent (SA

 regarding information he received from a source of information (SOI). The information was in regards 
to a

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1323 Unlawful Bringing of Aliens into United States

I16-CBP-SND-08587 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Ysidro, San Diego, CA, etal DHS Employee 3/15/2016 3/15/2016 8/1/2016

On March 14, 2016, DHS OIG received notification from  Supervisory Customs and Border Protection 
Officer (SCBPO), San Ysidro Port of Entry (SYS POE), San Ysidro, CA, that CBP Officers (CBPO) assigned to the 
SYS POE were involved in a shooting involving one unidentified male subject who operated a stolen vehicle 
and had been pursued by the California Highway Patrol (CHP).      The stolen vehicle approached the 
outbound lanes of the SYS POE and approached a CBPO prior to entering the U-turn lane egress.  The subject 
did not comply with the CBPO’s commands to stop and veered southbound to Mexico at the U.S./Mexico 
border and shots were fired by CBPOs. The subject abandoned the vehicle at the U.S./Mexico border and 
allegedly fled on foot and entered Mexico.  The subject has not been located or identified and no injuries 
have been reported.     Mexican authorities were notified and they reported that the vehicle was recovered. 
The vehicle was returned to the United States and the San Diego Police Department (SDPD) initiated an 
investigation and forensic examination.  SDPD evidence technicians recovered three shotgun casings, one 
.223 caliber casing, and one .40 caliber casing.  The vehicle was being processed for fingerprints and DNA 
evidence. All involved firearms from CBP were turned over to SDPD.    The CBPOs involved in the shooting 
were identified as  CBP, San Ysidro, Port of Entry, San Ysidro, 
CA.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-08587 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Ysidro, San Diego, CA, etal DHS Employee 3/15/2016 3/15/2016 8/1/2016

On March 14, 2016, DHS OIG received notification from  Supervisory Customs and Border Protection 
Officer (SCBPO), San Ysidro Port of Entry (SYS POE), San Ysidro, CA, that CBP Officers (CBPO) assigned to the 
SYS POE were involved in a shooting involving one unidentified male subject who operated a stolen vehicle 
and had been pursued by the California Highway Patrol (CHP).      The stolen vehicle approached the 
outbound lanes of the SYS POE and approached a CBPO prior to entering the U-turn lane egress.  The subject 
did not comply with the CBPO’s commands to stop and veered southbound to Mexico at the U.S./Mexico 
border and shots were fired by CBPOs. The subject abandoned the vehicle at the U.S./Mexico border and 
allegedly fled on foot and entered Mexico.  The subject has not been located or identified and no injuries 
have been reported.     Mexican authorities were notified and they reported that the vehicle was recovered. 
The vehicle was returned to the United States and the San Diego Police Department (SDPD) initiated an 
investigation and forensic examination.  SDPD evidence technicians recovered three shotgun casings, one 
.223 caliber casing, and one .40 caliber casing.  The vehicle was being processed for fingerprints and DNA 
evidence. All involved firearms from CBP were turned over to SDPD.    The CBPOs involved in the shooting 
were identified as  CBP, San Ysidro, Port of Entry, San Ysidro, 
CA.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-08587 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, San Ysidro, San Diego, CA, etal DHS Employee 3/15/2016 3/15/2016 8/1/2016

On March 14, 2016, DHS OIG received notification from  Supervisory Customs and Border Protection 
Officer (SCBPO), San Ysidro Port of Entry (SYS POE), San Ysidro, CA, that CBP Officers (CBPO) assigned to the 
SYS POE were involved in a shooting involving one unidentified male subject who operated a stolen vehicle 
and had been pursued by the California Highway Patrol (CHP).      The stolen vehicle approached the 
outbound lanes of the SYS POE and approached a CBPO prior to entering the U-turn lane egress.  The subject 
did not comply with the CBPO’s commands to stop and veered southbound to Mexico at the U.S./Mexico 
border and shots were fired by CBPOs. The subject abandoned the vehicle at the U.S./Mexico border and 
allegedly fled on foot and entered Mexico.  The subject has not been located or identified and no injuries 
have been reported.     Mexican authorities were notified and they reported that the vehicle was recovered. 
The vehicle was returned to the United States and the San Diego Police Department (SDPD) initiated an 
investigation and forensic examination.  SDPD evidence technicians recovered three shotgun casings, one 
.223 caliber casing, and one .40 caliber casing.  The vehicle was being processed for fingerprints and DNA 
evidence. All involved firearms from CBP were turned over to SDPD.    The CBPOs involved in the shooting 
were identified as  CBP, San Ysidro, Port of Entry, San Ysidro, 
CA.

2.11.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force
Weapon Related - 
Intentional Firearm 
Shootings / Discharges

Firearms discharge Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-08640 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Employee, CBPO, San Ysidro, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/11/2016 3/18/2016 8/1/2016

On March 9, 2016, Senior Special Agent (SSA) , Office of Professional Responsibility  Los Angeles, 
California (OPR/Los Angeles) received a phone call from a source of information  (SI),  who 
reported knowledge of multiple Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Officers receiving bribes to allow 
loads of illegal aliens and drugs into the United States (US) at  the San Ysidro, CA port of entry (POE) and 
Nogales, AZ POE.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-SND-08640 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Employee, CBPO, San Ysidro, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/11/2016 3/18/2016 8/1/2016

On March 9, 2016, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional Responsibility  Los Angeles, 
California (OPR/Los Angeles) received a phone call from a source of information  (SI),  who 
reported knowledge of multiple Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Officers receiving bribes to allow 
loads of illegal aliens and drugs into the United States (US) at  the San Ysidro, CA port of entry (POE) and 
Nogales, AZ POE.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-SND-08640 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Employee, CBPO, San Ysidro, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/11/2016 3/18/2016 8/1/2016

On March 9, 2016, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Office of Professional Responsibility  Los Angeles, 
California (OPR/Los Angeles) received a phone call from a source of information  (SI),  who 
reported knowledge of multiple Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Officers receiving bribes to allow 
loads of illegal aliens and drugs into the United States (US) at  the San Ysidro, CA port of entry (POE) and 
Nogales  AZ POE

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 963
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate 
Importation/Exportation of Controlled Substances 

I16-CBP-SND-08640 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Unknown Employee, CBPO, San Ysidro, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 3/11/2016 3/18/2016 8/1/2016

On March 9, 2016, Senior Special Agent (SSA) , Office of Professional Responsibility  Los Angeles, 
California (OPR/Los Angeles) received a phone call from a source of information  (SI),  who 
reported knowledge of multiple Customs and Border Protection (CBP)  Officers receiving bribes to allow 
loads of illegal aliens and drugs into the United States (US) at  the San Ysidro, CA port of entry (POE) and 
Nogales, AZ POE.

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-SND-11541 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPOs , San Diego, 
CA DHS Employee 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 11/17/2016

9:58 AM CST  is reporting the Otay Mesa Port of Entry and the San Ysidro Port of Entry.
laims he was deployed to the Otay Mesa and San Ysidro Port of Entry on January 11, 2016

says while at the ports of entry, he served as supervisor and had approximately 40 people under his 
command. states while at the ports of entry, he witnessed several occasions of violation of 
human and constitutional rights. laims some of the abuse of human rights included, but are not 
limited to, screaming, degrading immigrants, kicking individuals who were already detained, and moving 
individuals like cattle.  says the environments of the ports felt like a ???German concentration 
camp???  states he contacted the supervisor who allowed the abuse to go on and instructed 
them to cease such behaviors, and personally apologized to the detainees affected by the abuse
claims he also witnessed, and has proof of, an incident where a complaint individual was taken out of their 
car and placed in handcuffs, simply because the employee decided to abuse their legal powers.
says there was no reason for such behavior and he wrote up the individual responsible for the incident. 

laims he has also witnessed the falsification of several documents within the ports of entry. 
tates everything occurring in the ports of entry is a cover up. laims when he took 

his concerns up the chain of command to the Port Director, he was told ???this is how things are done over 
here???. ays he requested an extension to stay working at the ports of entry, but several days 
after he was supposed to start the next phase of his deployment, two watch commanders were sent to his 
hotel room. states the two watch commanders threatened him saying if ???you know what???s 
good for you pack your things and go back to headquarters???.  claims he asked for a reason as to 
why he needed to leave, but the watch commanders said they did not have to provide a reason to him.

ays he went to speak with the Port Director the next day and was told by the Port Director that he was 
???creating problems and brown nosing???.  states he would like to be contacted regarding the 
matter to provide further detail about the abuse to an OIG Investigator laims he has 
documentation to support his claims and has the names of those who were abused by the port of entry 
employees and those who witnessed the abuse. says when the ports of entry are looked into, 
the employees ???put on a show??? to make themselves look better for the investigators or visitors.

tates he has contacted the CBP Office of Internal Affairs and was not provided and assistance and has 
also contacted the Office of Special Counsel.    Baton Rouge Hotline 05/09/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Otay Mesa Point of Entry and San Ysidro Point of Entry      1777 Baton 

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-SND-11541 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPOs ,  San Diego, 
CA DHS Employee 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 11/17/2016

9:58 AM CST  is reporting the Otay Mesa Port of Entry and the San Ysidro Port of Entry.
laims he was deployed to the Otay Mesa and San Ysidro Port of Entry on January 11, 2016

says while at the ports of entry, he served as supervisor and had approximately 40 people under his 
command. states while at the ports of entry, he witnessed several occasions of violation of 
human and constitutional rights.  claims some of the abuse of human rights included, but are not 
limited to, screaming, degrading immigrants, kicking individuals who were already detained, and moving 
individuals like cattle.  says the environments of the ports felt like a ???German concentration 
camp???.  states he contacted the supervisor who allowed the abuse to go on and instructed 
them to cease such behaviors, and personally apologized to the detainees affected by the abuse
claims he also witnessed, and has proof of, an incident where a complaint individual was taken out of their 
car and placed in handcuffs, simply because the employee decided to abuse their legal powers.
says there was no reason for such behavior and he wrote up the individual responsible for the incident. 

laims he has also witnessed the falsification of several documents within the ports of entry. 
tates everything occurring in the ports of entry is a cover up. laims when he took 

his concerns up the chain of command to the Port Director, he was told ???this is how things are done over 
here???. ays he requested an extension to stay working at the ports of entry, but several days 
after he was supposed to start the next phase of his deployment, two watch commanders were sent to his 
hotel room. states the two watch commanders threatened him saying if ???you know what???s 
good for you pack your things and go back to headquarters???.  claims he asked for a reason as to 
why he needed to leave, but the watch commanders said they did not have to provide a reason to him.

ays he went to speak with the Port Director the next day and was told by the Port Director that he was 
???creating problems and brown nosing???.  states he would like to be contacted regarding the 
matter to provide further detail about the abuse to an OIG Investigator. laims he has 
documentation to support his claims and has the names of those who were abused by the port of entry 
employees and those who witnessed the abuse. says when the ports of entry are looked into, 
the employees ???put on a show??? to make themselves look better for the investigators or visitors.

tates he has contacted the CBP Office of Internal Affairs and was not provided and assistance and has 
also contacted the Office of Special Counsel.    Baton Rouge Hotline 05/09/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Otay Mesa Point of Entry and San Ysidro Point of Entry      1777 Baton 

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-CBP-SND-11541 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPOs ,  San Diego, 
CA DHS Employee 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 11/17/2016

9:58 AM CST  is reporting the Otay Mesa Port of Entry and the San Ysidro Port of Entry.
laims he was deployed to the Otay Mesa and San Ysidro Port of Entry on January 11, 2016

says while at the ports of entry, he served as supervisor and had approximately 40 people under his 
command. states while at the ports of entry, he witnessed several occasions of violation of 
human and constitutional rights.  claims some of the abuse of human rights included, but are not 
limited to, screaming, degrading immigrants, kicking individuals who were already detained, and moving 
individuals like cattle.  says the environments of the ports felt like a ???German concentration 
camp???.  states he contacted the supervisor who allowed the abuse to go on and instructed 
them to cease such behaviors, and personally apologized to the detainees affected by the abuse.
claims he also witnessed, and has proof of, an incident where a complaint individual was taken out of their 
car and placed in handcuffs, simply because the employee decided to abuse their legal powers.
says there was no reason for such behavior and he wrote up the individual responsible for the incident. 

laims he has also witnessed the falsification of several documents within the ports of entry. 
tates everything occurring in the ports of entry is a cover up. laims when he took 

his concerns up the chain of command to the Port Director, he was told ???this is how things are done over 
here???. ays he requested an extension to stay working at the ports of entry, but several days 
after he was supposed to start the next phase of his deployment, two watch commanders were sent to his 
hotel room states the two watch commanders threatened him saying if ???you know what???s 
good for you pack your things and go back to headquarters???  claims he asked for a reason as to 
why he needed to leave, but the watch commanders said they did not have to provide a reason to him.

ays he went to speak with the Port Director the next day and was told by the Port Director that he was 
???creating problems and brown nosing???.  states he would like to be contacted regarding the 
matter to provide further detail about the abuse to an OIG Investigator laims he has 
documentation to support his claims and has the names of those who were abused by the port of entry 
employees and those who witnessed the abuse. says when the ports of entry are looked into, 
the employees ???put on a show??? to make themselves look better for the investigators or visitors.

tates he has contacted the CBP Office of Internal Affairs and was not provided and assistance and has 
also contacted the Office of Special Counsel.    Baton Rouge Hotline 05/09/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Otay Mesa Point of Entry and San Ysidro Point of Entry      1777 Baton 

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 115

Influencing, Impeding, or Retaliating Against a 
Federal Official by Threatening or Injuring a 
Family Member

I16-CBP-SND-11541 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBPOs ,  San Diego, 
CA DHS Employee 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 11/17/2016

9:58 AM CST  is reporting the Otay Mesa Port of Entry and the San Ysidro Port of Entry.
laims he was deployed to the Otay Mesa and San Ysidro Port of Entry on January 11, 2016

says while at the ports of entry, he served as supervisor and had approximately 40 people under his 
command. states while at the ports of entry, he witnessed several occasions of violation of 
human and constitutional rights.  claims some of the abuse of human rights included, but are not 
limited to, screaming, degrading immigrants, kicking individuals who were already detained, and moving 
individuals like cattle.  says the environments of the ports felt like a ???German concentration 
camp???.  states he contacted the supervisor who allowed the abuse to go on and instructed 
them to cease such behaviors, and personally apologized to the detainees affected by the abuse.
claims he also witnessed, and has proof of, an incident where a complaint individual was taken out of their 
car and placed in handcuffs, simply because the employee decided to abuse their legal powers.
says there was no reason for such behavior and he wrote up the individual responsible for the incident. 

laims he has also witnessed the falsification of several documents within the ports of entry. 
tates everything occurring in the ports of entry is a cover up. laims when he took 

his concerns up the chain of command to the Port Director, he was told ???this is how things are done over 
here???. ays he requested an extension to stay working at the ports of entry, but several days 
after he was supposed to start the next phase of his deployment, two watch commanders were sent to his 
hotel room. states the two watch commanders threatened him saying if ???you know what???s 
good for you pack your things and go back to headquarters???.  claims he asked for a reason as to 
why he needed to leave, but the watch commanders said they did not have to provide a reason to him.

ays he went to speak with the Port Director the next day and was told by the Port Director that he was 
???creating problems and brown nosing???  states he would like to be contacted regarding the 
matter to provide further detail about the abuse to an OIG Investigator laims he has 
documentation to support his claims and has the names of those who were abused by the port of entry 
employees and those who witnessed the abuse says when the ports of entry are looked into, 
the employees ???put on a show??? to make themselves look better for the investigators or visitors.

tates he has contacted the CBP Office of Internal Affairs and was not provided and assistance and has 
also contacted the Office of Special Counsel.    Baton Rouge Hotline 05/09/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Otay Mesa Point of Entry and San Ysidro Point of Entry      1777 Baton 

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-SND-12866 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
EQ EMPLMT SPECLST/0801 Conflict of Interest-

Association with Known  Criminals/Illegal Aliens/SAN DIEGO, SAN 
DIEGO, CA

DHS Employee 5/31/2016 6/1/2016 6/30/2016

On May 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information report  completed by 
the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information provided,  AMSCO was able to link phone 
number 619-632 belonging to Customs and Border  Protection (CBP) Equal Employment Specialist (EES) 

 San Diego, CA, to a list of  contacts on a phone belonging t  a subject 
listed in the Terrorist Screening  Database (TSDB).

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2 Principals [any offense]

I16-CBP-SND-13237 San Diego, CA U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)
CBP OFFCR (INTEL)/1605 General Misconduct-

Misuse of Government  Computer/Email/Mail/Telephone/SAN DIEGO, 
SAN DIEGO, CA

DHS Employee 6/6/2016 6/13/2016 8/22/2016

On May 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Computer Security Incident Response Center (CSIRC)  regarding U.S. Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Officer (CBPO)  San  Diego, CA. CSIRC reported that on May 25, 
2016, CBPO moved a file that could  possibly be related to Wiki Leaks from their workstation to a 
USB drive  The file contained  Confidential and NOFORN Secret classified headers

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1924
Unauthorized Removal and Retention of Classified 
Documents or Material

I16-CBP-SNJ-01732 San Juan, Puerto Rico U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) CBPO, CBP, San Juan, PR DHS Employee 11/4/2015 11/4/2015 11/3/2016

On November 2, 2015, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, Resident Agent in Charge, San Juan  (OPR/RAC/SJ), was contacted 
regarding a voicemail received by Homeland Security  Investigations San Juan (HSI/SJ) personnel in which a 
possible narcotics transaction was  discussed. According to the Special Agent (SA) who received the message, 
the voice heard in  the recording was similar to the voice of Customs and Border Protection Officer (CBPO) 

 assigned to the Luis Muñoz Marin International Airport (LMMIA), Carolina, Puerto Rico.  Details are 
contained within the narrative of this report.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 952 Importation of Controlled Substances

I16-CBP-SVA-01061 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  SPS, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 10/22/2015 10/26/2015 3/7/2016

On October 17, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA  Sonoita, AZ, who  reported that on October 
16, 2015, the Sierra Vista (AZ) Police Department (SVPD) identified a  vehicle that appeared to be travelling in 
tandem with a suspected load vehicle. The second vehicle  was determined to be registered to Seized 
Property Specialist (SPS)   Nogales, AZ.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-CBP-SVA-13157 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , CBPO, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 6/3/2016 6/4/2016 10/4/2016

On May 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Special  Agent (SA)  Douglas, 
AZ. According to SA  on May 16, 2016, a source of  information (SOI) alleged a Customs and Border 
Protection Officer (CBPO), named is  allegedly being paid to allow illegal activity through the 
Douglas  AZ Port of Entry (POE)

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-SVA-13862 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 6/16/2016 6/20/2016 9/14/2016

On June 16, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an information report  completed by 
the U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Office of Field Operations (OFO)  Analytical Management 
Systems Control Office (AMSCO). According to the information provided,  AMSCO was able to link a phone 
number belonging to CBP Officer (CBPO)   Douglas, AZ, to  an 
individual identified in the Terrorist Screening Database  (TSDB)

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-00826 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU; Non-DHS Employee; CBP; Phoenix, AZ FNU  LNU 10/19/2015 10/19/2015 2/17/2016

During the course of an unralated narcotics investigation, Phoenix PD encountered a subject attempting to 
sell a stolen sensitive government document. The document for sale was in the form of a color, detailed map, 
outlining the location of both Border Patrol and BLM sensor location, as well as BLM routes and roads.  
Representitives from the Phoenix PD, BP, as well as DHS-OIG, arranged for the purchase of the map.  The map 
was purchased for the sum of $250 by undercover officers with the Phoenix PD.  The subject was not arrested 
at the time of sale and future purchases may be conducted.  The map was placed into evidence with the 
Phoenix PD under the open narcotics investigation.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Phoenix, AZ.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-01587 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 11/2/2015 11/3/2015 1/25/2016

On October 29, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson), spoke  with Arizona 
Department of Public Safety (DPS) Sargent (Sgt  Casa Grande, AZ,  regarding a voicemail message 
he had left over the previous weekend regarding a possible  allegation. SGT eported a disreputable 
association between a federal law enforcement  officer named "  and narcotics smuggler

  This report of investigation serves to document the reported allegation made by Sg

4.3.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Consensual Relationships Personal relationships Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-03296 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Douglas, AZ DHS Employee 12/8/2015 12/8/2015 1/7/2016

On June 25, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility, Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson), received  a report of 
allegation from Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Special Agent (SA)  Homeland 
Security Investigations, Douglas, AZ (HSI/Douglas), stating he wanted to report  a Mexican national who 
alleged that he was directed by drug smugglers to go through a specific  lane at the Douglas POE

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-TUC-06102 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CPBO, Nogales, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/29/2016 2/3/2016 3/24/2016

On January 28, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Nogales, AZ.  According to the e-mail, on 
this same date, he conducted an intelligence debrief of a source of  information (SOI). According to the SOI, 

  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-TUC-06132 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, Nogales, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 3/24/2016

On January 23, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail string  from Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA)  Tucson, AZ. According to 
the e-mail string, on January 22, 2016, an inmate at the  Federal Corrections Institute, Phoenix, AZ, provided 
information regarding corrupt employees in  attempt to be released from prison and work as an informant. 
The inmate reported CBP Officer  (CBPO  Nogales, AZ, allowed him to cross multiple times with a 
loaded vehicle   The source document is attached to this file

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-TUC-11834 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  IT SPEC, CBP, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 5/13/2016 5/13/2016 5/24/2016

On May 2, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Security  Management Division (SMD) 
regarding a possible security incident that occurred on April 29,  2016. The incident appears to be a classified 
information spillage involving Information  Technology Specialist (ITS)  Tucson, AZ. A 
PowerPoint file containing  information marked SECRET//REL MCFI/X1 & SECRET//REL USA & MNC-I was found 
on ITS xternal drive.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1924 Unauthorized Removal and Retention of Classified 
Documents or Material

I16-CBP-TUC-11834 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  IT SPEC, CBP, Tucson, AZ DHS Employee 5/13/2016 5/13/2016 5/24/2016

On May 2, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Security  Management Division (SMD) 
regarding a possible security incident that occurred on April 29,  2016. The incident appears to be a classified 
information spillage involving Information  Technology Specialist (ITS)  Tucson, AZ. A 
PowerPoint file containing  information marked SECRET//REL MCFI/X1 & SECRET//REL USA & MNC-I was found 
on ITS  external drive.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1924 Unauthorized Removal and Retention of Classified 
Documents or Material

I16-CBP-TUC-12629 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  IS, CBP, Nogales, DHS Employee 5/26/2016 5/31/2016 6/8/2016

On May 17, 2016, Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional Responsibility  (OPR), was 
notified by Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Nogales, Arizona that Import  Specialist, (I

was possibly involved in criminal activity.  Surveillance conducted at the target house revealed a 
vehicle and residence registered to IS  was believed to be involved in criminal activity. Once HSI 
revealed that the target  house was in fact belonging to CBP employee they opted to call CBP OPR for further  
investigation

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-15455 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, Nogales, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/14/2016 7/21/2016 8/15/2016

On July 9, 2016, the Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional Responsibility  (OPR) duty 
agent received information that an alien smuggling attempt was made through the  Nogales Port of Entry 
(POE) on or about July 8, 2016. The information received related to an  unidentified CBPO who was allegedly 
going to wave the car through the entry lanes for a fee of  $7,000.00 U.S. currency. One illegal alien and two 
Border Crossing documented smugglers were  apprehended as a result of the attempt.  The Tucson OPR duty 
agents responded to the Nogales POE and conducted voluntary recorded  interviews with the husband and 
wife smugglers.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-TUC-18684 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, Nogales, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 9/8/2016 9/8/2016 9/9/2016

At approximately 9:36 p.m. on August 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) duty agent was  contacted by 
Nogales Border Patrol Station (NGL) Watch Commander (WC .  WC eported that 
Border Patrol Agents (BPAs) working at the I-19 checkpoint arrested  three citizens of El Salvador who claimed 
to have entered the United States through the Morley  Port of Entry (POE) in Nogales without inspection. The 
Tucson Customs and Border Protection  (CBP) Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) duty agent was 
contacted by the JIC duty agent  and advised of the allegation

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-TUC-20765 Tucson, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) , et al, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 10/19/2016

On September 8, 2016, CRCL received a referral email from CBP SITROOM (#16-TCANGL-090816000206) 
regarding shots fired at the Mariposa POE in Nogales, Arizona.  SITROOM states that BPAs attempted a traffic 
stop on a vehicle when it failed to yield southbound towards the Mariposa POE.  As the vehicle approached, 
the subject swerved towards and almost struck an OFO officer.  Shots were fired and the subject sustained 
injuries and was transported to the hospital.  An additional subject that was in the vehicle in custody.    A 
September 9, 2016 update from CBP SITROOM provides additional information.  The report states that at the 
POE, the vehicle became stuck in traffic and in an attempt to abscond the driver accelerated and swerved 
towards officers.  Four officers and one agent discharged their service issued firearms.  The vehicle continued 
travelling for approximately 400 yards, lost control, and crashed into a dirt embankment.  The driver and 
passenger were taken into custody without further incident.  The driver was struck by gunfire in the back and 
left arm, and suffered injuries to the back of the head.      The FBI, HIS, and CBP OPR were notified and 
responded.  The passenger was processed for removal while the disposition of the driver is pending.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity Off duty misconduct, no 
violence

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-CBP-WFO-00142 Washington, DC U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) LNU, FNU; CBP; Dulles, VA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/5/2015 10/5/2015 6/24/2016

This letter serves as a formal report to the Department of Homeland Security Office of the Inspector General 
and a request for an immediate investigation into the violation of civil liberties described below. Upon 
confirmation of this violation, Mr.  is requesting that (i) appropriate disciplinary action(s) be taken 
against the officers involved and (ii) an appropriate remedy be crafted and implemented to ensure that he 
does not face difficulties when traveling in the future.  In July, Mr. raveled to Pakistan carrying a red U.S. 
passport issued by the State Department strictly to those traveling on official federal government business. 
He returned to the U.S. on American Airlines flight AA7971, which landed on August 18, 2015, at 3:35-40 P.M. 
He then proceeded to customs and went through the express line for Global Entry Program participants, 
having previously been approved by this program.  Mr was flagged and directed to see an immigration 
officer, who immediately asked him what he did for living. Mr xplained that he was on official U.S. 
government business and produced a copy of his red U.S. passport. Mr was then asked for the last four 
digits of his Social Security number. His boarding pass was then marked for further inspection. He was pulled 
aside and his luggage emptied by a CBP officer who made copies of all of his papers and training materials. 
His CDs were confiscated. (Later when his some of his belongings were returned to him, a CBP officer stated 
in a rude tone, “I don’t pack suitcases, you do it.”) The officer questioned his citizenship and how he obtained 
it. After Mr.  told the officer that he applied for his citizenship when he served in the U.S. Army, the 
officer again questioned him, asking if he got it “because of marriage.”  Following this encounter with the 
CBP officer, Mr. was detained for several hours and interrogated about his activities in Pakistan by a 
Homeland Security Investigations (“HSI”) agent. The HSI agent questioning was initially vague. The interview 
came to an abrupt halt, however, once the agent asked Mr. about his work in Pakistan on behalf of the 
State Department.  This is the third time Mr. has been detained at a CBP checkpoint while traveling on 
official U.S. government business. He believes that his Pakistani national origin and Islamic religion were the 
causes for such a lengthy and unreasonable amount of scrutiny. He believes he was wrongly flagged for 
detention and interrogation by HSI for these reasons, along with the particulars of his travel itinerary to 
Pakistan, despite the obvious official nature of his travel.

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Profiling Profiling Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-WFO-01328 Washington, DC U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0802 Conflict of Interest-Misuse of 
Position/DULLES AIRPORT, LOUDOUN, VA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/27/2015 10/27/2015 8/23/2016

On October 26, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, was forwarded correspondence from 
United States Senato  of New Hampshire. According to the information received, on 
October 18, 2015, Customs and Border Protection Officers (CBPOs), Washington-Dulles international Airport, 
allegedly harassed and intimidated guests of the United States because of personal political views regarding 
women's reproductive health and Planned Parenthood. This report documents the relevant material 
received

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-CBP-YUM-02535 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) LNU FNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/19/2015 11/19/2015 3/7/2016

 

     

  

   

   
   Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 

was: San Luis Port of Entry, San Luis, AZ

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-YUM-02535 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) LNU FNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/19/2015 11/19/2015 3/7/2016

 

  

     

   

  

 
    Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 

was: San Luis Port of Entry, San Luis, AZ

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(D)

(b) (7)(D)



I16-CBP-YUM-02535 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) LNU FNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ General Public 11/19/2015 11/19/2015 3/7/2016

 

  

  

    Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: San Luis Port of Entry, San Luis, AZ

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-YUM-02535 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) LNU FNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ
Alien (Not 
Detainee) 11/19/2015 11/19/2015 3/7/2016

 

     

  

  

 
   Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 

was: San Luis Port of Entry, San Luis, AZ

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-YUM-07386 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, Yuma, AZ DHS Employee 2/22/2016 2/22/2016 4/14/2016

On February 22, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Assistant Chief Patrol Agent (ACPA)  Yuma,  AZ. According to the e-
mail, on this same date, ACPA received an anonymous call in which  the caller stated human smuggling 
was taking place at  Yuma, AZ  85365, the residence of CBP Officer (CBPO)

, San Luis, AZ.  This report documents the relevant material received.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CBP-YUM-09058 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ General Public 3/22/2016 3/28/2016 6/17/2016

On March 16, 2016, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Yuma reported to 
the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that he received  information indicating a Drug 
Trafficking Organization (DTO) may be utilizing an unknown corrupt officer at the San Luis, Arizona Port of 
Entry

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-YUM-09058 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ FNU (CBPO)  LNU DHS Employee 3/22/2016 3/28/2016 6/17/2016

On March 16, 2016, Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations (HSI),  Yuma reported to 
the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Calexico that he received  information indicating a Drug 
Trafficking Organization (DTO) may be utilizing an unknown corrupt officer at the San Luis, Arizona Port of 
Entry

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CBP-YUM-12422 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  LECA, CBP, Yuma, AZ DHS Employee 5/24/2016 5/24/2016 7/13/2016

On May 13, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email notification  from U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) IT Specialist (ITSPEC)  Cyber  Security Operations 
Center (CSOC), Herndon, VA, reporting the alleged misconduct of CBP Law  Enforcement Communication 
Assistant (LECA)  Yuma, AZ. Initial reporting  indicates on May 7, 2016, the user of 
workstation wyma16a21i was observed attempting to reach  out to several websites categorized as 
"Pornography". Upon further review, some of the traffic  was categorized as "Child Pornography". All 
attempts were reportedly blocked. The user of  workstation wyma16a21i was identified by the CSOC as LECA 

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A
Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I16-CBP-YUM-13741 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Luis, AZ 6/15/2016 6/16/2016 6/27/2016

On June 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) JIC duty agent, Del Rio, TX. According to the information  received, on this same date, 
CBP Officer (CBPO)  San Luis, AZ, reported a  search warrant was executed on her residence at 
1600 hours for Fraudulent Schemes and theft.  The target of the search warrant was CBPO s son, 

. CBPO  stated her son was not arrested at the time the search warrant was 
executed

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-CBP-YUM-13741 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS)  CBPO, San Luis, AZ DHS Employee 6/15/2016 6/16/2016 6/27/2016

On June 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an e-mail from the  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) JIC duty agent, Del Rio, TX. According to the information  received, on this same date, 
CBP Officer (CBPO)  San Luis, AZ, reported a  search warrant was executed on her residence at 
1600 hours for Fraudulent Schemes and theft.  The target of the search warrant was CBPO  son, 

. CBPO  stated her son was not arrested at the time the search warrant was 
executed.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-CBP-YUM-14743 Yuma, AZ U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) FNU LNU, CBPO, San Luis, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/30/2016 7/7/2016 8/15/2016

On June 28, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from the  American Civil 
Liberties Union (ACLU) of Arizona regarding a complaint made by  a civilian. Ms
alleged that she was unlawfully detained and searched by U.S.  Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Officers 
(CBPOs) after she presented herself for inspection  at the San Luis, AZ, port of entry (POE) on May 19, 2015.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-CIS-DAL-16473 Dallas, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) CENTER FOR PEOPLE IN NEED/LINCOLN, NEBRASKA Grant Applicant 8/3/2016 8/8/2016 12/15/2016

A special agent from the Corporation for National and Community Service’s Office of Inspector General (CNCS 
OIG) contacted the OoC Grants Division with questions regarding a Citizenship and Integration grant to the 
Center for People in Need (CFPN) in Lincoln, Nebraska. This grant’s period of performance ends in two 
months, and the grant will not be renewed. The CNCS OIG special agent is investigating CFPN for possible 
grant fraud associated with their AmeriCorps grant and their use of AmeriCorps volunteers.  The special agent 
indicated that he would continue to investigate if USCIS indicated that it believed that the unauthorized 
practice of immigration law was taking place.      The sub-awardee under the grant, Center for Legal 
Immigration Assistance (CLIA), apparently reported to the CNCS OIG that AmeriCorps volunteers at CFPN are 
providing some immigration services outside the scope of the authorized practice of immigration law.  Under 
the grant, CFPN proposed to use its AmeriCorps volunteers to assist immigrants with filling out the N-400. All 
forms were then to be reviewed, approved, and signed by BIA-accredited reps or attorneys from the sub-
awardee (CLIA). CLIA alleges that CFPN is completing immigration forms other than the N-400 with 
AmeriCorps volunteer assistance, and not sending these forms to it for appropriate review and signature.     
At this time, it does not appear there is sufficient evidence to conclude that the grant recipient was involved 
in the unauthorized practice of immigration law and we would need to conduct a monitoring trip to learn 
more.  OoC’s Grants Division Chief (copied here), has already been in contact with USCIS OCC. 
We need to inform the DHS OIG and determine how to work further with CNCS OIG to resolve this matter in 
the short time remaining on this grant.

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CIS-DAL-16473 Dallas, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) CENTER FOR PEOPLE IN NEED/LINCOLN, NEBRASKA Grant Applicant 8/3/2016 8/8/2016 12/15/2016

A special agent from the Corporation for National and Community Service’s Office of Inspector General (CNCS 
OIG) contacted the OoC Grants Division with questions regarding a Citizenship and Integration grant to the 
Center for People in Need (CFPN) in Lincoln, Nebraska. This grant’s period of performance ends in two 
months, and the grant will not be renewed. The CNCS OIG special agent is investigating CFPN for possible 
grant fraud associated with their AmeriCorps grant and their use of AmeriCorps volunteers.  The special agent 
indicated that he would continue to investigate if USCIS indicated that it believed that the unauthorized 
practice of immigration law was taking place.      The sub-awardee under the grant, Center for Legal 
Immigration Assistance (CLIA), apparently reported to the CNCS OIG that AmeriCorps volunteers at CFPN are 
providing some immigration services outside the scope of the authorized practice of immigration law.  Under 
the grant, CFPN proposed to use its AmeriCorps volunteers to assist immigrants with filling out the N-400. All 
forms were then to be reviewed, approved, and signed by BIA-accredited reps or attorneys from the sub-
awardee (CLIA). CLIA alleges that CFPN is completing immigration forms other than the N-400 with 
AmeriCorps volunteer assistance, and not sending these forms to it for appropriate review and signature.     
At this time, it does not appear there is sufficient evidence to conclude that the grant recipient was involved 
in the unauthorized practice of immigration law and we would need to conduct a monitoring trip to learn 
more.  OoC’s Grants Division Chief (copied here), has already been in contact with USCIS OCC. 
We need to inform the DHS OIG and determine how to work further with CNCS OIG to resolve this matter in 
the short time remaining on this grant.

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CIS-DAL-16473 Dallas, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) CENTER FOR PEOPLE IN NEED/LINCOLN, NEBRASKA Grant Applicant 8/3/2016 8/8/2016 12/15/2016

A special agent from the Corporation for National and Community Service’s Office of Inspector General (CNCS 
OIG) contacted the OoC Grants Division with questions regarding a Citizenship and Integration grant to the 
Center for People in Need (CFPN) in Lincoln, Nebraska. This grant’s period of performance ends in two 
months, and the grant will not be renewed. The CNCS OIG special agent is investigating CFPN for possible 
grant fraud associated with their AmeriCorps grant and their use of AmeriCorps volunteers.  The special agent 
indicated that he would continue to investigate if USCIS indicated that it believed that the unauthorized 
practice of immigration law was taking place.      The sub-awardee under the grant, Center for Legal 
Immigration Assistance (CLIA), apparently reported to the CNCS OIG that AmeriCorps volunteers at CFPN are 
providing some immigration services outside the scope of the authorized practice of immigration law.  Under 
the grant, CFPN proposed to use its AmeriCorps volunteers to assist immigrants with filling out the N-400. All 
forms were then to be reviewed, approved, and signed by BIA-accredited reps or attorneys from the sub-
awardee (CLIA). CLIA alleges that CFPN is completing immigration forms other than the N-400 with 
AmeriCorps volunteer assistance, and not sending these forms to it for appropriate review and signature.     
At this time, it does not appear there is sufficient evidence to conclude that the grant recipient was involved 
in the unauthorized practice of immigration law and we would need to conduct a monitoring trip to learn 
more.  OoC’s Grants Division Chief (copied here), has already been in contact with USCIS OCC. 
We need to inform the DHS OIG and determine how to work further with CNCS OIG to resolve this matter in 
the short time remaining on this grant.

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-CIS-DET-07798 Detroit, MI U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) DHS Employee 3/2/2016 3/2/2016 3/17/2016

The DHS OIG Detroit Field Office received information from an Immigration Attorney indicating one of their 
clients was told to call  CIS, to seek assistance for a family member currently detained with an 
immigration hold. The client was under the impression tha  might be able to use his position to 
circumvent the normal CIS procedures to assist their family members case. The DHS OIG confirmed the 
number provided to the client was s cellular telephone number.    Hotline Service 03/02/16 STD 
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Detroit, MI    734 Hotline Service 03/02/16 
STD Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty     734 Hotline Service 
03/02/16 STD Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-CIS-HOU-05837 Houston, TX U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; CIS - U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services (DHS); Houston, TX

1/27/2016 2/2/2016 3/11/2016

***HOUSTON HAS REQUESTED THIS BE PLACED BACK IN THE HOUSTON RIBBON    The Office of Inspector 
General, Digital Forensics and Analysis Unit received a request for support and assistance from the Health and 
Human Services Office of Inspector General regarding an enterprise impersonating DHS USCIS employees.  
Specifically, individuals  were being contacted and funds solicitited to obtain work permits for the United 
States.  In particular, a reruiting firm was identifying and interviewing candidates for United State 
Government positions, then referring them to the impersonating USCIS entity, which solicited money from 
them.  The individuals appear to be operating out of Houston, Texas, and using the domain name usci-
immigrationservices.com.  The HHS Special Agent was looking for assistance from DHS OIG in their ongoing 
case.  Additional forms from HHS will be attached.

3.5.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

by Non-DHS Employee Impersonation of a DHS 
employee

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-CIS-MIA-05351 Miami, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Unknown Employee; USCIS, Fort Lauderdale, FL FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/13/2016 1/15/2016 9/26/2016

Special Agent (SA)  notified the Office of Professional Responsibility  (OPR), SAC Southeast 
Region, Miami, Florida that she had received information from an  undocumented source of information 
(SOI), through a documented confidential informant (CI)  regarding

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1028 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Identification Documents and Information

I16-CIS-NYC-03495 New York, NY U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) , Immigration Services Officer, U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services, New York, NY

DHS Employee 12/11/2015 12/11/2015 1/28/2016

On Monday, December 7th Immigration Services Officer (ISO) handed ISO a 
piece of paper with a receipt # and asked him to please run a check on CLAIMS 3. Please note that officers 
help each other out when the systems do not work properly. ISO an the receipt number and once 
the information was on the screen, ISO  who was standing by, asked him if he recognized the name. 
IS tated that he did not recognized the name, at which point ISO stated that the file 
accessed was the I-129F petition of the female involved in the San Bernardino mass shootings. ISO
asked ISO how he obtained the information. ISO stated that he got the names from news 
reports and searched for the receipt number using the USCIS data bases.  Office  reported the 
incident to the on duty supervisor,  is also ISO  supervisor. Unfortunately 
the incident was not elevated to ETC leadership until today.  Upon notification, we reached out to HQCSPED 
leadership, NY OSI Manager  and HQ LER  Following guidance from OSI, an 
Employee Misconduct Report was filed at 500pm today. OSI will determine the level of investigation after 
reviewing the report. Following LER guidance, we requested a statement from both officers and gave both 
the Weingarten form.  All system access has been suspended for ISO  He has been assigned 
administrative duties until the investigation is complete and proper action is taken. The ISO is currently on 
probation since he joined the ETC on July 2015.

4.1.12 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Unauthorized Use of L.E.O. 
Component Data System(s)

Unauthorized personal 
use of a DHS computer

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CIS-NYC-03495 New York, NY U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Services Officer, U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services, New York, NY

DHS Employee 12/11/2015 12/11/2015 1/28/2016

On Monday, December 7th Immigration Services Officer (ISO) handed ISO a 
piece of paper with a receipt # and asked him to please run a check on CLAIMS 3. Please note that officers 
help each other out when the systems do not work properly. ISO an the receipt number and once 
the information was on the screen, ISO  who was standing by, asked him if he recognized the name. 
ISO tated that he did not recognized the name, at which point ISO stated that the file 
accessed was the I-129F petition of the female involved in the San Bernardino mass shootings. ISO
asked ISO how he obtained the information. ISO stated that he got the names from news 
reports and searched for the receipt number using the USCIS data bases.  Office  reported the 
incident to the on duty supervisor,  Mr.  is also ISO s supervisor. Unfortunately 
the incident was not elevated to ETC leadership until today.  Upon notification, we reached out to HQCSPED 
leadership, NY OSI Manager  and HQ LER  Following guidance from OSI, an 
Employee Misconduct Report was filed at 500pm today. OSI will determine the level of investigation after 
reviewing the report. Following LER guidance, we requested a statement from both officers and gave both 
the Weingarten form.  All system access has been suspended for ISO Camilien. He has been assigned 
administrative duties until the investigation is complete and proper action is taken. The ISO is currently on 
probation since he joined the ETC on July 2015.

4.1.12 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Unauthorized Use of L.E.O. 
Component Data System(s)

Unauthorized personal 
use of a DHS computer

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CIS-NYC-17300 New York, NY U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  CIS; NJ DHS Employee 8/18/2016 8/19/2016 10/6/2016

This morning at 7:30AM when I came to Newark Asylum Office (located at 1200 Wall St  West, Lyndhurst, NJ) 
to the server room -  who works as IT administrator at this office,  approached to me and said 
these exact words: " I was told to not to mess with you, but you know  I am  this type of guy who 
brings the gun and start shooting people. I am not afraid to go to jail" He was very serious  saying this. Then 
he turned around and left the computer room.

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 111
Assaulting, Resisting or Impeding Certain Officers 
or Employees

I16-CIS-NYC-17302 New York, NY U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  USCIS; Newark, NJ DHS Employee 8/18/2016 8/23/2016 12/1/2016

Asylum Officer pulled up electronic data in CIS on a particular  A-file that was being monitored ("Melania 
Trump"). She did not have a need to  know for accessing this data. Director and Deputy Director (ZNK 
Management) were  contacted by RAIO HQ (Deputy Associate Director), who asked that ZNK  Management 
contact the Asylum Officer to determine if what information was  accesssed and what was done with the 
information. ZNK Management informed  RAIO HQ that Asylum Officer had called out sick that morning and 
was not on duty.  After consultation with LER and RAIO HQ, ZNK Deputy Director contacted Asylum  Officer by 
telephone and asked what they know about Melania Trump's electronic  records and what, if anything, was 
done with whatever information that was  possessed. These open-ended questions were asked to determine 
whether there  was any reasonable belief that a serious criminal offence was afoot. Asylum Officer  
confessed that she queried Melania Trump's record, but did nothing with that  information. Asylum Officer 
said that she was curious about the information, knows  she did somethign wrong, and hopes she did not 
embarass the Deputy Director. She  said with emphasis that she did nothing with the information. Both 
parties hung up.  Nothing else was or has been communicated to the Asylum Office  Below is  the 
running list of CIS access on the case we discussed a last week. Again, the first  user is a FOIA processor who 
legitimately accessed the CIS record in response to  processing a FOIA request. The second two belong to 
Asylum Office  I  am not aware of having a need to know for pulling up electronic data in 
CIS  on this particular A-file number. However, I've shared this information with who will 
directly engage with the employee (the employee is on leave  until tomorrow) or would you rather a referral 
to OSI? A-NUMBER USERID OFC  TERM ID CIS TRAN TRAN DATE/TIME 047566132 NRC5461A NRC J5NRC2AE  
9100SPER 08/09/2016 12:55 (previously) 047566132 XXE6038B XXE J5ZNK0BA 9101  ID 08/11/2016 14:07 (search 
by ID number) 047566132 XXE6038B XXE J5ZNK0BA  9504 FTD 08/11/2016 14:08 (file transfer display) Best, 

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CIS-ORL-00260 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Immigration Services Officer,  U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services, Tampa, FL

DHS Employee 10/6/2015 10/7/2015 2/2/2016

On October 6, 2015,  Special Agent, Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector 
General received a telephone call from  Field Office Director, United States Citizenship and 
Immigration Services, Tampa, Florida.   alleged that on October 5, 2015  Immigration 
Services Officer, USCIS, Tampa, Florida, reported to his supervisor,  Section Chief, USCIS, 
Tampa, Florida, that his live-in girlfriend is a foreign national who entered the United States as a visitor (B-2), 
but failed to return to her country of origin and is currently classified as a ???visa overstay.???  The 
complainant further stated that durin ?? conversation with  he did not disclose the identity 
of the foreign national.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Tampa, Florida   
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

4.3.4 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Contact with Foreign 
Governments / Nationals

Contact with Foreign 
Governments / 
Nationals

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-CIS-ORL-05650 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)
LNU, FNU; U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS); Melbourne, 
FL 1/22/2016 1/27/2016 8/8/2016

9:28AM CST    The complainant,  is filing a report against United States Citizenship and Immigration 
Services(USCIS) as well as tates that she believes tha s selling the 
names of those who are in need of green cards.  states that on January 21, 2016, she received a phone 
call from from  states that asked her to send money to Western 
Union, which would go towards a green card fo  Feeley states that she does not know a 

states that she believes that someone at USCIS gave her information to  as 
she is in the system and needs a green card renewal.  states that this situation needs to be dealt with 
immediately, before many people are scammed.

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1427 Sale of naturalization or citizenship papers

I16-CIS-ORL-05650 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)
LNU, FNU; U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS); Melbourne, 
FL 1/22/2016 1/27/2016 8/8/2016

9:28AM CST    The complainant  is filing a report against United States Citizenship and Immigration 
Services(USCIS) as well as tates that she believes tha s selling the 
names of those who are in need of green cards.  states that on January 21, 2016, she received a phone 
call from from  states that asked her to send money to Western 
Union, which would go towards a green card fo  states that she does not know a 

states that she believes that someone at USCIS gave her information to  as 
she is in the system and needs a green card renewal  states that this situation needs to be dealt with 
immediately, before many people are scammed.

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1427 Sale of naturalization or citizenship papers

I16-CIS-ORL-06381 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) ; USCIS; Jacksonville, FL DHS Employee 2/5/2016 2/5/2016 2/19/2016

OSI received the attached email correspondence from the DHS OIG, Orlando, FL. The emails indicate  that 
 ISO, Jacksonville Field Office, Jacksonville, FL, provided immigration advice or  assistance via 

email to persons known to him personally. The emails also indicate may be in  a relationship with 
one of individuals. In one email,  offers to help an applicant prepare for  her USCIS benefit interview. 
Based on a preliminary review of the email data, recommend the  names be checked in CIS/CLAIMS for 
pending immigration benefits as well as examine queries to determine if made 
unauthorized queries.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I16-CIS-ORL-17092 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Immigration Services Officer, GS 12, USCIS, 
Jacksonville, FL

DHS Component 8/15/2016 8/18/2016 10/27/2016

This allegation is being submitted b  Senior Special Agent, U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security of Inspector General, Orlando, FL, in conjunction with  Special Agent, U.S. Citizenship 
and Immigration Services (UCSIS), Office of Security and Integrity, Orlando, FL.    In summary, on August 14, 
2012  Immigration Services Officer (ISO), USCIS, Jacksonville Field Office, completed his 
background questionnaire (Electronic Questionnaires for Investigations Processing, e-QIP) in or around 
Jacksonville, FL.  On question 27 of the e-QIP, answered "NO" to improper queries of Use of 
Information Technology Systems.  However, the DHS OIG discovered tha  outside of his scope of 
employment, used his work email to routinely communicate with foreign nationals(known to him personally) 
about the immigration application process.  S  then discovered that queried some of these 
subjects and family members in

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-CIS-ORL-17092 Orlando, FL U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS) Immigration Services Officer, GS 12, USCIS, 
Jacksonville, FL

DHS Component 8/15/2016 8/18/2016 10/27/2016

This allegation is being submitted b  Senior Special Agent, U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security of Inspector General, Orlando, FL, in conjunction with  Special Agent, U.S. Citizenship 
and Immigration Services (UCSIS), Office of Security and Integrity, Orlando, FL.    In summary, on August 14, 
2012  Immigration Services Officer (ISO), USCIS, Jacksonville Field Office, completed his 
background questionnaire (Electronic Questionnaires for Investigations Processing, e-QIP) in or around 
Jacksonville, FL.  On question 27 of the e-QIP, answered "NO" to improper queries of Use of 
Information Technology Systems.  However, the DHS OIG discovered that  outside of his scope of 
employment, used his work email to routinely communicate with foreign nationals(known to him personally) 
about the immigration application process.  SA then discovered that queried some of these 
subjects and family members in

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030 Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(D)

(b) (7)(D)

(b) (7)(A)



I16-CIS-PHL-04362 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  CIS; St. Albans, VT DHS Employee 12/29/2015 12/31/2015 8/4/2016

Late yesterday afternoon, Special Agent  Federal Protective Service-Region 1,  Boston, MA, 
Field Office, contacted me and indicated that he had become aware of an employee at the St. Albans Service 
Center, St. Albans, VT, who was in possession of heroin. The employee is  a GS-1801-09 ISO, 
who has been with USCIS since December 2012. My  understanding is that a contract employee was offered 
heroin b  has the heroin  with her at the workplace, and that s supervisors may even 
be aware that she has heroin.  I advise  that I would be consulting with you and I would contact him 
after that consultation.    UPDATE:  On April 8, 2016, the DHS OIG Hotline received another complaint stating 
that  appeared to be "high" on drugs while at work on 4/1/2016,. The complaint was submitted by 

, Section Chief, USCIS, 75 Lower Welden St., Saint Albans VT, 05479.  

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 21 USC 844 Penalties for Simple Possession

I16-CIS-PHL-04362 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  CIS; St. Albans, VT DHS Employee 12/29/2015 12/31/2015 8/4/2016

Late yesterday afternoon, Special Agent  Federal Protective Service-Region 1,  Boston, MA, 
Field Office, contacted me and indicated that he had become aware of an employee at the St. Albans Service 
Center, St. Albans, VT, who was in possession of heroin. The employee is  a GS-1801-09 ISO, 
who has been with USCIS since December 2012. My  understanding is that a contract employee was offered 
heroin b  has the heroin  with her at the workplace, and that s supervisors may even 
be aware that she has heroin.  I advise  that I would be consulting with you and I would contact him 
after that consultation.    UPDATE:  On April 8, 2016, the DHS OIG Hotline received another complaint stating 
that  appeared to be "high" on drugs while at work on 4/1/2016,. The complaint was submitted by 

 Section Chief, USCIS, 75 Lower Welden St., Saint Albans VT, 05479.  

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 844 Penalties for Simple Possession

I16-CIS-SEA-06871 Seattle, WA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  ; U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Las Vegas, NV

DHS Employee 2/16/2016 2/16/2016 10/17/2016

Office may have met his wife while interviewing her for her naturalization application and 
favorably adjudicating the application which led to her becoming a United States citizen.  She then filed a 
petition for her parents, who were residing in China.  Due to the expediency of the petition adjudication, it 
may also have been possible that Office djudicated such petition, or requested one of his 
coworkers to do so.    Shortly after marriage, Office  purchased a home with his wife in an affluent 
part of town.  Upon the arrival of his in-laws to the United States, he took a couple of weeks off work.  Upon 
his return, he was driving a brand new Mercedes Benz.  Further, he informed coworkers that he purchased 
two homes in Henderson, NV during this two week vacation.  The origin of the funds used to make such large 
purchases in a short period of time is questionable.   Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Las Vegas, NV

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption Other Employee 
Corruption

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1425 Procurement of Citizenship or Naturalization 
Unlawfully

I16-CIS-WFO-09561 Washington, DC U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  USCIS; DHS Employee; Arlington, VA DHS Employee 3/24/2016 4/4/2016 8/8/2016

Complaint Narrative: The USCIS Transit Subsidy program recently transitioned from  a paper based application 
and record keeping system to a web based system. Upon  completion of the annual transit subsidy 
recertification this January and the  implementation of a web based system, the transit subsidy program was 
able to  audit users of the benefit and determine if any anomalies existed. During this audit,  it was 
discovered that ad two separate transit subsidy accounts  and was issued two TRANServe 
debit cards by the Department of Transportation. stablished two accounts with two 
different names ( . We have confirmed that
has  used both of these cards concurrently during the month of February to purchase  transit media. We can 
provide reports from JP Morgan that indicate the exact date,  time, and amount of each transaction if 
requested. The transit subsidy program  office has already de-activated one of TRANServe debit 
cards to prevent  continued misuse

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-DHS-YUM-17394 Yuma, AZ U.S. Department of Homeland Security FNU LNU, unknown, Yuma, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/12/2016 8/19/2016 9/27/2016

On August 9, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA ,  Yuma, AZ, regarding 
information obtained during field intelligence collection processes. It was  reported that agents uncovered 
information provided directly from one Drug Trafficking  Organization (DTO) member directly to another. The 
information was a cell phone number with  instructions to coordinate with the individual at that time. 
Although a direct owner for the phone  number could not be established, a possibility that the phone is 
owned by a law enforcement  entity was revealed through LexisNexis.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-DHSHQ-ORL-01760 Orlando, FL
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee; DHS HQ; Oviedo, FL General Public 11/4/2015 11/4/2015 2/2/2016

On November 3, 2015, the DHS OIG, Orlando Sub Office, received information from  Officer, 
Oviedo Police Department (OPD), Oviedo, Florida, that a citizen found an identification card bearing the logo 
of the Department of Homeland Security.  Upon inspection, it was determined that the identification was not 
issued by the Department nor does it have markings pertaining to any DHS component.  The person depicted 
on the identification,  of Oviedo, Florida, has a criminal record including misdemeanor 
arrests for possession of marijuana and failure to appear.  A records review failed to reveal any relationship 
between nd the department.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Oviedo, Florida

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
False Personating of a DHS 
Employee Impersonation Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-DHSHQ-ORL-01760 Orlando, FL
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; DHS HQ; Oviedo, FL General Public 11/4/2015 11/4/2015 2/2/2016

On November 3, 2015, the DHS OIG, Orlando Sub Office, received information from  Officer, 
Oviedo Police Department (OPD), Oviedo, Florida, that a citizen found an identification card bearing the logo 
of the Department of Homeland Security.  Upon inspection, it was determined that the identification was not 
issued by the Department nor does it have markings pertaining to any DHS component.  The person depicted 
on the identification,  of Oviedo, Florida, has a criminal record including misdemeanor 
arrests for possession of marijuana and failure to appear.  A records review failed to reveal any relationship 
between nd the department.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Oviedo, Florida

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes
False Personating of a DHS 
Employee Impersonation Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912

False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-DHSHQ-ORL-04884 Orlando, FL U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS)

LNU, FNU; Non-DHS Employee; DHSHQ - U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security Headquarters (DHS); Pasco County, FL

FNU  LNU 1/7/2016 1/8/2016 5/18/2016

The Pasco County (FL) Sheriff's Office (PCSO) requested the public's assistance seeking any information 
regarding a theft which took place on December 30, 2015.  The message is copied below.      "Pasco Sheriff's 
Office deputies are searching for a man suspected of impersonating a law enforcement member.  On Tuesday 
about 8 p.m., the victim was traveling south on U.S. Highway 41 at Bowman Road in Spring Hill when he was 
stopped by a midsize, unknown make sedan with flashing red and blue lights on the passenger side visor. A 
white male in his 30's standing about 6-feet tall, weighing 220 pounds and clean shaven approached the 
victim. The suspect was wearing a blue uniform, described as BDUs or Battle Dress Uniform, with an 
embroidered, five-point star with an eagle and "DHS" embroidered on the collar.  The suspect identified 
himself as being from Homeland Security and told the victim he was being stopped for speeding. The suspect 
then asked the victim for his license and registration. As the victim opened his console, the male saw a TD 
Bank envelope and he asked what was in the envelope. The victim told him that he just got paid for a job and 
the male took the envelope along with the victim's paperwork and walked back to his car. The suspect 
returned a few minutes later and warned the victim, but he didn't return the envelope, which contained a 
large amount of cash. The victim asked for his money and the male told him that he would have to come to 
the Federal Building in Tampa and prove it was his. On Wednesday the victim called the Federal Building and 
was told he was scammed."    Contact was made with the PCSO and the case has been assigned to PCSO's 
Major Crimes Bureau.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: U. S. Highway 41, 
corner of Bowman Road, Pasco County, FL

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-DHSHQ-SID-04833
Special Investigations 
Division

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Headquarters (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* 1/7/2016 4/1/2016 12/22/2016 *SID CASE* 4.3.11 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct

Ethics Violations - Non-
Criminal Ethics Violations Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FAMS-HOU-03418 Houston, TX Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS)
 Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS); DHS Employee; 

TSA; Houston, X DHS Employee 12/9/2015 12/11/2015 1/22/2016

12:05 PM CST  The complainant is reporting Federal Air Marshal Service employees  
 The complainant claims 

 a certified EMT, was assigned to the ride along program. The complainant says was supposed 
to be doing a monthly ride along with the Cypress Creek Division. The complainant states in June of 2015 

was speaking with the Cypress Creek Division employees and asked how was doing with the 
ride along program. The complainant claims the individual was speaking with replied by stating 
???what do you mean, we have not see n 6 months???. The complainant says this meant was 
not performing his job or going to his assignment during the times he claimed he did. The complainant states 
the employees are tasked with a time and attendance report which records the times they work, an
had been lying about the times he worked and receiving pay for the times. The complainant claims when 

was confronted about the matter, he lied about attending the ride along but eventually admitted that 
he had not been going to his job. The complainant says this type of behavior has occurred multiple times 
pertaining to  The complainant states there is clear evidence which supports the fact that had 
not been attending his job. The complainant claims s fully aware of the incident, but has not done 
anything about the situation. The complainant says as yet to reprimand ecaus ???s 
lack of knowledge abou not attending his job meant as not fulfilled his duties as supervisor 
to monitor his subordinates or to manage them. The complainant states that it appears had not had 
contact wit for six months to assure was doing his job. The complainant claims upper 
management, , are now trying to protect  by protecting and 
not reprimanding him so they will not have to write up  for not properly supervisin  The 
complainant says upper management has also been refusing to speak about the matter. The complainant 
states management is normally extremely hard on other employees who do not fall within the right group. 
The complainant claims because s a supervisor and falls within the right group, they are attempting 
to protect him. The complainant says several employees are fed up management not holding consistent 
standards for punishment of employees. The complainant states many employees who were able to quit and 
retire have done so because they do not like the inconsistency of management.    LSU Call Center submitter 
provided an incident date range of: January 2015 - Present .

4.3.13 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Management Management Information Only Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-FAMS-HOU-03418 Houston, TX Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS)
 Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS); DHS Employee; 

TSA; Houston, X DHS Employee 12/9/2015 12/11/2015 1/22/2016

12:05 PM CST  The complainant is reporting Federal Air Marshal Service employees
 The complainant claims 

 a certified EMT, was assigned to the ride along program. The complainant says was supposed 
to be doing a monthly ride along with the Cypress Creek Division. The complainant states in June of 2015 

was speaking with the Cypress Creek Division employees and asked how was doing with the 
ride along program. The complainant claims the individual was speaking with replied by stating 
???what do you mean, we have not see n 6 months???. The complainant says this meant was 
not performing his job or going to his assignment during the times he claimed he did. The complainant states 
the employees are tasked with a time and attendance report which records the times they work, an
had been lying about the times he worked and receiving pay for the times. The complainant claims when 

was confronted about the matter, he lied about attending the ride along but eventually admitted that 
he had not been going to his job. The complainant says this type of behavior has occurred multiple times 
pertaining to  The complainant states there is clear evidence which supports the fact that had 
not been attending his job. The complainant claim s fully aware of the incident, but has not done 
anything about the situation. The complainant says as yet to repriman ecaus ???s 
lack of knowledge abou not attending his job mean  has not fulfilled his duties as supervisor 
to monitor his subordinates or to manage them. The complainant states that it appear had not had 
contact wit for six months to assure was doing his job. The complainant claims upper 
management, , are now trying to protec  by protecting and 
not reprimanding him so they will not have to write u  for not properly supervisin  The 
complainant says upper management has also been refusing to speak about the matter. The complainant 
states management is normally extremely hard on other employees who do not fall within the right group. 
The complainant claims because s a supervisor and falls within the right group, they are attempting 
to protect him. The complainant says several employees are fed up management not holding consistent 
standards for punishment of employees. The complainant states many employees who were able to quit and 
retire have done so because they do not like the inconsistency of management.    LSU Call Center submitter 
provided an incident date range of: January 2015 - Present .

4.3.13 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Management Management Information Only Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-FAMS-HOU-04474 Houston, TX Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS) Federal Air Marshal's Service (DHS); Houston, TX 12/31/2015 2/2/2016 8/17/2016

10:04 AM CST    The complainant, , is making a classified report. laims the information he is 
relaying is ???SSI??? or secret security information regarding how the guns and weapons in the Houston 
Federal Air Marshal???s Service are being handled.  says the agency only wants to provide the 
information to someone who is SSI cleared, so the complaint was treated as classified.  disclosed he 
contacted the EEO office and was informed since he has not previously filed an EEO complaint that the 
complaint did not fall under reprisal as far as EEO is concerned also disclosed that he is facing retaliation 
for the reports he has made against the wrong-doing of his supervisors  would like to be contacted as 
soon as possible because he fears for the safety of others involved in the matter.      LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Federal Air Marshal's Service in Houston, Texas

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Local Violation

I16-FEMA-ATL-00659 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) -Non DHS Employee  AKA Juanita L. Wright Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

10/11/2015 10/15/2015 2/25/2016

SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING    SUBJ IS CURRENTLY INCARCERATED AT SUMTER LEE REGIONAL 
DETENTION CENTER IN  SUMTER, SC.     SUBJ HAS FILED FRAUDULENT CLAIMS WITH FEMA BEFORE, COMPL IS 
NOT SURE THAT SUBJ HAS  RECENTLY FILED A FRAUDULENT FEMA CLAIM, BUT SUBJ HAS PREVIOUSLY FILED 
FEMA CLAIMS  USING THE COMPL SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER.    COMPL IS SUBJ DAUGHTER AND WHEN SHE 
TRIES TO LOG INTO FEMA WITH HER SSN HER  MOTHER'S INFORMATION IS DISPLAYED

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-FEMA-ATL-03396 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; DHS FEMA DBA; Kings Tree, SC Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/9/2015 12/11/2015 8/23/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud. Please see Uploaded Documents for 
further information.  Password:  open    DR4241 South Carolina flooding  RegID 394419757    
FIID conducted data mining of disaster assistance applications to identify applicants who applied for and/or 
received assistance for a home that was not their primary residence.  Our research indicates tha ???s 
primary residence was not the damaged dwelling. raudulently received almost $23,900 in disaster 
assistance

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-03396 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; DHS FEMA DBA; Kings Tree, SC Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/9/2015 12/11/2015 8/23/2016

FEMA FIID validated this complaint and found indications of fraud. Please see Uploaded Documents for 
further information.  Password:  open    DR4241 South Carolina flooding  RegID 394419757    
FIID conducted data mining of disaster assistance applications to identify applicants who applied for and/or 
received assistance for a home that was not their primary residence.  Our research indicates tha ???s 
primary residence was not the damaged dwelling. raudulently received almost $23,900 in disaster 
assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-03412 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; FEMA DBA; SC. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/9/2015 12/9/2015 3/9/2016
Attached is the FEMA data mining Fraud Review by FEMA FIPB of  (same new password).  There 
was an indication of fraud against FEMA.   pplied for and received FEMA disaster assistance 
after South Carolina Severe Storms and Flooding (DR-4241)  by providing false information

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-FEMA-ATL-03415 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; SC. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/9/2015 12/9/2015 3/4/2016
** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: FPIB Data-mining  Allegation: pplied for and received FEMA disaster assistance 
for South Carolina Severe Storms & Flooding / DR-4241, by providing false information

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-FEMA-ATL-03423 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; FEMA DBA; SC. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/9/2015 12/9/2015 9/26/2016
** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: Data Mining  Allegation:  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance  by 
providing false information.  Total Amount Awarded: $9,245.72

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-FEMA-ATL-03693 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; SC.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/15/2015 2/26/2016 3/7/2016

** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: Data mining  Allegation  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance after 
South Carolina Severe Storms and Flooding (DR-4241), by providing false information.  Total Amount 
Awarded: $21,927.45

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04282 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; SC. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/28/2015 12/28/2015 8/3/2016 ** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Allegation: applied 
for and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information.  Total Amount Awarded: $13,921.01

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04285 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; SC. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/28/2015 12/28/2015 8/5/2016
** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: FEMA Data-Mining  Allegation:  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance 
by  providing false information   Total Amount Awarded: $11 515 34

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04286 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; SC. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/28/2015 12/28/2015 9/1/2016
** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: FEMA Data-Mining  Allegation:  applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance  by 
providing false information.  Total Amount Awarded: $13,178.48

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04392 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Columbia, SC
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/30/2015 12/30/2015 5/19/2016

DR4241 South Carolina Flooding  RegID 394432793  Total Award to date:  $16,227.53    FIID 
Internal Data Mining Query of applicants who changed the damaged dwelling from secondary to primary 
residence.     Allegation: pplied for and received federal disaster assistance for the damaged 
dwelling which was not his primary residence at the time of the disaster.       An initial review o s 
NEMIS file showed that on 10/12/2015, he submitted an application for federal disaster assistance for the 
damaged dwelling located at  Columbia, SC 29201 and listed it as his secondary residence 
which made him ineligible for assistance. On 10/16/2015 contacted FEMA and changed the damaged 
dwelling to his primary residence which made him eligible for assistance. submitted appeal 
documents to FEMA and was awarded a total of $16,227.53 in federal disaster assistance.     FIID checked 
Accurint/Lexis Nexis records along with Motor Vehicle records which indicated his actual primary residence is 
located at , Seattle, WA 98112.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04635 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/5/2016 1/5/2016 10/25/2016

SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING DR 4241   applied for and received FEMA disaster 
assistance by providing false information.  FEMA records reflect that pplied for FEMA disaster 
assistance via the Disaster Assistance Center call center site on 10/09/2015, and was issued Registration ID #45
0538497.  claimed that the residence she owned and resided in located at  S Myrtle Beach, 
SC 29575 was damaged on 10/02/2015 as a result of the South Carolina Severe Storms and Flooding. Based on 
her application, FEMA awarded disaster assistance totaling $12,637.30 that included $11,323.30 for home 
repair, and $1,314.00 for rental assistance. The applicant listed a damaged phone number of  
and an email address of @aol.com. The applicant listed the following person residing in the home at 
the time of the disaster:  (co-applicant). FEMA records revealed that on 10/15/2015, the 
damaged dwelling address was changed to . S Surfside Beach, SC 29575.  According to the 
government property records of the Horry County (SC) Recorder of Deeds Office records was 
listed as the owner since 07/14/2010.  FEMA records revealed that the applicant provided homeowner’s 
insurance information specifying that the damaged address was insured by Farm Bureau Insurance, however 
a policy number was not provided. On 12/21/2015, the Fraud Branch contacted Farm Bureau Insurance 
Company  and spoke to customer service representative,  to verify the insurance 
information provided by the applicant. According t  the damaged dwelling was insured by 
homeowners policy number HO-0433571 at the time of disaster. The policy did not provide coverage for 
water/flood related damage. stated that the policy listed the dwelling as the applicant’s primary 
residence. said that no claims were filed by the applicant

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04635 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee, FEMA DBA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/5/2016 1/5/2016 10/25/2016

SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING DR 4241   applied for and received FEMA disaster 
assistance by providing false information.  FEMA records reflect that pplied for FEMA disaster 
assistance via the Disaster Assistance Center call center site on 10/09/2015, and was issued Registration ID #45
0538497.  claimed that the residence she owned and resided in located at  S Myrtle Beach, 
SC 29575 was damaged on 10/02/2015 as a result of the South Carolina Severe Storms and Flooding. Based on 
her application, FEMA awarded disaster assistance totaling $12,637.30 that included $11,323.30 for home 
repair, and $1,314.00 for rental assistance. The applicant listed a damaged phone number of  
and an email address of @aol.com. The applicant listed the following person residing in the home at 
the time of the disaster:  (co-applicant). FEMA records revealed that on 10/15/2015, the 
damaged dwelling address was changed to S Surfside Beach, SC 29575.  According to the 
government property records of the Horry County (SC) Recorder of Deeds Office records was 
listed as the owner since 07/14/2010.  FEMA records revealed that the applicant provided homeowner’s 
insurance information specifying that the damaged address was insured by Farm Bureau Insurance, however 
a policy number was not provided. On 12/21/2015, the Fraud Branch contacted Farm Bureau Insurance 
Company  and spoke to customer service representative,  to verify the insurance 
information provided by the applicant. According to  the damaged dwelling was insured by 
homeowners policy number HO-0433571 at the time of disaster. The policy did not provide coverage for 
water/flood related damage. stated that the policy listed the dwelling as the applicant’s primary 
residence. aid that no claims were filed by the applicant

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04641 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/5/2016 1/5/2016 12/6/2016
SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING DR 4241  applied for and received FEMA 
disaster assistance after South Carolina Severe Storms and Flooding (DR-4241), by providing false 
information

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-FEMA-ATL-04641 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/5/2016 1/5/2016 12/6/2016
SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING DR 4241  applied for and received FEMA 
disaster assistance after South Carolina Severe Storms and Flooding (DR-4241), by providing false 
information.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04920 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) -Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/4/2016 3/22/2016 8/16/2016

FEMA FII indicated fraud (Email Attached) –password = open    SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING 
DR 4241   WOULD LIKE TO REPORT OR FEMA FRAUD.  STATED  SHE 
AND HER HUSBAND,  PURCHASED THE HOME AT AND  MAKE IT THEIR 
PRIMARY RESIDENCE AND RENT THEIR PROPERTY AT O A  TENANT.  STATED SHE AND 
HER HUSBAND MOVED INTO  ON 1/3/15.  STATED SHE AND HER HUSBAND LIVED IN THAT 
HOUSE DURING THE SOUTH CAROLINA  FLOODING THAT HAPPENED IN OCTOBER OF 2015.  STATED THE 
HOME WAS DAMAGED  FROM THE FLOODS BUT THEY DID NOT KNOW ABOUT FEMA AT THE TIME.  STATED 
HER  HUSBAND TRIED TO COMMIT SUICIDE AFTER THE FLOODING AND DAMAGE DONE TO THE HOME  SO ON 
11/5/15 THEY MOVED BACK TO THE  ACCORDING TO  RIGHT AFTER  THEY MOVED OUT 

ILED A CLAIM WITH FEMA STATING SHE OWNED AND LIVED IN  THE HOME AT THE TIME OF THE 
FLOODS. ACCORDING TO  RECEIVED $10,000  FROM FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-04920 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) -Non DHS Employee Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/4/2016 3/22/2016 8/16/2016

FEMA FII indicated fraud (Email Attached) –password = open    SOUTH CAROLINA SEVERE STORMS/FLOODING 
DR 4241   WOULD LIKE TO REPORT OR FEMA FRAUD.  STATED  SHE 
AND HER HUSBAND,  PURCHASED THE HOME AT AND  MAKE IT THEIR 
PRIMARY RESIDENCE AND RENT THEIR PROPERTY AT O A  TENANT.  STATED SHE AND 
HER HUSBAND MOVED INTO  ON 1/3/15.  STATED SHE AND HER HUSBAND LIVED IN THAT 
HOUSE DURING THE SOUTH CAROLINA  FLOODING THAT HAPPENED IN OCTOBER OF 2015.  STATED THE 
HOME WAS DAMAGED  FROM THE FLOODS BUT THEY DID NOT KNOW ABOUT FEMA AT THE TIME.  STATED 
HER  HUSBAND TRIED TO COMMIT SUICIDE AFTER THE FLOODING AND DAMAGE DONE TO THE HOME  SO ON 
11/5/15 THEY MOVED BACK TO THE  ACCORDING TO TODD RIGHT AFTER  THEY MOVED OUT 

ILED A CLAIM WITH FEMA STATING SHE OWNED AND LIVED IN  THE HOME AT THE TIME OF THE 
FLOODS. ACCORDING TO  RECEIVED $10,000  FROM FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-05215 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; Georgetown, SC
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/13/2016 1/13/2016 4/15/2016

FR-024-2016  DR4241 South Carolina Flood  RegID 500377348    Based on an FIID query of applicants who 
applied for and received disaster assistance DR-4241, Investigator onducted an initial review of 
the applicant???s application for federal disaster assistance to FEMA. Based upon his initial review, he 
believes that the damaged dwelling was not the applicant???s primary residence at the time of the disaster.    
Total assistance approved: $22,423.27

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-07869 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Columbia, SC
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 3/3/2016 3/4/2016 7/11/2016

FIID conducted data mining of applicants from DR4241 South Carolina flooding and identified s 
an applicant who was not living in the damaged dwelling at the time of the disaster.  We have determined 
that Long fraudulently obtained disaster assistance totaling $10,585.20.    *****FRAUD REVIEW ATTACHED TO 
THIS COMPLAINT****

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)



I16-FEMA-ATL-08009 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Columbia, SC

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

3/7/2016 4/28/2016 5/23/2016

FEMA FII indicated fraud (Email Attached) –password = open    The FEMA-OCSO-Tipline received a complaint 
from the SBA OIG’s FEMA liaison agent, who believes a disaster assistance applicant fraudulently obtained 
assistance.    DR4241 South Carolina flooding  RegID 411706230    ALLEGATION:  The damaged 
dwelling was not primary residenc egistered fo Columbia, SC 
29206 claiming it was his primary residence. The SBA was unable to establish that  was 
the primary residence based on the below:    1) lso owns a residence in Lexington County SC located 
at  SC 29036.  2) The 2014 federal taxes were filed and had the
address, as did the federal taxes for tax year 2013.  3) s registered to vote in Lexington County from 
the address. A check with Richland County (county where the damaged property is 
located) and is not registered to vote according to the South Carolina Voting Registration database.  
4) Neither residence shows a homestead exemption. SBA attempted to contact applicant to try and clarify, 
but has been unable to reach the applicant. SBA declined loan application for not primary residence.  5) Note, 

isted a household member (age 25) who appears to be the daughter of the applicant. A check of 411 
reflected addresses other than the damaged property for the household member. The household member 
had a bridal registry pre-disaster in 2015.     To date, as received $11,621.52 in assistance for 
what appears to be a secondary residence.

3.8 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Procurement Fraud Procurement 
irregularities

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ATL-10416 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Asbury Volunteer Fire Department; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Albertville, AL

4/12/2016 4/20/2016 6/8/2016

12:01 PM CST     The complainant, , is filing a report against the Asbury Volunteer Fire 
Department.  alleges that the Asbury Volunteer Fire Department obtained a FEMA grant to buy a new 
truck tates that once the department received the grant they used the title of the truck and asked for a 
loan to the Liberty Bank to buy a second truck rovides the phone number of the bank  
and believes that s the first name of the President of the bank. would also like to remain 
confidential, but would appreciate if someone contacts him to get more information about the matter.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FEMA-ATL-11021 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); 

DHS Employee; LOUISIANA DHS Employee 4/26/2016 5/23/2016 8/16/2016

THIS EMPLOYEE WAS RECENTLY ARRESTED IN LOUISIANA FOR INTRODUCTION OF CONTRABAND INTO A PENAL 
FACILITY. THIS CHARGE IS A FELONY AND STILL PENDING UNDER STATE LAW.  THIS EMPLOYEE WORKS AT THE 
F.E.M.A.- MONROE D.R.C. IN MONROE, LOUISIANA.  THE D.R.C. MANAGER WAS AWARE OF THIS CRIME AND 
FELL TO REPORT IT

4.3.5 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Contraband Issues Contraband Issues Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-ATL-11021 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); 

DHS Employee; LOUISIANA DHS Employee 4/26/2016 5/23/2016 8/16/2016

THIS EMPLOYEE WAS RECENTLY ARRESTED IN LOUISIANA FOR INTRODUCTION OF CONTRABAND INTO A PENAL 
FACILITY. THIS CHARGE IS A FELONY AND STILL PENDING UNDER STATE LAW.  THIS EMPLOYEE WORKS AT THE 
F.E.M.A.- MONROE D.R.C. IN MONROE, LOUISIANA.  THE D.R.C. MANAGER WAS AWARE OF THIS CRIME AND 
FELL TO REPORT IT.

4.3.5 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Contraband Issues Contraband Issues Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-ATL-13103 Atlanta, GA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  ; Non-DHS Employee; Atlanta, GA DHS Employee 6/2/2016 6/6/2016 10/25/2016

Complainant, Mrs alleges she is a victim of the October flooding of 2015. Allegedly a 
represantive from FEMA by the name of  took advantage of complainant asking her to stay at his hotel 
room. Senator Lindsey O. Graham sent FEMA the copy of the correspondence which I will forward to the 
Atlanta DHS OIG to assist in linking this case with her statement.    Hotline Service 06/02/16 STD Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty     734 Hotline Service 06/02/16 STD 
Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: Supervisory Investigator

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-BLX-00422 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; Gulfport, MS General Public 10/9/2015 10/14/2015 3/18/2016

did not live in the affected area when hurricane Katrina hit the Mississippi gulf coast.  She 
proceeded to mislead the government to receive funds under the Katrina relief funds to get a house rebuilt 
that had belonged to my father.  I Know this because it came out in her deposition when she was deposed.  I 
was dad's power of attorney when the storm came through.  we tried to get him a grant when he was living 
and he was turned down.  After his death she was able to come from Los Vegas and through a few crooked 
people she was able to use his name to get funds to re-do his house.  The amount of money was 82,000.00.  
The one question that should be asked is how do someone that did not live in MS at the time of the storm get 
a grant.  there are still people here that did not get help after the storm and she was able to under false 
pretenses get a grant.  To my knowledge one of the requirements were that you had to live here when the 
storm came and I know for a fact that she didn't.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Gulfport MS

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-BLX-07307 Biloxi, MS Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA DBA, Ashland, MS
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 2/23/2016 3/16/2016 5/19/2016

** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    ****EXHIBITS IN ATTACHED 
DOCUMENT****    FEMA Fraud & Internal Investigations Division received a referral from the SBA OIG’s FEMA 
liaison who found indications that a disaster assistance applicant may have fraudulently obtained assistance.    
DR4248 Mississippi Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding RegID 
394459305    This applicant applied for shland, MS and received $9,779.32. All 
indications point that to the damaged dwelling not being the primary residence.    SBA OIG COMMENTS / 
NOTES    1) The currently mailing address in NEMIS ( NESBIT, MS 38651) is owned by the 
applicants, and has a homestead exemption (see exhibits 1 & 2).  2) The residence on Emery Circle is assessed 
for approximately $250,000, but the applicants failed to divulge the Emery Circle property on their SBA loan 
application…not only initially whe applied by herself, but also a second time when
was added as the co-applicant.  3) See photograph of the  residence, and a description of the 

 home when it was listed for sale in 2013 (Exhibit 3). Note, applicants purchase n 
2013.  4) Federal income tax for tax year 2014 has the  address.  5) s the 
spouse of the Registrant, and is employed as a college professor in Southhaven MS which is 
a suburb of Memphis, TN.  claimed to SBA he lived at the DDA (which is approximately 70 
miles away) to commute to work. Since his employment is approximately 10 miles from the
residence, that is somewhat puzzling. (See Exhibit 5). Furthermore, the damaged dwelling had an estimated 
valuation of only $55,000.   6) The damaged property was not on either credit bureau report.  7) Utility 
payments were sent for the damaged dwelling, but amounts were very small indicative of a home not 
resided in on a year round basis (see Exhibit 4).

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-BUF-08638 Buffalo, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Buffalo Police Department; FEMA Grant 3/16/2016 3/29/2016 9/12/2016

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Buffalo Division provided the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), Buffalo Sub-office with information that the Buffalo Police 
Department (BPD) may have misapplied Federal Emergency Management Agency, Urban Area Security 
Initiative grant funds.  The FBI requested investigative assistance from the DHS OIG.    Case Agent:
(

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud
Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666

Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I16-FEMA-CHI-04175 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) LNU, FNU; DHS Employee;  Non-DHS Employee; 
FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); Milwaukee. WI

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/23/2015 12/24/2015 3/9/2016

3:00PM CST     The complainant, s filing a report against
unknown uncle. states that 's uncle is said to be a FEMA employee. states that she 
received a Facebook message from which stated that s uncle could hel etrieve 
$5000. states that she was told b uncle would pretend that he went out 
t  home and found a number of damaged items that amounted to $5000 tates that 

 uncle just requested to keep $2000 of the total $5000. tates that she agreed to this and 
gav  uncle her credit card tates that when she calle uncle for her credit 
card, there was no answer  states that when she went to contact  on Facebook,
had blocked as a Facebook friend. tates that she then cancelled her credit card and 
contacted DHS.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-CHI-04175 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) LNU, FNU; DHS Employee;  Non-DHS Employee; 
FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); Milwaukee. WI

General Public 12/23/2015 12/24/2015 3/9/2016

3:00PM CST     The complainant, s filing a report against
unknown uncle. states that  uncle is said to be a FEMA employee. states that she 
received a Facebook message from which stated that  uncle could hel etrieve 
$5000. states that she was told b uncle would pretend that he went out 
to s home and found a number of damaged items that amounted to $5000 tates that 

s uncle just requested to keep $2000 of the total $5000. tates that she agreed to this and 
gave s uncle her credit card tates that when she calle s uncle for her credit 
card, there was no answer. states that when she went to contact n Facebook,
had blocked s a Facebook friend tates that she then cancelled her credit card and 
contacted DHS.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-CHI-10961 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Jefferson City, MO

DHS Component 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 11/9/2016
ALLEGATION:  THREAT alleges she had been threatened by w/a 12" knife that 
was placed up to her chest and back, in the late evening of the day before.    **PLEASE NOTE:  Five (5) 
ATTACHMENTS.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-CHI-11647 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); 
DHS Employee; Elgin, IL

DHS Employee 5/11/2016 5/11/2016 11/14/2016

8:55AM CST    The complainant, , is filing a report against FEMA employee
states that was arrested yesterday, May 10, 2016, for a threat against a governor tates that in 
his possession at his home  had a FEMA owned cell phone (202-615 , a photo ID with a chip, and 
two leather ID cases that contained the lettering "DHS Officer" and a badge. tates that after he made 
a few calls, he discovered that s not a FEMA Officer. tates that the two leather ID cases were 
confiscated from     Baton Rouge Hotline 05/11/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the 
duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-CHI-12357 Chicago, IL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
Freeman, Beth; SES; Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); 
DHS Employee; KS BETH  FREEMAN DHS Employee 5/23/2016 6/16/2016 11/2/2016

During the FEMA Readiness Assessment Program (FRAP) Exercise the Regional Administrator participated in 
making jokes about an employees physical disability with members of the FRAP team during the exercise.  
Very inappropriate for an individual in that position. Demeaning subordinate employees is wrong, and doing 
it with members of the FRAP team at the employees expense was over the top.    Individuals who were 
present would be as well as several subordinates that were in the area 
when this took place.    Hotline Service 05/23/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Regional Office, Regional Response Coordination Center     734 Hotline Service 05/23/16 STD 
Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FEMA-DAL-01710 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; OK.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/3/2015 11/4/2015 5/19/2016

See attached FEMA FPU email and attachments indicating fraud.    Allegation: applied for 
and received FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information.  FEMA records reflect that applicant 

 (Reg. ID: 411568460), applied for FEMA assistance via the Disaster Assistance Call Center 
(DACCC) on 06/28/13 following Oklahoma Severe Storms and Tornadoes (DR-4117), declared on 05/20/13. The 
applicant claimed that the date of loss for the home she owned and occupied was on 05/20/13 and was her 
primary residence located a  Oklahoma City, OK 73135. The applicant was awarded 
disaster assistance funds which totaled $18,000.98 that included $14,021.00 in Rental Assistance, $3,052.71 in 
Home Repair, $477.27 in Personal Property and $450.00 in Medical listed the following additional 
occupants of the damaged dwelling at the time of the disaster: (immediate family – age 8), 

immediate family – age 12) and  (immediate family – age 22).

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-DAL-01713 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; OK. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

11/3/2015 11/4/2015 5/19/2016
See attached FEMA FPU email and attachments indicating fraud.  (Any passwords =  open)    Allegation: 

 applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for by providing false information.  
 moved from the damaged property for reasons unrelated to the disaster.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-DAL-05494 Dallas, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Oklahoma City, OK
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/20/2016 1/21/2016 11/18/2016

Oklahoma Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4222)
  Oklahoma City, OK 73109  Reg.ID# 41-1676938    Allegation:  Found the case thru data mining. 

Applicant received home repair even though county records list someone else as the homeowner, who is not 
listed on the registration.    Assistance Received to Date: $20,156.25

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-02596 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA, Wimberly TX.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/20/2015 11/20/2015 2/26/2016

** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA)  Allegation: applied for and received 
FEMA disaster assistance by after Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding by 
providing false information

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-03691 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; TX. Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/15/2015 12/15/2015 2/8/2016
** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: Data Mining  Allegation: applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance by 
providing false information.  Total Amount Awarded: $15,848.72

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-04055 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 ; Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Kyle, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/22/2015 12/23/2015 2/26/2016

DR-4245 Texas flooding  TX  RegID 500389964    FEMA Fraud 
Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify applicants who may be committing 
fraud.    According to county records s not the owner of the damaged dwelling.  To date, 

 has received $13 350 85 in assistance

3.8 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Procurement Fraud
Procurement 
irregularities Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040

Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-04061 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Kountze, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/22/2015 12/23/2015 1/21/2016

DR-4245 Texas flooding    Kountze, TX 77625  RegID 411758250    FEMA Fraud 
Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify applicants who may be committing 
fraud.    The damaged dwelling is suspected of not being a primary residence.  Applicant is listed at the 
mailing address listed in NEMIS. Applicant also owns this property.  To date, has received 
$14,496.85 in assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-04064 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Austin, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/22/2015 12/23/2015 2/28/2016

DR4245 Texas flooding   RegID 394455423 egID 394453230  11223
Rd   Austin, TX  78747    FEMA Fraud Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify 
applicants who may be committing fraud.    Both applicants are suspected of applying for assistance at a 
damaged dwelling that was not their primary residence.     owns the mailing address listed in 
NEMIS and she is listed at this address in CLEAR.   s listed at the mailing address that is in 
NEMIS. He also owns the property.    To date, as received $19,287.88 in assistance.

has received $16,595.27.    THE TWO REGISTRATIONS ABOVE ARE LINKED DUE TO RECEIVING 
ASSISTANCE FOR THE SAME DAMAGED DWELLING.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-04064 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Austin, TX 12/22/2015 12/23/2015 2/28/2016

DR4245 Texas flooding   RegID 394455423 egID 394453230  11223
Rd   Austin, TX  78747    FEMA Fraud Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify 
applicants who may be committing fraud.    Both applicants are suspected of applying for assistance at a 
damaged dwelling that was not their primary residence.     owns the mailing address listed in 
NEMIS and she is listed at this address in CLEAR.   s listed at the mailing address that is in 
NEMIS. He also owns the property.    To date, as received $19,287.88 in assistance.

has received $16,595.27.    THE TWO REGISTRATIONS ABOVE ARE LINKED DUE TO RECEIVING 
ASSISTANCE FOR THE SAME DAMAGED DWELLING.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-04065 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Fentress, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/22/2015 12/23/2015 3/9/2016

DR4245 Texas flooding     Fentress, TX 78622  RegID 411754297    FEMA Fraud 
Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify applicants who may be committing 
fraud.    eceived home repair for the same items as the disaster that occurred in May 2015 (RegID 
411680669/DR-4223).  Suspect a duplication of benefits.  To date, as received $23,975.36 in assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-04473 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) City Council - City Of Ivanhoe; Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (DHS); Woodville, TX

12/31/2015 1/4/2016 4/18/2016

As a resident of the City of Ivanhoe, I attended the city council special meeting held at the Buck Priest 
Community Center in the City of Ivanhoe (temporary City Council chambers).  The meeting was called for the 
purpose of review of the bids for completion of work as requested under FEMA Grant 4223 DR-IVANHOE.  
Three contractors had bid for the contract, Timberlakes Development Co., Kirkpactrick Co., and Crockett 
Construction. The city council had retained an adviser (Name unknown) who presented a spreadsheet 
containing the description of work to meet the bid.  The three bids were: Timberlakes-$304,235.00; 
Kirkpatrick-$954,339.60; and Crockett-$817,305.00.  The City Council,without discussion, readily accepted the 
recommendation of the adviser of Crockett.    The disparity of costs and the rapid acceptance of the Crockett 
bid caused me to wonder why so I obtained copies of the bids for review and analysis.  The review disclosed 
that Timberlakes (who has been doing regular maintenance within the city on individual contracts) had bid 
$0.00 on several items.  this puzzled me so I reviewed the individual project bids to discover that Timberlakes 
had done so because those projects had already been completed by them or other businesses.  Additionally, 
the bid contained using "washout" as a road surface vice crushed limestone bid by Crockett.  I also found 
several locations where Timberlakes provided upgrades above the bid specifications.    It appears that the 
City Council did not exclude previously completed work, or Crockett did not do a site survey to notice the 
completed work ( or noticed it and still bid on doing the work).  Either way, I believe that corruption or 
misappropriation of FEMA funds.    Additional witnesses ar Former Mayor)

  Other victims are all tax payers.    Evidence in hand:  Copies of bid sheets and spreadsheets

3.6.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Cost Mischarging / Defective 
Pricing

Cost 
mischarging/defective 
pricing

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-05094 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Austin, TX

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/12/2016 1/14/2016 2/7/2016

DR-4245, Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding   RegID: 500390189    
Data mining efforts for DR-4245 revealed,  applied for disaster assistance claiming to own the 
damaged dwelling at  Austin, TX 78744. CLEAR records showe  was not associated with 
damaged dwelling. FEMA records showed,  also applied as owner of damaged 
dwelling. Travis County Property records show damaged dwelling owned by  and as a commercial 
property.    Assistance Received to Date: $22,383.42

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-05143 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Kyle, TX

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/12/2016 1/14/2016 2/28/2016

Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4245)    Reg.ID# 39-
4452354/DR-4245    Allegation:  Found the case thru data mining. Applicant received home repair even though 
county records state someone else as the homeowner, who is not listed on the registration. Document 
submitted to FEMA claiming property was signed over to applicant was dated January 2015; however, other 
documents submitted were dated after January 2015 show s the homeowner of the property, 
not the applicant     Assistance Received to Date: $14 095 37

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-06026 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Bryan, TX General Public 2/2/2016 2/2/2016 2/28/2016

I have been informed that  has received a FEMA check in the amount of $32,000+ for a flood 
damage claim on the address located a  Bryan, TX about January 20th, 2016. The claim 
was for a garage and damages sustained to the garage and it's contents. I know for a fact that there was no 
flood. I have personally been to the garage after the alleged flood and water never entered the garage. There 
is no dirt, leaves, mildew or mold in the garage or the slightest sign of flooding. There are also absolutely NO 
water lines in or on objects in the garage that have been in the garage for some time now. In addition, the 
Brazos County Sheriffs office thru Deput  has been in the garage on January, 30, 2016 afte

iled the claim and received payment from FEMA as well as videoed the garage and it's contents via 
body camera where he was informed of the fraud taking place by  He has filed the video with an 
incident report with the Brazos County Texas Sheriff's Office. Other pictures of the premises and contents 
were taken by the actual owner of the property, Dr. who is being defrauded and stolen from 
by  to the tune of several hundred thousand dollars. This is just one example of fraud tha

s employing currently. Dr has filed theft charges agai nd is working with the 
Brazos County Sheriff's Office and the College Station Police Department to build a case on several instances 
of embezzlement, fraud, theft, identity theft, forgery and extortion b against Dr

has filed frivolous law suits again PetSmart in Louisana's Western District Court, has a 
criminal history of theft in Tarrant and Johnson counties as well as felony arrests in Johnson County for fraud. 
She has not reported nor filed proper taxes on hundreds of thousands of dollars she has stolen and spent 
from Dr  as income to the IRS. And has spent HUNDREDS OF THOUSANDS OF THESE DOLLARS at the 
Golden Nugget Casio, Delta Downs Race Track and Isle of Capri casino in Lake Charles, LA. I'm sure that the 
moment she received the $32,000 check from FEMA, it was cashed and deposited to her account at one of the 
casinos in Lake Charles. The bleeding needs to be stopped and the federal government needs to step in and 
stop this woman. As I said, FEMA has not seen, nor investigated the property. But the Brazos County Sheriff's 
office has pictures (video) of the premises taken on January 30, 2016 by Deputy  that will show there is 
NO AND NEVER WAS ANY damage sustained the property has filed a claim and received money 
for. I am not sure of the actual claim date or the receipt of claim check  received, but it is my 
understanding the claim was made sometime in and around December of 2015 and a check was received in 
mid-January of 2016. This comes from information obtained by the local State Farm Agent who tends to other 
insurance policies on the premises and notified the owner (Dr ) of attempt to get flood 

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-06272 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Houston, TX

2/4/2016 2/4/2016 12/22/2016

filed an application for damages at a home she claimed to be living in during FEMA 
disaster 4223 TX, REG#45-0517433.She claimed to rent a room in a home  Houston TX 
77071.  She received initial RENTAL ASST and $7k from State for a destroyed vehicle. She is currently 
requesting continued housing assistance from FEMA and reimbursement for storage expenses. Ms
has a mailing address in Midland, TX. All FEMA and SBA docs are being mailed to that PO BOX. The lease for 
the home in Houston has been altered, legal description of property listed is not the legal description of the 
property. This document is not verifiable. All other documents in file indicate different addresses in Midland 
TX. A storage company was contacted based off info on invoices submitted by ms  When contacted 
(  rep for the company indicated Ms has leased the storage unit since OCTOBER 
2014 (6 months before disaster). Data obtained from SBA indicates applicant lived or lives at
Midland, TX or 4405 N Garfield  Midland. Their records also indicate she was working for Milagros 
Operating Company in midland since March 2015.      Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Houston or Midland TX

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-HOU-06933 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Dayton, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 2/16/2016 2/16/2016 4/18/2016

The FEMA-OCSO-Tipline received a complaint from a FEMA Virginia NPSC employee concerning a disaster 
assistance applicant who may have fraudulently obtained assistance.  DR4223 Texas flooding  
RegID 411682721  DR4245 Texas flooding  RegID 411760344    applied for assistance after the 
flooding in May 2015 and received rental assistance. After the November 2015 flooding, applied again 
for the same damaged dwelling but using a variation of the street address.  The slight address variation was 
not detected by NEMIS during a cross disaster check.   has submitted documents to FEMA to support 
his request for additional assistance. A routine review of the documents by NPSC personnel seems to 
indicate s giving conflicting information to FEMA.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-11361 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; Deweyville, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 5/3/2016 6/1/2016 10/10/2016

DR-4266 Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, and Flooding  Dallas Gillis  Reg.ID# 411781179    Allegation:  Found 
the case thru data mining. Not the homeowner at the time of the disaster and received home repair. The 
property is owned by an estate that shows in CLEAR was sold to a bank on 12/2015 because the house was in 
foreclosure                    Assistance Received to Date:  $33 000 00

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-12140 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) City of Buda Texas and Guadalupe Blanco River Authority; Buda, TX 5/19/2016 5/31/2016 12/12/2016

Guadalupe Blanco River Authority manages the wastewater treatment plant for the City of Buda, Texas and 
some other entities. The City of Buda wastewaters are being impounded in a floodplain, soil conservation 
dam and onto private properties (including mine) in Hays County, TX about 3 miles outside the city limits of 
Kyle, Texas. The TCEQ wastewater permit number is WQ0011060001. The illegal impounding of these 
wastewaters have contributed to severe flooding and a breached dam.  Most of the flooding occurred on 
Sunrise Drive, Goforth Road, High Road and BeBee Road. The last major flood was 10/30/2015.  Witness

 Kyle, TX 78640.  Witness telephone number is  FEMA flood claim 
records should provide supporting evidence and reflect the other victims and witnesses.    On 05/03/2016, I 
sent an email to FEMA Administrator W. Craig Fugate at @dhs.gov.  On 05/04/2016 another 
email was sent to FEMA Public Affairs Specialis  at @dhs.gov.  As of the date of 
this complaint, I have not received an acknowledgement or response to my concern.  Human lives are 
endangered and government at all levels appear to be looking the other way and lacks compassion.    Hotline 
Service 05/19/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Approximately three 
miles outside the city limits of Kyle, Texas     734 Hotline Service 05/19/16 STD Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-HOU-13504 Houston, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee; Silsbee, TX State/Local Govt 
Employee

6/9/2016 9/8/2016 12/20/2016

The Office of the Governor (OOG), Homeland Security Grants Division (HSGD) is reporting this allegation as it 
was conveyed to our Office.  The initiating complainant is a Citizen who wishes to remain anonymous.    On 
Monday, June 6, 2016, the Homeland Security Grants Division (HSGD), Office of the Governor (OOG) received 
a call from Ms.  with the South East Texas Regional Planning Council (SETRPC).  She conveyed the 
following:    ??? On Friday, June 3rd, Ms was contacted by the Hardin County Attorney???s Office (Ms. 

 indicating that a Citizen had come forward with a recording of a conversation between the 
Silsbee Chief of Police (Mark Davis) and a vendor (Code Blue).  ??? It was alleged that the Chief of Police 
instructed the vendor to pad/add $59.99 to the cost of each protective vest (SWAT gear) being purchased so 
that the City would then have a credit to be used later.  ??? The County Judge and County Attorney have 
listened to the tape.    The OOG has spoken with Ms.  who indicated:  ??? The Citizen had 
previously met with a group of people and the Hardin County Judge regarding the allegation on Thursday, 
June 2nd.  ??? The County does not have a copy of the tape, but that Ms and the County Judge did 
listen to it on Friday, June 3rd.  ??? On the tape, the vendor did agree to add funds to the invoice for nine (9) 
protective vests so the City would have a credit of $500 to spend at a later time.  ??? The Citizen who brought 
the tape forward is a former employee who was fired from the Silsbee Police Department and has a pending 
EEOC Claim.  ??? The Citizen does not want to share her name and does not want to file any additional reports 
to local authorities.  ??? The Citizen expressed fear for her safety.  ??? At least one other person, individual 
unknown, either witnessed the taped conversation, provided the tape to the Citizen, or has a copy of the 
tape.  ??? She understands the Citizen has since contacted the FBI in Houston and the United States 
Attorney???s Office in Beaumont.    This allegation has also been reported/will be reported by the OOG to 
the Texas Department of Public Safety; Texas State Auditor???s Office; and Department of Justice (

 Special Agent in the Dallas Field Office).

3.6.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Cost Mischarging / Defective 
Pricing

Cost 
mischarging/defective 
pricing

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-FEMA-MIA-04565 Miami, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Osceola County, FL DHS Employee 1/4/2016 1/12/2016 8/26/2016

**PLEASE NOTE:  This is a PARTIAL Complaint. A FULL Complaint is being sent via the Hotline email address, 
along with attachments.    FEMA's Fraud and Internal Investigations Division (FllD) received information from 
an anonymous source that when the Fraud Prevention and Investigation Branch Chief  was the 
Chief Deputy for the Osceola County Sheriff's Office, he was accused by several deputies of misconduct and 
resigned in lieu of termination.    FllD conducted an "open source" Internet check o ' name and found 
an Osceola County Sheriff's Office Internal Affairs Report regarding employee misconduct allegations against 
their deputies and the findings. ame was listed in the report which indicated in 2004 that charges 
were sustained for abuse of position, unsatisfactory performance, and unbecoming conduct.    FllD contacted 
the Osceola County Sheriff's Office to determine the validity of the report. The sheriff's office confirmed the 
report and provided FllD with a copy oftheir investigation and  resignation letter dated July 5, 2004.    
FEMA's Personnel Security Division (PSD) reviewed the Electronic-Questionnaires for Investigations 
Processing (eQIP) forms tha  submitted on August 27, 2007 and January 28, 2010. PSD found under eQIP 
Section 12 (Your Employment Record), which asked the following, has any of the following happened to you 
in the last 7 years:    1.      Fired from a job  2. Quit a job after being told you're be fired  3. Left a job by mutual 
agreement following allegations of misconduct  4. Left a job by mutual agreement following allegations of 
unsatisfactory performance  5. Left a job for other reasons under unfavorable circumstances   
answered "no."    **PLEASE NOTE:  This is a PARTIAL Complaint. A FULL Complaint is being sent via the Hotline 
email address, along with attachments.    DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the incident location 
was: Florida - see details below.      DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Florida - see details below. Edit Delete     1763 DHS Connect 01/04/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter 
provided an incident date range of: See details below..   Offender Off duty

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FEMA-NEO-01858 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; LA.
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 11/5/2015 11/6/2015 5/23/2016

FEMA FII indicated fraud (Email Attached) –password = open    Allegation:  applied for and received 
FEMA disaster assistance by providing false information 3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287

Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-FEMA-NEO-01982 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Private Citizen, Bedico Creek, Ponchatoula, LA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

11/9/2015 11/9/2015 8/26/2016
(See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open)    Allegation: FEMA applicant
applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for Louisiana Hurricane Isaac (DR-4080), by providing false 
information

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FEMA-NEO-01982 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Private Citizen, Bedico Creek, Ponchatoula, LA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

11/9/2015 11/9/2015 8/26/2016
(See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open)    Allegation: FEMA applicant
applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for Louisiana Hurricane Isaac (DR-4080), by providing false 
information.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-NEO-01982 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Private Citizen, Bedico Creek, Ponchatoula, LA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

11/9/2015 11/9/2015 8/26/2016
(See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open)    Allegation: FEMA applicant
applied for and received FEMA disaster assistance for Louisiana Hurricane Isaac (DR-4080), by providing false 
information

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-FEMA-NEO-04287 New Orleans, LA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  FEMA DBA; LA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/28/2015 12/28/2015 4/26/2016
** See attached FEMA FPU docs validating fraud - password = open2016    Indication of Fraud: Yes  Case 
Origination: Data Mining  Allegation: pplied for and received FEMA disaster assistance by  by 
providing false information  Total Amount Awarded: $31 209 55

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-FEMA-NYC-00733 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; South Amboy, NJ General Public 10/16/2015 10/28/2015 12/19/2016

On September 29, 2015, DHS OIG,NYFO received information from the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, Office of Inspector General alledging that  South Amboy, NJ, 
applied for and received FEMA grant money as a result of Hurricane Sandy (DR-4086), which she was not 
entitled to.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was:  South 
Amboy, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-NYC-19673 New York, NY Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  disaster benefit applicant; Sayreville, NJ Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

9/20/2016 11/29/2016 12/2/2016

On September 20, 2016,  NJ Division of Criminal Justice (NJDCJ), contacted the OIG to advise that 
, Disaster benefit applicants may have committed FEMA fraud subsequent to 

Hurricane Sandy.  According to  applied for FEMA benefits claiming that their primary 
residence a , Sayreville, NJ was damaged as a result of Hurricane Sandy. contends that 

 did not live at the aforementioned address at the time of Hurricane Sandy and thereby 
ineligible for FEMA financial assistance.    advised that the NJDCJ is also coordinating the investigation 
with the Small Business Administration personnel.

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ORL-05496 Orlando, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Cantonment, FL

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/20/2016 1/21/2016 5/18/2016

Florida Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4177) Reg.ID# 
500287282/DR-4177    Allegation:  Found the case thru data mining. Possible Not Primary Residence- Applicant 
submitted a utility bill from the post disaster rental property dated pre-disaster. Applicants DD was in 
foreclosure at the time of the disaster. Applicant submitted a letter stating her husband was not going to fix 
the house because it was in foreclosure and wanted to know how she could get a letter from FEMA saying she 
didn???t have to repay the home repair money back since she couldn???t afford the house under her name 
without her husband???s support.    Assistance Received to Date: $25,336.22

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ORL-05496 Orlando, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Cantonment, FL

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/20/2016 1/21/2016 5/18/2016

Florida Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4177) Reg.ID# 
500287282/DR-4177    Allegation:  Found the case thru data mining. Possible Not Primary Residence- Applicant 
submitted a utility bill from the post disaster rental property dated pre-disaster. Applicants DD was in 
foreclosure at the time of the disaster. Applicant submitted a letter stating her husband was not going to fix 
the house because it was in foreclosure and wanted to know how she could get a letter from FEMA saying she 
didn???t have to repay the home repair money back since she couldn???t afford the house under her name 
without her husband???s support.    Assistance Received to Date: $25,336.22

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-ORL-18918 Orlando, FL Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) Government Contract Registry, Inc.; Clearwater, FL 9/12/2016 9/14/2016 10/14/2016

hq_12302.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_08-01-2016_13-22-03.pdf would like to file a report 
against Government Contract Registry, Inc. tates he is a former Independent Contractor for 
Government Contract Registry, Inc. , President of Government Contract 
Registry, Inc., has been forging signatures on documents regarding FEMA registration  states he has 
additional documentation on the signatures that he could provide if contacted by an investigator.

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Substantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-FEMA-PHL-03257 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; Brick, NJ 12/7/2015 12/7/2015 6/30/2016

****PLEASE ASSIGN TO THE PHILADELHPHIA FIELD OFFICE CONVERSTION RIBBON****    Between on or about 
November 2012 and May 2014, O??  applied for the following Sandy relief programs (FEMA 
Emergency Grant, RSP, RREM, SHRAP).  For each application, he claimed that his primary residence located at 

n Brick received damaged from Superstorm Sandy.  Thus far, he has received funding 
and/or housing assistance from each program except RREM.  Although he has been approved for a $150,000 
RREM grant, his status is in compliance hold pending this investigation.  The the Brick, New Jersey residence 
was not O??? ??s primary residence at or near the time of Superstorm Sandy.  O??  lived 
primarily at his brother???s  residence on Long Island n St. James).    
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Brick, NJ     Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-PHL-07406 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 2/24/2016 2/24/2016 6/9/2016

***Please place in PFO converstion ribbon.  Arrest pending.***    On February 11, 2016, the DHS OIG met with 
 Deputy Attorney General, NJ Division of Criminal Justice (NJDCJ),  Trenton, 

NJ. rovided a DVD containing NJDCJ investigative documents and other records pertaining to the 
NJDCJ investigation of  Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Registration ID: 39-
3988394. Following Hurricane Sandy (FEMA DR-4086),  allegedly filed for FEMA disaster assistance for 
a property that was not her primary residence at the time of the disaster.  requested investigative 
assistance from the US Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, regarding the
investigation.      Case agent is

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-PHL-07406 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 2/24/2016 2/24/2016 6/9/2016

***Please place in PFO converstion ribbon.  Arrest pending.***    On February 11, 2016, the DHS OIG met with 
 Deputy Attorney General, NJ Division of Criminal Justice (NJDCJ),  Trenton, 

NJ. Harker provided a DVD containing NJDCJ investigative documents and other records pertaining to the 
NJDCJ investigation of  Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Registration ID: 39-
3988394. Following Hurricane Sandy (FEMA DR-4086),  allegedly filed for FEMA disaster assistance for 
a property that was not her primary residence at the time of the disaster  requested investigative 
assistance from the US Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, regarding the
investigation.      Case agent is

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-PHL-07408 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); NJ

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/24/2016 2/24/2016 9/7/2016

***Please place complaint in PFO converstion ribbon.  Arrest pending.***    The NJAG requested DHS OIG's 
assistant via email.  "I reviewed the above case with Det. and DAG  today. The case 
appears to have strong merit, and involves a DPA at . Ortley Beach, NJ, in which over $85K 
has already been dispersed ($10K RSP, $75K RREM, and possibly $2270 FEMA. We believe OAL found in her 
favor, but was certainly either unaware of misrepresentations made to the court, or mislead, as documentary 
evidence now suggests it was a rental up through at least August of 2012 (along with the discovery of 
unreported rental income)."    Case agent is

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-PHL-07548 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (DHS); Little Falls, NJ

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/26/2016 2/26/2016 5/16/2016

***Please place complaint in the PFO conversion ribbon.  Arrest pending.***    The NJAG requested the DHS 
OIG's assistance.  36, of Little Falls, N.J., allegedly fraudulently obtained a total of 
$111,630 by filing false applications following Superstorm Sandy for FEMA assistance, state grants under the 
Homeowner Resettlement Program (RSP) and the Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, Elevation and Mitigation 
(RREM) Program, and state assistance under the Sandy Homeowner and Renter Assistance Program (SHRAP) 
funded by the New Jersey Department of Human Services  allegedly falsely claimed on the 
applications that a storm-damaged property she owns on East Navasink Drive in Little Egg Harbor Township 
was her primary residence at the time Sandy hit. It is alleged that, in actuality, her primary residence was an 
apartment in Garfield, N.J., at the time of the storm, and the property in Little Egg Harbor Township was a 
summer residence.  received $23,329 from FEMA; $10,000 from an RSP grant; $63,301 from a 
grant under the RREM program; and $15,000 through the SHRAP program.    The case agent is       
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Little Falls, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-PHL-07548 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (DHS); Little Falls, NJ

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

2/26/2016 2/26/2016 5/16/2016

***Please place complaint in the PFO conversion ribbon.  Arrest pending.***    The NJAG requested the DHS 
OIG's assistance.  36, of Little Falls, N.J., allegedly fraudulently obtained a total of 
$111,630 by filing false applications following Superstorm Sandy for FEMA assistance, state grants under the 
Homeowner Resettlement Program (RSP) and the Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, Elevation and Mitigation 
(RREM) Program, and state assistance under the Sandy Homeowner and Renter Assistance Program (SHRAP) 
funded by the New Jersey Department of Human Services  allegedly falsely claimed on the 
applications that a storm-damaged property she owns on East Navasink Drive in Little Egg Harbor Township 
was her primary residence at the time Sandy hit. It is alleged that, in actuality, her primary residence was an 
apartment in Garfield, N.J., at the time of the storm, and the property in Little Egg Harbor Township was a 
summer residence.  received $23,329 from FEMA; $10,000 from an RSP grant; $63,301 from a 
grant under the RREM program; and $15,000 through the SHRAP program.    The case agent is       
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Little Falls, NJ

3.9.2 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Benefits Theft Program Benefits Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-FEMA-PHL-11296 Philadelphia, PA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; Pleasantville, NJ
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 5/2/2016 5/26/2016 9/22/2016

Detective from Atlantic County Prosecutors Office contacted this office for assistance concerning
 Pleasantville, NJ. eceived disaster assistance from the State of New 

Jersey related to Superstorm Sandy.  The detective is interested in learning if Harmon received FEMA funds 
for the damaged property, which may not have been s primary residence.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-RGV-05139 Rio Grande Valley, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Weslaco, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/12/2016 1/22/2016 5/12/2016

Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4245)   Reg.ID# 50-
0390499/DR-4245    Allegation:  Found the case thru data mining. Possible not primary residence; 
applicant???s mailing address in NEMIS shows as owner occupied. This address differs from the damaged 
dwelling address     Assistance Received to Date: $7 503 47

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-RGV-05142 Rio Grande Valley, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Brownsville, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/12/2016 1/22/2016 5/19/2016

Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4245)     
  Brownsville, TX 78521  Reg.ID# 41-1759712/DR-4245    Allegation:  Found the case thru data mining. 

Applicant received home repair even though county records list someone else as the homeowner, who is not 
listed on the registration.     Assistance Received to Date: $11,283.74

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-SAT-02113 San Antonio, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; FEMA; Austin, TX 11/11/2015 11/13/2015 3/3/2016

Applican applied for assistance in disaster 4223 TEXAS, reg#50-0361780    Applicant claimed his 
apartment was damaged by disaster 4223. Management at Mr s apartment complex

 advised that no one in that apartment had made any requests for maintenance or reported any 
damage to their apartment.  They indicated the applicant and his roommate are still currently renting their 
and have not relocated from their apartment.Applicant has provided false documentation for continued 
rental assistance while he continues to reside at his apartment, applicant has recvd 7056.00  --  Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Austin, TX   Public website complainant indicated that the 
subjec had miscellaneous identifiers of: DO

3.9.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud Program Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-SAT-04062 San Antonio, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) ; Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (DHS); Kyle, TX

Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

12/22/2015 12/24/2015 2/28/2016

DR-4245 Texas flooding    Kyle, TX  78640  RegID 500389324    FEMA Fraud 
Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify applicants who may be committing 
fraud.    The damaged dwelling is suspected of not being a primary residence.  Applicant`s mailing address 
with the assessor???s office is different than the DD address. Applicant owns the mailing address that is 
listed with the tax office and is listed at this location in CLEAR.  To date  has received 
$16 500 20 in assistance

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040 Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-SAT-04063 San Antonio, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Cedar Creek, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/22/2015 12/24/2015 5/12/2016

DR-4245 Texas flooding    Cedar Creek, TX 78612  RegID 411754670    FEMA 
Fraud Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify applicants who may be 
committing fraud.    Applicant received the same home repair assistance monies for the disaster back in May 
2015 (RegID 394408312/DR-4223). Please check for duplication of benefits.  To date, as received 
$17,309.45 in assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-SAT-04083 San Antonio, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); Cedar Creek, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/22/2015 12/24/2015 11/23/2016

DR4245 Texas flooding     Cedar Creek, TX  78612  RegID 450549143    FEMA 
Fraud Prevention & Investigation Branch is conducting data mining to identify applicants who may be 
committing fraud.    is suspected of applying for a damaged dwelling that was not his 
primary residence.  He is listed at another location which he also owns. To date,  has received 
$25,064.20 in assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-SAT-05938 San Antonio, TX Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Non-DHS Employee; FEMA - Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (DHS); San Marcos, TX
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 1/29/2016 1/29/2016 4/18/2016

DR-4223  Texas Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds, and Flooding   RegID#39-
4407017    Allegation:  Subject identified via data-mining.  Applicant falsely reported that her personal vehicle 
was damaged due to the disaster. Insurance docs provided by the applicant noted that the subject vehicle 
damage was a result of a ???motor vehicle accident???, and an insurance claim was settled with the applicant 
for the damaged vehicle       Assistance received to date: $7000 00

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-SEA-03445 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) t al, Civilian, Stockton, CA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/9/2015 12/14/2015 6/15/2016

FEMA FPIB validated this complaint and found indications of fraud. Please see Uploaded Documents for 
further information. Password:  open2016    Allegation:  The below individuals filed for FEMA assistance with 
false statements.    CASE ORIGINATION: FPIB data-mining  DATE: December 9, 2015  SUBJECT: Fraud Review of 

TOTAL AWARD AMOUNT: $51,860.87  Disaster: DR-4240, 
California Valley & Butte Wildfires, declared 09/22/2015

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666
Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I16-FEMA-SEA-03445 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) t al, Civilian, Stockton, CA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/9/2015 12/14/2015 6/15/2016

FEMA FPIB validated this complaint and found indications of fraud. Please see Uploaded Documents for 
further information. Password:  open2016    Allegation:  The below individuals filed for FEMA assistance with 
false statements.    CASE ORIGINATION: FPIB data-mining  DATE: December 9, 2015  SUBJECT: Fraud Review of 

TOTAL AWARD AMOUNT: $51,860.87  Disaster: DR-4240, 
California Valley & Butte Wildfires, declared 09/22/2015

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666
Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I16-FEMA-SEA-03445 Seattle, WA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) t al, Civilian, Stockton, CA
Disaster Benefit 
Applicant 12/9/2015 12/14/2015 6/15/2016

FEMA FPIB validated this complaint and found indications of fraud. Please see Uploaded Documents for 
further information. Password:  open2016    Allegation:  The below individuals filed for FEMA assistance with 
false statements.    CASE ORIGINATION: FPIB data-mining  DATE: December 9, 2015  SUBJECT: Fraud Review of 

TOTAL AWARD AMOUNT: $51,860.87  Disaster: DR-4240, 
California Valley & Butte Wildfires  declared 09/22/2015

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 666
Program Fraud - Theft or Bribery Concerning 
Programs Receiving Federal Funds

I16-FEMA-SFO-05200 San Francisco, CA Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) A; Non-DHS Employee; Middletown, CA Disaster Benefit 
Applicant

1/13/2016 1/14/2016 7/8/2016

The FEMA-OCSO-Tipline received a complaint from a FEMA NPSC employee that a disaster assistance 
recipient fraudulently obtained disaster assistance.    DR4240 California fires  RegID 411703333    
Allegation: id not reside in the damaged dwelling at the time of the disaster.    A NPSC review 
of documents submitted b ed the NPSC employee to question if actually occupied the 
damaged dwelling at the time of the disaster.   The documents include bank statements, voter registration 
card and a letter from the county social service agency.      To date as received $32,900.00 in 
disaster assistance.

3.9 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Program Fraud / Theft Program Fraud / Theft Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I16-FEMA-SNJ-17735 San Juan, Puerto Rico Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , PA, FEMA,Washington, DC DHS Employee 8/24/2016 8/24/2016 12/7/2016

On August 23, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) received 
an allegation that , Program Analyst (PA), Federal Emergency Management Agency, (FEMA) 
Washington DC, was using her position and agency information to facilitate the recruitment of individuals 
who were affiliated to the New Progressive Party (NPP). lso conspired with  candidate 
from the NPP, to host the recruitment events at the Colon???s NPP Committee.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-FEMA-SNJ-17735 San Juan, Puerto Rico Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) , PA, FEMA,Washington, DC DHS Employee 8/24/2016 8/24/2016 12/7/2016

On August 23, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) received 
an allegation that , Program Analyst (PA), Federal Emergency Management Agency, (FEMA) 
Washington DC, was using her position and agency information to facilitate the recruitment of individuals 
who were affiliated to the New Progressive Party (NPP). lso conspired with  candidate 
from the NPP  to host the recruitment events at the Colon???s NPP Committee

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001

False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-FEMA-TUC-14702 Tucson, AZ Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS) City of El Mirage; El Mirage, AZ 7/6/2016 7/15/2016 8/23/2016

2:35 PM CST    The complainant, , would like to file a report against the City of El Mirage in 
Arizona  claims the city of El Mirage received the Safer Grant to improve the staffing developments 
for the firefighters.  stated the city used the money to reduce the fire department budget for 
overtime and used the staffing to maintain the existing staffing levels would like to request for 
someone to investigate the misuse of grant funds by the city of El Mirage.

3.6 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Grant Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1040
Fraud in Connection with Major Disaster or 
Emergency Benefits

I16-FEMA-WFO-10318 Washington, DC Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)
 Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Winchester, VA DHS Employee 4/11/2016 5/19/2016 6/24/2016

Allegations that was selected for employment in November 2013.  However, it has been 
determined that she made a false statement when asked on her FEMA OF 306 form  if she had resigned from 
a job, knowing she was about to be terminated - termination was in progress in May 2013.     **Please see 
attachments

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-FEMA-WFO-14075 Washington, DC Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS)  Federal Emergency Management Agency (DHS); 
DHS Contract Employee; Frederick, MD

DHS Contractor 6/20/2016 8/8/2016 11/10/2016

7:37 AM CST  The complainant is reporting FEMA Contractor  The complainant claims 
as been working at the FEMA Site located at Frederick, MD 21704 for over 

one year without a gun permit or guard certification card. The complainant says despite not having a gun 
permit  has been transporting a gun to and from the work site. The complainant state  should 
not be allowed to continue on the contract since it is clearly stated that a gun permit and certification are 
required to be on the GSA contract and work on the FEMA site. The complainant claims works on 
Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday during the week. The complainant says eithe  permit is not 
being checked for, or the contract site has checked for a permit and knows does not have one and is 
covering for him. The complainant states they are a whistleblower.    Baton Rouge Hotline 06/20/16 STD LSU 
Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: FEMA Site     1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 
06/20/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: One Year Ago - Present .

4.3.16 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Prohibited Personnel 
Practices

Prohibited personnel 
actions

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Local Violation

I16-FPS-DAL-02758 Dallas, TX Federal Protective Service (DHS)
; **SES**; Federal Protective Service (DHS); Fort Worth, 

TX & Washington, DC DHS Employee 11/24/2015 11/30/2015 5/25/2016

This is about the PSO Program Management Office.  They appear to be allowed to take a lot of unnecessary 
trips at government expense.  It does not look like anyone is monitoring or reviewing their travel.  This at a 
time when travel expenses are being limited to only what is needed.  We have been directed to use 
conference calls and video conferences in place of unnecessary travel.  The previous program manager was 
permitted to travel frequently over the last few years to give personal presentations of minor procedural 
changes.  Most recently he was presenting the Smart Book which is the contract guard manual.  This was just 
an update of the previous guard manual.  Most of the manual other than the name change remained the 
same.     The program manager left a few months ago and was replaces by Mr.   Mr  
appears to have increased the amount of un-necessary government travel.  To include all PSO employees and 
contractors.  The Program Office is a Headquarters Based program located in Washington, DC.  Mr. s 
located in Texas and is being permitted to run the program from Texas.  This seems very inefficient.  Mr. 

makes frequent trips to DC at government expense for routine staff and planning meetings.  Why is 
this necessary?  He also often flies the DC staff to Texas for face to face staff meetings.  This appears to be 
unnecessary.  Mr. ??? DC representative Mr.  also appears to be traveling a lot for staff and 
administrative meetings.  Surely this could be done by conference call.  Now the Program Office is launching 
their new Life Cycle program.  This is an update of the current contract guard program policies that have years 
in the making.  Now I understand that Mr and his staff are going to be permitted to fly around the 
country and hold in-person conferences to present the updated policy to the regions.  They are saying that it 
has to be done in person because the regions cannot be trusted to implement the new policies unless Mr. 

nd his team present it in person.  That he believes it will be ignored.  From what I have seen, the new 
policy is just procedural changes in how to do oversight.  It is all written down and is easily understood.  I also 
understand that they are not going to call these conferences, but training sessions because a conference 
would be flagged and subject to scrutiny.  I have heard from coworkers that a lot of this is travel because they 
like to travel and a number of program office personnel have been asking about points of interest, 
entertainment, and things to do in each of the regions.  I brought these matters up with some of my 
leadership and was told to keep my mouth shut.  That Mr. would take offense.  That he has the 
Director???s ear and gets what he want regardless if it is valid or not.  If I liked my job I would say nothing or 
someone would make my life difficult.  They would transfer me somewhere or look for ways to get rid of me.  
Others have told me that there travel should have been audited long ago but that they are afraid of 

4.3.13 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Management Management Unfounded Referred - No Reply Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)



I16-FPS-DAL-02758 Dallas, TX Federal Protective Service (DHS)
 **SES**; Federal Protective Service (DHS); Fort Worth, 

TX & Washington, DC DHS Employee 11/24/2015 11/30/2015 5/25/2016

This is about the PSO Program Management Office.  They appear to be allowed to take a lot of unnecessary 
trips at government expense.  It does not look like anyone is monitoring or reviewing their travel.  This at a 
time when travel expenses are being limited to only what is needed.  We have been directed to use 
conference calls and video conferences in place of unnecessary travel.  The previous program manager was 
permitted to travel frequently over the last few years to give personal presentations of minor procedural 
changes.  Most recently he was presenting the Smart Book which is the contract guard manual.  This was just 
an update of the previous guard manual.  Most of the manual other than the name change remained the 
same.     The program manager left a few months ago and was replaces by Mr.   Mr
appears to have increased the amount of un-necessary government travel.  To include all PSO employees and 
contractors.  The Program Office is a Headquarters Based program located in Washington, DC.  Mr. s 
located in Texas and is being permitted to run the program from Texas.  This seems very inefficient.  Mr. 

makes frequent trips to DC at government expense for routine staff and planning meetings.  Why is 
this necessary?  He also often flies the DC staff to Texas for face to face staff meetings.  This appears to be 
unnecessary.  Mr. ??? DC representative Mr.  also appears to be traveling a lot for staff and 
administrative meetings.  Surely this could be done by conference call.  Now the Program Office is launching 
their new Life Cycle program.  This is an update of the current contract guard program policies that have years 
in the making.  Now I understand that Mr. and his staff are going to be permitted to fly around the 
country and hold in-person conferences to present the updated policy to the regions.  They are saying that it 
has to be done in person because the regions cannot be trusted to implement the new policies unless Mr. 

nd his team present it in person.  That he believes it will be ignored.  From what I have seen, the new 
policy is just procedural changes in how to do oversight.  It is all written down and is easily understood.  I also 
understand that they are not going to call these conferences, but training sessions because a conference 
would be flagged and subject to scrutiny.  I have heard from coworkers that a lot of this is travel because they 
like to travel and a number of program office personnel have been asking about points of interest, 
entertainment, and things to do in each of the regions.  I brought these matters up with some of my 
leadership and was told to keep my mouth shut.  That Mr. would take offense.  That he has the 
Director???s ear and gets what he want regardless if it is valid or not.  If I liked my job I would say nothing or 
someone would make my life difficult.  They would transfer me somewhere or look for ways to get rid of me.  
Others have told me that there travel should have been audited long ago but that they are afraid of 

4.3.13 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Management Management Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FPS-ELP-10297 El Paso, TX Federal Protective Service (DHS) FNU LNU, FPS, DHS, Albuquerque, NM 4/8/2016 4/15/2016 5/31/2016

6:26 PM CST     The complainant, , is reporting DHS and FPS (Federal Protective Services)
stated he was first approached by FPS and DHS agents in 2013 and asked questions regarding the FBI.
then visited  Assistant U.S. Attorney(Albuquerque, New Mexico) to discuss "corrupt law 
enforcement". At the U.S Attorney Office,  was approached again by FPS and DHS agents in February 
2016. The agents claimed that he made threats to the FBI and they were going to retrieve audio recordings of 
the threats. When the agents came back  was released. The complainant stated he could provided 
additional details at a later time if needed.    Baton Rouge Hotline 04/08/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Albuquerque, New Mexico      1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 04/08/16 
STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: August 2013- Present .

4.1.7 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct General Fraud General Fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-FPS-ELP-14613 El Paso, TX Federal Protective Service (DHS)
; Federal Protective Service (DHS); DHS Employee; 

Albuquerque, NM DHS Employee 7/1/2016 7/8/2016 8/26/2016

1:09PM CST                                                                                                                                                                                         The 
complainant,  is filing a report against FPS Commander, s a 
former employee of SECTEK Diamond Group, which is contracted by FP  states that on March 
22, 2016  was at the SSN Office at 500 Lead Ave. in Albuquerque, NM involved in an argument with two 
civilians,  and his mother is unsure of s last name.

s also unsure of wha were arguing about. tates that as 
were exiting the office,  flippe off tates that when 

this happened began to chase after tates that as was running 
away from  he was hit by a truck. tates that ried to reac ut was 
unable to.  states that when had difficulty reaching  she hit

tates that hen arreste  states tha  was transported to a local 
hospital, bu  vocalized that he wanted to arres s well. tates that she looked 
into the police report that was filed and learned that a lot of information was left out  states 
that there was no information regarding r the individual who actually made the statement of the 
report  states that the report was very general  states that upon her termination in 
May 2016 from SECTEK Diamond Group, she learned that  often gets away with things that other 
employees would not get away with  states that this is the reason she decided to look into the 
report  states that she accessed the report on June 12, 2016.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/01/16 STD 
LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FPS-LAR-08765 Laredo, TX Federal Protective Service (DHS)  Federal Protective Service (DHS); DHS Employee; 
Laredo, TX

DHS Employee 3/17/2016 3/13/2016 9/9/2016

, Federal Protective Service Inspector, is currently on a disciplinary re-assignment. He is using 
a government vehicle (marked police unit) to drive from his assigned duty area (Austin/San Antonio) to home 
(Laredo) on his days off, sick leave or other leave. FPS keeps vehicle reports that include mileage 
documentation and gas receipts, if proof is needed for this complaint. He has been on disciplinary re-
assignment since December 2015. The FPS marked unit has been spotted at his residence in Laredo, TX 
various times since his removal from Laredo(off-duty).     Unauthorized use of government vehicle and 
government gas card    Hotline Service 03/17/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: his home residence in Laredo, TX     734 Hotline Service 03/17/16 STD Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-FPS-NYC-15489 New York, NY Federal Protective Service (DHS) Federal Protective Service, New York, NY 7/20/2016 7/27/2016 11/14/2016

11:11 AM CST    The complainant, , a Special Agent for the Department of Treasury OIG, is 
forwarding a report to DHS OIG on behalf o lleges that on June 22, 2016 Weisshart 
visited Foley Square to report tax payers and when entering the building he was "strip searched" for security 
purposes.  states the metal detector did not go off, and there was no reason that could justify why 

 was taken to a separate room and was told to take all his clothes off  would like someone to 
investigate about this matter.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/20/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that 
the incident location was: Foley Square

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-FPS-SID-03353
Special Investigations 
Division Federal Protective Service (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* 12/9/2015 3/10/2016 6/23/2016 *SID CASE* 4.3.1 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Abuse of Authority Abuse of authority Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-FPS-SNJ-13631 San Juan, Puerto Rico Federal Protective Service (DHS) The Cogar Group, Inc., et al., FPS, San Juan, Puerto Rico Group  Cogar Corporation 6/13/2016 6/14/2016 11/3/2016

The DHS OIG received a complaint from an anonymous source stating that Cogar Group, the company 
contracted by the government to provide security services to GSA buildings was not complying with some 
clauses of the contract. Allegedly, Cogar Group was supposed to qualify their personnel with duty 
ammunitions, but instead the company has been using cheap low grade quality ammunition, while charging 
the government for the most expensive grade    Hotline Service 06/13/16 STD Public website submitter 

3.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Contract Fraud Contract Fraud Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-ICE-BOS-15323 Boston, MA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Law Enforcement Service Center; Willitson, VT 7/18/2016 7/27/2016 12/8/2016

10:58 AM CST    The complainant,  would like to file a report against the Law Enforcement Service 
Center in Vermont.  claims a militia called the Law Enforcement Service Center and was able to run an 
applicants criminal history.  stated that a local militia should not have access to databases reserved for 
government use. tated that he is an FBI Agent and he believes there is someone at the Law 
Enforcement Service Center that is allowing militias to use the government database illegally. ncluded 
that he would like to be contacted by an investigator as soon as possible.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD 
LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: Unknown street address and zip

4.1.4 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Computer Fraud Computer fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I16-ICE-BOS-15323 Boston, MA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Law Enforcement Service Center; Willitson, VT 7/18/2016 7/27/2016 12/8/2016

10:58 AM CST    The complainant,  would like to file a report against the Law Enforcement Service 
Center in Vermont. laims a militia called the Law Enforcement Service Center and was able to run an 
applicants criminal history.  stated that a local militia should not have access to databases reserved for 
government use. tated that he is an FBI Agent and he believes there is someone at the Law 
Enforcement Service Center that is allowing militias to use the government database illegally.  included 
that he would like to be contacted by an investigator as soon as possible.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD 
LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: Unknown street address and zip

4.1.4 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Computer Fraud Computer fraud Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1905 Disclosure of Confidential Information

I16-ICE-BUF-07739 Buffalo, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Alien Detainee 2/29/2016 2/29/2016 5/10/2016

On February 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement and  Removal Operations, 
Batavia, IL (ERO/ Batavia). AFOD  reported a possible excessive use  of force between contract officers 
and detainee  at the Buffalo  Federal Detention Facility in Batavia, NY.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 111
Assaulting, Resisting or Impeding Certain Officers 
or Employees

I16-ICE-BUF-15339 Buffalo, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-Employee/0631 Detainee - Food Service/BUFFALO, 
ERIE, NY DHS Contractor 7/19/2016 7/3/2016 10/21/2016

On July 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement and Removal  Operations, 
Batavia, NY (ERO/Batavia), who reported Contract Head Cook assigned to the Buffalo Federal 
Detention Facility located in Buffalo, NY, removed food from the  trashcan and served it to detainees.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-BUF-15339 Buffalo, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-Employee/0631 Detainee - Food Service/BUFFALO, 
ERIE, NY DHS Contractor 7/19/2016 7/3/2016 10/21/2016

On July 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement and Removal  Operations, 
Batavia, NY (ERO/Batavia), who reported Contract Head Cook assigned to the Buffalo Federal 
Detention Facility located in Buffalo  NY  removed food from the  trashcan and served it to detainees

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-BUF-15339 Buffalo, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-Employee/0631 Detainee - Food Service/BUFFALO, 
ERIE, NY 7/19/2016 7/3/2016 10/21/2016

On July 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement and Removal  Operations, 
Batavia, NY (ERO/Batavia), who reported Contract Head Cook assigned to the Buffalo Federal 
Detention Facility located in Buffalo, NY, removed food from the  trashcan and served it to detainees.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-BUF-15339 Buffalo, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-Employee/0631 Detainee - Food Service/BUFFALO, 
ERIE, NY 7/19/2016 7/3/2016 10/21/2016

On July 6, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and Customs  
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement and Removal  Operations, 
Batavia, NY (ERO/Batavia), who reported Contract Head Cook assigned to the Buffalo Federal 
Detention Facility located in Buffalo, NY, removed food from the  trashcan and served it to detainees.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-BUF-16879 Buffalo, NY U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

UNK, FNU; Non-DHS Employee; ICE - U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (DHS); ICE Buffalo Federal Detention Facility; Batavia, NY

FNU  UNK 8/8/2016 8/9/2016 8/18/2016
The DHS OIG in Buffalo, NY developed information that a Motorola XTS 5000 radio is being sold in Buffalo, NY 
via an ad posted on Craigslist.org.  This is the same radio utilized at the ICE Buffalo Federal Detention Facility 
(BFDF) in Batavia, NY, several of which have been either lost or stolen.

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-ICE-CHI-04196 Chicago, IL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) DHS Employee 12/22/2015 12/24/2015 6/16/2016

On December 18, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Policy Advisor (PA)  Office for Civil Rights and Civil  Liberties, Washington DC 
(CRCL/Washington), who reported an allegation of excessive force  involving detainee

 at McHenry County Jail in  Woodstock, Illinois.

2.11.3 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Non-Weapon Related Non-Weapon Related Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-CHI-04960 Chicago, IL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

FNU LNU, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); Fort 
Snelling, MN 1/8/2016 1/11/2016 4/26/2016

2:19PM CST    The complainant and detainee, , is filing a report against Fort 
Snelling Detention Facility. states that he asked an officer to use a bathroom on the other end of his 
dorm because he is not comfortable using the bathroom in front of others. states that the officer 
refused to let him do so, and began to yell at him. states that he responded to the officer by asking 
the officer why he wouldn't allow him to use the other bathroom. tates that the officer began to 
push him and hit on his back tates that he asked the officer why he was being hit, and the officer 
responded to by saying that he has the right to hit him. states that this was reported to the 
Sargent, but nothing was done about the issue.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-DET-18495 Detroit, MI
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  Deputy Chief Counsel, ICE, Detroit, MI DHS Employee 9/6/2016 9/9/2016 10/5/2016

On August 22, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory General Attorney (SGA) Office of Chief  Counsel Detroit, MI 
(OCC/Detroit). SG eports that Attorney f the  Michigan Immigration Rights Center, 
Kalamazoo, MI alleges that ICE Attorney OCC/Detroit) committed witness tampering in the case 
of ICE detainee  of the Calhoun County Detention Center Battle Creek, MI.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I16-ICE-DVR-03274 Denver, CO
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer, 
Arapahoe, CO DHS Employee 12/7/2015 12/8/2015 3/3/2016

On December 3, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Deportation Officer (DO  Enforcement and  Removal Operations, 
Centennial, CO (ERO/Centennial), who reported , an alien that is 
not in custody and on a GPS unit while in  immigration proceedings in Greenwood Village, CO, claims 
Supervisory Detention and  Deportation Officer (SDDO)  ERO/Centennial, raped her.

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-ICE-DVR-06967 Denver, CO
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LNU, FNU; ERO, Los Angeles, CA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/17/2016 2/17/2016 4/17/2016

*HIGH PRIORITY*  MAIL_01-05-2016_15-12-21.pdf    The complainant and detainee, , 
is filing a report against ICE and tates that she is currently being held at San Diego 
Correctional Facility and is being sexually harassed by ICE Officers. lso states tha  talked his 
way into being present and tried to pull her clothes off and rape her in front of other men in the ICE Office in 
Los Angeles  CA

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2242 Sexual Abuse

I16-ICE-ELC-03575 El Centro, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown Employee, Calexico, CA,  , CBPO, 
Calexico, CA

DHS Employee 12/14/2015 12/14/2015 5/18/2016

On December 12, 2015, Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Calexico, Special Agent (SA)
notified Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Calexico, Senior Special  Agent (SSA) f 
information received from a Source of Information (SOI) alleging

  This Report of Investigations 
serves to document the information received by OPR.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-ICE-ELC-03575 El Centro, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown Employee, Calexico, CA,  , CBPO, 
Calexico, CA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/14/2015 12/14/2015 5/18/2016

On December 12, 2015, Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Calexico, Special Agent (SA)
notified Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) Calexico, Senior Special  Agent (SSA) f 
information received from a Source of Information (SOI) alleging

  This Report of Investigations 
serves to document the information received by OPR.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I16-ICE-ELP-02040 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

DO, ICE, Chaparral, NM. DHS Employee 11/10/2015 11/10/2015 12/6/2016

On November 6, 2015, the Office of Professional Responsibility in El Paso, TX (OPR/El Paso)  received 
information from Special Agent (SA)  Homeland Security Investigations, El  Paso (HSI/El Paso). 
SA  stated he responded to the apprehension of a marijuana load at the  Bridge of the Americas Port of 
Entry (BOTA POE), El Paso, on November 5, 2015. The driver of  the marijuana laden vehicle,

 had an address of , El  Paso, listed on her Identification Card at the time of the 
arrest. The address is believed to be the  home address of Detention Officer (DO)
Enforcement and Removal  Operations, Chaparral, NM (ERO/Chaparral).

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-ELP-08516 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non-DHS Employee  El Paso, TX 3/14/2016 3/18/2016 4/18/2016

11:57 am    The complainant, , alleges he has been detained for the past 3 
months and fears being deported back to Brazil as there are members of the mafia attempting to murder him. 
The complainant stated members of the Brazilian mafia have demanded he pay them money that he owes or 
he will be murdered but the complainant does not have the funds they are referring to. The complainant???s 
native language was Portuguese and due to language barriers this was the only amount of information we 
were able to retrieve.

2.5 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Denial of Rights / Due 
Process

Denial of rights, due 
process

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-08555 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

FNU LNU; ICE; ERO, Chaparral, NM 3/14/2016 3/18/2016 5/31/2016

5:47 PM CST     The complainant, , is reporting the Otero County 
Processing Center for mistreatment and abuse.  alleges he is being threatened by various 
officials that his deportation date will be extended from 90 to 180 days.  states he was put in 
"seg" and is being accused of theft even though he has not stolen anything.  states he, and 
other detainees, are not being provided with soap, shampoo, and other basic necessities
states there are cameras everywhere and those can be accessed to obtain proof of his claims.
is very concerned that officers at the facility may kill someone and "cover it up."

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-09176 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 El Paso Processing Center, ICE; El Paso, TX, et al. DHS Employee 2/19/2016 3/30/2016 5/31/2016

hq_12302.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_02-19-2016_10-20-50    The complainant,
), is reporting multiple individuals from the El Paso Processing Center  stated he 

arrived at the facility on July 16, 2015 and about a week later his teeth fell. As a result, tated he has 
complications and can barely speak. has filed a grievance requesting that he been seen by a 
dentist was offered to be taken to a dentist, but refused because he wanted the service to be 
performed correctly. On December 1, 2015 was told that he had an interview with his lawyer. After 
waiting for his interview was informed that his lawyer left and tha missed his consultation. 

state  a library officer, was the one who did not properly make him aware that his lawyer 
arrived and therefore mad miss his appointment. On December 7, 2015  requested the rest 
of his medical records from Officer  angrily told hat he could not provide him the rest of 
his records  then stood up and pushed  out of his office with the door. On December 15, 2015 

and other detainees went outside instead of eating because they claimed the food was not good. As 
a result  an officer, screamed at the detainees to get back to their barracks grabbed 

and pushed him. hreatened nd told him that the food was never going to be good 
because he is in a jail.    LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: El Paso Processing 
Center      LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: July 16, 2015 - Present.    LSU Call 
Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty     LSU Call Center 
submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender LNU was: On Duty     LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-09176 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 El Paso Processing Center, ICE; El Paso, TX, et al. FNU  DHS Employee 2/19/2016 3/30/2016 5/31/2016

hq_12302.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_02-19-2016_10-20-50    The complainant,
(A#091793560), is reporting multiple individuals from the El Paso Processing Center.  stated he 
arrived at the facility on July 16, 2015 and about a week later his teeth fell. As a result, tated he has 
complications and can barely speak. has filed a grievance requesting that he been seen by a 
dentist was offered to be taken to a dentist, but refused because he wanted the service to be 
performed correctly. On December 1, 2015 was told that he had an interview with his lawyer. After 
waiting for his interview, was informed that his lawyer left and that missed his consultation. 

state  a library officer, was the one who did not properly make him aware that his lawyer 
arrived and therefore made miss his appointment. On December 7, 2015  requested the rest 
of his medical records from Officer  angrily told hat he could not provide him the rest of 
his records.  then stood up and pushed  out of his office with the door. On December 15, 2015 

and other detainees went outside instead of eating because they claimed the food was not good. As 
a result  an officer, screamed at the detainees to get back to their barracks grabbed 

and pushed him. hreatened nd told him that the food was never going to be good 
because he is in a jail.    LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: El Paso Processing 
Center      LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: July 16, 2015 - Present.    LSU Call 
Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty     LSU Call Center 
submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender LNU was: On Duty     LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-09176 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 El Paso Processing Center, ICE; El Paso, TX, et al.    LNU DHS Employee 2/19/2016 3/30/2016 5/31/2016

hq_12302.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_02-19-2016_10-20-50    The complainant,
), is reporting multiple individuals from the El Paso Processing Center.  stated he 

arrived at the facility on July 16, 2015 and about a week later his teeth fell. As a result, tated he has 
complications and can barely speak. has filed a grievance requesting that he been seen by a 
dentist.Sanchez was offered to be taken to a dentist, but refused because he wanted the service to be 
performed correctly. On December 1, 2015 was told that he had an interview with his lawyer. After 
waiting for his interview, was informed that his lawyer left and that missed his consultation. 

state  a library officer, was the one who did not properly make him aware that his lawyer 
arrived and therefore mad miss his appointment. On December 7, 2015  requested the rest 
of his medical records from Office  angrily tol hat he could not provide him the rest of 
his records.  then stood up and pushed  out of his office with the door. On December 15, 2015 

and other detainees went outside instead of eating because they claimed the food was not good. As 
a result  an officer, screamed at the detainees to get back to their barracks grabbed 

and pushed him. hreatene nd told him that the food was never going to be good 
because he is in a jail.    LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: El Paso Processing 
Center      LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: July 16, 2015 - Present.    LSU Call 
Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offende was: On Duty     LSU Call Center 
submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender LNU was: On Duty     LSU Call Center submitter 
indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-11818 El Paso, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 El Paso Detention Facility, ICE; DHS Employee; El Paso, 
TX Lorenzo  Gloria DHS Employee 5/12/2016 5/27/2016 11/25/2016

Respondent was threatened with bodily harm and was taken to the shower room where there are no 
cameras.  Respondent was told by Detention Office  in Spanish that he was going to fuck him up for 
talking back to him and directed him to the processing area showers.  The officer told him that he was going 
to send him to the dick and deport him.  The officer walked him to the showers and there the officer placed 
himself in a fighting stance and told the alien to come on I am going to fuck you up you son of a bitch.  The 
respondent responded that he would not fight with him because he was wearing a badge and would not do 
so because he did not want any trouble and just wanted to resolve his asylum case.  After this when Officer 

 saw another officer nearby he started saying that oh, you want to assault an officer, ah, I am going to 
write you up and accuse of assaulting an officer.  Respondent told him why are you saying that, just because 
another officer is here now your trying to put on a show.  Officer  confiscated the alien's ID that he 
needed to get his medication, but was unable to because he took it from him.  The alien went to he pharmacy 
and was able to get his medication; the officer had dropped it off there but never told the alien.  Later on, the 
alien was paged to report to processing area and it was officer Gloria that wanted to talk to him.  He 
summoned him near the kitchen doors, and told the alien he wanted to talk to him there because no one else 
could listen and there were no cameras there.  Officer aid he was sorry, for calling him an asshole 
pendejo, son of a bitch for threatening him to beat him up.  He also told the alien, but remember that you 
told me you didn't want any problems and I don't either so, don't even think about reporting this because I 
can create real problems for you here.  Respondent has relayed this statement to his attorney, working his 
asylum case and is making this report on his behalf.  The attorney of record is

 Vrain El Paso, Texas 79902, telephone  e-mail address @yahoo.com    Hotline 
Service 05/12/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: ICE, El Paso Detention 
Facility,  El Paso, Texas, inside the detention facility in the processing area and 
showers. Respondent is currently detained awaiting resolution on asylum application. Respondent has been 
detained for appr     734 Hotline Service 05/12/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the duty status 
of subject was: On Duty     734 Hotline Service 05/12/16 STD Public website complainant indicated that their 
Employment Title is: Mechanic by trade

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-11949 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

, DO, Contract Employee, ICE, El Paso, Texas DHS Contractor 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 6/28/2016

On April 19, 2016, U.S Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Enforcement and Removal Office,  El Paso, 
Texas (ERO/El Paso) informed the Office of Professional Responsibility, El Paso, TX  (OPR/El Paso), that 
detainee  alleged that he witnessed  detainee, , 
A  hand a wad of currency wrapped in toilet paper,  to an unnamed Global Precision Systems 
(GPS) Officer assigned to the El Paso Processing  Center (EPPC).      OPR informed the DHS OIG of the 
aforementioned allegation.    DHS Connect 05/16/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the 
duty status of Alleged Offender LNU was: On Duty

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-ICE-ELP-15311 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

FNU LNU, El Paso Processing Center, ICE, El Paso, TX FNU  LNU et al. DHS Employee 7/18/2016 7/21/2016 10/28/2016

9:59 AM CST     This complaint was taken in Spanish.  The complainant, , is 
reporting the officers at the El Paso Processing Center for abuse.  alleges there are officers who have 
been harassing and abusing her, by having other detainees "gang up" on her and hitting her.  stated 
this has been going on for over two months. tated she is very scared because she is a senior citizen 
and she is afraid these other detainees may attempt against her life. tated they have also taken 
away her food for other occasions and is discriminated against because of her age tated she does 
not want to be deported as her life and her grandson's will be endangered if she returns to Mexico.    Baton 
Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: El Paso 
Processing Center      1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: April, 2016 - present.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)



I16-ICE-ELP-17207 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Contract Officer, U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (DHS); El Paso, TX

Other Fed 
Agency 
Employee

8/16/2016 8/18/2016 10/28/2016

12:54 PM CST    This complaint was taken in Spanish. The complainant,
 a detainee at El Paso Processing Center, is filing a report against Office Officer 

, Office  and the facility. Fuentes alleges she reported a complaint with DHS OIG a while back 
regarding how Office  punishes her for no reason and continuously offends her  states 
investigators were sent to the facility and claims since then everything has gotten worse.  alleges the 
doctors at the facility and the officers are denying her medical treatment for her migraines and gastritis 
condition. tates 10 days ago she hurt her arm and has not received any kind of help. laims 

 tell other detainees to treat n a bad way.  requests to be deported to 
Mexico as soon as possible, because she cannot deal with this abuse any longer.    Baton Rouge Hotline 
08/16/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: El Paso Processing Center     
1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 08/16/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: 3 month 
ago - Present.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ELP-18145 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

FNU LNU, El Paso Processing Center; ICE - U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (DHS); El Paso, TX

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 8/30/2016 9/1/2016 9/16/2016

10:48 AM CST    This complaint was taken in Spanish. The complainant, , is 
reporting El Paso Processing Center visited Dr.  a doctor at Hospital de La Sierra, and was 
told he needed to be operated on immediately. has a hernia in his testicles and, if not operated 
on soon, will undergo severe medical problems. s in pain and throwing up, but is only receiving 
daily pain killers. has made several grievances with El Paso Processing Center, but nothing has 
happened. Officer  has informe his operation is being denied because supervisors will 
not authorize the surgery as had this problem since he arrived at El Paso Processing Center on 
April 15, 2016.    Baton Rouge Hotline 08/30/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: El Paso Processing Center     1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 08/30/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter 
provided an incident date range of: April 15, 2016 - Present.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-HOU-00586 Houston, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

DEPRTN OFFCR/1206 Falsification-Other/HOUSTON, 
MONTGOMERY, TX DHS Employee 10/14/2015 10/14/2015 1/21/2016

On October 9, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Supervisory Detention & Deportation Officer (SDDO   of Enforcement and 
Removal Operations located in Houston, TX (ERO/Houston) reporting an  allegation that Deportation Officer 
(DO)  of ERO/Houston intentional falsified a  Notice to Appear (NTA) related to the case of 

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-ICE-HOU-17676 Houston, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Texas Health and Human Services Commission-Office of Inspector 
General/Pharr, Texas

8/23/2016 8/23/2016 9/26/2016

***PLEASE PLACE INTO THE RIO GRANDE VALLEY RIBBON***    The Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Office of Inspector General (OIG) received an allegation from  a retired U.S. Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) employee who had been recently terminated from the Texas Health and Human 
Services-Office of Inspector General (HHSC-OIG), alleging that he was wrongfully terminated by HHSC-OIG.    

was referred to DHS OIG by the Federal Bureau of Investigation-San Antonio.  Upon  interview 
by DHS OIG, it was determined that  had also been interviewed by ICE-Office of Professional 
Responsibility (ICE-OPR) in San Antonio.    In addition to his complaint of wrongful termination
alleged that persons, to include DHS employees, had conspired to have him terminated.  further 
alleged that in 2014, DHS employees had misappropriated weapons parts that had been donated to ICE from 
the U.S. military.

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-LAX-14624 Los Angeles, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Los Angeles County Jail;  Los Angeles, CA 7/1/2016 7/6/2016 7/26/2016

5:31 PM CST     The complainant,  would like to file a report against the Los Angeles County Jail. 
claims on June 3, 2016 he was escorted out of his cell and he ended up going to the hospital because 

he was beaten in the bathroom by the deputies stated there are cameras in the jail that contain 
proof of this incident laims that he has complained and written many grievances about the incident 
but there has been no resolution.  stated there have been many other incidents similar to this one 
that he would like to speak with an investigator about. ncluded that he did not know his alien 
registration number but he included his booking number of 4699794 stated he would like to be 
contacted by an investigator.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/01/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Los Angeles County Jail PO Box 86164 Terminal Annex

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Admin Closure

I16-ICE-MIA-00205 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Krome Service Processing Center; ICE; Miami, FL 10/5/2015 10/7/2015 5/19/2016

4:24PM CST  The complainant,  claims that he filed a complaint with DHS-OIG two to three 
months ago, and it was never investigated. The complainant claims that his previous complaints were about 
him being discriminated against within the facility. alleges that he is not receiving any help from ICE 
and that it took him to go on a hunger strike in order for anyone to do anything about his problems. The 
complainant claims that he was also attacked by 6-7 people and nothing was done about this assault
claims that he just wants ICE to listen to him, and do something about the constant discrimination he is 
facing.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-ICE-MIA-02188 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Krome Service Processing Center; 
Miami, FL

FNU DHS Employee 11/13/2015 11/16/2015 3/18/2016

4:40 PM CST  is reporting Krome Processing Service Center and ICE Officers
 claims every time he has attempted contact the ICE Headquarters using the speed dial 

number provided by the facility, the number is redirected to another ICE Office and a message is played 
stating the office is closed. ays he knows he is calling during office hours, so he does not believe the 
office is close  states he also believes this is corruption from ICE, because they reprogrammed the 
phones to keep the detainees from contacting the ICE Headquarters.  also claims he has several issues 
with Officers within the facility. previously physically assaulted him 
and aide n the assault. also states he was in the law library at 1:55 PM on November 
12, 2015, when ook his legal documents from him without reason. laims
have both placed him in confinement for not set reason as well, other than as retaliation for the complaints 

 makes against them  says he believes ICE is involved in several corrupt actions and are abusing 
detainee???s rights.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-MIA-02188 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Krome Service Processing Center; 
Miami, FL

FNU DHS Employee 11/13/2015 11/16/2015 3/18/2016

4:40 PM CST  is reporting Krome Processing Service Center and ICE Officers
 claims every time he has attempted contact the ICE Headquarters using the speed dial 

number provided by the facility, the number is redirected to another ICE Office and a message is played 
stating the office is closed. ays he knows he is calling during office hours, so he does not believe the 
office is closed.  states he also believes this is corruption from ICE, because they reprogrammed the 
phones to keep the detainees from contacting the ICE Headquarters  also claims he has several issues 
with Officers within the facility. previously physically assaulted him 
and aided n the assault. also states he was in the law library at 1:55 PM on November 
12, 2015, when ook his legal documents from him without reason. laims
have both placed him in confinement for not set reason as well, other than as retaliation for the complaints 

 makes against them  says he believes ICE is involved in several corrupt actions and are abusing 
detainee???s rights.

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-MIA-02588 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non DHS Employee/0609 Detainee/Alien - Physical 
Assault (Staff on  Detainee)/MIAMI, DADE, FL

State/Local Govt 
Employee 11/20/2015 11/20/2015 5/3/2016

On November 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Deportation Officer (DO  Enforcement and Removal  Operations Miami, FL 
(ERO/Miami). DO  received information that detainee  of Krome Detention 
Center Miami  FL was allegedly assaulted by a facility staff  member

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-MIA-02588 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Non DHS Employee/0609 Detainee/Alien - Physical 
Assault (Staff on  Detainee)/MIAMI, DADE, FL

State/Local Govt 
Employee 11/20/2015 11/20/2015 5/3/2016

On November 19, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Deportation Officer (DO  Enforcement and Removal  Operations Miami, FL 
(ERO/Miami). DO  received information that detainee  of Krome Detention 
Center Miami, FL was allegedly assaulted by a facility staff  member.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-MIA-04251 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

CRIM INVSTGR/1801 Incidents-
Critical/Significant/MIAMI BEACH,  MIAMI-DADE, FL DHS Employee 12/28/2015 12/28/2015 3/29/2016

On December 24, 2015 at approximately 12:05 AM, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement  (ICE), Office of 
Professional Responsibility (OPR), Special Agent in Charge (SAC) Southeast,  Miami, Florida received 
information from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) Miami Group  Supervisor (GS) who stated 
that HSI Miami Special Agent (SA)  had  been involuntarily Baker Acted by Miami Beach Police 
Department (MBPD)

4.3.20 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Unspecified / Miscellaneous
Other (Explain in 
Narrative Field) Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-MIA-08061 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

; Non-DHS Employee; ICE - U.S. Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (DHS); Miramar, FL Alien Detainee 3/8/2016 3/9/2016 11/3/2016

On December 10, 2015, at approximately 10:30 a.m. , Special Agents, 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, Miami Field Office, interviewed  

 Detention Officer, Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Krome Service Processing Center (KSPC), 
18201 SW 12th Street, Miami, FL. was interviewed in reference to an allegation made by

, a Haitian national and detainee at KSPC.   alleged that he was assaulted on December 5, 2015, 
by Contract Detention Officers (CDO), Akima Global Services (AGS), KSPC.  The interviewing agents identified 
themselves and informe  of the nature of the investigation.  The interview occurred at KSPC.     In 
summary, tated the following:    On December 5, 2015, was being held in the Special Housing 
Unit (SHU) as punishment for an infraction at KSPC.  While being housed in the SHU,  placed a piece of 
paper on the window on his cell door.  According to  detainees are not permitted to cover the 
windows.  CDO, AGS, KPSC, was on duty and working in the SHU on December 5, 2015. 
had ??s door unlocked, and then attempted to reach into ??s cell to remove the paper.  
When eached into the cell, grabbed  refusing to let go, and then place n a rear 
chokehold.     stated that the incident was reported to the ICE, KSPC, Unit Discplinary Committee and 
the Institutional Disciplinary Panel (IDP) for review.  The IDP found  guilty of assaulting
was charged with a KSPC infraction. advised that ICE wanted the issue presented to the U.S. 
Attorney???s Office for prosecution.      provided the DHS OIG with the IDP Report of Findings and 
Actions.    Hotline Service 03/08/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Krome Service Processing Center, Miami, FL     734 Hotline Service 03/08/16 STD Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: Special Agent

2.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Assault on a Federal Officer
Threatening/Harassmen
t of, or assault on an 
officer

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 111
Assaulting, Resisting or Impeding Certain Officers 
or Employees

I16-ICE-MIA-10559 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/1610 General Misconduct-Other Non-
criminal/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/11/2016 4/15/2016 10/19/2016

On April 8, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)  of Enforcement 
and Removal Operations located in Miami, FL (ERO/Miami)  reporting an allegation of unnamed ERO/Miami 
officers intentionally shredding documents at the  Krome IRC (Interoperability Response Center) located in 
Miami, FL.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2071
Concealment, Removal, or Mutilation of Records 
or Reports 

I16-ICE-MIA-17509 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Krome Detention Center; ICE - U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (DHS); Miami, FL 8/19/2016 8/22/2016 11/3/2016

*HIGH PRIORITY*  3:51PM CST     The complainant and detainee, , is filing a 
report against Krome Detention Center.  states that he does not receive medical attention at Krome 
Detention Center and that his phone privileges are sometimes revoked states that he is constantly 
discriminated against states that he has been on a hunger strike since August 16  2016

2.5 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Denial of Rights / Due 
Process

Denial of rights, due 
process Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-ICE-NEO-01109 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LaSalle Detention Center; ICE; Jena, LA 10/22/2015 11/9/2015 1/27/2016

1:41PM CST  The complainant, , claims that at LaSalle Detention Center in Jena, Louisiana, there 
has been water contamination. The complainant claims that for the past three days the water they have been 
drinking, using to cook, and showering in has been contaminated and the facility is not doing anything to fix 
it. The complainant claims that people in the detention center including himself are starting to feel the 
effects from the contaminated water and are becoming ill.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-NEO-01109 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LaSalle Detention Center; ICE; Jena, LA 10/22/2015 11/9/2015 1/27/2016

1:41PM CST  The complainant, , claims that at LaSalle Detention Center in Jena, Louisiana, there 
has been water contamination. The complainant claims that for the past three days the water they have been 
drinking, using to cook, and showering in has been contaminated and the facility is not doing anything to fix 
it. The complainant claims that people in the detention center including himself are starting to feel the 
effects from the contaminated water and are becoming ill.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Civil Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NEO-01109 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LaSalle Detention Center; ICE; Jena, LA 10/22/2015 11/9/2015 1/27/2016

1:41PM CST  The complainant, , claims that at LaSalle Detention Center in Jena, Louisiana, there 
has been water contamination. The complainant claims that for the past three days the water they have been 
drinking, using to cook, and showering in has been contaminated and the facility is not doing anything to fix 
it. The complainant claims that people in the detention center including himself are starting to feel the 
effects from the contaminated water and are becoming ill

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NEO-02766 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Contracted Employee, 
Jena, LA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/25/2015 11/25/2015 5/23/2016

On November 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Detention and Deportation Officer (DDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Washington, DC (ERO/Washington). DD eported 

, a detainee Jena/Lasalle Detention Facilti, Jena,  LA, alleged he he was sexually and physically assaulted 
by an unknown GEO Security Guard.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-ICE-NEO-02766 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Contracted Employee, 
Jena, LA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/25/2015 11/25/2015 5/23/2016

On November 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Detention and Deportation Officer (DDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Washington, DC (ERO/Washington). DD eported 

, a detainee Jena/Lasalle Detention Facilti, Jena,  LA, alleged he he was sexually and physically assaulted 
by an unknown GEO Security Guard.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NEO-02766 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Contracted Employee, 
Jena, LA

DHS Contractor 11/25/2015 11/25/2015 5/23/2016

On November 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Detention and Deportation Officer (DDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Washington, DC (ERO/Washington). DD eported 

, a detainee Jena/Lasalle Detention Facilti, Jena,  LA, alleged he he was sexually and physically assaulted 
by an unknown GEO Security Guard

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-ICE-NEO-02766 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Contracted Employee, 
Jena, LA

DHS Contractor 11/25/2015 11/25/2015 5/23/2016

On November 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Detention and Deportation Officer (DDO)   Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, Washington, DC (ERO/Washington). DD n reported 

, a detainee Jena/Lasalle Detention Facilti, Jena,  LA, alleged he he was sexually and physically assaulted 
by an unknown GEO Security Guard.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NEO-04033 New Orleans, LA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Alien Detainee Alien Detainee 12/22/2015 12/22/2015 2/25/2016
According to the report, on December 7, 2015, detainee  alleged he awoke to  detainee 

squeezing his penis through his clothing. Detaine  stated that he said "  hey" and detainee
returned to his assigned bed with nothing else being said.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-ICE-NEO-06035 New Orleans, LA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

/Non-Employee/0618 Detainee/Alien - Death 
(Known Cause-Terminal  Illness)/ALEXANDRIA, RAPIDES, LA FNU  LNU General Public 1/28/2016 2/2/2016 8/12/2016

On January 22, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Field Office Director (FOD) , Enforcement and Removal  Operations, New 
Orleans, LA (ERO/New Orleans) who reported the death of detainee

of the Jenna/La Salle Detention Center due to  cardiac and respiratory arrest.

2.4 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Custodial Death Custodial Death Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-NYC-01570 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

; Enforcement & Removal Assistant; ICE; New York, 
NY DHS Employee 11/2/2015 11/2/2015 12/22/2016

On Octobers 23, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, New York, NY (ERO/New York). SDDO alleges that  he was shown inappropriate 
photos by Enforcement and Removal Assistant (ERA)  Enforcement and Removal 
Operations, New York, NY (ERO/New York).

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252A
Activities Relating to Material Constituting or 
Containing Child Pornography

I16-ICE-NYC-06033 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LNU, FNU; ICE; Pike, PA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 4/8/2016

On January 26, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations Philadelphia, PA (ERO/Philadelphia). Detainee f Pike 
County Correctional Facility (PCCF) alleges that he was  sexually assaulted by two unknown staff member 
while undergoing a body search

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NYC-06034 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LNU, FNU; ICE; Pike, PA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 4/8/2016

On January 25, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations Philadelphia, PA (ERO/Philadelphia). Detainee  of Pike 
County Correctional Facility (PCCF) alleges that he was sexually  assaulted by a staff member while 
undergoing a body search for contraband.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NYC-06043 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) LNU, FNU; ICE; Pike, PA FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 4/8/2016

On January 26, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations Philadelphia, PA (ERO/Philadelphia). Detainee  of 
the Pike County Correctional Facility (PCCF) alleges that he was  sexually assaulted by an unknown 
corrections officer during a search.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NYC-09249 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Pike County Corrections Officers, Pike County Prison, Lords Valley, PA

State/Local Govt 
Employee 3/24/2016 3/24/2016 9/12/2016

On March 17, 2016, the JIC received information from ICE detainee of the Pike 
Correctional Center Philadelphia, PA who alleges that he was physically assaulted by  Pike Correctional 
officers.  Detainee alleges on February 3, 2016, he was physically assaulted by Corrections Officers  
FNU and CO FNU which resulted in his broken back, fractured wrist and bruised  ankle.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NYC-09249 New York, NY
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Pike County Corrections Officers, Pike County Prison, Lords Valley, PA

State/Local Govt 
Employee 3/24/2016 3/24/2016 9/12/2016

On March 17, 2016, the JIC received information from ICE detainee of the Pike 
Correctional Center Philadelphia, PA who alleges that he was physically assaulted by  Pike Correctional 
officers.  Detainee alleges on February 3, 2016, he was physically assaulted by Corrections Officers  
FNU and CO FNU which resulted in his broken back  fractured wrist and bruised  ankle

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-NYC-15303 New York, NY U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

; U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); 
DHS Employee; New York, NY

DHS Employee 7/18/2016 7/20/2016 10/12/2016

10:38 AM CST  is reporting an unknown ICE Supervisor. laims in 
March 2016 while at the Immigration Court located at Verick St. New York, New York, he was assaulted by an 
ICE Supervisor. ays he requested to speak with his attorney, but the ICE Supervisor wouldn't 
allow him to do so. tates the ICE Supervisor then began to become upset with  
and then pushed s head against the elevator doors while was handcuffed. 

claims the event was caught on camera says he is currently located in Hudson 
County Correctional Facility.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: Immigration court located at Verick St. New York, New York - 1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 
07/18/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: March 2016 - Present .

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ORL-06081 Orlando, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Orange County Jail; ICE - U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS); Possibly Orlando, FL

2/2/2016 2/2/2016 3/21/2016

1:21 PM CST  The complainant is reporting Orange County Jail. The complainant claims the officers in Orange 
County Jail are stealing money from the detainees daily. The complainant says when the detainees order 
food or clothes from the canteen, which is sent by Airmart, the facility is charging the detainees for the items 
and then not bringing the items to the detainees. The complainant states every day the detainees have to 
wait for the canteen to bring their items, they are charged two dollars. The complainant claims the officers 
are also taking money out of the detainee???s property and taking their money orders. The complainant says 
the officers have taken approximately $40,000.00 from him since he???s been detained and approximately 
$9,000.00 from other detainees. The complainant also states if a detainees enters the facility and does not 
have any money, they are supposed to receive the basics such as boxers and socks but the officers are 
refusing to provide these necessities. The complainant claims the detainees are also charged $0.14 cents for 
each minute on their phone calls plus additional costs. The complainant stated he was ordered to get off of 
the phone and disconnected the call before any further information could be obtained, including the city and 
state where the facility was located.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unfounded Admin Closure Administrative Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ORL-06081 Orlando, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Orange County Jail; ICE - U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS); Possibly Orlando, FL

2/2/2016 2/2/2016 3/21/2016

1:21 PM CST  The complainant is reporting Orange County Jail. The complainant claims the officers in Orange 
County Jail are stealing money from the detainees daily. The complainant says when the detainees order 
food or clothes from the canteen, which is sent by Airmart, the facility is charging the detainees for the items 
and then not bringing the items to the detainees. The complainant states every day the detainees have to 
wait for the canteen to bring their items, they are charged two dollars. The complainant claims the officers 
are also taking money out of the detainee???s property and taking their money orders. The complainant says 
the officers have taken approximately $40,000.00 from him since he???s been detained and approximately 
$9,000.00 from other detainees. The complainant also states if a detainees enters the facility and does not 
have any money, they are supposed to receive the basics such as boxers and socks but the officers are 
refusing to provide these necessities. The complainant claims the detainees are also charged $0.14 cents for 
each minute on their phone calls plus additional costs. The complainant stated he was ordered to get off of 
the phone and disconnected the call before any further information could be obtained, including the city and 
state where the facility was located.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-ORL-08751 Orlando, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 FNU; CE/DOJ;  Non-DHS Employee; MILTON, FL FNU State/Local Govt 
Employee

2/16/2016 4/1/2016 4/27/2016

10.62.226.49_Scan_to_Desktop_02-16-2016_14-57-06.pdf    The complainant, tates that he had 
been sexually assaulted by Sergeant n 10/29/15. tates that since then he has been targeted 
for sexual harassment by other people in the institution. tates that he has tried reaching out to many 
different people and agencies about the matter, but to no avail tates that he has been threatened 
multiple times and that he feels his life is in danger.    LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Santa Rosa Correctional Insitution

2.6.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Prisoner Prisoner Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 2243 Sexual Abuse of a Minor or Ward

I16-ICE-PHL-00224 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  IEA, ICE, BERKS, PA DHS Employee 10/6/2015 10/6/2015 2/29/2016

On October 1, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Assistant Field Office  Director, 
(AFOD) related to a detainee allegation of excessive force during his arrest. Detainee 

alleges he was cuffed, grabbed and slammed into a wall when  ICE Officers took him into custody at 
Berks County Prison

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 842(a)(2) Unlawful Acts

I16-ICE-PHL-00670 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  Corrections Officer, York County Prison, York, PA

State/Local Govt 
Employee 10/15/2015 10/15/2015 6/30/2016

On October 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement  and Removal 
Operations, York, PA (ERO/York). AFOD eported a sexual assault  allegation between detainee 

and an unidentified York County  Prison Correctional Officer (CO) at the York 
County Prison in York, PA.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 10 USC 920 Rape, sexual assault, and other sexual misconduct

I16-ICE-PHL-00670 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  Corrections Officer, York County Prison, York, PA

State/Local Govt 
Employee 10/15/2015 10/15/2015 6/30/2016

On October 10, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD)  Enforcement  and Removal 
Operations, York, PA (ERO/York). AFOD eported a sexual assault  allegation between detainee 

 and an unidentified York County  Prison Correctional Officer (CO) at the York 
County Prison in York, PA.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-ICE-PHL-06067 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Unknown DO, ICE, ERO, Marlton, NJ DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 5/16/2016

On January 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Captain Alesandro  Ibarrondo from 
the Camden County Police Department in Camden, NJ, who reported  a civilian in 
Camden, NJ, claims he was physically assaulted by unidentified  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
officers.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 113
Assaults Within Maritime and Territorial 
Jurisdiction

I16-ICE-PHL-06067 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Unknown DO, ICE, ERO, Marlton, NJ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 5/16/2016

On January 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Captain rom 
the Camden County Police Department in Camden, NJ, who reported  a civilian in 
Camden, NJ, claims he was physically assaulted by unidentified  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
officers

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 113
Assaults Within Maritime and Territorial 
Jurisdiction

I16-ICE-PHL-06067 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Unknown DO, ICE, ERO, Marlton, NJ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 5/16/2016

On January 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Captain rom 
the Camden County Police Department in Camden, NJ, who reported  a civilian in 
Camden, NJ, claims he was physically assaulted by unidentified  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
officers.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 113
Assaults Within Maritime and Territorial 
Jurisdiction

I16-ICE-PHL-06067 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Unknown DO, ICE, ERO, Marlton, NJ 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 5/16/2016

On January 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Captain rom 
the Camden County Police Department in Camden, NJ, who reported  a civilian in 
Camden, NJ, claims he was physically assaulted by unidentified  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
officers.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 113
Assaults Within Maritime and Territorial 
Jurisdiction

I16-ICE-PHL-06067 Philadelphia, PA
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) Unknown DO, ICE, ERO, Marlton, NJ 1/28/2016 1/28/2016 5/16/2016

On January 7, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Captain rom 
the Camden County Police Department in Camden, NJ, who reported  a civilian in 
Camden, NJ, claims he was physically assaulted by unidentified  Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
officers

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 113
Assaults Within Maritime and Territorial 
Jurisdiction

I16-ICE-RGV-06868 Rio Grande Valley, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 non-DHS Employee; ICE - U.S. Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (DHS); Rio Grande Valley, TX DHS Contractor 2/16/2016 2/16/2016 5/19/2016

On February 9, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security-Office of Inspector General was contacted by the 
Department of Labor-Office of Inspector General regarding allegations that  a civilian and a 
DHS contractor, misappropriated DHS funds that had been awarded to the Valley Metro-Barbosa Group Joint 
Venture pursuant to a contract for detention services at a Federal facility.  The Valley Metro-Barbosa Group 
Joint Venture is located in the Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Rio Grande 
Valley, Texas Batavia, New Yorkarea and the detention facility is located in Batavia, New York.      Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Rio Grande Valley, Texas Batavia, New York

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-ICE-RGV-10053 Rio Grande Valley, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

/CRIM INVSTGR/0801 Conflict of Interest-Association 
with Known Criminals/Illegal Aliens/MONTERREY, MEXICO, MX DHS Employee 4/6/2016 4/8/2016 9/9/2016

On March 31, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Assistant Attaché (AA) of Homeland Security  Investigations located in 
Monterrey, MX (HSI/Monterrey) reporting an allegation of misconduct by  Special Agent (SA) of 
HSI/Monterrey.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-ICE-SAT-06253 San Antonio, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0606 Detainee/Alien - Abuse 
(Other)/LAREDO, WEBB, TX FNU  LNU DHS Employee 2/1/2016 2/1/2016 2/29/2016

On January 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Deportation Officer (DO)  of Enforcement and  Removal Operations 
located in Taylor, TX (ERO/Taylor) reporting an allegation of abuse as it was  received from ERO detainee

 at the Laredo Detention  Center located in Laredo  TX

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unfounded Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-SND-09863 San Diego, CA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

Unknown Contractor Employee, Corrections Corporation of America 
(CCA),  ICE, San Diego, CA

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 4/4/2016 4/8/2016 4/19/2016

11:55 AM    The complainant, , a detainee at Otay Mesa Detention 
Center is filing a report against unidentified officers who abused him tated he was in an 
examination room due to him experiencing problems with anxiety and depression and needed to sleep. 

 alleges he received medication that effectively did make him go to sleep  claims that 
some officers came in and started to hit him and touch him inappropriately.  states that the officers 
took his clothes off with scissors and put "green clothes" on him  states there were cameras that 
could prove what happened whenever someone decides to look into the case.  does not know the 
names of the officers, however he would be able to physically identify them.  affirms that he needs 
the recordings of the camera because he wants to prove what happened in court to receive justice
alleges that this incident has happened before to other people and nothing was done about it.  adds 
that the officers have also taken a 19 years old girl in the examination room and does not know if they have 
abused her.  has talked to the facility via letters and grievances, however no one has done anything 
about this matter.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-ICE-SVA-14939 Sierra Vista, AZ
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) FNU LNU, ICE, Phoenix, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 7/7/2016 7/12/2016 9/14/2016

On July 5, 2016, the Office of Professional Responsibility, Tucson, AZ (OPR/Tucson), received a  call from 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Special Agent (SA   Homeland Security 
Investigations, Douglas, AZ (HSI/Douglas), stating he wanted to report an  unknown ICE employee in the 
Phoenix, AZ, area that was soliciting bribes.  This report of investigation serves to document the initial 
allegation received by OPR/Tucson

1.1 Employee Corruption Bribery Bribery Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 201 Bribery of Public Officials and Witnesses

I16-ICE-TUC-04181 Tucson, AZ
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)  ICE, Office of the General Counsel (DHS), San Diego, CA DHS Employee 12/23/2015 12/24/2015 8/24/2016

Respondent, estified on behalf of the United States in Case # 10 cr 04141 
against corrupt border inspector passed million dollar loads of marijuana and other 
contraband across the United States Border in his capacity as a border Inspector.  Respondent's testimony was 
public and is well known to the drug cartels.  He is responsible in a great part for the loss of a valuable conduit 
for trafficking drugs into the United States easily costing tens of millions and potentially hundreds of millions 
of dollars to the cartels.    Senior Special Agent was the Case Agent in charge of the 
Respondent in the above criminal case.  He was asked by counsel for the Respondent to testify truthfully 
relative to the safety of the Respondent.  He inquired through his chain of command and received permission 
to testify.      Despite having been informed on several occasions that Agen would be sought by the 
Respondent,including statements in open court on the record, no objection was received from counsel for 
the government.     On the date of the hearing, Agen came to testify and the Alleged offender told 
him that she would not allow him to testify without a letter from his office.  She addressed him in a 
threatening tone of voice and told him that he was there at his own peril. She told him that he could not 
testify as a Federal officer.  She stormed from the courtroom and came back telling agent o check 
his E-mail because he was ordered not to testify. told her that he had E-mails from his command 
and that all had been worked out.  Counsel for the respondent advised the offending party that her actions 
constituted witness tampering and intimidation of a witness and demanded that she stop. She did not and 
continued to clearly conduct herself in a manner that was threatening to the Agent. The Testimony of the 
Agent was clearly affected by what can only be seen as outright and obvious intimidation.      Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Immigration Court, San Diego, California Courtroom of 
Hon. Jesus Clemente

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I16-ICE-TUC-08669 Tucson, AZ U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

, ERA, ICE-ERO, Phoenix, AZ DHS Employee 3/11/2016 3/20/2016 10/4/2016

On March 11, 2016, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Group Supervisor (GS) , Homeland 
Security Investigations, Sells, AZ (HSI/Sells), contacted the ICE Office of  Professional Responsibility, Tucson, 
AZ (OPR/Tucson), to report finding documents related to an  Enforcement Removal Operations, Phoenix, AZ 
(ERO/Phoenix), employee while searching a  seized marijuana load vehicle. According to GS  an 
ERO/Phoenix employee roster and an  email linked to Enforcement Removal Assistant (ERA)  
ERO/Phoenix  were found  inside the vehicle

4.2 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-TUC-11635 Tucson, AZ
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) , DO, ICE-ERO, Eloy, AZ DHS Employee 5/11/2016 5/11/2016 7/14/2016

On May 5, 2016, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional  Responsibility, Phoenix, 
Arizona (OPR/Phoenix), received an email written by Corrections  Corporation of America (CCA) Investigator 
Irma Potter, Eloy Detention Center (EDC), Eloy,  Arizona, who reported Deportation Officer (DO)

 Enforcement and Removal  Operations, Eloy, Arizona (ERO/Eloy), is alleged to be involved in an 
inappropriate relationship  with ICE detainee ) at the EDC.

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-ICE-TUC-13969 Tucson, AZ U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

FNU LNU, ICE, Mesa, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 6/17/2016 6/20/2016 9/19/2016

On May 27, 2016, an article was published in The Guardian entitled, "South Asian Migrants Say They Were Put 
in 'body Bags' for Deportation from US."  The article can be found at http://www.theguardian.com/us-
news/2016/may/27/south-asian-migrants-body-bags-deportation-us?    The article alleges that a group of 
former South Asian ICE detainees were forcefully placed in body bags and shocked with Tasers by ICE officers, 
as they were being deported from the US.  This occurred on April 3, 2016 when 85 Bangladeshis, Nepalis, and 
Indians were repatriated on an ICE charter flight that departed from Mesa, Arizona.  Apparently they all failed 
in their asylum claims or in their attempts to obtain legal status.     Seven former detainees provided details.  
They said 15 were placed in body bags, believed to be security blankets, and some said they were shocked 
with a Taser.     The article states all 85 detainees were handcuffed and placed in waist and ankle chains form 
the time they left the detention center until they landed in Dhaka (a period of over 30 hours according to 
those interviewed).  Some say they have bruising on wrists and ankles.      They said many detainees had 
visible injuries and were bleeding.  Some said ICE officers kicked and punched detainees.  Several detainees 
said there were hundreds of ICE officers present during the removals and they were laughing or swearing at 
the detainees, and even filmed it on their iPhones.    Previously, CRCL had been made aware of a Bangladeshi 
news video that was posted on Facebook, ostensibly dealing with the same group of people.  That video has 
been translated and similar allegations were made.

2.12 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Other Civil Rights/Civil 
Liberties

Other Civil Rights and 
Civil Liberties

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-ICE-TUC-15293 Tucson, AZ U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Corrections Officer, CCA, Eloy, AZ State/Local Govt 
Employee

7/18/2016 7/19/2016 7/27/2016

This complaint was taken from voicemail and translated from Spanish. The complainant and alien detainee, 
, alleges that he was sexually assaulted by Officer  at the CCA 

detention center in Eloy, AZ. The complainant wants to file charges surrounding said assault and wishes to be 
contacted by an investigator.    Baton Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: CCA     1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 07/18/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that 
the duty status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-ICE-TUC-20072 Tucson, AZ
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS) , Non-Employee, CCA employee; Eloy, AZ Alien Detainee 9/20/2016 9/26/2016 12/15/2016

On September 19, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Assistant Field Office Director (AFOD  Enforcement  and Removal Operations 
Phoenix, AZ (ERO/Phoenix), who states that detainee  claims 
that he is related to Corrections Corporation of America  (CCA) staff member, and receives 
preferential treatment while detained at the  Eloy  AZ detention facility

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Non-Criminal 
Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICE-WFO-00405 Washington, DC U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 Officer; U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS); DHS Contractor; Farmville, VA

DHS Contractor 10/8/2015 10/8/2015 2/22/2016

11:24AM CST  This is a translation from Spanish.  The complainant and alien detainee,
), alleges that the offenders and the Farmville Detention Center have abused 

him. On the night of September 24, 2015,  when sleeping in the lower bunk of his dorm when he was 
attacked b  She hit him multiple times all over his body, but mostly on his arms  reported 
the incident within the facility and went to see the doctor in the facility, but the doctor did not provide any 
assistance. The investigation into the incident has now been closed, and no action has been taken to rectify 

???s actions. has been in pain from this attack, and has requested to see the doctor again to 
get some kind of assistance but nothing has happened.  is now becoming sleep deprived because he 
is in such constant fear o and is unable to sleep. lso states tha s now on patrol in 
the area of his dorm again, and he is very scared.  --  LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident 
location was: Farmville Detention Center   LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range of: 
September 24, 2015 to present.   LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the duty status of Alleged Offender 

was: On Duty

2.6.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee Detainee Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-ICE-WFO-09329 Washington, DC U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

ICE - U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); ICA-Farmville; 
Farmville, VA

3/24/2016 4/4/2016 6/24/2016

5:27 pm     The complainant, , alleges he is currently being detained in ICA-
Farmville and, while being held for the last 2 weeks, he became aware of drug businesses taking place inside 
ICA-Farmville. The complainant stated he was confronted by another inmate and asked if he was interested 
in buying drugs such as marijuana and crack cocaine, and was let in on the ???tips??? of when and where to 
smoke them. The complainant was told, during recreation time, there is somewhere outside inmates can go 
to use the drugs where no officers are watching. The complainant stated the inmates are receiving the drugs 
from outside sources and selling them in small quantities. The main distributors of the drugs within the 
facility are inmates that are working within commissary. The complainant stated the workers in commissary 
are responsible for packaging up the goods inmates request. While packaging the goods they insert the drugs 
into the packages. The complainant stated he has informed the officers of the drug business however no one 
has taken any further action. The complainant stated if anyone from OIG has any further questions regarding 
this matter they can contact him via written mail or a visit and he will be happy to provide further details.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/24/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: ICA-
Farmville     1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/24/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident date range 
of: 2 weeks.

4.3.5 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Contraband Issues Contraband Issues Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-ICEHSI-ELP-08752 El Paso, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)  Special Agent, HSI, El Paso, TX DHS Employee 3/17/2016 3/21/2016 8/26/2016

On March 09, 2016, the Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility 
(OPR) received information that Special Agen had allegedly misused his official 
government vehicle. The Department of Homeland Security, Office of Inspector General, El Paso Field Office,  
will assist ICE OPR with this investigation

4.3.21 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Other Non-Criminal Activity
Off duty misconduct, no 
violence Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICEHSI-ELP-13616 El Paso, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)  ASAC, HSI, Las Cruces, NM DHS Employee 6/13/2016 6/14/2016 9/16/2016

On June 3, 2016, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Office of Professional  Responsibility, El Paso, 
TX (OPR/El Paso), received information from Deputy Assistant Special  Agent in Charge (DSAC)  
Homeland Security Investigations, El Paso, TX (HSI/El  Paso), regarding an allegation against Assistant Special 
Agent in Charge (ASAC)   HSI/Las Cruces, NM. DSAC ontacted ASAC  
OPR/El Paso, to report the  allegation.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-ICEHSI-PHL-04344 Philadelphia, PA U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

H; ICE; Bangor, ME DHS Employee 12/29/2015 1/12/2016 1/12/2016

1:33 PM CST    The complainant,  would like to file a report against  
claim s an ICE agent and was married to her mother for ten years claims that when 

she was eleven years old, molested her. believes  should not have the right to remain an 
ICE agent when he has history of child molestation and abuse. tated that molested her 
before he became an ICE agent but she believes he should not be investigating child abuse cases when he 
committed the same crime. would like to request to be contacted by an investigator.    [D.O. Note: 
The subject may currently be assigned to Springfield, MA.]

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition State Violation

I16-ICEHSI-RGV-04436 Rio Grande Valley, TX
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS) Non-Employee/Unknown/FALCON, ZAPATA, TX

State/Local Govt 
Employee 12/31/2015 1/4/2016 2/7/2016

On December 30, 2015, Office of Professional Responsibility, Harlingen, TX (OPR/Harlingen),  received 
information from Resident Agent in Charge (RAC)  ICE-Homeland Security  Investigations Falcon 
Dam, Texas (HSI/Falcon Dam) stating HSI Task Force Officer (TFO) was a person of interest in a 
Starr County, Texas Sheriff's Department's (SCSD) internal  investigation into missing seized monies.  This 
report will serve to document the initial allegation

4.1.9 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Theft Other Criminal Activity Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001
False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-ICEHSI-RGV-10336 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; ICEHSI - U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement - Homeland Security Investigations (DHS); Starr County 
Sheriff's Department; Rio Grande City, TX

State/Local Govt 
Employee

4/11/2016 4/13/2016 8/17/2016

On April 8, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security-Office of Inspector General was contacted by the 
Texas Department of Public Safety-Texas Ranger Division regarding a double homicide that occurred in Rio 
Grande City, Texas on March 23, 2016.      One of the homicide victims was the estranged spouse o  
an investigator with the Starr County Sheriff's Department in Rio Grande City.  was also assigned as a 
Task Force Investigator with U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement-Homeland Security Investigations in 
Falcon Heights, Texas.      The Texas Rangers identified s a "person of interest" in their investigation of 
the double homicide.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1111 Murder

I16-ICEHSI-RGV-10336 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; ICEHSI - U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement - Homeland Security Investigations (DHS); Starr County 
Sheriff's Department; Rio Grande City, TX

State/Local Govt 
Employee

4/11/2016 4/13/2016 8/17/2016

On April 8, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security-Office of Inspector General was contacted by the 
Texas Department of Public Safety-Texas Ranger Division regarding a double homicide that occurred in Rio 
Grande City, Texas on March 23, 2016.      One of the homicide victims was the estranged spouse o  
an investigator with the Starr County Sheriff's Department in Rio Grande City.  was also assigned as a 
Task Force Investigator with U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement-Homeland Security Investigations in 
Falcon Heights, Texas.      The Texas Rangers identified s a "person of interest" in their investigation of 
the double homicide.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1111 Murder

I16-ICEOPR-MIA-00178 Miami, FL
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

Non-Employee/0609 Detainee/Alien - Physical 
Assault (Staff on  Detainee)/MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FL DHS Contractor 10/5/2015 10/6/2015 10/11/2016

On October 1, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received information from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE), Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)  of Enforcement and 
Removal Operations located in Miami, FL (ERO/Miami) reporting an  allegation that ERO detainee

 was assaulted by Contract Employee  (CE  at the Krome North Service 
Processing Center located in Miami  FL

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties
Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-ICEOPR-MIA-01033 Miami, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Office of Professional Responsibility (DHS)

EMPLOYEE, UNKNOWN/Unknown/0613 Detainee/Alien - Medical 
Issue/MIAMI, DADE, FL

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/22/2015 10/22/2015 10/11/2016
On October 16, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email via the HSI TIP line from  civilian

 who alleges that detainee  of Krome  Detention Center Miami, FL has 
not been allowed access to proper health care.

2.5 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Denial of Rights / Due 
Process

Denial of rights, due 
process

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I16-nonDHS-ELP-03673 El Paso, TX nonDHS Non-DHS Employee/0712 Other Criminal/CARLSBAD, 
EDDY, NM

General Public 12/15/2015 12/15/2015 1/15/2016

On December 14, 2015, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received two emails from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Artesia, NM, who 
reported that former Border Patrol Agent (BPA) s  selling possible Border Patrol issued 
ammunition and magazines on a closed Facebook group for  $1,000.00 has reportedly offered the 
following items for sale: 1,500 rounds of .40  caliber ammunition, 200 plus rounds of 12 gauge ammunition, 
100 plus rounds of .223 caliber  ammunition, and magazines for both the H&K P2000 pistol and M-4 rifle. 

currently  lives in Carlsbad, NM.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 924 Firearm Violations - Penalties

I16-NPPD-CHI-05560 Chicago, IL
National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS) ; NPPD; Chicago, IL DHS Contractor 1/20/2016 1/21/2016 10/4/2016

Location: Chicago, IL  Protective Security Officers  PSO’s         The 3155 is 
forthcoming; however,  I wanted to give you heads up on an incident that transpired at a SSA Office at 9715 
South Cottage Grove, Chicago, Illinois .   Pepper spray was deployed on two separate occasions by a PSO on 
scene. In addition, physical force was also used to reportedly subdue this subject after the subject was 
handcuffed.  The Inspector assigned has indicated that there are several incidences where the PSO while 
engaged in a physical altercation with the suspect, PSO’s may have used excessive force, once the video was 
reviewed.  The PSO’s verbally provided details of the altercation; however, the force used may have been 
excessive.  Both PSO’s are being directed by the COR to provide written statements relative to the events 
that transpired ASAP.      The subject,  was transported to the hospital and subsequently 
issued a citation for disorderly conduct.  Mr. has contacted the Mega Center and have advised that 
he is seeking documents and the video tape of the incident, as he has retained an attorney.  Mr.
was advised of the FOIA by BCMC. Due to the climate of police physical altercations across the country , it was 
prudent to advise the appropriate personnel of the pending events.    Note:  Video will be ready for 
distribution tomorrow, we have one original video inventoried in evidence.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-NPPD-CHI-05560 Chicago, IL
National Protection and Programs Directorate 
(DHS) ; NPPD; Chicago, IL DHS Contractor 1/20/2016 1/21/2016 10/4/2016

Location: Chicago, IL  Protective Security Officers  PSO’s         The 3155 is 
forthcoming; however,  I wanted to give you heads up on an incident that transpired at a SSA Office at 9715 
South Cottage Grove, Chicago, Illinois .   Pepper spray was deployed on two separate occasions by a PSO on 
scene. In addition, physical force was also used to reportedly subdue this subject after the subject was 
handcuffed.  The Inspector assigned has indicated that there are several incidences where the PSO while 
engaged in a physical altercation with the suspect, PSO’s may have used excessive force, once the video was 
reviewed.  The PSO’s verbally provided details of the altercation; however, the force used may have been 
excessive.  Both PSO’s are being directed by the COR to provide written statements relative to the events 
that transpired ASAP.      The subject,  was transported to the hospital and subsequently 
issued a citation for disorderly conduct.  Mr. has contacted the Mega Center and have advised that 
he is seeking documents and the video tape of the incident, as he has retained an attorney.  Mr
was advised of the FOIA by BCMC. Due to the climate of police physical altercations across the country , it was 
prudent to advise the appropriate personnel of the pending events.    Note:  Video will be ready for 
distribution tomorrow, we have one original video inventoried in evidence.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-OS-WFO-09174 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Security (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Jackson, WI General Public 3/23/2016 4/4/2016 12/27/2016

10:02 AM CST     The complainant, , is reporting  an alleged employee under 
DHS. believe  is pretending to be a employee under the DHS in order to get money.
has been sending  several emails, since the beginning of March, claiming he had to pay fees to DHS. The 
emails instructed  to send $1400.00 to Donald Camp, an individual involved in the scam. The money 
would then be forwarded to nd then to the DHS.  claimed the money was to cover 
advanced fees, requested by Homeland Security, for clearance forms which would prove that is not 
involved in money laundering. stated he sent some money, believing he would be in trouble with DHS. 

has a copy of the money gram sent he could provide to investigators if needed. ecently sent 
an email stating that if does not keep submitting money he will go to jail under the authority of DHS.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Alexandria, Virginia       1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: March 2016 -Present .

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I16-OS-WFO-09174 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Security (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Jackson, WI General Public 3/23/2016 4/4/2016 12/27/2016

10:02 AM CST     The complainant, , is reporting  an alleged employee under 
DHS. believe  is pretending to be a employee under the DHS in order to get money
has been sending  several emails, since the beginning of March, claiming he had to pay fees to DHS. The 
emails instructed  to send $1400.00 to  an individual involved in the scam. The money 
would then be forwarded to nd then to the DHS.  claimed the money was to cover 
advanced fees, requested by Homeland Security, for clearance forms which would prove that s not 
involved in money laundering. stated he sent some money, believing he would be in trouble with DHS. 

has a copy of the money gram sent he could provide to investigators if needed.  recently sent 
an email stating that if does not keep submitting money he will go to jail under the authority of DHS.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Alexandria, Virginia       1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: March 2016 -Present .

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1956 Racketeering: Laundering of Monetary 
Instruments

I16-OS-WFO-09174 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Security (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Jackson, WI General Public 3/23/2016 4/4/2016 12/27/2016

10:02 AM CST     The complainant, , is reporting  an alleged employee under 
DHS. believes s pretending to be a employee under the DHS in order to get money.
has been sending  several emails, since the beginning of March, claiming he had to pay fees to DHS. The 
emails instructed  to send $1400.00 to  an individual involved in the scam. The money 
would then be forwarded to nd then to the DHS.  claimed the money was to cover 
advanced fees, requested by Homeland Security, for clearance forms which would prove that is not 
involved in money laundering. stated he sent some money, believing he would be in trouble with DHS. 

has a copy of the money gram sent he could provide to investigators if needed.  recently sent 
an email stating that if does not keep submitting money he will go to jail under the authority of DHS.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Alexandria, Virginia       1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: March 2016 -Present .

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-OS-WFO-09174 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Security (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Jackson, WI General Public 3/23/2016 4/4/2016 12/27/2016

10:02 AM CST     The complainant,  is reporting  an alleged employee under 
DHS. believes  is pretending to be a employee under the DHS in order to get money.
has been sending  several emails, since the beginning of March, claiming he had to pay fees to DHS. The 
emails instructed  to send $1400.00 to  an individual involved in the scam. The money 
would then be forwarded to nd then to the DHS.  claimed the money was to cover 
advanced fees, requested by Homeland Security, for clearance forms which would prove that s not 
involved in money laundering. stated he sent some money, believing he would be in trouble with DHS. 

has a copy of the money gram sent he could provide to investigators if needed.  recently sent 
an email stating that if does not keep submitting money he will go to jail under the authority of DHS.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Alexandria, Virginia       1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: March 2016 -Present .

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Incorrectly identified Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I16-OS-WFO-09174 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Security (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Jackson, WI General Public 3/23/2016 4/4/2016 12/27/2016

10:02 AM CST     The complainant,  is reporting  an alleged employee under 
DHS believes  is pretending to be a employee under the DHS in order to get money.
has been sending  several emails, since the beginning of March, claiming he had to pay fees to DHS. The 
emails instructed  to send $1400.00 to  an individual involved in the scam. The money 
would then be forwarded to nd then to the DHS.  claimed the money was to cover 
advanced fees, requested by Homeland Security, for clearance forms which would prove that is not 
involved in money laundering stated he sent some money, believing he would be in trouble with DHS. 

has a copy of the money gram sent he could provide to investigators if needed.  recently sent 
an email stating that if does not keep submitting money he will go to jail under the authority of DHS.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Alexandria, Virginia       1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: March 2016 -Present .

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Incorrectly identified Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912 False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-OS-WFO-09174 Washington, DC U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Office 
of Security (DHS)

 Non-DHS Employee; Jackson, WI General Public 3/23/2016 4/4/2016 12/27/2016

10:02 AM CST     The complainant, , is reporting  an alleged employee under 
DHS believes  is pretending to be a employee under the DHS in order to get money.
has been sending  several emails, since the beginning of March, claiming he had to pay fees to DHS. The 
emails instructed  to send $1400.00 to  an individual involved in the scam. The money 
would then be forwarded to nd then to the DHS  claimed the money was to cover 
advanced fees, requested by Homeland Security, for clearance forms which would prove tha is not 
involved in money laundering stated he sent some money, believing he would be in trouble with DHS. 

has a copy of the money gram sent he could provide to investigators if needed.  recently sent 
an email stating that if does not keep submitting money he will go to jail under the authority of DHS.    
Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter indicated that the incident location was: 
Alexandria, Virginia       1777 Baton Rouge Hotline 03/23/16 STD LSU Call Center submitter provided an incident 
date range of: March 2016 -Present .

3.5 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes False Personating of a DHS 
Employee

Impersonation Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1343 Fraud by Wire, Radio, or Television

I16-TSA-BUF-10902 Buffalo, NY Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Albany, NY airport (ALB); Albany, NY DHS Component 4/23/2016 4/26/2016 5/11/2016

On 3/27/16 I was going through the security checkpoint at Albany, NY airport (ALB) and declined the full-body 
scanner. This happened somewhere between 12:30 p.m. and 3 p.m., I cannot remember the exact time.  I was 
taken to the opposite end of the checkpoint and was informed by the female TSA agent of the pat-down, and 
how it may include sensitive areas. -- I have gone through the pat-down previously for other flights at other 
airports. -- However, no pat-down I have ever received was like this pat-down -- the TSA female agent 
remarked that if she did not like doing it, she wouldn't be working for the TSA. She then proceeded to pat me 
down very aggressively, and as she ran the INSIDE of her hands up my inner thighs, she proceeded to 
aggressively rub/grope my labia and surrounding area, back and forth. I was stunned beyond stunned that she 
would do what she did. It happened so fast, and I was so stunned and shaken, so I tried to laugh off the entire 
thing as normal. But it isn't normal. I feel like I was sexually assaulted by this agent. She is approximately 5'6"-
5'7" (approximately my height, perhaps a bit shorter) - with spiky blonde (dyed) hair - more white than 
blonde with roots showing. Her attitude was as though she took pleasure in groping me. Again, I'm still 
stunned that I was assaulted by someone who is supposed to be protecting Americans, not sexually 
assaulting them.

4.1.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Abuse / Violence Abuse / Violence Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I16-TSA-CHI-04010 Chicago, IL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
Dailey, David; Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Des Moines, IA David  Dailey DHS Component 12/22/2015 12/28/2015 10/3/2016

On 12/16/15, the TSA Front Office notified the TSA/OOI of allegations of misconduct levied against Federal 
Security Director (FSD) David Dailey, assigned to the Des Moines (IA) International Airport (DSM).  According 
to the information provided, Assistant FSD for Screening  alleged that FSD Dailey has created a 
hostile work environment laimed that Dailey has: threatened employees jobs, demeaned 
employees, and has created a divisive and hostile environment.  further alleged the TSA/OOI Detroit 
Field Office SAIC Lawrence Porte met with Dailey, and advised him (Dailey) of his opinions including that 
there were too many women at DSM.  further claimed that after meeting with SAIC Porte, Dailey 
accused the entire DSM leadership team of being incompetent and unethical.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-TSA-CHI-04193 Chicago, IL Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSA - Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Bismark, ND

DHS Employee 12/24/2015 12/24/2015 5/4/2016

On December 18, 2015, the Assistant Federal Security Director for Law Enforcement (AFSD-LE) at Bismarck 
(BIS) contacted the Detroit Field Office and provided the following information concerning Senior Training 
Inspector who is assigned to BIS.    The AFSD-LE advised that BIS HR/Specialist eceived a telephone 
call from a friend of his by the name of eported that she had been dating

or a number of months. Recently she found out that was married and his current wife, 
 worked for TSA at BIS.  told hat she had heard from ha would 

smuggle narcotics through the BIS checkpoint for him.     The AFSD-LE conducted a NCIC inquiry and 
determined the ad a number of narcotics arrests in the Bismarck area.    OOI contacte

o ask further questions concerning her allegation. She advised that she was unaware tha  was 
married. It was only recently that she discovered that he was married to  and the two had some words 
during a phone conversation. She was unaware how the smuggling took place and was not aware of what 
type of drugs were involved.

1.7 Employee Corruption Smuggling Smuggling Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I16-TSA-DET-04391 Detroit, MI Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Officer, TSA, Columbus, OH DHS Employee 12/30/2015 12/31/2015 7/20/2016

HSI Special Agent  reported that the above TSA employee was the victim of a dark web hacker 
running an extortion scheme where the hacker identifies victims in chat rooms like ICQ, while posing as a 
minor, entices the victim to request photographs (possible child pornography), provides a malware link that 
penetrates the victim's computer identifying the victim, then extorts payment in Bit Coins not to publically 
identify the victim.      The hacker uses dark website accessed through Tor named Exposed, 
http://2222222gbxex55tu.onion/the-fucking-DHS.html    Hacker published subject's information on the above 
site, identifying the subject as an "DHS Agent" and ex-TSA employee, but EDS show  is a current TSA 
employee.    Hacker was profiled by Vice Magazine(surface web site): 
http://motherboard.vice.com/en_uk/read/a-dark-web-hacker-is-hunting-potential-pedophiles-to-extort-
them-for-money    Above subject is possibly involved in soliciting child pornography.    Screen shots and an 
email are available by contacting S  or SA  DHS OIG, San Francisco Sub-Office, Seattle 
Field Office, Oakland, CA, who received the initial complaint from       Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: This complaint is submitted as a field originated complaint.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 2252 Activities Relating to Material Involving the Sexual 
Exploitation of Minors

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-TSA-DET-04391 Detroit, MI Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Officer, TSA, Columbus, OH DHS Employee 12/30/2015 12/31/2015 7/20/2016

HSI Special Agent  reported that the above TSA employee was the victim of a dark web hacker 
running an extortion scheme where the hacker identifies victims in chat rooms like ICQ, while posing as a 
minor, entices the victim to request photographs (possible child pornography), provides a malware link that 
penetrates the victim's computer identifying the victim, then extorts payment in Bit Coins not to publically 
identify the victim.      The hacker uses dark website accessed through Tor named Exposed, 
http://2222222gbxex55tu.onion/the-fucking-DHS.html    Hacker published subject's information on the above 
site, identifying the subject as an "DHS Agent" and ex-TSA employee, but EDS show  is a current TSA 
employee.    Hacker was profiled by Vice Magazine(surface web site): 
http://motherboard.vice.com/en_uk/read/a-dark-web-hacker-is-hunting-potential-pedophiles-to-extort-
them-for-money    Above subject is possibly involved in soliciting child pornography.    Screen shots and an 
email are available by contacting SA  or SA  DHS OIG, San Francisco Sub-Office, Seattle 
Field Office, Oakland, CA, who received the initial complaint from Taylor.      Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: This complaint is submitted as a field originated complaint.

4.1.2 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Child Pornography Child pornography Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2252 Activities Relating to Material Involving the Sexual 
Exploitation of Minors

I16-TSA-HOU-14184 Houston, TX Transportation Security Administration (DHS) SPECIAL AGENT/TSA/HOUSTON, TEXAS 6/22/2016 6/23/2016 11/17/2016

On 06/20/16, former TSA employee evied allegations of misconduct against OOI Special 
Agent .  In 2012, SA  conducted an investigation of allegations tha misused his 
government credit card to pay for a personal rental ca was subsequently terminated. 
alleged that during the 2012 investigation, S     • denied him a witness during an interview when 
requested;   • told him if he didn’t agree to be interviewed that he (  would be terminated 
immediately;  • intentionally left out information to make him  look like a liar; and  • claimed that 
complainant admitted to intentionally charging his GOV travel card for the rental car during the final 
interview which the complainant states is not true.    was assigned to the IAH International Airport.  
SA s based in Houston, TX under the OOI Dallas Field Office.

4.1.6 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct False Statements False statements Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-TSA-MIA-13466 Miami, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS) Non-DHS Employee;  Miami, FL
Other Fed 
Agency 
Employee

6/9/2016 6/9/2016 11/3/2016

 alleged that  former Transportation Security Administration (TSA), Transportation 
Security Officer (TSO), Miami International Airport as well as Private Investigator with Homeland Intelligence 
Protective Services (HIPS), in Miami, Florida, ran her credit report without her authorization on November 14, 
2014.   stated that in November of 2014, she was in trial with her ex-husband  over child 
support and the custody of their two daughters. said that during the trial her ex-husband hire
as a private investigator to run a comprehensive background check on o determine her employment 
and income. aid that in May of 2016 when she ran her credit she saw an inquiry from November 14, 
2014.  said that she did not make the inquiry and that she determined that the inquiry must have 
been made b  because of the proximity in date between the trial and the inquiry aid tha
testified in the trial and said that he did run a comprehensive background check on her.  said she 
believe an her credit without her authorization and did so while in the scope of his federal 
employment violating TSA policy and abusing his authority.  said that she does not have any actual 
proof tha an her credit and this was all an assumption.    Hotline Service 06/09/16 STD Public website 
submitter indicated that the incident location was: Miami, Florida     734 Hotline Service 06/09/16 STD Public 
website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty     734 Hotline Service 06/09/16 STD 
Public website complainant indicated that the subjec  had miscellaneous identifiers of: Transportation 
Security Administration / Officer

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 912

False Impersonation of an Officer or Employee of 
the United States

I16-TSA-NYC-11490 New York, NY Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Assistant Deputy Federal Security Director; TSA; Newark, 
NJ

DHS Employee 5/7/2016 5/11/2016 11/14/2016

Deputy FSD using assigned government phone to receive inappropriate photos of females. 
Inappropriate text conversation by use of gonverment issued cell phone.    Hotline Service 05/07/16 STD 
Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: Newark Liberty International Airport      734 
Hotline Service 05/07/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of subject was: On Duty     
734 Hotline Service 05/07/16 STD Public website complainant indicated that their Employment Title is: 
Transportation Security Manager

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-TSA-NYC-16296 New York, NY Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 
Employee; Poughkeepsie, NY

DHS Employee 8/2/2016 8/8/2016 11/3/2016

On August 2, 2016,  Investigator, NYSP, Computer Crimes Unit contacted S  DHS OIG 
NYRO and requested the following:    As requested, I am sending this email to request information on a 
subject who may be working for the TSA.  He is the subject of an Online Enticement Investigation that both 
my Agency (New York State Police ) and the Rowan County Sheriff’s Office (North Carolina) are conducting.  
The subject’s info is as follows:    Name:                            Possible Addresses:              

amaica, NY 11435                                   Poughkeepsie, NY 12601    On 
07/21/2016, I interviewed a subject named  Jamaica, NY) who stated 
that  was his son, and that he works for the TSA.  A TSA Jacket was seen hanging on a staircase 
bannister at the time of the interview.  Other information reveal  may be living at an unknown 
location in Poughkeepsie, NY (not the above listed address.) At this time, we are only looking to interview 

egarding the allegations made against him.     #####Please place this complaint in the 
Philadelphia Field Office ribbon and assign to SA ######

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

I16-TSA-ORL-00349 Orlando, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS) ; TSA; Orlando, FL DHS Employee 10/7/2015 10/14/2015 12/22/2016

***WHISTLEBLOWER COMPLAINANT IS REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL***  October 5, 2015    What follows is the 
narrative of events you requested pertaining to the security breach that occurred on August 25, 2015 at 
Orlando International Airport.  Please note that I am requesting Whistleblower Protection Status.    ADFSD 

daughter was not properly screened.  First, she did not show documentation when she was 
going through the checkpoint  abused his authority to get her through the screening checkpoint 
by flashing his badge and allowing her through without proper identification. Second,  escorted 
her through the PreCheck lane.  Even though he was carrying an escort badge, we are not allowed to escort 
through the PreCheck lane; this is a violation of Chapter 2 of the PreCheck SOP. This is also a violation of the 
TDC SOP. She should have been taken to one of the regular lanes (once identification was shown) and 
processed like any other passenger.    It was stated tha daughter was present in the classroom, 
but the key information that was left out was the fact that it was an SSI classroom.  All of the information that 
was given was only to be given to those with a need to know, and his daughter had no need to know any of 
that information.  As soon as we enter the classroom we are told that the information that they are about to 
give us is SSI.  It also states this on the bottom of every page on the board.  This is a blatant violation of SSI 
procedures.      When an officer lets a passenger through the PreCheck lane who is not PreCheck-certified, the 
officer is subject to disciplinary actions such as Letters of Reprimand or even Suspension due to this being a 
breach in security, or an incident.  Passengers are properly identified when they show their ID. How is it that 
officers are being punished for these types of incidents but our management team has done worse and it is 
not considered a security breach, or an incident?  If a passenger is being escorted, there are areas that they 
are not allowed to go through due to the fact that it will be considered “PiggyBacking.”  We learn this when 
we attend the course given to us by GOAA, which allows us to get our badges.    Following the incident with 
Mr. s daughter, I was approached by one of the officers that had attended the class and was told 
that Mr. stated that the situation that had occurred previously in the class was already taken care 
of.  Upon continuing to find out more information, I was informed that the video that covered the footage of 
M  and the daughter entering the training department from the Tarmac was no 
longer there.  These means that it was deleted on the day in question.  The video footage started at 
approximately 1430 as I was told by the officer who reviewed the footage several times.  There are other 
officers who are aware of this security breach, but they are afraid to come forward and use their names due 
to potential retaliation from management

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-TSA-ORL-00349 Orlando, FL Transportation Security Administration (DHS) ; TSA; Orlando, FL DHS Employee 10/7/2015 10/14/2015 12/22/2016

***WHISTLEBLOWER COMPLAINANT IS REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL***  October 5, 2015    What follows is the 
narrative of events you requested pertaining to the security breach that occurred on August 25, 2015 at 
Orlando International Airport.  Please note that I am requesting Whistleblower Protection Status.    ADFSD 

daughter was not properly screened.  First, she did not show documentation when she was 
going through the checkpoint  abused his authority to get her through the screening checkpoint 
by flashing his badge and allowing her through without proper identification. Second,  escorted 
her through the PreCheck lane.  Even though he was carrying an escort badge, we are not allowed to escort 
through the PreCheck lane; this is a violation of Chapter 2 of the PreCheck SOP. This is also a violation of the 
TDC SOP. She should have been taken to one of the regular lanes (once identification was shown) and 
processed like any other passenger.    It was stated tha daughter was present in the classroom, 
but the key information that was left out was the fact that it was an SSI classroom.  All of the information that 
was given was only to be given to those with a need to know, and his daughter had no need to know any of 
that information.  As soon as we enter the classroom we are told that the information that they are about to 
give us is SSI.  It also states this on the bottom of every page on the board.  This is a blatant violation of SSI 
procedures.      When an officer lets a passenger through the PreCheck lane who is not PreCheck-certified, the 
officer is subject to disciplinary actions such as Letters of Reprimand or even Suspension due to this being a 
breach in security, or an incident.  Passengers are properly identified when they show their ID. How is it that 
officers are being punished for these types of incidents but our management team has done worse and it is 
not considered a security breach, or an incident?  If a passenger is being escorted, there are areas that they 
are not allowed to go through due to the fact that it will be considered “PiggyBacking.”  We learn this when 
we attend the course given to us by GOAA, which allows us to get our badges.    Following the incident with 
M daughter, I was approached by one of the officers that had attended the class and was told 
that stated that the situation that had occurred previously in the class was already taken care 
of.  Upon continuing to find out more information, I was informed that the video that covered the footage of 
Mr.  and the daughter entering the training department from the Tarmac was no 
longer there.  These means that it was deleted on the day in question.  The video footage started at 
approximately 1430 as I was told by the officer who reviewed the footage several times.  There are other 
officers who are aware of this security breach, but they are afraid to come forward and use their names due 
to potential retaliation from management

4.3.12 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Failure to Safeguard / 
Unauthorized Release of 
Information

Failure to Safegaurd / 
Unauthorized Release 
of Information

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-TSA-PHL-06046 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Philadelphia International Airport; Philadelphia, PA DHS Employee 2/2/2016 2/3/2016 4/6/2016

After exiting the millimeter wave imaging machine, TSA agent had me wait, asked if my pockets were 
empty. He said he had to put his hands on me to check me. I assumed it was going to be a standard patdown.  
He pulled the back of my pants out and looked at my butt, put his hands inside the top of my pants and felt 
my upper butt, then felt my crotch through my pants and fondled my penis using his fingers for at least 5 
seconds. I was SEXUALLY ASSAULTED and I was HORRIFIED!!! I told him he's not allowed to touch me there, 
and he said "we can if we see something" on the body image. I felt so VIOLATED, in public for everyone in the 
crowded terminal to see, that I wanted to SCREAM. I felt exactly the same way I did when I was molested as a 
child.      At no time did agent  offer a private screening, where I would have reluctantly shown my 
groin area without being touched.      Please email me your response to this.    Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Philadelphia International airport, terminal B at 2:15 on Sunday, 
1/31/2016.

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 2244 Abusive Sexual Contact

I16-TSA-PHL-06046 Philadelphia, PA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
 Transportation Security Administration (DHS); DHS 

Employee; Philadelphia International Airport; Philadelphia, PA DHS Employee 2/2/2016 2/3/2016 4/6/2016

After exiting the millimeter wave imaging machine, TSA agent had me wait, asked if my pockets were 
empty. He said he had to put his hands on me to check me. I assumed it was going to be a standard patdown.  
He pulled the back of my pants out and looked at my butt, put his hands inside the top of my pants and felt 
my upper butt, then felt my crotch through my pants and fondled my penis using his fingers for at least 5 
seconds. I was SEXUALLY ASSAULTED and I was HORRIFIED!!! I told him he's not allowed to touch me there, 
and he said "we can if we see something" on the body image. I felt so VIOLATED, in public for everyone in the 
crowded terminal to see, that I wanted to SCREAM. I felt exactly the same way I did when I was molested as a 
child.      At no time did agent  offer a private screening, where I would have reluctantly shown my 
groin area without being touched.      Please email me your response to this.    Public website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: Philadelphia International airport, terminal B at 2:15 on Sunday, 
1/31/2016.

2.2 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Coerced Sexual Contact Sexual abuse Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2244 Abusive Sexual Contact

I16-TSA-SEA-03839 Seattle, WA Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, Las Vegas, NV DHS Employee 12/17/2015 12/21/2015 1/12/2016

On December 16, 2015, the LAS Assistant Federal Security Director for Law Enforcement notified the TSA/OOI 
of an alleged theft  of $260.00 from checked baggage.  According to the information provided, American 
Airlines passenger  departed Las Vegas McCarran International Airport on 11/7/2015.  On 
11/9/2015, passenger iled a claim with TSA alleging that $260 cash was stolen from his checked 
baggage.  A TSA Notice of Inspection was in the suitcase.  Sometime in December, the claim was received at 
LAS.  At that time, management asked the AFSD-LE to check if video was available.   It was determined the 
suitcase was searched by TSO    Review of the video provided by Department of Aviation 
disclosed that while TSO was searching the bag, he searched the wallet containing the money.  
Further, there was suspicious behavior noted on the video.

1.9.1 Employee Corruption Theft from luggage (TSA) Money Money Information Only Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I16-TSA-SID-16895
Special Investigations 
Division Transportation Security Administration (DHS) *SID CASE* *Confidential* DHS Employee 8/11/2016 8/12/2016 12/14/2016 *SID CASE* 4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-TSA-SNJ-04332 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Security Manager, TSA, St. Croix, VI DHS Employee 12/29/2015 1/5/2016 5/18/2016

A review by the Deparment of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) found tha
 a Transportation Security Administration Employee, allegedly structured cash deposits to avoid 

bank reporting requirements.  Between April 1, 2014 and April 23, 201  deposited $48,069.78 in 
cash deposits that ranged from $240.00 to $8,530.00.  This included three deposits in a four day period just 
below the reporting threshold:    - On 19 December 2014  deposited $8,000.00 from the Sunny Isle, 
VI bank branch.  - On 22 December 2014, deposited $8,530.00 from the Sunny Isle, VI bank branch.  - 
On 23 December 2014 deposited $8,000.00 from the Isla Verde, VI bank branch.    Please contact 
the DFAU for supporting documentation and additional information.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635

Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-TSA-SNJ-04332 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Security Manager, TSA, St. Croix, VI DHS Employee 12/29/2015 1/5/2016 5/18/2016

A review by the Deparment of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) found tha
 a Transportation Security Administration Employee, allegedly structured cash deposits to avoid 

bank reporting requirements.  Between April 1, 2014 and April 23, 2015,  deposited $48,069.78 in 
cash deposits that ranged from $240.00 to $8,530.00.  This included three deposits in a four day period just 
below the reporting threshold:    - On 19 December 2014, Richardson deposited $8,000.00 from the Sunny Isle, 
VI bank branch.  - On 22 December 2014, deposited $8,530.00 from the Sunny Isle, VI bank branch.  - 
On 23 December 2014 deposited $8,000.00 from the Isla Verde, VI bank branch.    Please contact 
the DFAU for supporting documentation and additional information.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct) Other Suspicious Activity

Other Suspicious 
Activity Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 31 USC 5324

Structuring Transactions to Evade Reporting 
Requirement

I16-TSA-SNJ-15967 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, TSA, San Juan, PR DHS Employee 7/27/2016 7/27/2016 11/9/2016

On Sunday July 17, I was a La Guancha in Ponce and at approximately 14:00, I saw TSA employee, TSO 
hanging around a taking photos and having cocktails. TSO  had called unscheduled sick  leave for 

her shift on both days Saturday July 16, and Sunday July 17, 2016. Sunday was the day I saw  her.  took 
approximately 10 photos of the employee while she was there. (first 3 attachments)  Given what I saw, I gave 
the order to deny her leave SF-71 and requested supporting documentation for  her absences and she 
brought medical documentation (fourth attachment). TSO old Manager  that she had 
bronchitis and was on respiratory therapy every 6 hours. Her medical  documentation was dated June 15, 
2016, so most likely is a typo, so we will be requesting new  documentation when she reports to work from 
her regular days off.  Today she posted on Facebook the photos she took on Sunday (fifth attachment) as if 
she is there today  on her regular day off.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-TSA-SNJ-15967 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, TSA, San Juan, PR DHS Employee 7/27/2016 7/27/2016 11/9/2016

On Sunday July 17, I was a La Guancha in Ponce and at approximately 14:00, I saw TSA employee, TSO
hanging around a taking photos and having cocktails. TSO  had called unscheduled sick  leave for 

her shift on both days Saturday July 16, and Sunday July 17, 2016. Sunday was the day I saw  her.  took 
approximately 10 photos of the employee while she was there. (first 3 attachments)  Given what I saw, I gave 
the order to deny her leave SF-71 and requested supporting documentation for  her absences and she 
brought medical documentation (fourth attachment). TSO old Manager , that she had 
bronchitis and was on respiratory therapy every 6 hours. Her medical  documentation was dated June 15, 
2016, so most likely is a typo, so we will be requesting new  documentation when she reports to work from 
her regular days off.  Today she posted on Facebook the photos she took on Sunday (fifth attachment) as if 
she is there today  on her regular day off.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 5 CFR 2635 Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the 
Executive Branch

I16-TSA-SNJ-15967 San Juan, Puerto Rico Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  TSO, TSA, San Juan, PR DHS Employee 7/27/2016 7/27/2016 11/9/2016

On Sunday July 17, I was a La Guancha in Ponce and at approximately 14:00, I saw TSA employee, TSO 
hanging around a taking photos and having cocktails. TSO  had called unscheduled sick  leave for 

her shift on both days Saturday July 16, and Sunday July 17, 2016. Sunday was the day I saw  her.  took 
approximately 10 photos of the employee while she was there. (first 3 attachments)  Given what I saw, I gave 
the order to deny her leave SF-71 and requested supporting documentation for  her absences and she 
brought medical documentation (fourth attachment). TSO old Manager  that she had 
bronchitis and was on respiratory therapy every 6 hours. Her medical  documentation was dated June 15, 
2016, so most likely is a typo, so we will be requesting new  documentation when she reports to work from 
her regular days off.  Today she posted on Facebook the photos she took on Sunday (fifth attachment) as if 
she is there today  on her regular day off.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-TSA-WFO-04754 Washington, DC Transportation Security Administration (DHS)
LNU, FNU; Transportation Security Administration (DHS); Washington 
Field Office; Chantilly, VA 1/6/2016 1/28/2016 11/9/2016

***DO NOT REFER TO COMPONENT***  Complaint received through the office of Honorable Richard Nolan, 
Representative, 8th district, Minnesota.    Complainant complained she was sexually harassed 
when she was a TSA employee and retailated against after she reported the incidents to TSA-OOI.
also complained TSA failed to complied with an order from an EEOC judge.      DHS Connect website submitter 
indicated that the incident location was: TSA Washington Field Office  Chantilly  VA

4.3.16 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Prohibited Personnel 
Practices

Prohibited personnel 
actions Unfounded Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-TSA-YUM-08345 Yuma, AZ Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Administration, Phoenix, AZ 3/10/2016 3/14/2016 3/24/2016

On March 9, 2016,  Assistant Special Agent in Charge (ASAC), Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), Tucson Field Office, Tucson, AZ, was notified by  
Group Supervisor, DHS, Homeland Security Investigation (HSI), Phoenix, AZ, in reference to a current ongoing 
HSI investigation.  GS advised the DHS OIG that HSI would be executing a search warrant on the 
residence of n the Phoenix, AZ area on Friday, March 15, 2016.  GS xplained that the 
HSI investigation revealed that was mailing narcotics and receiving cash and other forms of 
payment via the US Mail.  G stated HSI intends to present this case before a Federal Grand Jury in the 
near future based on federal violations involving narcotics and money laundering. stated it was not 
until very recently that they discovere was an employee with the Transportation Security 
Administration (TSA).      ASA  conducted a search of the DHS OIG's Enforcement Data System which 
revealed that is a TSA employee and has been employed with TSA since January 2016.

4.1.13 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Other Criminal Activity
Unauthorized Use of 
L.E.O. Component Data 
System(s)

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 846
Attempt or Conspiracy to Violate Controlled 
Substances Act

I16-USCG-MIA-00019 Miami, FL U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) Goodwill Industries; USCG; Miami Beach, FL 10/1/2015 10/5/2015 11/3/2016

On September 25, 2015,  Special Agent (SA), U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG), was contacted by  SA, General Services 
Administration (GSA), Fort Lauderdale, FL, in reference to possible contract fraud involving Goodwill 
Industries of South Florida. requested the assistance of S  in further investigation of this 
issue.     On September 30, 2015, the DHS OIG received from , a letter dated September 23, 2105, 
between the U.S. AbilityOne Commission (AbilityOne) and the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), Civil 
Division Fraud.  The letter authored b  Executive Director, indicates that compliance reviews by 
AbilityOne of Goodwill industries, a participating nonprofit agency, in Memphis, TN, South Florida, and 
Washington D.C., indicated possible documentation and reporting issues that AbilityOne felt needed further 
investigation.      According to GSA, Goodwill Industries in South Florida may have been conducting contract 
fraud with several U.S. Departments/Agencies by fraudulently certifying workers as disabled, and failing to 
provide the correct wage for workers.       The DHS OIG has located the following contracts between Goodwill 
Industries of South Florida and the U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) Air Station Miami, and USCG Base, Miami Beach:      
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.,  HSCG8412CAA7398  $511,397    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF 
SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  HSCG8412CAA7398  $286,838    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  
HSCG8412CAA7398  ($5,101)    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  HSCG8412CAA7398  $7,307    
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  HSCG8412CAA7398  ($4,527)    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF 
SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  HSCG8412CAA7398  $38,390    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  
HSCG8412CAA7398  $77,310    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  HSCG8412CAA7398  $134,920    
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC.  HSCG8412CAA7398  $61,442    GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF 
SOUTH FLORIDA, INC  HSCG8412CAA7398  $289,426      This case is being jointly investigated by Eastern District 
of Virginia Criminal and Civil DOJ, Memphis Criminal DOJ, Civil Fraud Main DOJ, and Civil Rights Main DOJ, 
GSA, and U.S Air Force Office of Special Investigations.  --  Public website submitter indicated that the 
incident location was: USCG Air station Miami, USCG Base, Miami Beach.   Public website complainant 
indicated that their Employment Title is: SA

3.3 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Contract Fraud Contract Fraud Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1031 Major Fraud Against the United States

I16-USSS-ATL-08816 Atlanta, GA U.S. Secret Service (DHS)
DHS Employee; USSS - U.S. Secret Service (DHS); 

Peachtree City, GA DHS Employee 3/17/2016 3/18/2016 12/9/2016

On Wednesday, March 16, 2016, the Inspection Division (ISP) received notification from the Office of 
Investigations that the Peachtree City Police Department (PD), Peachtree City, GA arrested Special Agent (SA) 

 charging SA with obstruction of justice.  Review of the Peachtree City PD 
report revealed the following:     • The obstruction of justice charge stemmed from an incident on March 15, 
2016, at a private residence in Peachtree City, GA.  Peachtree City PD responded to a report of child 
molestation by the victim’s mother (SA s former girlfriend).  SA  the complainant and 
the victim were onsite but outside of the residence when Officers arrived.      • According to the police report, 
the victim stated that SA entered his room, pulled down the victim’s pants and touched his butt 
while he was pretending to be asleep.    • SA isobeyed orders not to enter the residence, was 
pursued by officers and subsequently arrested and charged with obstruction of justice.     A forensic interview 
of the victim should occur early next week and at that point the Peachtree PD will determine if molestation 
charges are warranted.      At the request of the Peachtree PD, the Atlanta Field Office agreed to take 
possession of all electronic media devices, both personal and professional, to perform forensic examinations 
to identify any communications between SA and the victim.  Peachtree PD is obtaining the 
warrants and once acquired, the devices will be sent to CID for examination.    On March 16, 2016, this 
incident was brought before the USSS Intake Board, which requested ISP to conduct a special investigation 
into this matter.      On March 17, 2016, SA appeared before a Magistrate Judge at the Fayette 
County, GA Magistrate Court where the charge of obstruction of justice was upheld and bond was set at 
$2500.  As a condition of release, SA was instructed to have no contact with the victim or the 
victim’s mother and to turn over any weapons, both personal and professional, to law enforcement.    On 
March 17, 2016, ASAI  (ATL) met with SA t the Fayette County Jail and advised 
him that he has been placed on administrative leave and upon release all Secret Service property needed to 
be relinquished and any weapons in his possession should be surrendered. SA was advised that 
the Secret Service Employee Assistance Program was available for confidential counseling services.  It is 
anticipated that SA will be released between 4:00pm – 5:00pm and supervisors from the Atlanta 
Field Office will be onsite to coordinate these efforts.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

I16-USSS-ATL-08816 Atlanta, GA U.S. Secret Service (DHS)
DHS Employee; USSS - U.S. Secret Service (DHS); 

Peachtree City, GA DHS Employee 3/17/2016 3/18/2016 12/9/2016

On Wednesday, March 16, 2016, the Inspection Division (ISP) received notification from the Office of 
Investigations that the Peachtree City Police Department (PD), Peachtree City, GA arrested Special Agent (SA) 

harging SA with obstruction of justice.  Review of the Peachtree City PD 
report revealed the following:     • The obstruction of justice charge stemmed from an incident on March 15, 
2016, at a private residence in Peachtree City, GA.  Peachtree City PD responded to a report of child 
molestation by the victim’s mother (SA s former girlfriend).  S  the complainant and 
the victim were onsite but outside of the residence when Officers arrived.      • According to the police report, 
the victim stated that SA entered his room, pulled down the victim’s pants and touched his butt 
while he was pretending to be asleep.    • SA isobeyed orders not to enter the residence, was 
pursued by officers and subsequently arrested and charged with obstruction of justice.     A forensic interview 
of the victim should occur early next week and at that point the Peachtree PD will determine if molestation 
charges are warranted.      At the request of the Peachtree PD, the Atlanta Field Office agreed to take 
possession of all electronic media devices, both personal and professional, to perform forensic examinations 
to identify any communications between SA and the victim.  Peachtree PD is obtaining the 
warrants and once acquired, the devices will be sent to CID for examination.    On March 16, 2016, this 
incident was brought before the USSS Intake Board, which requested ISP to conduct a special investigation 
into this matter.      On March 17, 2016, SA appeared before a Magistrate Judge at the Fayette 
County, GA Magistrate Court where the charge of obstruction of justice was upheld and bond was set at 
$2500.  As a condition of release, SA was instructed to have no contact with the victim or the 
victim’s mother and to turn over any weapons, both personal and professional, to law enforcement.    On 
March 17, 2016, ASAI  (ATL) met with SA t the Fayette County Jail and advised 
him that he has been placed on administrative leave and upon release all Secret Service property needed to 
be relinquished and any weapons in his possession should be surrendered. SA was advised that 
the Secret Service Employee Assistance Program was available for confidential counseling services.  It is 
anticipated that SA will be released between 4:00pm – 5:00pm and supervisors from the Atlanta 
Field Office will be onsite to coordinate these efforts.

4.1 Miscellaneous Criminal Misconduct Criminal Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition State Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).



I16-USSS-BUF-01198 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS; Albany, NY DHS Employee 10/26/2015 10/26/2015 6/9/2016

On 10/21/15, the USSS Inspection Division received a telephonic complaint from the USSS Albany (NY) 
Resident Office Administrative Officer (complainant) alleging sexual harassment by the RAIC,
(GS-14).  The complainant alleges that RAIC  has over the past several years engaged in a pattern of 
sexual harassment by making sexually inappropriate comments to her, regularly pulling hair off of her 
sweater,  and obsessing over her.  In addition, he has begun to regularly use the women’s restroom/shower 
directly across from her desk, even though the men’s restroom was available.      On 10/22/15, this complaint 
was brought before the USSS Intake group who directed the USSS Inspection Division to conduct a fact finder 
inquiry.      Continuing on 10/22/15, riefed Gary Thorne on the details of the complaint.  It was 
agreed that the complainant would travel to Inspection Division to give a more comprehensive statement to 
USSS inspectors.      On 10/23/15, the complainant was interviewed by USSS inspectors and provided a 
detailed statement which outlined numerous instances of inappropriate statements and actions by RAIC 

  The complainant identified potential USSS witnesses to some of her allegations.   The complainant 
stated there was never had any physical contact between her and RAI       USSS Chief Counsel and the 
Office of Investigations have been briefed as to the complaint.    The USSS Inspection Division anticipates 
sending inspectors to the Albany Resident Office on Monday, 10/26/15, to conduct interviews of current 
office employees.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I16-USSS-BUF-01198 Buffalo, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS)  USSS; Albany, NY DHS Employee 10/26/2015 10/26/2015 6/9/2016

On 10/21/15, the USSS Inspection Division received a telephonic complaint from the USSS Albany (NY) 
Resident Office Administrative Officer (complainant) alleging sexual harassment by the RAIC,
(GS-14).  The complainant alleges that RAIC  has over the past several years engaged in a pattern of 
sexual harassment by making sexually inappropriate comments to her, regularly pulling hair off of her 
sweater,  and obsessing over her.  In addition, he has begun to regularly use the women’s restroom/shower 
directly across from her desk, even though the men’s restroom was available.      On 10/22/15, this complaint 
was brought before the USSS Intake group who directed the USSS Inspection Division to conduct a fact finder 
inquiry.      Continuing on 10/22/15, riefed Gary Thorne on the details of the complaint.  It was 
agreed that the complainant would travel to Inspection Division to give a more comprehensive statement to 
USSS inspectors.      On 10/23/15, the complainant was interviewed by USSS inspectors and provided a 
detailed statement which outlined numerous instances of inappropriate statements and actions by RAIC 

  The complainant identified potential USSS witnesses to some of her allegations.   The complainant 
stated there was never had any physical contact between her and RAI       USSS Chief Counsel and the 
Office of Investigations have been briefed as to the complaint.    The USSS Inspection Division anticipates 
sending inspectors to the Albany Resident Office on Monday, 10/26/15, to conduct interviews of current 
office employees.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1001 False Statements, Entries or Concealing or 
Covering Up a Material Fact

I16-USSS-DAL-03976 Dallas, TX U.S. Secret Service (DHS) ; U.S. Secret Service (DHS); DHS Employee; Dallas, TX DHS Employee 12/21/2015 12/22/2015 5/19/2016

The Dallas Office received the complaint from Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA).  
TIGTA requested assistance from DHS OIG.    Box 3, per ASA     TIGTA alleged that the Subject 
conducted an unauthorized query in WebCBRS [Interal Revenue Service (IRS) Database].  Also, the Subject 
conducted unauthorized queries in Accurint

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1030
Fraud and Related Activity in Connection with 
Computers

I17-BP-ELP-00476 El Paso, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, CBP/Unknown/0202 Smuggling-Aliens/DEMING, LUNA, 
NM

FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/5/2016 10/11/2016 12/6/2016

On September 29, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)  Deming, NM, regarding 
possible corrupt Border Patrol Agent (BPAs) operating in the  Deming station area of responsibility (AOR). 
BPA  Deming, NM, detained three  subjects for alien smuggling on September 29, 2016. During 
the post-arrest interview  alleged that a smuggler known as " claimed to have 
two BPAs on her  "team."

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I17-BP-RGV-02288 Rio Grande Valley, TX U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU/BPA/USBP/FALFURRIAS, TEXAS FNU  LNU DHS Employee 10/21/2016 10/28/2016 12/12/2016

On September 20, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington, DC, received an email from  U.S. Customs 
and Border Protection (CBP) Border Patrol Agent (BPA)  Kingsville,  TX. According to the email, 
BPA eported that he was informed by Defense Attorney  (DA)  on this same date, that 
his client had information pertaining to a BPA who is  allowing loads of smuggled aliens to pass through the 
checkpoint without being inspected. BP  reported that the client of DA has been receiving 
threating text messages and  believes they are from the relatives of the compromised agent currently 
working in the Rio Grande  Valley area.

1.7.1 Employee Corruption Smuggling Aliens Aliens Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 8 USC 1324 Bringing in or Harboring Certain Aliens 

I17-BP-SVA-00917 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Douglas, AZ  **NGO Referral FNU (BPA)  LNU DHS Employee 10/7/2016 10/14/2016 12/7/2016

provided a NGO referral to DHS OIG Tucson on behalf of  Citizen of 
Mexico, in reference to CBP failing to properly refer individuals who express fear. We have submitted three 
complaints on behalf of individuals who expressed fear to agents at the Douglas Station and were either 
ignored or were discouraged from seeking asylum.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Non-Criminal 
Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-SVA-02300 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Naco, AZ DHS Employee 10/21/2016 10/26/2016 12/7/2016

On October 21, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from U.S.  Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA   Nogales, AZ, regarding Border 
Patrol Agent (BPA)  Naco, AZ. SBPA eported that BP  actions 
during a use of force incident on September 26,  2016, were unreasonable and may constitute misconduct.

4.3.10 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Employee Misconduct, 
General

Employee Misconduct, 
General Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-SVA-02897 Sierra Vista, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Nogales, AZ DHS Employee 10/31/2016 11/2/2016 12/22/2016

On October 27, 2016, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Office of Professional  Responsibility (OPR), 
Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Tucson, Arizona, Duty Agent, Senior  Special Agent (SSA  
was telephonically contacted by U.S. Border Patrol  (USBP), Supervisory Border Patrol Agent (SBPA)

, Tucson Sector (TCA), Sector  Investigations Team (SIT), regarding a reported allegation that Border 
Patrol Agents (BPA's)  Nogales, AZ, allegedly used excessive use of force 
during  the apprehension of undocumented alien (UDA)  on October 26,  2016. 

laimed he was thrown to the ground by BP , resulting  in two broken front 
teeth, cuts and abrasions to his face. , Watch Commander,  Nogales, AZ, provided SSA 

with a copy of the Nogales Station Internal Incident Report  (IIR) documenting the alleged incident.

2.11 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Use of Force Use of Force Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I17-BP-TUC-01344 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Nogales, AZ  **NGO Referral--Credible Fear FNU (BPA)  LNU DHS Employee 10/14/2016 10/14/2016 11/8/2016
 NGO representative, provided a referral to DHS OIG Tucson on behalf of

 citizen of Mexico, who was detained at the Nogales Border Patrol (NGL) Station.  The referral states 
the NGL failed to properly refe  credible fear claim

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-TUC-01345 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Tucson, AZ   **NGO Referral FNU (BPA)  LNU DHS Employee 10/14/2016 10/14/2016 11/23/2016

 NGO representative, sent a referral to DHS OIG Tucson on behalf of , 
citizen of Mexico, who was detained at the Tucson Coordination Center (TCC).  The allegation states that 
during an interview Border Patrol Agents used coersion and threats to make admit that she was an 
alien smuggling guide.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Non-Criminal 
Misconduct Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-TUC-01347 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Tucson, AZ   **NGO Referral FNU (BPA)  LNU DHS Employee 10/14/2016 10/14/2016 11/9/2016
 NGO representative, filed a referral with DHS OIG Tucson on behalf of

 citizen of Mexico, who was detained at the Tucson Coordination Center (TCC.  The referral states 
the TCC failed to properly refe  credible fear claim

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-TUC-01736 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPAs, Naco, AZ  **NGO Referral FNU (BPA)  LNU DHS Employee 10/19/2016 10/21/2016 11/8/2016

On September 30, 2016, CRCL received a direct complaint from  at the Kino Border Initiative 
on behalf of  Mr. lleges that he presented himself at an unknown port 
of entry on September 17, 2016, asked for political asylum, and was told to go ask the consulate. On 
September 25, Mr tates that he attempted to enter the U.S. near Naco, Arizona, was detained at the 
Brian Terry Border Patrol Station, and was told that asylum is only given in Tijuana. He states that he was 
given documents to sign for his removal and told that he would go to jail if he attempted to enter again. He 
alleges that no one asked if he was afraid to return to Mexico. He alleges that his cousins who also were 
seeking asylum also were not asked whether they feared returning. Mr.  alleges he again attempted to 
enter on September 28, was apprehended and processed by the same officer and again was not granted 
asylum or asked about his fear of returning to Mexico.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct Non-Criminal 
Misconduct

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-TUC-05388 Tucson, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Tucson, AZ FNU  LNU Alien Detainee 11/30/2016 12/8/2016 12/21/2016

On November 30, 2016, the Joint Intake Center (JIC), Washington D.C., received an email from  the U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) INFO Center regarding allegations made by

 an illegal alien apprehended by Border Patrol Agents (BPAs)  near Arivaca, AZ, on November 6, 
2016.  alleged that a BPA hit her hard  with his baton and dragged her by the hood of 
her sweatshirt  also alleged  that her brother,  was 
handcuffed very tightly.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 245 Civil Rights - Federally Protected Activities

I17-BP-YUM-01868 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS)  BPA, Ajo, AZ DHS Employee 10/20/2016 10/20/2016 12/19/2016

On 9/17/2016, Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), Threat Mitigation and Analysis Division  (TMAD), 
received a information report completed from the CBP, Office of Field Operations (OFO),  Analytical 
Management Systems Control Office (AMSCO), and subsequently additional research  conducted by TMAD, 
indicates Border Patrol Agent  has extensive border crossing  history accompanying 
individuals with Records indicating active involvement in alien or  drug smuggling

4.2 Miscellaneous
Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Suspicious Activity 
(Criminal/Non-Criminal 
Misconduct)

Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-BP-YUM-04249 Yuma, AZ U.S. Border Patrol (DHS) FNU LNU, BPA, Yuma, AZ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 11/21/2016 11/21/2016 12/8/2016

On November 15, 2016, Senior Special Agent (SSA)  Immigration and Customs  Enforcement, 
Office of Professional Responsibility (ICE/OPR), Calexico received information that  an unidentified U.S. 
Border Patrol Agent (BPA) assigned to Yuma Station may have gone "  undercover" with undocumented 
immigrants into a drop house.

4.3 Miscellaneous Non-Criminal Misconduct
Non-Criminal 
Misconduct Information Only Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition Other Violation

I17-CBP-HOU-00808 Houston, TX U.S. Customs and Border Protection (DHS) Marine Interdiction Agent/U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP), Galveston, Texas

DHS Employee 10/6/2016 10/7/2016 12/5/2016

On October 5, 2016, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), U.S. Immigration and Customs  Enforcement 
(ICE), Office of Professional Responsibility, New Orleans, Louisiana (OPR New  Orleans), received 
information from civilian provided information  alleging that a Border Patrol Agent 
(BPA) identified as was a member of a  Mexican drug cartel and attempted to recruit her 
son to assist him in smuggling drugs from Mexico into the United States.  This report of investigation 

1.7.3 Employee Corruption Smuggling Narcotics Narcotics Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 21 USC 841
Controlled Substances - Prohibited Acts A 
[Unauthorized manufacture, distribution or 
possession]

I17-CIS-SFO-01358 San Francisco, CA U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS)  Non-DHS Employee; San Francisco,CA General Public 10/14/2016 10/21/2016 12/29/2016

I am a USCIS Immigration Officer with the Fraud Detection and National Security Directorate. I work out of the 
U.S. Consulate in Monterrey, Mexico. I received a routine inquiry from the U.S. Consulate in Bogota, 
Colombia, asking me to verify a USCIS Certificate of Citizenship. Upon review, I discovered that the certificate 
and those of four other family members were fraudulently issued by the INS San Francisco Field Office 
around 2001. In each case, the A-file is listed as lost. Today I obtained a report of all lost A-files in San 
Francisco during that time period. The report lists up to 70 individuals that may also have fraudulent 
certificates, all in sequential order. I have prepared a report on my findings and will email it to OIG, upon 
request. I am also referring the case to HSI in San Francisco as it relates to an immigration fraud.    Hotline 
Service 10/14/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the incident location was: INS San Francisco 
Field Office     734 Hotline Service 10/14/16 STD Public website submitter indicated that the duty status of 
subject was: On Duty

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Information Only Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1015

Fraud or False Statements re: Naturalization, 
Citizenship or Alien Registry

I17-ICE-ELP-00988 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 FNU, et al.; U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); 
DHS Employee; Sierra Blanca, TX

FNU DHS Employee 9/21/2016 10/14/2016 10/21/2016
hq_12321.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_09-21-2016_11-58-51.pdf    The complainant,
(693363800, is reporting an assault. tates he was assaulted by two correctional officers while he was 
in his cell tates the officers beat him after he was released from a 60 day period in segregation

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Incorrectly identified Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I17-ICE-ELP-00988 El Paso, TX U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

 FNU, et al.; U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS); 
DHS Employee; Sierra Blanca, TX

FNU DHS Employee 9/21/2016 10/14/2016 10/21/2016
hq_12321.dhs-oig.gov_Scan_to_Desktop_09-21-2016_11-58-51.pdf    The complainant,
(693363800, is reporting an assault. tates he was assaulted by two correctional officers while he was 
in his cell. tates the officers beat him after he was released from a 60 day period in segregation.

2.6 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect Related Abuse

Detainee / Prisoner / 
Suspect related Abuse

Incorrectly identified Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I17-ICE-TUC-00784 Tucson, AZ U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(DHS)

FNU  Corrections Officer, Non-DHS Employee, Eloy, AZ FNU Alien Detainee 10/5/2016 10/11/2016 10/11/2016

On October 3, 2016. the Joint Intake Center (JIC) received an email from Immigration and  Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) Supervisory Detention and Deportation Officer (SDDO)   Enforcement and 
Removal Operations, Eloy, Arizona (ERO/Eloy), who reported that

, a detainee detained at Eloy Detention Center (EDC) in  Eloy , Arizona, alleged while Corrections 
Corporation of America (CCA) Correctional Officer (CO) performed a pat down search, CO
poked her breasts multiple times

2.6.3.1 Civil Rights / Civil Liberties Detainee Reported Sexual 
Abuse / Sexual Assault

Detainee Reported 
Sexual Abuse / Sexual 
Assault

Information Only Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

I17-ICEHSI-ORL-01177 Orlando, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

 U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement - Homeland Security Investigations (DHS); DHS Employee; 
Orlando & Jacksonville, FL

DHS Employee 10/12/2016 10/14/2016 12/16/2016

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) received an allegation from an 
anonymous source indicating that  Special Agent, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Orlando, FL an  SA, ICE, HSI, Jacksonville, FL, 
conspired with an ICE HSI Confidential Informant (CI)

.  The ICE HSI CI is currently a target of interest of a DEA investigation.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I17-ICEHSI-ORL-01177 Orlando, FL U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement - 
Homeland Security Investigations (DHS)

 U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement - Homeland Security Investigations (DHS); DHS Employee; 
Orlando & Jacksonville, FL

DHS Employee 10/12/2016 10/14/2016 12/16/2016

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Office of Inspector General (OIG) received an allegation from an 
anonymous source indicating that  Special Agent, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 
Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), Orlando, FL an  SA, ICE, HSI, Jacksonville, FL, 
conspired with an ICE HSI Confidential Informant (CI)

The ICE HSI CI is currently a target of interest of a DEA investigation.

4.2.4 Miscellaneous Suspicious Activity (Criminal 
/ Non-Criminal Misconduct)

Other Suspicious Activity Other Suspicious 
Activity

Unsubstantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 1512 Tampering with a Witness, Victim, or Informant

I17-TSA-NYC-02789 New York, NY Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Officer, DHS, JFK, New York, NY DHS Employee 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 12/15/2016

On October 31, 2016, John F. Kennedy International Airport (JFK) Transportation Security Manager (TSM
informed OOI that JFK TSO  stole a bank envelope containing $4000 in U.S. currency 

from a Korean Airlines passenger.  According to the information provided, TSM  was in possession of 
surveillance video which showed TSO  removing the bank envelope from a checked bag on October 
25, 2016, and placing it on an examination table and subsequently covering the bank envelope with papers 
and his hat.  TSO  was subsequently observed on video walking out of the camera view with his hat 
and papers in hand.    SA  has enlisted the assistance of the Port Authority of New York and 
New Jersey Police Department (PAPD) with the initial investigation; however, to date, the passenger has not 
filed a claim for the missing money.    DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of 
Alleged Offender  was: On Duty

1.9 Employee Corruption Theft from luggage (TSA) Theft from luggage 
(TSA)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Administrative Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I17-TSA-NYC-02789 New York, NY Transportation Security Administration (DHS)  Transportation Security Officer, DHS, JFK, New York, NY DHS Employee 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 12/15/2016

On October 31, 2016, John F. Kennedy International Airport (JFK) Transportation Security Manager (TSM  
informed OOI that JFK TSO  stole a bank envelope containing $4000 in U.S. currency 

from a Korean Airlines passenger.  According to the information provided, TSM  was in possession of 
surveillance video which showed TSO  removing the bank envelope from a checked bag on October 
25, 2016, and placing it on an examination table and subsequently covering the bank envelope with papers 
and his hat.  TSO  was subsequently observed on video walking out of the camera view with his hat 
and papers in hand.    SA  has enlisted the assistance of the Port Authority of New York and 
New Jersey Police Department (PAPD) with the initial investigation; however, to date, the passenger has not 
filed a claim for the missing money.    DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the duty status of 
Alleged Offender  was: On Duty

1.9 Employee Corruption Theft from luggage (TSA) Theft from luggage 
(TSA)

Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 641 Public Money, Property or Records

I17-USCG-ORL-04262 Orlando, FL U.S. Coast Guard (DHS) Aviation Instrument Technologies, Inc. (AITI); USCG; FLORIDA 11/21/2016 11/22/2016 12/16/2016

This allegation is being submitted b  Senior Special Agent, US Department of Homeland 
Security, Office of Investigations, Orlando, FL, on behalf of the complainant Special Agen  US 
Army CID.    In summary, S rovided information that the subject company,Aviation Instrument 
Technologies, Inc. (AITI), might have provided false information in a defense related contract, and inquired if 
the subject received any contracts from the DHS.  SSA  determined that AITI received one contract 
from the US Coast Guard; however, it was out of the period of the statute of limitations.  SSA  agreed 
to research this matter further in an effort to determine if AITI was awarded any additional contracts.    Public 
website submitter indicated that the incident location was: In the State of Florida   Public website submitter 
indicated that the duty status of subject was: Off Duty

3.6.1 Program Fraud / Financial Crimes Grant Fraud Misapplication of US 
Government Funds

Misapplication of 
government funds

Unsubstantiated Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 287 Making or Presenting a False, Fictitious or 
Fraudulent Claim

I17-USSS-NYC-05274 New York, NY U.S. Secret Service (DHS) LNU, FNU; DHS Employee; USSS - U.S. Secret Service (DHS); Newark, NJ FNU  LNU DHS Employee 12/5/2016 12/7/2016 12/8/2016

On November  29, 2016, the SAIC of the Newark Field Office notified the Inspection Division that one $20.00 
counterfeit note that had been previously inventoried by NWK personnel was recirculated and passed a local 
post-office.  Investigation revealed that six counterfeit $20.00 notes are missing from the Newark Field 
Office.   Initial investigation revealed that there are no surveillance cameras at the post-office.

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Information Only Admin Closure Judicial Disposition 18 USC 472

Uttering Counterfeit Obligations or Securities of 
the United States

I17-USSS-WFO-00585 Washington, DC U.S. Secret Service (DHS)
 U.S. Secret Service (DHS); DHS Employee; Washington, 

DC DHS Employee 10/5/2016 10/17/2016 12/27/2016

On September 26, 2016,  Senior Special Agent (SSA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Office of Inspector General (OIG) and Phillip Lujan, Special Agent, DHS OIG interviewed 

), Branch Chief,  Procurement Division (PRO), United States Secret Service (USSS), in the DHS OIG 
Washington Field Office conference room at  Arlington, VA.  The interview was related to an 
allegation by hat he suffered reprisals subsequent to his March 26, 2014 disclosure that PRO was 
severely understaffed and overburdened. (I16-USSS-WFO-09765)     alleged two instances of his 
signature having been forged on performance reviews, although he did not believe these to be retaliation as 
the evaluations were not negative and pre-dated his alleged disclosure.  Namely  asserted the March 
15, 2012 mid-year performance review and the September 16, 2013 final performance review were not signed 
by him but by someone forging his name. [Agent’s Note:  These signatures do appear to differ substantially 
from the signature style o admitted signatures on other performance reviews and the printed 
name is “ , rather than “ , as in the admitted signatures.]  When 
interviewed, tated he did not recall if these performance reviews were ever presented to him.    On 
October 5, 2016 nterviewe mmediate supervisor,  Deputy Division 
Chief, PRO, who confessed to falsifying the performance reviews by signing the performance reviews as if 

ad signed them.    DHS Connect 10/05/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the duty 
status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Substantiated Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition 18 USC 2071

Concealment, Removal, or Mutilation of Records 
or Reports 

I17-USSS-WFO-00585 Washington, DC U.S. Secret Service (DHS)
 U.S. Secret Service (DHS); DHS Employee; Washington, 

DC DHS Employee 10/5/2016 10/17/2016 12/27/2016

On September 26, 2016,  Senior Special Agent (SSA), Department of Homeland Security (DHS), 
Office of Inspector General (OIG) and  Special Agent, DHS OIG interviewed 

 Branch Chief,  Procurement Division (PRO), United States Secret Service (USSS), in the DHS OIG 
Washington Field Office conference room at  Arlington, VA.  The interview was related to an 
allegation by hat he suffered reprisals subsequent to his March 26, 2014 disclosure that PRO was 
severely understaffed and overburdened. (I16-USSS-WFO-09765)     alleged two instances of his 
signature having been forged on performance reviews, although he did not believe these to be retaliation as 
the evaluations were not negative and pre-dated his alleged disclosure.  Namely  asserted the March 
15, 2012 mid-year performance review and the September 16, 2013 final performance review were not signed 
by him but by someone forging his name. [Agent’s Note:  These signatures do appear to differ substantially 
from the signature style o admitted signatures on other performance reviews and the printed 
name is “ , rather than “ , as in the admitted signatures.]  When 
interviewed tated he did not recall if these performance reviews were ever presented to him.    On 
October 5, 2016, nterviewed s immediate supervisor,  Deputy Division 
Chief, PRO, who confessed to falsifying the performance reviews by signing the performance reviews as if 

ad signed them.    DHS Connect 10/05/16 STD DHS Connect website submitter indicated that the duty 
status of Alleged Offender was: On Duty

1.8 Employee Corruption Other Employee Corruption
Other Employee 
Corruption Unfounded Referred - No Reply Judicial Disposition Other Violation

All redactions in this document are made pursuant to FOIA exemptions b(6), b(7)(C), b(7)(D), and b(7)E).

(b) (7)(A)

(b) (7)(A)
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